
  

 
Meeting of the  

 

OVERVIEW & 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

________________________________________________ 
 

Tuesday, 9 March 2010 at 7.00 p.m. 
______________________________________ 

 

A G E N D A 
__________________________________________ 

 

VENUE 
M71, 7th Floor, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, London, 

E14 2BG 
 
Members: 
 

Deputies (if any): 
Chair: Councillor Sirajul Islam  
Vice-Chair:Councillor Bill Turner   
  
Councillor Tim Archer 
Councillor Stephanie Eaton 
Councillor Alexander Heslop 
Councillor Ann Jackson 
Councillor Denise Jones 
Councillor Abjol Miah 
Councillor A A Sardar 
 

Councillor Shahed Ali, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillors Sirajul 
Islam, Alex Heslop, Ann Jackson, Denise 
Jones, A. A. Sardar and Bill Turner) 
Councillor Peter Golds, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Tim 
Archer) 
Councillor Shiria Khatun, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillors Sirajul 
Islam, Alex Heslop, Ann Jackson, Denise 
Jones, A. A. Sardar and Bill Turner) 
Councillor Fozol Miah, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Abjol 
Miah) 
Councillor Harun Miah, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Abjol 
Miah) 
Councillor M. Mamun Rashid, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Abjol 
Miah) 
Councillor David Snowdon, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Tim 
Archer) 



 
 
 
 

Councillor Salim Ullah, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillors Sirajul 
Islam, Alex Heslop, Ann Jackson, Denise 
Jones, A. A. Sardar and Bill Turner) 
 

[Note: The quorum for this body is 3 voting Members]. 
 
Co-opted Members:  
  
Mr Ahbab Miah – Parent Governor Representative 
Mr Abdur Rouf – Parent Governor Representative 
Vacancy – Church of England Diocese Representative 
Vacancy – Roman Catholic Diocese of Westminster 

Representative 
Vacancy – (Muslim Community Representative) 
 
If you require any further information relating to this meeting, would like to request a large 
print, Braille or audio version of this document, or would like to discuss access arrangements 
or any other special requirements, please contact: 
 
Angus Taylor, Democratic Services, 
 
Tel: 020 7364 4333, E-mail: angus.taylor@towerhamlets.gov.uk 



 
 
 
 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 

Tuesday, 9 March 2010 
 

7.00 p.m. 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
 To note any declarations of interest made by Members, including those restricting 

Members from voting on the questions detailed in Section 106 of the Local Government 
Finance Act, 1992.  See attached note from the Chief Executive. 
 
 

  
 

3. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  
 

3 - 12  

 To confirm as a correct record of the proceedings the 
unrestricted minutes of the meeting of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held on 9th February 2010.  
 
 

  

4. REQUESTS TO SUBMIT PETITIONS  
 

  

 To receive any petitions (to be notified at the meeting). 
 
 

  

5. REQUESTS FOR DEPUTATIONS  
 

  

 To receive any deputations (to be notified at the meeting). 
 
 

  

6. UNRESTRICTED REPORTS 'CALLED IN'  
 

  

 There were no unrestricted reports ‘callled in’ from the 
meeting of Cabinet held on 10th February 2010.  
 
 

  

7. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT  
 

  

7 .1 Performance and Corporate Revenue Budget 
Monitoring report 2009-10   

 
13 - 94  

 To consider and note the contents of the report. 
 
(Time allocated – 30 minutes) 
 

  



 
 
 
 

  
 

8. BUDGET AND POLICY FRAMEWORK  
 

  

8 .1 Strategic Plan 2009/10-11/12: Year 2 Action Plan; and 
Outline Plan   

 
95 - 176  

 To consider and comment upon the contents of the report. 
 
(Time allocated – 20 minutes) 
 

  

9. SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT  
 

  

9 .1 Report of the Scrutiny Review Working Group on 
Reducing Worklessness amongst Young Adults 18-24   

 
177 - 180  

 To consider and note the contents of the report. 
 
(Time allocated – 10 minutes) 
 

  

9 .2 Overview and Scrutiny Committee Recommendation 
Tracking Report: Update   

 
181 - 298  

 To consider and note the contents of the report. 
 
(Time allocated – 20 minutes) 
 

  

10. SCRUTINY SPOTLIGHT  
 

  

 The Lead Member Culture and Leisure, Councillor Rofique 
U. Ahmed, will attend to report on his portfolio.  
 
(Time allocated – 45 minutes) 
  
 

  

11. PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY OF UNRESTRICTED 
CABINET AGENDA  

 

  

 To consider and agree pre-decision scrutiny 
questions/comments to be presented to Cabinet. 
 
(Time allocated – 5 minutes). 
 
 

  

12. ANY OTHER UNRESTRICTED BUSINESS 
CONSIDERED TO BE URGENT  

 

  

 To consider any other unrestricted business that the Chair 
considers to be urgent.  
 
 

  



 
 
 
 

  
 

13. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 
 In view of the contents of the remaining items on the agenda the Committee is 

recommended to adopt the following motion: 
 
“That, under the provisions of Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, as 
amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985, the press and 
public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting for the consideration of the Section 
Two business on the grounds that it contains information defined as Exempt in Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act, 1972.” 
 
EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL SECTION (Pink Papers) 
 

The exempt committee papers in the agenda will contain information, which is commercially, 
legally or personally sensitive and should not be divulged to third parties.  If you do not wish 
to retain these papers after the meeting, please hand them to the Committee Officer present. 
 

  
 

14. EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL MINUTES  
 

  

 Nil items. 
 
 

  

15. EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL REPORTS 'CALLED 
IN'  

 

  

 There were no exempt/confidential reports ‘callled in’ from 
the meeting of Cabinet held on 10th February 2010. 
 
 
 

  

16. PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY OF 
EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL CABINET AGENDA  

 

  

 To consider and agree pre-decision scrutiny 
questions/comments to be presented to Cabinet 
 
(Time allocated -5 minutes) 
 
 

  

17. ANY OTHER EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL 
BUSINESS CONSIDERED TO BE URGENT  

 

  

 To consider any other exempt/confidential business that 
the Chair considers to be urgent. 
 
 

  

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\3\6\AI00023639\Notefromchiefexecutiveredeclarationofinterestsosctte07010820.doc  
  

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS - NOTE FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
FOR MEMBERS OF THE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
This note is guidance only.  Members should consult the Council’s Code of Conduct for further 
details.  Note: Only Members can decide if they have an interest therefore they must make their 
own decision.  If in doubt as to the nature of an interest it is advisable to seek advice prior to 
attending at a meeting.   
 
Declaration of interests for Members 
 
Where Members have a personal interest in any business of the authority as described in 
paragraph 4 of the Council’s Code of Conduct (contained in part 5 of the Council’s Constitution) 
then s/he must disclose this personal interest as in accordance with paragraph 5 of the Code.  
Members must disclose the existence and nature of the interest at the start of the meeting and 
certainly no later than the commencement of the item or where the interest becomes apparent.   
 
You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is likely to 
affect: 
 

(a) An interest that you must register 
 
(b) An interest that is not on the register, but where the well-being or financial position of you, 

members of your family, or people with whom you have a close association, is likely to be 
affected by the business of your authority more than it would affect the majority of 
inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision. 

 
Where a personal interest is declared a Member may stay and take part in the debate and 
decision on that item.   
 
What constitutes a prejudicial interest? - Please refer to paragraph 6 of the adopted Code of 
Conduct. 
 
Your personal interest will also be a prejudicial interest in a matter if (a), (b) and either (c) 
or (d) below apply:- 
 

(a) A member of the public, who knows the relevant facts, would reasonably think that your 
personal interests are so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the 
public interests; AND 

(b) The matter does not fall within one of the exempt categories of decision listed in 
paragraph 6.2 of the Code; AND EITHER   

(c) The matter affects your financial position or the financial interest of a body with which 
you are associated; or 

(d) The matter relates to the determination of a licensing or regulatory application 
 

The key points to remember if you have a prejudicial interest in a matter being discussed at a 
meeting:- 
 

i. You must declare that you have a prejudicial interest, and the nature of that interest, as 
soon as that interest becomes apparent to you; and  

 
ii. You must leave the room for the duration of consideration and decision on the item and 

not seek to influence the debate or decision unless (iv) below applies; and  

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



2 
 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\3\6\AI00023639\Notefromchiefexecutiveredeclarationofinterestsosctte07010820.doc  
  

 
iii. You must not seek to improperly influence a decision in which you have a prejudicial 

interest.   
 

iv. If Members of the public are allowed to speak or make representations at the meeting, 
give evidence or answer questions about the matter, by statutory right or otherwise (e.g. 
planning or licensing committees), you can declare your prejudicial interest but make 
representations.  However, you must immediately leave the room once you have 
finished your representations and answered questions (if any).  You cannot remain in 
the meeting or in the public gallery during the debate or decision on the matter. 

 
There are particular rules relating to a prejudicial interest arising in relation to Overview 
and Scrutiny Committees 
 
• You will have a prejudicial interest in any business before an Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

or sub committee meeting where both of the following requirements are met:- 
 

(i) That business relates to a decision made (whether implemented or not) or action taken 
by the Council’s Executive (Cabinet) or another of the Council’s committees, sub 
committees, joint committees or joint sub committees 

 
(ii) You were a Member of that decision making body at the time and you were present at 

the time the decision was made or action taken. 
 
• If the Overview & Scrutiny Committee is conducting a review of the decision which you were 

involved in making or if there is a ‘call-in’ you may be invited by the Committee to attend that 
meeting to answer questions on the matter in which case you must attend the meeting to 
answer questions and then leave the room before the debate or decision.   

 
• If you are not called to attend you should not attend the meeting in relation to the matter in 

which you participated in the decision unless the authority’s constitution allows members of 
the public to attend the Overview & Scrutiny for the same purpose.  If you do attend then you 
must declare a prejudicial interest even if you are not called to speak on the matter and you 
must leave the debate before the decision. 

 

Page 2



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
09/02/2010 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

HELD AT 7.00 P.M. ON TUESDAY, 9 FEBRUARY 2010 
 

M71, 7TH FLOOR, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 CLOVE CRESCENT, 
LONDON, E14 2BG 

 
Members Present: 
 
  
Councillor Sirajul Islam (Chair) 
Councillor Stephanie Eaton 
Councillor Ann Jackson 
Councillor Denise Jones 
Councillor A A Sardar 
 
Councillor Peter Golds 
 
Other Councillors Present: 
Councillor Ohid Ahmed 
Councillor Marc Francis  
 
Co-opted Members Present: 
 
Mr Ahbab Miah – Parent Governor Representative 
Mr H Mueenuddin – Muslim Community Representative 

 
Guests Present: 
Nil 

 
Officers Present: 
Lutfur Ali – (Assistant Chief Executive) 
Afazul Hoque – (Scrutiny Policy Manager, Scrutiny & Equalities, 

Chief Executive's) 
David Galpin – (Head of Legal Services (Community)) 
Aman Dalvi – (Corporate Director, Development & Renewal) 
Chris Naylor – (Corporate Director, Resources) 
Alan Finch – (Service Head, Corporate Finance, Resources) 
Stephanie Ford – (Interim Performance Manager, Strategy & 

Performance, Chief Executive's) 
Chris Worby – (Service Head, Housing Regeneration, 

Development & Renewal) 
Katie McDonald – Scrutiny Policy Officer 
Kelly Powell – (Communications Officer, Communications, Chief 

Executive's) 
Sarah Barr – Management Trainee, Strategy & Performance 
Jackie Odunoye – (Service Head Strategy Regeneration and 

Sustainability, Development & Renewal) 

Agenda Item 3

Page 3



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
09/02/2010 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

2 

Matthew Vaughan – (Political Advisor to the Conservative Group) 
 

Alan Ingram – (Democratic Services) 
 
 

COUNCILLOR SIRAJUL ISLAM (CHAIR) IN THE CHAIR 
 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received on behalf of: 

• Councillor Tim Archer (for whom Councillor Peter Golds deputised) 
• Councillor Abjol Miah 
• Councillor Bill Turner 
• Councillor Alex Heslop 

 
Apologies for lateness were received on behalf of Councillor Denise Jones. 
 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Councillor Denise Jones declared a personal interest in Agenda Item 8.1 
“General Fund Revenue Budget and Council Tax 2010/11 and Medium Term 
Financial Plan 2010/11 to 2012/13”.  The declaration was made on the basis 
that Councillor Jones was a non-executive member of the PCT Board; a 
Governor of Mulberry School and a Tower Hamlets Homes Board member. 
 
 

3. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  
 
The Chair Moved and it was:- 
 
Resolved 
 
That the unrestricted minutes of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held on 12 January 2010 be approved and signed by the Chair, as 
a correct record of the proceedings. 
 
 

4. REQUESTS TO SUBMIT PETITIONS  
 
Nil items. 
 
 

5. REQUESTS FOR DEPUTATIONS  
 
Nil items. 
 
 

6. UNRESTRICTED REPORTS 'CALLED IN'  

Page 4



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
09/02/2010 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

3 

 
Nil items. 
 
 

7. SCRUTINY SPOTLIGHT  
 
Councillor Marc Francis, Lead Member Housing and Development, gave a 
detailed presentation on aspects of his portfolio, focusing on areas set out 
below:- 
 
Local Development Framework Core Strategy 
 

• The Full Council in December 2009 had agreed a Local Development 
Framework for submission to the Secretary of State. The framework 
had been adapted so as to relate to particular areas and 
neighbourhoods of the Borough and as such had been supported by 
residents.  There would be a series of evidential sessions with the 
public in April and finalisation of the consultation process after the local 
elections. 

 
Regeneration 
 

• Individual Master plans had been prepared concerning regeneration of 
specific areas, namely, Aldgate, Whitechapel and Bromley by Bow. A 
Master plan for the Fish Island area was also in preparation, and aimed 
to provide community building without driving out local industry.  

 
• The Ocean Estate regeneration project was awaiting a detailed 

planning application and significant public investment was anticipated. 
Housing Consortium grant was close to finalisation and the contract 
with ET Consortium was due to be signed this month.  781 homes were 
to be refurbished and 819 new homes provided, with maximisation of 
socially rented homes to some 50%. 

 
• On the Blackwall Reach project, design work for the outline scheme 

had commenced and the first stage of procurement was underway. 
Despite previous misgivings about the scheme, regeneration of the 
estate was considered desirable and the views of residents were being 
sought to ensure their support. 

 
• At Cottall Street, all squatters had been removed and demolition work 

was proceeding. 
 
Housing Delivery 
 

• 1064 affordable homes had been completed in 2008/09, of which 186 
were three-bed plus.  It was forecast that 1817 affordable home would 
be completed in 2009/10, of which 54 were three-bed plus.  

 

Page 5



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
09/02/2010 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

4 

• Overcrowding had been particularly addressed as it affected people’s 
life chances and aspirations. A new allocations policy was under 
development and due for submission to Cabinet next month. Buy-
backs of 63 properties sold under RTB had been achieved and 
previously overcrowded homes had been let to smaller families. 

 
• The big housing management challenge was to bring Tower Hamlets 

Homes into a position to achieve two star status and work was ongoing 
with the new senior management team, who had been in place for the 
last 6 -12 months. Over the past two years there had been many 
issues to resolve with individual housing associations but most were 
now moving in the right direction.  There had been particular problems 
in the Isle of Dogs and Stepney with some improvements. The 
particular housing associations would be monitored and challenged as 
appropriate to ensure they delivered satisfactory services.  

 
Members of Overview and Scrutiny Committee then posed a series of detailed 
questions to which Councillor Francis responded. The question and answer 
session was centred on the following points: 
 

• The increasing population in the Borough and the consequent effects 
on housing requirements for local people, together with the Council’s 
obligations to meet that need. 

• The requirement to address issues arising from overcrowding that 
affected people’s aspirations and life choices. The Cabinet aimed to 
maximise the provision of socially rented homes and break the cycle of 
deprivation that had existed for many families. 

• A new lettings system was being implemented that would enable more 
transparency and consistency in application. A questionnaire had 
elicited almost 2,000 responses from the public and these were mostly 
positive in nature. 

• There had been success in obtaining funding from Communities and 
Local Government for the High Street 2012 (A12/Whitechapel) project; 
similarly there would be works to the Roman Road/Bethnal Green 
Road corridor and a significant post-Olympic legacy would be achieved 
for East London. 

• There was recognition of the contribution made by shopkeepers on the 
Ocean Estate and it was hoped that they could be relocated or return 
to the locality after regeneration works to the estate were completed. 
Councillor Francis indicated that he would check the position of the 
planning application for the redevelopment and inform the Chair 
accordingly. 

• Some 900 affordable homes had been completed, along with about 
500 socially rented homes also. 

 
The Chair thanked Councillor Francis for his detailed presentation.    
 

8. BUDGET AND POLICY FRAMEWORK  
 

Page 6



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
09/02/2010 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

5 

 
8.1 General Fund Revenue Budget and Council Tax 2010/11 and Medium 

Term Financial Plan 2010/11 to 2012/13  
 
Councillor Ohid Ahmed, Lead Member Resources & Performance, indicated 
that he would introduce the report and agenda item 8.2 concurrently. He then 
presented the reports for the comments of the Committee prior to their 
submission to Cabinet next day, for consideration of the General Fund Budget 
and Council Tax 2011/12, a Medium Term Financial Plan 2010/11 to 2012/13 
and also the Capital Programme 2010/11 to 2012/13.  Cabinet 
recommendations would then be submitted to the Budget Council for decision 
on 3 March 2010.   
 
Members of Overview and Scrutiny Committee then posed a series of detailed 
questions to which Councillor Ahmed and Mr Chris Naylor, Corporate Director 
Resources, responded. The question and answer session was centred on the 
following points: 
 

• A consultation process that had been undertaken with resident and 
business Council Tax payers, full results of which would be reported to 
the Cabinet next day. 

• Issues that were taken into account when setting appropriate financial 
reserves, including the position of the property portfolio. 

• Means of levering BSF funding into schools where PFI contractors 
were in operation. 

• The position with regard to current Directorate overspends and 
measures to redress this. 

• The progress made concerning a waste procurement strategy. 
 
The Committee further considered and discussed Cabinet’s budget proposals 
and noted that the government had announced the final local government 
settlement for 2010/11 and the certainty this provided for financial planning. 
The Committee were assured that a healthy reserve had been maintained to 
ensure proper financial management over the next year. The Council would 
need to carefully consider any capital projects with grants being reduced 
significantly over the next few years.  
 
The Committee expressed concerns that five out of six Directorates were over 
spending in their budget and Members asked that Cabinet monitor this more 
effectively during the reminder of this financial year and next year. The 
Committee would consider the budget and strategic monitoring report for 
quarter three at their next meeting in March 2010.  
 
The Committee commented that it would have been useful to consider the 
results of budget consultation as part of the reports to ensure residents 
concerns were fully reflected in the budget proposals. It therefore 
recommended that the Council improve the budget consultation process and 
ensure outcomes from this were shared with local residents and all 
councillors.  
 

Page 7



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
09/02/2010 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

6 

The Committee generally supported the budget proposals, in particular the 
proposal for freezing Council Tax doe 2010/11. The Committee also 
welcomed the proposed efficiency savings and additional investments 
proposed.  
 
Resolved 
 
That the comments of the Committee, as set out above, be reported to the 
meeting of Cabinet to be held on 10 February 2010. 
 
 

8.2 Capital Programme 2010/11 to 2012/13  
 
Dealt with in the preceding item. 
 

9. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT  
 
 

9.1 Tower Hamlets Index - October - November 2009  
 
Councillor Ohid Ahmed, Lead Member Resources & Performance, introduced 
the report comprising the third monitoring report for the Tower Hamlets Index 
for 2009/10.  Councillor Ahmed added that 35 indicators had been reported in 
the current period. In addition, the Council was liaising with the Government 
Office for London regarding revision of agreed LAA targets for National 
Indicator 155 – number of affordable homes delivered (gross) in the light of 
the economic downturn. 
 
Ms Stephanie Ford, (Interim Performance Manager, Strategy & Performance, 
responded to queries from Members relating to the position regarding amber 
status indicators; details concerning the percentage of top 5% of Local 
Authority staff that were women; looked after children achieving 5 A*-C 
GCSEs; percentage of undisputed invoices paid on time. 
 
Resolved 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

10. VERBAL UPDATES FROM SCRUTINY LEADS  
 
A Prosperous Community – Reducing Worklessness amongst Young 
Adults 18-24 
 
Councillor A.A. Sardar reported that recommendations were being finalised 
for the scrutiny review. Members met three weeks ago to discuss the final 
recommendations and would have until the close of play on 10 February 2010 
for comments on the draft report. 
 
The recommendations looked at a number of themes including more 
information and guidance for young adults, the important role of the third 

Page 8



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
09/02/2010 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

7 

sector, early intervention and the role of community leaders in reducing 
worklessness. 
 
Councillor Sardar added that he aimed to have the report available for 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee consideration next month. 
 
A Safe and Supportive Community – Reducing Youth Offending 
 
Councillor Denise Jones indicated that there had been two further review 
meetings since the last Scrutiny Leads’ update. 
 
In December the group looked at: 

• The Police’s perspective of Youth offending in Tower Hamlets. 
• How well the YOT performed compared to the rest of London. 
• The links of learning difficulties and young offenders. Realising that 

learning difficulties were not a cause of crime but instead were very 
prevalent amongst young offenders. 

• The current preventative measures used by the YOT. 
 
In its January meeting, the group: 

• Had a long discussion about the provision of housing for homeless 
young offenders. 

• Agreed the Council should sign up to the London Youth Resettlement 
Pledge. 

• Were updated about the use of the Police’s stop and search powers. 
• Discussed possible recommendations for the review. 

 
Councillor Jones commented that the review was now being drafted and 
would be considered at the next meeting on 16 February.  A final visit for the 
review was being considered, to comprise a visit to a youth court to see what 
happened there. 
 
One Tower Hamlets – Strengthening Local Democracy 
 
Councillor Ann Jackson indicated that the final meeting of the review group 
had been held in January.  There had been discussion around the evidence 
considered so far and also some draft recommendations. 
 
The key issues arising from this review included further developing the CCfA 
model that had been developed in Tower Hamlets, improving residents’ 
engagement through the partnership; improving residents’ participation in 
local democracy and supporting the development of community leaders.  The 
aim was to finalise the draft report over the next week, for consideration by 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee in April. 
 
A Healthy Community 
 
On behalf of Councillor Tim Archer, Councillor Peter Golds reported on: 
 

Page 9



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
09/02/2010 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

8 

Health Scrutiny Panel – 26 January meeting 
 
The Panel heard from 

• East London NHS Foundation Trust on the proposals for redesign of 
older peoples’ services. 

• Katharine Marks (Interim Service Head, Disabilities) on “Transition from 
Under 18 to Adult Autism Services”. 

• Ms Mabli Jones, Associate Director, Primary Care Commissioning on 
the GP List Cleansing Process. 

• Deb Clarke, Director of Human Resources, NHS Tower Hamlets with a 
detailed verbal presentation, slide show and video presentation of the 
PCT workforce. 

• Mr Jeremy Gardner, Head of Communications, & Engagement, NHS 
Tower Hamlets, with details of a consultation programme on the Health 
for North East London Consultation Plan. 

• Mr Andrew Ridley, Deputy Chief Executive, NHS Tower Hamlets 
providing a report and tabled paper on the preparation of the 
Commissioning Strategy Plan for the next five years. 

 
Scrutiny Review – Preventing Childhood Obesity 
 
Councillor Golds stated that as part of the review, five focus group sessions 
were held with external facilitators in January with the following groups: 

• Somali mums/carers 
• Male carers/dads 
• Bangladeshi female carers/mums 
• White working class female carers/mums 
• Secondary school children age 11 to 16 

 
The review group held a meeting at Toby Lane on 1 February, when: 

• Michael Hales, Head of Contract Services, gave a presentation on 
“School Setting – encouraging Healthy Eating” as well as arranging for 
the group to test a typical school meal. 

• Ann Sutcliffe, Head of Building Schools for the Future and Pat Watson, 
Head of Building Development, gave a presentation on “Building 
Schools for the Future and Building Developments – response to 
childhood obesity”. 

 
The next and final review meeting to discuss recommendations would be held 
on 25 February. 
 
Health 4NEL 
 
Councillor Golds reported that the JOSC to review Health4North East London 
Acute Services Review had nearly completed their programme. Tower 
Hamlets hosted the last INEL JOSC meeting on 2 February and Members 
heard presentations from the Inner London North East acute trusts (Newham, 
Homerton and Barts) on the impact reconfiguration would have on services, 
as well as updates from H4NEL and Unison. 

Page 10



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
09/02/2010 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

9 

 
The next meeting (and last evidence session) would be on 11 February at 
Newham Town Hall. The Royal Colleges of Nursing, Psychiatrists, General 
Practitioners and Physicians would be presenting as well as Transport for 
London and public and patient representative groups.  The JOSC were 
expected to agree the final draft report on 25 March 2010. 
 
A Great Place to Live – Private Rented Sector 
 
On behalf of Councillor Alex Heslop, the Chair reported that the working group 
had held their final session on the Private Rented Sector about two weeks 
ago.  This session looked at the merits and demerits of Private Sector lasing 
as well as the increased role of RSLs in the Private Rented Sector.  The 
working group heard evidence from the Group Chief Executive at East 
Thames Housing, the Director of Strategic Operations at Poplar HARCA and 
representatives from Look Ahead and Crises. 
 
The final report for the review was being devised, along with 
recommendations which would be available by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee in April. 
 
Councillor Jones referred to her report and commented that one 
recommendation her review group was likely to make would be that 
improvements in literacy were not proceeding quickly enough and should be 
extended to take on a life long learning approach.  The Chair stated that this 
should be flagged up for consideration when next year’s scrutiny reviews were 
being considered.  
   
 

11. PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY OF UNRESTRICTED CABINET AGENDA  
 
Members referred to the Cabinet report on the Ocean Estate Regeneration 
Compulsory Purchase Order which had been circulated earlier in the day and 
made the point that late reports made it very difficult for effective pre-decision 
scrutiny to be carried out.  The Chair stated that any Members’ comments 
should be forwarded by email to Mr Afazul Hoque, Scrutiny Policy Manager, 
for onward transmission to the Cabinet.  He also asked Mr Hoque to convey 
to Directors, Members’ dissatisfaction with important items of business being 
circulated at such a late stage.   
 

12. ANY OTHER UNRESTRICTED BUSINESS CONSIDERED TO BE URGENT  
 
Nil items. 
 

13. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
The recommendation was not adopted as there were no items of 
exempt/confidential business for consideration. 
 
 

Page 11



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
09/02/2010 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

10 

14. EXEMPT/ CONFIDENTIAL MINUTES  
 
No exempt/confidential minutes were submitted. 
 

15. EXEMPT/ CONFIDENTIAL REPORTS 'CALLED IN'  
 
Nil items. 
 

16. PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY OF EXEMPT/ CONFIDENTIAL CABINET 
AGENDA  
 
Nil items. 
 

17. ANY OTHER EXEMPT/ CONFIDENTIAL BUSINESS CONSIDERED TO BE 
URGENT  
 
The Chair asked Mr Afazul Hoque, Policy Scrutiny Manager, to note for the 
next agenda a Member’s request for inclusion of a report on luncheon club 
funding that had been previously agreed for consideration. 
 
 

 
 

The meeting ended at 8.25 p.m.  
 
 
 

Councillor Sirajul Islam 
Chair,  

Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 

Page 12



Committee/Meeting: 
 

Date: 
 

Classification: Report No: 

Overview & Scrutiny 9th March 2010 Unrestricted  

Report of: Title: 
 
Assistant Chief Executive 
Corporate Director of  Resources 

Originating Officer(s) 

Louise Russell, Head of Strategy & 
Performance 
Alan Finch, Head of Corporate Finance 
 
 
 

 
Performance and Corporate  
Revenue Budget Monitoring report  
2009-10 
 
Performance to 31st December 
2009 
 
Wards affected:  All 
 

 

Lead Member 
 

Cllr. Ohid Ahmed 

Community Plan Theme 
  

All 

Strategic Priority 
 

All 

 

1 SUMMARY 

 

1.1 This is the third combined service and financial performance report for 

2009/10, covering the authority’s quarterly progress against a basket of 

performance indicators and its financial position to the end of 

December 2009 (Quarter 3).  This report includes quarterly monitoring 

updates for: 

• Performance indicators; and 

• Financial Performance Report. 

 

1.2 Financial monitoring continues to shows overspends of £1.7m on the 

General Fund and £2.6m on the Housing Revenue Account. In the 

case of the General Fund this is an improvement on the position 

reported as at the end of September 2009.  However it remains 

imperative that actions are taken to contain spending within approved 

budgets.  

  

1.3 More detailed performance and financial information is contained in the 

report appendices, as follows: 

 

Agenda Item 7.1

Page 13



• Appendix 1 provides an overview of performance for all of the 

Council’s Strategic Indicators (the Tower Hamlets Index) which 

represent the key priorities for the Council; 

• Appendix 2 provides the budget outturn forecast and explanation 

of major variances for Directorates; 

• Appendix 3 contains Trading Accounts forecast outturn and 

explanation of variances; 

• Appendix 4 provides the budget outturn forecast and explanation 

of major variances for the Housing Revenue Account; 

• Appendix 5 lists budget/target adjustments; and 

• Appendices 6 and 7 contain progress against planned efficiency 

savings and progress against Service Improvement Growth 

plans 

 

2 DECISIONS REQUIRED 

 

Overview & Scrutiny is requested to: 

 

2.1 Review and note the performance information set out in the report: 

• The performance against targets for the third quarter; and 

• Consider the actions to be taken in 2009/10 to contain spending 

within budget.  

 

3 REASONS FOR THE DECISIONS 

 

3.1 This is a noting report and no specific decisions have been requested. 

 

4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

 

4.1 This is a noting report and no specific decisions have been requested. 

 

5 BACKGROUND 

 

5.1 Finance Overview 

 

5.1.1 This report projects a net overspend on the General Fund revenue 

budget of £1.701m, a decrease of £0.643m from the position reported 

at quarter 2. In addition, there is a projected overspend on the Housing 

Revenue Account of £2.6m, no change from the quarter 2 position.  

 

5.1.2 Any net overspend reported at the end of the financial year will need to 

be funded from reserves; General Fund Reserves in the case of the 

Page 14



General Fund and HRA balances in the case of the HRA. General 

Reserves are currently adequate for the purpose.  

 

5.1.3 Actions will need to continue to be taken within Directorates over the 

remainder of the financial year, in accordance with Financial 

Regulations, to contain spending within budgets. A number of 

mitigating actions have already been identified and further work will 

need to be undertaken to identify either offsetting areas of underspend, 

reductions in costs or potential sources of additional income in order to 

balance the outturn position. The report sets out in more detail the 

reasons for variances and the actions being taken to address them.    

 

5.2 Performance Overview 

 

5.2.1 42% of the indicators which are reportable in this period are on target, 

and 63.6% have improved performance since this time last year or year 

end 08/09.  A risk analysis of the indicators is explained in 4.8. 

 

6 PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

 

6.1 This is the third quarterly monitoring report for the Tower Hamlets 

Index, covering the period September-December 2009.  The Tower 

Hamlets Index is made up of 84 Strategic Indicators. These consist of: 

• All LAA indicators 

• Key measures of corporate health (usually ex-BVPIs) 

• The council’s strategic priorities 

• Some measures of customer satisfaction (usually Annual 

Residents Survey) 

 

6.2 These are monitored corporately every two months as the Tower 

Hamlets Index and quarterly in the joint strategic and budget monitoring 

report. 

 

7 How We Are Doing – Strategic Indicators (Tower Hamlets Index) 

 

7.1 Performance against our Strategic Indicators for Quarter 3 2009/10 is 

set out in Appendix 1. 

 

7.2 The table below sets out performance of our Strategic Indicator set at 

year end and for each reporting period for the 09/10 financial year.  

There is a fluctuation of the number of indicators between each period, 

Page 15



depending on the reporting frequencies of each individual indicator in 

the Strategic set. 

 

 GREEN RED 

2008/09 21 (41.17% 30 (50.82%) 

Apr-May 11 (52.38%) 10 (47.61%) 

Q1 11 (50%) 11 (50%) 

Jun-Jul 11 (47.82%) 13 (54.16%) 

Aug-Sep – Q2 14 (34.14%) 27 (65.85%) 

Oct-Nov 10 (28.57%) 22 (60%) 

Sep-Dec – Q3 14 (42.42%) 19 (57.57%) 

[Sep-Dec – Q3 08/09] 10 (43.48%) 13 (56.52%) 

 

7.3 There are three months to the end of the year and comments will 

reflect steps taken to ensure targets are met.  Of the 85 indicators in 

the Strategic Indicator set, 36 (42%) can be reported on this quarter.  In 

year targets have not been set for 3 indicators. 

 

7.4 Of the 33 applicable indicators, 14 of the performance indicators 

(42.42%) are on track to achieve their end of year target (GREEN). 

Areas where performance is above the estimated level for the end of 

December target are as follows:  

• Response time to members enquiries - % completed within 10 

working days 

• Percentage of complaints completed in time – Stage 1 

• First contact resolution of calls to Hot Lines 

• The number of households who considered themselves as 

homeless, who approached the local authority’s housing advice 

service(s), and for whom housing advice casework intervention 

resolved their situation 

• Percentage of household waste sent for reuse, recycling and 

composting 

• Average time to re-let property (days) 

• 16-18 year olds who are not in education, employment or 

training (NEET) 

• Overall employment rate (working age) 

• Working age people on out of work benefits 

• Number of most serious violent crimes per 1,000 population 

• Number of serious acquisitive crimes per 1,000 population 

• Number of deliberate primary fires per 10,000 population 

• Number of deliberate secondary fires per 10,000 population 

Page 16



• Number of drug users recorded as being in effective treatment 

 

7.5 Compared to the last round of monitoring (October-November), the 

proportion of RED indicators has decreased from 60% to 57%, and the 

number of RED indicators has decreased from 22 to 19 indicators. A 

slightly larger number of indicators are being monitored at the Quarter 

3 stage.   

  

7.6 A total of 21 (63.6%) indicators have improved performance from this 

time last year or since 2008/09 year end.  In addition of the 19 

indicators which are off target, 9 have improved performance from this 

time last year or 2008/9 year end. 

 

7.7 One strategic indicator which was RED in October/November has 

returned to target for this period: 

• Strategic402 – Number of most serious violent crimes per 1,000 

population – target missed in previous period by 3.3% 

 

7.8 A total of 19 indicators (57.57%) are not meeting their third quarter 

target, 11 of which have not met their target by more than 10%.  A risk 

analysis has been undertaken and indicators have been identified as 

being at risk of failing to achieve their target by the year end.  The risk 

analysis uses a series of risk based criteria to identify which indicators 

would benefit from further scrutiny at Performance Review Group. 

Based on risk – impact 

• Performance against target 

• Quartile performance (comparison to most recent data available) 

• Variance over 10% (comparing actual to target) 

Based on risk – likelihood 

• Improving (previous reporting period or same period previous 

year) 

• Confidence in recovery (assessment based on comments) 

 

Strategic103 – The percentage of top 5% of Local Authority staff 

who are from an ethnic minority; and 

Strategic104 – Percentage of the top paid 5% of staff who have a 

disability (excluding those in maintained schools) 

Work is being undertaken to improve performance through the 

Workforce to Reflect the Community Strategy, however these 

indicators have consistently not met targets.  Performance for 

Strategic103 has improved slightly since this time last year.  Both 

Page 17



indicators have improved since the last reporting period.  Comments 

from the Directorate stress that performance against the top 5% of 

earners can be subject to significant movements over short periods of 

time.  This is because of the relatively small number of staff included in 

the calculation compared to the workforce as a whole.  A paper went to 

PRG proposing to re-define this indicator to calculate staff on LP07 and 

above rather than top 5% which should make understanding the 

movements in performance and action necessary to improve in the 

future less complex and easier to identify.  This proposal will be 

included in the Target Setting report which will be submitted to CMT in 

March. 

 

 

Strategic105 – Number of working days/shifts lost to sickness 

absence per employee 

Although above London median, performance has been consistently off 

target and has deteriorated since last year.  Comments suggest that 

the target of 7 working days/shifts is unlikely to be achieved this year.  

A report and recommendations for corporate level special measures 

will be made to CMT in March.  

 

Strategic110 – Average waiting time for calls to Hot Lines to be 

answered 

Strategic110 – Percent of calls to hot lines answered 

These indicators have been off target in the majority of reporting 

periods and have deteriorated since this time last year (December 08).  

The new telephony system has now been implemented but technical 

issues have detrimentally affected performance.  Resolution should 

improve on performance by year end. 

 

National154 – Net additional homes provided 

National155 – Number of affordable homes delivered 

These indicators have been consistently off target although the 

direction of travel arrow shows that they are in an improved position 

compared to this time last year, also in year monitoring against these 

indicators is difficult and subject to variation due to the systems used 

to calculate.  Commentary indicates that the target for NI154 will be 

achieved, however NI155 is unlikely to due to the downturn in the 

economy.   The Council is currently negotiating with Government 

Office for London to amend targets for 2010/11. 

 

Strategic227 – Rent collected as percentage of rent due 

Page 18



Although this indicator has been consistently off target this year, 

performance has improved slightly on the 07/08 baseline year, and only 

very slightly off target, although the end of year target is unlikely to be 

met.  The Directorate has outlined the initiatives being actioned in order 

to raise performance, and has been invited to the February 

Performance Review Group to discuss performance against Strategic 

Indicators. 2010/11 targets will also be reviewed.  

 

National153 – Working age people on out of work benefits in the 

worst performing neighbourhoods 

This indicator has been consistently off target this year and has 

deteriorated in its position from this time last year (December 08).  A 

range of initiatives are detailed in Appendix 1 in order to try and 

mitigate the effects of the recession, however comments from the 

Directorate suggest that the 09/10 year end target is unlikely to be met. 

This issue was considered at a Partnership LAA Challenge Session in 

December and negotiations are currently underway to review this target 

and National152 (Working age people on out of work benefits) with 

GoL in light of the recession. 

 

7.9 The next monitoring report is the Tower Hamlets Index (Dec-Jan).  26 

Strategic indicators can be reported for the next period: the period 

ending January 2010.  This will be the penultimate monitoring report 

before the Year End monitoring.  The Year End Annual Report will 

include end of year monitoring updates for the strategic plan, strategic 

& priority performance indicators, and corporate revenue budget 

monitoring.  In addition, a report will be brought to CMT to agree the 

target setting procedure and approach for 2010-11.  The report on the 

Strategic Plan provides an opportunity to CMT to review the strategic 

indicator set to ensure that non-LAA indicators are still reflective of 

council priorities and are still the most appropriate measures. 

 

8 CORPORATE REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 

 

8.1 Background 

 

This section of the report sets out the financial position for the Council’s 

General Fund revenue budget and the Housing Revenue Account for 

the third quarter of 2009/10. It is based on expenditure and service 

activity until the end of December 2009 and has been obtained from 

monitoring statements provided by Corporate Directors. A separate 

report on the capital programme is set out elsewhere on this agenda.  

Page 19



 

This report projects an overspend on the General Fund revenue budget 

of £1.701m  a decrease of £0.643m from the position reported at the 

second quarter. There is a projected overspend on the HRA of £2.6m, 

no change from the position at quarter 2. Whilst the movement in the 

total projected overspend is downwards the size of the projected 

variance is a cause for concern. As set out in section 5.6 a small 

element of the overspend is due to projected savings which may not be 

achieved. 

 

Corporate Directors have provided the following information in support 

of their projected outturn and variance figures: 

 

 

 

Explanation of variances: 

 

• Explanations for the most significant net variances in both 

expenditure and income. 

• Details of actions to deal with any variances, including whether 

the actions are on target and, if not, what alternative/additional 

courses of action have been put in place. 

• Any implications for the current and future years’ budgets. 

 

Risk Areas: 

 

• Explicit monitoring information on the key risk areas identified in 

the final budget report 2009/10 which was submitted to Cabinet 

in March 2009. 

• Details of any additional risk factors which have emerged since 

the budget was set in February. 

 

Virements: 

 

• Virements are transfers of budget allocated for one purpose to 

another purpose. Financial Regulations stipulate that virements 

in excess of £250,000 must be submitted to Cabinet for 

approval. 

Page 20



8.2 Projected Outturn Position 

 

8.2.1 The table below shows the projected outturn position against the  

latest budget for each Directorate which includes the original budget 

plus any target adjustments agreed between Directorates. The 

projected outturn position includes any surplus/deficits on trading 

accounts. 

 

 

(*)  CLC has indicated that it will request permission to carry forward some of 

its under spend at the end of the financial year representing funding allocated 

for the Drugs Action Team which will not be spent in the current financial year.   

 

Key to ‘Traffic Light System’ 

 

The elements in the traffic light system are used to indicate significant 

outturn variances as follows:- 

Red – Potentially detrimental to the finances of the Council 

Directorate/Service Latest 

Budget 

 

£000 

Forecast 

Outturn as at 

31/12/09 

£000 

Projected 

Variance 

 

£000 

Status 

 

 

 

Adults, Health & 

Wellbeing 

89,754 89,764 0 Green 

Children, Schools & 

Families 

94,516 95,706 1,190 Red 

Communities, 

Localities & Culture 

75,263 74,433 (830) 

 

Green 

Development & 

Renewal 

12,601 12,772 171 

 

Amber 

 

Chief Executive’s 13,523 13,523 0 Green 

Resources 16,088 16,958 870 Amber 

Corporate/Capital 18,311 18,314 0 Green 

TOTAL  320,056 

 

321,470 1,401 Red 

Drugs Action Team – 

request to carry 

forward underspend 

(*) 

  300  

REVISED TOTAL   1,701 Red 

Page 21



Amber – Previously reported overspend, position improved since the 

last report 

Green – Potentially advantageous to the finances of the Council 

 

8.3 Variance Analysis  

 

The following sections set out explanations of the main variances in 

each Directorate’s budget provided by the relevant Corporate Director.  

Further details are provided in Appendix 2. 

 

8.3.1 Adults, Health & Wellbeing  

 

Home Care - £450,000 overspend 

 

An increase in referrals to the service and the introduction of a re-

ablement pilot have resulted in this increased expenditure. Government 

grant has been identified to fund part of the overspend. Management is 

controlling the referrals to the In House Homecare Team and is 

controlling this budget closely. A downward trend in activity is now 

evident. 

 

Emergency Duty Team - £142,000 overspend 

 

£130,000 of this overspend relates to the Single Status Review, with 

£90,000 relating to previous years and £40,000 representing the 

ongoing commitment.  

  

 Learning Disabilities Commissioning - £383,000 overspend 

 

There has been an increase in expenditure due to the full year effect of 

previous transition care packages for people with complex needs, 

combined with an increased demand for homecare and individual 

support. This is in line with the position being experienced by other 

London Boroughs. Overall spend on Learning Disabilities is above the 

average of our comparator Local Authorities  The Adult Health and 

Wellbeing Management Team will be seeking efficiency savings from 

all services as part of the delivery of the Medium Term Financial 

Strategy. 

 

 

 

 

Page 22



Mental Health Commissioning - £337,000 underspend 

 

Additional income has been received as a result of increased numbers 

being funded under NHS continuing care. 

 

Physical Disabilities Commissioning - £152,000 overspend 

 

There has been an increase in expenditure due to rising costs and 

numbers of clients in Home Care. The Adult, Health and Wellbeing 

Management Team will be identifying ways in which this budget can be 

brought back into line. 

 

Homeless and Housing Advice Service - £447,000 underspend  

 

Increased expenditure has been incurred due to two factors; the new 

staffing structure, which will deliver £500,000 savings, has not yet been 

implemented and there has been an increase in costs due to more 

households in temporary accommodation than was budgeted for. 

These additional costs have been more than offset by significantly 

improved debt recovery rates which has led a lower than estimated 

charge to the service for bad debt provision. In addition there has been 

a £150,000 increase in income due to greater numbers of temporary 

accommodation placements, resulting in higher administrative charges. 

 

8.3.2 Children, Schools and Families 

 

Early Years, Children Learning Management and Administration - 

£100,000 overspend 

 

Budget pressures arising from additional employee costs are being 

contained through the use of Standards Fund Grant but it is expected 

that not all of this pressure can be offset this way. 

 

Special Educational Needs - £114,000 overspend 

 

The overspend is attributable to increased home to school transport 

costs which have arisen because of an increase in the number of pupils 

with special educational needs. The projected overspend has reduced 

by £86,000 from the position at quarter two.  

 

 

 

Page 23



Children’s Social Care Management and Administration - £117,000 

overspend 

 

The variance is due to changes to the pay scales for social workers 

which had not been confirmed at the time the budget was set. Actions 

have been taken to tighten expenditure across other areas of the 

service. 

 

Child Protection and Reviewing - £182,000 overspend 

 

Children’s Social Care continues to experience a significant increase in 

child protection activity and children in need work. In order to maintain 

the statutory level of service it has been necessary to employ additional 

staff.  

 

Fieldwork – Children’s Social Care - £626,000 overspend 

 

The continued rise in demand in this area and the additional pressures 

arising from recent cases in other authorities has resulted in agency 

staff being maintained in the service to cover staff vacancies. In 

addition it has been necessary to provide a quota of agency staff which 

is over establishment, to meet the increased demand for the service 

and to ensure children are safeguarded. 

 

 A systematic recruitment campaign has been launched and eleven 

social worker posts have been filled. Further recruitment will take place 

over the next few weeks to recruit suitably qualified permanent social 

workers and thereby reduce reliance on agency staff.  

 

The Integrated Pathways and Support Team has been established, 

managing workflow in a multi agency context and has diverted a 

significant number of cases, thus reducing some of the pressure on the 

Fieldwork team. However, the complexity level of cases referred 

through to Children’s Social Care has increased. 

 

A re-focus on the Children’s Social Care’s response to Children in 

Need remains in place with work being undertaken to ensure  there is a 

clear remit for CSC teams and a re-focus on enabling partner agencies 

to support children before any referral to Children’s Social Care, 

through the work of the IPST and Social Workers based within 

Extended Schools. This work will be supported by the key strategic 

development of the creation of a Tower Hamlets Well-being model 

Page 24



which will provide a framework for a multi agency/ integrated approach 

to thresholds for CSC involvement. 

 

A significant change programme is underway in relation to a wholesale 

review of the Integrated Children’s System with a view to making it less 

onerous on front line staff and promoting more direct work with families. 

 

Children’s Resources – Commissioning - £101,000 underspend 

 

The commissioning budget is large and volatile and changes in 

demand can be unpredictable and can result in material changes to the 

forecast outturn. The projected underspend has reduced by £48,000 

since quarter two but this masks a significant increase in high cost 

placements, offset by a realignment of the education and social care 

costs of joint placements which has seen £400,000 of costs transferred 

to the Dedicated Schools Grant.  

 

Emergency Duty Team - £120,000 overspend 

 

The overspend is largely due to the cost of a staffing review for the 

service. 

 

Professional Development Centre - £155,000 underspend 

 

Additional expenditure has arisen from increased trading activity and 

this has lead to higher than expected net income. 

 

Building Schools for the Future - £120,000 overspend 

 

The overspend relates to costs for specialist legal and technical advice 

regarding the interface between Building Schools for the Future and 

Private Finance Initiative. These costs are above the planned spend for 

BSF for 2009-10 and officers are preparing a paper which will quantify 

the potential future costs of this issue. 

 

8.3.3 Communities, Localities and Culture 

 

Concessionary Fares £600,000 underspend 

 

The projected underspend is due to the fact that the proposed increase 

in the cost of concessionary fares to London Local Authorities will now 

not take place until 2010-11. 

Page 25



 

 Drugs Action Team £300,000 underspend 

  

The variance relates to delays in programme commencement for Local 

Area Partnership projects funded via Area Based Grant. A request will 

be made to members at the year end to carry forward the underspend 

to fund the projects in 2010/11. 

 

8.3.4 Development and Renewal 

 

Major Projects and Development - £126,000 overspend 

 

The variance is  due to additional expenditure being incurred on 

specialist one off projects which are funded predominantly through 

Section 106 resources. These are all one off and do not have any long 

term implications. 

 

Development Decisions - £449,000 underspend 

 

The Directorate budget includes a high level of income from 

development fees. These are forecast to decline as a direct 

consequence of the economic downturn and its impact on the property 

market. However planning fee income received to date is higher than 

the comparable budget, although it must be stressed that this is due to 

various one off large applications being received. There is still a 

significant level of risk with regard to income forecast to be received in 

future years as it is not expected that the level of fee income received 

in 2009/10 will be replicated in future. 

 

Housing Regeneration – £181,000 overspend 

 

The Housing Regeneration Team has historically been funded from 

Housing Capital resources. The focus of the team now centred on the 

two main regeneration projects at Blackwall Reach and the Ocean 

Estate with alternative funding sources being investigated by the 

Directorate. These will include eligible expenditure being financed 

through Housing and Planning Delivery Grant as well as part funding 

from savings elsewhere in the Directorate.  

 

 

 

 

Page 26



8.3.5 Resources Directorate  

 

Administrative Buildings - £800,000 overspend 

 

There are continuing pressures on the Office Accommodation budget 

arising from delays in disposing of vacant and underused office 

buildings and increased costs at East India Dock. Mitigating actions are 

being pursued to contain these costs and the 2010/11 budget provides 

for this issue. 

 

8.3.6 Corporate and Capital Finance 

 

Capital/Treasury Management £1,700,000 shortfall  

 

In former years the Council has benefited from being able to invest at 

higher interest rates and enjoyed low external borrowing costs.  

However, the economy has entered a recession and interest rates have 

fallen significantly, rates are expected to remain the same for the 

remainder of 2009/10 and in the medium term and the Council is 

expecting a significant shortfall in investment income which means the 

capital financing and investment budget is unlikely to break-even. The 

position will be kept under review throughout the rest of the financial 

year. This overspend is funded by a contingency arising from the local 

government pay award in 2009. At the time the budget was set it was 

understood that these two items would offset each other. 

 

8.3.7 Trading Accounts 

 

Development & Renewal are reporting projected deficits on both 

Building Control and Local Land Charges trading accounts. Both 

projected deficits are a direct consequence of the wider economic 

downturn and the resultant reduction in fee income to the Council. 

Officers are currently assessing alternative means of minimising the 

impact. Any deficits on trading accounts must be temporarily funded 

from Council reserves and therefore reduce the Council’s capacity to 

respond to unforeseen circumstances. 

 

Full details of all trading accounts are held in Appendix 3A-C. 

 

 

 

 

Page 27



8.4 Housing Revenue Account   

 

8.4.1 The report also incorporates the second quarter’s financial position for 

the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) based on income, expenditure 

and service activity to 31st December 2009.  There is a projected 

overspend of £2.6m on the HRA and full details are provided in 

Appendix 4. The main reasons for the variance are: 

 

• Tenant and Leaseholder Service Charges - £1.290m underspend 

 

The 2009/10 estimated leaseholder invoices have now been prepared 

and the anticipated income is higher than that originally forecast when 

the budget was prepared. The 2008/09 actual invoices have now been 

prepared which has resulted in additional income. There has also been 

an increase in income from leaseholders managed by Tenant 

Management Organisations. 

 

• Government Subsidy - £4.051m overspend 

 

The HRA subsidy entitlement is estimated to be significantly reduced 

following a further review of the effects of the reductions in the Bank of 

England base rate, although this will be partially offset by reductions in 

capital financing charges. 

 

• Repairs & Maintenance £1.537m overspend 

 

The successful repairs open days recently held on estates have 

contributed to an increase in demand for repairs. Measures are being 

put in place within Tower Hamlets Homes to reduce the overspend but 

it is unlikely that expenditure will be brought in line with the budget. 

 

• Supervision and Management - £0.756m  

 

The Supervision and Management budget is currently projecting a 

significant overspend, although it does include some extraordinary one-

off restructuring costs which have been provided for within reserves. 

Actions are being taken, in conjunction with Tower Hamlets Homes, to 

reduce the forecast overspend. 

 

• Capital Financing Charges - £3.173m underspend 

 

Page 28



As a result of the uncertainty regarding interest rates and the fall in the 

Authority’s likely Consolidated Rate of Interest for the financial year, a 

significant reduction in borrowing costs is anticipated. This saving partly 

offsets the reduction in HRA subsidy received. 

 

8.5 Virements 

 

8.5.1 Virements are transfers of budget that result in no overall change to the 

budget of the Council. Under Financial Regulations, virements over 

£250,000 are required to be approved by the Cabinet.  Virements over 

£100,000 are required to be reported for information and are agreed by 

the Corporate Directors. 

 

8.5.2 There are a number of virements over £250,000 relating to budgets 

within the Adults, Health and Wellbeing Directorate. These are detailed 

in Appendix 5B. 

 

8.6 Savings/Efficiency Targets 

 

8.6.1 Efficiency targets are underway or planned to deliver the cashable 

savings of £5.674m as part of the Council’s Budget Strategy for 

2009/10. 

 

8.6.2 A breakdown of efficiency savings is attached at Appendix 6. 

 

8.6.3 At this stage in the financial year Development & Renewal are reporting 

that £70,000 of savings relating to the digitalisation programme and the 

utilisation of IT to produce planning consultation documents will not be 

achieved during 2009/10. The Directorate is looking for alternative 

savings to compensate for this. 

 

8.6.4 Children, Schools and Families are reporting that potentially £235,000 

of the savings identified for the Directorate will not materialise. This is 

largely as a consequence of the increased pressures on the Children’s 

Social Care service. Officers are considering alternative savings and 

compensating underspends in other areas of the budget. 

 

8.7 Service Improvement Growth 

 

8.7.1 On 11th February 2009 Cabinet agreed Service Improvement Growth 

for 2009/10.  At this stage all Directorates are reporting that targets will 

be achieved although £300,000 of funding for drug outreach workers 

Page 29



will be utilised in 2010/11.  Appendix 7 provides the details of progress 

to date in delivering Service Improvement Growth. 

 

8.8 Accelerated Delivery Plan Monitoring  

 

8.8.1 Detailed quarterly reporting arrangements for Accelerated Delivery 

Plan monitoring will be in place from quarter  4, when a full annual 

update on spend and progress for the year will be available as part of 

the combined Annual Report on performance and finance. As the bulk 

of funding is profiled to be spent during the next financial year, detailed 

quarterly reporting of spend and progress will be included alongside the 

Corporate Budget Monitoring reporting for 2010/11.   

 

8.9 Income Collection Performance Targets 2009-10 

 

8.9.1 The table below relates to debt raised since the 1st April 2009: in 

addition, a proportion of debt is collected as arrears, so a greater 

proportion of overall debt is collected than these targets suggest. The 

direction of travel arrows indicate that for most types of debt, 

performance is above target.  The 2009/10 targets will continue to be 

monitored on a regular basis. 

 

 

Collected 2009-10 2009-10 

In 2008-09 
Target to 

 31-12-09 

Collected to 

31-12-09 
Income Stream 

% % % 

Direction 

of Travel 

Business Rates 98.60 81.00 85.62 � 

Central Income 86.07 87.00 87.08 � 

Council Tax 95.00 

 

72.45 

 

71.29 � 

Housing Rent 99.66 100.00 99.60 � 

Major Works 8.00 13.50 13.50 � 

Parking Fines 63.55 60.00 60.77 � 

Service Charges 57.80 45.00 45.00 � 

 

 

 

Page 30



8.9.2 Despite the economic climate, collection activity in most areas is 

currently performing well, but the authority must be prepared for the 

impact of the Business Rates Deferral Scheme which could see a drop 

in collection levels in the latter part of the financial year.   

  

Council Tax is 1.16% down on target but has recovered slightly from 

November. Current performance will mean achieving similar collection 

rates to last year which, taking into account the economic climate, is 

not a concern. 

 

9 Summary of recommendations  

 

Overview & Scrutiny is requested to: 

 

 Review and note the performance information set out in the report: 

• The performance against targets for the third quarter; and 

• Consider the actions to be taken in 2009/10 to contain spending 

within budget.  

 

 

10 COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

 

10.1 Under the Local Government Act 1972, the Authority's Section 151 

Officer is required to ensure there are sound systems of financial 

administration. 

 

10.2 This is the third quarter report and opportunities for managing these 

variances between now and the end of the year are more limited than 

earlier in the year.   Nevertheless, where overspends are being 

predicted Corporate Directors, in accordance with Financial 

Regulations, must keep the position under close, continuous review 

and, where necessary, identify compensatory savings. Consequently, 

the Section 151 Officer will be monitoring closely those Directorates 

that have so far projected adverse end of year variances. 

 

10.3 Further, the Local Government Act 2003 requires the Chief Finance 

Officer to review the robustness of the budget estimates and its impact 

on reserves periodically in year through regular budget monitoring. 

Also, where there has been deterioration in the Authority’s financial 

position it requires the Authority to take action to address the situation.  

 This report is part of the process of continual monitoring and review. 

Page 31



 

11 CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

(LEGAL SERVICES) 

 

11.1 The report provides monitoring information relating to key performance 

indicators and the budget. 

 
11.2 It is consistent with good administration for the Council to consider 

monitoring information in relation to plans and budgets that it has 

adopted and agreements entered into such as the local area 

agreement.  In addition, section 3 of the Local Government Act 1999 

requires the Council as a best value authority to “make arrangements 

to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are 

exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness”.  Monitoring of performance information is an important 

way in which that obligation can be fulfilled. 

 
11.3 Cabinet is asked to note information as to expenditure for the current 

financial year.  Where the Council has made a calculation of its budget 

requirement for a given year, it is required to keep that under review 

from time to time in the year: Local Government Act 2003, s.28.  There 

is also a positive duty on the chief finance officer to monitor 

expenditure against resources: Local Government Finance Act 1988, 

s.114.  It is consistent with these requirements and the proper 

administration of the Council’s financial affairs, arrangements for which 

are required by section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972, for 

Cabinet to be presented with the monitoring information in this report. 

 

12 ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 

 

12.1 The Council’s Strategic Indicator set is focused upon meeting the 

needs of the diverse communities living in Tower Hamlets and 

supporting delivery of One Tower Hamlets. Indicators are aligned with 

Strategic Plan priorities, which include the reduction of inequalities and 

the fostering of strong community cohesion and are supported by a 

variety of strategic activities. 

 

13 SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 

 

13.1 The Strategic Indicator set contains a number of indicators related 

sustainability and the environment under the Great Place to Live 

theme, however there are no specific SAGE implications. 

Page 32



 

14 RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

 

14.1 There is a risk to the integrity of the Authority’s finances if an imbalance 

occurs between resources and needs. This is mitigated by regular 

monitoring and, where appropriate, corrective action.  This report 

provides a corporate overview to supplement more frequent monitoring 

that takes place at detailed level.   

 

15 CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 

 

15.1 The Strategic Indicator set contains a number of crime and disorder 

indicators under the Safe & Supportive theme, however there are no 

specific crime and disorder reduction implications.  

 

16 EFFICIENCY STATEMENT 

 

16.1 The Efficiency Statement is covered in Section 8.6 and Appendix 6. 

 

INDEX OF APPENDICES 

Appendix Detailing the following: 

1 Strategic Indicator monitoring (Tower Hamlets Index) 

2 Budget outturn forecast 

3 Trading accounts outturn forecast 

4 HRA budget outturn forecast 

5 Budget/target adjustments (virements) 

6 Efficiency savings plan monitoring 

7 Service Improvement Growth plan monitoring 

 

 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 1972 SECTION 100D (AS AMENDED) 

LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 

Brief description of "background paper  Name and telephone number of holder and address 

where open to inspection 

Page 33



 

 
 Performance Manager 

 
Corporate Finance 
 

Stephanie Ford 
 
Gary Moss 

X2852 
 
x4223 

 

 

Page 34



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 -
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�	
�


�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�


�
�
�


�
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�


�
�
�
��
�

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
��
�
��

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

!
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

"
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�#

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
$
�
��

"
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
$
�

��


��
%
�
�
�
&�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
#

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
0
1

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
	

�	
�
�

��
�
�
��

	�
�
�


��
�
�
	�
�
�
	

�
	�
��

�

�
�
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�	
�
	�


�
	�
��

�
	�
�
	�
�
�
�
��
�
	�
��
�
��
	�
�
	
�
�
�
	

�	
�

�
�
�
�	

 
�
	�

�
��
�
�	
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�!

"





	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
#
��
�
�
�

$
��
�
�
�
	�
�
��


�
�

$
�
�


�
��
�
�

%
��
�	
&
	'
�
�
�


(
(
)�
(

*
(

(
+

*
(

(
*
)�
,

'�
(�
�
)

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
0
2

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
	

�	
�

�
	+
�
	

�	
�
�
��
�
��
	

�	
-


�
�
�	
'
�
��


��
��
	�
��
��
	�
�
�
�	

�
��
	�


�
�
�
)

�
�
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�	
�
	�
�
�

�
�
	�
�
�
	

�	
�

�
	+
	�

	

�	
�
�
��
�
��
	�
�
	�
�
�
	

�
�
��


��
��
�
�
	�
.
�
��

��
�
	�
��
	�
��
��
	�
�
	�
�
�




��
!

"





	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
#
��
�
�
�

/
��
�
�
	0
�
�
�
�

$
�
�


�
��
�
�

%
��
�	
&
	'
�
�
�


+
�
)1
2

+
�

+
�
)�
3

+
�

1
*
)�
,

'�
(*
�
)

�
+
�
�
�
��
,�
�
�
�
��
�
-
�
�
�.
�
�
��
�


M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
  
T

h
e

 f
ig

u
re

 o
f 
8

9
.3

6
%

 r
e

m
a

in
s
 c

lo
s
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
, 
a

lth
o

u
g

h
 b

e
lo

w
 t
a

rg
e

t.
 T

h
e

 im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
tio

n
 o

f 
R

2
P

 c
o

n
tin

u
e

s
 

a
t 
g

re
a

t 
p

a
c
e

, 
a

n
d

 r
e

m
a

in
s
 o

n
 t
a

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
c
o

m
p

le
tio

n
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

0
. 
T

h
is

 h
a

s
 a

n
 o

b
je

c
tiv

e
 o

f 
b

ri
n

g
in

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 u
p

 t
o

 t
a

rg
e

t 
d

u
ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
 

fin
a

n
c
ia

l y
e

a
r.

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
  
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 h
a

s
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e

d
 s

lig
h

tly
 s

in
c
e

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r.

 I
t 
s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 n

o
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
g

a
in

s
t 
th

e
 t
o

p
 5

%
 o

f 
e

a
rn

e
rs

 

th
a

t 
a

re
 f
e

m
a

le
 c

a
n

 b
e

 s
u

b
je

c
t 
to

 s
ig

n
ifi

c
a

n
t 
m

o
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
v
e

r 
s
h

o
rt

 p
e

ri
o

d
s
 o

f 
tim

e
. 
T

h
is

 is
 b

e
c
a

u
s
e

 o
f 
th

e
 r

e
la

tiv
e

ly
 s

m
a

ll 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
s
ta

ff
 in

c
lu

d
e

d
 

in
 t
h

e
 c

a
lc

u
la

tio
n

 c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 a

s
 a

 w
h

o
le

. 
O

n
e

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 in

 t
h

is
 g

ro
u

p
 is

 c
u

rr
e

n
tly

 e
q

u
a

l t
o

 0
.4

%
.

A
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 t
h

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 
y
e

a
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
w

ill
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 2

 a
d

d
iti

o
n

a
l f

e
m

a
le

 s
e

n
io

r 
m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

 b
e

in
g

 r
e

c
ru

ite
d

.

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
E

s
ti
m

a
te

R
E

D

R
E

D

6
0

6
5

7
0

7
5

8
0

8
5

9
0

9
5

1
0
0

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

Ju
n
e

Ju
ly

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o
ve

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

Ja
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h

4
5

4
6

4
7

4
8

4
9

5
0

5
1

5
2

5
3

5
4

5
5

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

Ju
n
e

Ju
ly

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o
ve

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

Ja
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h

Page 35



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 -
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�	
�


�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�


�
�
�


�
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�


�
�
�
��
�

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
��
�
��

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

!
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

"
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�#

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
$
�
��

"
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
$
�

��


��
%
�
�
�
&�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
#

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
E

s
ti
m

a
te

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
0

3
�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
	

�	
��
�
	�


�
	+
�
	

�	
-


�
�
�	
'
�
��


��
��
	�
��
��
	�
�


	

�
��
	�
�

�
	�
�
	�
��
�
��
	�

��


��
��
)

�
�
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�	
�
	�
4�


�
5�
�
�
	+
�
6	
�
��
	�

�
�
��
��
�

	 
�
	�
�
�
7
��
�
	

�
��
��
	�
�
�


�
��
�
	�


	�
�
�
��
	�
�

�
�
	�
�
�
)!

"





	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
#
��
�
�
�

/
��
�
�
	0
�
�
�
�

$
�
�


�
��
�
�

%
��
�	
&
	'
�
�
�


8
2
)8

3
+

8
,
)+
1

3
�
)�
�

8
,
)2
1

'�
/
(*
�
)

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
0

4
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
	

�	
��
�
	�


�
	�
�
�
	+
�
	

�	
�
��
��
	�
�


	�
�
�
�
	�
	
��
�
 
��
��
�
	

��
.
�
��

��
�
	�
�


�
�
	�
�
	�

�
��
��
��
�

	�
�
�




��
)!

�
�
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�	
�
	�
4�


�
5�
�
�
	+
�
6	
�
��
	�

�
�
��
��
�

	 
�
	�
�
�
7
��
�
	

�
��
��
	�
�
�


�
��
�
	�


	�
�
�
��
	�
�

�
�
	�
�
�
)	
	/
��
��
	�
�


	�
�
�
�
	�
	


��
�
 
��
��
�
6	
�
��
	�
�


�
�
	�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
��
��
	�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
	�
�
	�
�
�
�
	�
�
	�
�
�
	

�
��
��
	�
�
��
�
�
9	
�
�
�
��
�
�	
��
�
	
�
��
�
��
�

�
	�
�

�
�
�

	�
�
	�
�
�
	:
��
�
 
��
��
�
	

:
��
�
��
�
��
�
��


�
	'
�
�	
8
*
*
+
!)
		

	 "





	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
#
��
�
�
�

/
��
�
�
	0
�
�
�
�

$
�
�


�
��
�
�

%
��
�	
&
	'
�
�
�


3
)8

1
)2

3
)2
1

1
)�
+

8
)1
(

'0
*
(1
�
)

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
  
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 h
a

s
 im

p
ro

v
e

d
 s

lig
h

tly
 s

in
c
e

 t
h

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

b
u

t 
s
til

l r
e

m
a

in
s
 b

e
lo

w
 t
h

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 
y
e

a
r 

ta
rg

e
t.
 T

o
 im

p
ro

v
e

 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 in
 t
h

e
 lo

n
g

e
r 

te
rm

, 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 
fo

r 
e

x
e

c
u

tiv
e

 s
e

a
rc

h
 a

n
d

 s
e

le
c
tio

n
 c

o
n

s
u

lta
n

ts
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
te

n
d

e
re

d
 w

ith
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 

e
m

p
h

a
s
is

 p
la

c
e

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 a

im
 o

f 
a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 a

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 t
o

 r
e

fle
c
t 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ity

 a
t 
a

ll 
le

v
e

ls
. 
A

 V
a

c
a

n
c
y
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 S
y
s
te

m
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 p

u
t 
in

to
 p

la
c
e

 

fo
r 

re
c
ru

iti
n

g
 t
o

 p
o

s
ts

 a
t 
P

O
5

 a
n

d
 a

b
o

v
e

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 e
n

s
u

re
 m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

 a
re

 c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
d

 w
ith

 r
e

g
a

rd
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

in
g

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
iti

e
s
 t
o

 e
x
is

tin
g

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 a

d
v
e

rt
is

in
g

 a
n

d
 s

e
le

c
tio

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 t
o

 b
e

 u
s
e

d
.

A
 s

ig
n

ifi
c
a

n
t 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
is

 a
ls

o
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d

e
 t
o

 im
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f
o

r 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
a

c
tiv

iti
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 g

re
a

te
r 

c
a

re
e

r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

iti
e

s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
.

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
  
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 h
a

s
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d

 s
ta

b
le

 s
in

c
e

 t
h

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

b
u

t 
re

m
a

in
s
 b

e
lo

w
 t
h

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 
y
e

a
r 

ta
rg

e
t.
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 

a
g

a
in

s
t 
th

is
 t
a

rg
e

t 
is

 a
d

v
e

rs
e

ly
 e

ff
e

c
te

d
 b

e
c
a

u
s
e

 2
7

%
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
c
o

n
fir

m
e

d
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
o

r 
n

o
t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 d

is
a

b
le

d
 (

a
s
 d

e
fin

e
d

 

b
y
 t
h

e
 D

is
a

b
ili

ty
 D

is
c
ri
m

in
a

tio
n

 A
c
t)

. 
T

h
is

 in
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 is
 r

e
q

u
e

s
te

d
 o

n
 j
o

b
 a

p
p

lic
a

tio
n

s
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
n

 n
e

w
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s
 s

ta
rt

 w
o

rk
 f
o

r 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

 T
o

 

a
d

d
re

s
s
 t
h

is
, 
a

 s
ta

ff
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 a

u
d

it 
w

ill
 b

e
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
e

d
 in

 t
h

e
 f
ir
s
t 
h

a
lf 

o
f 
2

0
1

0
. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il'

s
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 
fo

r 
e

x
e

c
u

tiv
e

 s
e

a
rc

h
 a

n
d

 s
e

le
c
tio

n
 c

o
n

s
u

lta
n

ts
 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
te

n
d

e
re

d
 w

ith
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
e

m
p

h
a

s
is

 p
la

c
e

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 a

im
 o

f 
a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 a

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 t
o

 r
e

fle
c
t 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ity

 a
t 
a

ll 
le

v
e

ls
. 
A

 V
a

c
a

n
c
y
 

A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 S
y
s
te

m
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 p

u
t 
in

to
 p

la
c
e

 f
o

r 
re

c
ru

iti
n

g
 t
o

 p
o

s
ts

 a
t 
P

O
5

 a
n

d
 a

b
o

v
e

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 e
n

s
u

re
 m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

 a
re

 c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
d

 w
ith

 r
e

g
a

rd
 t
o

 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
iti

e
s
 t
o

 e
x
is

tin
g

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 a

d
v
e

rt
is

in
g

 a
n

d
 s

e
le

c
tio

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 t
o

 b
e

 u
s
e

d
. 
D

is
a

b
le

d
 s

ta
ff
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t
h

e
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 f
o

r 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 c
a

re
e

r 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
io

n
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

iti
e

s
. 
T

h
e

s
e

 is
s
u

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 a
lr
e

a
d

y
 b

e
e

n
 d

is
c
u

s
s
e

d
 w

ith
 

th
e

 D
is

a
b

le
d

 S
ta

ff
 F

o
ru

m
 w

h
o

s
e

 v
ie

w
s
 w

e
re

 t
a

k
e

n
 in

to
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
w

h
e

n
 p

ro
d

u
c
in

g
 t
h

is
 y

e
a

r'
s
 a

c
tio

n
 p

la
n

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 t
o

 R
e

fle
c
t 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ity

 S
tr

R
E

D

R
E

D

1
0

1
2

1
4

1
6

1
8

2
0

2
2

2
4

2
6

2
8

3
0

M
a
y

Ju
n
e

Ju
ly

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

N
o
ve

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

Ja
n
u
a
ry

M
a
rc

h

0

0
.51

1
.52

2
.53

3
.54

4
.55

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g
u
st

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

N
o
ve

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

M
a
rc

h

Page 36



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 -
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�	
�


�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�


�
�
�


�
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�


�
�
�
��
�

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
��
�
��

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

!
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

"
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�#

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
$
�
��

"
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
$
�

��


��
%
�
�
�
&�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
#

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
E

s
ti
m

a
te

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
0

5
;
�
�
 
�
�	


�	
�


�7
��
�
	
�
�
�
<�
�
��
��
	�


�
�	
�

	�
��
7
�
�
�
�
	�
 
�
�
�
�
�
	�
�
�	

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
)

�
�
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�	
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
��
	

�	
�


�7
��
�
	
�
�
�
	�


�
�	

�
�
	�


	

�
��
7
�
�
�
�
	�
 
�
�
�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
	

�	
�
�
�
��
�
�	
��
��
	�
�
	�
�
��
	

�
�
��
��
��

9	
�
�
��
��
��

	 
�
	�
	"
�
	

�	
�

�
�
	�
�
��

	
��
�
�

	 
�
	�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�
�
	�
�
�
 
�
�	


�	
=
�
>
	�
��
��
!

"





	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
-


�
�
�

/
��
�
�
	0
�
�
�
�

$
�
�


�
��
�
�

%
��
�	
&
	'
�
�
�


(
)*
+

2
(
)*
2

2
)1
*

(
)2
1

'�
0
(0
�
)

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
0

6
$
�
�
�


�
�
�
	�
��

�
	�


	�

�
�
 
�
��
	�
�
?
�
��
��
�
	5
	�

	�


�
�
��
��

	�
��
�
��
	

8
�
	�


�7
��
�
	
�
�
�
	5
	%


��


��
��

�
�
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�	
�
	�
�
�
�
	�


��
�
�
	

�	
�
�
?
�
��
��
�
	�
�

�
�

	�
�
��
�
	�
��
	

�
�
�
�
�
��

	�
��
�
��
	8
�
	�


�7
��
�
	
�
�
�
<�


��
�	
�


��
�
�
	

�	
�
�
?
�
��
��
�
	

�
�

�
�

	.
	8
�
�
�
)!

"





	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
#
��
�
�
�

0

�
�
	@

��
��
�
�
�

%
�
��
�	
>
.
�
�
�
��
�
�
A�

%
��
�	
0	
�
�
�
7

2
,
)�
8

(
+

(
(
)�
2

(
+

(
2
)+
*

*
(�
�
)

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
  
T

h
e

 v
o

lu
m

e
 o

f 
M

E
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 in
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

h
a

s
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 b

y
 3

2
%

 .
 I
t 
is

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

is
 is

 d
u

e
 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

h
ri
s
tm

a
s
 c

lo
s
u

re
. 

D
u

ri
n

g
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

5
4

0
 e

n
q

u
ir
ie

s
 w

e
re

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
. 
T

h
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 is
 a

g
a

in
 m

e
e

tin
g

 t
a

rg
e

t,
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 8

7
.5

9
%

 (
o

r 
4

7
3

 e
n

q
u

ir
ie

s
) 

re
s
p

o
n

d
e

d
 t
o

 w
ith

in
 1

0
 w

o
rk

in
g

 d
a

y
s
. 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
 c

o
n

tin
u

e
 t
o

 r
e

s
p

o
n

d
 s

tr
o

n
g

ly
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 a

 9
3

.7
1

%
 c

o
m

p
le

tio
n

 r
a

te
. 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
3

 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 s
h

o
w

s
 8

5
.6

9
%

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 w

ith
in

 1
0

 W
D

. 
T

h
e

 Y
T

D
 f
ig

u
re

s
 s

h
o

w
 8

5
.6

7
%

 (
5

,4
0

9
 e

n
q

u
ir
ie

s
) 

re
s
p

o
n

d
e

d
 t
o

 w
ith

in
 1

0
 W

D
. 
 T

h
e

 

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

0
9

 o
u

tt
u

rn
 is

 a
n

 im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

.

�


�
��
��
	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
	/
��
7
�
�
�
�
	�
 
�
�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
	�
�

�
�
�

	�


�	
��
�
	1
��
	�


�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
	�



�
��
	�
��
�


�
�
�
	�
�	
��
�
�
��
�
	�
�
��
	�
 


�
�
	�
�
�
	�
�

	

�	

�
�
�
�	
��
��
�
�	
�
�
��
�
	�
�
	�
�
��
7
�
��
	�


	 
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�

)

=


��


�
��
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
�	
�
�
�
��
�
�
	

�	
��
�
	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
	$
�
�
��
�
	"
�

�
�
	�
�
�
��
	�
��
7
�
�
�
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
	
��
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
5
�
�
��
9	
�


��
�

�
�
�	

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
	�


	�
�
�
�
��
	�
	�
�
�
��
��
�

	�
�

�
�
��


�
	�
�
	�
 
�
�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
��
	 
�
�
�

	

�
	�
�
�
	�
��

��
�
�
	

�	
�
	�
�
�
��
�
	�


�
�
��
�
�

�
�

	 
�
	�
�
��
	"
�

�
�
	�
��
�	

 
�
	�
�

�


�
�

	�


	%
�
�
	�
�
	�
�
��
�

G
R

E
E

N

5
0

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

7
5

8
0

8
5

9
0

9
5

1
0
0

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

Ju
n
e

Ju
ly

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o
ve

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

Ja
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h

5

5
.56

6
.57

7
.58

8
.59

9
.51
0

M
a
y

Ju
n
e

Ju
ly

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o
ve

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

Ja
n
u
a
ry

M
a
rc

h

R
E

D

Page 37



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 -
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�	
�


�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�


�
�
�


�
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�


�
�
�
��
�

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
��
�
��

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

!
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

"
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�#

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
$
�
��

"
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
$
�

��


��
%
�
�
�
&�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
#

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
E

s
ti
m

a
te

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
0

7
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
	

�	
�


�
�
��
��
��
	�


�
�
��
��

	�
�
	�
��

�
	5
	%


�
�
�
��
	�
�
	�
	

�
�


��
	5
	/
��
�
�
	8

�
�
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�	
�
	�
�
��
�
��
	3
�
	�


�7
��
�
	
�
�
�
!

"





	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
#
��
�
�
�

%
��
��
�
	/
�
�


�

�

$
�
�


�
��
�
�

%
��
�	
0	
�
�
�
7

(
3

(
+

2
2

(
1

*
8

�
(*
�
)

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
0

9
�
�
��
�
�
�	


�	
�
�
��
�
	�


	#


�	
-
��
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
��


�
�
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�	
�
	�
B


��
�
�
	

�	
�
��
	�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
�
�
��

	�
�
	�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
	



�	
�


��
�
�
	

�	
�
��
	�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
��

��
�
	�
 
�
�



�
�

<�


�
�	
�
�
��
�
!

"





	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
#
��
�
�
�

%
��
��
�
	/
�
�


�

�

$
�
�


�
��
�
�

%
��
�	
0	
�
�
�
7

*
3
)*

*
+

*
1
)3

*
+

(
3

'�
*
(/
�
)

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
T

a
rg

e
t 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
  
T

h
e

 la
u

n
c
h

 o
f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 t
e

le
p

h
o

n
y
 s

y
s
te

m
 o

n
 3

0
th

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

h
a

s
 h

a
d

 a
 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

tr
im

e
n

ta
l i

m
p

a
c
t 
o

n
 H

o
t 
L

in
e

s
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 w
ith

 a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 
te

c
h

n
ic

a
l a

n
d

 o
p

e
ra

tio
n

a
l p

ro
b

le
m

s
 a

n
d

 s
y
s
te

m
 f
a

ilu
re

s
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t
h

e
 m

a
jo

r 
te

c
h

n
ic

a
l i

s
s
u

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

w
 b

e
e

n
 

re
s
o

lv
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
lth

o
u

g
h

 s
o

m
e

 s
m

a
lle

r-
s
c
a

le
 is

s
u

e
s
 r

e
m

a
in

 w
ith

 I
C

T
 a

n
d

 B
T

 f
o

r 
a

c
tio

n
, 
it 

is
 h

o
p

e
d

 t
h

a
t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 w
ill

 b
e

 s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 

to
 r

e
s
to

re
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 w
ith

in
 t
a

rg
e

ts
 f
o

r 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

0
. 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 w
ill

 im
p

ro
v
e

 a
s
 t
h

e
 t
e

c
h

n
ic

a
l i

n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 b

e
c
o

m
e

s
 m

o
re

 s
ta

b
le

. 
In

 a
d

d
iti

o
n

 s
ix

 s
ta

ff
 w

e
re

 r
e

c
ru

ite
d

 b
e

fo
re

 C
h

ri
s
tm

a
s
 t
o

 f
ill

 e
x
is

tin
g

 

s
ta

ff
 v

a
c
a

n
c
ie

s
, 
a

n
d

 a
re

 d
u

e
 t
o

 s
ta

rt
 w

o
rk

 d
u

ri
n

g
 J

a
n

u
a

ry
. 
W

h
ile

 t
h

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
n

 in
iti

a
l t

ra
in

in
g

 p
e

ri
o

d
, 
a

ll 
s
ta

ff
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 o
p

e
ra

tio
n

a
l b

y
 t
h

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

, 
w

ith
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 im

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 M

a
rc

h
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

. 

R
E

D

G
R

E
E

N

5
0

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

7
5

8
0

8
5

9
0

9
5

1
0
0

M
a
y

Ju
n
e

Ju
ly

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

N
o
ve

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

Ja
n
u
a
ry

M
a
rc

h

8
0

8
2

8
4

8
6

8
8

9
0

9
2

9
4

9
6

9
8

1
0
0

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

Ju
n
e

Ju
ly

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

N
o
ve

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

Ja
n
u
a
ry

M
a
rc

h

Page 38



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 -
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�	
�


�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�


�
�
�


�
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�


�
�
�
��
�

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
��
�
��

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

!
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

"
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�#

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
$
�
��

"
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
$
�

��


��
%
�
�
�
&�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
#

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
E

s
ti
m

a
te

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
1

0
'
�
�
��
�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
	�
��

�
	�


�	
�
�
��
�
	�


	#


�	
-
��
�
�
	�


	 
�
	�
�
�
�
�
��


�
�
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�	
;
�
�
 
�
�	
��
�
�


�

�
!

"





	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
-


�
�
�

%
��
��
�
	/
�
�


�

�

$
�
�


�
��
�
�

%
��
�	
0	
�
�
�
7

�
�

�
�

3
*

�
�

+
3

'/
*
(*
�
)

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
1

1
=
��
�
�	
�


�
��
�
�	
��
�


��
��


�
	

�	
�
�
��
�
	�


	#


�	
-
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�	
�
	�
�
	

�	
�
�


�
��
	�
�


	�
�
�
�
�
��

	�


�
��
��
�
��
	�


	

C#


�
	�
�
��
�
��
�

	�
�
��
	�


�
	�
�
�
�	
�


�
�	
�
�
��
	�



�
�
	�
�
�


��
�

	�
�
�
	

��
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�	
�


�
	�
�


�
�

	�
�
	�
 


�
�D
E!

"





	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
#
��
�
�
�

%
��
��
�
	/
�
�


�

�

$
�
�


�
��
�
�

%
��
�	
0	
�
�
�
7

*
�

*
�

*
�

*
�

*
�

�
(�
�
)

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
  
T

h
e

 la
u

n
c
h

 o
f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 t
e

le
p

h
o

n
y
 s

y
s
te

m
 o

n
 3

0
th

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

h
a

s
 h

a
d

 a
 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

tr
im

e
n

ta
l i

m
p

a
c
t 
o

n
 H

o
t 
L

in
e

s
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 w
ith

 a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 
te

c
h

n
ic

a
l a

n
d

 o
p

e
ra

tio
n

a
l p

ro
b

le
m

s
 a

n
d

 s
y
s
te

m
 f
a

ilu
re

s
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t
h

e
 m

a
jo

r 
te

c
h

n
ic

a
l i

s
s
u

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

w
 b

e
e

n
 

re
s
o

lv
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
lth

o
u

g
h

 s
o

m
e

 s
m

a
lle

r-
s
c
a

le
 is

s
u

e
s
 r

e
m

a
in

 w
ith

 I
C

T
 a

n
d

 B
T

 f
o

r 
a

c
tio

n
, 
it 

is
 h

o
p

e
d

 t
h

a
t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 w
ill

 b
e

 s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 

to
 r

e
s
to

re
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 w
ith

in
 t
a

rg
e

ts
 f
o

r 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

0
. 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 w
ill

 im
p

ro
v
e

 a
s
 t
h

e
 t
e

c
h

n
ic

a
l i

n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 b

e
c
o

m
e

s
 m

o
re

 s
ta

b
le

. 
In

 a
d

d
iti

o
n

 s
ix

 s
ta

ff
 w

e
re

 r
e

c
ru

ite
d

 b
e

fo
re

 C
h

ri
s
tm

a
s
 t
o

 f
ill

 e
x
is

tin
g

 

s
ta

ff
 v

a
c
a

n
c
ie

s
, 
a

n
d

 a
re

 d
u

e
 t
o

 s
ta

rt
 w

o
rk

 d
u

ri
n

g
 J

a
n

u
a

ry
. 
W

h
ile

 t
h

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
n

 in
iti

a
l t

ra
in

in
g

 p
e

ri
o

d
, 
a

ll 
s
ta

ff
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 o
p

e
ra

tio
n

a
l b

y
 t
h

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

, 
w

ith
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 im

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 M

a
rc

h
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

. 

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
T

a
rg

e
t 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

R
E

D

G
r
e

e
n

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

4
5

5
0

5
5

6
0

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

Ju
n
e

Ju
ly

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

N
o
ve

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

Ja
n
u
a
ry

M
a
rc

h

7
0

7
5

8
0

8
5

9
0

9
5

1
0
0

A
p
ri

l
M

a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g
u
st

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

N
o
ve

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

M
a
rc

h

Page 39



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 -
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�	
�


�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�


�
�
�


�
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�


�
�
�
��
�

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
��
�
��

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

!
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

"
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�#

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
$
�
��

"
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
$
�

��


��
%
�
�
�
&�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
#

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
E

s
ti
m

a
te

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
1

2
;
�
�
 
�
�	


�	
�
�
�
�
�
�
	�
��
��
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�	
;
�
�
 
�
�	
��
�
�
	�
�
��
�
�	
�
�
�
 
�
�	


�	
�
�
�
�
�
�
	

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
	�
�
	�
��
�
�
	�
�	
��
�
	�
�

	

�	
��
�
	�



�
��
!

"





	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
-


�
�
�

/
��
�
�
	0
�
�
�
�

$
�
�


�
��
�
�

%
��
�	
&
	'
�
�
�


2
*
,

1
2
(

�
<�

,
�
(

,
1
3

'1
(0
�
)

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
 T

h
e

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

 t
a

rg
e

t 
o

f 
4

7
8

 w
a

s
 s

e
t 
to

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 a
 5

0
%

 r
e

d
u

c
tio

n
 in

 a
g

e
n

c
y
 a

s
s
ig

n
m

e
n

ts
 o

v
e

r 
tw

o
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l y
e

a
rs

 (
2

0
0

8
/9

 a
n

d
 

2
0

0
9

/1
0

).
 T

h
e

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

o
u

tt
u

rn
 o

f 
6

4
2

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ts

 a
 3

3
%

 r
e

d
u

c
tio

n
 s

in
c
e

 A
p

ri
l 2

0
0

8
.

D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
 h

a
v
e

 p
ro

fil
e

d
 t
h

e
ir
 a

g
e

n
c
y
 u

s
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
y
e

a
r.

 T
h

e
s
e

 s
h

o
w

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 r
e

d
u

c
tio

n
 b

e
fo

re
 t
h

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

1
0

. 
 A

 D
e

m
a

n
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
G

ro
u

p
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 t
o

 g
a

in
 a

 b
e

tt
e

r 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
a

s
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
a

g
e

n
c
y
 u

s
e

 a
n

d
 t
o

 id
e

n
tif

y
 a

c
tio

n
 t
o

 

re
d

u
c
e

 it
 f
u

rt
h

e
r.

  
In

 r
e

c
o

g
n

iti
o

n
 o

f 
c
u

rr
e

n
t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 b
e

in
g

 a
b

o
v
e

 t
h

e
 p

ro
fil

e
d

 t
a

rg
e

t 
(6

4
2

 a
s
s
ig

n
m

e
n

ts
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 a
 t
a

rg
e

t 
o

f 
6

0
8

),
 e

a
c
h

 

D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
m

in
d

e
d

 o
f 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

 t
a

rg
e

t 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 e

x
p

e
c
ta

tio
n

 t
h

a
t 
it 

w
ill

 b
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 
 

4
0
0

4
5
0

5
0
0

5
5
0

6
0
0

6
5
0

7
0
0

7
5
0

8
0
0

M
o
n
th

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

Ju
n
e

Ju
ly

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

N
o
ve

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

Ja
n
u
a
ry

R
E

D
 

Page 40



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 -
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�	
�


�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�


�
�
�


�
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�


�
�
�
��
�

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
��
�
��

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

!
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

"
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�#

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
$
�
��

"
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
$
�

��


��
%
�
�
�
&�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
#

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
E

s
ti
m

a
te

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
0

1
�
�
�
	�
�
�
 
�
�	


�	
�


�
�
�
�


�
�
	�
�


	�


�
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
	�
�
	

�


�
�
��
�
�
9	
�
�


	�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�


�
�
�	
�
�
��


��
��
A�
	�


�
�
��
�
	

�

�
��
�
	�
�
��
��
�
A�
!9
	�
�

	�


�	
�
�


�
	�


�
�
��
�
	�

�
��
�
	�
�
�
�
�


�7
	

��
��
��
�
�
��


�
	�
�
�


��
�

	�
�
�
��
	�
��
�
�
��


�
)

�
�
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�	
;
�
�
 
�
�

"





	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
#
��
�
�
�

0�
�
7
��
	&

�
�


�
�

%


�
�
�
�
��
��
�
9	
-


�
�
��
��
�
�
	F
	

%
�
��
�
��

%
��
�	
'
	�
��
�
�

(
)(
2

(
)�
�

2
)+
�

,
)�
�

2
)�
�

�
0
(/
�
)

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
0

2
;
�
�
 
�
�	


�	
�
�
�
�
��
�
�	
�
��
��
�
	�


	�
�
 
��
�
	�
� 
��
��
	�
��
�
��
�
�
	�
�
�	
8
�
�
�
	

�


�
�
��
��


�

�
�
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�	
;
�
�
 
�
�	
� 
�
�
�

	

�
	�
	

�
�
	�
�
�
7
	�
�
�
�
��
9	
�
�
	

�
�
��
�
�
��
	

�	
��
�
	�


��
�	
�
�
�
 
�
�	


�	
�
��
��
�
	 
�
	�

�
�
 
�
��
	

�	
��
�
	

�
�
 
��
�
	�


	�
� 
��
��
�
�
	�


�	
�
�
�
��
�
�
�	
�
�
��


�
�
!

"





	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
#
��
�
�
�

#
�
�
��
�
�	
G


�
��
�
�

%


�
�
�
�
��
��
�
9	
-


�
�
��
��
�
�
	F
	

%
�
��
�
��

%
��
�	
$
	'
�
�
�


*
93
(
1
)2
,

*
9�
,
8
)(
�

,
9(
�
*
)�
�

,
9*
�
8
)2
2

,
92
+
�
)�
3

'�
(�
�
)

�


�
��
��
	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
		
=
��
�
��
	H
�
�
�	


�
�
�	
3
�
	

��
	�
�
��
�
�	
5	
�


�
�
�
�
�	
:
�
�
�
�
 
�
�	
��
�
�
��
�
	�
�


�
	�
	8
1
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
	�
�
	�
��
��
�
	

�
�
�	
��
�
	�
�
�
�
	

�


�
��
	�
�
	3
�
�
(
)	
�
�
�
��
	�
�
�
	�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�	
�
�

�
��


�
�
��
�
�
	�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
	

�
	�


�
�
��
��
9	
�
�

	�
�
 
�
�
?
�
�
�
��
�
	�
�

�
�	
5	
��
�


��
��
�
	
�
��
�
�
	�
�
�
	

�
�


��
	�
�
��



	'
�
��
�	
�

	/
�
�
��
�
 
�
�9
		
�
�
��
�
	�
��
�
�
��
	�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
	�


��
�)
	;
�
�
	�


�
�
��
��
	�
�
�
�
	 
�
�
�
	�
�
��



�
�
�

)	
'
�
��
�
�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
	 
�
�
�
	

��
�
�
�
�

	�
��
�
	'
�

��
	

�
	�
�
�
	�
�

�
�
�
�
	

�	
��
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
�
	�
��
�
��


�
��
	�


�
�
��
��
	�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
�	
�
��
�
	�
�
�
	

��
�
��
�
�	
�


�
�
��
��
	�


	�
�
��
 
��
�
�
	�
�
�
	

��
�
�
�	


�	
�
�

�
�5
��
�


�
��
�
	�
�	
�
�
�
�
	�
��
�
	�


	�
�
�
�	
��
�
	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
	 
�
	�

H�
�
��

	�
�
�


�
��
�
��
	

�
�
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
��



	

�	
�
�
��
��
�
�	
��
�
�
��
�
	

�
�
�
	�


�
�
��
��

)	
��
	�
�
	�
.
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�
�	
�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
	�
��
�	
�
.
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
�	
 
�
	�
�
�
	�
�

	

�	
��
�
	�
�
�


��
��
�
	�
�
�
�)

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
T

a
rg

e
t 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

�
+
�
�
�
��
,�
 
�2
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�3
$
�

R
E

D
 

G
R

E
E

N

1
0
0
0

2
0
0
0

3
0
0
0

4
0
0
0

5
0
0
0

6
0
0
0

7
0
0
0

8
0
0
0

9
0
0
0

1
0
0
0
0

M
a
y

Ju
n
e

Ju
ly

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

N
o
ve

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

Ja
n
u
a
ry

M
a
rc

h

0123456789

1
0

Ju
ly

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

M
a
rc

h

Page 41



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 -
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�	
�


�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�


�
�
�


�
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�


�
�
�
��
�

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
��
�
��

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

!
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

"
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�#

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
$
�
��

"
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
$
�

��


��
%
�
�
�
&�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
#

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
E

s
ti
m

a
te

;
�
��


�
�
�8
+
1

/
��
�
��
�
��
3
�
2

;
�
�	
�


��
�

�
�
�	
�


�
�
�
	�
�

�
�
�


�
�
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�	
;
�
�
 
�
�

"





	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
#
��
�
�
�

0�
�
7
��
	&

�
�


�
�

%


�
�
�
�
��
��
�
9	
-


�
�
��
��
�
�
	F
	

%
�
��
�
��

%
��
�	
�
	=
��
�
�
��

3
9(
�
*

3
9*
*
*

,
�
(

3
3
1
*

8
+
1
1

'*
�
(*
�
)

;
�
��


�
�
�8
+
+

/
��
�
��
�
��
3
�
(

;
�
�
 
�
�	


�	
�
��


�
�
 
��
	�


�
�
�
	
�
��
�
�
��


�
�
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�	
;
�
�
 
�
�

"





	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
#
��
�
�
�

0�
�
7
��
	&

�
�


�
�

%


�
�
�
�
��
��
�
9	
-


�
�
��
��
�
�
	F
	

%
�
��
�
��

%
��
�	
�
	=
��
�
�
��

8
9�
,
�

8
9,
(
(

�
*
(

8
3
,
,

(
+
�

'*
�
(0
�
)

�


�
��
��
	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
		
��
	�
�
�
�	
��
�


��
��
�
	
�
��
	�
�
	�
�

�
��
�

�
�
�	


�
��
	�
�

	�
�
 
H�
�
�	
�

	�
�
��
�
�
�	
�
�

�
��
	�
�

	�
�

��
)

�
�
��
	?
�
�
��
�
�6
�
	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
	 
�
�

�
	�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
�	
��
�
�
��
	 
�
�
�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
	
�
��
�
�
��
	

�	
�
�
�
	�
��


�
�
 
��
	�
�
��
�
	�
�
	�
�
�
�
�	
�
�
��
�

	�
�
�
�
��
	�
�
�

�
�
	

��
�
	�


�
�	
?
�
�
��
�
��
	

�	
��
�
	�
��
�
�
�
��
�	
�
�
�
�)
	�
�
	3
�
�
*
<8
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�	
�

��
�	
�
�
�
	 
�
�
�
	
�
��
�
�
��

	�
�
	�
�
�
	�


��


�
��
�
	?
�
�
��
�
��
�
	�
�

�


��
�

�
�
	�


	

��
��
	8
,
�
9	
8
�
�
9	
3
8
�
	�
�

	�
	�


��
�
�
�
�	


�	
+
�
�
	�


�	
?
�
�
��
�
�	
1
)	

�
�
�
	�
�

H�
�
��

	�
��
�
��
	�


�	
?
�
�
��
�
�	
1
	�
��
�	
 
��
�
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
�
�6
�
	�
��
�
��
	�


	8
(
8
2
	�
�
��
�
	�
�
	2
),
�
	

�
�
�	
��
��
�
�)
	/
�
�
�
��
�	
��
��
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	�
��
	
�
�
	

�

	�


�
�
��
��
	�
�
	�
�
�
	�
��
�
�	
?
�
�
��
�
�	
�
�

	�
�
�
�
	�
�	
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
�	

�
��
�
�

	�


�
�
��
��


�
9	
��
	�
�
	�
�
��
7
�
��
	�
�
�
�	
�
�
	�
��
�	
��
��
	�


	�

�
�
�	
��
�
	

�
�
�
�
�
�	
��
��
�
�	
��
�
�
��
	�
�	
��
�
	�
�

	

�	
�
�
��
�
	3
�
8
�
)	

'
�
	
�
��
�
�
��
	

�	
�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
	

�
	�
�
�
	�
��

��
�
	

�	
�
�
��


�
�
	�
�
7
�
�
	�
�	
��
�
�
�	


�
�
	

�	
��


	�
�
�
��
	�
��
�
�

�
�
��
	�
�
�
?
�
��
��
�

�
	

�	
�
��
�
�
9	
�
��
�
�
��
�
	

�
�
��

��
�
�

�
	�
�

	�
��
��
	

�
	�
��
�
!	
��
	�
�
	�


�	
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
	�


�
�
� 
��
	�


�	
�
�
��


�
	�


	 
�
	�
�
7
�
�
	�


	�
�
�
�

�
	�
	�
�


��
��
��
	�
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
�	
?
�
�
��
�
�)

'
�
��


�
	�
��
�
�	
%


�
�
��
��


�
�
	�


��
�
�
�
�	
�

�	
��
�
	�


�
��
�
	?
�
�
��
�
�	


�	
��
�
	�
�
�
�	
�
�


�
�
	�
�
�
 
��
	�
�
	�


	�


�
�
	�
�
��
	�
�

�
�
	�


	

�
�	
�
�
�
�
�
�	
��
��
�
�	
�

�	


�
��
�
�
��
	

�	
�
�
�
	�
��


�
�
 
��
	�
�
��
�
)	
�
�
�
��
	�
�
	�


	�
�
�
	

�	
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
	�
��
�
�	

�
��
�
�
��
	�
�
�
 
�
�9
	�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
	�
��
	�
�
��
�
�
��
�
	

�
	�
��
�
	�
�

	�
�
�
		
 
�
��

��
�
	�
�

�
�
�
�
	


�
�
	�


�	
�
�
�
 
��
	

��
�
�	
�
�
��
�
	�


	 
�
	�
�
�
�
��
��
��

	

�


�
��
��
	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
		
��
	�
�
�
�	
��
�


��
��
�
	
�
��
	�
�
	�
�

�
��
�

�
�
�	


�
��
	�
�

	�
�
 
H�
�
�	
�

	�
�
��
�
�
�	
�
�

�
��
	�
�

	�
�

��
)

�
�
��
	

�
��
�
��
	�
��
�
��
	�
�
	�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
	�
�
	�


�
�
	�
.
�
�
�
�)
	:
�
�
	�


	�
�
�


��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
9	
	�

�
	�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
�
7
�
	

�	
�


�
�
��
��


�
	�
�
�

��

�
��


�
	

�
�
�
�


�	
��
7
�
	�
��
�
�
)	
�
�
��
	�
�

�
�
�
�
	�
�
	�
�
��
�
�
��
�
	�
�

�
��
�
�
9	
�
��
�
	�
	�
�
�
 
�
�	


�	
�


��
�

�
�
�	
�
��
�
�
	 
�
��
�
	�

�
�
��
��
�

	�
�
	�


�
�
��
��

9	
��
�
��

��
�
	

��
�
	�
��

�
�
�
�	
>
�
��
��
	�
G


�
!9
	�
�
�
	=


��
�
	�
��
��
	

�	
:


�
�
!9
	/
�
�
�
�	
#


�
�
�
	�
%
��
�
	I
�
�
��
�
�!
9	
�
�

	+
3
5+
(
	%


�
�
�
��
��
�	
$


�

)	
�
�
�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
	

�
�

�
�
	�


�
�
��
�
�
	�
�
	�


��
�

�
�
�	
1
(
�
	�


�
�
�
	�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
�
	�


�	
�
�
�	
 
�
�
�
	�


�
�
��

	�
�
	�
�
�
	�
*
<8
�
	�
��
�
�
�
��
�	
�
�
�
�)

@
�
	�
��
	�
�
��
��
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
	�


	
�
�
�
�

�
	�
�
	�
�
�
�	
�
�

��
	�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�	
�
��
�	
�
�
�
 
��
	�
�
	�


	�
�
�


��
	�



��
	�
�
�
�
��
��
��
	�
�
	�
�
�
�)
	�
�	
��
	�
.
�
�
�
��

	

��
�
�	
��
��
	�
.
�
��
��
�
	�
��
�	
 
�
	�


�
�
��
��

	 
�
	�
�
�
	�
�

	

�	
0�
�
�
�
��
	�
�

	�
��
�	
 
�
	�
�
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�
��
	�
�	
��
�
	�
�

	

�	
��
�
	�
��
�
�
�
��
�	
�
�
�
�)
	�
�
��
	

�
�

�
�
�
�
	�
�


�
�
	�
��


�
	�


�	
�


��
	�
�
�
�
��
��
	�
�

	�


�
�
��
��
�
�	
��
�


��
��
�
	

�	
�


�
�
��
�
	�


�
�
��
��


�
	�
��
�
��
�
)	
	�
�
��
	�
�


�
�
	�

�
�
�
	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
	



�
	;
�	
8
+
1
	�
��
�	
 
�
	 
�
�
7
	

�
	�
��
�
7
)	

R
E

D
 

R
E

D
 

2
5

0

4
5

0

6
5

0

8
5

0

1
0

5
0

1
2

5
0

1
4

5
0

1
6

5
0

1
8

5
0

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

M
a
rc

h

5
0
0

1
0
0
0

1
5
0
0

2
0
0
0

2
5
0
0

3
0
0
0

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

M
a
rc

h

Page 42



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 -
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�	
�


�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�


�
�
�


�
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�


�
�
�
��
�

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
��
�
��

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

!
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

"
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�#

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
$
�
��

"
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
$
�

��


��
%
�
�
�
&�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
#

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
E

s
ti
m

a
te

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
1

1
, 

N
a

tio
n

a
l1

9
2

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
	

�	
�


�
�
�
�


�
	�
�
�
��
	�
�
�
�	
�

�	
��
�
�
�
9	
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
	�
�

	

�


�
�


�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�	
�
	�
�

��
�	
�

�
�
�
�
�
	

�	
�


�
�
�
�


�
	�
�
�
��
	�


��
�
�
��

	

�
�
��
�
	�
�
	�
�
�
�	
�

�	
��
�
�
�
9	
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
9	
�


�
�


�
��
�
�
	

�	
�
�
�
�
�

 
��
	


��
�
�
��


�
	
��
�
�

	 
�
	�


��
�	
�

�
�
�
�
�
	

�	
�


�
�
�
�


�
	�
�
�
��
	

�


��
�
�
��

)!

"





	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
#
��
�
�
�

0�
�
��
	G
��
7
�

%


�
�
�
�
��
��
�
9	
-


�
�
��
��
�
�
	F
	

%
�
��
�
��

%
��
�	
'
	�
��
�
�

8
*
)3
,

3
,

8
(
)1
+

3
+
)(
+

3
,
)�
+
	

��
�

�
��
�

�
�
�!

�
(�
*
)

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
2

3
;
�
�
 
�
�	


�	
�


�
��
�	
��
�
��

	�


�
�
��
�
	�


�
�
��
��


�
�
	�


�	
��
�
��
�
	

�


�
�
��
�
	�
�
�

�
�
	�
��
�
��
�
	

�
��
!

�
�
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�	
;
�
�
 
�
�

"





	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
#
��
�
�
�

0�
�
7
��
	&

�
�


�
�

:
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�	
F
	$
�
�
�
�
�
�

%
��
�	
�
	=
��
�
�
��

8
+
*

�
+
�

,
*

�
+
�

�
8
,

'�
(/
�
)

�


�
��
��
	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
		
�
�
�
	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
	�
��
�
��
	�


�	
�
�

5:
�
�
�
�
 
�
�	
	�
�
	�
�

�
��
�

�
�
�9
	�
�
	�
�
	�
��
	�
��
��
	�
�
��
��
�
	�


�	
�

�
�
�
�
�
	�
�
�


��
	�
�

�
	

/
�
�
�
7
�
	�
�
G
�
!)
	

�


�
��
��
	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
		
	�
�
	�
�
�
�	
��
�


��
��
�
	
�
��
	�
�
	�
�

�
��
�

�
�
�	


�
��
	�
�

	�
�
 
H�
�
�	
�

	�
�
��
�
�
�	
�
�

�
��
	�
�

	�
�

��
)

�
�
�
	�
�
�
 
�
�	


�	
��
��
�
�	
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
	�


�	
��
�
�	
�
�
�
	�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
.
�
�
�

�

	�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
�	
��
�
�
��
	�


�	
��
��
	?
�
�
��
�
�)
	�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
	

��
�
�
��
	�


�	
��
�
	�
��
�
�	
��
��
�
	?
�
�
��
�
��
	�
�
��
�
�
��
�
	�
��
�

�
	�
�	
�
8
,
9	
�
�
	�


�
�
�
��

	�


	�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
�	
��
�
�
��
	

�	
�
+
�
)	
�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
 
�
�	


�	
�
�
��
�
	

�

��
�
�
�
�	
�

	�


�
�
��
��
	�
�
	?
�
�
��
�
�	
1
	�
�


�
�
	�
�
�
�
��
	�
�
�
�	
��
�
	�
�

	

�	
�
�
�
�	
��
�
�
��
	�
�
	

�
�
�	
+
�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
	�


�	
��
�
�9
	�


�
�

��
�
 
��
	�
 


�
�
	

��
�
	�
�
��
�
�)
	

'
�
��


�
	�
��
�
�	
%


�
�
��
��


�
�
	�


��
�
�
�
�	
�

�	
��
�
	�


�
��
�
	?
�
�
��
�
�	


�	
��
�
	�
�
�
�	
�
�


�
�
	�
�
�
 
��
	�
�
	�


	�


�
�
	�
�
��
	�
�

�
�
	�


	

�
�	
�
�
�
�
�
�	
��
��
�
�	
�

�	


�
��
�
�
��
	

�	
�
�
�
	�
��


�
�
 
��
	�
�
��
�
)	
�
�
�
��
	�
�
	�


	�
�
�
	

�	
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
	�
��
�
�	

�
��
�
�
��
	�
�
�
 
�
�9
	�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
	�
��
	�
�
��
�
�
��
�
	

�
	�
��
�
	�
�

	

��
�
	 
�
��

��
�
	�
�

�
�
�
�
	


�
�
	�


�	
�
�
�
 
��
	

��
�
�	
�
�
��
�
	�


	 
�
	�
�
�
�
��
��
��

	�


�	
�
�
��
�
	
�
��
�
�
��
)	
�
�
�
	�
��


�
�
 
��
	�


�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
�
	�
��
�	
�


�
��
�
�
�
	

�

	�

�
��
��
��
	�
�

�
�
	�


�
��
�
�	
�
��
�
	�
�
�
	
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
	$
/
-
�
	�


	�
�

�
�
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
	�
�
?
�
��
�

	�


	�
�
��
	�
�
�
��
�
�
	�
�
�
��
	�


��
�
�
�
�	
�


�
�
��
��


�
	


�
��
�
	�
�
	�
�
�
	�


�
��
�
	?
�
�
��
�
�)

G
R

E
E

N

1
5

1
7

1
9

2
1

2
3

2
5

2
7

2
9

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

N
o
ve

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

M
a
rc

h

R
E

D

5
0

1
0
0

1
5
0

2
0
0

2
5
0

3
0
0

3
5
0

4
0
0

4
5
0

5
0
0

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

M
a
rc

h

Page 43



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 -
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�	
�


�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�


�
�
�


�
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�


�
�
�
��
�

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
��
�
��

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

!
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

"
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�#

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
$
�
��

"
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
$
�

��


��
%
�
�
�
&�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
#

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
E

s
ti
m

a
te

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
2

4
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�
��
	�
�
��
�
��
�

	�
��
�
	

�
��


�
�
	�


	'
/
G

�
�
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�	
�

"





	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
#
��
�
�
�

0�
�
7
��
	&

�
�


�
�

:
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�	
F
	$
�
�
�
�
�
�

%
��
�	
�
	=
��
�
�
��

1
2
),

,
�

�
<�

,
�

+
*

1
.7

0
%

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
2

5
'
�
�
��
�
�
	�
��

�
	�


	�
�
5�
�
�	
�
�

�
�
��
�
	�

�
�
�
!	

�
�
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�	
:
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
	�
��

�
	�
�
	�
�
��
�

�
�	

�
�
�
	�
�

�
	�
�
�
	
�
�
	

�
��
�
�	
��
�
�
�
�
�
	�
�
	�
�
��

��
�
��

	�
�

�

	�
�

	
�
��
	�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�	
�
��
��
�
)!

"





	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
-


�
�
�

0�
�
7
��
	&

�
�


�
�

:
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�	
F
	$
�
�
�
�
�
�

%
��
�	
�
	=
��
�
�
��

�
1

3
(

�
<�

3
(

3
2
)1
+

�
(�
�
)

�


�
��
��
	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
		
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
	�


�

	�
�
�
�	


��
��
�
��
	�
�
�
�
	 
�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
��
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�

	
�
��
�
�
	�
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�	
�
�

�
�
�
�
	

�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
	�
��
��
�

	�


	�
��
�
�
�	
�
�
�
�

�
�
�	
�
�
��
�
��
�
��


�
	�
�
��
�
)	
@
�
	�
�
�
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�

	�


�	
��
�
	�
��
�
�	
��
�
�
	�
��
�
�
	0
�
��
	�


	�

�
��
��
��
	�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
	�


�

	



�
�
�	
��
�
	�



�
��
	

�	
:
�
�
�
�
 
�
�	
�


	�
�
�
	�
�
�
 
�
�	


�	
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
	�
�
	�
?
�
�
�	
�

	�
�
�
	�
�
�
 
�
�	


�	
�
�

�
�

	�
�
�
�
�
)	
%
�
��
�
�
�	
�
�
�
�
	�


�

	�
�
	,
1
8
	�
�
��
�	

 
�
��
�
�
�
	1
	

��
��
�
��
)	

�




�	
�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
	�
��
7
�

	�
�
	�
�
	�
	�
�
�
�
��
	

�	
�




�	
�
�
�
�

�
�
�	
�
�
��
�
��
�
��


�
	�
�
��
��
�
	

�
	�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
	�


�
�
��
��

	�
�

	�
�
	�
	�
�
�
�
��
	

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�	
�
�
��


�
	�
�
�
	 
�
�
�
	�
�
7
�
�
)	
��
	�


��
�

�
9	
�
�
	�
�
�
�
	�


�
	�
�
��
�

	�
	�
�
�
�
	�


�

	�
�
��
�	
 
�
��
�
�
�
	�
�
�
	'
/
G
<�
�
��
�
 


�
��





	

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�	
�
��
�
�
�
��
	

�	
��
�
	;
�
��
�
 


�
��





	�
�
�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
	�
��
�	
�
�
�
�
��
	�
�
�
�	
��
�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
	�
�
	
�
�
�
�

< 
�
�7
	�
�
 
 
��
�
9	
�
�
7
�
�
�
�	

�
�
�
�
�
�
	�
��
)	
�
��
�	
�


�	
 
�
	�


��

	�
�
��
	

�	
��
�
	'
/
G
	

��
��
�
��
6	
�


�7
	�


�

)

'
	�
�
�
	'
/
G
	

��
��
�
�	
�
��
�	
 
�
	�
��
��
��
�
	

�
	8
(
	0
�
�
	3
�
8
�
	�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�	
%




�
��
�
�

�	
�
��
�	
 
�
	�
�
	�


�
�	
�
�
	

�	
8
	=
�
 
	3
�
8
�
)	
'
	�


��
�	
�
�
�
�
	

��
�
��
�
	

�	


�
	�
�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
	�


�
	�
�
7
�
�
	�
��
�
�
	�
�

	�
�
	�
.
�
�
�
�	
�

	�
�

�
�
	�
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
�
�

�
	

�	
8
+
�
53
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
	
�
��
�
�
	0
�
�
�
�
��
)	

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
T

a
rg

e
t 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

G
R

E
E

N

R
E

D

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

Ju
n
e

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

M
a
rc

h

1
5

1
7

1
9

2
1

2
3

2
5

2
7

2
9

A
p
ri

l
M

a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g

u
s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o
ve

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h

Page 44



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 -
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�	
�


�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�


�
�
�


�
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�


�
�
�
��
�

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
��
�
��

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

!
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

"
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�#

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
$
�
��

"
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
$
�

��


��
%
�
�
�
&�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
#

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
E

s
ti
m

a
te

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
2

6
�


��
�	
�
�
��
��
�
	�
�
�
��
�
	
�
 
�	


�
��
��
�

��
�
	�
�	
�
�
�
�	
�
�

	�
J
�
��
��


�
!

�
�
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�	
J

"





	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
-


�
�
�

0�
�
7
��
	&

�
�


�
�

:
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�	
F
	$
�
�
�
�
�
�

%
��
�	
�
	=
��
�
�
��

8
+
)�

8
+

�
<�

8
+

8
+
)+

-3
.3

0
%

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
2

7
$
�
�
�	
�


��
�
�
��

	�
�
	�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
	

�	
��
�
�	

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�	
�

"





	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
#
��
�
�
�

0�
�
7
��
	&

�
�


�
�

:
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�	
F
	$
�
�
�
�
�
�

%
��
�	
�
	=
��
�
�
��

*
*
),
,

8
�
8

�
<�

8
�
8

*
*
),

'�
(4
�
)

�


�
��
��
	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
		
	:
�
�
�
�
 
�
�	
��
	�
	�
�


��
	�


�7
��
�
	�



�
��
	�
�

	

�
��
	

�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
	�
�
�
�
��
��


�
	�
�
�
	�
�
�
)	
:
�
�
�
��
�
	�


�
��
�
�
�

	

��
�


�
�
��
	�


�7
	�
�
	�


	%
�
��
�
��

�
�
	�
�
	�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
	�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
	�
�
	�
�
�
�	
�
��
�
�
��
	�
�

	�
�
 
�
�
?
�
�
�
�	

��
	�
�
	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
	�


�	
:
�
�
�
�
 
�
�)
	-
�
�
�	

�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
	�
	�
��

��
�
�	
�
�
��
�
��
	 
�
�	
�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
	�


�	
0�
�
�
�
��
	�


	�
�
��
�
	3
�
�
*
	�
�


�
�

	�


�
�
��
��
�
�	
��

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�9
	�
�
��
�
	�
�
	�
��

	�


	

�
�
�
��
��
	

�	
�
�
��
�
�
�
)

$
�
�
�

��
�	
�
�
��


�
�
�	

K
	/
�
�
�
��
��
	�
�
��
�
��
�
�
	

�	
�
��
	�
�
�


�
�
��
	�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
	

�
�
�	
J
3
+
	�
�
	�
�
�
	�
�.
	�
�
��
�
 


�
��





	�
�
��
�
�
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�
�	
��
�
�
��
	

�	
��
�
�	
�
��
�
�
��
)

K
	�
�
��
	�
�


��
	�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
��
	�


	�
�

�
��
��
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
�


��
�
�
�
�
	

�	
�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
�)
	

K
	'
	�
�
��
�
�
�	
�
�

�
��
	

�	
��
�
	4
�
�
�
	�


�
�	
��
�
�6
	�
�
�
��


�
	

�	
�
#
#
	�
�
 
�
��
�
	�


	�
�
�
��

�
	�
�

	�
�

�


��
	4
;
�
��


�
�
�	
:
�
 
��
��
�
6)

K
	�
�
�
	�
�

�
��
�
�
�

�
9	
��
	�
��
��


�
	�
��
�
	�
�
�
	=
/
'
9	


�	
��
�
�
�
�
��
�	
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
	�
��
��
��
�
	�


�	
�
��
	�
�
�
��
9	
�


�
�
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�	
�
�

	�
�
�
�

�
�
�	
�
�
 
	

�
��
��
	�


	�

�
��
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�
��
	�



��
	�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
)

K
	:
��
��
� 
�
��


�
	

�	
�
�
�
�

�

	�
�

�


��


�
�
�	
:
��
�
�
�	
:
�
 
��
	�
�
�
��
�
��
	�
�

	�


�
��
��
	�


�	

��
�
��
�
	�
�
	

�
�
�	
+
�
	�


�
�
��


�
�
	�
�
�
��

��
�
	�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
9	

"
�
	�
�
��
�
��
�
�
9	
�


�
�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
	�
�

	�
�
�
�
�	
�

�
��
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
)	

K
	,
	.
	�
�
�
7
��
	�
��
�
�
�
��
�	
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
<�
�
��
��
	�
��
�
�
�
��
�	
��
�
�


�
�
� 
��
��
�
	�
�
�
�
�

�
�
	�
��
�
	8
+
<8
,
	�
�
�
�	


�
	�
��

�
�
��
	�
�	
�
	�


�
�
�	
�
�
�




�)

K
	#
G
	�
�
�
��
�
��
	L
	

�
	�


��
�
	�
�
�


��
	�
�

�
�
�

	 
�
	#
G
)

��
	�
�
	�
�
��
7
�
��
	�
�
�
�	
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�	
�
��
�	
 
�
	�

�
�M
	�


�
�
�
�
�	
��
�
�
��
�
	�
��
�	
 
�
	�
�
	�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�	


�
	�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
�)

�


�
��
��
	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
		
J
8
+
�
	�
�
	�
	�
�
�
�	
�
�

	�
�
��
�
�)
	:
�
 
�	
��
�
�
��
	�
�
�
�
	�
�

�
�
�

	J
3
)*
�
	�
�

�
	�
�
�
	�



�
��
	

�	
;


�
	�


	:
�
�
	�
*
	'
	�
�
�
 
�
�	



�	
��
�
�

��
	�
��
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
	�
�

�
�
��


�
	�
�
�
�
��
9	
��
�

�
�
�
	�
�

�
7
	�
��
�
�
��
�	

�
 
�	
��
��
��
��
�
	�


	�
�
�
	�


�
�
�
��
9	
�
��
��
	

��
A�
	

�	
�

��

�
�	
�
��
�
�
��
9	
�
�

	

�
�

�
�
��
�
�
	�


�7
	�


	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
	�


��
�
�
��


�
	�
�
�
�
��
	)
	�
#
#
	�
��

	�


	�
�
�

	�
�
�
�

.
��

�
��
��
	�
9�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
��
	�


	�
�
�
�
�
�


�
�
��
	�
�
�

�
�
�


�
�	
��
�
	�



�
��
	



�	
0�
�
�
�
��
	�
�

	�
�
��
�
�
��
	�


	�


��
�
�
�	
�
�
�
�

.
��

�
��
��
	J
8
)�
�
)	
�
#
#
	�
�
�
�
	�


��
�
�
��

	�
�
��
��
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
	

�	
J
2
)8
,
�
	�
�
�
	�


	:
�
�
�
�
 
�
�	
�
*
!	

�
�

	�
�
�
	�


��
�
�
�
�	
 
�
�
�

	

�
	�
�
��
�
�
�	
�


��
�
�
��


�
	�
�
��
�
	


�
�
	�
�

��
�
��
	�
�
�
�
	�
�


�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
�)
	

R
E

D

R
E

D

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

A
p
ri

l
M

a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g
u
st

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o
ve

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h

8
0

8
5

9
0

9
5

1
0

0

1
0

5

1
1

0

1
1

5

1
2

0

A
p

ri
l

M
a

y
J
u

n
e

J
u

ly
A

u
g

u
s
t

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c
to

b
e

r
N

o
ve

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

J
a

n
u

a
ry

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

M
a

rc
h

Page 45



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 -
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�	
�


�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�


�
�
�


�
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�


�
�
�
��
�

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
��
�
��

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

!
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

"
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�#

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
$
�
��

"
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
$
�

��


��
%
�
�
�
&�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
#

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
E

s
ti
m

a
te

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
0

8
, 

N
a

tio
n

a
l1

1
7

8
,
	�


	8
(
	�
�
�
�	


�
�
	�
�


	�
��
	�


�	
��
	�

�
�
�
��


�
9	
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�	


�	

��
�
��
��
�
	�
;
>
>
�
!

�
�
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�	
�

"





	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
-


�
�
�

%
�
��

�
�	
-
��
��
�
�

�

%
�
��

��
�
9	
/
�
�




��
	F
	

=
�
�
��
��
�

%
��
�	
'
	'
�
�


,
)2

,
)3
+

2
)3

,
)1

,
)3

*
(�
�
)

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
0

9

N
a

tio
n

a
l1

4
6

'

�
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	
��
�
 
��
��
��
�
	�
�
�

	�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�	
�

"





	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
#
��
�
�
�

#
�
��
�
	�
�
�
�

�

'

�
��
�
9	
#
�
�
��
�
	F
	@

�
��
 
�
��
�

%
��
�	
'
	'
��

�
)�

� 
�

8
)*

�
)�

�
+
�
�
�
�*
,�
 
��
�
�


�
�
�
�
�


�5
�
�
�
�
�
�
%

�


�
��
��
	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
	N
�
�
�	
�
�

	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
	�
.
�
�
�
��

	�


	�
�
�
��
�
�
	�
�
	�
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
��
	

�
��
�
��
	

�	
�
)�
�
	
�
�
	�


	�
	�
��
��
�
	

�
�
��
��
�
	�
�
�
�	
 
�
�
�
)	
	�
�
�
	

�
��
�
��
	

�	
�
)�
�
	�
�
	�
�

�
��
�

�
	
�
�
	�


	
�
��
�
�
	�
�
	�
�
�
�
��
��
�
	�
�

�
��

	
�
��
)	
	'
	�


 
�
�
�	
�
�
��


�
	�
��
�
	�
�
	�
�
	�
��
�
�
	�


	

�
�
�
�
��
	�
�
��
�
��
�
	�
�
	�
�
�


�
�

	�
�
	�
��

�
	�


�	
��
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�	
/
��
��
�

��
	$
�
��
��
�
	�
�

�
�
�
�
	�
�	
��
�
	�
�

	

�	
�
�
�
)	
		
@
�
	�
��
	�
�
��
�
�
��
�
	�
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	

��
�
	"


�
�
��
�
�
�
�	
&
��
��
�
	�


�	
-


�



�
	�
�
�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
��
��
�
	�
�
��
�
��
	�


�	
��
��
	�
�

��
�
�

�	
�
�

	�
	�
�
�
�
�	
��
	 
�
��
�
	�
�
 
�
��
��

	�


	�
$
"
	�
�
�
��
�
��
�
	

��
�
	
�
��
	

�
	�
�
��
	�
�

��
�
�

�	
��
	

�
�
�	
�

	�
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
	

�	
��
�
	�
�
��
�
��
)

�


�
��
��
	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
		
�
�
�
	:
�
�
�
�
 
�
�	
�

H�
�
��

	;
>
>
�
	�
��
�
��
	�
�
	8
�
	�


�
�
�	
��
�
�
	�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
�	
�,
)3
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�	
2
)3
�
	:
�
�
�
�
 
�
�	
�
(
!)
	�
�
�
	

�

�
�
�	
��
��
�
�	
�

�	
:
�
�
�
�
 
�
�	
3
�
�
*
	�
�
�
	,
)1
�
	5
	�
�
	�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�

	,
)3
�
	�
:
�
�
�
�
 
�
�	
�
*
	�
�
��
�
�	
��
�
�
��
!)
	�
�
	�
�
�
�	
��
��

�
9	
��
�
	�
��
�
��
	�
�
	




�
�
	 
�
	�
�.
��
	�
��
�
�

:
�
�
�
�
 
�
�5
�
(
�	
8
,
58
(
	�
�
��
�
�	
'

H�
�
��

	;
>
>
�
	�
�
�
 
�
��
	1
�
8
	

:
�
�
�
�
 
�
�5
�
*
�	
8
,
58
(
	�
�
��
�
�	
'

H�
�
��

	;
>
>
�
	�
�
�
 
�
��
	�
�
3

@
�
	�
��
	�


�
��
�
�
��
�
	�


	�
�

�
�
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
�
 
�
�	


�	
�


�
�
�
	�
�


�
��
	�
�


	�
��
	;
>
>
�
	�
�
	�
��
�
	�
��
�
	

�
�	
�


�
��
��
	�
�
��
�
��
	�
�

	�
��
	

�
	�
��
�
7
	�


	

�
�
�
��
�
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�	
��
��
�
�	


�	
,
)3
+
�
	�


�	
3
�
�
*
<8
�
)

G
R

E
E

N

56789

1
0

1
1

1
2

1
3

1
4

1
5

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h

0

0
.51

1
.52

2
.53

Ju
ly

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

Ja
n

u
a

ry
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
M

a
rc

h

Page 46



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 -
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�	
�


�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�


�
�
�


�
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�


�
�
�
��
�

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
��
�
��

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

!
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

"
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�#

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
$
�
��

"
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
$
�

��


��
%
�
�
�
&�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
#

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
E

s
ti
m

a
te

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
1

0
, 

N
a

tio
n

a
l1

5
0

'

�
��
�
	�
�
�
�
��
��
�
	�
�
�


�

�
��
	�

�
�
��
�	
�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
��
��
�
�
	�
�
	

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�	
�

"





	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
#
��
�
�
�

#
�
��
�
	�
�
�
�

�

'

�
��
�
9	
#
�
�
��
�
	F
	@

�
��
 
�
��
�

%
��
�	
'
	'
��

3
)1

� 
�

,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
1

1
, 

N
a

tio
n

a
l1

5
1

&
�
�
��
��
	�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�	
��
��
	�
�


�7
��
�
	�
�
�
!

�
�
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�	
�
	

"





	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
#
��
�
�
�

;
��
7
	/
�
�
��
�

:
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�	
F
	$
�
�
�
�
�
�

%
��
�	
&
	$
�
�
�
�
�

,
�
)(

+
1
)*

+
(
)1

+
1
)*

,
8
)(

�
�
(0
�
)

�


�
��
��
	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
	'
	�
�
��
�
�	
�
�
�
	�
�
�	
 
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
�	
#
�
�
��
�
	�
��
�
�	
 
�
�
�

	

�
	�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
	

�
��
�
��
	�


�	
3
�
�
(
5�
*
	5
	8
3
�
	�
�
��
�
�	

��
�
�
	3
)1
�
!)
		
@
�
	�
��
	�
�
��
�
�
��
�
	�
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
�
	"


�
�
��
�
�
�
�	
&
��
��
�
	�


�	
-


�



�
	�
�
�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
��
��
�
	�
�
��
�
��
	�


�	
��
��
	�
�

��
�
�

�	
�
�

	�
	

�
�
�
�
�	
�
��
�	
 
�
	�
�
 
�
��
��

	�


	=
�
 
��
�
��
	�
$
"
	�
�
�
��
�
��
�
	�
�
�
	
�
��
	

�
	�
�
��
	�
�

��
�
�

�	
��
	

�
�
�	
�

	�
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
5�
�
��
��
�
	

�	
��
��
	�
�

��
�
�

�)

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
T

a
rg

e
t 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

G
R

E
E

N

5
0

5
2

5
4

5
6

5
8

6
0

6
2

6
4

6
6

6
8

7
0

M
a
y

Ju
n
e

Ju
ly

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o
ve

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

Ja
n
u
a
ry

M
a
rc

h

02468

1
0

1
2

1
4

1
6

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

M
a
rc

h

Page 47



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 -
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�	
�


�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�


�
�
�


�
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�


�
�
�
��
�

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
��
�
��

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

!
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

"
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�#

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
$
�
��

"
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
$
�

��


��
%
�
�
�
&�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
#

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
E

s
ti
m

a
te

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
1

2
, 

N
a

tio
n

a
l1

5
2

@


�7
��
�
	�
�
�
	�
�


�
��
	

�
	

�
�	


�	
�


�7
	 
�
�
�
��
��

�
�
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�	
�
	�
�
�
��
	�
�

��
�
�

�	
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
	

�	

��
�
	�


�7
��
�
	�
�
�
	�


�
�
��
��


�
	�
�


	�
��
	�
��
��

��
�
	

�
�	


�	
�


�7
	

 
�
�
�
��
��
)!

"





	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
-


�
�
�

;
��
7
	/
�
�
��
�

:
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�	
F
	$
�
�
�
�
�
�

%
��
�	
&
	$
�
�
�
�
�

8
2
)8

8
2
)2

8
2
)3

8
2
)2

8
2
)2

�
(�
�
)

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
1

3

N
a

tio
n

a
l1

5
3

@


�7
��
�
	�
�
�
	�
�


�
��
	

�
	

�
�	


�	
�


�7
	 
�
�
�
��
��
	�
�
	�
�
�
	�


��
�	

�
�
��


��

��
�
	�
�
��
�
 


�
��





�

�
�
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�	
�
	�
�
�
��
	�
�

��
�
�

�	
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
	

�	

��
�
	�


�7
��
�
	�
�
�
	�


�
�
��
��


�
	�
�


	�
��
	�
��
��

��
�
	

�
�	


�	
�


�7
	

 
�
�
�
��
��
	�
�
	�
�
�
	�


�
�
�
�	
�
�
��


��

��
�
	�
�
��
�
 


�
��





�
	!

"





	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
-


�
�
�

;
��
7
	/
�
�
��
�

:
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�	
F
	$
�
�
�
�
�
�

%
��
�	
&
	$
�
�
�
�
�

3
+
)1

3
(

3
,
)(

3
(

�
8
)(

'�
*
(0
�
)

'
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�	
��
��
	�
�
	�
)(
	�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
	�


��
��
	�
 


�
�
	�
�
�
	3
�
�
*
<8
�
	�
�
��
�
�9
	�
�	
�
�
�
�
�
	�
�
��
7
�
��
	�
�
�
�	
��
�
	3
�
�
*
<8
�
	�
�
��
�
�	
�
�
�
	 
�
	�

�
�	
�
�
	

��
�
	�
�
�
	

�	

��
��
��
�
�	
�


�7
��
�
	�
�
�
	�


�
�
��
��


�
	�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�	
��
��
	�




	�

�
�
�
)	
�
�
�
	�
�
.
�	
�


�
�
��
��


�
	�
�
��
�
�
��
9	
��
	�
��
�
�
�9
	

�
��
�	
�
�
�
�
	�


�
��
��
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�	


�
	�
�
��
	�
�
�
��
)	
	@

�
	�
��
	�
�
��
�
�
��
�
	�
�
	�
�
�
	�
�

�
�
�
�
	

�	
��
5�
�
�


��
�
��
�
�
	-
'
'
;
�8
+
�
	�
�

	-
'
'
;
�8
+
3
	�
��
�
	

"


�
�
��
�
�
�
�	
&
��
��
�
	�


�	
-


�



�
)	

�


�
��
��
	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
		
�


�
��
��
	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
��
�
	�
�
�
 
�
�	
�


�7
��
�
	�
�
�
	�
�


�
��
	

�
	

�
�	


�	
�


�7
	 
�
�
�
��
��
	�
�
	�
�
�
	�


��
�	
�
�
��


��

��
�
	

�
�
��
�
 


�
��





�
	�
�
	�
�

�
��
�
)	
�
�
�
	�


��
�	
�
�
�
 
�
�	


�	
�
�


�
��
	�
��
��

��
�
	

�
�	


�	
�


�7
	 
�
�
�
��
�	
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�

	�
�

�
	�
�
3
+
	�


	�
�
(
�
	

�	
8
)(
�
	

 
�
��
�
�
�
	=
�
 
��
�
��
	�
�

	�
�
�
	3
�
�
*
)	
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
	�
�
	�

�
��
��
	
�
�
	�


	�
�
�
	�
�
��



�
�
��


�
	

�	
�
�
�
	�


�7
��
�
	�
�
�
	�


�
�
��
��


�
	�
�
��
�
�
��
	�


�	
��
�
	

�
�
��
�
 


�
��





�
)	
�


�
�
��
��


�
	�
�
��
�
�
��
	�
�
	�


�
�
�	
��
�
�
	 
�
�

��
	�
��
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
��
	�
�
�
�	
��
��
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�

)	

�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
	�
�
	�
�
��
�
��
�
�
	�
�
�

�
�
�
	�
�
��


�
�
	�
�

H�
�
��
	�
�


�
��
	

�
	 
�
�
�
��
�	
�

	�
�
7
�
	�
�
	�
�
�
	�


�7
)	
@


�7
��
�
	;
�
��
�
 


�
��





	=
�
�

	

�@
;
=
!	
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�	
��


�
�
	�
�	
�
	�
��
�
��
�	

��
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
	
�
��
�
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
	�
�
	�
�


�
��
	�
�
��
�
�
�	
�
�
�
�
	�
�

�
	�
�
�
	�
�
 


�
�	
�
�
�7
�
�	

��
�
�
��
	�
�
�
�
�	
�

	�
�
��
�
�	
�

�	
�
�
�
�


��
)	
�
�
�

�
�
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
�
	

�	
@
;
=
	�
	�
�
�
�
�
	

�	
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�	
��
��
��

	�
�
��
�
��
��
�
	�


	�


�
�
��
�
�
�
�	
��
�
	

�
�
��
��
�
�
	

�	
0

 
�
�
�
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�

	�
�
�
	-
�
�
��
��
�
	�
�

	/
7
��
��
	%


�
�
�
��
	�
��
	�
�
��
�
��
�
��

	�
��
�
	�
	�
�
��
�
�	


�	
1
9�
�
�
	�


��
�

�
�
�	
��
�
�
�
�
��
	�
�
�

	

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
T

a
rg

e
t 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

R
E

D

G
R

E
E

N

1
0

1
2

1
4

1
6

1
8

2
0

2
2

2
4

J
u
n
e

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

N
o
ve

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

M
a
rc

h

2
0

2
2

2
4

2
6

2
8

3
0

3
2

3
4

J
u
n
e

A
u
g

u
s
t

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c
to

b
e

r
N

o
ve

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h

Page 48



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 -
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�	
�


�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�


�
�
�


�
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�


�
�
�
��
�

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
��
�
��

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

!
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

"
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�#

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
$
�
��

"
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
$
�

��


��
%
�
�
�
&�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
#

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
E

s
ti
m

a
te

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

4
0

2
, 

N
a

tio
n

a
l0

1
5

;
�
�
 
�
�	


�	
�


�
�	
�
�
��


�
�
	�
�

��
�
�	
�
��
�
�
�
	�
�
�	
8
9�
�
�
	�


�
�
��
��


�

�
�
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�	
;
�
�
 
�
�	
�;


)	


�	
��
�


�
�

	�



�
�	
�
�
��


�
�
	�
�

��
�
�	

�
��
�
�
�
<�


��
�	
�


�
�
��
��


�
	.
	8
�
�
�
!

"





	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
-


�
�
�

'
�

�
	G
�
�
 
�
�

%


�
�
�
�
��
��
�
9	
-


�
�
��
��
�
�
	F
	

%
�
��
�
��

%
��
�	
'
	�
��
�
�

3
)�
+

3
)3
(

�
<�

8
)2
8

8
),
1

4
(�
�
)

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

4
0

3
, 

N
a

tio
n

a
l0

1
6

;
�
�
 
�
�	


�	
�
�
��


�
�
	�
�
?
�
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
�
�
	�
�
�	
8
9�
�
�
	�


�
�
��
��


�

�
�
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�	
;
�
�
 
�
�	
�;


)	


�	
��
�


�
�

	�
�
��


�
�
	�
�
?
�
��
��
��
�
	

�
��
�
�
�
<�


��
�	
�


�
�
��
��


�
	.
	8
�
�
�
!

"





	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
-


�
�
�

'
�

�
	G
�
�
 
�
�

%


�
�
�
�
��
��
�
9	
-


�
�
��
��
�
�
	F
	

%
�
��
�
��

%
��
�	
'
	�
��
�
�

3
+
)+
8

3
+
)�
+

3
�

8
(
)2
*

8
+
)8
+

�
�
(4
�
)

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
T

a
rg

e
t 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

�
+
�
�
�
�4
,�
 
�6
�
��
��
�
7
�6
�
�
�
�
�
�
$
�
�5
�
�
�
�
�
�
%

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
T

a
rg

e
t 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

G
R

E
E

N

0

0
.51

1
.52

2
.53

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

M
a
rc

h

G
R

E
E

N

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

M
a
y

Ju
n
e

Ju
ly

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

N
o
ve

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

Ja
n
u
a
ry

M
a
rc

h

Page 49



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 -
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�	
�


�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�


�
�
�


�
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�


�
�
�
��
�

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
��
�
��

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

!
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

"
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�#

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
$
�
��

"
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
$
�

��


��
%
�
�
�
&�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
#

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
E

s
ti
m

a
te

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

4
0

4
, 

N
a

tio
n

a
l0

1
8

$
�
��
	

�	
�
�

�
�
�
	�
�
5

��
�
�

��
�
	 
�
	�

�
��
�
	�
�

�
�	
�
�

 
�
��


�
	

�
�
�
�
��
��
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�	
�
	�
�


�
�
�
��

	�


	�
�
�
	�
��

��
��

	�
�

�


��
�

�
	�


�	

��
�
	�
�

 
�
��


�
	�
��
�
!

"





	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
-


�
�
�

�
�
��
	:
�
�7
��

%
�
��

��
�
9	
/
�
�




��
	F
	

=
�
�
��
��
�

%
��
�	
'
	'
�
�


�
)2
(

5�
)2
1

�
<�

58
)3
+

5�
)+
3

'1
�
(4
�
)

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

4
0

5
, 

N
a

tio
n

a
l0

1
9

$
�
��
	

�	
�
�

�
�
�
	�
�
5

��
�
�

��
�
	 
�
	�


�
�
�
	

��
�
�

�
��
	�
�
�

	8
�
58
2

�
�
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�	
�
�
�
	

�
��
�
��
	�


�	
��
��
	�
�

��
�
�

�	
��
	�
�
��
�
��
��

	 
�
	


��
�
��
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
�
 
�
�	


�	


��
�
�
�
�
�
	�


�
�
��
��

	 
�
	�


�
�
�
	�
�


�
��
	

�
��
�
	�
�
�
	�


��
�	
�
�
�
 
�
�	


�	
�


�
�
�
	�
�


�
��
	�
�
	�
�
�
	�


�


��
)	

"





	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
-


�
�
�

�
�
��
	:
�
�7
��

%
�
��

��
�
9	
/
�
�




��
	F
	

=
�
�
��
��
�

%
��
�	
'
	'
�
�


8
)�
8

8
)8
�

�
)+
1

�
)+
,

�
),
3

'�
�
(/
�
)

�


�
��
��
	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
		
�
�
��
	�
�
��
�
�
�	
�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
	

�	
5�
)+
3
�
	�
�
��
��
�
	�


	�
�
��



	 
�
��
�
�
�
	8
	0
�
��
	3
�
�
(
	L
	�
�
	0
�
�
�
	3
�
�
*
	�
�
�
�
��
�
�	

0�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
�	


�	
58
)3
+
�
!	
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�
 
��
�
�
�

	 
�
	�
�
�
	#


�
�
	&
��
��
�
	

�
	�
�
�
	8
*
��
	;


�
�
�
 
�
�	
�
*
)	
�
�
��
	�
�
	�
	�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�	
��

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�	

�
��
�
�
	�
�
�
�	
��
�
	�
�
�
�	
��


	�
�
�


��
�

	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�
	�
�
��
	�
)2
(
�
	�
3
�
��
	'
�
�
�
�
�	
�
*
!	
�
�

	*
)�
+
�
	�
8
1
��
	�
�
�
	�
*
!)
	�
�
�
	�
�
.
�	
��
�


��
	�
�
	

�
.
�
�
�
��

	�
�

�
�

	 
�
�
��
�
��
�
	

�	
�
�
��
�
	3
�
8
�
)

�


�
��
��
	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
�	
��
��
	

�	
��


��
�
�

��
�
	�
��
�
�	
�
	�



�
��
�
	�
�
�
	�
),
3
	�
�
��
�
	�
�
	�
��
�
�
�	
��
�
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
�	
��
��
	

�	
��


��
�
�

��
�
	



�	
�
)+
,
)

;
�
�
 
�
�	
��
	�


�


��
�	
8
,
�

;
�
�
 
�
�	
��


��
�
�

��
�
	�
��
�
�	
�
	�



�
��
�
�	
+
8
	�
�
8
)�
�
	

�	
��
�
	�


�


��
!

;
�
�
 
�
�	


�	


��
�
�
�
�
�
	�


�
�
��
��

	 
�
	�
 


�
�
	+
8
	�


�
�
�
	�
�


�
��
�	
8
�
�

�
�
�
	N
&
/
	�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�

	�
��
	�
�

�
��
�

�
	

�	

��
�
��
�

�
�
��
	�
�

�
��
�
�
�
�
	�


	�
�


�
�
	�


�
�
�
	�
�


�
��
	�
�


	�
�
?
�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
�
��
��
�

�
	�
�

	

�
�
�
�


��
)	
%
�
��
�
�
�	

�
��
	�
�
�
�
�
�
��
	�
�
�
�	
��
�
	�
�
��
	

�	
��


��
�
�

��
�
	

�	
��
�
	�


�


��
	�
�
	�
�

�
��
�
9	
��
�

��
�
	�


	�
	�


�
�
� 
��
��
�
	�
�
�
�	
��
�
	�
�

��
�
�

�	
�
��
�	

 
�
	

�
	�
��
�
7
	 
�
	�
�
�
	�
�

	

�	
��
�
	�
�


��
�
�

��
�
	�
�
�


��
��
�
	�
�
�
�	
��
	0
�
��
	3
�
8
�
)

R
E

D

R
E

D

-505

1
0

1
5

2
0

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

M
a
rc

h

0

1
0

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0
0

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

M
a
rc

h

Page 50



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 -
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�	
�


�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�


�
�
�


�
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�


�
�
�
��
�

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
��
�
��

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

!
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

"
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�#

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
$
�
��

"
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
$
�

��


��
%
�
�
�
&�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
#

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
E

s
ti
m

a
te

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

4
0

7
, 

N
a

tio
n

a
l0

3
3

i

'
��


�
	�
�
�
�
�
�
��
	5
	;
�
�
 
�
�	


�	

�
��
 
�
��
��
	�
��
�
�
��
	�
��
�
�
	�
�
�	

8
�
9�
�
�
	�


�
�
��
��


�
)

�
�
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�	
;
�
�
 
�
�	
��
��
�
�
��
	�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
��
�
9	
��
�
�
�
�
	

�	

�
�
�
�
�
�
!	

"





	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
-


�
�
�

'
�

�
	G
�
�
 
�
�

%


�
�
�
�
��
��
�
9	
-


�
�
��
��
�
�
	F
	

%
�
��
�
��

%
��
�	
'
	�
��
�
�

*
)*
*

8
8
)*

,
)+
,

(
)*
�

,
)8
8

*
�
(0
�
)

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

4
0

8
, 

N
a

tio
n

a
l0

3
3

ii

;
�
�
 
�
�	


�	

�
��
 
�
��
��
	�
�
�


�

�
��
	�
��
�
�
	�
�
�	
8
�
9�
�
�
	�


�
�
��
��


�
)	

�'
��


�
!

�
�
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�	
;
�
�
 
�
�	
�/
�
�


�

�
��
	�
�
	�


�	
��
�


��
��
�
	�
�

�
�
��
�
	

F
	
�
	�


�	
��
�


��
�
	�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
	

�	
��
�
�
�
�
�
!

"





	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
-


�
�
�

'
�

�
	G
�
�
 
�
�

%


�
�
�
�
��
��
�
9	
-


�
�
��
��
�
�
	F
	

%
�
��
�
��

%
��
�	
'
	�
��
�
�

3
�
)*
*

�
+
)(

8
2
)1
,

3
,
)(
+

*
)�
2

0
0
(�
�
)

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
T

a
rg

e
t 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

: 
T

a
rg

e
t 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

G
R

E
E

N

G
R

E
E

N

G
R

E
E

N

02468

1
0

1
2

1
4

M
a
y

Ju
n
e

Ju
ly

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

N
o
ve

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

Ja
n
u
a
ry

M
a
rc

h

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

M
a
y

Ju
n
e

Ju
ly

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

N
o
ve

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

Ja
n
u
a
ry

M
a
rc

h

Page 51



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 -
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�	
�


�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�


�
�
�


�
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�


�
�
�
��
�

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
��
�
��

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

!
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

"
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�#

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
$
�
��

"
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
$
�

��


��
%
�
�
�
&�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
#

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
E

s
ti
m

a
te

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

4
1

0
, 

N
a

tio
n

a
l0

4
0

;
�
�
 
�
�	


�	

��
�
	�
�
�
��
	�
�
�


�
�

	�
�
	 
�
��
�
	�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
�
�
	

��
�
�
��

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�	
;
�
�
 
�
�

"





	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
#
��
�
�
�

'
�

�
	G
�
�
 
�
�

%


�
�
�
�
��
��
�
9	
-


�
�
��
��
�
�
	F
	

%
�
��
�
��

%
��
�	
'
	�
��
�
�

(
8

8
3
�

1
1

*
3

8
3
*

4
�
(�
�
)

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

4
1

3
, 

N
a

tio
n

a
l0

6
5

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
	

�	
�
�
��

��
�
	 
�
�


�
��
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
 
H�
�
�	


�	
%
�
��

	

�
�

��
�
��


�
	�
��
�
	�


�	
�
	�
�
�


�

	

�	
�
�
 
�
�
?
�
�
�
�	
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�	
�
	�
�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
	

�	
�
�
��

��
�
	�
�


	 
�
�
�
�
�
	

�
�
 
H�
�
�	
�

	�
	%
�
��

	�
�

��
�
��


�
	�
��
�
	�
%
�
�
!	
�
�	
�
�
�
	�
��

�
	
�
��
�
�
	

��
�
	�
�
�
�9
	�
�


	�
�

	�
��
�
�

�
�
��
	 
�
�
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
 
H�
�
�	


�	
�
	%
�
�
	

�	



�
	�
�
�
	%
�
��

	�
�

��
�
��


�
	$
�
�
��
��
�	


�	
��
�
�	
�


�
�
�
��
9	
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
	



�	
�


�
	�


�
�
	�
�


	�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
!)

"





	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
-


�
�
�

#
�
��
�
	-
��
�


��

%
�
��

��
�
9	
/
�
�




��
	F
	

=
�
�
��
��
�

%
��
�	
'
	'
�
�


,
)(

2
2
)*
+

2
2
)(

'�
�
(4
�
)

�


�
��
��
	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
	�
�O
�
	

�	
��
�
	�


�


��
	�
�
�
	�
	�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�	
��

�
�
�
�	


�
	�
�
�
�
��
	

�	
�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
9	
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
	�
�
�
	�
	


��
�
�

�


��
�

�
�
��
	�
�
�
�
�
�	


�
	�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
�	
�
)	
@
�
	�
��
9	
�


�
�
�
�
�9
	�
�
��


��

��
�
	�
�
��
	�


�
�
�
��

	�


	

�
�	
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�	
�
�
��
�
 


�
�	
�
�

	�
�
�
	

�
�
��


�
�
�	
�
�
�
��
�
�
9	
�
�
�
	�
�

��
�
��


�
	

�	
A�




�A
	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
�
��
	�
�
	�
�
 
��
�

�
�
	�
�
��
�
�	
��
��
�
�	
��
�
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�	
��
�
�
��
	

�	
�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
)	

�


�
�
�	
#
�
�
��
��
	�
�
�
	�
��

��
�

�
�
��
�
	�
�

	�
	�


�
	

�
��
�
��
	

�
	�
�
��
	�
�

��
�
�

�	
L
	�
�
�
	�
�
��

	�
�

��
�
��


�
	�


�
��
��
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
�
	�


�	
��
�


�
�

	

�
�
��

��
�
	�
�

�
	�
	�
�
��

	�
�

��
�
��


�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
	�


�
��

�
�
�	
��
�
�	
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�


�
	�


�	
�
	�
�
��

	�
�

��
�
��


�
	�
��
�
	�
�
	�


	�


�
�
�
�	
�
�
�)
	�
�
�
	

�
�
�
 
�
��
	

�	
�
�
��

��
�
	 
�
��
�
	�

�

�
	�
�
 
H�
�
�	
�

	�
	�
�
��

	�
�

��
�
��


�
	�
��
�
	�


�	
�
	�
�
�


�

	�
��

�
	�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
�

��
	 
�
�
�
	�


�
	�
�

	�
�
��
	�
�
�
	 
�
�
�
	

��
��
�
�
��

	�
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
�	
�
�

	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
)	
'
�
	�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�	
�
�

��
	

�	
�
�
��

��
�
	�
��
�
��
	�
�
��
	�


�


��
	�
�
	3
�
�
(
	�
�

��
�
��

	�
�
�
�	


�
�	

��
��
�
�


�
�
	�
�
��
	�
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
	�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�
�


�
�
�
�

�
��


�
	�
�

�
	�
�
��
	�
�

��
	�
�
�
	 
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��


@
�
	�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�

�
�

	�
�
��

	�
�
	�
�
�

	�




�
��
�
�

��
	�
�

	�
�
�
��
	�
�
	�
	�

�
�
�
	�



��
	�
��
�
	�
��
�
�
��
�

�
	 
�
��
�
�
�
	�
�
��

	�
�

��
�
��


�
	�
�

	�
�
��

	�
�
	

�
�
�

9	
�
�
��
�
9	
�
�
	

��
�
�	
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
�	
�


��
	�


�
��

�
�
�	
�
�

	7
�


�
��

�
�
�
 
��
	�
 


�
�	
��
�
	�
�
��

	�
�
	�
�
�

	�
�
�
��
�
��
�
	�
�
��
��
�
9	
�
�
�
	�
�
�
 
��
	�
�
�
�

��
�
�
	�
�
��

	�
�

��
�
��


�
)	
'
�
�
	�
�
��
��
	�
�
��
�
�	
�
��
�	
�
�
�

	�


	�
�
��
�
�
�	
��
��
)	
@
�
	�
��
	 
�
�

�
	

��
�
�	
-


�



�
	�
�
��


��
��
�
�
	�
�

	�
�
�
	�

	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
	�


�
�
	�



�
�
	�
�
	�


�
�
�
	�
�
�
	

�


�
��
��
	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
		
:
�
��
	

�
��
	�
�
�
��
�
 
��
	�


	�
�

	'
�
�
�
�
�	
�
*
)	
�
�
�
	�
�
�
 
�
�	


�	

��
�
	�
�
�
��
	�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
�
�
	�
��
�
��

�
�
�	
�
�	
��
�
	�
�

	

�	

'
�
�
�
�
�	
��
	8
1
(
3
)	
�
�
�
��
�

��
	�
�
�
	
��
��
��
�
�
�
	 
�
��
�
�
�
	�
�
��
	�
��
�
��
	�
�

	 
�
�
�
��
�
�
	�
��
�
��
	

�	
8
�
+
�
	�
�
	8
3
*
	�
 
�
�
�

	

�
	�
�
�
	
�
��
�
��
�

�
!)
	

�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
	�
��
�
��
�
��
	�
�
�

�
�
�


�
�	
��
�
	�
�
�
�	
 
�
�	
��
��
	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
	�
�


�
�
	�
�
	�
��
	

�
	�
�
��
�
�	
�

	�
�
�
��
�
�
	�
�
�
	�
�

	

�	
��
�
	�
�
�
�	

�
.
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�
�
��
)

5
0

2
5
0

4
5
0

6
5
0

8
5
0

1
0
5
0

1
2
5
0

1
4
5
0

Ju
n
e

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

M
a
rc

h

G
R

E
E

N

R
E

D

02468

1
0

1
2

1
4

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h

Page 52



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 -
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�	
�


�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�


�
�
�


�
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�


�
�
�
��
�

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
��
�
��

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

!
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

"
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�#

	
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
$
�
��

"
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
$
�

��


��
%
�
�
�
&�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
#

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
E

s
ti
m

a
te

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

5
0

6
, 

N
a

tio
n

a
l1

1
2

�
�

�
�	
8
(
	�


�
�
�
�
��


�
	�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��

	�
�
�	
�

"





	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
-


�
�
�

'
��
�
�
	@

��
��
�
�
�
	

�
��
�
�
��
	%
�
��
	�
��
�
�

%
��
�	
'
	'
��

53
�
)(

51
1

�
<�

�
<�

5�
(
)8

�


�
��
��
	�
�
��


��

�
�
�
�
�	
		
�
�
��
	�
�

��
�
�

�	
��
	�

�
�
�
�
��

	8
1
	�



�
��
�
	�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
	�
�

	�
�
�
	

�
��
�
��
	

�	
5�
(
)8
	�
�
��
��
�
	�


	�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
�	

�
��
	5
	

�

��
��
�
	�
�
�
�	
�

	/
�
�
��
�
 
�
�	
3
�
�
(
)	
�
�
�
��
	�
�
	�
	�
�
��
	�


�
��
��
�
	�
�
�


��
	�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�
�	


�	
�
�

�
�	
8
(
	�


�
�
�
�
��


�
�
9	
��
�
	�


�
	�
�
�
 
�
�	
��
��
	�
�
�
	

�


�
��
�
�
�

	

�
�
�	
I
�
	

�	
3
�
�
(
)	
	�
�
�
��
	�
�
��
	�
	�


��
�	


�	
2
,
	�


�
�
�
�
��


�
�
	�
�
	�
�
�
	�
��
�
�	
��
��
�
	?
�
�
��
�
��
	

�	
3
�
�
(
	�
3
1
	�
�
	I
8
9	
3
,
	�
�
	I
3
9	
3
,
	�
�
	

I
�
!)
	�
�
��
	�


�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�


�
��
 
��
	�
��
�
	 


��
	�
�
�
	-


�



�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
	

�	
1
+
)1
	�
�

	�
�
�
	>
�
�
��
�

	�
�
�
��
�
�
	

�	
1
8
	�
�
�
�	
8
9�
�
�
!)
		
�
�
�
	

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
	

�	
�
 


��
�

�
�
	�


�
�
�
�
�	
��
�
�
��
�
	�
	�


�
�
�
��
	 
�
�	
�
�


�
�
	�


�
�
	�
�

�
�
��


�
	�
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
�
�	
3
	?
�
�
��
�
��
	

�	
��
�
	�
�
�
�)

�
+
�
�
�
�1
,�
 
�.
�
�
��
+
%
�5
�
�
�
�
�
�
%

-5
0

-4
5

-4
0

-3
5

-3
0

-2
5

-2
0

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

M
a

rc
h

Page 53



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 2
0

0
9

-1
0

 3
rd

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

L
a

te
s

t

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

F
o

re
c

a
s

t

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

8
2

1
7

6
1

6
2

-1
4

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

  
A

0
2

  
D

iv
is

io
n

a
l 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

&
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
o

n
1

8
2

1
7

6
1

6
2

-1
4

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
8

2
8

2
8

2
0

In
c
o

m
e

-8
2

-8
2

-8
2

0
  

A
0

4
  

P
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v

e
 T

e
c

h
n

o
lo

g
y

0
0

0
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

,1
1

9
1

,0
7

9
1

,0
6

4
-1

5

In
c
o

m
e

-4
1

0
0

0
  

A
0

5
  

C
a

re
rs

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
1

,0
7

8
1

,0
7

9
1

,0
6

4
-1

5

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
2

,1
2

5
2

,1
0

0
2

,0
5

3
-4

7

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

  
A

0
9

  
E

ld
e

rs
 A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
&

 C
a

re
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
2

,1
2

5
2

,1
0

0
2

,0
5

3
-4

7

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

1
2

1
1

0
8

0
-3

0

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

  
A

1
1

  
P

h
y

s
ic

a
l 

D
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s

 S
u

b
 D

iv
is

io
n

1
1

2
1

1
0

8
0

-3
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

,0
9

0
1

,1
7

7
1

,0
8

0
-9

7

In
c
o

m
e

0
-5

2
-1

5
3

7
  

A
1

2
  

P
h

y
s

ic
a

l 
D

is
a

b
il

it
ie

s
 A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t
1

,0
9

0
1

,1
2

5
1

,0
6

5
-6

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
9

1
9

0
9

0
0

In
c
o

m
e

-3
5

-3
5

-3
5

0
  

A
1

3
  

L
e

a
rn

in
g

 D
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s

 S
u

b
 D

iv
is

io
n

5
6

5
5

5
5

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
7

9
8

7
9

0
7

9
0

0

In
c
o

m
e

-7
9

-7
9

-7
9

0
  

A
1

4
  

L
e

a
rn

in
g

 D
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s

 A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t

7
1

9
7

1
1

7
1

1
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

,8
9

0
1

,8
5

4
1

,8
5

0
-4

In
c
o

m
e

-4
-4

0
4

  
A

1
5

  
O

c
c

u
p

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

T
h

e
ra

p
y

1
,8

8
6

1
,8

5
0

1
,8

5
0

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
9

0
8

1
,0

7
9

1
,1

0
0

2
1

In
c
o

m
e

0
-1

6
0

-1
6

0
0

  
A

1
6

  
O

c
c

u
p

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

T
h

e
ra

p
y

 -
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

9
0

8
9

1
9

9
4

0
2

1

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
4

8
9

4
3

6
4

3
6

0

In
c
o

m
e

-1
2

7
-1

2
7

-1
2

7
0

  
A

1
7

  
H

IV
 D

ru
g

s
 A

lc
o

h
o

l
3

6
2

3
0

9
3

0
9

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

,3
6

6
1

,3
4

8
1

,3
4

8
0

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

0
  

A
1

8
  

H
o

s
p

it
a

l 
S

o
c

ia
l 

W
o

rk
 T

e
a

m
s

1
,3

6
6

1
,3

4
8

1
,3

4
8

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
2

0
7

3
0

2
3

8
9

8
7

In
c
o

m
e

0
-9

5
-1

7
7

-8
2

  
A

1
9

 V
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 A

d
u

lt
s

2
0

7
2

0
7

2
1

2
5

A
D

U
L

T
S

, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 &

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

C
o

m
m

e
n

t/
 R

is
k

 A
re

a
s

Page 55



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 2
0

0
9

-1
0

 3
rd

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

L
a

te
s

t

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

F
o

re
c

a
s

t

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
A

D
U

L
T

S
, 

H
E

A
L

T
H

 &
 W

E
L

L
B

E
IN

G

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

C
o

m
m

e
n

t/
 R

is
k

 A
re

a
s

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
3

1
7

2
7

0
2

7
0

0

In
c
o

m
e

-1
2

3
-1

2
3

-1
2

3
0

  
A

2
3

  
M

e
n

ta
l 

H
e

a
lt

h
 S

u
b

 D
iv

is
io

n
 M

&
A

1
9

4
1

4
7

1
4

7
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
3

,2
9

9
3

,3
7

9
3

,3
8

3
4

In
c
o

m
e

-4
8

3
-5

9
3

-5
6

9
2

4
  

A
2

4
  

A
re

a
 M

e
n

ta
l 

H
e

a
lt

h
 T

e
a

m
s

2
,8

1
6

2
,7

8
6

2
,8

1
4

2
8

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
4

9
8

5
3

9
5

3
9

0

In
c
o

m
e

-3
4

-3
4

-3
4

0
  

A
2

5
  

M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 D
a

y
 C

e
n

tr
e

s
4

6
4

5
0

5
5

0
5

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

0
3

1
0

2
9

3
-9

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

  
A

3
0

  
A

d
u

lt
 R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

s
 S

u
b

 D
iv

is
io

n
 

1
0

3
1

0
2

9
3

-9

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
6

9
1

6
8

8
5

9
8

-9
0

In
c
o

m
e

-1
-1

-1
0

  
A

3
1

  
P

h
y

s
ic

a
l 

D
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s

 
6

9
0

6
8

7
5

9
7

-9
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
4

6
3

4
6

0
4

6
0

0

In
c
o

m
e

-5
-5

-5
0

  
A

3
2

  
L

e
a

rn
in

g
 D

is
a

b
il

it
ie

s
 D

a
y

 C
e

n
tr

e
4

5
8

4
5

5
4

5
5

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

,6
9

1
1

,6
8

5
1

,6
1

0
-7

5

In
c
o

m
e

-4
4

-3
6

-4
1

-5
  

A
3

3
  

E
ld

e
rs

 D
a

y
 C

e
n

tr
e

s
1

,6
4

7
1

,6
4

9
1

,5
6

9
-8

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
6

,6
4

9
7

,1
0

0
7

,9
3

0
8

3
0

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

-3
8

0
-3

8
0

  
A

3
4

  
H

o
m

e
 C

a
re

6
,6

4
9

7
,1

0
0

7
,5

5
0

4
5

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
2

5
7

2
5

4
3

9
6

1
4

2

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

  
A

3
7

  
E

m
e

rg
e

n
c

y
 D

u
ty

 T
e

a
m

2
5

7
2

5
4

3
9

6
1

4
2

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

6
8

1
6

9
1

6
9

0

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

  
A

3
8

  
O

ld
e

r 
P

e
o

p
le

 A
n

d
 H

o
m

e
le

1
6

8
1

6
9

1
6

9
0

A
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 

re
a
b
le

m
e
n
t 
p
ilo

t 
h
a
v
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
is

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

. 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
g
ra

n
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 f
u
n
d
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
. 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
is

 c
o
n
tr

o
lli

n
g
 t
h
e
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 t
o
 t
h
e
 I
n
 

H
o
u
s
e
 H

o
m

e
c
a
re

 T
e
a
m

 a
n
d
 i
s
 c

o
n
tr

o
lli

n
g
 t
h
is

 b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
lo

s
e
ly

.A
 

d
o
w

n
w

a
rd

 t
re

n
d
 i
n
 a

c
tv

it
y
 i
s
 n

o
w

 e
v
id

e
n
t.

£
1
3
0
K

 i
s
 r

e
la

te
d
 t
o
 s

in
g
le

 s
ta

tu
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
. 
£
9
0
k
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

 c
o
s
ts

, 
£
4
0
k
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

n
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t.
 

Page 56



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 2
0

0
9

-1
0

 3
rd

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

L
a

te
s

t

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

F
o

re
c

a
s

t

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
A

D
U

L
T

S
, 

H
E

A
L

T
H

 &
 W

E
L

L
B

E
IN

G

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

C
o

m
m

e
n

t/
 R

is
k

 A
re

a
s

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
5

2
1

8
6

4
8

3
4

-3
0

In
c
o

m
e

-1
7

8
-5

1
3

-4
8

3
3

0

  
A

4
1

  
P

e
rs

o
n

a
li

s
a

ti
o

n
3

4
3

3
5

1
3

5
1

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
2

4
,4

2
8

2
4

,7
7

2
2

5
,0

1
9

2
4

7

In
c
o

m
e

-3
,3

4
3

-3
,6

9
3

-3
,9

2
4

-2
3

1

  
A

4
2

  
E

ld
e

rs
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
2

1
,0

8
5

2
1

,0
7

9
2

1
,0

9
5

1
6

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
2

3
,0

8
5

2
4

,1
8

9
2

4
,5

6
7

3
7

8

In
c
o

m
e

-3
,6

0
9

-4
,6

6
9

-4
,6

6
4

5

  
A

4
3

  
L

e
a

rn
in

g
 D

is
a

b
il

it
ie

s
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
1

9
,4

7
6

1
9

,5
2

0
1

9
,9

0
3

3
8

3

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

0
,0

5
9

1
0

,2
9

1
1

0
,3

4
5

5
4

In
c
o

m
e

-1
,6

1
7

-1
,8

5
3

-2
,2

4
4

-3
9

1

  
A

4
4

  
M

e
n

ta
l 

H
e

a
lt

h
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
8

,4
4

2
8

,4
3

8
8

,1
0

1
-3

3
7

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
7

,3
4

6
7

,6
9

3
7

,8
9

3
2

0
0

In
c
o

m
e

-9
3

3
-1

,2
8

3
-1

,3
3

1
-4

8

  
A

4
5

  
P

h
y

s
ic

a
l 

D
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

6
,4

1
3

6
,4

1
0

6
,5

6
2

1
5

2

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
2

6
0

2
6

0
2

3
8

-2
2

In
c
o

m
e

-1
5

1
-1

5
1

-1
5

1
0

  
A

4
6

  
H

IV
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
1

0
9

1
0

9
8

7
-2

2

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 i
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
  
e
x
p
e
n
s
iv

e
 

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 a

n
d
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
n
e
e
d
s
. 
A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
g
ra

n
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 f
u
n
d
 t
h
is

 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 

a
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 M

e
d
iu

m
 F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
.

T
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
u
ll 

y
e
a
r 

e
ff
e
c
t 
o
f 
p
re

v
io

u
s
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 c

a
re

 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 f
o
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 

c
o
m

p
le

x
 n

e
e
d
s
, 
c
o
m

b
in

e
d
 w

it
h
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 f
o
r 

h
o
m

e
c
a
re

 a
n
d
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 

b
e
in

g
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 i
n
 a

ll 
o
th

e
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
s
. 
O

v
e
ra

ll 
s
p
e
n
d
 

o
n
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 D

is
a
b
ili

ty
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
o
u
r 

c
o
m

p
a
ra

to
r 

lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
. 
T

h
e
 A

d
u
lt
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
T

e
a
m

 w
ill

 b
e
 s

e
e
k
in

g
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 f
ro

m
 a

ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 M

e
d
iu

m
 T

e
rm

 F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

T
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 d
u
e
 t
o
 r

is
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

 

a
n
d
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
c
lie

n
ts

 i
n
 H

o
m

e
 C

a
re

. 
T

h
e
 A

d
u
lt
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
T

e
a
m

 w
ill

 b
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 w

a
y
s
 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 

th
is

 b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
a
n
 b

e
 b

ro
u
g
h
t 
b
a
c
k
 i
n
to

 l
in

e

T
h
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 

b
e
in

g
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

N
H

S
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 c

a
re

. 

Page 57



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 2
0

0
9

-1
0

 3
rd

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

L
a

te
s

t

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

F
o

re
c

a
s

t

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
A

D
U

L
T

S
, 

H
E

A
L

T
H

 &
 W

E
L

L
B

E
IN

G

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

C
o

m
m

e
n

t/
 R

is
k

 A
re

a
s

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
3

7
,5

8
4

3
7

,5
7

0
3

7
,2

7
3

-2
9

7
T

h
e
 £

2
9
7
 G

ro
s
s
 E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
h
re

e
 m

a
in

 

fa
c
to

rs
.1

: 
A

n
 o

v
e
r 

s
p
e
n
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 E

m
p
lo

y
e
e
 R

e
la

te
d
 B

u
d
g
e
t 

H
e
a
d
 i
n
 c

o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
re

 b
e
in

g
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
£
5
0
0
k
 o

n
 

th
a
t 
B

u
d
g
e
t 
H

e
a
d
 a

n
d
 y

e
t 
th

e
 n

e
w

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
y
e
t 

b
e
e
n
 f
o
rm

a
lly

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 
2
: 
T

h
e
 o

v
e
r 

s
p
e
n
d
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 

P
re

m
is

e
s
 R

e
la

te
d
 B

u
d
g
e
t 
H

e
a
d
s
 a

re
 i
n
 c

o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
re

 

b
e
in

g
 m

o
re

 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 i
n
 t
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
n
 

o
ri
g
in

a
lly

 b
u
d
g
e
te

d
 f
o
r.

 3
: 
U

n
d
e
r 

s
p
e
n
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 S

u
p
p
lie

s
 a

n
d
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 B

u
d
g
e
t 
H

e
a
d
 i
n
 c

o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
re

 b
e
in

g
 a

 m
u
c
h
 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 P

ro
v
is

io
n
 f
o
r 

B
a
d
 D

e
b
ts

 B
u
d
g
e
t 

In
c
o

m
e

-3
6

,5
3

8
-3

6
,6

8
5

-3
6

,8
3

5
-1

5
0

T
h
e
 £

1
5
0
k
 G

ro
s
s
 I
n
c
o
m

e
 V

a
ri
a
n
c
e
 l
ik

e
w

is
e
 r

e
fl
e
c
ts

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n
ts

, 
w

it
h
 m

o
re

 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
n
g
 t
o
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
s
 t
h
a
n
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 b
u
d
g
e
te

d
 

fo
r.

 I
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 n

o
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
D

C
L
G

 G
ra

n
t 
F

u
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
£
4
2
5
k
, 
h
e
ld

 

in
 B

a
la

n
c
e
s
, 
re

la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

, 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

re
d
it
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 p

ro
p
e
r 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
s

  
A

4
9

  
H

o
m

e
le

s
s

 &
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 A

d
v

ic
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

1
,0

4
6

8
8

5
4

3
8

-4
4

7

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

6
,9

4
5

1
6

,9
4

5
1

6
,6

7
6

-2
6

9

T
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 

a
s
 a

 c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t
e
a
m

 r
e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 
m

a
te

rn
it
y
 c

o
v
e
r,

 a
n
d
 

n
e
w

 p
o
s
ts

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

n
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

m
a
in

 S
P

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 d

u
e
 t
o
 d

e
la

y
s
 i
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
s
ts

 

o
f 
o
n
-o

ff
 b

id
s
, 
h
e
n
c
e
 w

h
y
 t
h
e
 S

P
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 l
o
o
k
in

g
 a

t 
a
n
 

u
n
d
e
r-

s
p
e
n
d
 a

t 
y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
.

In
c
o

m
e

-1
6

,8
0

6
-1

6
,8

0
6

-1
6

,5
3

7
2

6
9

T
h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 i
s
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
G

ra
n
t 
re

la
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

s
lip

p
a
g
e
 i
n
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

.

  
A

5
0

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 P
e

o
p

le
1

3
9

1
3

9
1

3
9

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

7
3

1
7

2
1

7
2

0

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

  
A

5
3

  
S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 D

iv
is

io
n

 M
&

A
1

7
3

1
7

2
1

7
2

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
5

1
7

0
0

0

In
c
o

m
e

-1
1

1
0

0
0

  
A

5
4

  
P

o
li

c
y

 a
n

d
 P

la
n

n
in

g
4

0
6

0
0

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
3

9
2

4
2

2
4

2
2

0

In
c
o

m
e

0
  

A
5

5
  

Q
u

a
li

ty
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

3
9

2
4

2
2

4
2

2
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
3

8
8

3
8

8
3

8
8

0

In
c
o

m
e

0
  

A
5

6
  

A
d

u
lt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 I
T

3
8

8
3

8
8

3
8

8
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
3

9
0

0
0

0

In
c
o

m
e

-7
2

0
0

0
  

A
5

7
  

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
ro

je
c

ts
3

1
8

0
0

0

Page 58



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 2
0

0
9

-1
0

 3
rd

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

L
a

te
s

t

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

F
o

re
c

a
s

t

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
A

D
U

L
T

S
, 

H
E

A
L

T
H

 &
 W

E
L

L
B

E
IN

G

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

C
o

m
m

e
n

t/
 R

is
k

 A
re

a
s

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
5

5
9

4
8

9
4

8
9

0

In
c
o

m
e

-2
7

-1
-1

0
  

A
5

8
  

T
e

c
h

n
ic

a
l 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

5
3

2
4

8
8

4
8

8
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
5

7
2

5
6

2
5

6
2

0

In
c
o

m
e

0
  

A
5

9
  

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

5
7

2
5

6
2

5
6

2
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
4

9
7

8
9

0
8

9
0

0

In
c
o

m
e

-3
8

9
-3

8
9

0
  

A
6

1
  

B
u

s
 S

u
p

p
 &

 P
ro

g
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
4

9
7

5
0

1
5

0
1

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
4

7
4

4
8

0
4

4
0

-4
0

In
c
o

m
e

-1
1

1
-1

1
1

-1
1

1
0

  
A

6
2

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

 a
n

d
 P

o
li

c
y

3
6

3
3

6
9

3
2

9
-4

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
5

8
7

5
8

7
5

8
7

0

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

  
A

6
6

  
L

e
a

rn
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

5
8

7
5

8
7

5
8

7
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
2

6
2

6
2

0
-6

In
c
o

m
e

0
  

A
6

8
  

S
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t
2

6
2

6
2

0
-6

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

,1
3

2
1

,1
9

6
1

,1
9

6
0

In
c
o

m
e

-9
-3

9
-3

9
0

  
A

7
1

  
F

in
a

n
c

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
1

,1
2

3
1

,1
5

7
1

,1
5

7
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

6
1

2
9

2
9

0

In
c
o

m
e

0
  

A
7

2
  

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
h

o
rt

fa
ll

 C
o

n
ti

n
g

e
n

c
y

1
6

1
2

9
2

9
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
4

,2
7

2
4

,2
7

9
4

,2
7

9
0

In
c
o

m
e

0

  
A

9
0

  
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 H

o
ld

in
g

 A
c

c
o

u
n

t
4

,2
7

2
4

,2
7

9
4

,2
7

9
0

  
A

d
u

lt
s

' 
H

e
a

lt
h

 &
 W

e
ll

b
e

in
g

 T
o

ta
l

9
0

,8
9

7
8

9
,7

5
4

8
9

,7
5

4
0

Page 59



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 2
0

0
9

-1
0

 3
rd

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

L
a

te
s

t

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

F
o

re
c

a
s

t

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

£
'0

0
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
,2

3
9

5
,1

1
8

5
,1

1
8

0

In
c
o
m

e
-4

,1
0

5
-4

,9
6

3
-4

,9
6

3
0

  
G

0
2

  
P

re
-P

ri
m

a
ry

 E
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

1
3

4
1

5
5

1
5

5
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
1

9
,5

1
4

1
3

5
,1

6
5

1
3

5
,1

6
5

0

In
c
o
m

e
-1

1
5

,5
1

0
-1

2
8

,3
9

2
-1

2
8

,3
9

2
0

  
G

0
4

  
P

ri
m

a
ry

 E
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

4
,0

0
4

6
,7

7
3

6
,7

7
3

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
1

1
,8

5
5

1
2

0
,6

2
0

1
2

0
,6

2
0

0

In
c
o
m

e
-1

0
6

,5
1

7
-1

1
9

,7
3

3
-1

1
9

,7
3

3
0

  
G

0
6

  
S

e
c

o
n

d
a

ry
 E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
5

,3
3

8
8

8
7

8
8

7
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
1

,8
0

0
1

4
,4

2
1

1
4

,4
2

1
0

In
c
o
m

e
-1

1
,3

1
9

-1
3

,7
8

4
-1

3
,7

8
4

0

  
G

0
8

  
S

p
e

c
ia

l 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
4

8
1

6
3

7
6

3
7

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
2

8
8

9
3

9
9

3
1
0
0

In
c
o
m

e
-2

5
1

-3
1

5
-3

1
5

0

  
G

1
0

  
E

Y
C

L
 M

&
A

3
7

7
5

7
8

6
7

8
1

0
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
,2

1
5

6
,5

2
3

6
,5

2
3

0

In
c
o
m

e
-5

,6
9

9
-5

,9
1

4
-5

,9
1

4
0

  
G

1
1

  
E

a
rl

y
 Y

e
a

rs
5

1
6

6
0

9
6

0
9

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,7

6
5

3
,0

0
8

3
,0

6
8

6
0

In
c
o
m

e
-3

9
-3

9
-1

1
4

-7
5

  
G

1
2

  
L

o
c

a
l 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 D
a

y
 N

u
rs

e
ri

e
s

2
,7

2
6

2
,9

6
9

2
,9

5
4

-1
5

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
0

,5
1

0
1

1
,1

6
5

1
2

,8
5

3
1
,6

8
8

In
c
o
m

e
-1

0
,5

1
0

-1
0

,6
1

0
-1

2
,2

9
8

-1
,6

8
8

  
G

1
3

  
C

h
il

d
re

n
s

 C
e

n
tr

e
s

0
5

5
5

5
5

5
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
8

0
1

,1
5

4
1

,1
5

4
0

In
c
o
m

e
-2

8
-1

0
6

-1
0

6
0

  
G

1
4

  
S

c
h

o
o

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
ri

m
a

ry
5

5
2

1
,0

4
8

1
,0

4
8

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,1

6
1

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
-7

5
3

0
0

  
G

1
5

  
P

u
p

il
 &

 S
tu

d
e

n
t 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

1
,4

0
8

0
0

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

9
,4

9
9

1
0

,4
8

6
1

0
,6

0
0

1
1
4

In
c
o
m

e
-5

,2
2

7
-6

,3
2

2
-6

,3
2

2
0

  
G

1
6

  
S

p
e

c
ia

l 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
N

e
e

d
s

4
,2

7
2

4
,1

6
4

4
,2

7
8

1
1

4

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,2

8
3

4
,2

5
0

4
,2

5
0

0

In
c
o
m

e
-3

,2
3

0
-3

,6
4

4
-3

,6
4

4
0

  
G

1
7

  
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 F

o
r 

L
e

a
rn

in
g

 S
e

rv
ic

e
5

3
6

0
6

6
0

6
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,0

1
0

1
,6

4
1

1
,6

4
1

0

In
c
o
m

e
-3

2
2

-6
9

3
-6

9
3

0

  
G

1
8

  
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
P

s
y

c
h

o
lo

g
y

6
8

8
9

4
8

9
4

8
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,6

1
4

3
,1

1
9

3
,2

5
2

1
3
3

In
c
o
m

e
-1

7
4

-2
,2

8
8

-2
,4

1
8

-1
3
0

  
G

1
9

  
E

q
u

a
li

ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 P
a

re
n

ta
l 

E
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

1
,4

4
0

8
3

1
8

3
4

3

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 

S
C

H
O

O
L

S
 &

 F
A

M
IL

IE
S

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 /

 R
is

k
s

B
u

d
g

e
t 

p
re

s
s
u

re
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
 c

o
s
ts

 a
re

 

b
e

in
g

 c
o

n
ta

in
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 F

u
n

d
 g

ra
n

t,
 b

u
t 

it
 i
s
 

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
n

o
t 

a
ll 

o
f 

th
is

 p
re

s
s
u

re
 c

a
n

 b
e

 o
ff

s
e

t 
in

 t
h

is
 w

a
y
.

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 h

a
s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 S

u
re

 S
ta

rt
 g

ra
n

t 

a
n

d
 D

C
S

F
 C

h
ild

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

g
ra

n
t 

fu
n

d
in

g

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
v
a

ri
a

n
c
e

s
 a

ff
e

c
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 

D
e

d
ic

a
te

d
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 G

ra
n

t,
 b

u
t 

th
e

 o
n

ly
 o

n
e

 t
h

a
t 

a
ff

e
c
ts

 t
h

e
 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 
F

u
n

d
 i
s
 S

E
N

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 w
h

ic
h

 h
a

s
 a

 l
o

w
e

r 
fo

re
c
a

s
t 

o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 t

h
a

n
 C

R
B

M
2

 (
ie

 £
1

1
4

k
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 £
2

0
0

k
).

V
o

te
 c

lo
s
e

d
 a

n
d

 c
o

s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
 t

ra
n

s
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 o

th
e

r 
v
o

te
s

Page 60



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 2
0

0
9

-1
0

 3
rd

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

L
a

te
s

t

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

F
o

re
c

a
s

t

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

£
'0

0
0

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 

S
C

H
O

O
L

S
 &

 F
A

M
IL

IE
S

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 /

 R
is

k
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
7

2
2

0
6

2
0

6
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

  
G

2
0

  
S

c
h

o
o

ls
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e

 &
 I

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
1

7
2

2
0

6
2

0
6

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
5

8
2

8
3

2
8
3

0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

  
G

2
1

  
O

n
e

 O
'c

lo
c

k
 C

lu
b

s
2

5
8

2
8

3
2

8
3

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
4

1
4

3
5

-6

In
c
o
m

e
-3

8
-3

2
6

  
G

2
2

  
S

tu
d

e
n

t 
A

w
a

rd
s

4
0

3
4

0
3

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
5

1
0

0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0

  
G

2
5

  
Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p

le
 &

 L
e

a
rn

in
g

 M
&

A
1

5
1

0
0

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
2

8
1

,2
9

8
1

,3
6

7
6
9

In
c
o
m

e
-1

9
9

-3
0

4
-2

9
6

8

  
G

2
6

  
S

c
h

o
o

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

S
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

4
2

9
9

9
4

1
,0

7
1

7
7

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
4

4
,0

0
6

3
,6

1
8

-3
8
8

In
c
o
m

e
0

-2
,7

3
3

-2
,3

4
5

3
8
8

  
G

2
7

  
1

4
 -

 1
9

 Y
e

a
r 

O
ld

s
6

4
1

,2
7

3
1

,2
7

3
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

0
3

2
6

3
2
6

0

In
c
o
m

e
0

-1
0

6
-1

0
6

0

  
G

2
8

  
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
's

h
ip

0
2

2
0

2
2

0
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,9

8
1

4
,2

9
0

5
,1

8
5

8
9
5

In
c
o
m

e
-3

,9
8

1
-4

,3
6

7
-5

,2
6
2

-8
9
5

  
G

2
9

  
P

R
U

0
-7

7
-7

7
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

0
9

0
4

9
1
0

6

In
c
o
m

e
0

-9
0

4
-9

1
0

-6

  
G

3
0

 M
u

s
ic

/A
rt

s
 E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
0

0
0

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
9

6
4

3
7

4
4

5
8

In
c
o
m

e
-1

0
-1

0
-1

8
-8

  
G

3
3

  
E

-L
e

a
rn

in
g

3
8

6
4

2
7

4
2

7
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
0

0
2

0
0

0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

  
G

3
4

  
E

x
c

e
ll

e
n

c
e

 i
n

 C
it

ie
s

0
2

0
0

2
0

0
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
9

7
6

9
8

6
9

8
0

In
c
o
m

e
-1

8
6

-1
8

6
-1

8
6

0

  
G

3
7

  
Y

o
u

th
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 L
e

a
rn

in
g

 M
&

A
4

1
1

5
1

2
5

1
2

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,7

3
1

4
,6

5
8

4
,8

9
5

2
3
7

In
c
o
m

e
-3

,2
5

5
-3

,8
4

4
-3

,9
8
4

-1
4
0

  
G

3
8

  
L

if
e

lo
n

g
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
4

7
6

8
1

4
9

1
1

9
7

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

8
,0

1
6

9
,6

6
4

1
1

,0
7

6
1
,4

1
2

In
c
o
m

e
-7

2
1

-2
,4

6
4

-3
,8

7
6

-1
,4

1
2

  
G

3
9

  
Y

o
u

th
 &

 C
o

n
n

e
x

io
n

s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

7
,2

9
5

7
,2

0
0

7
,2

0
0

0

N
e

w
 v

o
te

V
o

te
 c

lo
s
e

d
 a

n
d

 c
o

s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
 t

ra
n

s
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 G

1
0

U
n

d
e

r-
s
p

e
n

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 v
a

c
a

n
t 

P
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
A

d
v
is

o
r 

p
o

s
ts

 p
lu

s
 n

o
n

-

fi
lli

n
g

 o
f 

p
o

s
ts

 p
e

n
d

in
g

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
; 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 l
a

te
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 

tw
o

 W
N

F
 p

ro
je

c
ts

, 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
e

-p
ro

fi
le

d
 i
n

to
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
. 

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
S

p
e

c
ia

l 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
N

e
e

d
s
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 p

lu
s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 

D
S

G

In
c
re

a
s
e

d
 c

o
s
ts

 d
u

e
 t

o
 d

e
la

y
 i
n

 r
e

s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n

g
 p

lu
s
 O

F
S

T
E

D
 

in
s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
; 

m
it
ig

a
te

d
 i
n

 p
a

rt
 b

y
 a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 f
e

e
s
 a

n
d

 c
h

a
rg

e
s

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
g

ra
n

t 
fr

o
m

: 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

A
g

e
n

c
y
, 

P
e

e
r 

W
o

rk
, 

V
ta

le
n

t,
 C

O
O

L
, 

Y
o

u
th

 E
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 &

 Y
o

u
th

 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

Page 61



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 2
0

0
9

-1
0

 3
rd

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

L
a

te
s

t

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

F
o

re
c

a
s

t

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

£
'0

0
0

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 

S
C

H
O

O
L

S
 &

 F
A

M
IL

IE
S

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 /

 R
is

k
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,1

9
2

1
,4

5
9

1
,4

9
3

3
4

In
c
o
m

e
-2

6
3

-2
0

3
-2

3
7

-3
4

  
G

4
0

  
J

u
n

io
r 

Y
o

u
th

 S
e

rv
ic

e
9

2
9

1
,2

5
6

1
,2

5
6

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
4

8
4

5
7

4
3

4
-2

3

In
c
o
m

e
0

-3
0

3
-2

8
1

2
2

  
G

4
1

  
H

e
a

lt
h

 T
h

ro
u

g
h

 E
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

1
4

8
1

5
4

1
5

3
-1

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

7
6

1
1

,0
5

7
1

,0
5

7
0

In
c
o
m

e
-1

4
-1

4
-1

4
0

  
G

4
2

  
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g

e
s

 T
e

a
m

7
4

7
1

,0
4

3
1

,0
4

3
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
0

2
4

6
2

4
4

-2

In
c
o
m

e
-5

6
-5

3
3

  
G

4
3

  
O

u
t-

o
f-

h
o

u
rs

 L
e

a
rn

in
g

 &
 S

tu
d

y
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
6

0
1

9
0

1
9

1
1

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,3

1
8

1
,4

6
2

1
,5

2
5

6
3

In
c
o
m

e
-6

0
-6

0
-1

2
3

-6
3

  
G

4
4

  
E

x
te

n
d

e
d

 S
c

h
o

o
ls

1
,2

5
8

1
,4

0
2

1
,4

0
2

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
2

0
4

2
0

0

In
c
o
m

e
-1

2
0

-1
2

0
0

  
G

4
5

  
P

la
y

0
3

0
0

3
0

0
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

9
3

3
9

4
2

9
4

2
0

In
c
o
m

e
-9

3
3

-9
3

4
-9

3
4

0

  
G

4
6

  
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

re
m

is
e

s
0

8
8

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
6

3
3

9
0

5
0

7
1
1
7

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

  
G

4
9

  
C

h
il

d
re

n
s

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 M
&

A
2

6
3

3
9

0
5

0
7

1
1

7

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,9

8
2

2
,1

9
1

2
,3

7
3

1
8
2

In
c
o
m

e
-6

3
-6

3
-6

3
0

  
G

5
0

  
C

h
il

d
 P

ro
te

c
ti

o
n

 &
 R

e
v

ie
w

in
g

1
,9

1
9

2
,1

2
8

2
,3

1
0

1
8

2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
5

1
7

3
5

7
5

6
2
1

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

  
G

5
1

  
C

h
il

d
re

n
s

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 :
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
6

5
1

7
3

5
7

5
6

2
1

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,5

1
5

1
,7

0
4

1
,8

0
1

9
7

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

T
h

is
 v

a
ri
a

n
c
e

 a
ri
s
e

s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 t
o

 

th
e

 p
a

y
 s

c
a

le
s
 f

o
r 

s
o

c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

, 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
d

 n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 

c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

 a
t 

th
e

 t
im

e
 t

h
a

t 
o

th
e

r 
C

h
ild

re
n

's
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 v
o

te
s
 

w
e

re
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

ir
 s

a
la

ri
e

s
' p

o
s
it
io

n
.

T
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 o

v
e

r-
s
p

e
n

d
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 £

4
5

,0
0

0
 r

e
-g

ra
d

in
g

 c
o

s
ts

1
) 

F
o

llo
w

in
g

 t
h

e
 d

e
a

th
 o

f 
b

a
b

y
 P

e
te

r 
in

 H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

s
u

b
s
e

q
u

e
n

t 
re

v
ie

w
 b

y
 L

o
rd

 L
a

m
in

g
 t

h
e

re
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 

ri
s
e

 i
n

 c
h

ild
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 r

e
s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 a

n
d

 c
h

ild
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
. 

In
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 m
e

e
t 

th
e

s
e

 c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
s
 a

n
d

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
s
ta

u
to

ry
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 

fu
lly

 m
e

t,
 i
t 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 t

o
 r

e
c
ru

it
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
c
h

ild
 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 a

n
d

 a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
v
e

 s
ta

ff
.

2
) 

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

  
s
h

o
rt

fa
ll 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 a
c
tu

a
l 
s
a

la
ry

 c
o

s
ts

 a
n

d
 s

a
la

ry
 

b
a

s
e

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

fo
r 

p
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 

s
ta

ff
 -

 7
4

k
. 

A
ll 

s
ta

ff
 a

re
 a

t 
th

e
 t

o
p

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 s

a
la

ry
 s

c
a

le
 -

  
A

s
 a

 q
u

a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 f

o
r 

c
h

ild
 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

  
n

e
e

d
 i
t 

is
 e

s
s
e

n
ti
a

l 
th

a
t 

th
e

 s
ta

ff
 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

d
 a

re
 v

e
ry

 e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 a

re
a

 o
f 

w
o

rk
.

3
) 

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
a

g
e

n
c
y
 c

h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 c

o
o

rd
in

a
to

r 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

d
 s

in
c
e

 C
R

B
M

2
 (

c
o

s
ts

 j
u

s
t 

o
v
e

r 
£

2
8

K
) 

a
n

d
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
s
s
io

n
a

l 
IR

O
s
 c

o
v
e

ri
n

g
 v

e
ry

 y
o

u
n

g
 c

h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 

a
d

o
le

s
c
e

n
ts

.

Page 62



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 2
0

0
9

-1
0

 3
rd

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

L
a

te
s

t

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

F
o

re
c

a
s

t

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

£
'0

0
0

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 

S
C

H
O

O
L

S
 &

 F
A

M
IL

IE
S

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 /

 R
is

k
s

  
G

5
2

  
C

h
il

d
re

n
s

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 :
 R

e
s

id
e

n
t

1
,5

1
5

1
,7

0
4

1
,8

0
1

9
7

Page 63



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 2
0

0
9

-1
0

 3
rd

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

L
a

te
s

t

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

F
o

re
c

a
s

t

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

£
'0

0
0

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 

S
C

H
O

O
L

S
 &

 F
A

M
IL

IE
S

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 /

 R
is

k
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,4

8
0

2
,7

4
9

2
,7

4
5

-4

In
c
o
m

e
-3

1
-3

1
-6

8
-3

7

  
G

5
3

  
C

h
il

d
re

n
s

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 :
 F

a
m

il
y

 
2

,4
4

9
2

,7
1

8
2

,6
7

7
-4

1

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
8

,0
3

2
1

8
,1

9
5

1
8
,0

9
4

-1
0
1

In
c
o
m

e
-6

1
6

-4
4

1
-4

4
1

0

  
G

5
4

  
C

h
il

d
re

n
s

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 :
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
1

7
,4

1
6

1
7

,7
5

4
1

7
,6

5
3

-1
0

1

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,2

3
6

2
,4

3
0

2
,4

1
3

-1
7

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
-1

0
-1

0

  
G

5
5

  
C

h
il

d
re

n
 L

o
o

k
e

d
 A

ft
e

r
2

,2
3

6
2

,4
3

0
2

,4
0

3
-2

7

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,5

3
3

2
,7

7
0

2
,6

1
0

-1
6
0

In
c
o
m

e
-1

6
9

-1
6

9
-8

2
8
7

  
G

5
6

  
L

e
a

v
in

g
 C

a
re

2
,3

6
4

2
,6

0
1

2
,5

2
8

-7
3

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
,8

3
7

8
,3

4
3

9
,4

6
6

1
,1

2
3

In
c
o
m

e
-1

2
-4

5
9

-9
5

6
-4

9
7

  
G

5
7

  
F

ie
ld

w
o

rk
6

,8
2

5
7

,8
8

4
8

,5
1

0
6

2
6

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,5

7
3

2
,8

0
4

2
,8

0
4

0

In
c
o
m

e
-2

1
1

-3
6

9
-3

6
9

0

  
G

5
8

  
In

te
g

ra
te

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 f

o
r 

C
W

D
2

,3
6

2
2

,4
3

5
2

,4
3

5
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
1

3
3

4
3

4
6

3
1
2
0

In
c
o
m

e
-4

4
-4

4
-4

4
0

  
G

5
9

  
E

m
e

rg
e

n
c

y
 D

u
ty

 T
e

a
m

2
6

9
2

9
9

4
1

9
1

2
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,5

4
7

2
,9

4
2

2
,5

4
8

-3
9
4

In
c
o
m

e
-8

6
4

-1
,6

9
9

-1
,3

0
2

3
9
7

  
G

6
0

  
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
e

n
d

in
g

 S
e

rv
ic

e
6

8
3

1
,2

4
3

1
,2

4
6

3

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,6

2
3

1
,7

2
5

1
,7

4
3

1
8

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0

  
G

6
1

  
C

h
il

d
re

n
-M

e
n

ta
l 

H
e

a
lt

h
 (

C
A

M
H

S
)

1
,6

2
3

1
,7

2
5

1
,7

4
3

1
8

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,7

6
2

1
,7

6
4

2

In
c
o
m

e
-5

0
9

-5
1

1
-2

  
G

6
2

  
A

tt
e

n
d

a
n

c
e

 &
 W

e
lf

a
re

 S
e

rv
ic

e
1

,2
5

3
1

,2
5

3
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
6

4
3

4
1

4
3

6
9
5

In
c
o
m

e
-4

0
-5

0
-5

5
-5

  
G

6
5

  
S

P
P

 M
&

A
5

2
4

2
9

1
3

8
1

9
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,8

9
1

2
,5

9
1

2
,5

9
1

0

In
c
o
m

e
-3

4
-4

9
-4

9
0

  
G

6
7

  
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
1

,8
5

7
2

,5
4

2
2

,5
4

2
0

T
h

e
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
is

 l
a

rg
e

 a
n

d
 v

o
la

ti
le

, 
a

n
d

 

u
n

p
re

d
ic

ta
b

le
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 i
n

 d
e

m
a

n
d

 f
o

r 
h

ig
h

 c
o

s
t 

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 c
a

n
 

re
s
u

lt
 i
n

 m
a

te
ri
a

l 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 

o
u

t 
–

tu
rn

. 
T

h
e

 

u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 o

f 
£

1
0

1
k
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ts

 a
n

 a
d

v
e

rs
e

 m
o

v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

£
4

8
k
, 

b
u

t 
th

is
 m

a
s
k
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 h
ig

h
 c

o
s
t 

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

, 
o

ff
s
e

t 
b

y
 a

 r
e

a
lig

n
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
o

c
ia

l 

c
a

re
 c

o
s
ts

 o
f 

jo
in

t 
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

, 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 s

e
e

n
 a

 m
o

v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

c
£

4
0

0
k
 o

f 
c
o

s
t 

to
 t

h
e

 D
e

d
ic

a
te

d
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 G

ra
n

t.

T
h

e
re

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

d
 r

is
e

 i
n

 d
e

m
a

n
d

 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

 w
h

ic
h

 

h
a

s
 n

e
c
e

s
s
it
a

te
d

 e
m

p
lo

y
in

g
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
a

g
e

n
c
y
 s

ta
ff

. 
A

 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
c
a

m
p

a
ig

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 l
a

u
n

c
h

e
d

 t
o

 a
p

p
o

in
t 

p
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 

s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 I

n
te

g
ra

te
d

 P
a

th
w

a
y
s
 a

n
d

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 

T
e

a
m

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
, 

m
a

n
a

g
in

g
 w

o
rk

fl
o

w
 i
n

 a
 m

u
lt
i 

a
g

e
n

c
y
 c

o
n

te
x
t 

a
n

d
 h

a
s
 d

iv
e

rt
e

d
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
c
a

s
e

s
 

th
u

s
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

re
s
s
u

re
 o

n
 t

h
e

 F
ie

ld
w

o
rk

 T
e

a
m

 

P
ri
n

c
ip

a
lly

 r
e

la
te

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 c
o

s
t 

o
f 

a
 s

ta
ff

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
 f

o
r 

th
e

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
.

N
e

w
 v

o
te

Page 64



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 2
0

0
9

-1
0

 3
rd

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

L
a

te
s

t

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

F
o

re
c

a
s

t

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

£
'0

0
0

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 

S
C

H
O

O
L

S
 &

 F
A

M
IL

IE
S

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 /

 R
is

k
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
3

,7
1

4
3

3
,7

4
5

3
3

,7
4

5
0

In
c
o
m

e
-3

1
,5

9
9

-3
4

,4
3

6
-3

4
,4

3
6

0

  
G

6
8

  
E

x
te

rn
a

l 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 &

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

2
,1

1
5

-6
9

1
-6

9
1

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
2

6
4

3
1

4
3

1
0

In
c
o
m

e
-4

0
-2

6
0

-2
6

0
0

  
G

6
9

  
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

s
8

6
1

7
1

1
7

1
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
3

0
6

2
2

6
1
8

-4

In
c
o
m

e
-1

5
5

-1
9

7
-2

4
3

-4
6

  
G

7
0

  
C

IS
7

5
4

2
5

3
7

5
-5

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,0

6
6

8
7

0
8

4
0

-3
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0

  
G

7
1

  
S

tr
a

te
g

y
1

,0
6

6
8

7
0

8
4

0
-3

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
6

0
4

7
7

4
5

2
-2

5

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0

  
G

7
2

  
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

2
6

0
4

7
7

4
5

2
-2

5

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

0
0

0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

  
G

7
3

  
Q

u
a

li
ty

 A
u

d
it

 &
 P

ro
je

c
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

0
0

0
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

0
9

6
1

9
6
1

0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0

  
G

7
4

  
E

q
u

a
li

ti
e

s
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
0

9
6

1
9

6
1

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
8

7
7

4
4

7
4

4
0

In
c
o
m

e
-3

7
9

-3
7

9
-3

7
9

0

  
G

7
5

  
IT

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

3
0

8
3

6
5

3
6

5
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
6

6
2

8
8

3
0

6
1
8

In
c
o
m

e
-2

6
-2

9
-4

7
-1

8

  
G

7
9

  
C

h
il

d
re

n
s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 M
&

A
2

4
0

2
5

9
2

5
9

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
2

3
4

7
9

-4
4

In
c
o
m

e
-4

1
5

-4
3

5
-2

0

  
G

7
8

  
P

u
p

il
 A

d
m

is
s

io
n

s
 &

 E
x

c
lu

s
io

n
s

1
0

8
4

4
-6

4

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
3

8
5

7
8

5
7

8
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0

  
G

8
0

  
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 &
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
4

3
8

5
7

8
5

7
8

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,0

8
9

1
,1

8
0

1
,1

8
3

3

In
c
o
m

e
-4

6
7

-4
7

0
-4

7
0

0

  
G

8
1

  
B

u
il

d
in

g
 D

e
v

 &
 T

e
c

h
 S

e
rv

ic
e

6
2

2
7

1
0

7
1

3
3

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
1

,4
4

4
1

,9
6

9
1

,9
9

8
2
9

In
c
o
m

e
-1

,1
7

1
-1

5
0

-1
5

8
-8

  
G

8
2

  
C

h
il

d
re

n
s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

  
F

in
a

n
c

e
1

0
,2

7
3

1
,8

1
9

1
,8

4
0

2
1

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,7

1
8

1
,5

9
0

1
,5

9
0

0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0

  
G

8
3

  
C

h
il

d
re

n
s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

  
H

R
1

,7
1

8
1

,5
9

0
1

,5
9

0
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
0

5
0

1
2

-3
8

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0

  
G

8
4

  
T

e
a

c
h

e
r 

R
e

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t
5

0
5

0
1

2
-3

8

V
o

te
 c

lo
s
e

d

Page 65



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 2
0

0
9

-1
0

 3
rd

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

L
a

te
s

t

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

F
o

re
c

a
s

t

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

£
'0

0
0

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 

S
C

H
O

O
L

S
 &

 F
A

M
IL

IE
S

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 /

 R
is

k
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
6

6
0

0

In
c
o
m

e
-6

4
0

0

  
G

8
5

  
L

e
a

rn
in

g
 &

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

6
0

2
0

0
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

7
9

3
9

1
1

1
,2

6
7

3
5
6

In
c
o
m

e
-4

2
4

-4
2

4
-9

3
5

-5
1
1

  
G

8
6

  
P

D
C

3
6

9
4

8
7

3
3

2
-1

5
5

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

8
4

9
1

,1
8

7
1

,3
0

7
1
2
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

-5
5

0
-5

5
0

0

  
G

8
9

  
B

u
il

d
in

g
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 f

o
r 

th
e

 F
u

tu
re

8
4

9
6

3
7

7
5

7
1

2
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

0
0

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0

  
G

9
1

 H
o

ld
in

g
 a

c
c

o
u

n
ts

0
0

0
0

  
T

o
ta

l
9

6
,8

0
0

9
4

,5
1

6
9

5
,7

0
6

1
,1

9
0

  
A

d
d

: 
T

ra
d

in
g

 A
c

c
o

u
n

ts
 (

S
e

e
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 3
)

0
0

0
0

  
C

h
il

d
re

n
, 

S
c

h
o

o
ls

 a
n

d
 F

a
m

il
ie

s
 T

o
ta

l
9

6
,8

0
0

9
4

,5
1

6
9

5
,7

0
6

1
,1

9
0

S
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

le
g

a
l 
a

n
d

 t
e

c
h

n
ic

a
l 
a

d
v
ic

e
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 t
h

e
 i
n

te
rf

a
c
e

 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 B
S

F
 a

n
d

 P
F

I 
fo

r 
5

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
, 

p
lu

s
 c

o
s
ts

 i
n

c
u

rr
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 

P
F

I 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r 
in

 e
n

g
a

g
in

g
 w

it
h

 t
h

is
 i
s
s
u

e
. 

 T
h

e
s
e

 c
o

s
ts

 a
re

 

b
e

y
o

n
d

 t
h

e
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 s

p
e

n
d

in
g

 f
o

r 
B

S
F

 f
o

r 
2

0
0

9
/1

0
 a

n
d

 r
e

la
te

 t
o

 

ri
s
k
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 f
la

g
g

e
d

 u
p

 t
o

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

p
ri
o

r 
to

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 

y
e

a
r.

  
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
re

 p
re

p
a

ri
n

g
 a

 p
a

p
e

r 
th

a
t 

a
tt

e
m

p
ts

 t
o

 q
u

a
n

ti
fy

 

th
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fu

tu
re

 c
o

s
t 

o
f 

th
is

 i
s
s
u

e
.

V
o

te
 t

ra
n

s
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 f

ro
m

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 t

ra
d

in
g

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
, 

le
a

d
in

g
 t

o
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a

n
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 n

e
t 

in
c
o

m
e

 o
f 

c
ir
c
a

 £
1

5
5

,0
0

0

Page 66



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 2
0
0
9
-1

0
 3

rd
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

L
a
te

s
t

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

F
o

re
c
a
s
t

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,7

0
2

2
,5

2
1

2
,5

2
1

0

In
c
o
m

e
-1

,7
0
2

-2
,5

2
1

-2
,5

2
1

0

  
E

0
1
  
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
&

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

0
0

0
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
8
6

6
9
5

6
9
5

0

In
c
o
m

e
-5

8
6

-5
7
5

-5
7
5

0

  
E

1
0
  
S

tr
e
e
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
&

 A
d

m
in

0
1
2
0

1
2
0

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
0
,5

6
3

3
0
,6

1
8

3
0
,6

1
8

0

In
c
o
m

e
-5

,0
3
4

-5
,0

3
5

-5
,0

3
5

0

  
E

1
1
  
W

a
s
te

 &
 C

le
a
n

s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
5
,5

2
9

2
5
,5

8
3

2
5
,5

8
3

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
1
,8

4
9

1
1
,8

9
2

1
1
,8

9
2

0

In
c
o
m

e
-2

,0
8
0

-2
,1

3
0

-2
,1

3
0

0

  
E

1
2
  
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

a
ti

o
n

 &
 H

ig
h

w
a
y
s

9
,7

6
9

9
,7

6
2

9
,7

6
2

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,7

2
1

1
,7

0
4

1
,7

0
4

0

In
c
o
m

e
-1

,7
2
1

-1
,6

9
0

-1
,6

9
0

0

  
E

1
4
  
L

o
c
a
l 
E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a
m

s
0

1
4

1
4

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
2
5

1
2
3

1
2
3

0

In
c
o
m

e
-1

2
5

-1
2
2

-1
2
2

0

  
E

2
0
  
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r

0
1

1
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,4

6
9

2
,6

1
6

2
,6

1
6

0

In
c
o
m

e
-8

8
4

-1
,0

7
6

-1
,0

7
6

0

  
E

2
1
  
T

ra
d

in
g

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
1
,5

8
5

1
,5

4
0

1
,5

4
0

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
,3

4
3

7
,0

3
3

7
,0

3
3

0

In
c
o
m

e
-1

,2
6
6

-1
,6

2
2

-1
,6

2
2

0

  
E

2
2
  
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a
lt

h
5
,0

7
7

5
,4

1
1

5
,4

1
1

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
,1

0
7

5
,1

1
2

4
,5

1
2

-6
0
0

In
c
o
m

e
-3

-3
-3

0

  
E

2
3
  
C

o
n

c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 F
a
re

s
5
,1

0
4

5
,1

0
9

4
,5

0
9

-6
0
0

1
0
,4

6
7

1
0
,4

6
7

1
0
,4

6
7

0

-1
0
,4

6
7

-1
0
,4

6
7

-1
0
,4

6
7

0

  
E

2
4
  
P

a
rk

in
g

 C
o

n
tr

o
l

0
0

0
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

8
4
7

8
7
3

8
7
3

0

In
c
o
m

e
-4

4
0

-4
2
6

-4
2
6

0

  
E

3
6
  
H

e
a
lt

h
 &

 S
a
fe

ty
4
0
7

4
4
7

4
4
7

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
9
4

2
7
6

2
7
6

0

In
c
o
m

e
-3

9
4

-2
7
3

-2
7
3

0

  
E

4
0
  
D

iv
is

io
n

a
l 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
0

3
3

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
0
,1

0
9

9
,8

8
0

9
,8

8
0

0

In
c
o
m

e
-1

,6
3
0

-1
,6

3
0

-1
,6

3
0

0

  
E

4
1
  
Id

e
a
 S

to
re

s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
8
,4

7
9

8
,2

5
0

8
,2

5
0

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
,0

5
3

5
,3

9
3

5
,3

9
3

0

In
c
o
m

e
-2

3
3

-7
3
0

-7
3
0

0

  
E

4
2
  
S

p
o

rt
s
 &

 P
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
A

c
ti

v
it

y
4
,8

2
0

4
,6

6
3

4
,6

6
3

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
,6

7
7

6
,9

0
7

6
,9

0
7

0

In
c
o
m

e
-8

2
9

-8
7
2

-8
7
2

0

  
E

4
3
  
P

a
rk

s
 &

 O
p

e
n

 S
p

a
c
e
s

5
,8

4
8

6
,0

3
5

6
,0

3
5

0

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
IE

S
, 
L

O
C

A
L

IT
IE

S
 &

 C
U

L
T

U
R

E

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

T
h
is

 u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
fi
n
a
l 
c
la

ri
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

b
e
in

g
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 

C
o
n
c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 F
a
re

s
 t
o
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 w

ill
 

n
o
w

 n
o
t 
ta

k
e
 p

la
c
e
 u

n
ti
l 
2
0
1
0
/1

1

C
o

m
m

e
n

t/
 R

is
k
 A

re
a
s

.

Page 67



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 2
0
0
9
-1

0
 3

rd
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

L
a
te

s
t

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

F
o

re
c
a
s
t

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
IE

S
, 
L

O
C

A
L

IT
IE

S
 &

 C
U

L
T

U
R

E

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

C
o

m
m

e
n

t/
 R

is
k
 A

re
a
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,9

2
3

2
,3

3
2

2
,3

3
2

0

In
c
o
m

e
-3

9
2

-8
2
0

-8
2
0

0

  
E

4
4
  
A

rt
s
 &

 E
v
e
n

ts
1
,5

3
1

1
,5

1
2

1
,5

1
2

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

8
4
0

8
4
0

8
4
0

0

In
c
o
m

e
-8

4
0

-8
4
0

-7
7
0

7
0

  
E

4
5
  
M

il
e
 E

n
d

 P
a
rk

0
0

7
0

7
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
5
0

1
5
4

1
5
4

0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0

  
E

5
1
  
H

e
a
d

 o
f 

C
ri

m
e
 R

e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

1
5
0

1
5
4

1
5
4

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,1

3
9

3
,0

3
6

3
,0

3
6

0

In
c
o
m

e
-1

8
9

-8
4
1

-8
4
1

0

  
E

5
3
  
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

1
,9

5
0

2
,1

9
5

2
,1

9
5

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,9

4
6

2
,1

5
1

2
,1

5
1

0

In
c
o
m

e
-8

0
0

-8
0
0

-8
0
0

0

  
E

5
4
  
O

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
s

1
,1

4
6

1
,3

5
1

1
,3

5
1

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

9
0
3

9
1
7

9
1
7

0

In
c
o
m

e
-7

7
-9

7
-9

7
0

  
E

5
5
  
P

o
li
c
y
 &

 V
ic

ti
m

s
8
2
6

8
2
0

8
2
0

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,4

5
0

3
,8

7
3

3
,3

4
6

-5
2
7

In
c
o
m

e
-2

,1
5
1

-2
,1

5
6

-1
,9

2
9

2
2
7

  
E

5
6
  
D

ru
g

s
 A

c
ti

o
n

 T
e
a

m
1
,2

9
9

1
,7

1
7

1
,4

1
7

-3
0
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,4

7
6

2
,4

6
8

2
,4

6
8

0

In
c
o
m

e
-1

,8
9
2

-1
,8

9
2

-1
,8

9
2

0

  
E

6
1
  
P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 &
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
5
8
4

5
7
6

5
7
6

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0

  
E

6
2
  
W

o
rk

in
g

 N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
 F

u
n

d
0

0
0

0

  
T

o
ta

l
7
4
,1

0
4

7
5
,2

6
3

7
4
,4

3
3

-8
3
0

  
A

d
d

: 
T

ra
d

in
g

 A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 (

S
e
e
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 3
)

0
0

0
0

  
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s
, 
L

o
c
a
li
ti

e
s
 &

 C
u

lt
u

re
 T

o
ta

l
7
4
,1

0
4

7
5
,2

6
3

7
4
,4

3
3

-8
3
0

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r

e
n
ta

l 
in

c
o
m

e
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 f
ro

m
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 

d
o
w

n
tu

rn

T
h
is

 v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
d
e
la

y
s
 i
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t,
 f
o
r 

L
A

P
 p

ro
je

c
ts

, 
fu

n
d
e
d
 v

ia
 A

B
G

. 

G
ra

n
t 
fu

n
d
in

g
 w

ill
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 i
n
to

 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 f
o
r 

th
e
s
e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

Page 68



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 2
0

0
9

-1
0

 3
rd

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 2

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

L
a

te
s

t

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

F
o

re
c

a
s

t

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
2

,7
2

8
4

,1
5

6
4

,3
7

4
2

1
9

In
c
o

m
e

-9
1

8
-1

,9
5

1
-2

,0
4

3
-9

2

  
J

0
4

  
M

a
jo

r 
P

ro
je

c
t 

&
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
1

,8
1

0
2

,2
0

5
2

,3
3

2
1

2
6

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
2

,7
3

1
3

,1
5

9
3

,1
6

4
5

In
c
o

m
e

-2
,2

4
0

-2
,6

2
1

-3
,0

7
6

-4
5

5

  
J

0
6

  
D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
D

e
c

is
io

n
s

4
9

1
5

3
8

8
8

-4
4

9

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
2

,6
7

0
1

,8
3

8
2

,1
1

1
2

7
3

In
c
o

m
e

-1
,1

2
8

-1
,7

8
8

-2
,0

5
1

-2
6

3
  

J
0

8
  

E
x

te
rn

a
l 

P
ro

je
c

t 
F

u
n

d
in

g
1

,5
4

2
5

0
6

0
1

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
6

6
0

0
0

0

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

0
  

J
1

0
  

M
a

tc
h

 F
u

n
d

in
g

6
6

0
0

0
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

,9
4

1
2

,7
1

1
2

,7
3

8
2

7

In
c
o

m
e

-3
9

1
-1

,2
4

8
-1

,2
7

8
-3

0
  

J
1

2
  

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

1
,5

5
0

1
,4

6
3

1
,4

6
0

-3

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
5

,6
0

2
3

,1
2

3
3

,2
1

4
9

1

In
c
o

m
e

-1
1

6
-9

0
-9

0
0

  
J

1
4

  
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
&

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

5
,4

8
6

3
,0

3
3

3
,1

2
4

9
1

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
2

,2
1

1
2

,2
1

1
2

,6
9

7
4

8
6

In
c
o

m
e

-6
0

5
-7

0
4

-1
,2

0
7

-5
0

2
  

J
1

6
 A

s
s

e
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

1
,6

0
6

1
,5

0
7

1
,4

9
1

-1
6

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
6

6
0

1
,2

0
4

1
,1

2
1

-8
3

In
c
o

m
e

-2
8

4
-2

0
2

8
2

  
J

1
8

  
O

ly
m

p
ic

s
6

6
0

9
2

0
9

1
8

-2

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
6

,8
4

5
4

,1
6

6
4

,2
2

1
5

5

In
c
o

m
e

-2
,9

4
8

-1
,7

5
1

-1
,8

3
4

-8
3

  
J

2
0

  
R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 S

u
s

ta
in

a
b

il
it

y
3

,8
9

7
2

,4
1

5
2

,3
8

7
-2

8

T
h
e
s
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 n

o
n
-r

e
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
c
o
s
ts

 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 n

e
e
d
 f
o
r 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 w
id

e
 a

d
m

in
s
tr

a
ti
v
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 

fu
n
d
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 i
n
 o

th
e
r 

a
re

a
s
 o

f 
th

e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

. 
T

h
e
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 c

o
s
ts

 a
re

 n
o
t 
e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 i
n
to

 2
0
1
0
/2

0
1
1
.

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 &

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L
C

o
m

m
e

n
t/

 R
is

k
 A

re
a

s

T
h
e
 v

a
ri
a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t
h
is

 b
u
d
g
e
t 
is

 d
u
e
 t
o
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 b
e
in

g
 

in
c
u
rr

e
d
 o

n
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 p

re
d
o
m

in
a
n
tl
y
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1

0
6
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 a

re
 a

ll 
o
n
e
 o

ff
 a

n
d
 d

o
 n

o
t 
h
a
v
e
 a

n
y
 l
o
n
g
 

te
rm

 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
.

R
is

k
: 
 T

h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 b
u
d
g
e
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
s
 a

 h
ig

h
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
in

c
o
m

e
 f
ro

m
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
fe

e
s
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 a

re
 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
to

 d
e
c
lin

e
 a

s
 a

  
d
ir
e
c
t 

c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 d

o
w

n
tu

rn
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 m

a
rk

e
t.
 C

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 f
e
e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 i
s
 

h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 b

u
d
g
e
te

d
 l
e
v
e
ls

 f
o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 i
t 
m

u
s
t 
b
e
 

s
tr

e
s
s
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 o

n
e
-o

ff
 l
a
rg

e
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 b

e
in

g
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
, 
s
u
c
h
 a

s
 W

o
o
d
 W

h
a
rf

, 
S

o
u
th

 Q
u
a
y
 S

q
u
a
re

 a
n
d
 L

im
e
 

H
a
rb

o
u
r.

 T
h
e
re

 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

a
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 
ri
s
k
 w

it
h
 r

e
g
a
rd

s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

in
c
o
m

e
 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
to

 b
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 i
n
 f
u
tu

re
 y

e
a
rs

 a
s
 i
t 
is

 n
o
t 
e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
fe

e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
9
/2

0
1
0
  
w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p
lic

a
te

d
 i
n
 

fu
tu

re

Page 69



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 2
0

0
9

-1
0

 3
rd

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 2

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

L
a

te
s

t

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

F
o

re
c

a
s

t

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 &

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L
C

o
m

m
e

n
t/

 R
is

k
 A

re
a

s

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
0

3
6

8
4

0
3

3
5

In
c
o

m
e

0
-4

5
0

-3
0

4
1

4
6

  
J

2
2

  
H

o
u

s
in

g
 R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
0

-8
2

9
9

1
8

1

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
0

5
,2

9
3

4
,2

7
6

-1
,0

1
7

In
c
o

m
e

0
-4

,7
4

1
-3

,6
3

5
1

,1
0

7

  
J

2
4

  
E

m
p

lo
y

m
e

n
t 

&
 E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e

0
5

5
2

6
4

1
9

0

  
T

o
ta

l
1

7
,7

0
2

1
2

,6
0

1
1

2
,6

0
0

0

  
A

d
d

: 
T

ra
d

in
g

 A
c

c
o

u
n

ts
 (

S
e

e
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 3
)

1
7

1
1

7
1

  
D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
&

 R
e

n
e

w
a

l 
T

o
ta

l
1

7
,7

0
2

1
2

,6
0

1
1

2
,7

7
1

1
7

1

R
is

k
: 
 T

h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 t
e
a
m

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 h

is
to

ri
c
a
lly

 f
u
n
d
e
d
 

fr
o
m

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 
T

h
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

f 
th

e
 t
e
a
m

 i
s
 n

o
w

 

c
e
n
te

re
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 t
w

o
 m

a
in

 r
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
t 
B

la
c
k
w

a
ll 

R
e
a
c
h
 

a
n
d
 O

c
e
a
n
 E

s
ta

te
, 
w

it
h
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 s

o
u
rc

e
s
 b

e
in

g
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

d
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

. 
T

h
e
s
e
 w

ill
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 e

lig
ib

le
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 b
e
in

g
 

fi
n
a
n
c
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 G
ra

n
t 
a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 

fu
n
d
in

g
 f
ro

m
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 e

ls
e
w

h
e
re

 i
n
 t
h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

.

R
is

k
: 
 T

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
L
a
b
o
u
r 

in
 C

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 h

is
to

ri
c
a
lly

 

fi
n
a
n
c
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 c
o
m

b
in

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 c

a
p
it
a
l,
 H

R
A

 a
n
d
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
 

1
0
6
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
ra

d
in

g
 i
n
c
o
m

e
. 
T

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

e
r 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 i
n
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
, 
a
n
d
 i
t 
s
o
o
n
 b

e
c
a
m

e
 a

p
p
a
re

n
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 a

s
s
u
m

e
d
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
fu

n
d
in

g
 w

o
u
ld

 n
o
t 
b
e
 r

e
a
lis

e
d
. 
A

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 2

0
0
9
/2

0
1
0
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 e
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 r

is
k
 i
n
 f
u
tu

re
 y

e
a
rs

 b
u
t 
a
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

p
re

s
s
u
re

 r
e
m

a
in

s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
9
/2

0
1
0
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

 T
h
e
 2

0
0
9
/2

0
1
0
 

s
h
o
rt

fa
ll 

is
 b

e
in

g
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 f
a
v
o
u
ra

b
le

 v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
h
is

to
ri
c
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
 

1
0
6

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
.

Page 70



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 2
0

0
9

-1
0

 3
rd

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

 L
a

te
s

t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

F
o

re
c

a
s

t

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
3

,3
4

4
3

,3
2

3
3

,3
2

3
0

In
c
o

m
e

-3
,3

4
4

-3
,3

4
4

-3
,3

4
4

0

C
1

4
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

s
 

0
-2

1
-2

1
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
6

6
4

6
5

7
6

5
7

0

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

0
0

C
1

6
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 &

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
6

6
4

6
5

7
6

5
7

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
0

2
,4

0
9

2
,4

0
9

0

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

0
0

C
1

8
 T

h
ir

d
 S

e
c

to
r 

te
a

m
0

2
,4

0
9

2
,4

0
9

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
3

,9
4

3
3

,9
1

9
3

,9
1

9
0

In
c
o

m
e

-3
,6

4
9

-3
,6

5
4

-3
,6

5
4

0

C
5

2
 L

e
g

a
l 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 
2

9
4

2
6

5
2

6
5

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
2

,3
3

8
1

,8
9

8
1

,8
9

8
0

In
c
o

m
e

-5
5

6
-1

4
2

-1
4

2
0

C
5

4
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 &

 E
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s

 
1

,7
8

2
1

,7
5

6
1

,7
5

6
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

,0
6

3
1

,0
5

5
1

,0
5

5
0

In
c
o

m
e

-3
9

3
-3

9
3

-3
9

3
0

C
5

6
 R

e
g

is
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
B

ir
th

s
, 

D
e

a
th

s
 

6
7

0
6

6
2

6
6

2
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
6

0
5

6
0

7
6

0
7

0

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

0
0

C
5

8
 E

le
c

to
ra

l 
R

e
g

is
ta

ti
o

n
 

6
0

5
6

0
7

6
0

7
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
3

0
3

0
3

0
0

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

0
0

C
6

0
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 E

le
c

ti
o

n
s

 
3

0
3

0
3

0
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
2

,7
4

1
2

,7
3

0
2

,7
3

0
0

In
c
o

m
e

-2
6

3
-2

6
3

-2
6

3
0

C
6

2
 D

e
m

o
c

ra
ti

c
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

2
,4

7
8

2
,4

6
7

2
,4

6
7

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
8

3
0

8
3

0
8

3
0

0

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

0
0

C
7

8
 D

e
m

o
 R

e
p

re
s

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 &
 M

g
t 

8
3

0
8

3
0

8
3

0
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
4

,0
4

1
4

,3
8

4
4

,3
8

4
0

In
c
o

m
e

-5
2

3
-5

2
3

-5
2

3
0

C
8

0
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
3

,5
1

8
3

,8
6

1
3

,8
6

1
0

C
h

ie
f 

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

's
 T

o
ta

l
1

0
,8

7
1

1
3

,5
2

3
1

3
,5

2
3

0

C
H

IE
F

 E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

'S
 

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

C
o

m
m

e
n

t/
R

is
k

 A
re

a

Page 71



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 2
0

0
9

-1
0

 3
rd

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

L
a

te
s

t

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

F
o

re
c

a
s

t

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
2

,2
6

1
2

,2
4

6
2

,2
4

6
0

In
c
o

m
e

-2
,2

6
1

-2
,2

6
1

-2
,2

6
1

0

R
3

2
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 F

in
a

n
c

e
0

-1
5

-1
5

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
9

2
3

9
1

7
9

1
7

0

In
c
o

m
e

-9
2

3
-9

2
3

-9
2

3
0

R
3

4
 I

n
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 

0
-6

-6
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
3

5
,2

1
0

3
4

,7
5

0
3

4
,7

5
0

0

In
c
o

m
e

-3
1

,1
5

9
-3

1
,1

5
9

-3
1

,1
5

9
0

R
3

6
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 T

a
x

 &
 N

N
D

R
4

,0
5

1
3

,5
9

1
3

,5
9

1
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
9

9
2

9
7

3
9

7
3

0

In
c
o

m
e

-7
5

2
-7

5
2

-7
5

2
0

R
3

8
 P

ro
c

u
re

m
e

n
t 

2
4

0
2

2
1

2
2

1
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
5

9
2

5
8

7
5

8
7

0

In
c
o

m
e

-5
9

2
-5

9
2

-5
9

2
0

R
4

0
 R

is
k

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

0
-5

-5
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

,2
2

5
1

,2
1

8
1

,2
1

8
0

In
c
o

m
e

-1
,2

2
5

-1
,1

8
6

-1
,1

8
6

0

R
4

2
 D

e
b

to
rs

 I
n

c
o

m
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
0

3
2

3
2

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
5

0
8

5
0

5
5

0
5

0

In
c
o

m
e

-5
0

8
-5

0
8

-5
0

8
0

R
4

4
 C

a
s

h
ie

rs
 

0
-3

-3
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
8

6
6

8
5

9
8

5
9

0

In
c
o

m
e

-8
6

6
-8

6
6

-8
6

6
0

R
4

6
 P

a
y

m
e

n
ts

 
0

-7
-7

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
9

,7
3

7
9

,8
0

5
9

,8
0

5
0

In
c
o

m
e

-9
,7

3
7

-9
,7

3
7

-9
,7

3
7

0

R
4

8
 I

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

0
6

8
6

8
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
7

,3
6

6
7

,5
4

5
7

,5
4

5
0

In
c
o

m
e

-3
,7

4
9

-3
,5

8
9

-3
,5

8
9

0

R
5

0
 C

o
n

ta
c

t 
C

e
n

tr
e

 
3

,6
1

7
3

,9
5

6
3

,9
5

6
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
2

1
,9

6
5

2
0

,0
7

2
2

0
,8

7
2

8
0

0

In
c
o

m
e

-1
8

,2
8

3
-1

8
,2

9
2

-1
8

,2
9

2
0

R
5

2
 A

d
m

in
 B

u
il

d
in

g
s

 
3

,6
8

2
1

,7
8

0
2

,5
8

0
8

0
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

8
7

,9
6

9
1

8
7

,9
6

9
1

8
7

,9
6

9
0

In
c
o

m
e

-1
8

7
,4

7
4

-1
8

7
,4

7
4

-1
8

7
,4

7
4

0

R
5

4
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi

ts
4

9
5

4
9

5
4

9
5

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
4

6
7

4
5

5
5

2
5

7
0

In
c
o

m
e

-8
5

8
-4

5
8

-4
5

8
0

R
5

6
 D

e
p

o
ts

 
-3

9
1

-3
6

7
7

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
6

,6
5

8
8

,1
2

1
8

,1
2

1
0

In
c
o

m
e

-6
,1

2
5

-6
,1

2
5

-6
,1

2
5

0

R
5

8
 B

e
n

e
fi

ts
 A

d
m

in
 T

e
a

m
5

3
3

1
,9

9
6

1
,9

9
6

0

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

C
o

m
m

e
n

t/
R

is
k

 A
re

a

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 p

re
s
s
u
re

s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 O

ff
ic

e
 A

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 d

e
la

y
s
 i
n
 d

is
p
o
s
in

g
 o

f 
v
a
c
a
n
t 
a
n
d
 u

n
d
e
ru

s
e
d
 

o
ff
ic

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d
 p

re
s
s
u
re

 o
n
 c

o
s
ts

 a
t 
E

a
s
t 
In

d
ia

 D
o
c
k
.

M
it
ig

a
ti
n
g
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 p

u
rs

u
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
n
ta

in
 t
h
e
s
e
 c

o
s
ts

.

Page 72



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 2
0

0
9

-1
0

 3
rd

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

L
a

te
s

t

B
u

d
g

e
t

£
'0

0
0

F
o

re
c

a
s

t

O
u

tt
u

rn

£
'0

0
0

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

C
o

m
m

e
n

t/
R

is
k

 A
re

a

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
4

2
5

4
2

3
4

2
3

0

In
c
o

m
e

-4
2

5
-4

2
5

-4
2

5
0

R
6

0
 R

e
p

ro
g

ra
p

h
ic

s
 

0
-2

-2
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
2

,0
5

8
2

,0
4

1
2

,0
4

1
0

In
c
o

m
e

-2
,2

0
8

-2
,2

0
8

-2
,2

0
8

0

R
6

4
 S

h
a

re
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

-1
5

0
-1

6
7

-1
6

7
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
3

,6
8

7
3

,2
4

5
3

,2
4

5
0

In
c
o

m
e

-3
,6

5
8

-3
,2

4
8

-3
,2

4
8

0

R
7

2
 H

u
m

a
n

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

2
9

-3
-3

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
3

8
8

3
8

4
3

8
4

0

In
c
o

m
e

-6
5

-6
5

-6
5

0

R
7

4
 O

c
c

u
p

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

H
e

a
lt

h
3

2
3

3
1

9
3

1
9

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
4

,9
6

2
5

,9
2

6
5

,9
2

6
0

In
c
o

m
e

-3
,3

9
3

-3
,6

7
2

-3
,6

7
2

0

R
7

6
 H

R
/L

e
a

rn
in

g
 &

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

1
,5

6
9

2
,2

5
4

2
,2

5
4

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

,9
0

5
1

,7
1

2
1

,7
1

2
0

In
c
o

m
e

0
-1

2
5

-1
2

5
0

R
8

2
 N

o
n

-D
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 C

o
s

ts
1

,9
0

5
1

,5
8

7
1

,5
8

7
0

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 T
o

ta
l

1
5

,9
0
4

1
6

,0
8

8
1

6
,9

5
8

8
7

0

Page 73



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 2
0

0
9

-1
0

 3
rd

 Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 2

L
a

te
s

t

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
ro

je
c

te
d

O
u

tt
u

rn
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

L
a

te
s

t

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
ro

je
c

te
d

O
u

tt
u

rn
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

L
a

te
s

t

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
ro

je
c

te
d

O
u

tt
u

rn
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
/R

is
k

s

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
/(

In
c

o
m

e
)

2
2

,9
5

0
2

2
,9

5
0

-
(6

,3
3

6
)

(4
,6

3
6

)
1

,7
0

0
1

6
,6

1
4

1
8

,3
1

4
1

,7
0

0

In
 t

h
e

 m
e

d
iu

m
 t

e
rm

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 e

x
p

e
c
ti
n

g
 a

 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
s
h

o
rt

fa
ll 

in
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

c
o

m
e

 d
u

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s

(1
,7

0
0

)
A

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

n
ti
n

g
e

n
c
y

2
2

,9
5

0
 

2
2

,9
5

0
 

-
(6

,3
3

6
)

(4
,6

3
6

)
1

,7
0

0
 

1
6

,6
1

4
 

1
8

,3
1

4
 

-

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 C

O
S

T
S

 /
 

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 F
IN

A
N

C
IN

G

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
In

c
o

m
e

N
e

t 
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

Page 74



T
R

A
D

IN
G

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G

(3
rd

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r)

2
0
0
9
-1

0

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 3
A

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

 

£
'0

0
0

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

 

£
'0

0
0

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

  

£
'0

0
0

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
  

£
'0

0
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,3

5
0

1
,3

5
0

In
c
o
m

e
-1

,3
5
0

-1
,3

5
0

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
: 

B
u

il
d

in
g

 C
le

a
n

in
g

0
0

0
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,1

7
1

1
,1

7
1

In
c
o
m

e
-1

,1
7
1

-1
,1

7
1

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
: 

W
e
lf

a
re

 C
a
te

ri
n

g
0

0
0

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
0
,0

1
2

1
0
,0

1
2

In
c
o
m

e
-1

0
,0

1
2

-1
0
,0

1
2

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
: 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 C

a
te

ri
n

g
0

0
0

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
5
9

1
5
9

In
c
o
m

e
-1

5
9

-1
5
9

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 F

in
a
n

c
e
 T

ra
d

in
g

 A
/c

0
0

0
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
4
1

1
4
1

In
c
o
m

e
-1

4
1

-1
4
1

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
T

ra
d

in
g

 A
/c

 (
8
9
1
0
3
)

0
0

0
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
6
5

5
6
5

In
c
o
m

e
-5

6
5

-5
6
5

S
c
h

o
o

l 
K

e
e
p

in
g

 T
ra

d
in

g
 A

/c
 (

8
9
1
0
4
)

0
0

0
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,3

5
5

2
,3

5
5

In
c
o
m

e
-2

,3
5
5

-2
,3

5
5

B
u

il
d

in
g

 &
 T

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 T

ra
d

in
g

 A
/c

0
0

0
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
6
3

6
6
3

In
c
o
m

e
-6

6
3

-6
6
3

8
9
1
0
1
 S

c
h

. 
L

ib
ra

ry
 S

e
rv

ic
e

0
0

0
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
0
0

1
0
0

In
c
o
m

e
-1

0
0

-1
0
0

8
9
0
0
2
 H

E
C

. 
D

is
b

u
rs

e
m

e
n

t
0

0
0

0

T
h

is
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 is
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 b
re

a
k
 e

v
e

n
 a

t 
y
e

a
r-

e
n

d
, 
a

ft
e

r 
ta

k
in

g
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 

s
u

b
s
id

ie
s
 t
o

 b
e

 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e

d
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 m

a
in

 C
S

F
 b

u
d

g
e

t,
 in

c
lu

d
in

g
 f
u

n
d

in
g

 f
o

r 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 L
iv

in
g

 W
a

g
e

, 
S

in
g

le
 S

ta
tu

s
 a

n
d

 s
c
h

o
o

l m
e

a
ls

. 
 T

h
e

 s
e

n
s
iti

v
ity

 o
f 
th

is
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 t
o

 d
e

m
a

n
d

 le
a

v
e

s
 a

 r
is

k
 o

f 
v
o

la
til

ity
 in

 t
h

e
 t
ra

d
in

g
 p

o
s
iti

o
n

 a
n

d
 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
ra

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
a

 b
re

a
k
-e

v
e

n
 p

o
s
iti

o
n

 w
ill

 b
e

 

s
o

u
g

h
t 
b

e
fo

re
 y

e
a

r-
e

n
d

.

C
h

il
d

re
n

, 
S

c
h

o
o

ls
 &

 F
a
m

il
ie

s

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

C
o

m
m

e
n

t/
 R

is
k
 A

re
a
s

Page 75



T
R

A
D

IN
G

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G

(3
rd

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r)

2
0
0
9
-1

0

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 3
A

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

 

£
'0

0
0

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

 

£
'0

0
0

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

  

£
'0

0
0

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
  

£
'0

0
0

C
h

il
d

re
n

, 
S

c
h

o
o

ls
 &

 F
a
m

il
ie

s

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

C
o

m
m

e
n

t/
 R

is
k
 A

re
a
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
3
5

1
3
5

In
c
o
m

e
-1

3
5

-1
3
5

8
9
1
0
2
 H

E
C

. 
T

ra
d

in
g

0
0

0
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
8
7

6
8
7

In
c
o
m

e
-6

8
7

-6
8
7

8
9
1
0
7
 M

u
s
ic

 T
ra

d
in

g
0

0
0

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

7
4
7

7
4
7

In
c
o
m

e
-7

4
7

-7
4
7

8
9
1
0
5
 I

T
. 

T
ra

d
in

g
0

0
0

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
5
0

2
5
0

In
c
o
m

e
-2

5
0

-2
5
0

8
9
1
0
8
 G

o
v
e
rn

o
rs

 T
ra

d
in

g
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t
0

0
0

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

7
9
0

7
9
0

In
c
o
m

e
-7

9
0

-7
9
0

8
9
1
0
9
 C

L
C

 T
ra

d
in

g
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t
0

0
0

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
5
4

4
5
4

In
c
o
m

e
-4

5
4

-4
5
4

8
1
5
0
6
 A

tt
e
n

d
a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 W
e
lf

a
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 S

L
A

 A
c
c
o

u
n

t
0

0
0

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
2
7

1
2
7

In
c
o
m

e
-1

2
7

-1
2
7

8
9
0
1
0
 W

o
rk

p
la

c
e
 N

u
rs

e
ry

0
0

0
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,1

5
2

1
,1

5
2

In
c
o
m

e
-1

,1
5
2

-1
,1

5
2

8
1
6
0
2
 S

L
S

 T
ra

d
in

g
 A

/c
0

0
0

0

C
h

il
d

re
n

, 
S

c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 F
a
m

il
ie

s
 T

o
ta

l
0

0
0

0

Page 76



T
R

A
D

IN
G

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G

(3
rd

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r)

2
0
0
9
-1

0

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 3
B

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

 

£
'0

0
0

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

 

£
'0

0
0

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  

£
'0

0
0

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
  

  
  

 

£
'0

0
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
9
3
9

1
,9

3
9

1
,9

3
9

0

In
c
o
m

e
-1

9
3
9

-1
,9

3
9

-1
,9

3
9

0

  
E

3
0
  

F
le

e
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
0

0
0

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
0
3
2

5
,0

3
2

5
,0

3
2

0

In
c
o
m

e
-5

0
3
2

-5
,0

3
2

-5
,0

3
2

0

  
E

3
1
  

P
a
s
s
e
n

g
e
r 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

0
0

0
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
0
8

4
0
8

4
0
8

0

In
c
o
m

e
-4

0
8

-4
0
8

-4
0
8

0

 E
3
2
  

D
S

O
 V

e
h

ic
le

 W
o

rk
s
h

o
p

0
0

0
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
1
3
1

2
,1

3
1

2
,1

3
1

0

In
c
o
m

e
-2

1
3
1

-2
,1

3
1

-2
,1

3
1

0

 E
2
5
  

S
tr

e
e
t 

T
ra

d
in

g
0

0
0

0

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
, 

L
o

c
a
li

ti
e
s
 &

 C
u

lt
u

re
 T

o
ta

l
0

0
0

0

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
, 

L
o

c
a
li

ti
e
s
 &

 C
u

lt
u

re
C

o
m

m
e
n

t/
 R

is
k
 A

re
a
s

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

Page 77



T
R

A
D

IN
G

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G

(3
rd

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r)

2
0
0
9
-1

0

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 3
C

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,5

3
3

1
,5

3
3

1
,6

7
1

1
3
8

In
c
o
m

e
-1

,5
3
3

-1
,5

3
3

-1
,6

2
9

-9
6

B
u

il
d

in
g

 C
o

n
tr

o
l 

0
0

4
2

4
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
2
7

4
2
7

3
2
2

-1
0
5

In
c
o
m

e
-4

2
7

-4
2
7

-1
9
4

2
3
4

L
o

c
a
l 

L
a
n

d
 C

h
a
rg

e
s

0
0

1
2
9

1
2
9

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
&

 R
e
n

e
w

a
l 

T
o

ta
l

0
0

1
7
1

1
7
1

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
&

 R
e
n

e
w

a
l

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

C
o

m
m

e
n

t/
 R

is
k
 A

re
a
s

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 f

e
e
 l
e
v
e
ls

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

w
e
re

 b
o
th

 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 

w
it
h
 e

ff
e
c
t 

fr
o
m

 1
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
, 

L
a
n
d
 C

h
a
rg

e
 s

e
a
rc

h
 f

e
e
 

in
c
o
m

e
 i
s
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 

to
 b

e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 l
o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 a

s
 a

 d
ir
e
c
t 

c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
b
o
th

 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 c

lim
a
te

 a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 f

ro
m

 p
e
rs

o
n
a
l 
s
e
a
rc

h
 

c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
. 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 a
re

 a
s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 m

e
a
n
s
 o

f 

m
in

im
is

in
g
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t.

T
h
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
lie

s
 o

n
 a

 h
ig

h
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

in
c
o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 e
x
te

rn
a
l 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 l
in

k
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

m
a
rk

e
t 

a
n
d
 i
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 c

o
m

p
e
te

s
 f

o
r 

w
o
rk

 a
g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 

p
ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r.
 I
n
c
o
m

e
 l
e
v
e
ls

 a
re

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

to
 d

e
c
lin

e
 a

s
 a

  

d
ir
e
c
t 

c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 d

o
w

n
tu

rn
 

a
n
d
 i
ts

 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 m

a
rk

e
t.

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

 

£
'0

0
0

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

 

£
'0

0
0

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

£
'0

0
0

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 

£
'0

0
0

Page 78



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 2
0
0
9
-1

0
 3

rd
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

£
'0

0
0

 L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

£
'0

0
0

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

£
'0

0
0

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

In
c
o
m

e
-5

8
,0

3
4

-5
8
,0

3
4

-5
7
,6

9
8

3
3
6

D
w

e
ll

in
g

 &
 N

o
n

 D
w

e
ll

in
g

 R
e
n

ts
-5

8
,0

3
4

-5
8
,0

3
4

-5
7
,6

9
8

3
3
6

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

0

In
c
o
m

e
-1

6
,3

3
1

-1
6
,3

3
1

-1
7
,6

2
1

-1
,2

9
0

T
e
n

a
n

t 
&

 L
e
a
s
e
h

o
ld

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
s

-1
6
,3

3
1

-1
6
,3

3
1

-1
7
,6

2
1

-1
,2

9
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

0

In
c
o
m

e
-1

9
,3

4
4

-1
9
,3

4
4

-1
5
,2

9
3

4
,0

5
1

G
o

v
e
rn

m
e
n

t 
S

u
b

s
id

y
-1

9
,3

4
4

-1
9
,3

4
4

-1
5
,2

9
3

4
,0

5
1

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

0

In
c
o
m

e
-6

5
3

-6
5
3

-6
5
3

0
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s
 f

ro
m

 G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
-6

5
3

-6
5
3

-6
5
3

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

0

In
c
o
m

e
-6

1
2

-6
1
2

-1
7
8

4
3
4

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
In

c
o

m
e
 R

e
c
e
iv

e
d

 (
It

e
m

 8
)

-6
1
2

-6
1
2

-1
7
8

4
3
4

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
2
,9

0
1

2
2
,9

0
1

2
4
,4

3
8

1
,5

3
7

In
c
o
m

e
0

R
e
p

a
ir

s
 &

 M
a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

2
2
,9

0
1

2
2
,9

0
1

2
4
,4

3
8

1
,5

3
7

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
1
,9

7
0

4
1
,9

7
0

4
2
,7

2
6

7
5
6

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

S
u

p
e
rv

is
io

n
 &

 M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
4
1
,9

7
0

4
1
,9

7
0

4
2
,7

2
6

7
5
6

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

9
0
0

9
0
0

9
0
0

0

In
c
o
m

e
0

P
ro

v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
B

a
d

 &
 D

o
u

b
tf

u
l 

D
e
b

ts
9
0
0

9
0
0

9
0
0

0

H
O

U
S

IN
G

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

C
o

m
m

e
n

t/
R

is
k
 A

re
a

R
e
n
ta

l 
In

c
o
m

e
 i
s
 l
o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 t

ra
n
s
fe

r 
o
f 

a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 9

0
 t

e
n
a
n
te

d
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 C

o
v
e
n
tr

y
 C

ro
s
s
 e

s
ta

te
 

in
 J

u
ly

 2
0
0
9
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 p

a
rt

ia
lly

 o
ff

s
e
t 

b
y
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 b
u
y
-

b
a
c
k
s
 a

n
d
 s

h
o
p
 r

e
n
ts

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 r

e
-n

e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
le

a
s
e
s

T
h
e
 H

R
A

 s
u
b
s
id

y
 e

n
ti
tl
e
m

e
n
t 

is
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 e

ff
e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 B

a
n
k
 

o
f 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 b

a
s
e
 r

a
te

, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 p

a
rt

ia
lly

 o
ff

s
e
t 

b
y
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
fi
n
a
n
c
in

g
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
.

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 p

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 l
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

in
v
o
ic

e
s
 t

h
e
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 i
s
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

w
h
e
n
 t

h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

w
a
s
 p

re
p
a
re

d
. 

T
h
e
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
 a

c
tu

a
l 
in

v
o
ic

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 

n
o
w

 b
e
e
n
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
. 

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o
 a

ri
s
e
n
 f

ro
m

 l
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 b

y
 

T
e
n
a
n
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

in
c
o
m

e
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

th
ro

u
g
h
 a

 

c
o
m

b
in

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 e

ff
e
c
ts

 o
f 

a
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 w

o
rk

in
g
 b

a
la

n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 

lo
w

e
r 

in
te

re
s
t 

ra
te

s
. 

In
te

re
s
t 

R
a
te

s
 a

re
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 l
a
te

s
t 

p
ro

je
c
ti
o
n
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

's
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

a
d
v
is

o
rs

 a
n
d
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 o

n
 a

 r
e
g
u
la

r 
b
a
s
is

. 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 w
ill

 b
e
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 

th
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

T
h
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
re

p
a
ir
s
 o

p
e
n
 d

a
y
s
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 h

e
ld

 o
n
 e

s
ta

te
s
 h

a
v
e
 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

d
 t

o
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 f

o
r 

re
p
a
ir
s
. 

T
h
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 

H
o
m

e
s
 B

o
a
rd

 h
a
v
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

re
p
a
ir
s
 a

n
d
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 w

ill
 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 b

y
 u

p
 t

o
 £

2
.5

 m
ill

io
n
 b

y
 t

h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

 

M
e
a
s
u
re

s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 w

it
h
in

 T
H

H
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
in

g
 

b
u
t 

is
 u

n
lik

e
ly

 t
h
a
t 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 b

ro
u
g
h
t 

in
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t.

T
h
e
 S

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 a

n
d
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

b
u
d
g
e
t 

is
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 p

ro
je

c
ti
n
g
 a

 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 i
t 

d
o
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 s

o
m

e
 e

x
tr

a
o
rd

in
a
ry

 

o
n
e
-o

ff
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n
g
 c

o
s
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 f

o
r 

w
it
h
in

 

re
s
e
rv

e
s
. 

O
th

e
r 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
s
 a

re
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 b

u
d
g
te

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
o
s
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 E
ff

o
rt

s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d
e
 

in
 c

o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 H
o
m

e
s
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

fo
re

c
a
s
t 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
. 

Page 79



C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 2
0
0
9
-1

0
 3

rd
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

£
'0

0
0

 L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

£
'0

0
0

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

£
'0

0
0

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

H
O

U
S

IN
G

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

C
o

m
m

e
n

t/
R

is
k
 A

re
a

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
5
,4

7
3

3
5
,4

7
3

3
2
,3

0
0

-3
,1

7
3

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

C
a
p

it
a
l 

F
in

a
n

c
in

g
 C

h
a
rg

e
s

3
5
,4

7
3

3
5
,4

7
3

3
2
,3

0
0

-3
,1

7
3

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

0

In
c
o
m

e
-1

,9
7
0

-1
,9

7
0

-1
,9

7
0

0
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s
 f

ro
m

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

-1
,9

7
0

-1
,9

7
0

-1
,9

7
0

0

T
o

ta
l 

N
e
t 

H
R

A
 E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
,3

0
0

4
,3

0
0

6
,9

5
1

2
,6

5
1

A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 u

n
c
e
rt

a
in

ty
 r

e
g
a
rd

in
g
 i
n
te

re
s
t 

ra
te

s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 f

a
ll 

in
 

th
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

's
 l
ik

e
ly

 C
o
n
s
o
lid

a
te

d
 R

a
te

 o
f 

In
te

re
s
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

y
e
a
r,

 a
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 b

o
rr

o
w

in
g
 c

o
s
ts

 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
. 

T
h
is

 

s
a
v
in

g
 p

a
rt

ly
 o

ff
s
e
ts

 t
h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 H

R
A

 S
u
b
s
id

y
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
. 

Page 80



L
A

T
E

S
T

 T
A

R
G

E
T

S
 2

0
0
9
/2

0
1
0

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

A

C
a
b

in
e
t 

E
a
rl

y
 R

e
ti

re
m

e
n

ts
 

R
e
im

b
u

rs
e
m

e
n

t

P
a
y
 I

n
fl

a
ti

o
n

 

c
la

w
b

a
c
k

L
A

P
 M

e
n

u
s
 

A
ll

o
c
a
te

d

L
A

P
 M

e
n

u
s
 

U
n

a
ll

o
c
a
te

d

H
e
a
lt

h
 &

 

S
a
fe

ty
 P

o
s
t

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o

f 
L

 

&
 D

 F
u

n
c
ti

o
n

P
e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 

a
d

j

C
a
rr

y
 

F
o

rw
a
rd

s
 -

 

J
u

ly
 C

a
b

in
e
t

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

B
e
n

e
fi

t 
- 

J
u

ly
 

C
a
b

in
e
t

O
n

e
 s

to
p

 

s
h

o
p

s

T
a
rg

e
ts

 

a
s
 p

e
r 

C
R

B
M

2

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

S
e
rv

ic
e
 B

u
d

g
e
ts

A
d
u
lt
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

8
9
,5

4
7

(6
3
6
)

8
4
6
7

2
8
3

8
9
,6

6
9

8
5

8
9
,7

5
4

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 F

a
m

ili
e
s

9
6
,7

9
5

(1
2
7
)

(7
8
2
)

1
,1

2
2

(7
1
0
)

2
3
4
8

9
6
,6

4
8

(7
2
)

(2
,0

6
0
)

9
4
,5

1
6

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s,
 L

o
c
a
lit

ie
s 

&
 C

u
lt
u
re

7
4
,4

9
9

(6
4
)

(5
5
6
)

1
,2

5
8

4
9

1
8

2
4
7

7
5
,4

5
1

(2
8
5
)

9
7

7
5
,2

6
3

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l 

1
7
,7

0
2

(1
8
)

(2
9
6
)

(1
6
)

(3
9
)

(1
2
8
)

1
3
2

1
7
,3

3
7

(2
,4

0
9
)

(2
,3

2
7
)

1
2
,6

0
1

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

1
0
,8

7
1

(1
7
)

(1
8
0
)

(1
6
)

-
3
5
0

2
6

8
0

1
1
,1

1
4

2
,4

0
9

1
3
,5

2
3

R
e
so

u
rc

e
s

1
5
,9

0
4

(2
7
)

(6
0
6
)

(1
6
)

7
1
0

3
9

2
1
3

1
2
8

(5
4
)

2
6
9

1
6
,5

6
0

(2
,7

9
9
)

2
,3

2
7

1
6
,0

8
8

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
/C

a
p
it
a
l

1
4
,1

7
4

2
5
3

-
(1

,2
5
8
)

(1
,1

2
2
)

(4
6
7
)

1
1
,5

8
0

3
5
7

4
,6

7
7

1
,6

9
7

1
8
,3

1
1

3
1
9
,4

9
2

-
(3

,0
5
6
)

-
-

-
-

5
6
3

-
-

-
1
,3

5
9

3
1
8
,3

5
8

-
-

-
1
,6

9
7

3
2
0
,0

5
5

P
a
y
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
/f

ro
m

 B
a
la

n
c
e
s

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 C

o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y

-
3
,0

5
6

(1
,3

5
9
)

1
,6

9
7

(1
,6

9
7
)

-

L
o
c
a
l 
P

u
b
lic

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

R
e
se

rv
e

(6
6
0
)

(6
6
0
)

(6
6
0
)

P
a
rk

in
g
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 
R

e
se

rv
e

(3
,0

4
0
)

(3
,0

4
0
)

(3
,0

4
0
)

E
a
rm

a
rk

e
d
 R

e
se

rv
e
s

-
(5

6
3
)

(5
6
3
)

(5
6
3
)

H
o
u
si

n
g
 C

h
o
ic

e
 E

a
rm

a
rk

e
d
 R

e
se

rv
e

-
-

-

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 R

e
se

rv
e

6
8
9

6
8
9

6
8
9

In
su

ra
n
c
e
 F

u
n
d
 E

a
rm

a
rk

e
d
 R

e
se

rv
e

5
0
0

5
0
0

5
0
0

A
ss

e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

R
e
se

rv
e

-
-

-

A
re

a
 B

a
se

d
 G

ra
n
t 

in
c
o
m

e
(1

9
,0

5
5
)

(1
9
,0

5
5
)

(1
9
,0

5
5
)

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
B

a
la

n
c
e
s

-
-

-

T
O

T
A

L
 N

E
T

 B
U

D
G

E
T

2
9
7
,9

2
6

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
2
9
7
,9

2
6

2
9
7
,9

2
6

D
e
p

re
c
ia

ti
o

n

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o

f 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

B
e
n

e
fi

ts
 

A
d

m
in

 T
e
a
m

 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 

C
h

a
rg

e
s
 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 

fo
r 

C
R

B
M

3

S
in

g
le

 

S
ta

tu
s

P
a
y
 

A
w

a
rd

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 

o
f 

T
h

ir
d

 

S
e
c
to

r 

T
e
a
m

P
ru

d
e
n

ti
a
l 

B
o

rr
o

w
in

g

A
ll

o
c
a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

C
o

n
ti

n
g

e
n

c
y

Page 81



V
IR

E
M

E
N

T
S

 B
E

T
W

E
E

N
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 O
V

E
R

 £
2
5
0
,0

0
0

 2
0
0
9
/2

0
1
0

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

B

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 R
e
c
u

rr
in

g
 

V
ir

e
m

e
n

t/
T

a
rg

e
t 

A
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

t 

2
0
0
9
/2

0
1
0

E
ff

e
c
t 

o
n

 2
0
1
0
/2

0
1
1
 

o
f 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 

V
ir

e
m

e
n

t/
T

a
rg

e
t 

A
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

t 

 P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 N
o

n
-

re
c
u

rr
in

g
 

V
ir

e
m

e
n

ts

R
e
a
s
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

v
ir

e
m

e
n

t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

V
IR

E
M

E
N

T
S

 O
V

E
R

 £
2
5
0
K

A
D

U
L

T
S

, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 &

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

O
ld

e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 (

A
4
2
)

T
h
ir
d
 P

a
rt

y 
P

a
ym

e
n
ts

 
2
2
,8

9
4
.0

2
4
7
.0

2
4
7
.0

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
G

ra
n
ts

-3
5
0
.0

-3
8
1
.0

-3
8
1
.0

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
G

ra
n
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

to
 f
u
n
d
 t
h
is

 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 a
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

M
e
d
iu

m
 F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
.

O
th

e
r 

G
ra

n
ts

 a
n
d
 R

e
im

b
u
rs

e
m

e
n
ts

-2
,0

0
1
.0

1
3
4
.0

1
3
4
.0

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 H

e
a
lt
h
 I
n
c
o
m

e
 d

u
e
 t
o
 f
e
w

e
r 

jo
in

t 

p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s

H
o

m
e
 C

a
re

 (
A

3
4
)

T
h
ir
d
 P

a
rt

y 
P

a
ym

e
n
ts

7
,0

7
4
.0

3
8
0
.0

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
G

ra
n
ts

0
.0

-3
8
0
.0

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
G

ra
n
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

to
 f
u
n
d
 t
h
is

 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 .

V
IR

E
M

E
N

T
 T

O
T

A
L

 A
D

U
L

T
S

2
7
,6

1
7
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

S
e
rv

ic
e
/D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 i
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
  

e
x
p
e
n
s
iv

e
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 a

n
d
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

n
e
e
d
s
. 

A
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 

in
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 r

e
a
b
le

m
e
n
t 
p
ilo

t 
h
a
v
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

Page 82



E
F

F
IC

IE
N

C
Y

 S
A

V
IN

G
S

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 2

0
0
9
-1

0
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 6
 

R
e
p

o
rt

e
d

 A
n

n
u

a
l

A
n

n
u

a
l

A
n

n
u

a
l

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 G

a
in

s
E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 G

a
in

s
E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 G

a
in

s
C

o
m

m
e
n

t

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

to
 Q

3
A

c
tu

a
ls

 t
o

 Q
3

2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
0
9
/1

0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

A
d

u
lt

s
 H

e
a
lt

h
 &

 W
e
ll
b

e
in

g

S
A

V
/A

H
W

B
/0

1
E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
ie

s
 i
n
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
&

 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o

f 
H

o
m

e
 c

a
re

1
7
1

1
2
8

1
2
8

S
A

V
/A

H
W

B
/0

2
Im

p
ro

v
e
d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y 

o
f 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
S

u
p
p
lie

s
 &

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

1
5
0

1
1
3

1
1
3

S
A

V
/A

H
W

B
/0

4
R

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n
g
 o

f 
H

o
s
p
it
a
l 
S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

1
2
9

1
2
9

1
2
9

S
A

V
/A

H
W

B
/0

5
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

ro
c
e
s
s
 R

e
-e

n
g
in

e
e
ri
n
g

5
8
6

5
8
6

5
8
6

s
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
1
,0

3
6

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

9
5
6

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
5
6

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 F
a
m

il
ie

s

S
A

V
/C

S
/0

2
S

tr
e
a
m

lin
in

g
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
 i
n
 n

e
e
d

4
6

3
5

1
5

A
t 
th

is
 s

ta
g
e
 t
h
e
 £

2
6
k
 s

a
v
in

g
 i
n
 C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 u

n
lik

e
ly

 

to
 b

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 d

u
e
 t
o
 m

o
s
t 
s
e
n
io

r 
s
ta

ff
 b

e
in

g
 a

t 
to

p
 o

f 

s
a
la

ry
 s

c
a
le

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
g
e
n
c
y 

s
ta

ff
. 
D

M
T

 t
o
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
s
. 

S
A

V
/C

S
/0

3
C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
1
5
0

1
1
3

1
1
3

T
h
e
s
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 a

re
 o

n
 l
in

e
 t
o
 b

e
 a

c
h
iv

e
d
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 

re
c
la

s
s
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
c
o
s
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

c
h
a
rg

e
d
 t
o
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
.

S
A

V
/C

S
/0

4
O

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
R

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 Y

P
L

4
0

3
0

3
0

S
A

V
/C

S
/0

5
In

v
e
s
t 
to

 S
a
v
e
 -

 A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 W

e
lf
a
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e

7
9

5
9

5
9

S
A

V
/C

S
/0

6
N

o
n
-S

ta
tu

to
ry

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

2
5

1
9

1
9

S
A

V
/C

S
/0

8
V

e
n
d
o
r 

M
a
n
a
g
e
d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

3
0

2
3

2
3

S
A

V
/C

S
/0

9
In

te
g
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
C

h
ild

re
n
's

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

4
5
6

3
4
2

3
4
2

S
A

V
/C

S
/1

0
Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 O
u
ts

id
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l

4
0

3
0

3
0

A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 
e
x
te

rn
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e

S
A

V
/C

S
/1

1
L
if
e
lo

n
g
 L

e
a
rn

in
g

6
0

0
0

D
e
la

ys
 i
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
. 
A

n
 i
m

m
in

e
n
t 

O
F

S
T

E
D

 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 a

d
d
in

g
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

to
 b

u
d
g
e
ta

ry
 p

re
s
s
u
re

S
A

V
/C

S
/1

2
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
N

o
n
-S

ta
tu

to
ry

 P
ro

v
is

io
n

2
5
0

1
8
8

7
6

O
n
ly

 F
a
m

ily
 P

la
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 G
5
3
 a

n
d
 C

W
D

 I
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

G
5
8
 c

a
n
 b

e
 d

e
e
m

e
d
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 m

e
t 
th

e
ir
 s

a
v
in

g
s
, 
b
y 

v
ir
tu

e
 o

f 

u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
s
 p

re
d
ic

te
d
 a

t 
Q

3
. 
M

&
A

, 
G

4
9
, 
C

h
ild

re
n
 L

o
o
k
e
d
 

A
ft
e
r 

G
5
5
 a

n
d
 L

e
a
v
in

g
 C

a
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 G

5
6
 h

a
v
e
 m

e
t 
th

e
ir
 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 a

ls
o
 d

u
e
 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
s
 p

re
d
ic

te
d
 a

t 
Q

3
.T

h
e
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 A

re
a
s
 G

5
0
, 
G

5
1
, 
G

5
2
, 
G

5
7
 &

 G
5
9
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 

p
re

s
s
u
re

 o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 S

a
la

ri
e
s
 b

u
d
g
e
ts

 t
h
a
t 
m

a
k
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 

u
n
a
c
h
ie

v
a
b
le

.

S
A

V
/C

S
/1

3
E

a
rl
y 

Y
e
a
rs

 A
d
v
is

o
ry

 T
e
a
m

5
0

3
8

3
8

S
A

V
/C

S
/1

4
S

tr
e
a
m

lin
in

g
 E

x
te

n
d
e
d
 P

ro
v
is

io
n
s

3
0

2
3

2
3

P
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 f
o
r 

re
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
fe

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 t
ig

h
te

n
e
d
 

le
a
d
in

g
 t
o
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 f
e
e
s
. 
A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 i
n
 s

a
la

ri
e
s
 

d
u
e
 t
o
 n

a
tu

ra
l 
w

a
s
ta

g
e
 i
n
 Y

o
u
th

 W
o
rk

e
r 

p
o
s
ts

S
A

V
/C

S
/1

5
R

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 Q

u
a
lit

y 
&

 A
u
d
it
 T

e
a
m

2
4

1
8

1
8

C
u

m
u

la
ti

v
e
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 g

a
in

s

Page 83



E
F

F
IC

IE
N

C
Y

 S
A

V
IN

G
S

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 2

0
0
9
-1

0
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 6
 

R
e
p

o
rt

e
d

 A
n

n
u

a
l

A
n

n
u

a
l

A
n

n
u

a
l

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 G

a
in

s
E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 G

a
in

s
E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 G

a
in

s
C

o
m

m
e
n

t

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

to
 Q

3
A

c
tu

a
ls

 t
o

 Q
3

2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
0
9
/1

0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

C
u

m
u

la
ti

v
e
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 g

a
in

s

S
A

V
/C

S
/1

6
E

Y
C

L
 E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
ie

s
1
9
1

1
4
3

1
4
3

S
u
b
s
ti
tu

te
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 (

th
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
g
ra

n
t 
fu

n
d
in

g
) 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 s
a
v
in

g
 i
s
 o

n
 n

o
w

 t
ra

c
k
 t
o
 

d
e
liv

e
r 

fo
r 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
.

S
A

V
/C

S
/0

1
/0

9
S

e
rv

ic
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
s

1
9
5

1
4
6

1
4
6

S
ta

ff
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
 n

o
w

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
, 
w

it
h
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 

d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
a
g
re

e
d
 b

y 
D

M
T

, 
w

it
h
 f
u
ll 

ye
a
r 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 b

e
in

g
 

g
e
n
e
ra

te
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
. 
 T

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

lip
p
a
g
e
 i
n
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
s
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
, 
b
u
t,
 a

s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 q

u
a
rt

e
r,

 t
h
e
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 s

a
v
in

g
 i
s
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
v
e
re

d
 b

y 

u
n
s
p
e
n
t 
b
u
d
g
e
ts

 e
ls

e
w

h
e
re

 i
n
 t
h
e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t,
 s

o
 w

ill
 b

e
 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
.

S
A

V
/C

S
/0

2
/0

9
U

n
it
 C

o
s
t 
A

n
a
ly

s
is

 -
 C

h
ild

re
n
's

 S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

2
2
9

1
7
1

1
7
1

D
e
ta

ile
d
 u

n
it
 c

o
s
t 
m

e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y 

n
o
w

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d
 D

M
T

 

h
a
v
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
u
ll 

ye
a
r 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 i
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
fo

r 
2
0
1
0
/1

1
. 
 T

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 s

lip
p
a
g
e
 i
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
s
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
, 
b
u
t,
 a

s
 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 q

u
a
rt

e
r,

 t
h
e
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 s

a
v
in

g
 i
s
 t
o
 b

e
 

c
o
v
e
re

d
 b

y 
u
n
s
p
e
n
t 
b
u
d
g
e
ts

 e
ls

e
w

h
e
re

 i
n
 t
h
e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t,
 

s
o
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
.

S
A

V
/C

S
/0

3
/0

9
R

u
n
n
in

g
 C

o
s
ts

 -
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 L

e
a
rn

in
g

7
1
5

5
3
6

5
3
6

S
a
v
in

g
s
 a

p
p
lie

d
 t
o
 n

o
n
-s

ta
ff
 b

u
d
g
e
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 C

S
F

D
 a

n
d
 

re
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 p

o
s
it
io

n
s
.

s
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
2
,6

1
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
,9

1
4

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
,7

8
2

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
it

e
s
, 
L

o
c
a
li
ti

e
s
 &

 C
u

lt
u

re

S
A

V
/C

L
C

/0
1

Id
e
a
 S

to
re

s
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e

8
0

6
0

6
0

In
c
o
m

e
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 w

ill
 n

o
t 
b
e
 r

e
a
lis

e
d
 m

a
in

ly
 a

s
 r

e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
lo

s
s
 

o
f 
T

H
 C

o
lle

g
e
 f
u
n
d
in

g
. 
C

o
m

p
e
n
s
a
to

ry
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 o

n
 

b
o
o
k
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
s
, 
v
ia

 c
o
n
s
o
rt

iu
m

 p
u
rc

h
a
s
in

g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 

w
it
h
 8

 o
th

e
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
s
.

S
A

V
/C

L
C

/0
3

Id
e
a
s
 S

to
re

 -
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t

1
0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

S
A

V
/C

L
C

/0
4

R
e
d
u
c
e
 S

tr
e
e
t 
L
ig

h
t 
M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

3
5

2
6

2
6

S
A

V
/C

L
C

/0
5

T
ra

ff
ic

 E
n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 -
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

1
2
7

9
5

9
5

S
A

V
/C

L
C

/0
9

H
ig

h
w

a
ys

 M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 -

 R
e
d
u
c
e
 R

e
a
c
ti
v
e
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

4
5

3
4

3
4

S
A

V
/C

L
C

/1
0

C
lo

s
u
re

 o
f 
P

a
rk

in
g
 s

h
o
p

1
7
5

1
3
1

1
3
1

S
A

V
/C

L
C

/1
4

C
a
r 

P
o
u
n
d

9
0

6
7

6
7

S
a
v
in

g
s
 n

o
t 
a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 d

u
e
 t
o
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 v
a
c
a
te

 c
u
rr

e
n
t 

c
a
r 

p
o
u
n
d
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
. 
C

o
m

p
e
n
s
a
to

ry
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 b

e
in

g
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 v

ia
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 f
ro

m
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 

q
u
a
lit

y 
o
f 
P

C
N

 I
s
s
u
e
s
 f
a
c
ili

ta
te

d
 v

ia
 d

ig
it
a
l 
im

a
g
e
s
.

S
A

V
/C

L
C

/1
2

A
s
s
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
S

ys
te

m
4
5

3
4

3
4

s
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
6
9
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
4
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
4
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
&

 R
e
n

e
w

a
l:

 

Page 84



E
F

F
IC

IE
N

C
Y

 S
A

V
IN

G
S

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 2

0
0
9
-1

0
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 6
 

R
e
p

o
rt

e
d

 A
n

n
u

a
l

A
n

n
u

a
l

A
n

n
u

a
l

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 G

a
in

s
E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 G

a
in

s
E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 G

a
in

s
C

o
m

m
e
n

t

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

to
 Q

3
A

c
tu

a
ls

 t
o

 Q
3

2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
0
9
/1

0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

C
u

m
u

la
ti

v
e
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 g

a
in

s

S
A

V
/C

O
R

/0
1

H
o
ri
zo

n
ta

l 
S

a
v
in

g
s

5
4

4

S
A

V
/D

R
/0

2
U

ti
lis

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
IT

 t
o
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

1
0

8
0

T
h
e
 s

u
it
a
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 s

o
ft
w

a
re

 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
. 
It
 i
s
 u

n
lik

e
ly

 t
h
a
t 
a
n
y 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 g

e
n
e
ra

te
d
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 p

a
c
k
a
g
e
 i
n
 2

0
0
9
-1

0

S
A

V
/D

R
/0

5
D

ig
it
is

a
ti
o
n
 P

ro
je

c
t

6
0

4
5

0
It
 i
s
 a

s
s
u
m

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 n

o
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 

re
a
lis

e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
9
-2

0
1
0
 o

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e
a
rs

 d
u
e
 t
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

L
o
c
a
l 
L
a
n
d
 C

h
a
rg

e
s
 l
e
g
is

la
ti
o
n
. 
T

h
e
 s

h
o
rt

fa
ll 

is
 b

e
in

g
 

fu
n
d
e
d
 b

y 
th

e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
ye

a
r 

a
n
d
 

c
o
m

p
e
n
s
a
to

ry
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 M

e
d
iu

m
 

T
e
rm

 F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
p
la

n
 f
o
r 

E
n
e
rg

y 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

S
A

V
/C

O
R

/0
1

H
o
ri
zo

n
ta

l 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 -

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
fu

n
d

7
5

5

S
A

V
/D

R
/0

1
/0

9
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
S

u
b
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
s

6
9

5
2

5
2

S
A

V
/D

R
/0

2
/0

9
T

e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 &

 B
u
ild

in
g
 c

o
n
tr

o
l

5
1

0
4
0

S
A

V
/D

R
/0

3
/0

9
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 R

e
la

te
d
 E

m
p
lo

ym
e
n
t

1
5
0

0
0

A
ll 

o
f 
th

e
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
a
lis

e
d
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 

o
f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
ye

a
r.

S
A

V
/D

R
/0

4
/0

9
A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
G

e
rs

h
o
n
 S

a
v
in

g
s

4
5

3
4

3
4

s
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
3
9
7

1
4
8

1
3
5

C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
's

S
A

V
/C

E
/0

6
R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
9

5
2

5
2

C
o
m

p
e
n
s
a
ti
n
g
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 p

ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 
E

E
L

S
A

V
/C

E
/0

7
R

e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

4
0

3
0

3
0

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 v

o
lu

m
e
 o

f 
c
it
iz

e
n
s
h
ip

 c
e
re

m
o
n
ie

s
 g

e
n
e
ra

ti
n
g
 

in
c
o
m

e

s
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
1
0
9

8
2

8
2

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

S
A

V
/C

E
/0

5
P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
g
e
n
c
y 

s
ta

ff
  
th

ro
u
g
h
 v

e
n
d
o
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

2
0

1
5

1
5

S
A

V
/C

E
/0

8
R

e
-p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
C

a
re

 A
la

rm
 S

e
rv

ic
e

1
5
0

0
0

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
S

h
a
re

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 d

e
la

ye
d
 u

n
ti
l 
2
0
1
0
/1

1

S
A

V
/D

R
/0

4
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 M

a
tc

h
 f
u
n
d
in

g
2
0

1
5

1
5

S
A

V
/C

E
/0

9
R

e
-p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
O

O
O

 s
e
rv

ic
e

1
2
5

1
1
3

1
1
3

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

is
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
 h

a
s
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
e
d
 f
a
s
te

r 
th

a
n
 

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
.

S
A

V
/C

E
/1

0
C

e
n
tr

a
lis

e
d
 H

R
 S

h
a
re

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

1
5
0

1
1
3

1
1
3

S
A

V
/D

R
/0

6
Im

p
 E

ff
 i
n
 t
h
e
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
B

e
n
e
fi
ts

1
1
0

8
3

8
3

s
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
5
7
5

3
3
9

3
3
9

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

S
A

V
/C

O
R

/0
1

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 r

a
te

s
 R

e
lie

f
2
5
0

1
8
8

1
8
8

s
u

b
-t

o
ta

l
2
5
0

1
8
8

1
8
8

T
o

ta
l

5
,6

7
4

4
,1

7
4

4
,0

2
9

Page 85



Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 7
 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 G

R
O

W
T

H
 P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 

A
D

U
L

T
S

 

S
IG

 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 

 

P
ro

je
c
te

d
 

S
p

e
n

d
 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 

T
A

R
G

E
T

S
 

A
re

 t
a
rg

e
ts

 
b

e
in

g
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e
d

?
 

Is
s
u

e
s
/ 
P

ro
b

le
m

s
/ 

S
li

p
p

a
g

e
 

R
e
f 

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

A
re

a
 

£
0
0
0
 

£
0
0
0
 

 
 

 

2
0
0
9

/1
0
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
S

IG
/C

O
R

/0
1
 

 L
o
n
d

o
n
 L

iv
in

g
 

W
a
g
e
 

 
 

7
5
 

 
7
5
 

T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

a
g

e
n
c
y
 s

ta
ff

 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
d

 b
y
 t
h

e
 I
n
 H

o
u
s
e
 

h
o
m

e
c
a
re

 t
e
a
m

 w
ill

 r
e
c
e

iv
e

 
th

e
 L

o
n
d

o
n
 L

iv
in

g
 W

a
g
e
 

Y
e
s
-i
n
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

 

E
a
rl

ie
r 

Y
e
a
rs

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

S
IG

/A
H

W
B

/0
1
 

L
in

k
A

g
e
 P

lu
s
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

fo
r 

O
ld

e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

 
8
1
 

8
1
 

T
h
is

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 w

a
s
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 t
o
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 
th

e
 L

in
k
a
g
e
 P

lu
s
 p

ro
je

c
t 

fu
n
d
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 D

W
P

 a
n
d
 

N
R

F
 w

h
ic

h
 f

in
is

h
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
8

 

Y
e
s
  

 

T
o

ta
l 

–
 A

d
u

lt
s
 H

e
a
lt

h
 &

 W
e
ll

b
e
in

g
 

1
5
6
 

1
5

6
 

 
    

Page 87



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 7
 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 G

R
O

W
T

H
 P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 

S
C

H
O

O
L

S
 A

N
D

 F
A

M
IL

IE
S

 

   

S
IG

 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 

 

P
ro

je
c
te

d
 

S
p

e
n

d
 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 

T
A

R
G

E
T

S
 

A
re

 t
a
rg

e
ts

 
b

e
in

g
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e
d

?
 

Is
s
u

e
s
/ 
P

ro
b

le
m

s
/ 

S
li

p
p

a
g

e
 

R
e
f 

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

A
re

a
 

£
0
0
0
 

£
0
0
0
 

 
 

 

2
0
0
9

/1
0
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

S
IG

/C
O

R
/0

1
 

L
o
n
d

o
n
 L

iv
in

g
 

W
a
g
e
 

A
ll 

(l
e

a
d
 

o
ff

ic
e
r:

 
K

a
te

 
B

in
g
h

a
m

) 

1
8
5
 

  
  
  
  
  

 1
8

5
 

 
  
  
  
 Y

e
s
 

 

E
a
rl

ie
r 

Y
e
a
rs

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

O
N

E
/C

S
/0

1
 

Y
o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 

Y
o
u
th

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

(l
e
a
d
 

o
ff

ic
e
r:

 
M

a
ry

 
D

u
rk

in
) 

1
,0

0
0
 

  
  
  
  

1
,0

0
0
 

 
Y

e
s
 

 

T
o

ta
l 

–
 C

h
il
d

re
n

, 
S

c
h

o
o

ls
 &

 F
a
m

il
ie

s
 

1
,1

8
5
 

1
,1

8
5
 

   

Page 88



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 7
 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 G

R
O

W
T

H
 P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
IE

S
, 
L

O
C

A
L

IT
IE

S
 &

 C
U

L
T

U
R

E
 

 

S
IG

 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 

A
n

y
 I

s
s
u

e
s
/ 

P
ro

b
le

m
s
/ 

S
li

p
p

a
g

e
 

 

P
ro

je
c
te

d
 

S
p

e
n

d
 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 

T
A

R
G

E
T

S
 

A
re

 t
a
rg

e
ts

 
b

e
in

g
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e
d

?
 

 
R

e
f 

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

A
re

a
 

£
0
0
0
 

£
0
0
0
 

 
 

 

2
0
0
9

/1
0
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
L
A

P
 M

e
n
u
s
 

C
L
C

 &
 

C
h
ild

re
n

’s
 

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 

2
,3

8
0
 

1
,9

3
2
 

T
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

C
h
ild

re
n

’s
, 

P
u
b

lic
 R

e
a

lm
, 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 

a
n
d
 C

u
lt
u
ra

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

in
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 L

A
P

 m
e
n
u
 

a
g
re

e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 

A
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 

o
n
 t
a
rg

e
t 
to

 
a
c
h
ie

v
e
. 

D
ru

g
 o

u
tr

e
a
c
h
 

w
o
rk

e
rs

 f
o
r 

2
 y

e
a
rs

 
a
p
p
o

in
te

d
 i
n
 m

o
n
th

 6
. 

£
3
0
0
k
 t
o
 b

e
 u

ti
lis

e
d
 i
n
 

y
e

a
r 

2
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
. 

 S
lip

p
a
g
e

 o
n
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 d
u
e
 t
o
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
te

rm
 

o
v
e
rl

a
p

p
in

g
 w

it
h
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

(E
a
rl

y
 

G
C

E
 £

8
2
k
; 
E

x
te

n
d

in
g

 
L
e
a
rn

in
g

 £
4

8
k
 a

n
d
 

F
a
m

ily
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 £

1
8
k
) 

 

S
IG

/C
L
C

/0
2
 

E
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe

ty
 

3
6
8
 

3
6
8
 

O
v
e
ra

ll 
T

a
rg

e
t:
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 c

iv
il 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
a
g
a

in
s
t 

A
S

B
 a

n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 

is
s
u
e
s
. 
S

ta
ff

 n
o
w

 
a
p
p
o

in
te

d
, 

w
it
h
 

a
c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 d

u
e
 t
o
 b

e
g

in
 

w
h
e
n
 s

ta
ff

 t
a
k
e
 u

p
 

p
o
s
ts

 

S
ta

ff
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 

a
n
d
 i
n
 p

o
s
t 

   

 

Page 89



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 7
 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 G

R
O

W
T

H
 P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
IE

S
, 
L

O
C

A
L

IT
IE

S
 &

 C
U

L
T

U
R

E
 

 

R
e
f 

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

A
re

a
 

S
IG

 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 

P
ro

je
c
te

d
 

S
p

e
n

d
 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 

T
A

R
G

E
T

S
 

A
re

 t
a
rg

e
ts

 
b

e
in

g
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e
d

?
 

A
n

y
 I

s
s
u

e
s
/ 

P
ro

b
le

m
s
/ 

S
li

p
p

a
g

e
 

 
 

 
£
0
0
0
 

£
0
0
0
 

 
 

 

E
a
rl

ie
r 

Y
e
a
rs

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

O
N

E
/C

L
C

/1
0
 

T
a
c
k
lin

g
 A

S
B

 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe

ty
 

6
0
0
 

6
0
0
 

O
v
e
ra

ll 
T

a
rg

e
t:
 1

5
 

e
x
tr

a
 d

e
d

ic
a
te

d
 

p
o
lic

e
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 h
e
lp

in
g

 
e
x
is

ti
n

g
 S

a
fe

r 
n
e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o
d
 

T
e
a
m

s
 d

e
a
l 
w

it
h
 

is
s
u
e
s
 o

f 
m

o
s
t 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

 t
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 

Y
e
s
 

N
o
 

S
IG

/C
L
C

/0
1
 

R
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

W
a
s
te

 &
 

C
le

a
n
in

g
 

5
2
8
 

5
2
8
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 R

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 

R
a
te

s
 

 2
0
0
9

/1
0
 –

 2
6
%

 
2
0
1
0

/1
1
 –

 3
2
%

 
  

Y
e
s
 

N
o
 

S
IG

/C
L
C

/0
1
 

R
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

W
a
s
te

 &
 

C
le

a
n
in

g
 

6
6
 

6
6
 

S
e
e
 a

b
o

v
e
 

 
 

S
IG

/C
L
C

/0
2
 

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 I
n
 

S
p
o
rt

 &
 P

h
ys

ic
a
l 

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 

R
e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 

3
3
 

3
3
 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 r
e
la

te
 t

o
 2

 
n
e

w
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
: 

G
e
t 
A

c
ti
v
e

 –
 

L
a
u
n
c
h

e
d
 i
n
 O

c
t 

2
0
0
8
 

Y
o
u

n
g
 a

t 
H

e
a
rt

 –
 

L
a
u
n
c
h

e
d
 i
n
 A

u
g
u
s
t 

2
0
0
8
 

Y
e
s
 

N
o
 

Page 90



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 7
 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 G

R
O

W
T

H
 P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
IE

S
, 
L

O
C

A
L

IT
IE

S
 &

 C
U

L
T

U
R

E
 

  

R
e
f 

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

A
re

a
 

S
IG

 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 

P
ro

je
c
te

d
 

S
p

e
n

d
 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 

T
A

R
G

E
T

S
 

A
re

 t
a
rg

e
ts

 
b

e
in

g
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e
d

?
 

A
n

y
 I

s
s
u

e
s
/ 

P
ro

b
le

m
s
/ 

S
li

p
p

a
g

e
 

 
 

 
£
0
0
0
 

£
0
0
0
 

 
 

 

S
IG

/C
L
C

/0
3
 

C
ri
m

e
 &

 A
n
ti
-

S
o
c
ia

l 
B

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe

ty
 

3
7
 

3
7
 

S
u
rv

e
ill

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

In
te

lli
g
e

n
c
e
 

C
o
o
rd

in
a
to

r,
 t
o
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 t
u
rn

a
ro

u
n

d
 

ti
m

e
s
 i
n
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 k

e
y
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
. 

 

Y
e
s
 

N
o
 

S
IG

/C
L
C

/0
4
 

C
C

T
V

 C
o
n
tr

o
l 

C
e
n
tr

e
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe

ty
 

1
1
0
 

1
1
0
 

4
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
C

C
T

V
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s

ta
ff

, 
to

 
a
s
s
is

t 
in

 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 a

rr
e
s
t 
ra

te
 o

f 
4
6
 p

e
o
p

le
 a

 m
o
n
th

 i
n

 
0
7
/0

8
, 
a

n
d
  

liv
e
 

v
ie

w
in

g
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 

th
e
 i
s
s
u
e
 f

ro
m

 o
v
e
r 

9
0
0
 p

ie
c
e
s
 o

f 
e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 i
n
 0

7
/0

8
. 

Y
e
s
 

N
o
 

S
IG

/C
L
C

/0
5
 

P
u
b

lic
 R

e
a

lm
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

W
a
s
te

 &
 

C
le

a
n
in

g
 

2
5
8
 

2
5
8
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 

e
y
e
s
o
re

 s
it
e
s
 –

 
G

ra
ff

it
i/
F

ly
p
o
s
ti
n
g

 
R

e
m

o
v
a
l 
 

 N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

jo
b
s
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 h

a
v
e

 
d
o
u
b

le
d
 s

in
c
e
 t

e
a
m

s
 

c
o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 

Y
e
s
 

 N
o
 

 

T
o

ta
l 

–
 C

L
C

 
4
,3

8
0
 

3
,9

3
2
 

 

Page 91



 
 

 
 

 
 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 7
  
  
  
  

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 G

R
O

W
T

H
 P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 &

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L
 

    
              

     

S
IG

 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 

P
ro

je
c
te

d
 

S
p

e
n

d
 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 

R
e
f 

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 A

re
a
 

£
0
0
0
 

£
0
0
0
 

T
A

R
G

E
T

S
 

A
re

 t
a
rg

e
ts

 
b

e
in

g
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e
d

?
 

Is
s
u

e
s
/ 
P

ro
b

le
m

s
/ 
S

li
p

p
a
g

e
 

E
a
rl

ie
r 

Y
e
a
rs

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

S
IG

/D
R

/0
5
 

O
ly

m
p
ic

 &
 

P
a
ra

ly
m

p
ic

 
E

n
g

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

2
0
1
2

 O
ly

m
p
ic

 &
 

P
a
ra

ly
m

p
ic

 
G

a
m

e
s
 

5
0
 

5
0
 

 
Y

e
s
 

 

T
o

ta
l 

–
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
&

 R
e
n

e
w

a
l 
 

5
0

 
5

0
 

 
 

Page 92



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 7
 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 G

R
O

W
T

H
 P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 

 

   

S
IG

 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 

P
ro

je
c
te

d
 

S
p

e
n

d
 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 

R
e
f 

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

A
re

a
 

£
0
0
0
 

£
0
0
0
 

T
A

R
G

E
T

S
 

A
re

 t
a
rg

e
ts

 
b

e
in

g
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e
d

?
 

Is
s
u

e
s
/ 
P

ro
b

le
m

s
/ 

S
li

p
p

a
g

e
 

2
0
0
9

/1
0
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

S
IG

/R
E

S
/0

1
 

R
e
lie

v
in

g
 

O
v
e
rc

ro
w

d
in

g
 

  
9
0
 

9
0
 

 
Y

e
s
 

 

T
o

ta
l 

–
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

9
0

 
9

0
 

 
 

                    

Page 93



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 7
 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 G

R
O

W
T

H
 P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 

 

    
             

   

S
IG

 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 

P
ro

je
c
te

d
 

S
p

e
n

d
 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 

R
e
f 

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

A
re

a
 

£
0
0
0
 

£
0
0
0
 

T
A

R
G

E
T

S
 

A
re

 t
a
rg

e
ts

 
b

e
in

g
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e
d

?
 

Is
s
u

e
s
/ 
P

ro
b

le
m

s
/ 

S
li

p
p

a
g

e
 

E
a
rl

ie
r 

Y
e
a
rs

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

S
IG

/D
R

/0
4
 

S
u
b
s
id

y
 o

f 
B

u
ri

a
ls

 
 

3
2
1
 

1
6
8
 

 
N

o
 

T
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 l
o

w
e
r 

th
a
n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
a
k
e
 u

p
 

o
f 

th
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 

T
o

ta
l 

–
 C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
’s

 
3

2
1

 
1

6
8

 
 

 

Page 94



 
 

 

Committee/Meeting: 
 
Overview & Scrutiny 
 

Date: 
 
9th March 

Classification: 
 

Unrestricted  
 

 

Report No: 
 

Report of:  
Assistant Chief executive 
 
Originating officer(s)  
Louise Russell, Service Head Strategy & 
Performance 
 

Title:  
Strategic Plan 2009/10-11/12: Year 2 
Action Plan; and Outline Plan 
 
Wards Affected:  
All 

 
 
Lead Member 
 Cllr Ohid Ahmed 
Community Plan Theme 
  All 
Strategic Priority 
 All 
 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report concerns the Strategic Plan 2009/10-11/12: Year 2 Action Plan 

and Outline Plan 
 
1.2  The activities in the Year 2 Action Plan were discussed at CMT on the 17th 

November 2009 and the 9th February 2010. The Outline Plan has been 
circulated to all Tower Hamlet’s councillors for comment, none have been 
received.  

 
1.3 In view of the upcoming election in May 2010, we will review and if 

necessary refresh the Year 2 Action Plan in June 2010 to reflect the priorities 
of a new administration. 

 
1.4  The Strategic Plan 2009/10-11/12: Year 2 Action Plan is included as 

Appendix 1.  The Outline Plan is included as Appendix 2. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 Overview & Scrutiny is asked to:- 
 
2.1 Review and note the Council’s Strategic Plan 2009/10-11/12: Year 2 Action 

Plan and the Outline Plan. 
  
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Strategic Plan is the Council’s core planning document, setting out the 

Council’s vision for Tower Hamlets and its contribution to delivering the 
Community Plan.  

 

Agenda Item 8.1

Page 95



 
 

 

3.2 The current Strategic Plan 2009/10-11/12 provides a three-year framework 
for the delivery of the Council’s strategic priorities.  It sets out the strategic 
targets and provides details of the medium term financial plan which 
supports the delivery of these priorities.  The Strategic Plan also contains the 
one-year action plan which details exactly how the Council’s strategic 
priorities will be delivered.    

 
3.3 The Year 2 Action Plan 2010/11 contains 69 strategic activities which form a 

manageable programme for delivery and ensure the Strategic Plan remains 
sufficiently ‘strategic’ in its outlook.  By focussing on key activities in this 
way, the monitoring of progress by CMT and members is also facilitated.  

 
3.4 Our Strategic Plan is refreshed on an annual basis in order to be in place for 

the following financial year. This is an integral part of our Performance 
Management Framework and ensures that Directorate and Team plans can 
be developed in conjunction with the Strategic Plan. It also ensures that the 
council’s Strategic priorities for the following year are reviewed and aligned 
with the budget setting process.  

 
3.5  In view of the upcoming election in May 2010, the Year 2 Action Plan will be 

reviewed and if necessary refreshed in June 2010 to reflect the priorities of a 
new administration.  

 
3.6 The Community Plan and the Local Area Agreement (LAA) provide a clear 

strategic context for the Council’s business planning process.  The Council’s 
contribution to delivering Community Plan priorities and the targets detailed 
in the LAA are set out in the Strategic Plan.  

 
3.7  The current Strategic Plan 2009/10 - 2011/12 provides a three-year 

framework for the delivery of the Council’s strategic priorities.  Development 
of the 2010/11 Plan has therefore focussed on reviewing and refreshing the 
set of 3-year priority activities, and developing a detailed Action Plan for 
2010/11 

 
3.8  The refresh process, supported by the cross-council Strategic Plan Editorial 

Panel, has produced a more streamlined Plan to ensure focus on the 
Council’s key priorities.  

  
3.9  Stages 1 – Strategic Activities Refresh 

The Strategic Plan Editorial Panel met to review strategic activities in the 3 
year Plan and consider deletions, amendments or additions.  Draft strategic 
activities were then reviewed by Directors, Lead Members and DMTs. 

 
3.10  Stage 2 – the Outline Plan 

Directorates submitted activities for inclusion in the Outline Plan.  The draft 
Outline Plan was circulated to Directors and Directorate leads for 
consideration before it was presented to CMT in November. 

 
3.11  Stage 3 – the Year 2 Action Plan 

Page 96



 
 

 

Following approval of the Outline Plan by CMT, Directorates provided 
milestone information to support the delivery of these activities.  This 
information formed the basis of the Year 2 Action Plan (appendix 1) which 
was presented to CMT on the 9th February and will be presented to Cabinet 
on March 10th. 

 
4. BODY OF REPORT 
 
4.1 The Strategic Plan is the cornerstone of the corporate business planning 

cycle.  The Year 2 Action Plan has been produced for March and supports 
the development of Directorate Plans for April and Team Plans for May. By 
synchronising the business planning cycle in this way, the Council will 
establish a robust framework that will support the delivery of its priorities.   
 

4.2 The Strategic Plan 2009/10-11/12: Year 2 Action Plan includes: 
 
 The Community Plan vision  
 The local context and the Council’s role  
 The Year 2 Action Plan  
 The Council’s Strategic Indicators 
 And sections concerning the use of resources, data quality and risk 

management 
 
5. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
 
5.1 Cabinet might choose not to adopt the Strategic Plan. However, the 

Strategic Plan is part of the corporate business planning cycle.  Cabinet 
approval of the Year 2 Action Plan 2010/11 in March will ensure that the 
corporate business planning cycle is synchronised and that the development 
of Directorate and Team Plans takes place in a coherent framework which 
supports the delivery of Council priorities.  

 
5.2 Cabinet could choose to agree the Strategic Plan in altered form. If Cabinet 

wished to alter the Strategic Plan, regard would need to be had to the 
constraints expressed in the report, including the Community Plan 
objectives.   

 
6. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
6.1 The Strategic Plan is the council’s core planning document and this report 

sets out the actions planned for the period 2009/10 to 2011/12. The 
Council’s specific targets and deadlines are itemised in Appendix 1 under 
each of the Council’s five Strategic Priorities. The plan sets out a framework 
for allocating and directing financial resources for the year ahead and for the 
medium term, to ensure that resources are aligned with those priorities 

 
6.2 The Council considered and agreed its Budget and agreed the Council Tax 

for 2010/11 at its meeting on 3rd March 2010. The work programme set out in 
the Strategic Plan 2009/10-2011/12 is reflected in that budget both for the 

Page 97



 
 

 

Council as a whole and for each directorate. This report has no other 
financial implications. 

 
6.3 In the event that during the implementation of individual projects and 

schemes throughout the year further financial implications arise outside the 
current budget provision, officers are obliged to seek the appropriate 
financial approval before further financial commitments are made. 

 
6.4 Projections of the public finances indicate that the funding available to the 

Council will diminish in real terms over the next few years.  The Strategic 
Plan will be important in helping the Council to prioritise spending over the 
forthcoming period.  

 
7. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 (LEGAL SERVICES) 
 
7.1 In accordance with its obligation under section 4 of the Local Government 

Act 2000, the Council has, in partnership, prepared the Community Plan, 
which sets out its strategy for promoting or improving the economic, social 
and environmental well-being of Tower Hamlets.  It is entirely consistent with 
the preparation of that overarching strategy, that the Council should adopt a 
plan for delivering on the targets contained in the Community Plan. 

 
7.2 There may be a variety of statutory powers that underpin the actions in the 

strategic plan, but by virtue of the direct links with the Community Plan, it is 
possible to justify them by reference to the well-being power in section 2 of 
the Local Government Act 2000, although this would need to be evidenced 
in each case.  Pursuant to the well-being power the Council may do anything 
which it considers likely to achieve promotion of the economic, social or 
environmental well-being of the whole or any part of Tower Hamlets or all or 
any people resident or present in Tower Hamlets.  It will be for officers to 
ensure that specific actions are carried out according to law. 

 
7.3 Section 3 of the Local Government Act 1999 requires best value authorities, 

including the Council, to “make arrangements to secure continuous 
improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard 
to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness”.  The 
development of the actions in the strategic plan, together with their delivery 
and subsequent monitoring will contribute to the way in which the best value 
duty can be fulfilled. Monitoring reports to members and actions arising from 
those reports will demonstrate that the Council has undertaken activity to 
satisfy the statutory duty. 

 
8. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 
 
8.1 The Council’s Strategic Plan is focused upon meeting the needs of the 

diverse communities living in Tower Hamlets and supporting delivery of One 
Tower Hamlets.  In particular, plan priorities include the reduction of 
inequalities, the fostering of strong community cohesion and a priority that 
ensures we work efficiently and effectively as One Council.  These priorities 

Page 98



 
 

 

are supported by a range of strategic activities and indicators which are 
detailed in the Year 2 Action Plan. 

 
9. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 
 
9.1 The Year 2 Action Plan also contains key initiatives and indicators which 

support the strategic priority of improving the environment and tackling 
climate change.  

 
10. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

 
10.1 Prioritising key activities, to ensure understanding of and focus on what is 

absolutely critical within the Strategic Plan was the major feature of the 
development of the Year 2 Action Plan.  To support this prioritisation 
process, the number of key activities in the Strategic Plan has been 
streamlined.  This provides clarity to staff and local people about what 
matters to the Council, and also provides a manageable set of strategic 
activities for senior officers and elected members to monitor throughout the 
year to ensure we deliver. 

 
10.2  The authority maintains a Corporate Risk Register that identifies the most       

significant corporate and strategic risks.  The register contains details of the 
principal risks to the achievement of the objectives and targets in this plan 

 
10.3  Each of these risks is assessed for likelihood and impact and has a 

responsible owner and programme of mitigating actions/controls.  The 
register is updated throughout out the year and reported quarterly to the 
Corporate Management Team.  Each service maintains its own register of 
risks that feeds into the corporate monitoring and evaluation process.  In this 
way senior managers assess risks, develop mitigating actions, and monitor 
progress in a systematic manner. 

 
11. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 Priority 4.2 of the Strategic Plan concerns crime reduction.  More specifically, 

the range of activities detailed in this section of the Strategic Plan support 
the following objectives: reducing crime and reducing the fear of crime; 
reducing re-offending through holistic intervention and making crime 
prevention a key element of service planning  

  
12. EFFICIENCY STATEMENT  
 
12.1 One Tower Hamlets is the overarching theme of the Council’s Strategic Plan. 

The objectives which support this theme include the provision of effective 
and joined up corporate services and value for money across the Council. 
The activities and indicators detailed in the Plan which support these 
objectives will allow us to work efficiently and effectively as One Council. 

 
13. APPENDICES 
 

Page 99



 
 

 

Appendix 1 – Strategic Plan 2009/10-11/12: Year 2 Action Plan  
Appendix 2 – Outline Plan 
 

 
_______________________________________________________ 

 
Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (As amended) 

List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 
  

No “background papers” were used in 
writing this report 

Kael Long x4710 
 

 

Page 100



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

1 

To
we

r H
am

let
s S

tra
teg

ic 
Pla

n 2
00

9/1
0-

20
11

/12
 

    
Ye

ar 
2 A

cti
on

 Pl
an

 20
10

/11
 

Page 101



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

2 

Co
nte

nts
: 

 Se
cti

on
 1  

Ou
r V

isi
on

 
Se

cti
on

 2  
To

we
r H

am
let

s –
 Th

e S
tor

y S
o F

ar 
 

Se
cti

on
 3  

Th
e S

tra
teg

ic 
Pla

n a
nd

 th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 R

ole
 

Se
cti

on
 4  

Ye
ar 

2 A
cti

on
 Pl

an
 20

10
/11

 
Se

cti
on

 5  
Me

as
ur

ing
 Pr

og
res

s a
nd

 Se
ttin

g T
arg

ets
 

Se
cti

on
 6 

 
Us

e o
f R

es
ou

rce
s a

nd
 D

ata
 Q

ua
lity

 

 
 

Page 102



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

3 

1. 
Ou

r V
isi

on
: T

he
 C

om
mu

nit
y P

lan
 20

20
 

 Th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 vi

sio
n, 

de
ve

lop
ed

 in
 th

e C
om

mu
nit

y P
lan

 20
20

, 
an

d t
o b

e a
ch

iev
ed

 w
ith

 ou
r p

art
ne

rs 
an

d w
ith

 th
e a

cti
ve

 
pa

rtic
ipa

tio
n o

f a
ll t

ho
se

 w
ith

 a 
sta

ke
 in

 th
e b

oro
ug

h, 
is 

to 
im
pro

ve
 th
e q
ua
lity
 of
 lif
e f
or 
ev
ery
on
e w

ho
 liv
es
 an
d w

ork
s i
n 

the
 bo
rou
gh
. 

 Th
is 

is 
ou

r h
ea

dli
ne

 vi
sio

n f
or 

To
we

r H
am

let
s i

n 2
02

0. 
W

e 
ha

ve
 fu

rth
er 

de
ve

lop
ed

 ou
r V

isio
n a

rou
nd

 fo
ur 

the
me

s t
ha

t 
ca

ptu
re 

the
 ke

y i
ss

ue
s o

f im
po

rta
nc

e t
o l

oc
al 

pe
op

le 
an

d 
pa

rtn
ers

. U
nd

erp
inn

ing
 th

e V
isio

n i
s t

he
 de

sir
e t

o b
uil

d O
ne
 

To
we

r H
am

let
s –

 a 
bo

rou
gh

 w
he

re 
ev

ery
on

e f
ee

ls 
the

y h
av

e 
an

 eq
ua

l s
tak

e a
nd

 st
atu

s; 
wh

ere
 pe

op
le 

fee
l th

ey
 ha

ve
 th

e 
sa

me
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 as
 th

eir
 ne

igh
bo

urs
, w

he
re 

pe
op

le 
ha

ve
 a 

res
po

ns
ibi

lity
 to

 co
ntr

ibu
te;

 an
d w

he
re 

fam
ilie

s a
re 

the
 

co
rne

rst
on

e o
f s

uc
ce

ss
. 

 To
we

r H
am

let
s i

s a
 pl

ac
e w

ith
 im

me
ns

e o
pp

ort
un

itie
s f

or 
po

sit
ive

 ch
an

ge
, o

pp
ort

un
itie

s t
ha

t c
an

 be
 us

ed
 to

 br
ing

 ab
ou

t 
the

 m
an

y i
mp

rov
em

en
ts 

loc
al 

pe
op

le 
wa

nt 
an

d d
es

erv
e. 

A 
foc

us
 on

 su
sta

ina
bil

ity
 is

 es
se

nti
al 

so
 th

at 
ou

r a
cti

on
s a

re 
en

vir
on

me
nta

lly 
co

ns
ide

rat
e a

nd
 lo

ng
-la

sti
ng

 fo
r fu

tur
e 

ge
ne

rat
ion

s. 
Ac

ce
ss

 to
 af

for
da

ble
 ho

us
ing

 pr
ov

isio
n m

us
t b

e 
inc

rea
se

d a
nd

 co
mm

un
itie

s b
ett

er 
co

nn
ec

ted
 th

rou
gh

 
im

pro
ve

d t
ran

sp
ort

 ne
tw

ork
s, 

an
d s

up
po

rte
d t

hro
ug

h m
ore

 

an
d b

ett
er 

co
mm

un
ity

 fa
cili

tie
s. 

Th
e s

ha
red

 vi
sio

n i
s o

f T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 be
ing

 A
 G
rea

t P
lac

e t
o L

ive
. 

 In 
the

 cu
rre

nt 
ec

on
om

ic 
clim

ate
, it

 is
 im

pe
rat

ive
 th

at 
the

 
Co

un
cil 

an
d i

ts 
pa

rtn
ers

 en
su

re 
tha

t s
up

po
rt f

or 
loc

al 
en

ter
pri

se
 an

d p
art

ne
rsh

ip 
wo

rki
ng

, w
ith

 bo
th 

lar
ge

 an
d s

ma
ll 

bu
sin

es
se

s, 
co

nti
nu

es
 to

 be
 tra

ns
lat

ed
 in

to 
em

plo
ym

en
t 

op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 an

d t
ha

t lo
ca

l p
eo

ple
 ha

ve
 th

e s
kill

s a
nd

 tra
ini

ng
 

ne
ed

 to
 ta

ke
 ad

va
nta

ge
 of

 th
em

. T
ac

klin
g t

he
 pr

ob
lem

 of
 

wo
rkl

es
sn

es
s, 

wh
ich

 is
 w

ide
sp

rea
d i

n m
an

y o
f o

ur 
co

mm
un

itie
s, 

is 
a k

ey
 pr

ior
ity

 fo
r T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
. O

ur 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le 
wil

l le
arn

 fro
m 

the
 be

st 
tea

ch
ers

 an
d s

uc
ce

ss
ful

ly 
ga

in 
qu

ali
fic

ati
on

s t
ha

t a
llo

w 
the

m 
to 

pu
rsu

e t
he

ir c
are

er 
go

als
. 

Ta
kin

g a
dv

an
tag

e o
f th

e 2
01

2 O
lym

pic
 G

am
es

 an
d i

ts 
leg

ac
y, 

To
we

r H
am

let
s w

ill b
e r

ec
og

nis
ed

 as
 a 

pla
ce

 w
ith

 hi
gh

ly 
sk

ille
d a

mb
itio

us
 co

mm
un

itie
s, 

wh
ere

 en
tre

pre
ne

urs
hip

 an
d 

loc
al 

en
ter

pri
se

 is
 su

cc
es

sfu
l. T

he
 sh

are
d v

isio
n i

s o
f A
 

Pr
os
pe
ro
us
 C
om

mu
nit
y. 

 By
 20

20
 cr

im
e a

nd
 an

tis
oc

ial
 be

ha
vio

ur 
wil

l b
e g

rea
tly

 
red

uc
ed

 in
 ou

r n
eig

hb
ou

rho
od

s s
o t

ha
t a

ll r
es

ide
nts

 an
d 

vis
ito

rs,
 yo

un
g a

nd
 ol

d, 
fee

l s
afe

 an
d c

on
fid

en
t in

 th
eir

 ho
me

s 
an

d o
n t

he
 st

ree
ts 

of 
To

we
r H

am
let

s. 
Ev

ery
on

e w
ill h

av
e 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 qu
ali

ty 
su

pp
ort

 se
rvi

ce
s t

ha
t e

na
ble

 th
em

 to
 ac

hie
ve

 
the

ir p
ote

nti
al 

in 
life

. C
ho

ice
 w

ill b
e i

nte
gra

l to
 th

es
e s

erv
ice

s, 
so

 in
div

idu
als

 re
ce

ive
 ca

re 
in 

the
 w

ay
 th

ey
 w

an
t a

nd
 ne

ed
.  

Th
es

e s
up

po
rt s

erv
ice

s w
ill e

ns
ure

 ev
ery

on
e, 

an
d p

art
icu

lar
ly 

the
 vu

lne
rab

le,
 ar

e p
rot

ec
ted

 fro
m 

ris
k o

f h
arm

 an
d s

up
po

rte
d 

Page 103



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

4 

to 
live

 in
de

pe
nd

en
t a

nd
 em

po
we

red
 liv

es
. E

arl
y i

nte
rve

nti
on

 
an

d w
ho

le-
fam

ily 
pa

rtn
ers

hip
 ap

pro
ac

he
s t

o i
ss

ue
s o

f 
co

mm
un

ity
 sa

fet
y a

nd
 su

pp
ort

 w
ill e

ns
ure

 th
es

e i
ss

ue
s a

re 
tac

kle
d h

oli
sti

ca
lly.

 Th
e s

ha
red

 vi
sio

n i
s o

f A
 Sa

fe 
an
d 

Su
pp
or
tiv
e C

om
mu

nit
y. 

 Lo
ca

l re
sid

en
ts 

wil
l liv

e l
on

g a
nd

 fu
lfill

ed
 liv

es
, a

wa
re 

of 
ho

w 
the

ir l
ife

sty
le 

ch
oic

es
 af

fec
t th

eir
 ow

n a
nd

 th
eir

 fa
mi

ly’s
 he

alt
h 

an
d w

ell
be

ing
. A

ll w
ill b

e a
ble

 to
 ac

ce
ss

 hi
gh

 qu
ali

ty 
he

alt
h 

an
d s

oc
ial

 ca
re 

in 
the

ir c
om

mu
nit

ies
. H

ea
lth

 ca
re 

wil
l fo

cu
s o

n 
he

alt
h p

rom
oti

on
 an

d p
rev

en
tio

n a
s f

ew
er 

res
ide

nts
 w

ill n
ee

d 
ac

ute
 lo

ng
-tim

e c
are

 fo
r a

vo
ida

ble
 he

alt
h c

on
ce

rns
. O

ur 
sh

are
d v

isio
n i

s o
f A
 H
ea
lth
y C

om
mu

nit
y. 

 

Lo
ca

l A
rea

 A
gr

ee
me

nt 
 To

 tu
rn 

ou
r v

isio
n i

nto
 re

ali
ty,

 th
e C

ou
nc

il a
nd

 ou
r p

art
ne

rs 
ha

ve
 ag

ree
d a

 se
t o

f p
rio

rity
 ta

rge
ts 

wh
ich

 ou
r p

art
ne

rs 
wil

l 
wo

rk 
to 

ac
hie

ve
 ov

er 
the

 co
mi

ng
 ye

ars
. T

he
se

 ha
ve

 be
en

 
ne

go
tia

ted
 an

d a
gre

ed
 w

ith
 na

tio
na

l g
ov

ern
me

nt 
in 

ou
r L

oc
al 

Ar
ea

 Ag
ree

me
nt.

 Th
e p

rio
riti

es
 se

t o
ut 

in 
the

 LA
A w

ere
 ar

riv
ed

 
at 

thr
ou

gh
 ex

ten
siv

e c
on

su
lta

tio
n t

hro
ug

h t
he

 Pa
rtn

ers
hip

, a
nd

 
are

 in
ten

de
d t

o d
eli

ve
r th

e a
sp

ira
tio

ns
 w

ith
in 

the
 C

om
mu

nit
y 

Pla
n v

isio
n. 

Th
es

e p
rov

ide
 th

e f
ou

nd
ati

on
 fo

r th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 

str
ate

gic
 pr

ior
itie

s s
et 

ou
t in

 th
is 

do
cu

me
nt.

  A
ll L

oc
al 

Ar
ea

 
Ag

ree
me

nt 
tar

ge
ts 

are
 in

clu
de

d a
s S

tra
teg

ic 
Ind

ica
tor

s w
ith

in 
the

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 St
rat

eg
ic 

Pla
n. 

  

Page 104



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

5 

2. 
To

we
r H

am
let

s C
on

tex
t –

 th
e s

tor
y s

o f
ar 

 Th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 St

rat
eg

ic 
Pla

n w
ill b

e d
eli

ve
red

 in
 th

e c
on

tex
t o

f 
a f

as
t-c

ha
ng

ing
 Bo

rou
gh

. T
he

 la
nd

sc
ap

e h
as

 al
ter

ed
 va

stl
y 

ov
er 

rec
en

t y
ea

rs.
 Th

e p
op

ula
tio

n h
as

 gr
ow

n a
nd

 di
ve

rsi
fie

d. 
Ea

st 
Lo

nd
on

 is
 pr

ep
ari

ng
 to

 ho
st 

the
 20

12
 O

lym
pic

 an
d 

Pa
ral

ym
pic

 G
am

es
.  

 Ine
vit

ab
ly,

 To
we

r H
am

let
s h

as
 be

en
 af

fec
ted

 by
 th

e g
lob

al 
ec

on
om

ic 
rec

es
sio

n. 
Un

em
plo

ym
en

t h
as

 be
en

 ris
ing

, a
nd

 at
 

13
.1%

 is
 do

ub
le 

the
 na

tio
na

l a
ve

rag
e, 

an
d t

he
 pa

ce
 of

 ne
w 

ho
us

ing
 gr

ow
th 

ha
s s

low
ed

. H
ow

ev
er,

 ou
r c

om
mi

tm
en

t to
 

tac
klin

g t
he

se
 is

su
es

 re
ma

ins
 st

ron
g a

nd
 w

e h
av

e w
ork

ed
 

clo
se

ly 
wit

h p
art

ne
rs 

to 
mi

nim
ise

 th
e i

mp
ac

t o
f th

e r
ec

es
sio

n 
on

 re
sid

en
ts 

an
d b

us
ine

ss
.    

 Im
pro

ve
d o

utc
om

es
 fo

r y
ou

ng
 pe

op
le 

in 
To

we
r H

am
let

s 
inc

lud
e a

n 1
1%

 im
pro

ve
me

nt 
on

 pr
ev

iou
s a

tta
inm

en
t o

f 5
 A*

-
C 

gra
de

s a
t G

CS
E (

inc
lud

ing
 En

gli
sh

 an
d M

ath
s) 

as
 w

ell
 as

 a 
fur

the
r 6

% 
red

uc
tio

n –
 as

 of
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
9 –

 in
 yo

un
g 

pe
op

le 
no

t in
 em

plo
ym

en
t, e

du
ca

tio
n a

nd
 tra

ini
ng

. 
 To

we
r H

am
let

s h
as

 to
p r

ate
d ‘

ex
ce

lle
nt’

 ch
ild

ren
’s 

se
rvi

ce
s 

an
d s

om
e o

f th
e b

es
t c

om
mu

nit
y s

afe
ty 

im
pro

ve
me

nts
 in

 
Lo

nd
on

. T
he

re 
ha

s a
lso

 be
en

 a 
sig

nif
ica

nt 
inc

rea
se

 in
 

sa
tis

fac
tio

n w
ith

 st
ree

t c
lea

ns
ing

, w
hic

h i
s n

ow
 hi

gh
er 

tha
n t

he
 

Lo
nd

on
 av

era
ge

. 
 

 A s
tro

ng
 re

sp
on

se
 to

 th
e e

qu
ali

tie
s a

ge
nd

a i
s a

t th
e h

ea
rt o

f 
ou

r w
ork

 an
d i

s r
efl

ec
ted

 in
 th

e O
ne

 To
we

r H
am

let
s t

he
me

 in
 

thi
s S

tra
teg

ic 
Pla

n. 
To

 th
is 

en
d w

e h
av

e t
ak

en
 st

ep
s t

o e
ns

ure
 

tha
t w

e m
ee

t th
e h

igh
es

t le
ve

l o
f th

e E
qu

ali
ty 

Fra
me

wo
rk 

for
 

Lo
ca

l g
ov

ern
me

nt 
– a

 co
mm

itm
en

t th
at 

wa
s r

ec
og

nis
ed

 w
he

n 
the

 co
un

cil 
wa

s r
ec

en
tly

 as
se

ss
ed

 as
 ‘e

xc
ell

en
t’. 

 Th
rou

gh
ou

t a
ll o

f th
is 

ch
an

ge
 an

d i
mp

rov
em

en
t, T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 re

ma
ins

 a 
pla

ce
 of

 co
ntr

as
t, w

he
re 

we
alt

h a
nd

 
aff

lue
nc

e s
it b

es
ide

 re
lat

ive
 po

ve
rty

 in
 m

an
y a

rea
s. 

Ex
pe

ns
ive

 
ne

w 
pri

va
te 

riv
ers

ide
 ho

us
ing

 de
ve

lop
me

nts
 si

t a
lon

g s
ide

 
so

cia
l h

ou
sin

g e
sta

tes
. T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 ha

s o
ne

 of
 th

e h
igh

es
t 

po
pu

lat
ion

 de
ns

itie
s i

n i
nn

er 
Lo

nd
on

 an
d a

 fa
st 

gro
win

g 
po

pu
lat

ion
 th

at 
is 

ex
pe

cte
d t

o r
ea

ch
 w

ell
 ov

er 
30

0,0
00

 by
 

20
26

.  
 Th

e a
ve

rag
e s

ala
ry 

for
 th

os
e w

ork
ing

 in
 To

we
r H

am
let

s i
s 

aro
un

d £
58

,00
0, 

ye
t 1

8%
 of

 ho
us

eh
old

s a
re 

livi
ng

 on
 le

ss
  

tha
n £

15
,00

0. 
Ho

us
ing

 af
for

da
bil

ity
 is

 lo
w 

by
 na

tio
na

l 
sta

nd
ard

s, 
wit

h a
n a

ve
rag

e h
ou

se
 pr

ice
 of

 £3
27

,67
0 –

 m
ore

 
tha

n d
ou

ble
 th

e a
ve

rag
e i

n E
ng

lan
d a

nd
 W

ale
s –

 an
d o

ut 
of 

rea
ch

 fo
r m

os
t lo

ca
l p

eo
ple

. 
 Ot

he
r fa

cts
 an

d f
igu

res
 th

at 
ref

lec
t th

e a
rra

y o
f c

ha
lle

ng
es

 an
d 

op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 in

 th
e B

oro
ug

h i
nc

lud
e: 

 
• 

To
we

r H
am

let
s i

s o
ne

 of
 th

e m
os

t e
thn

ica
lly 

div
ers

e 
are

as
 in

 th
e c

ou
ntr

y. 
Ab

ou
t h

alf
 of

 th
e t

ota
l p

op
ula

tio
n 

Page 105



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

6 

are
 fro

m 
bla

ck
 an

d m
ino

rity
 et

hn
ic 

co
mm

un
itie

s. 
Am

on
g t

ho
se

 ag
ed

 un
de

r 2
0, 

the
 pe

rce
nta

ge
 ris

es
 to

 
79

%.
 

 • 
W

ell
 ov

er 
10

0 d
iffe

ren
t la

ng
ua

ge
s a

re 
sp

ok
en

 by
 ou

r 
sc

ho
ol 

pu
pil

s. 
  

 
• 

Alt
ho

ug
h t

hin
gs

 ar
e i

mp
rov

ing
, li

fe 
ex

pe
cta

nc
y r

em
ain

s 
low

 in
 To

we
r H

am
let

s r
ela

tiv
e t

o o
the

r a
rea

s –
 av

era
ge

 
life

 ex
pe

cta
nc

y a
t b

irth
 is

 75
 fo

r m
en

 an
d 8

0 f
or 

wo
me

n, 
ran

kin
g T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 37

2nd
 ou

t o
f 4

04
 lo

ca
l a

uth
ori

ty 
are

as
 fo

r m
ale

 lif
e e

xp
ec

tan
cy

 an
d 3

55
th

 ou
t o

f 4
04

 fo
r 

fem
ale

 lif
e e

xp
ec

tan
cy
 

 
• 

To
we

r H
am

let
s h

as
 a 

rel
ati

ve
ly 

yo
un

g p
op

ula
tio

n 
str

uc
tur

e c
om

pa
red

 w
ith

 ot
he

r a
rea

s. 
37

% 
of 

the
 

po
pu

lat
ion

 ar
e a

ge
d 2

0-3
4 c

om
pa

red
 w

ith
 27

% 
ac

ros
s 

Lo
nd

on
 an

d 2
0%

 na
tio

na
lly.

   
 

• 
As

 a 
de

ns
e u

rba
n a

rea
 w

ith
 a 

hig
h l

ev
el 

of 
de

ve
lop

me
nt,

 lo
ca

l e
ne

rgy
 us

e a
nd

 C
O2

 em
iss

ion
s a

re 
hig

h. 
He

lpi
ng

 to
 ta

ck
le 

clim
ate

 ch
an

ge
 an

d i
mp

rov
e a

ir 
qu

ali
ty 

is 
the

ref
ore

 a 
sig

nif
ica

nt 
ch

all
en

ge
. L

ife
sty

le 
ch

an
ge

s a
nd

 di
ffic

ult
 ch

oic
es

 w
ill h

av
e t

o b
e m

ad
e i

n 
fut

ure
 ye

ars
.   

 Th
e C

om
mu

nit
y P

lan
 re

co
gn

ise
s t

ha
t T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 is

 a 
‘co

mm
un

ity
 of

 co
mm

un
itie

s’ 
- s

o a
 on

e-s
ize

-fit
s-a

ll a
pp

roa
ch

 
to 

pro
ble

m 
so

lvin
g a

nd
 im

pro
ve

me
nts

 w
ill n

ot 
wo

rk.
 Th

e 
ch

all
en

ge
 is

, a
nd

 w
ill c

on
tin

ue
 to

 be
, to

 m
ak

e s
ure

 th
at 

the
 

ma
ny

 di
ffe

ren
t a

nd
 sp

ec
ific

 ne
ed

s t
ha

t e
xis

t in
 To

we
r H

am
let

s 
are

 id
en

tifi
ed

, u
nd

ers
too

d a
nd

 ad
dre

ss
ed

. 
 Th

e C
ou

nc
il’s

 St
rat

eg
ic 

Pla
n 2

01
0/1

1 s
ets

 ou
t th

e p
art

icu
lar

 
ac

tiv
itie

s t
ha

t th
e C

ou
nc

il w
ill p

rio
riti

se
 in

 th
e y

ea
r a

he
ad

 to
 

en
su

re 
tha

t w
e c

an
 re

sp
on

d t
o t

he
 ch

all
en

ge
s o

f th
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 co

nte
xt 

an
d m

ak
e a

 ke
y c

on
trib

uti
on

 to
 ac

hie
vin

g o
ur 

sh
are

d p
art

ne
rsh

ip 
vis

ion
.  

Page 106



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

7 

3. 
Th

e S
tra

teg
ic 

Pla
n a

nd
 th

e C
ou

nc
il’s

 ro
le 

 
 Th
e C

ou
nc

il h
as

 a 
ke

y r
ole

 in
 de

live
rin

g t
he

 C
om

mu
nit

y P
lan

 
20

20
 vi

sio
n. 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 St

rat
eg

ic 
Pla

n 2
00

9/1
0-1

1/1
2: 

Ye
ar 

2 A
cti

on
 Pl

an
, c

ov
eri

ng
 th

e p
eri

od
 Ap

ril 
20

10
- M

arc
h 2

01
1, 

se
ts 

ou
t k

ey
 ta

rge
ts 

for
 th

e C
ou

nc
il a

nd
 th

e k
ey

 in
itia

tiv
es

 
pla

nn
ed

 to
 de

live
r th

e i
mp

rov
ed

 ou
tco

me
s w

e a
sp

ire
 to

. M
an

y 
of 

the
se

 in
itia

tiv
es

 w
ill i

nv
olv

e w
ork

ing
 w

ith
 pa

rtn
ers

 an
d t

he
 

loc
al 

co
mm

un
ity

.  
 In 
all

 of
 ou

r w
ork

 w
e a

re 
dri

ve
n b

y t
he

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 C
or
e V

alu
es

:  
 • 

Ac
hie

vin
g r
es
ult
s  

W
e a

re 
pa

ss
ion

ate
 ab

ou
t a

ch
iev

ing
 th

e b
es

t fo
r o

ur 
co

mm
un

itie
s. 

W
e w

an
t to

 be
 th

e b
es

t in
 th

e c
ou

ntr
y a

t w
ha

t 
we

 do
 an

d t
o k

ee
p g

ett
ing

 be
tte

r a
nd

 be
tte

r, m
ov

ing
 be

yo
nd

 
ex

ce
lle

nc
e. 

W
e a

cti
ve

ly 
en

su
re 

we
 ac

hie
ve

 va
lue

 fo
r m

on
ey

 
in 

ev
ery

thi
ng

 w
e d

o. 
 • 

Va
lui
ng
 di
ve
rsi
ty 

Eq
ua

litie
s a

nd
 di

ve
rsi

ty 
is 

at 
the

 he
art

 of
 w

ha
t w

e d
o a

nd
 ho

w 
we

 do
 it.

 It 
is 

bu
ilt 

int
o l

ea
de

rsh
ip,

 co
ns

ult
ati

on
 an

d 
inv

olv
em

en
t, s

erv
ice

s t
o o

ur 
cu

sto
me

rs 
an

d r
ec

rui
tm

en
t a

nd
 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
of 

sta
ff. 

W
e r

ec
og

nis
e t

ha
t h

av
ing

 a 
wo

rkf
orc

e 
tha

t re
fle

cts
 th

e c
om

mu
nit

y i
s e

ss
en

tia
l in

 or
de

r to
 de

live
r 

hig
h q

ua
lity

 se
rvi

ce
s. 

 • 
En
ga
gin

g w
ith
 ot
he
rs 
 

In 
ord

er 
to 

ac
hie

ve
 re

su
lts

, w
e n

ee
d t

o e
ng

ag
e p

os
itiv

ely
 w

ith
 

oth
ers

, th
e c

om
mu

nit
y, 

ou
r s

taf
f a

nd
 ou

r p
art

ne
rs.

 W
e n

ee
d 

to 
en

su
re 

tha
t w

e c
om

mu
nic

ate
 ef

fec
tiv

ely
 an

d c
rea

te 
op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r in

vo
lve

me
nt 

an
d e

ng
ag

em
en

t. 
 • 

Le
arn

ing
 ef
fec

tiv
ely

 
W

e a
re 

a l
ea

rni
ng

 or
ga

nis
ati

on
. W

e t
ak

e r
es

po
ns

ibi
lity

 fo
r o

ur 
ow

n l
ea

rni
ng

 an
d s

ha
re 

ou
r le

arn
ing

 w
ith

 ot
he

rs.
 

 Ke
y P

rio
rit
ies

 
 Th

e C
ou

nc
il h

as
 id

en
tifi

ed
 a 

nu
mb

er 
of 

ke
y p

rio
riti

es
 fo

r it
s 

Str
ate

gic
 Pl

an
, w

hic
h d

ire
ctl

y r
efl

ec
t th

e B
oro

ug
h’s

 C
om

mu
nit

y 
Pla

n p
rio

riti
es

. A
lth

ou
gh

 O
ne

 To
we

r H
am

let
s u

nd
erp

ins
 al

l 
the

me
s, 

it i
s i

nc
lud

ed
 in

 th
e S

tra
teg

ic 
Pla

n a
s a

 th
em

e i
n i

tse
lf. 

Ea
ch

 of
 th

e f
ive

 th
em

es
 is

 su
pp

ort
ed

 by
 ke

y p
rio

riti
es

 fo
r 

ac
tio

n w
hic

h w
ill p

rov
ide

 th
e f

oc
us

 fo
r o

ur 
se

rvi
ce

 de
live

ry 
for

 
the

 pe
rio

d t
o M

arc
h 2

01
0. 

  
  

Page 107



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

8 

 Th
em

es
 

Pr
ior
itie

s 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

• 
Re

du
ce

 in
eq

ua
litie

s a
nd

 fo
ste

r s
tro

ng
 co

mm
un

ity
 co

he
sio

n  
• 

W
ork

 ef
fic

ien
tly

 an
d e

ffe
cti

ve
ly 

as
 O

ne
 C

ou
nc

il 

A G
rea

t  P
lac

e t
o L

ive
  

• 
Pr

ov
ide

 af
for

da
ble

 ho
us

ing
 an

d d
ev

elo
p s

tro
ng

 ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
ds

 
• 

Str
en

gth
en

 an
d c

on
ne

ct 
co

mm
un

itie
s  

• 
Su

pp
ort

 vi
bra

nt 
tow

n c
en

tre
s a

nd
 a 

cle
an

er,
 sa

fer
 pu

bli
c r

ea
lm

  
• 

Im
pro

ve
 th

e e
nv

iro
nm

en
t a

nd
 ta

ck
le 

clim
ate

 ch
an

ge
 

A P
ros

pe
rou

s C
om

mu
nit

y 
• 

Su
pp

ort
 lif

elo
ng

 le
arn

ing
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r a

ll 
• 

Re
du

ce
 w

ork
les

sn
es

s 
• 

Fo
ste

r e
nte

rpr
ise

 
A S

afe
 an

d S
up

po
rtiv

e 
Co

mm
un

ity
 

• 
Em

po
we

r o
lde

r a
nd

 vu
lne

rab
le 

pe
op

le 
an

d s
up

po
rt f

am
ilie

s  
• 

Ta
ck

le 
an

d p
rev

en
t c

rim
e 

• 
Fo

cu
s o

n e
arl

y i
nte

rve
nti

on
  

A H
ea

lth
y C

om
mu

nit
y  

• 
Re

du
ce

 di
ffe

ren
ce

s i
n p

eo
ple

’s 
he

alt
h a

nd
 pr

om
ote

 he
alt

hy
 lif

es
tyl

es
 

• 
Su

pp
ort

 m
en

tal
 he

alt
h s

erv
ice

s t
o i

mp
rov

e m
en

tal
 he

alt
h  

  Th
e S

tra
teg

ic 
Pla

n a
lso

 sp
ec

ifie
s t

he
 ke

y t
arg

ets
 th

e C
ou

nc
il 

ex
pe

cts
 to

 ac
hie

ve
 ag

ain
st 

the
se

 pr
ior

itie
s b

y M
arc

h 2
01

1 a
nd

 
se

ts 
ou

t th
e k

ey
 in

itia
tiv

es
 w

hic
h t

he
 C

ou
nc

il w
ill u

nd
ert

ak
e i

n 
20

10
/11

 to
 de

live
r th

es
e t

arg
ets

. T
he

se
 ke

y i
nit

iat
ive

s r
efl

ec
t 

the
 si

gn
ific

an
t c

ha
ng

e o
r im

pro
ve

me
nt 

ac
tiv

ity
 w

hic
h w

ill b
e 

ou
r fo

cu
s f

or 
the

 ye
ar 

ah
ea

d. 
W

ith
in 

the
 C

ou
nc

il e
ac

h 
Dir

ec
tor

ate
 an

d e
ac

h s
erv

ice
, w

ill a
lso

 de
ve

lop
 m

ore
 de

tai
led

 
ac

tio
n p

lan
s d

em
on

str
ati

ng
 ho

w 
the

y c
on

trib
ute

 at
 an

 
op

era
tio

na
l le

ve
l. 

Page 108



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

9 

4. 
Ye

ar 
2 A

cti
on

 Pl
an

 20
10

/11
  

 Th
e K

ey
 In

itia
tiv

es
 fo

r 2
01

0/1
1 t

o s
up

po
rt t

he
 de

live
ry 

of 
the

 lo
ng

er 
ter

m 
go

als
 of

 th
e C

om
mu

nit
y P

lan
 ar

e s
et 

ou
t in

 th
e f

oll
ow

ing
 

ac
tio

n p
lan

. E
ac

h i
nit

iat
ive

 id
en

tifi
es

 so
me

 ke
y p

rog
res

s m
ile

sto
ne

s t
o e

na
ble

 pr
og

res
s t

o b
e e

ffe
cti

ve
ly 

mo
nit

ore
d. 

 
  On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
 Pr
ior
ity
 1.
1: 

Re
du

ce
 in
eq
ua
liti
es
 an

d f
os
ter

 st
ron

g c
om

mu
nit
y c

oh
es
ion

 
 Ob

jec
tiv
es
: 

1.1
.1 

To
 re

du
ce

 in
eq

ua
litie

s 
1.1

.2 
Fo

ste
r s

tro
ng

 co
mm

un
ity

 co
he

sio
n 

1.1
.3 

Pr
ov

ide
 st

ron
g c

om
mu

nit
y l

ea
de

rsh
ip 

an
d i

nc
lus

ive
 se

rvi
ce

s 
St
rat
eg
ic 
Ac
tio
n  

Le
ad
 M
em

be
r, L

ea
d 

Of
fic
er 
an
d D

ire
cto

rat
e  

Mi
les

ton
es
 an

d D
ea
dli
ne
s 

De
ve

lop
 a 

ne
w 

thr
ee

 ye
ar 

Dis
ab

ility
 & 

Ge
nd

er 
Eq

ua
lity

 Sc
he

me
s, 

Ma
y 2

01
0  

Re
po

rt o
n h

ow
 th

e S
ing

le 
Eq

ua
lity

 D
uty

 
em

bra
ce

s s
oc

io-
ec

on
om

ic 
iss

ue
s, 

Ma
y 2

01
0  

Str
en

gth
en

 th
e w

ork
 pr

og
ram

me
 of

 th
e 

Div
ers

ity
 & 

Eq
ua

lity
 N

etw
ork

 to
 de

live
r th

e 
Sin

gle
 Eq

ua
lity

 D
uty

, O
cto

be
r 2

01
0  

1. 
 Im

ple
me

nt 
ou

r S
ing

le 
Eq

ua
lity

 D
uty

 em
bra

cin
g t

he
 

six
 in

div
idu

al 
Eq

ua
lity

 Sc
he

me
s. 

Cll
r J

os
hu

a P
ec

k 
 Mi

ch
ae

l K
ea

tin
g, 

Sc
rut

iny
 an

d E
qu

ali
tie

s, 
Ch

ief
 Ex

ec
uti

ve
’s 

Str
ea

ml
ine

 th
e D

ive
rsi

ty 
an

d E
qu

ali
ty 

Ac
tio

n 
Pla

n a
nd

 lin
k t

o t
he

 co
rpo

rat
e m

on
ito

rin
g 

pro
ce

ss
 M

ay
 20

11
 

Page 109



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

10
 

 

De
ve

lop
 a 

pro
gra

mm
e o

f w
ork

 w
ith

 pa
rtn

ers
 to

 
em

be
d f

urt
he

r O
ne

 To
we

r H
am

let
s i

n s
erv

ice
s 

by
 M

ay
 20

10
  

Bu
ild

 in
to 

Me
mb

er 
ind

uc
tio

n, 
the

 eq
uip

pin
g o

f 
co

un
cill

ors
 to

 be
 m

ore
 ef

fec
tiv

e c
om

mu
nit

y 
lea

de
rs 

by
 M

ay
 20

10
 

De
ve

lop
 an

d i
mp

lem
en

t s
cru

tin
y p

rog
ram

me
 

wh
ich

 em
bra

ce
s b

oth
 ex

ter
na

l p
art

ne
rs 

an
d 

ha
s l

oc
al 

foc
us

 by
 Ju

ly 
20

10
  

De
live

r m
ay

ora
l re

fer
en

du
m 

6th
 M

ay
 20

10
 an

d, 
su

bje
ct 

to 
ou

tco
me

, re
str

uc
tur

e e
xe

cu
tiv

e a
nd

 
me

mb
er 

su
pp

ort
 an

d/o
r h

old
 m

ay
ora

l 
ele

cti
on

 21
st
 O

cto
be

r 2
01

0  
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 to

 em
be

d D
uty

 to
 In

vo
lve

 st
atu

tor
y 

gu
ida

nc
e b

y M
arc

h 2
01

1  

2. 
 R

efr
es

h t
he

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 co
mm

un
ity

 le
ad

ers
hip

 ro
le 

to 
bu

ild
 on

 th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 vi

bra
nt 

loc
al 

de
mo

cra
cy

. 
 

Cll
r  J

os
hu

a P
ec

k 
 Mi

ch
ae

l K
ea

tin
g, 

Sc
rut

iny
 an

d E
qu

ali
tie

s, 
Ch

ief
 Ex

ec
uti

ve
’s 

 

De
live

r C
om

mu
nit

y L
ea

de
rsh

ip 
gra

nts
 

pro
gra

mm
e, 

Ma
rch

 20
11

 
Ag

ree
 C

om
mu

nic
ati

on
s S

tra
teg

y b
y A

pri
l 2

01
0 

Re
fre

sh
 an

d i
ntr

od
uc

e k
ey

 co
mm

un
ica

tio
n 

po
lici

es
 by

 Se
pte

mb
er 

20
10

 
De

ve
lop

 a 
To

we
r H

am
let

s m
ark

eti
ng

 st
rat

eg
y 

wit
h p

art
ne

rs 
in 

pre
pa

rat
ion

 fo
r O

lym
pic

s i
n 

20
12

, s
co

pin
g r

ep
ort

 ap
pro

ve
d b

y J
an

ua
ry 

20
11

 

3. 
Re

vie
w 

an
d i

mp
lem

en
t th

e C
om

mu
nic

ati
on

s 
Str

ate
gy

 an
d s

tre
ng

the
n t

he
 co

ord
ina

tio
n a

cro
ss

 th
e 

Co
un

cil 
of 

co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns

 ac
tiv

itie
s, 

wh
ere

 po
ss

ibl
e 

lin
kin

g c
oo

rdi
na

tio
n o

f c
om

mu
nic

ati
on

s w
ith

 th
e 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

  

Cll
r  J

os
hu

a P
ec

k 
 Ale

x L
ou

is,
 

Co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns

, C
hie

f 
Ex

ec
uti

ve
’s 

Re
vie

w 
co

un
cil-

wid
e c

orp
ora

te 
co

mm
un

ica
tio

ns
 st

an
da

rds
 an

d i
mp

lem
en

t 
mo

nit
ori

ng
 pr

oc
es

s, 
Oc

tob
er 

20
10
  

Page 110



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

11
 

Pr
ior
ity
 1.
2: 
W
ork

 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d e
ffe

cti
ve
ly 
as
 O
ne

 C
ou
nc
il 

 Ob
jec

tiv
es
: 

1.2
.1 

    
En

su
rin

g v
alu

e f
or 

mo
ne

y a
cro

ss
 th

e C
ou

nc
il 

1.2
.2 

    
Re

cru
itin

g, 
su

pp
ort

ing
 an

d d
ev

elo
pin

g a
n e

ffe
cti

ve
 w

ork
for

ce
  

1.2
.3 

    
Pr

ov
idi

ng
 ef

fec
tiv

e a
nd

 jo
ine

d u
p c

orp
ora

te 
se

rvi
ce

s t
o e

ns
ure

 th
e d

eli
ve

ry 
of 

Co
un

cil 
pri

ori
tie

s  
 

St
rat
eg
ic 
Ac
tio
n 

Le
ad
 M
em

be
r, L

ea
d 

Of
fic
er 
an
d D

ire
cto

rat
e  

Mi
les

ton
es
 an

d D
ea
dli
ne
s 

HR
IP 

-  d
eli

ve
ry 

of 
res

ou
rci

ng
 pr

oc
es

se
s/t

ea
m,

  
Ap

ril 
20

10
  

De
tai

led
 st

rat
eg

ic 
ac

tio
ns

 an
d m

ile
sto

ne
s t

o b
e 

ag
ree

d b
y T

ran
sfo

rm
ati

on
 Bo

ard
, A

pri
l 2

01
0 

W
ork

for
ce

 to
 R

efl
ec

t th
e C

om
mu

nit
y r

ep
ort

 to
 

Ca
bin

et,
 to

 pr
ov

ide
 20

09
/10

 re
vie

w 
of 

ou
tco

me
s 

ag
ain

st 
tar

ge
ts,

 M
ay

 20
10

 
Ca

bin
et 

to 
ag

ree
 th

e 2
01

0/1
1 W

ork
for

ce
 to

 
Re

fle
ct 

the
 C

om
mu

nit
y A

cti
on

 Pl
an

 
an

d T
arg

ets
, M

ay
 20

10
 

  4. 
Im

ple
me

nt 
the

 W
ork

for
ce

 Pl
an

 to
 m

ee
t th

e C
ou

nc
il's

 
str

ate
gic

 re
so

urc
ing

 ne
ed

s i
nc

lud
ing

 ac
tio

ns
 ar

isin
g f

rom
 

the
 C

ou
nc

il's
 W

ork
for

ce
 to

 R
efl

ec
t th

e C
om

mu
nit

y 
Str

ate
gy

 an
d A

cti
on

 Pl
an

 

 

  Cll
r O

hid
 Ah

me
d 

 Ste
ve

 Ja
me

s, 
Int

eri
m 

Se
rvi

ce
 H

ea
d o

f H
R,

 
Re

so
urc

es
 

HR
IP 

- d
eli

ve
ry 

of 
ne

w 
HR

 ad
mi

n p
roc

es
se

s 
an

d r
es

ou
rce

 sa
vin

gs
, O

cto
be

r 2
01

0 
Ide

nti
fy 

ad
dit

ion
al 

eff
icie

nc
y p

roj
ec

ts 
for

 
20

11
/12

  b
y J

un
e 2

01
0 (

Ala
n F

inc
h) 

Ac
hie

ve
me

nt 
of 

pla
nn

ed
 ef

fic
ien

cie
s f

or 
20

10
/11

 re
po

rte
d t

o C
ab

ine
t o

n a
 qu

art
erl

y 
ba

sis
 fro

m 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20

10
  

Ide
nti

fy 
ad

dit
ion

al 
eff

icie
nc

y p
roj

ec
ts 

for
 

20
12

/13
 by

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

0 
5. 

De
live

r th
e E

ffic
ien

cy
 Pr

og
ram

me
 

Cll
r O

hid
 Ah

me
d 

 Ch
ris

 N
ay

lor
, A

lan
 Fi

nc
h, 

Se
rvi

ce
 H

ea
d C

orp
ora

te 
Fin

an
ce

, R
es

ou
rce

s 
Co

nfi
rm

 th
e f

ina
l E

ffic
ien

cy
 Pr

og
ram

me
 fo

r 
20

11
/12

, N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

0 

Page 111



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

12
 

Re
vie

w 
the

 15
-ye

ar 
Ca

pit
al 

Str
ate

gy
 an

d 
ide

nti
fy 

the
 fu

nd
ing

 re
qu

ire
me

nt 
for

 ca
pit

al 
inv

es
tm

en
t in

 th
e L

BT
H 

fro
m 

20
11

-20
26

, 
Ja

nu
ary

 20
11

 
Pil

ot 
stu

dy
 co

ve
rin

g L
AP

s 3
 & 

4 c
om

ple
ted

, 
Ju

ne
 20

10
  

As
se

t S
tra

teg
y (

inc
lud

ing
 im

ple
me

nta
tio

n p
lan

) 
ap

pro
ve

d, 
Ma

rch
 20

11
 

Th
ree

 ye
ar 

rol
lin

g d
isp

os
al 

pro
gra

mm
e f

or 
su

rpl
us

 pr
op

ert
y a

pp
rov

ed
, S

ep
tem

be
r 2

01
0 

Ac
tio

n P
lan

 ad
op

ted
 by

 As
se

t M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Bo
ard

 fo
r fu

rth
er 

im
pro

ve
me

nts
 to

 us
e o

f 
as

se
ts,

 Ju
ne

 20
10

 

6. 
De

ve
lop

 an
 as

se
t a

nd
 ca

pit
al 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
str

ate
gy

 to
 

en
ab

le 
the

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 as
se

ts 
to 

be
 ut

ilis
ed

 in
 th

e m
os

t 
eff

ec
tiv

e w
ay

 

 Cll
r O

hid
 Ah

me
d 

 Am
an

 D
alv

i, 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d 

Re
ne

wa
l 

 

To
 fu

rth
er 

im
pro

ve
 us

e o
f b

en
ch

ma
rki

ng
 ac

ros
s 

the
 co

un
cil 

by
 em

be
dd

ing
 th

e N
AP

PM
I 

be
nc

hm
ark

ing
 sc

he
me

, M
arc

h 2
01

1 

7. 
De

live
r th

e L
oc

al 
Pr

ior
itie

s P
rog

ram
me

 
Cll

r O
hid

 Ah
me

d 
 Ala

n F
inc

h, 
Se

rvi
ce

 
He

ad
 C

orp
ora

te 
Fin

an
ce

, R
es

ou
rce

s 

Im
pro

ve
 qu

art
erl

y m
on

ito
rin

g o
f s

pe
nd

ing
 

ag
ain

st 
the

 ca
pit

al 
pro

gra
mm

e b
y e

sta
bli

sh
ing

 
"O

ne
 Ve

rsi
on

 of
 th

e T
rut

h" 
for

 de
live

ry 
an

d 
fun

din
g p

rog
ram

me
s, 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
11

  
Vis

ion
 an

d V
alu

es
 la

un
ch

ed
, A

pri
l 2

01
0 

Tra
ns

for
ma

tio
n t

oo
lkit

 ro
lle

d o
ut 

fro
m 

Ap
ril 

20
10

 
Tra

ns
for

ma
tio

n O
pti

on
s a

pp
rai

sa
l c

on
clu

de
d, 

Ju
ne

 20
10

 
Op

tio
ns

 re
fin

em
en

t, O
cto

be
r 2

01
0 

8. 
 D

ev
elo

p t
he

 C
ou

nc
il's

 Tr
an

sfo
rm

ati
on

 Pr
og

ram
me

 so
 

tha
t it

 fu
lly 

su
pp

ort
s, 

at 
all

 le
ve

ls 
an

d a
cro

ss
 al

l 
dir

ec
tor

ate
s, 

the
 vi

sio
n o

f a
 le

an
er,

 m
ore

 fle
xib

le 
an

d 
cit

ize
n-c

en
tre

d C
ou

nc
il a

nd
 th

e a
ch

iev
em

en
t o

f a
 

ba
lan

ce
d t

hre
e b

ud
ge

t s
tra

teg
y f

or 
20

11
/12

 - 2
01

3/1
4 

  Cll
r O

hid
 Ah

me
d 

 Ch
ris

 N
ay

lor
, 

Re
so

urc
es

, L
utf

ur 
Ali

, 
Ch

ief
 Ex

ec
uti

ve
s O

ffic
e 

Dr
aft

 bu
dg

et 
pro

po
sa

ls 
an

d s
tra

teg
ic 

pla
n, 

De
ce

mb
er 

20
10

 

Page 112



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

13
 

Th
ree

 ye
ar 

bu
dg

et 
str

ate
gy

 ap
pro

ve
d, 

Ma
rch

 
20

10
 

On
lin

e r
en

ew
al 

of 
res

ide
nts

 pa
rki

ng
 pe

rm
its

 an
d 

su
bm

iss
ion

 of
 pa

rki
ng

 re
pre

se
nta

tio
ns

, 
De

ce
mb

er 
20

10
 

 
 

Re
al-

tim
e p

ay
me

nts
 fo

r P
ark

ing
 Fi

ne
s, 

Oc
tob

er 
20

10
; C

CT
V i

ma
ge

s a
va

ila
ble

 on
lin

e, 
De

ce
mb

er 
20

10
 

Re
vie

w 
of 

rol
e o

f m
an

ua
l s

wit
ch

bo
ard

 
co

mp
let

ed
, S

ep
tem

be
r 2

01
0 

9. 
Im

ple
me

nta
tio

n o
f th

e c
us

tom
er 

ac
ce

ss
 se

rvi
ce

 
de

live
ry 

im
pro

ve
me

nts
 ou

tlin
ed

 in
 th

e C
ha

nn
el 

Str
ate

gy
 

Cll
r O

hid
 Ah

me
d 

 Ch
ris

 N
ay

lor
, R

es
ou

rce
s 

Ac
tio

n p
lan

 ag
ree

d o
n s

ha
pe

 of
 R

ev
en

ue
s a

nd
 

Be
ne

fits
 Se

rvi
ce

s I
nc

lud
ing

  IC
T r

oa
dm

ap
, 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
10

 
Ro

llo
ut 

Bu
dg

et 
Mo

nit
ori

ng
 so

lut
ion

 to
 al

l 
Dir

ec
tor

ate
s, 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
10

  
Co

mp
let

e r
oll

ou
t o

f R
2P

 sy
ste

m 
to 

all
 

Dir
ec

tor
ate

s, 
Ma

y 2
01

0 
Im

ple
me

nt 
Ph

as
e 2

 - b
uil

din
g t

he
 ca

pa
cit

y o
f 

Fin
an

ce
 fo

r b
us

ine
ss

 pa
rtn

eri
ng

, M
arc

h 2
01

1 

10
. R

ev
iew

 of
 Fi

na
nc

ial
 M

an
ag

em
en

t A
rra

ng
em

en
ts 

– 
Sta

ge
 2:

  B
uil

din
g c

us
tom

er 
su

pp
ort

 an
d b

us
ine

ss
 

pa
rtn

eri
ng

 ar
ran

ge
me

nts
 so

 th
at 

the
 Fi

na
nc

e s
erv

ice
 

su
pp

ort
s t

he
 au

tho
rity

 th
rou

gh
 tig

hte
r p

ub
lic 

sp
en

din
g  

 Cll
r O

hid
 Ah

me
d 

 Ch
ris

 N
ay

lor
, R

es
ou

rce
s 

Str
ate

gy
 fo

r re
pla

ce
me

nt 
or 

up
gra

de
 of

 
Fin

an
cia

l In
for

ma
tio

n S
ys

tem
, M

arc
h 2

01
1 

Co
-or

din
ate

 su
bm

iss
ion

s f
or 

the
 20

10
 U

se
 of

 
Re

so
urc

es
 an

d C
AA

 su
bm

iss
ion

s t
o m

ax
im

ise
 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
, S

ep
tem

be
r 2

01
0  

11
. C

on
tin

ue
 to

 ro
bu

stl
y m

an
ag

e p
erf

orm
an

ce
 ac

ros
s 

the
 C

ou
nc

il a
nd

 st
ren

gth
en

 Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 

Cll
r O

hid
 Ah

me
d 

 Lo
uis

e R
us

se
ll, 

Str
ate

gy
 

& P
erf

orm
an

ce
, C

hie
f 

Ex
ec

uti
ve

’s 
Str

ea
ml

ine
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 m
on

ito
rin

g a
nd

 
rep

ort
ing

, in
clu

din
g r

ev
iew

 of
 Ex

ce
lsis

 sy
ste

m,
 

No
ve

mb
er 

20
10

  

Page 113



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

14
 

 

Es
tab

lish
 ar

ran
ge

me
nts

 fo
r th

e r
efr

es
h o

f th
e 

Co
mm

un
ity

 Pl
an

 an
d d

ev
elo

pm
en

t o
f n

ex
t 

rou
nd

 LA
A (

or 
an

y s
uc

ce
ss

or)
, M

arc
h 2

01
1  

 
 

En
ga

ge
 w

ith
 th

e P
art

ne
rsh

ip 
an

d C
om

mu
nit

y 
Pla

n D
eli

ve
ry 

Gr
ou

ps
 to

 en
su

re 
de

live
ry 

of 
fin

al 
LA

A t
arg

ets
, in

clu
din

g a
t le

as
t 3

 LA
A c

ha
lle

ng
e 

se
ss

ion
s, 

Ma
y/S

ep
tem

be
r/D

ec
em

be
r 

Page 114



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

15
 

A 
Gr

ea
t P

lac
e t

o L
ive

  
 Pr
ior
ity
 2.
1: 
Pr
ov
ide

 af
for

da
ble

 ho
us
ing

 an
d d

ev
elo

p s
tro

ng
 ne

igh
bo

urh
oo
ds
 

 Th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 ke

y a
gre

ed
 pr

ior
ity

 fo
r th

is 
ye

ar 
is 
red

uc
ing

 ov
er-
cro

wd
ing

 
Ob

jec
tiv
es
: 

2.1
.1 

Inc
rea

sin
g t

he
 ov

era
ll s

up
ply

 of
 ho

us
ing

 fo
r lo

ca
l p

eo
ple

 in
clu

din
g a

 ra
ng

e o
f a

ffo
rda

ble
, fa

mi
ly 

ho
us

ing
  

2.1
.2 

Pr
ov

ide
 de

ce
nt 

ho
me

s i
n w

ell
 de

sig
ne

d s
tre

ets
 an

d n
eig

hb
ou

rho
od

s 
2.1

.3 
Pla

nn
ing

 ne
w 

ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
ds

 w
ith

 su
pp

ort
ive

 se
rvi

ce
s l

ike
 pr

im
ary

 sc
ho

ols
, h

ea
lth

ca
re 

fac
iliti

es
 an

d l
oc

al 
pa

rks
 

2.1
.4 

Im
pro

vin
g t

he
 qu

ali
ty 

of 
ho

us
ing

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 re

lat
ed

 se
rvi

ce
s p

rov
ide

d t
o t

en
an

ts 
an

d l
ea

se
ho

lde
rs 

St
rat
eg
ic 
Ac
tio
n 

Le
ad
 M
em

be
r, L

ea
d 

Of
fic
er 
an
d D

ire
cto

rat
e  

Mi
les

ton
es
 an

d D
ea
dli
ne
s 

Co
mp

let
e R

d1
 C

ou
nc

il H
ou

se
 bu

ild
ing

 
pro

gra
mm

e (
BB

F) 
& d

ev
elo

p R
d2

 to
 H

CA
 

de
ad

lin
es

, M
arc

h 2
01

1  
Im

ple
me

nt 
 R

ev
ise

d A
llo

ca
tio

ns
 Po

licy
 an

d 
Le

ttin
gs

 Pl
an

, J
un

e 2
01

0  
Ag

ree
 th

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 Bo
rou

gh
 In

ve
stm

en
t 

Pla
n o

f p
rio

rity
 sc

he
me

s w
ith

 th
e H

CA
, J

un
e 

20
10

  
De

live
r 1

68
8 a

ffo
rda

ble
 ho

me
s, 

Ma
rch

 20
11

 
[ta

rge
t to

 be
 co

nfi
rm

ed
] 

Ide
nti

fy 
Ma

ste
rpl

an
 de

sig
n o

pti
on

s &
 de

ve
lop

 
pla

nn
ing

 ap
pli

ca
tio

n f
or 

Ma
ste

rpl
an

nin
g 

pro
ce

ss
 fo

r M
alm

es
bu

ry 
& B

irc
hfi

eld
 es

tat
es

 
[da

te 
to 

be
 co

nfi
rm

ed
]  

12
.  D

eli
ve

r a
  n

ew
 bu

ild
 pr

og
ram

me
 bo

th 
by

 th
e  

co
un

cil 
(B

BF
) a

nd
 w

ith
 pa

rtn
ers

 to
 re

du
ce

 ov
erc

row
din

g  
 

Cll
r M

arc
 Fr

an
cis
  

 Ja
ck

ie 
Od

un
oy

e, 
 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
an

d 
Re

ne
wa

l 

Ag
ree

 st
art

 on
 si

te 
for

  L
oc

al 
Ho

me
s I

nit
iat

ive
 

Sc
he

me
, J

un
e 2

01
0  

Page 115



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

16
 

Re
vie

w 
ea

ch
  R

SL
 on

 a 
qu

art
erl

y b
as

is 
to 

as
se

ss
 th

eir
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

pro
gra

mm
e a

nd
 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
pro

gre
ss

, q
ua

rte
rly

 Ju
ne

, 
Se

pte
mb

er,
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
0 a

nd
 M

arc
h 2

01
1  

 Es
tab

lish
 R

SL
 Pr

efe
rre

d P
art

ne
r W

ork
 Pl

an
, 

Ma
y 2

01
0  

Re
vie

w 
the

 pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 of

 R
SL

s i
n 

co
nju

nc
tio

n w
ith

 Te
na

nts
 Se

rvi
ce

s A
uth

ori
ty 

ag
ain

st 
the

 ag
ree

d p
ref

err
ed

 pa
rtn

er 
sc

he
me

, 
Ma

rch
 20

11
  

13
. S

tre
ng

the
n R

SL
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w

ork
ing

 to
 i) 

Se
cu

re 
pri

va
te 

an
d p

ub
lic 

inv
es

tm
en

t to
 de

live
r a

 su
pp

ly 
of 

ne
w 

aff
ord

ab
le 

ho
us

ing
 an

d i
i) i

mp
rov

e s
tan

da
rd 

an
d q

ua
lity

 
of 

ho
us

ing
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 

Cll
r M

arc
 Fr

an
cis

 
 Ja

ck
ie 

Od
un

oy
e, 

 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d 

Re
ne

wa
l 

Re
po

rt t
ran

sfe
r R

SL
s ‘

Of
fer

 Pr
om

ise
’ p

rog
res

s 
to 

LA
B, 

tw
ice

 ye
arl

y [
da

tes
 to

 be
 co

nfi
rm

ed
] 

Au
dit

 C
om

mi
ss

ion
 in

sp
ec

tio
n o

f T
HH

, 
No

ve
mb

er 
20

10
  

Mo
nth

ly 
rev

iew
 of

 pr
og

res
s a

ga
ins

t T
HH

 
20

10
/11

 D
eli

ve
ry 

Pla
n  

14
.  A

ch
iev

e 2
-S

tar
 Au

dit
 C

om
mi

ss
ion

 In
sp

ec
tio

n w
ith

 
To

we
r H

am
let

s h
om

es
 to

 un
loc

k r
es

ou
rce

s t
o d

eli
ve

r 
De

ce
nt 

Ho
me

s. 
 

 

Cll
r M

arc
 Fr

an
cis

 
 Ja

ck
ie 

Od
un

oy
e, 

 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d 

Re
ne

wa
l 

Qu
art

erl
y s

tra
teg

ic 
rev

iew
 an

d a
gre

em
en

t o
f 

va
ria

tio
ns

/ad
dit

ion
s t

o p
erf

orm
an

ce
 ou

tpu
ts,

 
Ma

y, 
Au

gu
st,

 N
ov

em
be

r a
nd

 Fe
bru

ary
 20

11
  

Bl
ac
kw

all
 R
ea
ch

  
>S

ub
mi

t p
lan

nin
g a

pp
lica

tio
n, 

Oc
tob

er 
 20

10
 

>S
ele

ct 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

pa
rtn

er,
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

01
0 

>S
tar

t o
n s

ite
, M

arc
h 2

01
1  

 15
. R

es
ha

pe
 m

ajo
r e

sta
te 

ren
ew

al 
pro

jec
ts 

wit
h k

ey
 

pa
rtn

ers
 

 

 Cll
r R

an
ia 

Kh
an

 
 Cll

r M
arc

 Fr
an

cis
 

 Ch
ris

 W
orb

y, 
 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
an

d 
Re

ne
wa

l 
Oc

ea
n E

sta
te 

 
>C

om
me

nc
e m

ain
 re

fur
bis

hm
en

t p
rog

ram
me

, 
Ap

ril 
20

10
  

Page 116



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

17
 

>C
om

me
nc

e N
ew

 Bu
ild

 Pr
og

ram
me

 ar
ea

 
E,  

De
ce

mb
er 

20
10

 
 

 
Co
tta
ll S

tre
et 

Co
mp

let
e 2

nd
 st

ag
e d

es
ign

 fe
as

ibi
lity

 pr
oc

es
s 

an
d o

bta
in 

pla
nn

ing
 ap

pro
va

l fo
r a

gre
ed

 
sc

he
me

, M
arc

h 2
01

1  
De

tai
led

 re
sp

on
se

 to
 Le

ga
cy

 an
d O

ve
rla

y 
Pla

nn
ing

 Ap
pli

ca
tio

ns
, S

ep
tem

be
r 2

01
0 (

D&
R)

 
En

do
rse

me
nt 

of 
Ol

ym
pic

 Le
ga

cy
 St

rat
eg

ic 
Pla

nn
ing

 G
uid

an
ce

 (G
LA

), D
ec

em
be

r 2
01

0 
(D

&R
) 

16
. E

ng
ag

e i
n t

he
 O

lym
pic

 Le
ga

cy
 M

as
ter

pla
n p

roc
es

s 
to 

se
cu

re 
ma

xim
um

 be
ne

fits
 fo

r T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
  

Cll
r  L

utf
ur 

Ra
hm

an
 

 Nic
k S

ma
les

,  
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d 

Re
ne

wa
l 

To
ge

the
r w

ith
 th

e 4
 ot

he
r h

os
t b

oro
ug

hs
, 

se
cu

re 
fun

din
g a

nd
 de

live
r a

 pr
og

ram
me

 of
 

Pu
bli

c R
ea

lm
 im

pro
ve

me
nts

 in
 ar

ea
s m

os
t 

aff
ec

ted
 by

 th
e O

lym
pic

 de
ve

lop
me

nt:
 

> D
es

ign
 by

 Se
pte

mb
er 

20
10

 
> S

pe
cif

ica
tio

n b
y D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
0 

> B
uil

d c
om

me
nc

ed
 by

 M
arc

h 2
01

0 
 (C

LC
) 

De
ve

lop
 th

e F
ish

 Is
lan

d A
rea

 Ac
tio

n P
lan

 fo
r 

co
ns

ult
ati

on
 an

d o
pti

on
s t

es
tin

g, 
Au

gu
st 

20
10

 
De

ve
lop

 a 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
DP

D 
for

 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

 on
 op

tio
ns

 te
sti

ng
, M

ay
 20

10
  

De
ve

lop
 a 

Sit
e a

nd
 Pl

ac
e M

ak
ing

 D
PD

 fo
r 

co
ns

ult
ati

on
 on

 op
tio

ns
 te

sti
ng

 in
 D

ec
em

be
r 

20
10

  

17
. P

rog
res

s t
he

 Lo
ca

l D
ev

elo
pm

en
t C

ore
 St

rat
eg

y 
Fra

me
wo

rk 
to 

dri
ve

 th
e s

us
tai

na
ble

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
of 

the
 

Bo
rou

gh
 

 

Cll
r M

arc
 Fr

an
cis

  
 Ow

en
 W

ha
lle

y, 
 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
an

d 
Re

ne
wa

l 

Fu
rth

er 
de

ve
lop

, im
ple

me
nt 

an
d m

on
ito

r th
e 

Gr
ee

n G
rid

 w
hic

h i
de

nti
fie

s t
he

 re
qu

ire
d g

ree
n 

Page 117



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

18
 

 

the
 bo

rou
gh

, M
ay

 20
10

  
Co

un
cil 

to 
ad

op
t th

e C
ore

 St
rat

eg
y i

n 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20

10
  

Re
vie

w 
arr

an
ge

me
nts

 fo
r m

an
ag

ing
 an

d 
mo

nit
ori

ng
 S1

06
 re

so
urc

es
, M

arc
h 2

01
1  

 
 

Ne
w 

Fu
nd

ing
 Ag

ree
me

nts
 in

 pl
ac

e b
etw

ee
n 

LB
TH

 an
d T

hir
d P

art
y D

eli
ve

ry 
Ag

en
cie

s f
or 

the
 ex

pe
nd

itu
re 

of 
S1

06
 m

on
ies

 (P
ha

se
 1 

Ag
ree

me
nt 

for
 PC

T i
n p

lac
e),

 Ja
nu

ary
 20

11
  

Pr
ior
ity
 2.
2: 
St
ren

gth
en
 an

d c
on

ne
ct 
co
mm

un
itie

s 
 Ob

jec
tiv
es
: 

2.2
.1 

Im
pro

vin
g p

ub
lic 

tra
ns

po
rt n

etw
ork

s a
nd

 en
ab

lin
g m

ore
 re

sid
en

ts 
to 

wa
lk 

an
d c

yc
le 

sa
fel

y  
2.2

.2 
Br

ing
ing

 to
ge

the
r c

om
mu

nit
ies

 to
 fo

ste
r m

utu
al 

un
de

rst
an

din
g, 

a c
oll

ec
tiv

e s
en

se
 of

 w
ell

be
ing

 an
d a

vo
id 

pe
op

le 
be

ing
 is

ola
ted

 
2.2

.3 
  E

ns
uri

ng
 co

mm
un

itie
s h

av
e g

oo
d a

cc
es

s t
o a

 fu
ll r

an
ge

 of
 fa

cili
tie

s -
 in

clu
din

g h
ea

lth
 se

rvi
ce

s, 
sc

ho
ols

 an
d l

eis
ure

 
St
rat
eg
ic 
Ac
tio
n  

Le
ad
 M
em

be
r, L

ea
d 

Of
fic
er 
an
d D

ire
cto

rat
e  

Mi
les

ton
es
 an

d D
ea
dli
ne
s 

De
ve

lop
 th

e L
oc

al 
Im

ple
me

nta
tio

n P
lan

 fo
r 

Tra
ns

po
rt 2

01
1/1

5 t
o s

et 
ou

t a
n a

cti
on

 pl
an

 fo
r 

all
 tra

ns
po

rt i
mp

rov
em

en
ts 

in 
the

 bo
rou

gh
 as

 a 
ba

sis
 fo

r fu
tur

e f
un

din
g b

ids
, D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
0 

(D
&R

) 
Lo

ca
l In

ve
stm

en
t P

lan
 2 

– S
ub

mi
t L

IP 
2 t

o 
TF

L, 
De

ce
mb

er 
20

10
 

18
. Im

ple
me

nt 
ye

ar 
2 o

f th
e S

us
tai

na
ble

 Tr
an

sp
ort

 
Str

ate
gy

 to
 im

pro
ve

 th
e c

on
ne

cti
on

s b
etw

ee
n 

co
mm

un
itie

s 
  

Cll
r M

arc
 Fr

an
cis

  
 Ow

en
 W

ha
lle

y, 
 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
an

d 
Re

ne
wa

l 

Pr
od

uc
e a

 dr
aft

 10
-Y

ea
r w

alk
ing

 Pl
an

, O
cto

be
r 

20
10

 (D
&R

) 

Page 118



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

19
 

De
live

r fi
rst

 pi
lot

 Su
pe

rhi
gh

wa
y a

nd
 ce

ntr
al 

are
a B

ike
 H

ire
 sc

he
me

  in
itia

l e
lem

en
ts 

of 
the

 
Ma

yo
r’s

 C
yc

le 
Re

vo
lut

ion
 by

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
01

0 
(C

LC
) 

 
 

Im
ple

me
nt 

Ye
ar 

3 o
f th

e C
ou

nc
il’s

 St
aff

 Tr
av

el 
Pla

n t
o r

ed
uc

e t
he

 im
pa

ct 
of 

sta
ff t

rav
el 

on
 th

e 
en

vir
on

me
nt 

by
 Ju

ly 
20

10
 (C

LC
) 

Im
ple

me
nt 

a c
om

mu
nit

y e
ng

ag
em

en
t 

pro
gra

mm
e a

lon
g H

igh
 St

ree
t 2

01
2. 

Pr
og

ram
me

 ag
ree

d a
nd

 be
ing

 im
ple

me
nte

d b
y 

Ju
ne

 20
10

 (D
&R

) 
De

live
ry 

of 
thr

ee
 H

igh
 St

ree
t 2

01
2 

en
ga

ge
me

nt 
sc

he
me

s /
 ac

tiv
itie

s c
om

ple
ted

, 
Ma

rch
 20

11
 (D

&R
)  

Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f th
e P

ers
on

al 
Be

st 
Vo

lun
tee

rin
g P

rog
ram

me
 on

go
ing

 – 
Pr

og
ram

me
 Ev

alu
ati

on
 co

mp
let

ed
, N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 (D
&R

) 
Pr

od
uc

tio
n o

f a
 bu

sin
es

s p
lan

 fo
r V

ict
ori

a P
ark

 
as

 a 
live

 si
te 

in 
20

12
 in

 co
ns

ult
ati

on
 w

ith
 G

LA
 

an
d L

OC
OG

 - f
irs

t d
raf

t c
om

ple
ted

 by
 Ju

ne
 

20
10

  
Pa

rtic
ipa

te 
in 

the
 5 

Bo
rou

gh
 O

lym
pic

 Fe
sti

va
l 

(C
rea

te 
‘10

’) b
y J

un
e-J

uly
 20

10
  

Su
pp

ort
 th

e d
ev

elo
pm

en
t o

f th
e 5

 Bo
rou

gh
 

fes
tiv

al 
an

d s
tre

et 
art

 pr
oje

ct 
(lo

tte
ry 

fun
de

d) 
wit

h t
he

 ap
po

int
me

nt 
of 

an
 ar

tis
tic

 di
rec

tor
 an

d 
pro

du
cti

on
 co

mp
an

y b
y M

ay
 20

10
  

 19
. U

se
 th

e O
lym

pic
 an

d P
ara

lym
pic

 G
am

es
 to

 en
ga

ge
 

co
mm

un
itie

s i
n c

ult
ura

l, s
po

rtin
g a

nd
 ce

leb
rat

ory
 ev

en
ts 

 
  

Cll
r L

utf
ur 

Ra
hm

an
 

 Nic
k S

ma
les

, 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d 

Re
ne

wa
l 

 He
ath

er 
Bo

nfi
eld

,  
Co

mm
un

itie
s L

oc
ali

tie
s 

an
d C

ult
ure

 

De
live

r th
e P

ara
dis

e G
ard

en
s f

ree
 co

mm
un

ity
 

Page 119



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

20
 

ev
en

t in
 Ju

ne
 20

10
 

 
 

De
live

r a
n O

lym
pic

 & 
Pa

ral
ym

pic
 Sp

ort
s 

Ac
tiv

itie
s p

rog
ram

me
 in

clu
din

g: 
 

>P
ara

lym
pic

 O
pe

n D
ay

 by
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
0; 

 
>T

im
e t

o S
hin

e i
n A

pri
l &

 Au
gu

st 
20

10
;  

>B
alf

ou
r B

ea
tty

 Lo
nd

on
 Yo

uth
 G

am
es

, 
Fe

bru
ary

 – 
Ju

ly 
20

10
 

Ol
ym

pic
 G

am
es

 O
pe

rat
ion

s G
rou

p a
nd

 Su
b-

gro
up

s f
ull

y o
pe

rat
ion

al 
by

 M
ay

 20
10

 
Sta

rt o
f s

et 
up

 ph
as

e b
y A

pri
l 2

01
0 a

nd
 

pla
nn

ing
 ph

as
e b

y J
uly

 20
10

 
20

. D
ev

elo
p a

n O
lym

pic
 G

am
es

 M
an

ag
em

en
t P

lan
 fo

r 
the

 Pu
bli

c R
ea

lm
 an

d w
ide

r c
orp

ora
te 

im
pa

cts
  

Cll
r L

utf
ur 

Ra
hm

an
 

 Ste
ph

en
 H

als
ey

, P
ub

lic 
Re

alm
, C

om
mu

nit
ies

 
Lo

ca
litie

s a
nd

 C
ult

ure
 

Co
mp

reh
en

siv
e m

an
ag

em
en

t p
lan

 in
 pl

ac
e b

y 
Ma

rch
 20

11
 

Pr
ov

ide
 M

ela
 st

all
ho

lde
r tr

ain
ing

 fo
r a

 m
ini

mu
m 

of 
50

 lo
ca

l s
ma

ll b
us

ine
ss

es
 by

 Ap
ril 

20
10

 
Re

cru
itm

en
t a

nd
 tra

ini
ng

 of
 24

 yo
un

g p
eo

ple
 

an
d l

oc
al 

pe
op

le 
to 

be
 M

ela
 st

ew
ard

s b
y A

pri
l 

20
10

 

21
. D

eli
ve

r a
 Ba

ish
ak

hi 
Me

la 
in 

Ba
ng

lat
ow

n B
ric

k L
an

e 
an

d d
ev

elo
p a

 co
mm

un
ity

 m
an

ag
em

en
t in

fra
str

uc
tur

e t
o 

tak
e i

t fo
rw

ard
 

Cll
r R

ofi
qu

e A
hm

ed
 

 He
ath

er 
Bo

nfi
eld

, 
Co

mm
un

itie
s L

oc
ali

tie
s 

an
d C

ult
ure

 

En
su

re 
tha

t: 
>5

 sc
ho

ols
 (a

pp
rox

 15
0 c

hil
dre

n),
 

>2
 yo

uth
 gr

ou
ps

 (m
ini

mu
m 

of 
30

 yo
un

g 
pe

op
le)

 an
d  

Page 120



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

21
 

by
 M

ay
 20

10
 

 
 

De
live

r th
e M

ela
 on

 23
rd

 M
ay

 20
10

 
Im

ple
me

nt 
ge

ne
ric

 w
ork

ing
 m

od
el 

fac
ilita

tin
g 

loc
al 

se
rvi

ce
 de

live
ry,

 Ja
n  

20
11

 
Jo

int
 ta

sk
ing

 pr
oc

es
s c

om
ple

ted
 fo

r A
SB

, 
cri

me
 an

d p
ub

lic 
rea

lm
 ac

tiv
itie

s b
y S

ep
tem

be
r 

20
10

 
NH

S T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 an
d Y

ou
th 

Se
rvi

ce
s 

en
ga

ge
d i

n j
oin

t ta
sk

ing
 pr

oc
es

s b
y M

arc
h 

20
11

 

22
. P

rov
ide

 m
ore

 ef
fic

ien
t a

nd
 in

teg
rat

ed
 un

ive
rsa

l 
se

rvi
ce

s i
n p

art
ne

rsh
ip 

wit
h k

ey
 st

ak
eh

old
ers

 
  

 Cll
r A

bd
al 

Ull
ah

 
 An

dy
 Ba

mb
er,

 
Co

mm
un

ity
 Sa

fet
y, 

Co
mm

un
itie

s L
oc

ali
tie

s 
an

d C
ult

ure
 

   
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 lo

ca
lisa

tio
n d

ev
elo

pm
en

t 
pro

gra
mm

e e
sta

bli
sh

ed
 by

 Lo
ca

lisa
tio

n B
oa

rd 
an

d a
pp

rov
ed

 by
 Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 Ex

ec
uti

ve
 by

 
Ap

ril 
20

10
 

Su
pp

ort
 an

d d
eli

ve
r th

e a
nn

ua
l p

rog
ram

me
 of

 
at 

lea
st 

85
 fe

sti
va

ls 
an

d e
ve

nts
 ac

ros
s t

he
 

Bo
rou

gh
 by

 M
arc

h 2
01

1  
11

 m
ajo

r fe
sti

va
l d

ay
s h

eld
 in

 Vi
cto

ria
 Pa

rk 
(in

clu
din

g c
om

me
rci

al 
mu

sic
 fe

sti
va

ls,
 an

d 
co

mm
un

ity
 ev

en
ts 

su
ch

 as
 th

e f
ire

wo
rks

 
dis

pla
y) 

by
 M

arc
h 2

01
1 

23
. In

cre
as

e t
he

 nu
mb

er 
an

d d
ive

rsi
ty 

of 
ev

en
ts 

in 
pa

rks
 

an
d o

pe
n s

pa
ce

s a
nd

 in
do

or 
ev

en
ts 

for
 th

e b
en

efi
t o

f th
e 

Bo
rou

gh
’s 

res
ide

nts
 an

d v
isit

ors
 

Cll
r R

ofi
qu

e A
hm

ed
 

 He
ath

er 
Bo

nfi
eld

, 
Co

mm
un

itie
s, 

Lo
ca

litie
s 

an
d C

ult
ure

 
Su

pp
ort

 be
tw

ee
n 3

5-4
0 c

om
mu

nit
y-b

as
ed

 ar
ts 

ev
en

ts 
thr

ou
gh

 th
e e

ve
nts

 fu
nd

 by
 M

arc
h 2

01
1 

24
. D

eli
ve

r th
e L

oc
al 

Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n P

lan
 to

 im
pro

ve
 

roa
d s

afe
ty 

 
Cll

r A
bd

al 
Ull

ah
 

 
Im

ple
me

nt 
3 l

oc
al 

sa
fet

y s
ch

em
es

 ta
rge

tin
g 

ac
cid

en
t h

ots
po

ts 
by

 M
arc

h 2
01

1 

Page 121



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

22
 

 

Inc
rea

se
 pr

ov
isio

n o
f S

ch
oo

l C
ros

sin
g P

atr
ol 

wit
h 4

 of
fic

ers
 at

 pr
ior

ity
 sc

ho
ol 

sit
es

 by
 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
10

 
De

live
r J

un
ior

 R
oa

d S
afe

ty 
Of

fic
er 

sc
he

me
 in

 
40

 sc
ho

ols
 fo

r th
e e

du
ca

tio
na

l y
ea

r 2
01

0/1
1 

 
Ja

mi
e B

lak
e, 

Co
mm

un
itie

s L
oc

ali
tie

s 
an

d C
ult

ure
 

De
live

r 3
 jo

int
 en

for
ce

me
nt 

ac
tiv

itie
s w

ith
 M

et 
Po

lice
 ta

rge
tin

g k
ey

 sa
fet

y i
ss

ue
s b

y M
arc

h 
20

11
 

Pr
ior
ity
 2.
3: 
Su

pp
ort

 vi
bra

nt 
tow

n c
en
tre

s a
nd
 a 
cle

an
er,

 sa
fer

 pu
bli
c r
ea
lm
 

 Th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 ke

y a
gre

ed
 pr

ior
ity

 fo
r th

is 
ye

ar 
is 

to 
im
pr
ov
e c

lea
nli
ne
ss
 an

d q
ua
lity

 of
 th
e p

ub
lic
 re
alm

 
Ob

jec
tiv
es
: 

2.3
.1 

   P
rov

idi
ng

 fir
st-

cla
ss

 an
d w

ell
 m

an
ag

ed
 ce

ntr
es

 w
he

re 
pe

op
le 

co
me

 to
ge

the
r fo

r b
us

ine
ss

, s
ho

pp
ing

, le
isu

re 
an

d r
ec

rea
tio

n 
2.3

.2 
   S

up
po

rtin
g a

nd
 im

pro
vin

g o
pe

n s
pa

ce
s 

2.3
.3 

   I
mp

rov
ing

 st
ree

t li
gh

tin
g a

nd
 re

du
cin

g g
raf

fiti
 an

d l
itte

r 
St
rat
eg
ic 
Ac
tio
n  

Le
ad
 M
em

be
r, L

ea
d 

Of
fic
er 
an
d D

ire
cto

rat
e  

Mi
les

ton
es
 an

d D
ea
dli
ne
s 

Pr
og

res
s d

ev
elo

pm
en

t o
f th

e V
ict

ori
a P

ark
 

Ma
ste

rpl
an

 w
ith

 co
ns

tru
cti

on
/Im

ple
me

nta
tio

n 
Ph

as
e Y

ea
r 1

 be
gin

nin
g i

n S
ep

tem
be

r 2
01

0 
thr

ou
gh

 to
 co

mp
let

ion
 in

 M
arc

h 2
01

1 
25

. Im
ple

me
nt 

a p
rog

ram
me

 of
 op

en
 sp

ac
e 

im
pro

ve
me

nts
 to

 de
live

r th
e o

bje
cti

ve
s o

f th
e O

pe
n 

Sp
ac

es
 St

rat
eg

y 

Cll
r A

bd
al 

Ull
ah

 
 Ja

mi
e B

lak
e, 

Co
mm

un
itie

s L
oc

ali
tie

s 
an

d C
ult

ure
 

Tre
e M

an
ag

em
en

t P
lan

 ai
ms

 an
d o

bje
cti

ve
s 

de
ve

lop
ed

 an
d a

pp
rov

ed
 by

 Se
pte

mb
er 

20
10

, 
inc

lud
ing

 fiv
e-y

ea
r tr

ee
 pl

an
tin

g p
rog

ram
me

. 
26

.  D
eli

ve
r a

 m
ea

su
rab

ly 
cle

an
er,

 sa
fer

 an
d m

ore
 

su
sta

ina
ble

 en
vir

on
me

nt 
an

d i
mp

lem
en

t th
e w

as
te 

Cll
r A

bd
al 

Ull
ah

 
 

Re
vie

w 
of 

Pu
bli

c R
ea

lm
 co

ntr
ac

ts 
to 

tak
e a

 
lon

ge
r te

rm
 an

d m
ore

 ef
fic

ien
t v

iew
 of

 al
l 

Page 122



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

23
 

cu
rre

nt 
an

d p
rop

os
ed

 co
ntr

ac
t a

rra
ng

em
en

ts 
by

 Ap
ril 

20
10

 
De

live
ry 

the
 Pu

bli
c R

ea
lm

 Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Str

ate
gy

 by
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

01
0 

Re
-dr

aft
ed

 W
as

te 
Str

ate
gy

 co
ns

ult
ati

on
 to

 be
 

co
mp

let
e b

y J
uly

 20
10

 
Re

cy
clin

g A
cti

on
 Pl

an
 20

10
 to

 20
14

 to
 be

 
co

mp
let

e b
y S

ep
tem

be
r 2

01
0 

OJ
EU

 N
oti

ce
 fo

r lo
ng

 te
rm

 W
as

te 
Tre

atm
en

t 
an

d D
isp

os
al 

Se
rvi

ce
s t

o b
e i

ss
ue

d b
y 

No
ve

mb
er 

20
10

 
De

live
r a

n A
nti

-D
efa

ce
me

nt 
(gr

aff
iti 

an
d f

ly-
po

sti
ng

) s
tra

teg
y b

y J
uly

 20
10

  

str
ate

gy
 an

d t
he

 pa
rtn

ers
hip

 Pu
bli

c R
ea

lm
 St

rat
eg

y. 
Ja

mi
e B

lak
e, 

Pu
bli

c 
Re

alm
, C

om
mu

nit
ies

 
Lo

ca
litie

s a
nd

 C
ult

ure
 

Se
pa

rat
e s

tra
teg

ies
 fo

r re
du

cin
g l

itte
r a

nd
 fly

-
tip

pin
g d

raf
ted

 by
 Ju

ly 
20

10
 an

d S
ep

tem
be

r 
20

10
 re

sp
ec

tiv
ely

 

27
. D

eli
ve

r B
oro

ug
h-w

ide
 To

wn
 C

en
tre

 St
rat

eg
y 

im
pro

ve
me

nts
  

 

Cll
r M

arc
 Fr

an
cis

 
 Ow

en
 W

ha
lle

y  
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d 

Re
ne

wa
l 

To
wn

 C
en

tre
 Im

ple
me

nta
tio

n P
rog

ram
me

 :  
 >P

ub
lic 

Re
alm

 St
rat

eg
y d

eli
ve

red
, J

uly
 20

10
 

>R
om

an
 R

oa
d S

ho
p F

ron
t Im

pro
ve

me
nt 

Pr
og

ram
me

: 4
 sh

op
 fro

nts
 fu

nd
ed

, D
ec

em
be

r 
20

10
; 8

 fu
nd

ed
, M

arc
h 2

01
1. 

>C
om

ple
te 

Ac
tiv

e S
ho

p L
oc

al 
Ca

mp
aig

n, 
Ap

ril 
20

10
  

>S
et 

up
 an

d m
ain

tai
n C

ros
s B

oro
ug

h T
ow

n 
Ce

ntr
e P

art
ne

rsh
ip,

 as
 a 

for
um

 fo
r in

for
ma

tio
n 

sh
ari

ng
 an

d a
dv

ice
, J

an
ua

ry 
20

11
  

Page 123



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

24
 

 

W
ork

s c
om

ple
te 

on
 Al

dg
ate

 H
ist

ori
c B

uil
din

gs
 

Clu
ste

r, D
ec

em
be

r 2
01

0  
De

sig
n a

gre
ed

 fo
r W

hit
ec

ha
pe

l p
ub

lic 
rea

lm
 

im
pro

ve
me

nt 
sc

he
me

, D
ec

em
be

r 2
01

0  
28

.  D
eli

ve
r th

e H
igh

 St
ree

t 2
01

2 p
ub

lic 
rea

lm
 an

d 
his

tor
ic 

bu
ild

ing
 im

pro
ve

me
nts

 al
on

g t
he

 A1
1 c

orr
ido

r. 

Cll
r L

uft
ur 

Ra
hm

an
 

 Nic
k S

ma
les

,  
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d 

Re
ne

wa
l 

W
ork

s c
om

me
nc

e o
n B

ow
 H

ist
ori

c B
uil

din
gs

 
clu

ste
r, M

arc
h 2

01
1 

Pr
ior
ity
 2.
4: 
Im

pro
ve
 th
e e

nv
iro
nm

en
t a
nd
 ta
ck
le 
cli
ma

te 
ch
an
ge

 
 Ob

jec
tiv
es
: 

2.2
.3 

Re
du

cin
g e

ne
rgy

 us
e a

nd
 us

ing
 m

ore
 re

ne
wa

ble
 en

erg
y s

ou
rce

s 
2.2

.4 
Fo

cu
sin

g o
n r

eu
sin

g w
he

rev
er 

po
ss

ibl
e a

nd
 re

cy
clin

g m
ore

 
2.2

.5 
Ad

ap
tin

g o
ur 

bu
ilt 

en
vir

on
me

nt 
to 

co
pe

 w
ith

 th
e c

ha
ng

ing
 cl

im
ate

 an
d w

ea
the

r p
att

ern
s 

St
rat
eg
ic 
Ac
tio
n 

Le
ad
 M
em

be
r, L

ea
d 

Of
fic
er 
an
d D

ire
cto

rat
e  

Mi
les

ton
es
 an

d D
ea
dli
ne
s 

Se
t u

p t
he

 Su
sta

ina
bil

ity
 Su

b G
rou

p a
nd

 th
e 

To
we

r H
am

let
s C

lim
ate

 C
ha

ng
e A

llia
nc

e a
nd

 
for

m 
a p

art
ne

rsh
ip 

wit
h a

ll s
tak

eh
old

ers
 to

 
red

uc
e p

er 
ca

pit
a e

mi
ss

ion
s i

n t
he

 Lo
ca

l 
Au

tho
rity

 ar
ea

, A
pri

l 2
01

0 
Ide

nti
fy 

ca
rbo

n e
mi

ss
ion

s r
ed

uc
tio

ns
 pr

oje
cts

 
an

d f
un

d t
o e

ns
ure

 th
e c

ou
nc

il a
ch

iev
es

 th
e 

25
% 

ca
rbo

n e
mi

ss
ion

s r
ed

uc
tio

n b
y 2

01
2, 

the
 m

ed
ium

 te
rm

 ta
rge

t o
f 4

0%
 ca

rbo
n 

em
iss

ion
s r

ed
uc

tio
n b

y 2
01

6 a
nd

 th
e l

on
g 

ter
m 

tar
ge

t o
f 6

0%
 ca

rbo
n e

mi
ss

ion
s 

red
uc

tio
n b

y 2
02

0, 
Ma

rch
 20

11
 

29
. Im

ple
me

nt 
the

 C
arb

on
 M

an
ag

em
en

t P
lan

 to
 re

du
ce

 
ca

rbo
n e

mi
ss

ion
s g

en
era

ted
 by

 th
e C

ou
nc

il 
 

Cll
r. O

hid
 Ah

me
d 

 Ja
ck

ie 
Od

un
oy

e, 
 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
an

d 
Re

ne
wa

l 
 

Un
de

rta
ke

 a 
ris

k b
as

ed
 as

se
ss

me
nt 

(Lo
ca

l 
Cli

ma
te 

Im
pa

cts
 Pr

ofi
le)

 of
 vu

lne
rab

iliti
es

 to
 

Page 124



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

25
 

we
ath

er 
an

d c
lim

ate
, b

oth
 no

w 
an

d i
n t

he
 

fut
ure

 an
d i

de
nti

fy 
pri

ori
ty 

ris
ks

 to
 co

un
cil 

se
rvi

ce
s, 

Ju
ne

 20
10

  
Im

ple
me

nt 
the

 Lo
ca

l B
iod

ive
rsi

ty 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
 

(LB
AP

) to
 en

su
re 

the
 pr

ote
cti

on
, 

co
ns

erv
ati

on
 an

d e
nh

an
ce

me
nt 

of 
bio

div
ers

ity
 in

 Lo
nd

on
 Bo

rou
gh

 To
we

r 
Ha

ml
ets

, S
ep

tem
be

r 2
01

0  

 
 

Re
du

ce
 en

erg
y c

on
su

mp
tio

n f
rom

 st
ree

t 
lig

hti
ng

 by
 re

pla
ce

me
nt 

of 
10

0 l
igh

tin
g u

nit
s 

in 
are

as
 w

ith
 lo

w 
en

erg
y f

itti
ng

s b
y M

arc
h 

20
11

  (C
LC

) 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
a p

art
ne

rsh
ip 

pla
n f

or 
the

 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

an
d r

ec
yc

lin
g o

f b
ulk

y w
as

te 
by

 
Ma

rch
 20

11
   

De
live

ry 
of 

at 
lea

st 
4  

Br
ing

 Ba
ck

 D
ay

s b
y 

Ma
rch

 20
11

 
De

live
r a

 m
ini

mu
m 

of 
on

e e
sta

te-
ba

se
d 

be
ha

vio
ur 

ch
an

ge
 pr

og
ram

me
 by

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

10
 

30
. Im

pro
ve

 re
cy

clin
g r

ate
s t

hro
ug

h t
arg

ete
d 

co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns

 an
d b

ett
er 

wo
rki

ng
 w

ith
 So

cia
l 

La
nd

lor
ds

 an
d o

the
r p

art
ne

rs 
 

Cll
r A

bd
al 

Ull
ah

 
 Ja

mi
e B

lak
e, 

Pu
bli

c 
Re

alm
, C

om
mu

nit
ies

 
Lo

ca
litie

s a
nd

 C
ult

ure
 

Co
mm

iss
ion

 en
vir

on
me

nt 
ou

tre
ac

h w
ith

 th
e 

thi
rd 

se
cto

r, t
arg

eti
ng

 be
ha

vio
ur 

ch
an

ge
 w

ith
in 

ha
rd-

to-
rea

ch
 gr

ou
ps

 by
 M

arc
h 2

01
1 

Page 125



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

26
 

A 
Pr

os
pe

ro
us

 C
om

mu
nit

y 
 Pr
ior
ity
 3.
1: 
Su

pp
ort

 lif
elo

ng
 le
arn

ing
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r a

ll 
 Th

e C
ou

nc
il’s

 ke
y a

gre
ed

 pr
ior

ity
 fo

r th
is 

ye
ar 

is 
to 
rai
se
 G
CS

E r
es
ult
s t
o b

e t
he
 be

st 
in 
the

 co
un
try

 
Ob

jec
tiv
es
: 

3.1
.1 

Inv
es

tin
g i

n t
he

 un
de

r 5
s w

ho
se

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
pro

vid
es

 th
e b

es
t p

os
sib

le 
fou

nd
ati

on
 fo

r lo
ng

 te
rm

 su
cc

es
s 

3.1
.2 

Pr
ov

idi
ng

 hi
gh

 qu
ali

ty 
sc

ho
ols

, s
o t

ha
t y

ou
ng

 pe
op

le 
ac

qu
ire

 th
e k

no
wle

dg
e a

nd
 sk

ills
 th

ey
 ne

ed
 to

 fu
lfil 

the
ir f

ull
 po

ten
tia

l 
3.1

.3 
Pr

ov
idi

ng
 co

nti
nu

ou
s l

ea
rni

ng
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

, s
o e

ve
ryo

ne
 ca

n l
ea

rn 
ba

sic
 an

d n
ew

 sk
ills

 at
 an

y a
ge

 
St
rat
eg
ic 
Ac
tio
n  

Le
ad
 M
em

be
r, L

ea
d 

Of
fic
er 
an
d D

ire
cto

rat
e  

Mi
les

ton
es
 an

d D
ea
dli
ne
s 

Sc
ho

ol 
im

pro
ve

me
nt 

fra
me

wo
rk 

co
ns

ult
ati

on
 

an
d r

ev
isio

n i
n p

lac
e, 

Ju
ly 

20
10

 
Im

ple
me

nta
tio

n o
f 1

:1 
tui

tio
n a

cro
ss

 pr
im

ary
 

an
d s

ec
on

da
ry 

ph
as

e i
n p

lac
e, 

Oc
tob

er 
20

10
 

31
.  I

mp
rov

e G
CS

E r
es

ult
s t

o b
e t

he
 be

st 
in 

the
 co

un
try

 
by

 im
ple

me
nti

ng
 th

e p
rio

riti
es

 id
en

tifi
ed

 in
 th

e C
hil

dre
n 

an
d Y

ou
ng

 Pe
op

le’
s P

lan
 at

 bo
th 

pri
ma

ry 
an

d 
se

co
nd

ary
, w

ith
 in

cre
as

ed
 fo

cu
s o

n r
ais

ing
 as

pir
ati

on
s 

an
d p

ers
on

ali
se

d l
ea

rni
ng

 an
d r

ad
ica

lly 
red

es
ign

ing
 th

e 
wa

y w
e s

up
po

rt a
nd

 im
pro

ve
 ou

r s
ch

oo
ls 

 

Cll
r A

bd
ul 

As
ad

 
 Di 

W
arn

e, 
Ch

ild
ren

, S
ch

oo
ls 

an
d 

Fa
mi

lie
s 

Sc
ho

ol 
Im

pro
ve

me
nt 

Pa
rtn

er 
mo

nit
ori

ng
 

foc
us

ed
 on

 “n
arr

ow
ing

 th
e g

ap
” in

 pl
ac

e, 
No

ve
mb

er 
20

10
 

Ne
w 

pro
jec

t d
ev

elo
pm

en
t fo

r B
atc

h 3
 sc

ho
ols

 
– S

tep
ne

y G
ree

n, 
Ce

ntr
al 

Fo
un

da
tio

n G
irls

 
Sc

ho
ol,

 Ph
oe

nix
 an

d L
an

gd
on

 Pa
rk 

– t
o s

tar
t 

Ap
ril 

20
10

 
Co

ns
tru

cti
on

s s
tar

ts 
at 

Ra
ine

s, 
Ha

rpl
ey

 PR
U,

 
Sw

an
lea

 an
d B

ow
de

n H
ou

se
 by

 Se
pte

mb
er 

20
10

    
 

32
. C

on
tin

ue
 ou

r p
rog

ram
me

 of
 re

bu
ild

ing
 or

 
ref

urb
ish

ing
 al

l o
f o

ur 
se

co
nd

ary
 sc

ho
ols

, th
rou

gh
 th

e 
Bu

ild
ing

 Sc
ho

ols
 fo

r th
e F

utu
re 

pro
gra

mm
e 

 

Cll
r  A

bd
ul 

As
ad

 
 An

n S
utc

liff
e, 

Ch
ild

ren
, S

ch
oo

ls 
an

d 
Fa

mi
lie

s 
 

Co
ntr

ac
t c

los
e f

or 
Ste

pn
ey

 G
ree

n, 
Ce

ntr
al 

Fo
un

da
tio

n G
irls

 Sc
ho

ol 
, P

ho
en

ix 
an

d 

Page 126



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

27
 

 
 

La
ng

do
n P

ark
 by

 Ja
nu

ary
 20

10
  

On
e s

ch
em

e o
n s

ite
 by

 Ap
ril 

20
10

  

Fiv
e s

ch
em

es
 on

 si
te 

by
 Ju

ly 
20

10
  

Tw
o s

ch
em

es
 on

 si
te 

by
 O

cto
be

r 2
01

0  
33

. U
pg

rad
e o

ur 
pri

ma
ry 

sc
ho

ol 
es

tat
e t

hro
ug

h P
rim

ary
 

Str
ate

gy
 fo

r C
ha

ng
e  

 

Cll
r  A

bd
ul 

As
ad

 
 Ka

te 
Bin

gh
am

,  
Ch

ild
ren

, S
ch

oo
ls 

an
d 

Fa
mi

lie
s 

 
Co

mp
let

ion
 of

 8 
pri

ma
ry 

sc
ho

ol 
ref

urb
ish

me
nt/

up
gra

de
 pr

oje
cts

 by
 M

arc
h 2

01
1  

 De
live

ry 
of 

loc
ali

se
d t

rai
nin

g f
or 

Pa
ren

t 
Su

pp
ort

 Pa
rtn

ers
 to

 es
tab

lish
 pa

ren
t 

for
um

s/a
ss

oc
iat

ion
s a

nd
 bu

ild
 up

on
 Pa

ren
t 

Vo
ice

 co
ns

ult
ati

on
 an

d h
om

e-s
ch

oo
l 

co
mm

un
ica

tio
n s

tra
teg

ies
 by

 Ju
ne

 20
10

  
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
se

co
nd

ary
 re

so
urc

es
 an

d 
de

live
ry 

of 
tw

o F
am

ily 
So

cia
l E

mo
tio

na
l 

As
pe

cts
 of

 Le
arn

ing
 (S

EA
L) 

pro
gra

mm
es

 pe
r 

clu
ste

r b
y D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
0  

De
live

ry 
of 

Str
en

gth
en

ing
 Fa

mi
lie

s 
Str

en
gth

en
ing

 C
om

mu
nit

ies
 (S

FS
C)

 fa
cili

tat
or 

tra
ini

ng
 co

urs
e t

o b
uil

d c
ap

ac
ity

 w
ith

in 
se

co
nd

ary
 sc

ho
ols

 to
 de

live
r S

FS
C 

tra
ini

ng
 

pro
gra

mm
es

 by
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
0 

34
. E

xp
an

d p
are

nta
l e

ng
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 le
arn

ing
 

pro
gra

mm
es

 in
 se

co
nd

ary
 sc

ho
ols

 so
 th

at 
pa

ren
ts 

an
d 

ca
rer

s g
et 

inv
olv

ed
 in

 su
pp

ort
ing

 th
eir

 ch
ild

ren
’s 

lea
rni

ng
, a

nd
 le

arn
 w

ith
 th

em
 

Cll
r  A

bd
ul 

As
ad

 
 Mo

nic
a F

ort
y, 

Ch
ild

ren
, S

ch
oo

ls 
an

d 
Fa

mi
lie

s  
 

De
live

ry 
of 

cu
rric

ulu
m 

foc
us

ed
 sh

ort
 

co
urs

e/w
ork

sh
op

 pr
og

ram
me

s f
oc

us
ing

 on
 

Page 127



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

28
 

 
 

ch
ild

ren
’s 

lea
rni

ng
 an

d d
ev

elo
pm

en
t  

11
8 l

ea
rne

rs 
co

mp
let

e E
SO

L c
ou

rse
s b

y 
Au

gu
st 

20
10

  
11

8 l
ea

rne
rs 

ga
in 

a q
ua

lific
ati

on
 in

 ES
OL

 by
 

Au
gu

st 
20

10
 

Co
urs

e v
en

ue
s s

et 
up

 by
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20

10
  

35
. C

om
mi

ss
ion

 an
 ad

dit
ion

al 
19

0 e
ntr

y l
ev

el 
En

gli
sh

 as
 

a S
ec

on
d L

an
gu

ag
e p

lac
es

 
 

Cll
r  A

bd
ul 

As
ad

 
 Fio

na
 Pa

tte
rso

n, 
He

ath
er 

Bo
nfi

eld
 

Co
mm

un
itie

s, 
Lo

ca
litie

s 
an

d C
ult

ure
 

72
 Le

arn
ers

 re
cru

ite
d  

by
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20

10
 

Im
ple

me
nt 

a W
ork

-B
as

ed
 Le

arn
ing

 
Im

pro
ve

me
nt 

Pla
n a

nd
 la

un
ch

 at
 le

as
t th

ree
 

ne
w 

Fo
un

da
tio

n L
ea

rni
ng

 Pr
og

ram
me

s b
y 

Ju
ne

 20
10

 
De

ve
lop

 a 
16

-19
 le

arn
ing

 of
fer

 w
ith

 m
ore

 
op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 at
 Fo

un
da

tio
n a

nd
 Le

ve
l 2

 an
d 

rai
se

 Le
ve

l 2
 ac

hie
ve

me
nt 

by
 19

 to
 at

 le
as

t 
70

% 
by

 su
mm

er 
20

10
 

Im
pro

ve
 Le

ve
l 3

 su
cc

es
s a

cro
ss

 al
l p

rov
ide

rs 
an

d r
ais

e L
ev

el 
3 a

ch
iev

em
en

t b
y 1

9 t
o 4

3%
 

by
 su

mm
er 

20
10

  

36
.  E

ns
ure

 th
at 

all
 sc

ho
ols

, c
oll

eg
es

 an
d w

ork
-ba

se
d 

lea
rni

ng
 pr

ov
ide

rs 
su

pp
ort

 le
arn

ers
 to

 ac
hie

ve
 th

e b
es

t 
the

y c
an

 
 

Cll
r  A

bd
ul 

As
ad

 
 W

en
dy

 Fo
rre

st,
 

Ch
ild

ren
, S

ch
oo

ls 
an

d 
Fa

mi
lie

s 

Ra
ise

 pa
rtic

ipa
tio

n i
n l

ea
rni

ng
 16

-19
 to

 at
 le

as
t 

93
% 

by
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
0  

Co
mp

let
e a

 vi
ab

ility
 as

se
ss

me
nt 

on
 a 

po
ten

tia
l 

Ide
a S

tor
e ‘

me
tro

’ b
y A

ug
us

t 2
01

0 
Cr

ea
te 

a j
oin

t h
ea

lth
-re

lat
ed

 pr
og

ram
me

 (w
ith

 
the

 PC
T) 

at 
Ide

a S
tor

es
 by

 Au
gu

st 
20

10
  

37
. D

eli
ve

r th
e Y

ea
r 2

 ac
tio

n p
lan

 fo
r th

e r
efr

es
he

d I
de

a 
Sto

re 
Str

ate
gy

 to
 en

su
re 

gre
ate

r li
bra

ry 
us

ag
e a

nd
 

im
pro

ve
d a

cc
es

s t
o i

nfo
rm

ati
on

 

Cll
r R

ofi
qu

e A
hm

ed
 

 He
ath

er 
Bo

nfi
eld

, 
Co

mm
un

itie
s L

oc
ali

tie
s 

an
d C

ult
ure

 
Im

pro
ve

d H
ea

lth
 In

for
ma

tio
n a

nd
 Ad

vic
e i

n a
ll 

Ide
a S

tor
es

 by
 M

arc
h 2

01
1 

Page 128



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

29
 

 

40
 pr

og
ram

me
s o

f p
os

itiv
e a

cti
vit

ies
 to

 be
 

de
live

red
 in

 ea
ch

 sc
ho

ol 
ho

lid
ay

, A
pri

l 2
01

0 t
o 

Fe
bru

ary
 20

11
 

PA
YP

 br
oc

hu
re 

to 
be

 pr
od

uc
ed

 an
d d

ist
rib

ute
d 

to 
sc

ho
ols

, k
ey

 w
ork

ers
 an

d r
efe

rra
l a

ge
nc

ies
 

pri
or 

to 
ea

ch
 sc

ho
ol 

ho
lid

ay
 (fo

ur 
by

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

10
; o

ne
 by

 Fe
bru

ary
 20

11
) 

3,5
00

 yo
un

g p
eo

ple
 to

 pa
rtic

ipa
te 

in 
po

sit
ive

 
ac

tiv
itie

s b
y M

arc
h 2

01
1 

38
.  E

xte
nd

 th
e r

an
ge

 of
 po

sit
ive

 ac
tiv

itie
s a

va
ila

ble
 

ou
tsi

de
 of

 sc
ho

ol 
ho

urs
 an

d d
eli

ve
r h

igh
ly 

eff
ec

tiv
e 

Ta
rge

ted
 Yo

uth
 Su

pp
ort

 to
 he

lp 
ch

an
ge

 th
e l

ive
s o

f o
ur 

mo
st 

dis
ad

va
nta

ge
d y

ou
ng

 pe
op

le 
  

Cll
r  A

bd
ul 

As
ad

 
 Ma

ry 
Du

rki
n, 

Ch
ild

ren
, 

Sc
ho

ols
 an

d F
am

ilie
s 

Fo
ur 

Ke
y W

ork
ers

 to
 pr

ov
ide

 ta
rge

ted
 su

pp
ort

 
to 

1,0
00

 yo
un

g p
eo

ple
 pr

ov
idi

ng
 th

em
 w

ith
 

on
e-t

o-o
ne

 se
ss

ion
s a

nd
 si

gn
-po

sti
ng

 by
 

Ma
rch

 20
11

 

Pr
ior
ity
 3.
2: 

Re
du

ce
 w
ork

les
sn
es
s 

 Th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 ke

y a
gre

ed
 pr

ior
ity

 fo
r th

is 
ye

ar 
is 

to 
red

uc
e l
ev
els

 of
 yo

uth
 un

em
plo

ym
en
t 

Ob
jec

tiv
es
: 

3.2
.1 

He
lpi

ng
 fa

mi
lie

s e
sc

ap
e p

ov
ert

y, 
by

 pr
ov

idi
ng

 em
plo

ym
en

t s
up

po
rt a

nd
 ad

vic
e o

n d
eb

t m
an

ag
em

en
t  

3.2
.2 

Ide
nti

fyi
ng

 an
d r

em
ov

ing
 ba

rrie
rs 

to 
em

plo
ym

en
t fo

r ta
rge

t g
rou

ps
  

3.2
.3 

He
lpi

ng
 pe

op
le 

to 
ge

t e
mp

loy
me

nt 
by

 en
su

rin
g t

he
re 

is 
su

pp
ort

 an
d t

rai
nin

g b
efo

re 
an

d a
fte

r th
ey

 ge
t a

 jo
b 

St
rat
eg
ic 
Ac
tio
n 

Le
ad
 M
em

be
r, L

ea
d 

Of
fic
er 
an
d D

ire
cto

rat
e  

Mi
les

ton
es
 an

d D
ea
dli
ne
s 

39
. Im

ple
me

nt 
the

 ac
tio

n p
lan

 w
ith

in 
the

 Em
plo

ym
en

t 
Str

ate
gy

 to
 en

su
re 

tha
t T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 re

sid
en

ts 
ac

ce
ss

 
ne

w 
an

d e
xis

tin
g j

ob
s a

nd
 th

ere
by

 re
du

ce
 th

e n
um

be
rs 

of 
pe

op
le 

on
 ou

t o
f w

ork
 be

ne
fits

 

Cll
r O

liu
r R

ah
ma

n 
 Nic

k S
ma

les
,  

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
an

d 

80
 lo

ca
l re

sid
en

ts 
pla

ce
d i

nto
 su

sta
ina

ble
 

em
plo

ym
en

t th
rou

gh
 th

e E
SF

 pr
og

ram
me

 to
 

ex
ten

d S
ing

le 
Po

int
s o

f A
cc

es
s d

eli
ve

ry,
 

Oc
tob

er 
20

10
  

Page 129



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

30
 

50
 pa

ren
ts 

pla
ce

d i
nto

 em
plo

ym
en

t th
rou

gh
 

the
 Sc

ho
ol 

Ga
tes

 Em
plo

ym
en

t S
up

po
rt 

Ini
tia

tiv
e, 

Ma
rch

 20
11

  
12

0 l
oc

al 
res

ide
nts

 co
mp

let
ing

 th
e S

kill
sm

atc
h 

Tra
ns

itio
na

l E
mp

loy
me

nt 
Pr

og
ram

me
, M

arc
h 

20
11

  
40

 gr
ad

ua
te 

pla
ce

me
nts

, O
cto

be
r 2

01
0 

14
0 l

oc
al 

res
ide

nts
 tra

ine
d i

n t
he

 se
cu

rity
 

ind
us

try
 an

d a
ch

iev
ing

 Se
cu

rity
 In

du
str

y 
Au

tho
rity

 lic
en

ce
, M

arc
h 2

01
1 

 
Re

ne
wa

l 

As
 pa

rt o
f th

e w
ide

r lo
ca

l e
co

no
mi

c 
as

se
ss

me
nt,

 un
de

rta
ke

 a 
wo

rk 
& s

kill
s p

lan
, 

Oc
tob

er 
20

10
 

Re
fre

sh
 of

 ch
ild

 po
ve

rty
 ac

tio
n p

lan
 by

 Ap
ril 

20
10

  
Co

mp
let

e c
om

mi
ss

ion
ing

 pl
an

 ar
isin

g f
rom

 th
e 

str
ate

gic
 co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 pi
lot

 to
 ad

dre
ss

 ga
ps

 
an

d i
de

nti
fy 

op
tio

ns
 fo

r s
erv

ice
 re

de
sig

n b
y 

Ju
ly 

20
10

  

40
.  B

uil
d o

n o
ur 

ch
ild

 po
ve

rty
 st

rat
eg

y t
o d

eli
ve

r 
se

rvi
ce

s t
ha

t re
all

y m
ak

e a
 di

ffe
ren

ce
 

   

Cll
r  A

bd
ul 

As
ad

 
 Su

sa
n A

cla
nd

-H
oo

d, 
Ch

ild
ren

, S
ch

oo
ls 

an
d 

Fa
mi

lie
s 

Es
tab

lish
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

arr
an

ge
me

nts
 fo

r c
hil

d p
ov

ert
y s

erv
ice

s b
y 

De
ce

mb
er 

20
10

  
41

. In
cre

as
e e

mp
loy

me
nt 

op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 fo

r v
uln

era
ble

 
pe

op
le,

 in
 pa

rtic
ula

r p
eo

ple
 w

ith
 di

sa
bil

itie
s a

nd
 m

en
tal

 
he

alt
h p

rob
lem

s a
nd

 th
os

e e
xp

eri
en

cin
g h

om
ele

ss
ne

ss
 

 

Cll
r A

nw
ara

 Al
i  

 Ka
tha

rin
e M

ark
s, 

Ad
ult

s, 
He

alt
h a

nd
 W

ell
be

ing
  

8 p
eo

ple
 w

ith
 m

od
era

te 
to 

se
ve

re 
lea

rni
ng

 
dis

ab
iliti

es
  o

n t
he

 Po
etr

y i
n W

oo
d p

rog
ram

me
 

an
d 8

 pe
rso

n c
en

tre
d p

lan
s c

om
ple

ted
, 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
10

 

Page 130



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

31
 

 

11
5 p

eo
ple

 w
ith

 di
sa

bil
itie

s r
ec

eiv
ing

 6+
 ho

urs
 

of 
su

pp
ort

 (in
for

ma
tio

n, 
ad

vic
e o

r g
uid

an
ce

, jo
b 

se
arc

h, 
me

nto
rin

g o
r tr

ain
ing

) th
rou

gh
 th

e 
To

we
r P

roj
ec

t, S
ep

tem
be

r 2
01

0 
15

4 p
eo

ple
 w

ith
 m

en
tal

 he
alt

h n
ee

ds
 

su
pp

ort
ed

 in
to 

em
plo

ym
en

t a
nd

 re
tai

nin
g t

he
ir 

job
s b

ey
on

d 1
3 w

ee
ks

 th
rou

gh
 th

e W
ork

ing
 

W
ell

 Tr
us

t, S
ep

tem
be

r 2
01

0 

 
 

De
live

r ‘m
ak

ing
 w

ork
 pa

y’ 
ini

tia
tiv

e t
o d

eli
ve

r 
ke

y o
utp

uts
 of

 96
0 x

 cl
ien

ts 
rec

eiv
ing

 
em

plo
ym

en
t a

dv
ice

, 1
20

 x 
clie

nts
 re

ce
ivin

g 
ou

tre
ac

h s
up

po
rt w

ith
 90

 x 
ren

t c
red

its
 pa

id;
 

the
 ab

ov
e d

es
ign

ed
 to

 ac
hie

ve
 ke

y o
utc

om
es

 
of 

80
 x 

su
cc

es
sfu

lly 
em

plo
ye

d, 
75

 x 
in 

Ed
uc

ati
on

/Tr
ain

ing
, 8

0 x
 ho

us
eh

old
 in

co
me

 
inc

rea
se

s, 
Ma

rch
 20

11
  

La
un

ch
 a 

fur
the

r fo
ur 

Dip
lom

as
 in

 co
ns

tru
cti

on
 

an
d t

he
 bu

ilt 
en

vir
on

me
nt,

 pu
bli

c s
erv

ice
s, 

ret
ail

 an
d s

po
rts

 an
d a

cti
ve

 le
isu

re,
 an

d r
ec

rui
t 

at 
lea

st 
10

0 l
ea

rne
rs 

by
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20

10
 

Inc
rea

se
 th

e A
pp

ren
tic

es
hip

 op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 

av
ail

ab
le 

to 
un

de
r 1

9s
 an

d d
eli

ve
r a

t le
as

t 1
00

 
ad

dit
ion

al 
Ap

pre
nti

ce
sh

ip 
sta

rts
 by

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

10
  

42
. R

ed
uc

e l
ev

els
 of

 yo
uth

 un
em

plo
ym

en
t b

y a
gre

ein
g a

 
14

-19
 se

cto
r p

ath
wa

y t
o e

mp
loy

me
nt 

wit
h l

oc
al 

em
plo

ye
rs,

 lin
ke

d t
o a

ll 1
4 D

ipl
om

a l
ine

s o
f le

arn
ing

, a
nd

 
pro

vid
e t

arg
ete

d l
ea

rni
ng

 pr
og

ram
me

s f
or 

ea
ch

 
sig

nif
ica

nt 
gro

up
 of

 14
-18

 le
arn

ers
 at

 ris
k o

f b
ec

om
ing

 
NE

ET
 

Cll
r  A

bd
ul 

As
ad

 
  W

en
dy

 Fo
rre

st,
  

Ch
ild

ren
, S

ch
oo

ls 
an

d 
Fa

mi
lie

s 
Re

du
ce

 th
e n

um
be

r o
f y

ou
ng

 pe
op

le 
NE

ET
 to

 
les

s t
ha

n 6
% 

by
 M

arc
h 2

01
1  

Pr
ior
ity
 3.
3: 

Fo
ste

r e
nte

rpr
ise

 
 

Page 131



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

32
 

   Ob
jec

tiv
es
: 

3.3
.1 

Pr
ov

idi
ng

 in
ce

nti
ve

s t
ha

t e
nc

ou
rag

e b
oth

 bu
sin

es
s a

nd
 so

cia
l e

ntr
ep

ren
eu

rsh
ip 

3.3
.2 

Ma
xim

isin
g t

he
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r lo

ca
l b

us
ine

ss
es

 to
 be

ne
fit 

fro
m 

ke
y g

row
th 

se
cto

rs,
 an

d t
he

 O
lym

pic
 / P

ara
lym

pic
 G

am
es

 
3.3

.3 
Pr

om
oti

ng
 lo

ca
l b

us
ine

ss
es

 an
d e

nc
ou

rag
ing

 gr
ow

th 
an

d t
ou

ris
m,

 w
ith

 pa
rtic

ula
r e

mp
ha

sis
 on

 th
e O

lym
pic

s a
nd

 Pa
ral

ym
pic

s 
St
rat
eg
ic 
Ac
tio
n 

Le
ad
 M
em

be
r, L

ea
d 

Of
fic
er 
an
d D

ire
cto

rat
e  

Mi
les

ton
es
 an

d D
ea
dli
ne
s 

De
ve

lop
 Ac

tio
n P

lan
 re

ga
rdi

ng
 3r

d  se
cto

r 
pre

mi
se

s n
ee

ds
, J

uly
 20

10
  

Es
tab

lish
 ne

w 
CV

S –
 SL

A a
gre

ed
, J

an
ua

ry 
20

11
  

Re
vie

w 
an

d c
om

mi
ss

ion
 Ad

vic
e a

nd
 C

MF
 

fun
din

g s
tre

am
s, 

Ma
rch

 20
11

  

43
. E

ns
ure

 th
e d

eli
ve

ry 
of 

the
 Th

ird
 Se

cto
r S

tra
teg

y 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
 20

10
/11

 
 

Cll
r R

an
ia 

Kh
an

 
 Lu

tfu
r A

li /
 Lo

uis
e 

Ru
ss

ell
, C

hie
f 

Ex
ec

uti
ve

’s 
Re

vie
w 

co
mm

un
ity

 ch
es

t p
roc

es
s a

nd
 re

-
ad

ve
rtis

e b
y S

ep
tem

be
r 2

01
0  

De
ve

lop
 an

d i
mp

lem
en

t c
on

so
rtiu

m 
ap

pro
ac

h 
for

 sm
all

er 
ve

nu
es

 w
ith

 LB
TH

 as
 le

ad
: 

 >Id
en

tify
 po

ten
tia

l p
art

ne
rs,

 M
ay

 20
10

 
>M

ee
t w

ith
 4 

ve
nu

es
, J

un
e 2

01
0  

>O
ffe

r v
en

ue
 tra

ini
ng

, S
ep

tem
be

r 2
01

0 
>S

ign
 up

 3 
ve

nu
es

 to
 co

ns
ort

ium
, D

ec
em

be
r 

20
10

  
44

. M
ark

et 
To

we
r H

am
let

s a
s t

he
 ke

y v
isit

or 
de

sti
na

tio
n 

for
 th

e O
lym

pic
 G

am
es

 an
d s

up
po

rt v
en

ue
s a

nd
 ot

he
r 

su
pp

lie
rs 

to 
ca

pit
ali

se
 on

 th
is 

Cll
r L

utf
ur 

Ra
hm

an
 

 Nic
k S

ma
les

, 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d 

Re
ne

wa
l 

W
ork

 w
ith

 EL
BP

 an
d p

rom
ote

 C
om

pe
te 

Fo
r to

 
loc

al 
bu

sin
es

se
s t

o s
ec

ure
 co

ntr
ac

ts 
for

 lo
ca

l 
en

ter
pri

se
s  

- £
3 m

illio
n c

on
tac

ts 
thr

ou
gh

 EL
BP

 
/ C

om
pe

te 
Fo

r b
y T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 en

ter
pri

se
s, 

Ma
rch

 20
11

  

Page 132



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

33
 

A 
Sa

fe 
an

d S
up

po
rti

ve
 C

om
mu

nit
y 

 Pr
ior
ity
 4.
1: 
Em

po
we

r o
lde

r a
nd
 vu

lne
rab

le 
pe
op
le 
an
d s

up
po
rt f

am
ilie

s 
 Ob

jec
tiv
es
: 

4.1
.1 

Pr
ov

idi
ng

 re
sp

on
siv

e a
nd

 ap
pro

pri
ate

 se
rvi

ce
s f

or 
ad

ult
s w

hic
h p

rom
ote

 in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

, c
ho

ice
, s

ec
uri

ty 
an

d c
om

mu
nit

y 
4.1

.2 
  P

rot
ec

tin
g c

hil
dre

n f
rom

 ha
rm

 an
d n

eg
lec

t 
4.1

.3 
  P

rev
en

tin
g a

nd
 re

du
cin

g h
om

ele
ss

ne
ss

, a
nd

 he
lpi

ng
 m

ore
 pe

op
le 

int
o s

ett
led

 ho
me

s a
nd

 em
plo

ym
en

t 
4.1

.4 
  Im

pro
vin

g s
up

po
rt f

or 
ch

ild
ren

 an
d y

ou
ng

 pe
op

le 
wit

h d
isa

bil
itie

s a
nd

 th
eir

 fa
mi

lie
s 

St
rat
eg
ic 
Ac
tio
n 

Le
ad
 M
em

be
r, L

ea
d 

Of
fic
er 
an
d D

ire
cto

rat
e  

Mi
les

ton
es
 an

d D
ea
dli
ne
s 

Ide
nti

fy 
un

-co
mp

let
ed

 ac
tiv

itie
s f

rom
 St

rat
eg

y’s
 

09
/10

 Ac
tio

n P
lan

 fo
r in

clu
sio

n i
n 1

0/1
1 A

cti
on

 
Pla

n, 
Ap

ril 
20

10
  

Fin
ali

se
 H

om
ele

ss
ne

ss
 St

rat
eg

y’s
 10

/11
 Ac

tio
n 

Pla
n, 

Ju
ly 

20
10

 
Ag

ree
 go

ve
rna

nc
e a

rra
ng

em
en

ts 
for

 H
om

ele
ss

 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 Bo

ard
 in

 lig
ht 

of 
the

 H
om

ele
ss

ne
ss

 
an

d H
ou

sin
g A

dv
ice

 Se
rvi

ce
s m

ov
e t

o D
&R

, 
Ap

ril 
20

10
  

45
. Im

ple
me

nt 
the

 H
om

ele
ss

ne
ss

 St
rat

eg
y t

o f
urt

he
r 

red
uc

e t
he

 in
cid

en
ce

 of
 ho

me
les

sn
es

s i
n t

he
 bo

rou
gh

 
an

d i
mp

rov
e s

up
po

rt t
o i

nd
ivid

ua
ls 

an
d f

am
ilie

s 
ex

pe
rie

nc
ing

 ho
me

les
sn

es
s [

mi
les

ton
es

 to
 be

 
co

nfi
rm

ed
] 

Cll
r M

arc
 Fr

an
cis

 
 Ja

ck
ie 

Od
on

oy
e, 

 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d 

Re
ne

wa
l 

Re
po

rt p
rog

res
s o

n 1
0/1

1 A
cti

on
 Pl

an
 to

 
Ho

me
les

s P
art

ne
rsh

ip 
Bo

ard
 m

arc
h 2

01
1 

Co
mp

let
e C

are
rs 

Jo
int

 St
rat

eg
ic 

Ne
ed

s 
As

se
ss

me
nt,

 Ju
ly 

20
10

 
46

. Im
pro

ve
 su

pp
ort

 an
d i

nfo
rm

ati
on

 fo
r c

are
rs 

ac
ros

s 
the

 w
ho

le 
of 

the
 To

we
r H

am
let

s P
art

ne
rsh

ip 
 

Cll
r A

nw
ara

 Al
i  

 De
bo

rah
 C

oh
en

,  A
du

lts
, 

He
alt

h a
nd

 W
ell

be
ing

 
Ra

ise
 th

e p
rof

ile
 of

 ca
rer

s n
ee

ds
 an

d i
ss

ue
s i

n 
pri

ma
ry 

ca
re 

by
 en

ga
gin

g w
ith

 G
P p

rac
tic

es
 to

 
de

ve
lop

 an
d u

se
 ca

rer
s r

eg
ist

ers
, M

arc
h 2

01
1 

Page 133



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

34
 

 
 

De
live

r b
oro

ug
h w

ide
 su

rge
rie

s i
n p

art
ne

rsh
ip 

wit
h h

ea
lth

 an
d t

he
 C

are
rs 

Ce
ntr

e t
o h

elp
 

pro
mo

te 
ca

rer
s’ 

aw
are

ne
ss

 of
 lo

ca
l s

erv
ice

s 
thr

ou
gh

 jo
int

 w
ork

 w
ith

 lo
ca

l c
are

rs’
 

org
an

isa
tio

ns
 an

d c
are

rs’
 gr

ou
ps

, M
arc

h 2
01

1 
A p

lan
 fo

r c
om

mu
nic

ati
on

s f
or 

the
 pu

bli
c a

nd
 

oth
er 

sta
ke

ho
lde

rs 
is 

in 
pla

ce
 fo

r th
e 

Tra
ns

for
mi

ng
 So

cia
l C

are
 pr

og
ram

me
, A

pri
l 

20
10

  
Th

e D
ire

cto
rat

e h
as

 ev
ide

nc
e t

ha
t u

se
rs 

an
d 

ca
rer

s h
av

e b
ee

n i
nv

olv
ed

 in
 th

e p
lan

nin
g a

nd
 

de
live

ry 
of 

pe
rso

na
lisa

tio
n, 

Oc
tob

er 
20

10
 

47
. D

eli
ve

r th
e T

ran
sfo

rm
ing

 So
cia

l C
are

 pr
og

ram
me

 
pu

ttin
g p

eo
ple

 w
ho

 us
e s

erv
ice

s i
n c

on
tro

l o
f th

eir
 ow

n 
ca

re 
 

 

Cll
r A

nw
ara

 Al
i  

 He
len

 Ta
ylo

r,  
Ad

ult
s, 

He
alt

h a
nd

 W
ell

be
ing

 
30

% 
of 

eli
gib

le 
se

rvi
ce

 us
ers

/ca
rer

s h
av

e a
 

pe
rso

na
l b

ud
ge

ts,
 M

arc
h 2

01
1  

Str
ate

gy
 in

 pl
ac

e t
o c

rea
te 

un
ive

rsa
l 

inf
orm

ati
on

 an
d a

dv
ice

 se
rvi

ce
s l

ink
ed

 to
 th

e 
Co

un
cil’

s C
ha

nn
el 

Str
ate

gy
, A

pri
l 2

01
0  

Ar
ran

ge
me

nts
 in

 pl
ac

e f
or 

un
ive

rsa
l a

cc
es

s t
o 

inf
orm

ati
on

 an
d a

dv
ice

, O
cto

be
r 2

01
0  

48
. D

ev
elo

p s
tra

teg
y t

o c
rea

te/
im

pro
ve

 un
ive

rsa
l 

inf
orm

ati
on

 an
d a

dv
ice

 se
rvi

ce
s i

nli
ne

 w
ith

 Pu
ttin

g 
Pe

op
le 

Fir
st 

Cll
r A

nw
ara

 Al
i 

 He
len

 Ta
ylo

r,  
Ad

ult
s, 

He
alt

h a
nd

 W
ell

be
ing
 

Th
ere

 is
 ev

ide
nc

e t
ha

t th
e p

ub
lic 

ha
ve

 ac
ce

ss
 

to 
the

 m
os

t a
cc

ura
te 

an
d u

p t
o d

ate
 

inf
orm

ati
on

 an
d a

dv
ice

 ab
ou

t th
eir

 ca
re 

an
d 

su
pp

ort
, M

arc
h 2

01
1 

Sta
ff c

on
su

lta
tio

n o
n P

ha
se

 1 
int

eg
rat

ion
 

pro
po

sa
ls,

 Ap
ril 

20
10

 
Ro

ll o
ut 

of 
int

eg
rat

ed
 se

rvi
ce

 pr
op

os
al 

fro
m 

Ju
ly 

20
10

 
49

. D
eli

ve
r fu

lly 
int

eg
rat

ed
 se

rvi
ce

 pr
ov

isio
n a

cro
ss

 
he

alt
h a

nd
 so

cia
l c

are
 

Cll
r A

nw
ara

 Al
i  

 Jo
hn

 R
oo

g, 
Ad

ult
s, 

He
alt

h a
nd

 W
ell

be
ing

 
Inc

orp
ora

tio
n o

f in
ter

me
dia

te 
ca

re 
int

o 
int

eg
rat

ed
 m

od
el,

 Fe
bru

ary
 20

11
 

Page 134



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

35
 

Em
be

d c
om

mo
n c

om
mi

ss
ion

ing
 pr

oc
es

se
s f

or 
ind

ivid
ua

l p
lac

em
en

ts 
in 

 AH
W

B a
nd

 th
e P

CT
, 

Au
gu

st 
20

10
  

Ba
se

d o
n t

he
 Jo

int
 St

rat
eg

ic 
Ne

ed
s 

As
se

ss
me

nts
 (J

SN
A)

 co
mp

let
ed

 in
 09

/10
, 

ref
res

h c
om

mi
ss

ion
ing

 st
rat

eg
ies

 fo
r L

ea
rni

ng
 

Dis
ab

ility
, M

en
tal

 H
ea

lth
 an

d O
lde

r P
eo

ple
, 

De
ce

mb
er 

20
10

  

50
. D

eli
ve

r fu
lly 

int
eg

rat
ed

 co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 ac

ros
s h

ea
lth

 
an

d s
oc

ial
 ca

re 
 

Cll
r A

nw
ara

 Al
i  

 De
bo

rah
 C

oh
en

,  A
du

lts
, 

He
alt

h a
nd

 W
ell

be
ing

 
Ac

hie
ve

 a 
sin

gle
 co

ntr
ac

ts 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

sy
ste

m 
for

 al
l in

div
idu

al 
pla

ce
me

nts
 ac

ros
s 

AH
W

B a
nd

 PC
T, 

Ma
rch

 20
11

 
Im

pro
ve

 th
e p

erf
orm

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f w
ork

 
co

mp
let

ed
 in

 th
e n

am
e o

f th
e S

afe
gu

ard
ing

 
Ad

ult
s B

oa
rd,

 O
cto

be
r 2

01
0 

En
su

re 
tha

t th
e l

ea
rni

ng
 fro

m 
the

 qu
ali

ty 
sta

nd
ard

 fe
ed

s i
nto

 fro
nt 

lin
e p

rac
tic

e, 
Oc

tob
er 

20
10

 

51
. F

urt
he

r s
tre

ng
the

n a
rra

ng
em

en
ts 

ac
ros

s t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

an
d t

he
 Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 to

 pr
ote

ct 
vu

lne
rab

le 
ad

ult
s f

rom
 

ab
us

e, 
ha

rm
 an

d n
eg

lec
t  

 

Cll
r A

nw
ara

 Al
i 

 Ka
tha

rin
e M

ark
s, 

 
Ad

ult
s, 

He
alt

h a
nd

 
W

ell
be

ing
 

Em
be

d p
oli

cie
s a

nd
 pr

oc
ed

ure
s f

or 
sa

feg
ua

rdi
ng

 ac
ros

s t
he

 pa
rtn

ers
hip

, M
arc

h 
20

11
 

Re
vie

w 
the

 Pr
iva

te 
Se

cto
r R

en
ew

al 
an

d E
mp

ty 
Pr

op
ert

y S
tra

teg
y b

y D
ec

em
be

r 2
01

0 (
Ali

so
n 

Th
om

as
) 

52
. D

eli
ve

r a
 ra

ng
e o

f ta
rge

ted
 pr

og
ram

me
s o

f 
im

pro
ve

me
nt 

to 
pri

va
te 

se
cto

r h
ou

sin
g s

toc
k t

ha
t 

su
pp

ort
 vu

lne
rab

le 
ho

us
eh

old
s t

o l
ive

 in
de

pe
nd

en
tly

, 
sa

fel
y, 

se
cu

rel
y a

nd
 fre

e f
rom

 fu
el 

po
ve

rty
 

 

Cll
r M

arc
 Fr

an
cis

 
 Ja

ck
ie 

Od
un

oy
e, 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
& R

en
ew

al  
W

ork
 w

ith
 th

e E
as

t L
on

do
n R

en
ew

al 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 to

 en
su

re 
tha

t L
BT

H 
ma

xim
ise

s a
ll 

av
ail

ab
le 

su
b-r

eg
ion

al 
res

ou
rce

s (
Ali

so
n 

Th
om

as
) m

arc
h 2

01
1 

53
. Im

ple
me

nt 
the

 ac
tio

ns
 in

 ou
r C

hil
dre

n a
nd

 Yo
un

g 
Pe

op
le’

s P
lan

 to
 im

pro
ve

 ac
ce

ss
 to

 ca
re 

for
 ch

ild
ren

 
wit

h d
isa

bil
itie

s t
hro

ug
h a

 co
ord

ina
ted

, m
ult

i-a
ge

nc
y 

Cll
r A

bd
ul 

As
ad

 
 He

len
 Li

nc
oln

, C
hil

dre
n, 

Pu
bli

sh
 el

igi
bil

ity
 cr

ite
ria

 an
d l

oc
al 

off
er 

for
 

sh
ort

 br
ea

ks
 by

 Ju
ne

 20
10

   

Page 135



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

36
 

 

Dis
ab

led
 ch

ild
ren

 an
d p

are
nts

/ca
rer

s t
o b

e 
inv

olv
ed

 in
 co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 ov
er 

nig
ht 

sh
ort

 
bre

ak
s c

on
tra

ct 
by

 Se
pte

mb
er 

20
10

  
wit

h d
isa

bil
itie

s t
hro

ug
h a

 co
ord

ina
ted

, m
ult

i-a
ge

nc
y 

ap
pro

ac
h 

 
He

len
 Li

nc
oln

, C
hil

dre
n, 

Sc
ho

ols
 an

d F
am

ilie
s  

 
Im

pa
ct 

of 
Ca

re 
Pa

thw
ay

s t
o b

e r
ev

iew
ed

 by
 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
10

 

Pr
ior
ity
 4.
2: 

Ta
ck
le 
an
d p

rev
en
t c
rim

e 
 Th

e C
ou

nc
il’s

 ke
y a

gre
ed

 pr
ior

ity
 fo

r th
is 

ye
ar 

is 
tac

kli
ng
 an

ti-s
oc
ial
 be

ha
vio

ur
 an

d c
rim

e 
Ob

jec
tiv
es
: 

4.2
.1 

Re
du

cin
g c

rim
e a

nd
 pr

om
oti

ng
 su

cc
es

se
s e

ffe
cti

ve
ly 

to 
red

uc
e f

ea
r o

f c
rim

e 
4.2

.2 
Re

du
cin

g r
e-o

ffe
nd

ing
 th

rou
gh

 ho
list

ic 
int

erv
en

tio
n w

ith
 al

l w
ho

 be
co

me
 in

vo
lve

d w
ith

 th
e c

rim
ina

l ju
sti

ce
 sy

ste
m 

4.2
.3 

Ma
kin

g c
rim

e p
rev

en
tio

n a
 ke

y e
lem

en
t o

f a
ll s

erv
ice

 pl
an

nin
g -

 an
d i

mp
rov

ing
 co

mm
un

ity
 tru

st 
an

d e
ng

ag
em

en
t in

 st
rat

eg
ic 

pla
nn

ing
 an

d s
erv

ice
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

St
rat
eg
ic 
Ac
tio
n 

Le
ad
 M
em

be
r, L

ea
d 

Of
fic
er 
an
d D

ire
cto

rat
e  

Mi
les

ton
es
 an

d D
ea
dli
ne
s 

Jo
int

 ta
sk

ing
 pr

oc
es

s c
om

ple
ted

 fo
r A

SB
, c

rim
e 

an
d p

ub
lic 

rea
lm

 ac
tiv

itie
s b

y S
ep

tem
be

r 2
01

0  
Int

rod
uc

e l
oc

ali
se

d T
H 

en
for

ce
me

nt 
off

ice
rs 

int
o 

pa
ire

d L
AP

s 1
&2

 by
 Ap

ril 
20

10
 

Im
ple

me
nt 

the
 Yo

u D
ec

ide
!-p

urc
ha

se
d p

roj
ec

ts 
aro

un
d l

oc
ali

se
d e

nfo
rce

me
nt 

in 
the

 LA
Ps

 – 
by

 
Ju

ne
 20

10
 

54
. F

urt
he

r d
ev

elo
p m

ore
 co

mm
un

ity
-or

ien
ted

 an
d 

loc
ali

se
d s

erv
ice

s a
nd

 in
teg

rat
e n

ew
 m

od
els

 of
 

en
for

ce
me

nt 
to 

im
pro

ve
 pu

bli
c c

on
fid

en
ce

 in
 th

e C
ou

nc
il 

an
d P

oli
ce

 re
sp

on
se

 to
 an

ti-s
oc

ial
 be

ha
vio

ur 
an

d c
rim

e  

Cll
r A

bd
al 

Ull
ah

 
 An

dy
 Ba

mb
er,

 
Co

mm
un

ity
 Sa

fet
y, 

Co
mm

un
itie

s L
oc

ali
tie

s 
an

d C
ult

ure
 

Pr
od

uc
e l

oc
ali

se
d a

na
lyt

ica
l p

rod
uc

ts 
(e.

g. 
AS

B 
an

d e
nv

iro
nm

en
tal

 cr
im

e d
en

sit
y m

ap
pin

g) 
for

 
loc

al 
en

for
ce

me
nt 

by
 Ju

ne
 20

10
 

55
. D

ev
elo

p o
ur 

Re
du

cin
g R

e-o
ffe

nd
ing

 Pr
og

ram
me

 
Cll

r A
bd

al 
Ull

ah
 

Cr
ea

te 
an

 in
teg

rat
ed

 of
fen

de
r m

an
ag

em
en

t 

Page 136



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

37
 

bo
ard

 to
 st

rat
eg

ica
lly 

ov
ers

ee
 th

e i
nte

gra
ted

 
pro

gra
mm

e b
y M

ay
 20

10
 w

hic
h w

ill g
en

era
te 

ob
jec

tiv
es

 fo
r th

e f
ort

hc
om

ing
 ye

ar 
 

 

 An
dy

 Ba
mb

er,
 

Co
mm

un
ity

 Sa
fet

y, 
Co

mm
un

itie
s L

oc
ali

tie
s 

an
d C

ult
ure

 
 

De
ve

lop
 an

d i
ntr

od
uc

e a
 pr

og
ram

me
 to

 m
an

ag
e 

ind
ivid

ua
ls 

wh
o a

re 
su

bje
ct 

to 
an

ti-s
oc

ial
 

be
ha

vio
ur 

ord
ers

 by
 Ju

ne
 20

10
  

Cr
ea

te 
a s

tra
teg

ic 
gro

up
 to

 de
ve

lop
 th

e s
tra

teg
y 

an
d o

ve
rse

e i
mp

lem
en

tat
ion

 by
 Ju

ne
 20

10
 

56
. D

ev
elo

p a
 m

ore
 st

rat
eg

ic 
ap

pro
ac

h t
o v

iol
en

ce
 

ag
ain

st 
wo

me
n a

nd
 gi

rls
 in

 lin
e w

ith
 th

e n
ew

 na
tio

na
l 

str
ate

gy
 

Cll
r A

bd
al 

Ull
ah

 
 An

dy
 Ba

mb
er,

 
Co

mm
un

ity
 Sa

fet
y, 

Co
mm

un
itie

s L
oc

ali
tie

s 
an

d C
ult

ure
 

 
La

un
ch

 th
e n

ew
 st

rat
eg

y b
y D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
0 

PA
YP

 fu
nd

ing
 al

loc
ate

d t
o t

he
 Yo

uth
 O

ffe
nd

ing
 

Te
am

 to
 de

live
r d

ive
rsi

on
ary

 ac
tiv

itie
s s

tar
tin

g 
Ap

ril 
20

10
  

Ra
pid

 R
es

po
ns

e T
ea

m 
to 

pro
vid

e e
arl

y 
int

erv
en

tio
n a

nd
 pr

ev
en

tio
n t

hro
ug

h c
on

flic
t 

res
olu

tio
n a

nd
 m

ed
iat

ion
 st

art
ing

 Ap
ril 

20
10

  

57
. Im

pro
ve

 th
e p

rov
isio

n o
f p

os
itiv

e d
ive

rsi
on

ary
 

ac
tiv

itie
s, 

res
tor

ati
ve

 ju
sti

ce
 an

d i
nfo

rm
ati

on
, a

dv
ice

 an
d 

gu
ida

nc
e t

o r
ed

uc
e y

ou
th 

off
en

din
g  

 

Cll
r A

bd
ul 

As
ad

 
 Ma

ry 
Du

rki
n 

Ch
ild

ren
, S

ch
oo

ls 
an

d 
Fa

mi
lie

s 
 

IAG
 an

d N
ew

 St
art

 Pe
rso

na
l A

dv
ise

rs 
em

plo
ye

d 
to 

pro
vid

e a
dv

ice
, c

ou
ns

ell
ing

, in
for

ma
tio

n a
nd

 
sig

n-p
os

tin
g t

o y
ou

ng
 of

fen
de

rs 
by

 Au
gu

st 
20

10
  

De
live

r 3
 D

rug
 Aw

are
ne

ss
 C

am
pa

ign
 w

ee
ks

 by
 

Ma
rch

 20
11

  
58

. D
ev

elo
p a

 dr
ug

 in
ter

ve
nti

on
 an

d e
nfo

rce
me

nt 
str

ate
gy

 
 

Cll
r A

bd
al 

Ull
ah

 
 An

dy
 Ba

mb
er,

 
Co

mm
un

ity
 Sa

fet
y, 

Co
mm

un
itie

s L
oc

ali
tie

s 
De

live
r 3

 ta
rge

ted
 op

era
tio

ns
 by

 TH
EO

s f
or 

dru
g-r

ela
ted

 an
ti-s

oc
ial

 be
ha

vio
ur 

by
 M

arc
h 2

01
1  

Page 137



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

38
 

 

Int
eg

rat
e t

he
 D

rug
 In

ter
ve

nti
on

s P
rog

ram
me

 in
to 

the
 w

ide
r O

ffe
nd

er 
Ma

na
ge

me
nt 

mo
de

l in
 or

de
r 

to 
red

uc
e r

eo
ffe

nd
ing

 an
d m

an
ag

e b
rea

ch
es

 by
 

Ma
y 2

01
0 

 
an

d C
ult

ure
 

De
live

r th
e D

ea
ler

-A
-D

ay
 in

itia
tiv

e t
hro

ug
ho

ut 
20

10
/11

 

Pr
ior
ity
 4.
3: 

Fo
cu
s o

n e
arl

y i
nte

rve
nti
on
 

 Ob
jec

tiv
es
: 

4.3
.1 

Im
pro

vin
g p

are
nta

l e
ng

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 su

pp
ort

 
4.3

.2 
Us

ing
 jo

ine
d-u

p a
pp

roa
ch

es
 to

 ad
dre

ss
 lin

ks
 be

tw
ee

n h
ea

lth
, d

rug
s, 

alc
oh

ol,
 ed

uc
ati

on
, s

kill
s, 

em
plo

ym
en

t, a
cc

om
mo

da
tio

n, 
me

nta
l h

ea
lth

, d
eb

t a
nd

 be
ne

fits
 ac

ros
s a

ll a
ge

 gr
ou

ps
 

4.3
.3 

Ta
ck

lin
g t

he
 ca

us
es

 of
 cr

im
e b

y w
ork

ing
 w

ith
 ‘a

t-ri
sk

’ g
rou

ps
, to

 ni
p p

rob
lem

s i
n t

he
 bu

d 
St
rat
eg
ic 
Ac
tio
n  

Le
ad
 M
em

be
r, L

ea
d 

Of
fic
er 
an
d D

ire
cto

rat
e  

Mi
les

ton
es
 an

d D
ea
dli
ne
s 

Th
e c

ou
nc

il h
as

 a 
cle

ar 
str

ate
gy

, jo
int

ly 
wit

h 
he

alt
h, 

for
 ho

w 
it w

ill s
hif

t s
om

e i
nv

es
tm

en
t fr

om
 

rea
cti

ve
 pr

ov
isio

n t
ow

ard
s p

rev
en

tat
ive

 an
d 

en
ab

lin
g/r

eh
ab

ilita
tiv

e i
nte

rve
nti

on
s f

or 
20

10
/11

, 
Ap

ril 
20

10
  

Pr
oc

es
se

s a
re 

in 
pla

ce
 to

 m
on

ito
r a

cro
ss

 th
e 

wh
ole

 sy
ste

m 
the

 im
pa

ct 
of 

the
 sh

ift 
in 

inv
es

tm
en

t to
wa

rds
 pr

ev
en

tat
ive

 an
d e

na
bli

ng
 

se
rvi

ce
s, 

Oc
tob

er 
20

10
 

59
. Im

pro
ve

 ac
ce

ss
 to

 pr
ev

en
tat

ive
 se

rvi
ce

s f
or 

vu
lne

rab
le 

ad
ult

s, 
red

uc
ing

 us
e o

f in
sti

tut
ion

al 
ca

re 
an

d 
rel

ian
ce

 on
 ca

re 
ma

na
ge

d s
erv

ice
s  

 

Cll
r A

nw
ara

 Al
i 

 He
len

 Ta
ylo

r, A
du

lts
, 

He
alt

h a
nd

 W
ell

be
ing

 
Th

ere
 is

 ev
ide

nc
e c

oll
ec

ted
 th

at 
rev

iew
s t

he
 

ca
sh

ab
le 

sa
vin

gs
 th

at 
ha

ve
 be

en
 re

lea
se

d a
s a

 
res

ult
 of

 pr
ev

en
tat

ive
 st

rat
eg

ies
, M

arc
h 2

01
1 

Page 138



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

39
 

    

Fa
mi

ly 
W

ell
be

ing
 M

od
el 

ag
ree

d b
y C

hil
dre

n a
nd

 
Fa

mi
lie

s’ 
Tru

st 
by

 Ap
ril 

20
10

 
On

go
ing

 tra
ini

ng
 fo

r p
rac

titi
on

ers
, A

pri
l –

 
De

ce
mb

er 
20

10
  

Ev
alu

ati
on

 of
 fir

st 
six

 m
on

ths
 by

 O
cto

be
r 2

01
0  

   60
.  C

on
tin

ue
 to

 de
live

r C
YP

P a
cti

on
s t

o s
up

po
rt p

are
nts

 
an

d f
am

ilie
s t

o p
rov

ide
 a 

sa
fe 

en
vir

on
me

nt 
an

d d
ev

elo
p 

a F
am

ily 
W

ell
be

ing
 M

od
el,

 w
hic

h g
ive

s a
 cl

ea
r a

nd
 sw

ift 
pa

thw
ay

 fro
m 

ide
nti

fyi
ng

 an
 is

su
e t

o e
ffe

cti
ve

 ac
tio

n  
 

   Cll
r A

bd
ul 

As
ad

 
 He

len
 Li

nc
oln

, 
Ch

ild
ren

, S
ch

oo
ls 

an
d 

Fa
mi

lie
s 

 
W

ith
 th

e C
hil

dre
n a

nd
 Fa

mi
lie

s’ 
Tru

st 
pa

rtn
ers

 
res

po
nd

 co
mm

en
su

rat
ely

 an
d t

im
ely

 to
 th

e 
La

mi
ng

 re
co

mm
en

da
tio

ns
 

14
 ad

dit
ion

al 
fam

ilie
s a

cro
ss

 th
e 2

1 C
hil

dre
n’s

 
Ce

ntr
es

 to
 ac

ce
ss

 C
hil

d D
ev

elo
pm

en
t G

ran
ts 

by
 

Ju
ly 

20
10

  
A f

urt
he

r 1
4 f

am
ilie

s t
o b

e a
cc

es
sin

g C
hil

d 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

Gr
an

ts 
by

 Se
pte

mb
er 

20
10

  

61
. D

ev
elo

p C
hil

dre
n’s

 C
en

tre
s t

o i
nc

rea
se

 th
e 

en
ga

ge
me

nt 
of 

fam
ilie

s w
ith

 ch
ild

ren
 un

de
r th

e a
ge

 of
 

thr
ee

 so
 th

at 
mo

re 
fam

ilie
s a

re 
inv

olv
ed

 in
 ac

tiv
itie

s t
ha

t 
su

pp
ort

 th
eir

 ch
ild

’s 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

 

Cll
r A

bd
ul 

As
ad

 
 Mo

nic
a F

ort
y, 

 
Ch

ild
ren

, S
ch

oo
ls 

an
d 

Fa
mi

lie
s 

1,1
76

 fa
mi

lie
s i

n 2
1 C

hil
dre

n’s
 C

en
tre

s t
o h

av
e 

ac
ce

ss
ed

 C
hil

d D
ev

elo
pm

en
t G

ran
ts 

by
 

No
ve

mb
er 

20
10

 

Page 139



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

40
 

A 
He

alt
hy

 C
om

mu
nit

y 
 Pr
ior
ity
 5.
1: 

Re
du

ce
 di
ffe
ren

ce
s i
n p

eo
ple

’s 
he
alt
h a

nd
 pr

om
ote

 he
alt
hy
 lif
es
tyl
es
 

 Ob
jec

tiv
es
: 

5.1
.1 

Re
du

ce
 th

e u
se

 of
 to

ba
cc

o 
5.1

.2 
Re

du
cin

g r
ate

s o
f d

iab
ete

s, 
hig

h b
loo

d p
res

su
re 

an
d c

ho
les

ter
ol 

5.1
.3 

Slo
w 

do
wn

 th
e i

nc
rea

se
 in

 ob
es

ity
 

5.1
.4 

Im
pro

vin
g s

ex
ua

l h
ea

lth
 

St
rat
eg
ic 
Ac
tio
n 

Le
ad
 M
em

be
r, L

ea
d 

Of
fic
er 
an
d D

ire
cto

rat
e  

Mi
les

ton
es
 an

d D
ea
dli
ne
s 

De
ve

lop
 ou

tlin
e p

rop
os

als
 to

 im
pro

ve
 St

 
Ge

org
e’s

 Po
ol 

an
d J

oh
n O

rw
ell

 Le
isu

re 
Ce

ntr
e 

by
 Ju

ne
 20

10
 

62
. Im

ple
me

nt 
the

 Ye
ars

 1-
3 a

cti
on

s s
et 

ou
t in

 th
e 

Le
isu

re 
Ce

ntr
e S

tra
teg

y t
o i

nc
rea

se
 le

isu
re 

ce
ntr

e u
se

 
an

d p
rom

ote
 he

alt
hy

 lif
es

tyl
e a

cti
vit

ies
 

 

Cll
r R

ofi
qu

e A
hm

ed
 

 He
ath

er 
Bo

nfi
eld

, 
Co

mm
un

itie
s L

oc
ali

tie
s 

an
d C

ult
ure

 
De

live
r a

n O
lym

pic
 & 

Pa
ral

ym
pic

 Sp
ort

s 
Ac

tiv
itie

s p
rog

ram
me

 M
arc

h 2
01

1 
Ac

hie
ve

 at
 le

as
t 1

,70
0,0

00
 of

 le
isu

re 
ce

ntr
e 

vis
its

 by
 M

arc
h 2

01
1  

Ac
hie

ve
 at

 le
as

t 5
00

,00
0 u

nd
er-

16
 le

isu
re 

ce
ntr

e 
vis

its
 by

 M
arc

h 2
01

1 
Pr

od
uc

e a
 dr

aft
 Sp

ort
 & 

Ph
ys

ica
l A

cti
vit

y 
Str

ate
gy

 by
 M

arc
h 2

01
1 

63
. D

eli
ve

r a
 ta

rge
ted

 pr
og

ram
me

 to
 in

cre
as

e t
he

 
nu

mb
er 

of 
pe

op
le 

tak
ing

 re
gu

lar
 ph

ys
ica

l a
cti

vit
y 

Cll
r R

ofi
qu

e A
hm

ed
 

 He
ath

er 
Bo

nfi
eld

, 
Co

mm
un

itie
s L

oc
ali

tie
s 

an
d C

ult
ure

 

De
live

r ra
ng

e o
f a

cti
ve

 tra
ve

l p
roj

ec
ts 

to 
ge

t 
mo

re 
res

ide
nts

 cy
clin

g a
nd

 w
alk

ing
 m

ore
 of

ten
, 

inc
lud

ing
 a 

we
ek

ly 
He

alt
h W

alk
s p

rog
ram

me
 

an
d c

yc
le 

tra
ini

ng
 in

itia
tiv

es
 fo

r o
ve

r 5
00

 ad
ult

s 
an

d 2
,00

0 c
hil

dre
n b

y M
arc

h 2
01

1  

Page 140



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

41
 

 
 

Im
ple

me
nt 

ye
ar 

2 o
f th

e P
ark

s O
utr

ea
ch

 
Pr

og
ram

me
 by

 ho
ldi

ng
 14

 ph
ys

ica
l a

cti
vit

y 
ev

en
ts 

in 
pa

rks
 & 

op
en

 sp
ac

es
 by

 M
arc

h 2
01

1 
Se

cu
re 

fun
din

g f
or 

20
10

-11
 AS

PIR
E p

rog
ram

me
 

by
 Ap

ril 
20

10
 

Ide
nti

fy 
AS

PIR
E c

oh
ort

s o
f 2

5 w
ith

 Ed
uc

ati
on

al 
W

elf
are

 O
ffic

ers
 by

 M
ay

, A
ug

us
t, O

cto
be

r 2
01

0 
an

d J
an

ua
ry 

20
11

  
 64

. C
on

tin
ue

 to
 de

live
r A

SP
IR

E t
o t

arg
et 

the
 m

os
t 

vu
lne

rab
le 

yo
un

g w
om

en
 at

 ris
k o

f b
ec

om
ing

 pr
eg

na
nt 

Cll
r A

bd
ul 

As
ad

 
 Ma

ry 
Du

rki
n 

Ch
ild

ren
, S

ch
oo

ls 
an

d 
Fa

mi
lie

s 
En

d o
f y

ea
r e

va
lua

tio
n o

f p
rog

ram
me

 in
 M

arc
h 

20
11

  
Im

ple
me

nta
tio

n o
f re

co
mm

en
da

tio
ns

 fo
rm

 
ev

alu
ati

on
 of

 ch
ild

ho
od

 w
eig

ht 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

se
rvi

ce
s b

y S
ep

tem
be

r 2
01

0 
Co

mp
let

ion
 of

 pi
lot

 lo
ca

lity
 m

ult
i-a

ge
nc

y 
wo

rks
ho

p w
ith

 sc
ho

ol 
clu

ste
rs 

to 
im

pro
ve

 
co

ord
ina

tio
n o

f s
ch

oo
l b

as
ed

 in
ter

ve
nti

on
s b

y 
Ma

y 2
01

0 w
ith

 ro
ll-o

ut 
ac

ros
s t

he
 bo

rou
gh

 by
 

De
ce

mb
er 

20
10

  

 65
. S

up
po

rt c
hil

dre
n a

nd
 fa

mi
lie

s i
n a

ch
iev

ing
 an

d 
ma

int
ain

ing
 a 

he
alt

hy
 w

eig
ht,

 in
clu

din
g i

mp
rov

ing
 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 w
eig

ht 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

se
rvi

ce
s, 

he
alt

hie
r fo

od
 

ch
oic

es
 an

d o
pp

ort
un

itie
s f

or 
ph

ys
ica

l a
cti

vit
y 

  

Cll
r A

bd
ul 

As
ad

   
 Su

sa
n A

cla
nd

-H
oo

d, 
Ch

ild
ren

, S
ch

oo
ls 

an
d 

Fa
mi

lie
s 

 
Fin

al 
rep

ort
s o

n 2
00

9/1
0 p

up
il le

d p
roj

ec
ts 

an
d 

ev
alu

ati
on

 pl
an

 fo
r o

ng
oin

g p
up

il p
art

icip
ati

on
 by

 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20

10
  

Pr
od

uc
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 To

ba
cc

o C
on

tro
l 

All
ian

ce
 Ac

tio
n P

lan
 20

10
/11

 by
 Ap

ril 
20

10
 

Ac
hie

ve
 a 

tar
ge

t o
f 1

,06
1 p

er 
10

0,0
00

 
po

pu
lat

ion
 (N

I 1
23

 - O
ve

r 1
6s

 st
op

pe
d s

mo
kin

g) 
by

 M
arc

h 2
01

1  

66
. In

 pa
rtn

ers
hip

 w
ith

 N
HS

 To
we

r H
am

let
s, 

de
live

r th
e 

LA
A p

rio
rity

 to
 re

du
ce

 to
ba

cc
o u

se
 in

 th
e B

oro
ug

h 
Cll

r A
nw

ara
 Al

i 
 Br

ya
n J

on
es

,  
Co

mm
un

itie
s L

oc
ali

tie
s 

an
d C

ult
ure

 
70

 To
we

r H
am

let
s b

us
ine

ss
es

 ga
in 

the
 Sm

ok
e 

Fre
e A

wa
rd 

by
 M

arc
h 2

01
1 

Page 141



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

42
 

  
 

13
0 u

nd
era

ge
 te

st 
pu

rch
as

es
 ca

rrie
d o

ut 
by

 
Ma

rch
 20

11
 

Pr
ior
ity
 5.
2: 
Su

pp
ort

 m
en
tal
 he

alt
h s

erv
ice

s t
o i
mp

rov
e m

en
tal
 he

alt
h  

 Ob
jec

tiv
es
: 

5.2
.1 

Pr
ov

idi
ng

 hi
gh

-qu
ali

ty 
ac

ce
ss

ibl
e s

erv
ice

s  
5.2

.2 
Co

mb
ati

ng
 di

sc
rim

ina
tio

n a
ga

ins
t in

div
idu

als
 an

d g
rou

ps
 w

ith
 m

en
tal

 he
alt

h p
rob

lem
s 

5.2
.3 

En
su

rin
g i

nte
gra

ted
 pl

an
nin

g a
nd

 tre
atm

en
t w

ith
 pa

tie
nts

 w
ith

 m
ult

ipl
e h

ea
lth

 ne
ed

s 
St
rat
eg
ic 
Ac
tio
n 

Le
ad
 M
em

be
r, L

ea
d 

Of
fic
er 
an
d D

ire
cto

rat
e  

Mi
les

ton
es
 an

d D
ea
dli
ne
s 

W
ork

 w
ith

 th
e E

as
t L

on
do

n N
HS

 Fo
un

da
tio

n 
Tru

st 
an

d P
CT

 co
mm

iss
ion

ers
 to

 de
ve

lop
 an

 
un

de
rst

an
din

g o
f c

urr
en

t d
em

an
d a

nd
 ac

tiv
ity

 
rel

ate
d t

o a
cc

om
mo

da
tio

n s
erv

ice
s f

or 
pe

op
le 

wit
h m

en
tal

 he
alt

h p
rob

lem
s (

lin
ke

d t
o P

SA
 16

) 
to 

inf
orm

 th
e n

ex
t it

era
tio

n o
f th

e J
SN

A b
y J

un
e 

20
10

 
67

. D
ev

elo
p s

afe
 an

d s
ea

ml
es

s m
en

tal
 he

alt
h s

erv
ice

s 
tha

t e
mp

ow
er 

us
ers

 an
d p

rom
ote

 re
co

ve
ry 

an
d 

cit
ize

ns
hip

 
 

Cll
r A

nw
ara

 Al
i 

 Ka
tha

rin
e M

ark
s, 

 
Ad

ult
s, 

He
alt

h a
nd

 
W

ell
be

ing
 

W
ork

 w
ith

 th
e E

as
t L

on
do

n N
HS

 Fo
un

da
tio

n 
Tru

st 
an

d P
CT

 co
mm

iss
ion

ers
 to

 id
en

tify
 

op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 to

 re
du

ce
 th

e r
eli

an
ce

 on
 

ins
titu

tio
na

l c
are

 fo
r p

eo
ple

 w
ith

 m
en

tal
 he

alt
h 

pro
ble

ms
 (li

nk
 to

 PS
A 1

6),
 O

cto
be

r 2
01

0 
Co

mp
let

e a
na

lys
is 

of 
ne

ed
 by

 Ap
ril 

20
10

  
68

. R
ev

iew
 an

d i
mp

rov
e a

ll o
ur 

se
rvi

ce
s t

o s
up

po
rt 

yo
un

g p
eo

ple
’s 

em
oti

on
al 

he
alt

h a
nd

 w
ell

be
ing

 
   

Cll
r A

nw
ara

 Al
i 

 Su
sa

n A
cla

nd
-H

oo
d, 

Ch
ild

ren
, S

ch
oo

ls 
an

d 
Fa

mi
lie

s 
 

Re
fre

sh
 th

e E
mo

tio
na

l H
ea

lth
 an

d W
ell

be
ing

 
Pla

n b
y A

pri
l 2

01
0  

Page 142



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

43
 

   
    

Im
ple

me
nt 

the
 fin

din
gs

 of
 th

e s
erv

ice
 re

vie
w 

by
 

Ma
rch

 20
11

  
Ne

w 
str

ate
gy

 an
d c

om
mi

ss
ion

ing
 in

ten
tio

ns
 

co
mp

let
e, 

Ju
ly 

20
10

 
69

. Im
pro

ve
 th

e r
an

ge
 of

 se
rvi

ce
s a

va
ila

ble
 fo

r th
os

e 
wit

h D
em

en
tia

 in
 lin

e w
ith

 th
e N

ati
on

al 
Str

ate
gy

, 
foc

us
sin

g o
n r

ais
ing

 aw
are

ne
ss

, e
arl

y d
iag

no
sis

 an
d 

livi
ng

 w
ell

 w
ith

 D
em

en
tia

. 
 

Cll
r A

nw
ara

 Al
i 

 De
bo

rah
 C

oh
en

,  A
du

lts
, 

He
alt

h a
nd

 W
ell

be
ing

 
Ne

w 
se

rvi
ce

 m
od

el 
in 

pla
ce

, M
arc

h 2
01

1 

Page 143



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

44
 

5. 
Me

as
ur

ing
 Pr

og
res

s a
nd

 Se
ttin

g T
arg

ets
 

 [O
utt
ur
n f
or
 20

09
/10

 an
d t
arg

et 
inf
or
ma

tio
n f
or
 20

12
/13

 to
 

fol
low

]   
 In 

ord
er 

to 
me

as
ure

 th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 pr

og
res

s t
ow

ard
s a

ch
iev

ing
 

the
 pr

ior
ity

 ou
tco

me
s i

n t
he

 St
rat

eg
ic 

Pla
n, 

we
 ha

ve
 

es
tab

lish
ed

 a 
se

t o
f k

ey
 in

dic
ato

rs 
an

d t
arg

ets
. T

he
se

 
en

co
mp

as
s o

ur 
LA

A t
arg

ets
 pl

us
 ad

dit
ion

al 
Co

un
cil-

sp
ec

ific
 

tar
ge

ts 
in 

pri
ori

ty 
are

as
. 

 On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

 On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 al

so
 m

ea
ns

 br
ing

ing
 di

ffe
ren

t p
art

s o
f th

e 
co

mm
un

ity
 to

ge
the

r, e
nc

ou
rag

ing
 po

sit
ive

 re
lat

ion
sh

ips
 an

d 

tac
klin

g d
ivis

ion
s b

etw
ee

n c
om

mu
nit

ies
 – 

as
 w

ell
 as

 pr
ov

idi
ng

 
str

on
g l

ea
de

rsh
ip,

 in
vo

lvin
g p

eo
ple

 an
d g

ivin
g t

he
m 

the
 to

ols
 

an
d s

up
po

rt t
o i

mp
rov

e t
he

ir l
ive

s. 
W

hil
st 

the
 O

ne
 To

we
r 

Ha
ml

ets
 ap

pro
ac

h r
un

s t
hro

ug
h a

ll t
he

 ac
tiv

itie
s w

ith
in 

thi
s 

Pla
n, 

the
re 

are
 pa

rtic
ula

r a
cti

vit
ies

 w
hic

h w
e w

ill u
nd

ert
ak

e t
o 

bu
ild

 an
d d

ev
elo

p O
ne

 To
we

r H
am

let
s a

cro
ss

 al
l o

ur 
wo

rk.
 

W
ith

in 
the

 St
rat

eg
ic 

Pla
n, 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 al

so
 re

fle
cts

 
ou

r c
om

mi
tm

en
t to

 w
ork

ing
 ef

fic
ien

tly
 an

d e
ffe

cti
ve

ly 
as

 O
ne

 
Co

un
cil.

  
 W

e w
ill u

se
 th

e f
oll

ow
ing

 sp
ec

ific
 m

ea
su

res
 to

 as
se

ss
 ou

r 
pro

gre
ss

 to
wa

rds
 ac

hie
vin

g O
ne

 C
ou

nc
il –

 a 
nu

mb
er 

of 
the

 
oth

er 
me

as
ure

s w
ith

in 
oth

er 
se

cti
on

s o
f th

e p
lan

s w
ill 

co
ntr

ibu
te 

to 
the

 go
al 

of 
On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

. 

  
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 In
dic

ato
rs 

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
08
/09

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
09
/10

  
Ta
rg
et 

20
10
/11

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
11
/12

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
12
/13

 
1.1

 R
ed
uc
e i
ne
qu
ali
tie
s a

nd
 fo
ste

r s
tro
ng
 co

mm
un
ity
 co

he
sio

n 
S1

02
 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 to

p 5
% 

of 
ea

rne
rs 

of 
Lo

ca
l A

uth
ori

ty 
sta

ff t
ha

t a
re 

wo
me

n  
50

.47
 

 
50

 
50

 
 

S1
03

 
Pe

rce
nta

ge
 of

 to
p 5

% 
of 

Lo
ca

l A
uth

ori
ty 

sta
ff t

ha
t 

are
 fro

m 
an

 et
hn

ic 
mi

no
rity
 

17
.1 

 
27

 
30

 
 

S1
04

 
Pe

rce
nta

ge
 of

 to
p p

aid
 5%

 of
 st

aff
 w

ho
 ha

ve
 a 

dis
ab

ility
 (e

xc
lud

ing
 th

os
e i

n m
ain

tai
ne

d s
ch

oo
ls)

 
2.1

 
 

5.4
 

5.5
 

 
1.2

 W
or
k e

ffic
ien

tly
 an

d e
ffe
cti
ve
ly 
as
 O
ne
 C
ou
nc
il 

S1
01

 
Pe

rce
nta

ge
 of

 U
nd

isp
ute

d I
nv

oic
es

 Pa
id 

on
 Ti

me
 

88
.38

 
 

98
 

98
 

 
S1

05
 

Nu
mb

er 
of 

wo
rki

ng
 da

ys
/sh

ifts
 lo

st 
to 

sic
kn

es
s 

ab
se

nc
e p

er 
em

plo
ye

e 
8.9

5 
 

6.5
 

 
 

Page 144



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

45
 

 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 In
dic

ato
rs 

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
08
/09

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
09
/10

  
Ta
rg
et 

20
10
/11

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
11
/12

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
12
/13

 
S1

06
 

Re
sp

on
se

 tim
e t

o M
em

be
rs’

 en
qu

irie
s -

 %
 

co
mp

let
ed

 w
ith

in 
10

 w
ork

ing
 da

ys
 

76
.31

 
 

87
 

90
 

 
S1

07
 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 co

mp
lai

nts
 co

mp
let

ed
 in

 tim
e –

 
Co

un
cil 

as
 a 

wh
ole

 – 
Sta

ge
 1 

82
 

 
86

 
87

 
 

S1
08

 
Pe

rce
nta

ge
 of

 re
sid

en
ts 

ag
ree

ing
 th

at 
the

 C
ou

nc
il 

“pr
ov

ide
s v

alu
e f

or 
mo

ne
y f

or 
the

 C
ou

nc
il T

ax
 I p

ay
” 

43
 

 
51

 
 

 
S1

09
 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 ca

lls 
to 

Ho
tlin

es
 an

sw
ere

d  
92

.9 
 

96
 

97
 

 
S1

10
 

Av
era

ge
 w

ait
ing

 tim
e f

or 
ca

lls 
to 

Ho
tlin

es
 to

 be
 

an
sw

ere
d 

33
 

 
27

.5 
25

 
 

S1
11

 
Fir

st 
co

nta
ct 

res
olu

tio
n o

f c
all

s t
o H

otl
ine

s 
90

 
 

92
.5 

95
 

 
S1

12
 

Nu
mb

er 
of 

ag
en

cy
 st

aff
 as

sig
nm

en
ts 

 
79

6 
 

 
 

 
  A 

Gr
ea

t P
lac

e t
o L

ive
 

 A G
rea

t P
lac

e t
o L

ive
 re

fle
cts

 th
e C

om
mu

nit
y P

lan
 as

pir
ati

on
 

tha
t T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 sh

ou
ld 

be
 a 

pla
ce

 w
he

re 
pe

op
le 

en
joy

 
livi

ng
 an

d t
ak

e a
cti

ve
 pr

ide
 in

 be
lon

gin
g. 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il w
ill 

su
pp

ort
 th

is 
by

 se
ek

ing
 to

 pr
ov

ide
 go

od
 qu

ali
ty 

aff
ord

ab
le 

ho
us

ing
, w

ell
 de

sig
ne

d p
ub

lic 
sp

ac
es

 an
d b

ett
er 

tra
ns

po
rt 

lin
ks

. A
 co

mm
itm

en
t to

 en
vir

on
me

nta
l s

us
tai

na
bil

ity
 is

 al
so

 at
 

the
 he

art
 of

 th
is 

the
me

.   
 W

e w
ill u

se
 th

e f
oll

ow
ing

 sp
ec

ific
 m

ea
su

res
 to

 m
ea

su
re 

ou
r 

pro
gre

ss
 to

wa
rds

 ac
hie

vin
g A

 G
rea

t P
lac

e t
o L

ive
 

  
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 In
dic

ato
rs 

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
08
/09

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
09
/10

  
Ta
rg
et 

20
10
/11

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
11
/12

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
12
/13

 
2.1

 Pr
ov
ide

 af
for
da
ble

 ho
us
ing

 an
d d

ev
elo

p s
tro
ng
 ne

igh
bo
ur
ho
od
s 

S2
01

 
Nu

mb
er 

of 
ho

us
eh

old
s w

ho
 co

ns
ide

r th
em

se
lve

s 
as

 ho
me

les
s, 

wh
o a

pp
roa

ch
ed

 th
e L

oc
al 

Au
tho

rity
’s 

ho
us

ing
 ad

vic
e s

erv
ice

, a
nd

 fo
r w

ho
m 

ho
us

ing
 ad

vic
e c

as
ew

ork
 in

ter
ve

nti
on

 re
so

lve
d 

8.8
7 

 
9 

10
 

 

Page 145



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

46
 

 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 In
dic

ato
rs 

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
08
/09

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
09
/10

  
Ta
rg
et 

20
10
/11

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
11
/12

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
12
/13

 
the

ir s
itu

ati
on

 
S2

03
 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 re
du

cti
on

 of
 te

na
nte

d n
on

-de
ce

nt 
ho

me
s i

n h
om

es
 tra

ns
fer

red
 to

 R
SL

s t
hro

ug
h 

Ho
us

ing
 C

ho
ice

 
10

.6 
 

49
 

 
 

S2
07

 
NI

15
4: 

Ne
t a

dd
itio

na
l h

om
es

 pr
ov

ide
d 

2,8
39

 
 

2,9
99

 
1,8

70
 

 
S2

08
 

NI
15

5: 
Nu

mb
er 

of 
aff

ord
ab

le 
ho

me
s d

eli
ve

red
 

(gr
os

s) 
1,0

63
 

 
1,6

88
 

1,0
33

 
 

S2
09

 
NI

15
8: 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 no

n-d
ec

en
t c

ou
nc

il h
om

es
 

57
.61

 
 

47
 

45
 

 
S2

23
 

Nu
mb

er 
of 

so
cia

l re
nte

d h
ou

sin
g c

om
ple

tio
ns

 fo
r 

fam
ily 

ho
us

ing
 

39
3 

 
46

7 
60

7 
 

S2
24

 
Pe

rce
nta

ge
 of

 re
sid

en
ts 

sa
tis

fie
d w

ith
 ou

tco
me

s 
to 

AS
B 

47
.6 

 
 

 
 

S2
25

 
Av

era
ge

 tim
e t

o r
e-l

et 
pro

pe
rty

 
31

.83
 

 
28

 
 

 
S2

26
 

To
tal

 se
rvi

ce
 ch

arg
e d

eb
t o

uts
tan

din
g (

£M
illio

n) 
15

.3 
 

 
 

 
S2

27
 

Re
nt 

co
lle

cte
d a

s t
ota

l p
erc

en
tag

e o
f re

nt 
du

e 
99

.66
 

 
10

1 
10

1 
 

2.2
 St
ren

gth
en
 an

d c
on
ne
ct 
co
mm

un
itie

s 
S2

02
 

Nu
mb

er 
of 

ph
ys

ica
l v

isit
s t

o p
ub

lic 
lib

rar
y 

pre
mi

se
s p

er 
1,0

00
 po

pu
lat

ion
 

9,2
84

.76
 

 
9,4

38
.9 

9,4
38

.9 
 

S2
04

 
NI

00
1: 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 pe

op
le 

wh
o b

eli
ev

e p
eo

ple
 

fro
m 

dif
fer

en
t b

ac
kg

rou
nd

s g
et 

on
 w

ell
 to

ge
the

r in
 

the
ir l

oc
al 

are
a  

62
.5 

 
66

.4 
 

 

S2
17

 
Pe

rce
nta

ge
 of

 pe
op

le 
as

ke
d w

ho
 th

ink
 th

at 
pa

rks
, 

pla
yg

rou
nd

s a
nd

 op
en

 sp
ac

es
 ar

e g
oo

d, 
ve

ry 
go

od
 or

 ex
ce

lle
nt 

53
 

 
60

 
62

 
 

S2
19

 
NI

00
4: 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 pe

op
le 

wh
o f

ee
l th

ey
 ca

n 
inf

lue
nc

e d
ec

isio
ns

 in
 th

eir
 lo

ca
lity

 
35

.7 
 

38
 

 
 

S2
20

 
Pe

rce
nta

ge
 of

 re
sid

en
ts 

as
ke

d w
ho

 th
ink

 th
at 

45
 

 
47

 
48

 
 

Page 146



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

47
 

 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 In
dic

ato
rs 

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
08
/09

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
09
/10

  
Ta
rg
et 

20
10
/11

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
11
/12

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
12
/13

 
lei

su
re 

an
d s

po
rts

 fa
cili

tie
s a

re 
go

od
, v

ery
 go

od
 or

 
ex

ce
lle

nt 
S2

21
 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 re

sid
en

ts 
wh

o a
gre

e t
ha

t th
e 

Co
un

cil 
is 

do
ing

 a 
go

od
 jo

b: 
bo

rou
gh

 av
era

ge
 

69
 

 
75

 
78

 
 

S2
22

 
Pe

rce
nta

ge
 of

 re
sid

en
ts 

wh
o a

gre
e t

ha
t th

e 
Co

un
cil 

is 
do

ing
 a 

go
od

 jo
b: 

Ga
p b

etw
ee

n t
he

 
ov

era
ll b

oro
ug

h a
ve

rag
e a

nd
 th

e L
AP

 ar
ea

 w
ith

 
the

 lo
we

st 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 
 

 
10

 
 

 

2.3
 Su

pp
or
t v
ibr
an
t to

wn
 ce

ntr
es
 an

d a
 cl
ea
ne
r, s

afe
r p
ub
lic
 re
alm

 
S2

05
 

NI
00

5: 
Ov

era
ll /

 ge
ne

ral
 sa

tis
fac

tio
n w

ith
 th

e l
oc

al 
are

a 
69

.2 
 

72
.6 

 
 

S2
06

 
NI

04
7: 

Pe
op

le 
kill

ed
 or

 se
rio

us
ly 

inj
ure

d i
n r

oa
d 

tra
ffic

 ac
cid

en
ts 

-9.
1 

 
12

.1 
 

 
S2

12
 

NI
19

5: 
Im

pro
ve

d s
tre

et 
an

d e
nv

iro
nm

en
tal

 
cle

an
lin

es
s –

 Li
tte

r  
11

 
 

8 
8 

 
S2

13
 

NI
19

5: 
Im

pro
ve

d s
tre

et 
an

d e
nv

iro
nm

en
tal

 
cle

an
lin

es
s –

 de
trit

us
 

12
 

 
10

 
10

 
 

S2
14

 
NI

19
5: 

Im
pro

ve
d s

tre
et 

an
d e

nv
iro

nm
en

tal
 

cle
an

lin
es

s -
 gr

aff
iti 

16
 

 
6 

6 
 

S2
15

 
NI

19
5: 

Im
pro

ve
d s

tre
et 

an
d e

nv
iro

nm
en

tal
 

cle
an

lin
es

s –
 fly

-po
sti

ng
 

5 
 

2 
2 

 
S2

16
 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 pe

op
le 

wh
o t

hin
k t

ha
t s

tre
et 

cle
an

ing
 is

 go
od

, v
ery

 go
od

 or
 ex

ce
lle

nt 
(A

RS
)  

59
 

 
63

 
65

 
 

S2
18

 
Im

pro
ve

d p
erc

ep
tio

ns
 of

 AS
B: 

red
uc

ed
 

pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 th

e p
op

ula
tio

n w
ho

 vi
ew

 ru
bb

ish
 

an
d l

itte
r ly

ing
 ar

ou
nd

 as
 ‘a

 ve
ry 

se
rio

us
 pr

ob
lem

’  
16

 
 

14
 

13
 

 
2.4

 Im
pr
ov
e t
he
 en

vir
on
me

nt 
an
d t
ac
kle

 cl
im
ate

 ch
an
ge
  

Page 147



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

48
 

 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 In
dic

ato
rs 

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
08
/09

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
09
/10

  
Ta
rg
et 

20
10
/11

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
11
/12

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
12
/13

 
S2

10
 

NI
18

6: 
Pe

r c
ap

ita
 re

du
cti

on
 in

 C
02

 em
iss

ion
s i

n 
the

 LA
 ar

ea
 

 
 

10
 

 
 

S2
11

 
NI

19
2: 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 H

ou
se

ho
ld 

wa
ste

 se
nt 

for
 

reu
se

, re
cy

clin
g o

r c
om

po
sti

ng
 

19
.26

 
 

32
 

32
 

 
  A 

Pr
os

pe
ro

us
 C

om
mu

nit
y  

 W
e w

an
t to

 bu
ild

 on
 a 

str
on

g l
oc

al 
ec

on
om

y a
nd

 bu
sin

es
s 

gro
wt

h, 
to 

en
su

re 
tha

t w
e c

rea
te 

pro
sp

ero
us

 co
mm

un
itie

s 
ac

ros
s t

he
 bo

rou
gh

 an
d f

or 
all

 ou
r re

sid
en

ts.
 A 

ke
y p

rio
rity

 is
 

to 
en

su
re 

tha
t lo

ca
l p

eo
ple

 ha
ve

 ac
ce

ss
 to

 ex
ce

lle
nt 

lea
rni

ng
 

op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 th

rou
gh

 hi
gh

 qu
ali

ty 
ed

uc
ati

on
 av

ail
ab

le 
for

 

res
ide

nts
 of

 al
l a

ge
s. 

W
e w

ill a
lso

 he
lp 

pe
op

le 
to 

co
nfr

on
t th

e 
ma

ny
 di

ffe
ren

t c
au

se
s o

f jo
ble

ss
ne

ss
 an

d i
mp

rov
e s

kill
s a

nd
 

the
 em

plo
ym

en
t ra

te 
in 

the
 bo

rou
gh

. In
 ad

dit
ion

 w
e w

ill 
en

co
ura

ge
 an

d f
os

ter
 ne

w 
en

ter
pri

se
. 

 W
e w

ill u
se

 th
e f

oll
ow

ing
 sp

ec
ific

 m
ea

su
res

 to
 as

se
ss

 ou
r 

pro
gre

ss
 to

wa
rds

 ac
hie

vin
g a

 Pr
os

pe
rou

s C
om

mu
nit

y. 
  

Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 In
dic

ato
rs 

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
08
/09

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
09
/10

  
Ta
rg
et 

20
10
/11

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
11
/12

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
12
/13

 
3.1

 Su
pp
or
t li
fel
on
g l
ea
rn
ing

 op
po
rtu
nit
ies

 fo
r a
ll 

S3
01

 
Im

pro
vin

g A
 Le

ve
l a

tta
inm

en
t –

 A 
Le

ve
l a

ve
rag

e 
po

int
s s

co
re 

pe
r s

tud
en

t in
 To

we
r H

am
let

s  
63

9.5
 

 
 

 
 

S3
03

 
NI

07
9: 

Ac
hie

ve
me

nt 
of 

a l
ev

el 
2 q

ua
lific

ati
on

 by
 

ag
e 1

9 
65

 
 

71
.8 

74
.3 

 
S3

04
 

NI
08

0: 
Ac

hie
ve

me
nt 

of 
a l

ev
el 

3 q
ua

lific
ati

on
 by

 
ag

e 1
9 

38
 

 
46

 
49

 
 

S3
05

 
NI

10
6: 

Yo
un

g p
eo

ple
 fro

m 
low

 in
co

me
 

ba
ck

gro
un

ds
 pr

og
res

sin
g t

o h
igh

er 
ed

uc
ati

on
 

7 
 

0 
 

 
S3

06
 

NI
11

0: 
Yo

un
g p

eo
ple

’s 
pa

rtic
ipa

tio
n i

n p
os

itiv
e 

ac
tiv

itie
s 

70
.3 

 
81

.2 
85

 
 

Page 148



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

49
 

 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 In
dic

ato
rs 

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
08
/09

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
09
/10

  
Ta
rg
et 

20
10
/11

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
11
/12

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
12
/13

 

S3
15

 
NI

07
2: 

Ac
hie

ve
me

nt 
of 

at 
lea

st 
78

 po
int

s a
cro

ss
 

the
 Ea

rly
 Ye

ars
 Fo

un
da

tio
n S

tag
e w

ith
 at

 le
as

t 6
 

in 
ea

ch
 of

 th
e s

ca
les

 in
 Pe

rso
na

l S
oc

ial
 an

d 
Em

oti
on

al 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d C

om
mu

nic
ati

on
, 

La
ng

ua
ge

 an
d L

ite
rac

y 
40

 
 

46
 

 
 

S3
16

 
NI

07
6: 

Re
du

cti
on

 in
 nu

mb
er 

of 
sc

ho
ols

 w
he

re 
few

er 
tha

n 5
5%

 of
 pu

pil
s a

ch
iev

e l
ev

el 
4 o

r a
bo

ve
 

in 
bo

th 
En

gli
sh

 an
d m

ath
s a

t K
S2

  
3 

6 
1 

 
 

S3
18

 
NI

07
8: 

Re
du

cti
on

 in
 nu

mb
er 

of 
sc

ho
ols

 w
he

re 
few

er 
tha

n 3
0%

 of
 pu

pil
s a

ch
iev

e 5
 or

 m
ore

 A*
-C

 
gra

de
s a

t G
CS

E a
nd

 eq
uiv

ale
nt 

inc
lud

ing
 G

CS
Es

 
in 

En
gli

sh
 an

d M
ath

s  
3 

 
0 

0 
 

S3
19

 
NI

08
7: 

Se
co

nd
ary

 sc
ho

ol 
pe

rsi
ste

nt 
ab

se
nc

e r
ate

 
4.8

 
 

4.4
 

4.2
 

4 
S3

20
 

NI
10

1: 
Lo

ok
ed

 af
ter

 ch
ild

ren
 ac

hie
vin

g 5
 A*

-C
 

GC
SE

s (
or 

eq
uiv

ale
nt)

 at
 Ke

y S
tag

e 4
 (in

clu
din

g 
En

gli
sh

 an
d M

ath
s) 

6.7
 

 
20

 
 

 

S3
21

 
Na

rro
win

g t
he

 ga
p b

etw
ee

n t
he

 lo
we

st 
ac

hie
vin

g 
20

% 
in 

the
 Ea

rly
 Ye

ars
 Fo

un
da

tio
n S

tag
e P

rof
ile

 
an

d t
he

 re
st 

37
.3 

 
30

.9 
 

 

S3
22

 
Pr

og
res

sio
n b

y 2
 le

ve
ls 

in 
En

gli
sh

 be
tw

ee
n K

ey
 

Sta
ge

 1 
an

d K
ey

 St
ag

e 2
 

86
.5 

 
93

 
 

 
S3

23
 

Pr
og

res
sio

n b
y 2

 le
ve

ls 
in 

Ma
ths

 be
tw

ee
n K

ey
 

Sta
ge

 1 
an

d K
ey

 St
ag

e 2
 

84
 

 
88

 
 

 
S3

24
 

ES
OL

 En
try

 Le
ve

l O
ne

 C
om

ple
tio

ns
 

40
0 

 
36

2 
37

5 
 

S3
25

 
Ac

hie
ve

me
nt 

of 
5 o

r m
ore

 A*
- C

 gr
ad

es
 at

 G
CS

E 
or 

eq
uiv

ale
nt 

inc
lud

ing
 En

gli
sh

 an
d M

ath
s 

41
.2 

45
.8 

53
 

 
 

S3
26

 
Lo

ok
ed

 af
ter

 ch
ild

ren
 re

ac
hin

g l
ev

el 
4 i

n 
36

.4 
 

53
 

 
 

Page 149



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

50
 

 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 In
dic

ato
rs 

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
08
/09

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
09
/10

  
Ta
rg
et 

20
10
/11

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
11
/12

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
12
/13

 
ma

the
ma

tic
s a

t K
ey

 St
ag

e 2
 

S3
27

 
Ac

hie
ve

me
nt 

at 
lev

el 
4 o

r a
bo

ve
 in

 bo
th 

En
gli

sh
 

an
d M

ath
s a

t K
ey

 St
ag

e 2
 

74
 

 
80

 
 

 
S3

29
 

Lo
ok

ed
 af

ter
 ch

ild
ren

 re
ac

hin
g l

ev
el 

4 i
n E

ng
lish

 
at 

Ke
y S

tag
e 2

 
36

.4 
 

53
 

 
 

3.2
 R
ed
uc
e w

or
kle

ss
ne
ss
 

S3
07

 
NI

 11
6: 

Pr
op

ort
ion

 of
 ch

ild
ren

 in
 po

ve
rty

 
 

 
41

.9 
40

.3 
 

S3
08

 
NI

 11
7: 

16
-18

 ye
ar 

old
s w

ho
 ar

e n
ot 

in 
ed

uc
ati

on
, 

em
plo

ym
en

t o
f tr

ain
ing

 (N
EE

T) 
6.7

 
 

6 
5 

 
S3

09
 

NI
 14

6: 
Ad

ult
s w

ith
 le

arn
ing

 di
sa

bil
itie

s i
n 

em
plo

ym
en

t 
3.3

 
 

 
 

 
S3

10
 

NI
 15

0: 
Ad

ult
s r

ec
eiv

ing
 se

co
nd

ary
 m

en
tal

 he
alt

h 
se

rvi
ce

s i
n e

mp
loy

me
nt 

2.4
 

 
 

 
 

S3
11

 
NI

 15
1: 

Ov
era

ll e
mp

loy
me

nt 
rat

e (
wo

rki
ng

 ag
e) 

60
.8 

 
55

.7 
60

.75
 

 
S3

12
 

NI
 15

2: 
W

ork
ing

 ag
e p

eo
ple

 on
 ou

t o
f w

ork
 

be
ne

fits
 

17
.1 

 
16

.8 
16

.86
 

 
S3

13
 

NI
 15

3: 
W

ork
ing

 ag
e p

eo
ple

 cl
aim

ing
 ou

t o
f w

ork
 

be
ne

fits
 in

 th
e w

ors
t p

erf
orm

ing
 ne

igh
bo

urh
oo

ds
 

25
.4 

 
26

.8 
24

.93
 

 
3.3

 Fo
ste

r E
nte

rp
ris
e 

S3
02

 
NI

 7:
 En

vir
on

me
nt 

for
 a 

thr
ivin

g t
hir

d s
ec

tor
 

21
.1 

 
27

.1 
 

 
S3

28
 

£'s
 of

 co
ntr

ac
ts 

wo
n b

y T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
org

an
isa

tio
ns

 
 

 
£5

 m
illio

n 
 

 
   

Page 150



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

51
 

A 
Sa

fe 
an

d S
up

po
rti

ve
 C

om
mu

nit
y 

 Th
e S

afe
 an

d S
up

po
rtiv

e C
om

mu
nit

ies
 th

em
e r

ep
res

en
ts 

a 
vis

ion
 fo

r T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 as
 a 

pla
ce

 w
he

re 
ev

ery
on

e c
an

 
ac

hie
ve

 th
eir

 fu
ll p

ote
nti

al.
 Th

is 
me

an
s a

 pl
ac

e w
he

re 
cri

me
 is

 
rar

e a
nd

 ta
ck

led
 ef

fec
tiv

ely
, a

nd
 w

he
re 

co
mm

un
itie

s l
ive

 in
 

pe
ac

e t
og

eth
er.

 It 
als

o m
ea

ns
 so

me
wh

ere
 w

he
re 

ev
ery

on
e 

ha
s e

qu
al 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 ch
oic

es
, c

ha
nc

es
 an

d p
ow

er.
 Lo

ca
l p

ub
lic 

se
rvi

ce
s n

ee
d t

o i
de

nti
fy 

tho
se

 w
ho

 ar
e m

os
t a

t ri
sk

 an
d 

su
pp

ort
 th

em
 so

 th
at 

the
y c

an
 fu

lfil 
the

ir p
ote

nti
al.

 
 W

e w
ill u

se
 th

e f
oll

ow
ing

 sp
ec

ific
 m

ea
su

res
 to

 as
se

ss
 ou

r 
pro

gre
ss

 to
wa

rds
 ac

hie
vin

g a
 Sa

fe 
an

d S
up

po
rtiv

e 
Co

mm
un

ity
. 

  
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 In
dic

ato
rs 

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
08
/09

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
09
/10

  
Ta
rg
et 

20
10
/11

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
11
/12

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
12
/13

 
4.1

 Em
po
we

r o
lde

r a
nd
 vu

lne
rab

le 
pe
op
le 
an
d s

up
po
rt 
fam

ilie
s 

S4
12

 
NI

 13
5: 

Ca
rer

s r
ec

eiv
ing

 ne
ed

s a
ss

es
sm

en
t o

r 
rev

iew
 an

d a
 sp

ec
ific

 ca
rer

’s 
se

rvi
ce

, o
r a

dv
ice

 
an

d i
nfo

rm
ati

on
 

30
.1 

 
30

.9 
 

 

S4
13

 
Pe

rce
nta

ge
 of

 ch
ild

ren
 be

co
mi

ng
 th

e s
ub

jec
t o

f 
Ch

ild
 Pr

ote
cti

on
 Pl

an
 fo

r a
 se

co
nd

 or
 su

bs
eq

ue
nt 

tim
e 

6.8
 

 
6 

6 
 

4.2
 Ta

ck
le 
an
d p

rev
en
t c
rim

e 
S4

01
 

NI
 11

3: 
Pe

rce
nta

ge
 of

 re
sid

en
ts 

ide
nti

fyi
ng

 cr
im

e 
wit

hin
 th

eir
 to

p t
hre

e c
on

ce
rns

 (A
RS

)   
47

 
 

44
 

42
 

 
S4

02
 

NI
 15

: N
um

be
r o

f m
os

t s
eri

ou
s v

iol
en

t c
rim

es
 pe

r 
1,0

00
 po

pu
lat

ion
 

2.3
5 

 
2.1

9 
 

 
S4

03
 

NI
 16

: n
um

be
r o

f s
eri

ou
s a

cq
uis

itiv
e c

rim
es

 pe
r 

1,0
00

 po
pu

lat
ion

 
25

.51
 

 
24

.8 
 

 
S4

04
 

NI
 18

: R
ate

 of
 pr

ov
en

 re
-of

fen
din

g b
y a

du
lts

 
un

de
r p

rob
ati

on
 su

pe
rvi

sio
n 

3.7
8 

 
-9.

97
 

 
 

S4
05

 
NI

 19
: R

ate
 of

 pr
ov

en
 re

-of
fen

din
g b

y y
ou

ng
 

off
en

de
rs 

ag
ed

 10
-17

 
10

1 
 

10
8 

 
 

S4
06

 
NI

 21
: D

ea
lin

g w
ith

 lo
ca

l c
on

ce
rns

 ab
ou

t a
nti

-
23

.3 
 

33
.3 

 
 

Page 151



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

52
 

 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 In
dic

ato
rs 

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
08
/09

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
09
/10

  
Ta
rg
et 

20
10
/11

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
11
/12

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
12
/13

 
so

cia
l b

eh
av

iou
r a

nd
 cr

im
e i

ss
ue

s b
y t

he
 lo

ca
l 

Co
un

cil 
an

d P
oli

ce
 

S4
07

 
NI

 33
i: A

rso
n I

nc
ide

nts
 – 

nu
mb

er 
of 

de
lib

era
te 

pri
ma

ry 
fire

s p
er 

10
,00

0 p
op

ula
tio

n 
9.9

9 
 

11
.5 

 
 

S4
08

 
NI

 33
ii: 

Nu
mb

er 
of 

de
lib

era
te 

se
co

nd
ary

 fir
es

 pe
r 

10
,00

0 p
op

ula
tio

n (
Ar

so
n) 

20
.99

 
 

34
.7 

 
 

S4
09

 
NI

 35
: B

uil
din

g r
es

ilie
nc

e t
o v

iol
en

t e
xtr

em
ism

 (fo
r 

AP
AC

S)
; th

is 
ind

ica
tor

 w
ill b

e t
ria

lle
d a

nd
 

ev
alu

ate
d i

n 2
00

8/0
9a

nd
 w

ill n
ot 

be
 pu

bli
sh

ed
 in

 
AP

AC
S o

r u
se

d f
or 

as
se

ss
me

nt 
in 

AP
AC

S i
n 

20
08

/09
 

16
 

 
20

 
 

 

S4
10

 
NI

 40
: N

um
be

r o
f d

rug
 us

ers
 re

co
rde

d a
s b

ein
g i

n 
eff

ec
tiv

e t
rea

tm
en

t 
81

 
 

13
8 

15
3 

 
S4

11
 

NI
 42

: P
erc

ep
tio

ns
 of

 dr
ug

 us
e o

r d
rug

 de
ali

ng
 as

 
a p

rob
lem

 
60

.5 
 

56
.5 

 
 

4.3
 Fo

cu
s o

n e
arl
y i
nte

rve
nti
on
 

S4
13

 
Pe

rce
nta

ge
 of

 ch
ild

ren
 be

co
mi

ng
 th

e s
ub

jec
t o

f 
Ch

ild
 Pr

ote
cti

on
 Pl

an
 fo

r a
 se

co
nd

 or
 su

bs
eq

ue
nt 

tim
e [

se
e a

lso
 4.

1] 
6.8

 
 

6 
6 

 

Page 152



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

53
 

A 
He

alt
hy

 C
om

mu
nit

y  
 Lo

ca
l re

sid
en

ts 
wa

nt 
To

we
r H

am
let

s t
o b

e a
 pl

ac
e w

he
re 

dif
fer

en
ce

s i
n t

he
 qu

ali
ty 

of 
pe

op
le’

s h
ea

lth
 an

d l
ife

 
ex

pe
cta

nc
y a

re 
red

uc
ed

, w
he

re 
pe

op
le 

lea
d h

ea
lth

y l
ive

s a
nd

 
wh

ere
 ev

ery
on

e h
as

 ac
ce

ss
 to

 w
orl

d c
las

s p
rim

ary
 ca

re,
 

co
mm

un
ity

, a
nd

 m
en

tal
 he

alt
h a

nd
 ho

sp
ita

l s
erv

ice
s. 

At 
the

 

mo
me

nt,
 th

ere
 ar

e s
om

e s
tar

k d
iffe

ren
ce

s i
n t

he
 qu

ali
ty 

of 
he

alt
h e

xp
eri

en
ce

d b
y T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 re

sid
en

ts.
 W

e w
an

t to
 

wo
rk 

wit
h a

ll o
ur 

pa
rtn

ers
, in

clu
din

g r
es

ide
nts

 to
 lo

we
r th

os
e 

dif
fer

en
ce

s. 
 W

e w
ill u

se
 th

e f
oll

ow
ing

 sp
ec

ific
 m

ea
su

res
 to

 as
se

ss
 ou

r 
pro

gre
ss

 to
wa

rds
 ac

hie
vin

g a
 H

ea
lth

y C
om

mu
nit

y: 
  

Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 In
dic

ato
rs 

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
08
/09

 
Ou

ttu
rn
 

20
09
/10

  
Ta
rg
et 

20
10
/11

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
11
/12

 
Ta
rg
et 

20
12
/13

 
5.1

 R
ed
uc
e d

iffe
ren

ce
s i
n p

eo
ple

’s 
he
alt
h a

nd
 pr
om

ote
 he

alt
hy
 lif
es
tyl
es
  

S5
01

 
Ad

ult
 pa

rtic
ipa

tio
n i

n s
po

rt a
nd

 ac
tiv

e r
ec

rea
tio

n  
17

.7 
 

19
.7 

20
.7 

 
S5

04
 

NI
56

a: 
Pe

rce
nta

ge
 of

 ch
ild

ren
 in

 Ye
ar 

6 w
ith

 
he

igh
t a

nd
 w

eig
ht 

rec
ord

ed
 w

ho
 ar

e o
be

se
 

24
.49

 
25

.7 
23

.7 
23

.8 
 

S5
06

 
NI

11
2: 

Un
de

r 1
8 c

on
ce

pti
on

 ra
tes

  
-20

.8 
-31

.1 
-55

 
-55

 
 

S5
07

 
NI

12
0a

: A
ll-a

ge
 al

l c
au

se
 m

ort
ali

ty 
rat

e –
 M

ale
 

85
6.1

4 
 

78
7 

74
9 

 
S5

08
 

NI
12

0b
: A

ll-a
ge

 al
l c

au
se

 m
ort

ali
ty 

rat
e –

 Fe
ma

le 
57

7 
 

78
7 

74
9 

 
S5

09
 

NI
12

3: 
Sto

pp
ing

 sm
ok

ing
 

1,2
53

 
 

1,0
61

 
 

 

Page 153



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

54
 

6. 
Us

e o
f R

es
ou

rce
s a

nd
 D

ata
 Q

ua
lity

 
 Int
ro
du
cti
on
 an

d B
ac
kg
ro
un
d 

Du
rin

g t
he

 fin
an

cia
l y

ea
r 2

01
0/1

1, 
the

 C
ou

nc
il w

ill s
pe

nd
 

ne
arl

y £
1.0

92
 bi

llio
n p

rov
idi

ng
 a 

wid
e r

an
ge

 of
 lo

ca
l s

erv
ice

s. 
Of

 th
is,

 £1
.02

3 b
illio

n i
s r

ev
en

ue
 sp

en
din

g, 
an

d £
59

 m
illio

n 
ca

pit
al.

 
 Int
eg
rat
ed
 Se

rvi
ce
 an

d F
ina

nc
ial
 Pl
an
nin

g 
Th

e C
ou

nc
il’s

 fin
an

cia
l p

lan
nin

g a
nd

 bu
dg

eti
ng

 ta
ke

s p
lac

e 
alo

ng
sid

e i
ts 

pla
nn

ing
 fo

r th
e d

eli
ve

ry 
an

d i
mp

rov
em

en
t o

f 
se

rvi
ce

s: 
  

• 
W

e h
av

e a
 m

ed
ium

 te
rm

 fin
an

cia
l p

lan
 w

hic
h e

ns
ure

s 
tha

t o
ur 

se
rvi

ce
 pl

an
s a

re 
aff

ord
ab

le.
  

• 
Th

e f
ina

nc
ial

 im
pli

ca
tio

ns
 of

 pr
op

os
als

 to
 im

pro
ve

 an
d 

de
ve

lop
 se

rvi
ce

s a
re 

ide
nti

fie
d a

nd
 co

ns
ide

red
.  

• 
Re

so
urc

es
 ar

e d
ire

cte
d t

o m
ee

tin
g t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’s
 

str
ate

gic
 ob

jec
tiv

es
, a

nd
 th

e b
ud

ge
t p

roc
es

s e
ns

ure
s 

tha
t m

on
ey

 flo
ws

 to
 th

e h
igh

es
t p

rio
riti

es
.  

• 
W

e m
on

ito
r b

oth
 th

e p
erf

orm
an

ce
 of

 se
rvi

ce
s a

nd
 th

eir
 

fin
an

ce
s t

o e
ns

ure
 pl

an
s a

re 
de

live
red

 w
ith

in 
bu

dg
et.

 
Va

lue
 fo

r m
on

ey
, b

ud
ge

ts 
an

d h
igh

 qu
ali

ty 
se

rvi
ce

s a
re 

de
ep

ly 
em

be
dd

ed
 in

 th
e w

ay
 th

e C
ou

nc
il r

ev
iew

s i
ts 

bu
dg

et 
for

 fu
tur

e y
ea

rs.
 

 

 Me
diu

m 
Te
rm
 Pl
an
  

Me
diu

m 
ter

m 
fin

an
cia

l p
lan

nin
g i

s a
n i

mp
ort

an
t c

om
po

ne
nt 

of 
the

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 s
tra

teg
ic 

pla
nn

ing
. W

hil
e 

ma
ny

 k
ey

 d
ec

isio
ns

, 
su

ch
 as

 se
ttin

g t
he

 C
ou

nc
il T

ax
, c

an
 on

ly 
be

 ta
ke

n a
nn

ua
lly,

 
tho

se
 de

cis
ion

s n
ee

d t
o b

e s
et 

in 
the

 co
nte

xt 
of 

a l
on

ge
r te

rm
 

pla
n. 

 
 W

e p
rep

are
 a

 ro
llin

g 
thr

ee
-ye

ar 
fin

an
cia

l p
lan

 w
ith

 in
dic

ati
ve

 
for

ec
as

ts 
of 

sp
en

din
g, 

go
ve

rnm
en

t g
ran

t a
nd

 C
ou

nc
il 

Ta
x 

lev
els

. T
his

 p
lan

 ta
ke

s 
ac

co
un

t o
f t

he
 is

su
es

 s
et 

ou
t i

n 
the

 
Fin

an
cia

l C
on

tex
t s

ec
tio

n 
be

low
 a

s 
we

ll 
as

 d
em

og
rap

hic
 

ch
an

ge
s, 

ch
an

ge
s i

n 
res

po
ns

ibi
litie

s, 
inf

lat
ion

, o
ng

oin
g 

co
sts

 
as

so
cia

ted
 w

ith
 ou

r c
ap

ita
l p

rog
ram

me
, e

ffic
ien

cy
 ta

rge
ts 

an
d 

the
 im

pa
ct 

of 
pla

nn
ed

 se
rvi

ce
 d

ev
elo

pm
en

ts 
in 

the
 S

tra
teg

ic 
an

d S
erv

ice
 P

lan
s. 

Th
e M

ed
ium

 Te
rm

 P
lan

 he
lps

 en
su

re 
tha

t 
the

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 fi
na

nc
ial

 p
lan

s 
are

 s
us

tai
na

ble
 a

nd
 to

 id
en

tify
 

op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 f

or 
mo

vin
g 

res
ou

rce
s 

int
o 

str
ate

gic
 p

rio
rity

 
are

as
.   

  
 Th

e t
ab

le 
be

low
 su

mm
ari

se
s t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’s
 M

ed
ium

 Te
rm

 
Fin

an
cia

l P
roj

ec
tio

n f
or 

the
 pe

rio
d 2

01
0/1

1-2
01

2/1
3. 

 Fi
gu

res
 

for
 20

11
/12

 an
d 2

01
2/1

3 a
re 

pro
jec

tio
ns

 an
d d

ec
isio

ns
 on

 
the

se
 w

ill b
e t

ak
en

 as
 pa

rt o
f fu

tur
e b

ud
ge

t ro
un

ds
.  

   

Page 154



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

55
 

 ME
DI
UM

 TE
RM

 FI
NA

NC
IA
L P

LA
N 
20
10
/11

 – 
20
12
/13

 
 

 
20
10
/11

 
 

20
11
/12

 
 

20
12
/13

 
 

 
£'0
00
 
 

£'0
00
 

 
£'0
00
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
Ini
tia
l B
ud
ge
t 

 
29

7,9
26

 
 

31
0,3

69
 

 
30

5,6
87

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Inf
lat
ion

 an
d O

the
r C

on
tin
ge
nc
ies

 
 

6,5
66

 
 

7,0
26

 
 

7,2
01

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Co
ntr
ibu

tio
n t
o I
nv
es
tm
en
t R
es
erv

e 
 

2,9
00

 
 

-2,
90

0 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

An
nu
al 
sa
vin

gs
 ta
rg
et 

 
 

 
-18

,27
5 

 
-18

,62
2 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Bu
dg
et 
Re
qu
ire
me

nt 
 

  
31

0,3
69

 
  

30
5,6

87
 

  
30

4,9
07

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Fo
rm

ula
 G

ran
t   

 
-23

2,2
04

 
 

-22
9,8

82
 

  
-22

7,5
83

 
Co

lle
cti

on
 Fu

nd
 Su

rpl
us

 / D
efi

cit
 

 
-3,

47
8 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
To
 Fu

nd
ed
 fr
om

 C
ou
nc
il T

ax
 

  
74

,68
7 

  
75

,80
5 

  
77

,32
4 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
As
su
me

d B
an
d D

 C
ou
nc
il T

ax
 - T

ow
er 
Ha
ml
ets

  
 

£8
85

.52
 

 
£8

85
.52

 
 

£8
85

.52
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Ch
an
ge
 in
 C
ou
nc
il T

ax
 

 
0.0

0%
 
 

0.0
0%

 
 

0.0
0%

 
Ple

as
e n

ote
, C

ou
nc

il T
ax

 fig
ure

s f
or 

20
11

/12
 an

d 2
01

2/1
3 a

re 
for

 illu
str

ati
on

 on
ly 

an
d a

re 
no

t b
ein

g a
pp

rov
ed

 by
 th

e C
ou

nc
il. 

 
 Co

un
cil 

Ta
x f

or 
20

10
/11

 ha
s b

ee
n s

et 
at 

£8
85

.52
 fo

r a
 Ba

nd
 D

 
pro

pe
rty

, w
hic

h i
s l

ike
ly 

to 
be

 th
e 6

th
 lo

we
st 

of 
the

 33
 Lo

nd
on

 
Bo

rou
gh

s. 
 Th

e H
ou

sin
g R

ev
en

ue
 Ac

co
un

t, t
hro

ug
h w

hic
h t

he
 fin

an
ce

s o
f 

the
 C

ou
nc

il’s
 so

cia
l h

ou
sin

g s
toc

k a
re 

ma
na

ge
d, 

ha
s a

 G
ros

s 
bu

dg
et 

for
 20

01
0/1

1 o
f £

90
.10

1M
  A

n a
ve

rag
e r

en
t o

f £
86

.32
 

ha
s b

ee
n s

et,
 w

hic
h i

s a
 3.

1%
 in

cre
as

e o
ve

r 2
00

9/1
0. 

  

Fin
an
cia

l M
an
ag
em

en
t 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 fin

an
cia

l m
an

ag
em

en
t s

ys
tem

s a
re 

the
re 

to:
 

• 
Ma

xim
ise

 th
e r

es
ou

rce
s a

va
ila

ble
 to

 de
live

r th
e 

ob
jec

tiv
es

 of
 th

e C
ou

nc
il a

nd
 th

e P
art

ne
rsh

ip 
 

• 
Ali

gn
 ou

r s
pe

nd
ing

 pl
an

s w
ith

 th
e p

rio
riti

es
 se

t o
ut 

in 
the

 C
om

mu
nit

y a
nd

 St
rat

eg
ic 

Pla
ns

 
• 

Me
as

ure
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 ag
ain

st 
bu

dg
ets

 
• 

En
su

re 
we

 de
live

r v
alu

e f
or 

mo
ne

y  
• 

Ba
lan

ce
 th

e n
ee

d f
or 

se
rvi

ce
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

wit
h t

he
 

de
ma

nd
s p

lac
ed

 on
 C

ou
nc

il T
ax

 pa
ye

rs.
 

Page 155



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

56
 

• 
Ma

int
ain

 an
d e

nh
an

ce
 co

nfi
de

nc
e i

n t
he

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 
ste

wa
rds

hip
 of

 pu
bli

c m
on

ey
 

 Re
so
ur
ce
s f
or
 th
e Y

ea
r A

he
ad
 

Th
e t

ab
le 

be
low

 se
ts 

ou
t o

ur 
es

tim
ate

d r
ev

en
ue

 sp
en

din
g f

or 
the

 ye
ar 

20
10

/11
. R

ev
en

ue
 ex

pe
nd

itu
re 

is 
the

 da
y-t

o-d
ay

 
co

sts
 of

 ru
nn

ing
 se

rvi
ce

s.
  

 
Re
ve
nu
e B

ud
ge
t 2
01
0/1
1 

Di
re

ct
or

at
e 

Gr
os
s E

xp
en
dit
ur
e 

£'0
00
 

Gr
os
s I
nc
om

e 
£'0

00
 

Ne
t E
xp
en
dit
ur
e 

£'0
00
 

Ad
ult

s H
ea

lth
 & 

W
ell

be
ing

 
15

6,4
43

 
(66

,12
9) 

90
,31

4 
Ch

ild
ren

, S
ch

oo
ls 

& F
am

ilie
s 

41
9,2

27
 

(32
5,3

31
) 

93
,89

6 
Co

mm
un

itie
s, 

Lo
ca

litie
s, 

& C
ult

ure
 

92
,86

1 
(17

,26
6) 

75
,59

5 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

& R
en

ew
al 

21
,14

1 
(8,

73
5) 

12
,40

6 
Ch

ief
 Ex

ec
uti

ve
 

18
,69

6 
(5,

18
5) 

13
,51

1 
Re

so
urc

es
 

29
2,2

65
 

(27
3,6

64
) 

18
,60

1 
Co

rpo
rat

e/C
ap

ita
l 

21
,91

9 
(4,

17
1) 

17
,74

8 
To
tal
 

1,0
22
,55

2 
(70

0,4
81
) 

32
2,0

71
 

   Ca
pit
al 
Inv

es
tm
en
t 

Ca
pit

al 
sp

en
din

g i
s a

bo
ut 

inv
es

tin
g i

n t
he

 bu
ild

ing
s a

nd
 ot

he
r 

as
se

ts 
we

 ne
ed

 to
 de

live
r s

erv
ice

s. 
 O

ur 
15

 ye
ar 

Ca
pit

al 
Str

ate
gy

 pr
ov

ide
s t

he
 ba

sis
 fo

r e
va

lua
tin

g c
ap

ita
l p

rop
os

als
 

an
d p

rio
riti

sin
g c

ap
ita

l in
ve

stm
en

t. C
ap

ita
l re

so
urc

es
 ar

e 
all

oc
ate

d t
o i

nv
es

tm
en

t p
rog

ram
me

s a
nd

 pr
oje

cts
 th

at 
off

er 
the

 m
os

t c
os

t-e
ffe

cti
ve

 co
ntr

ibu
tio

n t
o a

ch
iev

ing
 co

rpo
rat

e 

pri
ori

tie
s. 

Clo
se

ly 
ali

gn
ed

 to
 th

e C
ap

ita
l S

tra
teg

y i
s o

ur 
As

se
t 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Pla

n, 
wh

ich
 se

ts 
ou

t o
ur 

ap
pro

ac
h t

o t
he

 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

of 
ou

r e
xis

tin
g p

rop
ert

y p
ort

fol
io 

an
d i

ts 
rol

e i
n 

su
pp

ort
ing

 co
rpo

rat
e a

nd
 se

rvi
ce

 ob
jec

tiv
es

. 
Th

e t
ab

le 
be

low
 sh

ow
s h

ow
 ca

pit
al 

inv
es

tm
en

t p
rog

ram
me

d 
for

 th
e n

ex
t th

ree
 ye

ars
 is

 al
loc

ate
d t

o e
ac

h o
f th

e 
dir

ec
tor

ate
s.

 
  

Page 156



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

57
 

Ma
ins
tre
am
 C
ap
ita
l P
rog
ram

me
 20
10
/13
 

Co
mm

un
ity
 Pl
an
 Th

em
e 

20
10
/11

 
£M

 
20
11
/12

 
£M

 
20
12
/13

 
£M

 
To
tal
 

£M
 

Ad
ult

s, 
He

alt
h &

 W
ell

be
ing

 
0.3

92
 

0.0
00

 
0.0

00
 

0.3
92

 
Ch

ild
ren

, S
ch

oo
ls 

an
d F

am
ilie

s 
17

.91
0 

0.0
00

 
0.0

00
 

17
.91

0 
Co

mm
un

itie
s, 

Lo
ca

litie
s a

nd
 C

ult
ure

 
2.9

00
 

3.0
00

 
3.0

00
 

8.9
00

 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

& R
en

ew
al 

0.8
90

 
0.2

00
 

0.2
00

 
1.2

90
 

Ho
us

ing
 R

ev
en

ue
 Ac

co
un

t 
36

.59
8 

29
.83

6 
27

.91
1 

94
.34

5 
To
tal
  

58
.69

0 
33
.03

6 
31
.11

1 
12
2.8

37
 

 Fin
an
cia

l C
on
tex

t 
Th

e C
ou

nc
il f

ac
es

 a 
nu

mb
er 

of 
ma

jor
 st

rat
eg

ic 
an

d s
erv

ice
 

iss
ue

s o
ve

r it
s s

tra
teg

ic 
pla

nn
ing

 cy
cle

, m
an

y o
f w

hic
h h

av
e 

fin
an

cia
l im

pli
ca

tio
ns

. In
 ad

dit
ion

, o
ur 

pla
nn

ing
 pr

oc
es

se
s a

re 
tak

ing
 pl

ac
e a

ga
ins

t th
e b

ac
kg

rou
nd

 of
 si

gn
ific

an
t c

ha
ng

es
 to

 
the

 ex
ter

na
l fi

na
nc

ial
 en

vir
on

me
nt.

 To
ge

the
r th

es
e m

ea
n a

 
ch

all
en

gin
g a

ge
nd

a f
or 

the
 C

ou
nc

il, 
an

d m
us

t b
e c

on
sid

ere
d 

as
 pa

rt o
f th

e c
on

tex
t fo

r o
ur 

str
ate

gic
 pl

an
nin

g. 
So

me
 of

 th
e 

ke
y i

ss
ue

s a
re 

se
t o

ut 
be

low
. 

 Pu
bli
c S

pe
nd
ing

 an
d C

ha
ng
es
 to
 th
e L

oc
al 
Go

ve
rn
me

nt 
Fin

an
ce
 Sy

ste
m 

Th
e l

as
t p

ub
lic 

se
cto

r s
pe

nd
ing

 re
vie

w 
oc

cu
rre

d i
n O

cto
be

r 
20

07
 an

d a
lso

 th
e r

ev
iew

 of
 th

e d
ist

rib
uti

on
 of

 gr
an

ts 
to 

loc
al 

au
tho

riti
es

 at
 th

e s
am

e t
im

e. 
 Th

e i
mp

ac
t o

f th
os

e t
wo

 
an

no
un

ce
me

nts
 m

ea
nt 

tha
t T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 w

as
 ex

pe
cte

d t
o 

rec
eiv

e i
nc

rea
se

s i
n g

ran
t fu

nd
ing

 at
 be

low
 th

e r
ate

 of
 in

fla
tio

n 
for

 th
e n

ex
t th

ree
 ye

ars
 an

d b
ey

on
d. 

 In
 ad

dit
ion

, a
s 

an
no

un
ce

d b
y t

he
 C

ha
nc

ell
or 

of 
the

 Ex
ch

eq
ue

r in
 th

e 2
00

9 
Bu

dg
et,

 th
e i

mp
ac

t o
f th

e e
co

no
mi

c d
ow

ntu
rn 

an
d t

he
 20

08
 

ba
nk

ing
 cr

isis
 w

ill f
ee

d t
hro

ug
h i

nto
 pu

bli
c s

pe
nd

ing
 de

cis
ion

s 
fro

m 
20

11
/12

 on
wa

rds
.  T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 ha

s b
as

ed
 its

 M
TF

P 
on

 a 
rea

list
ic 

as
se

ss
me

nt 
of 

the
 lik

ely
 le

ve
ls 

of 
go

ve
rnm

en
t 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re 
an

d g
ran

ts 
to 

loc
al 

au
tho

riti
es

 in
 th

e n
ex

t 3
 ye

ars
.   

 Ca
pit
al 
Fu
nd
ing

 
Fu

nd
ing

 fo
r th

e C
ou

nc
il’s

 ca
pit

al 
pro

gra
mm

e c
om

es
 fro

m 
a 

va
rie

ty 
of 

so
urc

es
: p

rev
iou

sly
 on

e o
f th

e m
os

t s
ign

ific
an

t o
f 

the
se

 ha
s b

ee
n c

ap
ita

l re
ce

ipt
s f

rom
 th

e s
ale

 of
 C

ou
nc

il 
as

se
ts.

 Fu
nd

ing
 fro

m 
thi

s s
ou

rce
 ha

s r
ed

uc
ed

 si
gn

ific
an

tly
, 

pri
nc

ipa
lly 

du
e t

o c
ha

ng
es

 in
 le

gis
lat

ion
 go

ve
rni

ng
 th

e r
igh

t to
 

bu
y C

ou
nc

il h
ou

se
s. 

Th
e a

uth
ori

ty 
ha

s t
he

ref
ore

 re
vie

we
d i

ts 
str

ate
gy

 fo
r fu

nd
ing

 af
for

da
ble

 ca
pit

al 
inv

es
tm

en
t in

 th
e l

igh
t o

f 
thi

s, 
rev

isit
ing

 its
 sp

en
din

g p
rio

riti
es

 an
d i

de
nti

fyi
ng

 al
ter

na
tiv

e 
so

urc
es

 of
 fu

nd
ing

 as
 ne

ce
ss

ary
. 

 

Page 157



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

58
 

Lo
ca
l A
rea

 A
gr
ee
me

nt 
Th

e C
ou

nc
il a

nd
 its

 pa
rtn

ers
 in

 th
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 ne
go

tia
ted

 a 
se

co
nd

 Lo
ca

l P
ub

lic 
Se

rvi
ce

 
Ag

ree
me

nt 
(LP

SA
) to

 ru
n f

rom
 Ap

ril 
20

08
. . 

 Th
e f

ull
 

ac
hie

ve
me

nt 
of 

the
se

 st
ret

ch
ing

 LP
SA

 ta
rge

ts 
wo

uld
 br

ing
 

ad
dit

ion
al 

rew
ard

 gr
an

t fu
nd

ing
 to

 th
e a

uth
ori

ty.
    

 
 De
ce
nt 
Ho
me

s 
Th

e C
ou

nc
il h

as
 ad

op
ted

 a 
lon

g t
erm

 st
rat

eg
y t

o l
ev

er 
in 

as
 

mu
ch

 fu
nd

ing
 as

 po
ss

ibl
e t

ow
ard

s t
he

 co
st 

of 
me

eti
ng

 th
e 

De
ce

nt 
Ho

me
s S

tan
da

rd.
 Th

e n
um

be
r o

f d
we

llin
gs

 di
rec

tly
 

ma
na

ge
d b

y t
he

 C
ou

nc
il h

as
 re

du
ce

d a
s a

 re
su

lt o
f o

ng
oin

g 
tra

ns
fer

 of
 ow

ne
rsh

ip 
to 

Re
gis

ter
ed

 So
cia

l L
an

dlo
rds

. T
his

 ha
s 

sig
nif

ica
nt 

im
pli

ca
tio

ns
 fo

r th
e C

ou
nc

il a
s a

 w
ho

le,
 as

 it 
ha

s 
ne

ed
ed

 to
 re

sh
ap

e b
oth

 di
rec

t s
erv

ice
s a

nd
 su

pp
ort

 se
rvi

ce
s 

to 
ref

lec
t lo

we
r le

ve
ls 

of 
ac

tiv
ity

.  F
or 

the
 re

ma
ini

ng
 ho

us
ing

 
sto

ck
, m

an
ag

em
en

t h
as

 be
en

 tra
ns

fer
red

 to
 an

 Ar
m’

s L
en

gth
 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Or

ga
nis

ati
on

, T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 H
om

es
. F

or 
so

me
 

es
tat

es
, n

ota
bly

 O
ce

an
 an

d B
lac

kw
all

 R
ea

ch
, s

pe
cif

ic 
red

ev
elo

pm
en

t p
lan

s a
re 

be
ing

 sh
ap

ed
 to

 dr
aw

 in
 th

e 
ad

dit
ion

al 
inv

es
tm

en
t fu

nd
ing

 re
qu

ire
d. 

 
 Ef
fic
ien

cy
 an

d V
alu

e f
or
 m
on
ey
 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 ap

pro
ac

h t
o e

ffic
ien

cy
 is

 em
be

dd
ed

 in
 th

e 
str

ate
gic

 pl
an

nin
g f

ram
ew

ork
 su

mm
ari

se
d i

n t
his

 do
cu

me
nt.

 
Th

at 
fra

me
wo

rk 
is 

de
sig

ne
d t

o e
ns

ure
 th

at 
all

 re
so

urc
es

 
av

ail
ab

le 
to 

the
 C

ou
nc

il a
re 

dir
ec

ted
 to

wa
rds

 m
ax

im
isin

g 
im

pa
ct 

in 
ter

ms
 of

 im
pro

ve
d s

erv
ice

 ou
tco

me
s a

nd
 th

e 
ac

hie
ve

me
nt 

of 
str

ate
gic

 ob
jec

tiv
es

.  

Th
e d

eli
ve

ry 
of 

eff
icie

nc
y i

mp
rov

em
en

ts 
ha

s a
lso

 be
en

 a 
co

ns
ist

en
t o

bje
cti

ve
 of

 th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 fin

an
cia

l m
an

ag
em

en
t 

pro
ce

ss
es

. F
ina

nc
ial

 pl
an

nin
g a

nd
 bu

dg
eta

ry 
pro

ce
ss

es
 ar

e 
de

sig
ne

d t
o i

de
nti

fy 
an

d r
ea

lise
 an

nu
al 

eff
icie

nc
y g

ain
s, 

an
d 

thi
s c

on
tin

ue
s t

o c
on

trib
ute

 to
 To

we
r H

am
let

s’ 
Co

un
cil 

Ta
x 

be
ing

 on
e o

f th
e l

ow
es

t o
f a

ll 3
3 L

on
do

n C
ou

nc
ils.

  
 Th

e C
ou

nc
il w

ill s
ee

k f
urt

he
r o

pp
ort

un
itie

s f
or 

eff
icie

nc
ies

 in
 al

l 
of 

its
 m

ain
 ar

ea
s o

f re
so

urc
e c

on
su

mp
tio

n a
nd

 in
co

rpo
rat

e 
the

se
 in

to 
its

 st
rat

eg
ies

 fo
r h

um
an

 re
so

urc
es

, in
for

ma
tio

n &
 

co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns

 te
ch

no
log

y, 
as

se
t m

an
ag

em
en

t, a
nd

 
pro

cu
rem

en
t. W

e w
ill a

lso
 co

ns
ide

r n
ew

 op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 fo

r 
eff

icie
nc

y i
mp

rov
em

en
t, i

nc
lud

ing
 th

os
e p

res
en

ted
 by

 na
tio

na
l 

an
d r

eg
ion

al 
ini

tia
tiv

es
 e.

g. 
sh

are
d s

erv
ice

s, 
bu

sin
es

s p
roc

es
s 

ree
ng

ine
eri

ng
, P

rio
rity

 O
utc

om
es

, a
nd

 th
e n

ati
on

al 
tra

ns
for

ma
tio

na
l e

-go
ve

rnm
en

t p
rog

ram
me

.  
 Pr
oc
ur
em

en
t S
tra
teg

y 
Th

e t
erm

 ‘p
roc

ure
me

nt’
 co

ve
rs 

the
 pr

oc
es

s f
or 

ac
qu

isit
ion

 of
 

all
 go

od
s, 

wo
rks

 an
d s

erv
ice

s, 
an

d e
nc

om
pa

ss
es

 th
e w

ho
le 

cy
cle

 fro
m 

ide
nti

fic
ati

on
 of

 ne
ed

s, 
thr

ou
gh

 to
 th

e e
nd

 of
 a 

se
rvi

ce
s c

on
tra

ct 
or 

the
 en

d o
f th

e u
se

ful
 lif

e o
f a

n a
ss

et.
  A

ll 
Co

un
cil 

se
rvi

ce
s a

re 
inv

olv
ed

 in
 so

me
 fo

rm
 of

 pr
oc

ure
me

nt,
 

wit
h c

orp
ora

te 
co

ord
ina

tio
n a

nd
 le

ad
ers

hip
 fro

m 
the

 
Pr

oc
ure

me
nt 

Se
rvi

ce
.   

 Th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 Pr

oc
ure

me
nt 

Str
ate

gy
 pr

ov
ide

s o
ve

ral
l d

ire
cti

on
 

an
d a

 se
rio

us
 of

 st
rat

eg
ic 

ob
jec

tiv
es

 ar
ou

nd
 th

e a
cq

uis
itio

n o
f 

go
od

s, 
wo

rks
 an

d s
erv

ice
s. 

 Th
e P

roc
ure

me
nt 

Str
ate

gy
 

su
pp

ort
s t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’s
 vi

sio
n a

nd
 w

ill a
ss

ist
 it 

to 
ac

hie
ve

 th
e 

Page 158



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

59
 

co
rpo

rat
e o

bje
cti

ve
s a

nd
 to

 de
live

r B
es

t V
alu

e. 
 Pr

oc
ure

me
nt 

de
cis

ion
s i

nfo
rm

 th
e “

ma
ke

-or
-bu

y” 
de

cis
ion

, w
hic

h i
s b

as
ed

 
on

 th
e f

un
da

me
nta

l p
rin

cip
le 

tha
t th

e p
rov

isio
n o

f a
 se

rvi
ce

 
sh

ou
ld 

be
 ca

rrie
d o

ut 
by

 th
e s

up
pli

er 
be

st 
su

ite
d, 

wh
eth

er 
tha

t 
be

 in
-ho

us
e, 

oth
er 

pu
bli

c p
rov

ide
rs,

 pr
iva

te 
or 

vo
lun

tar
y 

se
cto

rs.
  A

 ne
w 

Co
mp

eti
tio

n B
oa

rd 
ha

s b
ee

n s
et 

up
 to

 
ad

dre
ss

 is
su

es
 su

ch
 as

 th
is,

 an
d t

o t
rac

k a
nd

 dr
ive

 pr
og

res
s 

ag
ain

st 
the

 St
rat

eg
y. 

 
Co

rpo
rat

ely
, th

e P
roc

ure
me

nt 
Se

rvi
ce

 ha
s a

do
pte

d a
 ca

teg
ory

 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

ap
pro

ac
h, 

wh
ich

 gi
ve

s i
t v

isib
ility

 an
d i

nfl
ue

nc
e 

ac
ros

s t
he

 w
ho

le 
of 

the
 ex

pe
nd

itu
re 

po
rtfo

lio
, a

nd
 en

ab
les

 it 
to 

pro
vid

e t
he

 du
al 

rol
e o

f s
up

po
rt a

nd
 ch

all
en

ge
 in

 se
ek

ing
 to

 
ge

t th
e b

es
t o

ut 
of 

the
 C

ou
nc

il’s
 su

pp
lie

rs.
 Th

is 
is 

un
de

rpi
nn

ed
 

by
 an

 on
-lin

e c
on

tra
cti

ng
 to

olk
it, 

an
d h

an
ds

-on
 su

pp
ort

 fo
r 

co
ntr

ac
tin

g o
ffic

ers
 ac

ros
s t

he
 C

ou
nc

il. 
 Th

e C
ou

nc
il h

as
 ad

op
ted

 a 
ma

nd
ato

ry 
tol

lga
te 

pro
ce

ss
 fo

r 
hig

h v
alu

e c
on

tra
cts

, w
hic

h e
va

lua
tes

 pr
oc

ure
me

nt 
pro

jec
ts 

on
 th

e b
as

is 
of 

a n
um

be
r o

f c
rite

ria
. T

he
se

 in
clu

de
: 

• 
Str

ate
gic

 fit
 

• 
Ma

rke
t c

on
dit

ion
s 

• 
Co

lla
bo

rat
ive

 op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 

• 
Su

sta
ina

bil
ity

 
• 

Bu
sin

es
s c

os
ts 

an
d b

en
efi

ts 
• 

Sa
vin

gs
 an

d o
the

r b
en

efi
ts 

• 
Sta

ke
ho

lde
r e

ng
ag

em
en

t 
 Pr

oc
ure

me
nt 

pro
ce

du
res

 w
ere

 re
vie

we
d d

uri
ng

 20
08

/09
, a

nd
 

ne
w,

 st
rea

ml
ine

d p
roc

ed
ure

s w
ere

 ag
ree

d a
t th

e s
am

e t
im

e. 
 

 Da
ta 

Qu
ali

ty 
 A k

ey
 as

pe
ct 

of 
eff

ec
tiv

e p
erf

orm
an

ce
 m

an
ag

em
en

t is
 

en
su

rin
g t

ha
t th

e p
erf

orm
an

ce
 da

ta 
ag

ain
st 

wh
ich

 w
e 

me
as

ure
 ou

r p
rog

res
s t

ow
ard

s k
ey

 go
als

 an
d t

arg
ets

 is
 

ac
cu

rat
e, 

rel
iab

le 
an

d t
im

ely
. W

he
re 

thi
s i

s n
ot 

the
 ca

se
, 

inf
orm

ati
on

 m
ay

 be
 m

isle
ad

ing
, d

ec
isio

n-m
ak

ing
 fla

we
d, 

res
ou

rce
s w

as
ted

 an
d s

erv
ice

 fa
ilu

res
 m

ay
 no

t b
e i

de
nti

fie
d 

an
d a

dd
res

se
d. 

Th
e q

ua
lity

 of
 ou

r p
erf

orm
an

ce
 da

ta 
is 

the
ref

ore
 ce

ntr
al 

to 
the

 w
ay

 in
 w

hic
h w

e m
an

ag
e a

nd
 m

on
ito

r 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

. T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
et'

s o
bje

cti
ve

 fo
r D

ata
 Q

ua
lity

 is
 to

: 
 

En
su
re 
tha
t a
ll in

for
ma
tio
n w

hic
h c
on
trib
ute
s t
o t
he
 

Co
un
cil’
s p
erf
orm

an
ce
 m
an
ag
em
en
t, w

he
the
r 

pro
du
ce
d i
nte
rna

lly 
or 
ex
ter
na
lly,
 is
 ac
cu
rat
e r
eli
ab
le 

an
d t
im
ely
. 

 Th
is 

ob
jec

tiv
e 

is 
su

pp
ort

ed
 b

y 
the

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 D
ata

 Q
ua

lity
 

Po
licy

 w
hic

h s
ets

 ou
t th

e f
oll

ow
ing

 st
an

da
rds

: 
• 

Go
ve

rna
nc

e a
nd

 ac
co

un
tab

ility
 fo

r d
ata

 qu
ali

ty 
• 

Po
lici

es
 a

nd
 p

roc
ed

ure
s 

for
 d

ata
 r

ec
ord

ing
 a

nd
 

rep
ort

ing
 

• 
Sy

ste
ms

 an
d p

roc
es

se
s t

o s
ec

ure
 da

ta 
qu

ali
ty 

 
• 

Kn
ow

led
ge

, s
kill

s a
nd

 ca
pa

cit
y o

f s
taf

f to
 ac

hie
ve

 th
e 

da
ta 

qu
ali

ty 
ob

jec
tiv

es
; a

nd
  

• 
Ar

ran
ge

me
nts

 an
d c

on
tro

ls 
in 

pla
ce

 fo
r th

e u
se

 of
 da

ta 
  

Page 159



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

60
 

Go
ve
rn
an
ce
 an

d a
cc
ou
nta

bil
ity
 

Ov
era

ll r
es

po
ns

ibi
lity

 fo
r m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 ac
co

un
tab

ility
 of

 
da

ta 
qu

ali
ty 

lie
s w

ith
 th

e C
ab

ine
t a

nd
 C

orp
ora

te 
Ma

na
ge

me
nt 

Te
am

 (C
MT

). W
ith

in 
the

 C
ab

ine
t, t

he
 Le

ad
 M

em
be

r fo
r 

Re
so

urc
es

 an
d P

erf
orm

an
ce

 ha
s o

ve
ral

l re
sp

on
sib

ility
 fo

r d
ata

 
qu

ali
ty.

  W
ith

in 
CM

T, 
the

 As
sis

tan
t C

hie
f E

xe
cu

tiv
e (

Po
licy

 
an

d P
erf

orm
an

ce
) h

as
 ov

era
ll s

tra
teg

ic 
res

po
ns

ibi
lity

.   
 Po
lic
ies

 an
d p

ro
ce
du
res

 
Th

e h
igh

 le
ve

l p
oli

cie
s f

or 
da

ta 
qu

ali
ty 

ap
ply

 ac
ros

s t
he

 
Co

un
cil.

  O
pe

rat
ion

al 
pro

ce
du

res
 an

d g
uid

eli
ne

s a
re 

se
t o

ut 
in:

 • 
the

 D
ata

 Q
ua

lity
 ac

tio
n p

lan
; 

• 
the

 D
ata

 Q
ua

lity
 Pr

oto
co

l; 
• 

In-
ye

ar 
sa

mp
lin

g g
uid

eli
ne

s a
nd

 ch
ec

klis
t; 

• 
Ex

ce
lsis

 PI
 M

on
ito

rin
g G

uid
an

ce
; 

• 
En

d-Y
ea

r P
erf

orm
an

ce
 D

ata
 C

oll
ec

tio
n G

uid
an

ce
;  

• 
PI 

W
ork

ing
 Pa

pe
r c

he
ck

list
s a

nd
 si

gn
-of

f 
arr

an
ge

me
nts

. 
• 

 
Sy
ste

ms
 an

d p
ro
ce
ss
es
 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il h
as

 a 
co

rpo
rat

e p
erf

orm
an

ce
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
so

ftw
are

 sy
ste

m,
 Ex

ce
lsis

, w
hic

h i
nte

gra
tes

 th
e c

oll
ec

tio
n, 

rec
ord

ing
 an

d r
ep

ort
ing

 of
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 da
ta 

en
su

rin
g a

 si
ng

le 
ce

ntr
al 

rep
os

ito
ry 

for
 al

l k
ey

 co
rpo

rat
e p

erf
orm

an
ce

 da
ta.

  T
he

 
sy

ste
m 

ha
s a

 se
t o

f in
ter

na
l c

on
tro

ls 
inc

lud
ing

 pa
ss

wo
rd 

pro
tec

ted
 ac

ce
ss

 fo
r u

pd
ati

ng
 an

d e
dit

ing
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 da
ta,

 
an

 au
dit

 co
ntr

ol 
fun

cti
on

 id
en

tify
ing

 w
ho

 an
d w

he
n c

ha
ng

es
 to

 
da

ta 
we

re 
ma

de
 an

d a
 sy

ste
m 

of 
ap

pro
va

ls 
an

d a
uth

ori
sa

tio
n. 

 

Us
er 

an
d q

uic
k r

efe
ren

ce
 gu

ide
s f

or 
Ex

ce
lsis

 ar
e a

va
ila

ble
 

an
d r

eg
ula

r tr
ain

ing
 is

 pr
ov

ide
d. 

 Pe
op
le 
an
d s

kil
ls 

Ro
les

 an
d r

es
po

ns
ibi

litie
s f

or 
da

ta 
qu

ali
ty 

are
 se

t o
ut 

in 
thi

s 
po

licy
 an

d t
he

 D
ata

 Q
ua

lity
 pr

oto
co

l.  
As

 id
en

tifi
ed

 ab
ov

e, 
ea

ch
 ke

y P
I h

as
 a 

de
sig

na
ted

 Pr
ep

ari
ng

 O
ffic

er 
wh

o h
as

 th
e 

ke
y r

es
po

ns
ibi

lity
 fo

r e
ns

uri
ng

 th
at 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 da

ta 
for

 th
at 

ind
ica

tor
 is

 ac
cu

rat
e. 

 D
ire

cto
rat

e p
erf

orm
an

ce
 le

ad
s o

ve
rse

e 
da

ta 
qu

ali
ty 

for
 th

eir
 D

ire
cto

rat
e, 

en
su

rin
g t

ha
t k

ey
 sy

ste
ms

 
are

 ch
ec

ke
d, 

tha
t p

roc
ed

ure
 no

tes
 ar

e i
n p

lac
e a

nd
 th

at 
the

re 
are

 da
ta 

qu
ali

ty 
ag

ree
me

nts
 w

ith
 ke

y p
art

ne
rs.

   
 Da
ta 
us
e a

nd
 re
po
rti
ng
 

Ke
y p

erf
orm

an
ce

 in
dic

ato
rs 

an
d t

arg
ets

 ar
e e

sta
bli

sh
ed

 
thr

ou
gh

 th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 st

rat
eg

ic 
pla

nn
ing

 fra
me

wo
rk 

an
d 

reg
ula

rly
 re

po
rte

d a
nd

 m
on

ito
red

 as
 se

t o
ut 

in 
the

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 M
an

ag
em

en
t F

ram
ew

ork
.   

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 da

ta 
is 

us
ed

 w
ith

in 
tea

ms
 an

d i
nd

ivid
ua

l P
DR

s t
o a

ss
es

s 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 an
d e

ns
ure

 th
at 

the
 us

e o
f p

erf
orm

an
ce

 da
ta 

is 
un

de
rst

oo
d b

y t
ho

se
 ge

ne
rat

ing
 it.

 
 Th

ere
 ar

e p
roc

es
se

s t
o e

ns
ure

 th
at 

ac
tio

n i
s t

ak
en

 to
 ad

dre
ss

 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 w
ea

kn
es

se
s i

de
nti

fie
d b

y p
erf

orm
an

ce
 da

ta 
an

d 
rep

ort
s. 

Th
es

e i
nc

lud
e t

he
 co

rpo
rat

e P
erf

orm
an

ce
 R

ev
iew

 
Gr

ou
p, 

ch
air

ed
 by

 th
e C

hie
f E

xe
cu

tiv
e, 

wh
ich

 re
gu

lar
ly 

rev
iew

s a
rea

s o
f p

oo
r p

erf
orm

an
ce

 id
en

tifi
ed

 th
rou

gh
 

co
rpo

rat
e p

erf
orm

an
ce

 re
po

rtin
g w

ith
 ac

co
un

tab
le 

off
ice

rs.
  

 

Page 160



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

61
 

Ri
sk

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

 Ris
k m

an
ag

em
en

t is
 de

fin
ed

 as
 th

e e
ffe

cti
ve

 m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f 
bo

th 
po

ten
tia

l o
pp

ort
un

itie
s a

nd
 th

rea
ts 

to 
the

 C
ou

nc
il 

ac
hie

vin
g i

ts 
ob

jec
tiv

es
. 

 Th
e C

ou
nc

il f
irm

ly 
be

lie
ve

s t
ha

t e
ffe

cti
ve

 ris
k m

an
ag

em
en

t is
 

an
 es

se
nti

al 
ele

me
nt 

of 
co

rpo
rat

e g
ov

ern
an

ce
 an

d h
as

 a 
str

ate
gy

 to
 m

an
ag

e r
isk

s a
ris

ing
 fro

m 
its

 op
era

tio
ns

, in
itia

tiv
es

 
an

d p
art

ne
rsh

ips
. T

he
 ai

m 
is 

to 
en

ab
le 

the
 ac

hie
ve

me
nt 

of 
str

ate
gic

 an
d s

erv
ice

 ob
jec

tiv
es

 in
 th

e m
os

t o
pti

mu
m 

wa
y, 

rec
og

nis
ing

 op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 an

d c
on

tro
llin

g n
eg

ati
ve

 fa
cto

rs 
or 

ris
ks

 th
at 

co
uld

 im
pa

ct 
su

cc
es

s. 
 

 Th
e C

ou
nc

il s
ee

ks
 to

 m
ini

mi
se

 un
ne

ce
ss

ary
 ris

k a
nd

 m
an

ag
e 

res
idu

al 
ris

k c
om

me
ns

ura
te 

wit
h i

ts 
sta

tus
 as

 a 
pu

bli
c b

od
y. 

Ho
we

ve
r, t

he
 C

ou
nc

il w
ill p

os
itiv

ely
 de

cid
e t

o t
ak

e r
isk

s i
n 

pu
rsu

it o
f it

s a
mb

itio
ns

 fo
r lo

ca
l p

eo
ple

 w
he

re 
it h

as
 su

ffic
ien

t 
as

su
ran

ce
 th

at 
ris

ks
:- 

• 
  
  
  
 Ha

ve
 be

en
 pr

op
erl

y i
de

nti
fie

d a
nd

 as
se

ss
ed

 
• 
  
  
  
 W

ill b
e a

pp
rop

ria
tel

y m
an

ag
ed

, in
clu

din
g t

ak
ing

 
mi

tig
ati

ng
 ac

tio
ns

, a
nd

 re
gu

lar
 re

vie
w 

of 
like

lih
oo

d a
nd

 
im

pa
ct 

• 
 
 
 
Ar

e j
us

tifi
ed

 in
 re

lat
ion

 to
 th

e p
ote

nti
al 

be
ne

fits
 

ac
cru

ing
 to

 th
e c

om
mu

nit
y  

 Th
e C

ou
nc

il h
as

 fo
rm

all
y a

do
pte

d a
 R
isk
 M
an
ag
em
en
t P
oli
cy
 

an
d S

tra
teg
y t

o s
up

po
rt i

ts 
ap

pro
ac

h t
o r

isk
 m

an
ag

em
en

t. 
Ris

ks
 an

d t
he

 m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f ri
sk

s i
s a

n i
ntr

ins
ic 

pa
rt o

f 

Co
un

cil 
bu

sin
es

s a
nd

 sy
ste

ms
 an

d p
roc

es
se

s a
re 

pla
ce

 to
 

fac
ilita

te 
thi

s. 
Th

us
,  t

he
 ris

ks
 to

 th
e a

ch
iev

em
en

t o
f c

orp
ora

te 
an

d s
erv

ice
 ob

jec
tiv

es
 ar

e a
cti

ve
ly 

co
ns

ide
red

 as
 pa

rt o
f 

se
rvi

ce
 pl

an
nin

g a
nd

 th
e i

de
nti

fic
ati

on
 of

 ris
ks

 is
 a 

ke
y p

art
 of

 
the

 pl
an

nin
g f

ram
ew

ork
 at

 al
l le

ve
ls.

 Fo
r p

roj
ec

t ri
sk

s, 
the

 pr
oje

ct 
sp

on
so

r h
as

 ov
era

ll r
es

po
ns

ibi
lity

 fo
r th

e 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

of 
all

 ris
ks

 re
lat

ing
 to

 th
at 

pro
jec

t. T
his

 in
clu

de
s 

for
 ex

am
ple

 th
e k

ey
 le

ga
l a

nd
 fin

an
cia

l ri
sk

s a
ss

oc
iat

ed
 w

ith
 

pa
rtic

ula
r p

roj
ec

ts 
 an

d f
or 

en
su

rin
g t

he
se

 ar
e s

pe
cif

ica
lly 

hig
hli

gh
ted

 in
 re

po
rts

 se
ek

ing
 de

cis
ion

s o
r a

pp
rov

al 
for

 ac
tio

n. 
Th

e r
isk

s a
ss

oc
iat

ed
 w

ith
 w

ork
ing

 in
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 ar

e c
ap

tur
ed

 
in 

a p
art

ne
rsh

ip 
ris

k r
eg

ist
er 

an
d a

re 
mo

nit
ore

d t
hro

ug
h t

he
 

ris
k-r

ep
ort

ing
 fra

me
wo

rk.
  

 Th
e A

uth
ori

ty 
ma

int
ain

s a
  S
tra
teg
ic 
Ris
k R

eg
ist
er 

tha
t 

ide
nti

fie
s t

he
 m

os
t s

ign
ific

an
t c

orp
ora

te 
an

d s
tra

teg
ic 

ris
ks

. 
Th

e r
eg

ist
er 

co
nta

ins
 de

tai
ls 

of 
the

 pr
inc

ipa
l ri

sk
s t

o t
he

 
ac

hie
ve

me
nt 

of 
the

 ob
jec

tiv
es

 an
d t

arg
ets

 in
 th

is 
pla

n. 
Th

es
e 

are
: • 

tho
se

 th
at 

are
 in

he
ren

t in
 th

e b
us

ine
ss

 of
 a 

loc
al 

au
tho

rity
 - f

or 
ex

am
ple

 re
sp

on
sib

iliti
es

 to
 vu

lne
rab

le 
pe

op
le,

 th
e n

ee
d t

o h
ou

se
 ho

me
les

s p
eo

ple
 an

d 
ma

int
en

an
ce

 of
 ef

fec
tiv

e f
ina

nc
ial

 an
d i

nfo
rm

ati
on

 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

sy
ste

ms
;  

• 
tho

se
 th

at 
ari

se
 fro

m 
str

ate
gic

 in
itia

tiv
es

 of
 th

e C
ou

nc
il  

- fo
r e

xa
mp

le 
the

  m
an

ag
em

en
t a

rra
ng

em
en

ts 
for

 th
e 

pro
vis

ion
 of

 de
ce

nt 
ho

me
s t

o i
ts 

res
ide

nts
 an

d 
im

pro
ve

me
nts

 to
 cu

sto
me

r a
cc

es
s t

o C
ou

nc
il s

erv
ice

s; 
an

d  

Page 161



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

62
 

• 
tho

se
 th

at 
ari

se
 fro

m 
ini

tia
tiv

es
 to

 im
pro

ve
 th

e b
us

ine
ss

 
inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

of 
the

 C
ou

nc
il  

- fo
r e

xa
mp

le 
a r

ev
iew

 of
 

the
 C

ou
nc

il's
 ac

co
mm

od
ati

on
 re

qu
ire

me
nts

, th
e 

IC
T i

nfr
as

tru
ctu

re 
an

d m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f c
ha

ng
e. 

 Ea
ch

 of
 th

es
e r

isk
s i

s a
ss

es
se

d f
or 

like
lih

oo
d a

nd
 im

pa
ct 

an
d 

ha
s a

 re
sp

on
sib

le 
ow

ne
r a

nd
 pr

og
ram

me
 of

 m
itig

ati
ng

 
ac

tio
ns

/co
ntr

ols
. T

he
 re

gis
ter

 is
 up

da
ted

 th
rou

gh
ou

t o
ut 

the
 

ye
ar 

an
d r

ep
ort

ed
 qu

art
erl

y t
o t

he
 C

orp
ora

te 
Ma

na
ge

me
nt 

Te
am

. E
ac

h s
erv

ice
 m

ain
tai

ns
 its

 ow
n r

eg
ist

er 
of 

ris
ks

 th
at 

fee
ds

 in
to 

the
 co

rpo
rat

e m
on

ito
rin

g a
nd

 ev
alu

ati
on

 pr
oc

es
s. 

In 
thi

s w
ay

 se
nio

r m
an

ag
ers

 as
se

ss
 ris

ks
, d

ev
elo

p m
itig

ati
ng

 
ac

tio
ns

, a
nd

 m
on

ito
r p

rog
res

s i
n a

 sy
ste

ma
tic

 m
an

ne
r. T

his
 

ap
pro

ac
h i

s i
nte

nd
ed

 to
 st

ren
gth

en
 th

e o
ve

ral
l c

orp
ora

te 
go

ve
rna

nc
e e

nv
iro

nm
en

t . 

Page 162



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1 

63
 

 

Page 163



Page 164

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 

Page 1 of 12 

 

 
 
 

The Council’s Strategic 
Plan 2009/10-2011/12 

 
Outline Plan  

Year 2  
2010/11 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 165



Appendix 2 

Page 2 of 12 

A Message from the Leader and Lead Member 
 
I am pleased to present the summary for year two of the Council’s Strategic Plan for 
2009/10 – 2011/12. It sets out our plans to further improve services for the coming 
year and details activities that will help deliver our vision of improving the quality of 
life for everyone living and working in Tower Hamlets. 
 
The Community Plan 2020 and the Local Area Agreement provide a clear context for 
the development of the Council’s Strategic Plan and there is a solid foundation on 
which to build. 
 
Once again 2009/10 was a year of considerable progress. Tower Hamlets has top 
rated ‘excellent’ children’s services and the Council was recognised by the local 
government watchdog, the Audit Commission, as ‘performing well in delivering its 
priorities’. Indeed, under the new system of measuring performance known as the 
Comprehensive Area Assessment, Tower Hamlets was picked out for particular 
praise for the way the council and local partnership ‘engage and empower’ local 
people.   
 
At the centre of our work, and underpinning each of the themes in our Community 
Plan, is the commitment to build One Tower Hamlets, a borough where everyone can 
access the same opportunities. To this end we have taken steps to ensure that we 
meet the highest level of the Equality Framework for Local government – a 
commitment that was recognised when the council was recently assessed as 
‘excellent’. 
 
The excellent work of the Council and its staff has also been recognised through the 
prestigious Beacon Council scheme with awards for Preventing and Tackling Child 
Poverty and the Positive Engagement of Older People, in addition to the 7 Beacon 
awards we’ve already obtained over the last seven years. There is evidence, too, that 
the people we serve recognise the improvements we have been making. In relation 
to resident satisfaction, for example, 69% of residents say we are doing a good job. 
 
While these achievements are important and testimony to the hard work of council 
staff, there is still much to do. The Strategic Plan is our road map. It keeps us on 
track in our drive to generate further improvement in our services and help local 
people to experience an improved quality of life. 
 
We all – staff and councillors – have a part to play in making more improvements in 
the second year of our new Strategic Plan. I am sure that at the end of the year, we 
will be reporting further successes. 
 
 
Councillor Lutfur Rahman 
Leader of the Council 
 
Councillor Ohid Ahmed 
Cabinet Member for Resources and Performance   
 
 

Page 166



Appendix 2 

Page 3 of 12 

What is the Strategic Plan? 
 
The Strategic Plan 2009/10-11/12: Year 2 Outline Plan describes the 
Council’s overall aims and objectives, the improved outcomes intended 
for people who live and work in the borough, and the actions to be 
taken to deliver that improvement in 2010/11. 
 
Each year, services across the Council – in consultation with key 
stakeholders – help to draw up a new action plan with activities that 
they will carry out in the forthcoming year to improve the Council’s 
performance and deliver the goals of the Strategic Plan. These key 
initiatives reflect the significant change or improvement activity which 
will be our focus for the year ahead. Within the Council each 
directorate and service will develop more detailed action plans 
demonstrating how they contribute to the achievement of the priority 
outcomes. 
 
Our Vision 
 
The Council’s vision is to improve the quality of life for everyone living 
and working in Tower Hamlets. It is a vision that is shared by all 
partners in the Tower Hamlets Partnership, which comprises residents, 
the Council and other public service providers, businesses, faith 
communities and the voluntary and community sector. 
 
The five major themes contained in the Strategic Plan set out the 
means by which our vision will be delivered. These themes are: 
 
One Tower Hamlets 
A Great Place to Live 
A Prosperous Community 
A Safe and Supportive Community 
A Healthy Community 
 
Although One Tower Hamlets underpins all themes, it is included in 
the Strategic Plan as a separate theme. Each of the five themes is 
supported by key priorities for action which will provide the focus for 
our service delivery for the period to March 2011 and which are 
detailed below: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 167



Appendix 2 

Page 4 of 12 

One Tower Hamlets 
 
Priority 1.1: Reduce inequalities and foster strong community 
cohesion 
 
We are committed to reducing inequalities, fostering strong community 
cohesion, providing inclusive services and strong community leadership. 
These objectives are reflected in all of the themes of the Strategic Plan. 
 
Detailed below are the actions that the Council will take to deliver these objectives: 
1. Implement our Single Equality Duty embracing the six individual Equality Schemes 
2. Refresh the Council’s community leadership role to build on the Council’s vibrant 
local democracy 
3. Review and implement the Communications Strategy and strengthen the 
coordination across the Council of communications activities, where possible linking 
coordination of communications with the Partnership 
 

Priority 1.2: Work efficiently and effectively as One Council 
 
Underpinning the Council’s leading role in delivering against our priorities is our 
commitment to work efficiently and effectively by ensuring value for money across 
the Council; by recruiting, supporting and developing an effective workforce 
reflective of the Tower Hamlets’ community and by providing effective and joined 
up corporate services 
 
Detailed below are the actions that the Council will take to deliver these objectives: 
4. Implement the Workforce Plan to meet the Council's strategic resourcing needs 
including actions arising from the Council's Workforce to Reflect the Community 
Strategy and Action Plan  
5. Deliver the Efficiency Programme 
6. Develop an asset and capital management strategy to enable the Council’s assets 
to be utilised in the most effective way 
7. Deliver the Local Priorities Programme 
8. Develop the Council's Transformation Programme so that it fully supports, at all 
levels and across all directorates, the vision of a leaner, more flexible and citizen-
centred Council and the achievement of a balanced three budget strategy for 
2011/12 - 2013/14 
9. Implementation of the customer access service delivery improvements outlined in 
the Channel Strategy 
10. Review of Financial Management Arrangements – Stage 2:  Building customer 
support and business partnering arrangements so that the Finance service supports 
the authority through tighter public spending 
11. Continue to robustly manage performance across the Council and strengthen 
Partnership performance 
 
These actions will enable us to: 
• Build resilience to violent extremism 
• Increase residents’ overall satisfaction with the local area 
• Increase the proportion of people from different backgrounds who think people 

get on well together in their local areas 

Page 168



Appendix 2 

Page 5 of 12 

A Great Place to Live  
 
Priority 2.1: Provide affordable housing and develop strong 
neighbourhoods 
 
The Council’s key agreed priority for this year is reducing over-crowding 
 
We remain committed to providing high quality housing in line with the needs of our 
community. Key objectives for the Partnership are to increase the supply to 
affordable housing, especially for families alongside continuing to improve 
housing management. We also remain focused on improving the quality of 
streets and neighbourhoods. A key element of this is making sure that 
neighbourhoods have the right range of facilities, like schools and healthcare.  
 
Detailed below are the actions that the Council will take to deliver these objectives: 
12. Deliver a new build programme both by the council (BBF) and with partners to 
reduce overcrowding 
13. Strengthen RSL partnership working to i) Secure private and public investment to 
deliver a supply of new affordable housing and ii) improve standard and quality of 
housing management 
14. Achieve 2-Star Audit Commission Inspection with Tower Hamlets homes to 
unlock resources to deliver Decent Homes 
15. Reshape major estate renewal projects with key partners 
16. Engage in the Olympic Legacy Masterplan process to secure maximum benefits 
for Tower Hamlets 
17. Progress the Local Development Core Strategy Framework to drive the 
sustainable development of the Borough 
 
Priority 2.2: Strengthen and connect communities 
 
This priority includes a range of elements. We will connect communities by 
improving public transport networks and enabling more residents to walk and 
cycle safely. We have agreed to invest energy in bringing communities together 
to foster understanding, wellbeing and avoid people being isolated. Supporting 
strong communities also requires us to ensure communities have good access to 
a full range of facilities - including health services, schools and leisure. 
 
Detailed below are the actions that the Council will take to deliver these objectives: 
18. Implement year 2 of the Sustainable Transport Strategy to improve the 
connections between communities 
19. Use the Olympic and Paralympic Games to engage communities in cultural, 
sporting and celebratory events  
20. Develop an Olympic Games Management Plan for the Public Realm and wider 
corporate impacts 
21. Deliver a Baishakhi Mela in Banglatown Brick Lane and develop a community 
management infrastructure to take it forward 
22. Provide more efficient and  integrated universal services in partnership with key 
stakeholders 
23. Increase the number and diversity of events in parks & open spaces for the 
benefit of the Borough's residents and visitors 
24. Deliver the Local Implementation Plan to improve road safety  

Page 169



Appendix 2 

Page 6 of 12 

 
 
Priority 2.3: Support vibrant town centres and a cleaner, safer 
public realm 
 
The Council’s key agreed priority for this year is to improve cleanliness and quality 
of the public realm 
 
Developing vibrant town centres involves providing first-class and well managed 
centres where people come together for business, shopping, leisure and 
recreation. Improving the public realm means that we prioritise supporting and 
improving open spaces. Another key objective is to improve street lighting and 
reduce graffiti and litter. 
 
Detailed below are the actions that the Council will take to deliver these objectives: 
25. Implement a programme of open space improvements to deliver the objectives of 
the Open Spaces Strategy 
26. Deliver a measurably cleaner, safer and more sustainable environment and 
implement the waste strategy and the partnership Public Realm Strategy 
27. Deliver the Borough-wide Town Centre Strategy improvements  
28. Deliver the High Street 2012 proposals public realm and historic building 
improvements along the A11 corridor 
 
Priority 2.4: Improve the environment and tackle climate change 
 
The Council will work in partnership to play a key role in leading the local response to 
environmental challenges and climate change. One key objective is to reduce 
energy use and use more renewable energy sources. We will also use a range of 
methods aimed at changing behaviour to focus on reusing wherever possible and 
recycle more. Another objective involves leading work to adapt our built 
environment to cope with the changing climate and weather patterns. 
 
Detailed below are the actions that the Council will take to deliver these objectives: 
29. Implement the Carbon Management Plan to reduce carbon emissions generated 
by the Council 
30. Improve recycling rates through targeted communications and better working with 
Social Landlords and other partners 
 
By March 2011, these actions will enable us to: 
• Support the supply of nearly 9,000 more new homes 
• Support the supply of new affordable homes, including up to 1,400 social rented 

homes for families (three bedrooms or more) 
• Increase the proportion of Council homes meeting the Decent Homes Standard 

by 12% and increase the proportion of Decent Homes that have been transferred 
to RSLs 

• Reduce the level of CO2 emissions that are produced in the borough by 10% 
• Increase the proportion of waste that households recycle or compost to 32% 
• Make our streets cleaner and reduce incidents of graffiti and fly tipping 
• Reduce the number of people killed or seriously injured on our roads in road 

traffic accidents by 15% 
 

Page 170



Appendix 2 

Page 7 of 12 

 
A Prosperous Community 
 
Priority 3.1: Support lifelong learning opportunities for all 
 
The Council’s key agreed priority for this year is to raise GCSE results to be the 
best in the country 
 
We want our community to enjoy life, feeling proud of where they live and what they 
have achieved.  This means we are committed to providing the best possible 
foundation for long term success, supporting our children and young people to 
acquire the knowledge and skills they need to fulfil their full potential, as well as 
an providing an excellent range of learning, leisure, play and cultural opportunities 
that everyone can learn basic and new skills at any age.  
 
Detailed below are the actions that the Council will take to deliver these objectives: 
31. Improve GCSE results to be the best in the country by implementing the priorities 
identified in the Children and Young People’s Plan at both primary and secondary, 
with increased focus on raising aspirations and personalised learning and radically 
redesigning the way we support and improve our schools 
32. Continue our programme of rebuilding or refurbishing all of our secondary 
schools, through the Building Schools for the Future programme 
33. Upgrade our primary school estate through Primary Strategy for Change  
34. Expand parental engagement and learning programmes in secondary schools so 
that parents and carers get involved in supporting their children’s learning, and learn 
with them  
35. Commission an additional 190 entry level English as a Second Language places  
36. Ensure that all schools, colleges and work-based learning providers support 
learners to achieve the best they can  
37. Deliver the Year 2 action plan for the refreshed Idea Store Strategy to ensure 
greater library usage and improved access to information 
38. Extend the range of positive activities available outside of school hours and 
deliver highly effective Targeted Youth Support to help change the lives of our most 
disadvantaged young people   
 
Priority 3.2: Reduce worklessness 
 
The Council’s key agreed priority for this year is to reduce levels of youth 
unemployment 
 
We aim to help families escape poverty. Reducing worklessness will also involve 
the identification and removal of barriers to employment for target groups as 
well as ensuring there is support and training before and after they get a job 
 
Detailed below are the actions that the Council will take to deliver these objectives: 
39. Implement the action plan within the Employment Strategy to ensure that Tower 
Hamlets residents access new and existing jobs and thereby reduce the numbers of 
people on out of work benefits 
40.  Build on our child poverty strategy to deliver services that really make a 
difference   

Page 171



Appendix 2 

Page 8 of 12 

41. Increase employment opportunities for vulnerable people, in particular people 
with disabilities and mental health problems and those experiencing homelessness  
42. Reduce levels of youth unemployment by agreeing a 14-19 sector pathway to 
employment with local employers, linked to all 14 Diploma lines of learning, and 
provide targeted learning programmes for each significant group of 14-18 learners at 
risk of becoming NEET 
 
Priority 3.3: Foster enterprise 
 
Our objective is to provide incentives that encourage both business and social 
entrepreneurship. In addition it is our intention to maximise the opportunities for 
local businesses to benefit from key growth sectors, and the Olympic and 
Paralympic Games and to reinforce these opportunities by promoting Tower 
Hamlets businesses and encouraging growth and tourism, with particular 
emphasis on the Olympics and Paralympics 
 
Detailed below are the actions that the Council will take to deliver these objectives: 
43. Ensure the delivery of the Third Sector Strategy Action Plan 2010/11 
44. Market Tower Hamlets as the key visitor destination for the Olympic Games and 
support venues and other suppliers to capitalise on this 
 
By March 2011, these actions will enable us to: 
• Increase the proportion of local people in employment by 2.5% to 55.7% - around 

4000 additional people into work 
• Reduce the proportion of local people on out of work benefits by 2% - a reduction 

of more than 2,500 people 
• Increase the number of adults with learning difficulties in jobs 
• Increase the number of adults, who are getting support from mental health 

services, in jobs 
• Ensure the proportion of 19 year olds achieving a level 2 qualification (GCSE, 

Intermediate GNVQ, BTEC First Diploma, NVQ 2), rises by 14% to 72% 
• Ensure the proportion of 19 year olds with a level 3 (Intermediate GNVQ, 4 

GCSEs) qualification rises by 9% to 46% 
• Increase the proportion of young people achieving 5 or more A*-C grades at 

GCSE including English and mathematics 
• Reduce the proportion of 16-18 year olds who aren’t in education, employment or 

training from 8.2% to 6% 
• Increase the number of young people from families with low incomes going on to 

higher education 
• Increase the number of young people participating in positive activities 
• Take more than 1,000 children out of child poverty 
• Increase the proportion of students completing entry level 1 ESOL courses by 8% 
• Support an environment for a thriving third sector with an increased proportion of 

local voluntary and community organisations recognising this support 
 
 

Page 172



Appendix 2 

Page 9 of 12 

A Safe and Supportive Community 
 
Priority 4.1: Empower older and vulnerable people and support 
families 
 
Key elements which support this priority include the provision of responsive and 
appropriate services for adults which promote independence, choice and control, 
security and community and which prevent and reduce homelessness by 
helping more people into settled homes and employment. Also central to this priority 
is the protection of children and vulnerable adults from harm and neglect as 
well as continuing improvements to support for children and young people with 
disabilities and their families. 
 
Detailed below are the actions that the Council will take to deliver these objectives: 
45. Implement the Homelessness Strategy to further reduce the incidence of 
homelessness in the borough and improve support to individuals and families 
experiencing homelessness 
46. Improve support and information for carers across the whole of the Tower 
Hamlets Partnership 
47. Deliver the Transforming Social Care programme putting people who use 
services in control of their own care  
48. Develop strategy to create/improve universal information and advice services 
inline with Putting People First 
49. Deliver fully integrated service provision across health and social care 
50. Deliver fully integrated commissioning across health and social care 
51. Further strengthen arrangements across the Council and the Partnership to 
protect vulnerable adults from abuse, harm and neglect 
52. Deliver a range of targeted programmes of improvement to private sector housing 
stock that support vulnerable households to live independently, safely, securely and 
free from fuel poverty 
53. Implement the actions in our Children and Young People’s Plan to improve 
access to care for children with disabilities through a coordinated, multi-agency 
approach  
 
Priority 4.2: Tackle and prevent crime 
 
The Council’s key agreed priority for this year is tackling anti-social behaviour and 
crime 
 
Objectives which underpin this priority include both a reduction of crime and a 
reduction in the fear of crime. Prevention is also a key element of this priority and 
is reflected in our commitment to reduce re-offending with all who become 
involved with the criminal justice system – an objective that is complimented by 
the Council’s intention to make crime prevention a key element of all service 
planning 
 
Detailed below are the actions that the Council will take to deliver these objectives: 
54. Further develop more community-oriented and localised services and integrate 
new models of enforcement to improve public confidence in the Council and Police 
response to anti-social behaviour and crime 
55. Develop our Reducing Re-offending Programme 

Page 173



Appendix 2 

Page 10 of 12 

56. Develop a more strategic approach to violence against women and girls in line 
with the new national strategy 
57. Improve the provision of positive diversionary activities, restorative justice and 
information, advice and guidance to reduce youth offending  
58. Develop a drug intervention and enforcement strategy 
 
Priority 4.3: Focus on early intervention 
 
Objectives associated with early intervention include a focus on improving parental 
engagement and support as well as the use of joined-up approaches to address 
links between health, drugs, alcohol, education, skills, employment, 
accommodation, mental health, debt and benefits across all age groups. There 
is also a commitment under this priority to tackle the causes of crime by working 
with ‘at-risk’ groups, to nip problems in the bud 
 
Detailed below are the actions that the Council will take to deliver these objectives: 
59. Improve access to preventative services for vulnerable adults, reducing use of 
institutional care and reliance on care managed services  
60. Continue to deliver CYPP actions to support parents and families to provide a 
safe environment and develop a Family Wellbeing Model, which gives a clear and 
swift pathway from identifying an issue to effective action  
61. Develop Children’s Centres to increase the engagement of families with children 
under the age of three so that more families are involved in activities that support 
their child’s development  
 
By March 2011, these actions will enable us to: 
• Reduce the number of serious violent and acquisitive crimes in the borough 
• Reduce the proportion of local people who think drug use or drug dealing is a 

problem by 8% 
• Increase the number of residents who believe that the Police and council are 

dealing with local concerns about anti-social behaviour 
• Cut reoffending by adults under probation supervision and reoffending by young 

people 
• Reduce the rate of arson 
• Increase the proportion of carers who are receiving a specific carer’s service, or 

advice and information by 15% 
• Increase the number of drug users in effective treatment 
• Prevent more than 2,100 households becoming homeless 
 
 

Page 174



Appendix 2 

Page 11 of 12 

A Healthy Community 
 
Priority 5.1: Reduce differences in people’s health and promote 
healthy lifestyles 
 
The Tower Hamlets Partnership is committed to four key objectives which support 
this priority. These include: reducing the use of tobacco; reducing rates of 
diabetes, high blood pressure and cholesterol; slowing down the increase in 
obesity and improving sexual health 
 
Detailed below are the actions that the Council will take to deliver these objectives: 
62. Implement the Years 1-3 actions set out in the Leisure Centre Strategy to 
increase leisure centre use and promote healthy lifestyle activities 
63. Deliver a targeted programme to increase the number of people taking regular 
physical activity 
64.  Continue to deliver ASPIRE to target the most vulnerable young women at risk of 
becoming pregnant   
65.  Support children and families in achieving and maintaining a healthy weight, 
including improving access to weight management services, healthier food choices 
and opportunities for physical activity 
66. In partnership with NHS Tower Hamlets, deliver the LAA priority to reduce 
tobacco use in the Borough 
 
Priority 5.2: Support mental health services to improve mental 
health  
 
The objectives laid out in the Community Plan that support this priority include the 
provision of high-quality accessible services as well as integrated planning and 
treatment for patients with multiple health needs. These objectives are 
complimented by a strong commitment to combat discrimination against 
individuals and groups with mental health problems 
 
Detailed below are the actions that the Council will take to deliver these objectives: 
67. Develop safe and seamless mental health services that empower users and 
promote recovery and citizenship 
68. Review and improve all our services to support young people’s emotional health 
and wellbeing  
69. Improve the range of services available for those with Dementia in line with the 
National Strategy, focussing on raising awareness, early diagnosis and living well 
with Dementia. 

 
By March 2011, these actions will enable us to: 
• Further reduce the proportion of under 18s getting pregnant 
• Slow down the increase in childhood obesity – to ensure that less than a quarter 

of primary age children are obese 
• Increase adult participation in sport  
• Increase life expectancy 

Page 175



Appendix 2 

Page 12 of 12 

How do I contribute to the Strategic Plan? 
 
This booklet summarises the priorities, key objectives and activities set out in the 
Council’s Strategic Plan. The Strategic Plan is the Council’s core planning document, 
and feeds into service and team plans, right through to individual targets for staff.  
 
This is a two-way process, with staff views feeding back up to help shape future 
plans. In this way, the work of every member of staff helps the Council to achieve the 
aims and objectives of the Strategic Plan. 
 
The diagram below shows the links between these plans: 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
  

Community Plan 
A strategic document prepared in partnership with local agencies and residents 

The Council’s Strategic Plan 
The Council's corporate aims, objectives and key initiatives to achieve them, along with an 

analysis of performance against targets and future targets 
 
 

Service and Resource Plans  
Linking operational aims and objectives for services/directorates to resource use  

Purpose 
 
Strategic 

Focus 
 

Broad 

  

Specific 

Types of plan 

Team Plans 
Operational objectives and work programmes for teams working within services 

Personal Development Plans 
Set out performance objectives and training and development needs for individual staff 

Operational 
 

Page 176



 
Committee 
 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

Date 
 
9th March 
2010 

Classification 
 
Unrestricted 
 

Report 
No. 
 
 

Agenda Item 
No. 
 
 

 

Report of:  
 
Lutfur Ali, 
Assistant Chief Executive  
 
Originating Officer(s):  
 
Mohammed Ahad 
Scrutiny Policy Officer  
 

Title:  
 

Report of the Scrutiny Review Working Group on 
Reducing Worklessness amongst Young  

Adults 18-24 
 
Ward(s) affected: All 

 
 
 
 
1. Summary 
 
1.1  This report submits the report and recommendations of the Reducing 
 Worklessness amongst Young Adults 18-24 Working Group for consideration 
 by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
2.  Recommendations 
 
It is recommended that Overview and Scrutiny Committee: 
 
2.1  Endorse the draft report. 
 
2.2  That the Service Head for Scrutiny and Equalities be authorised to agree the 

final report before submission to Cabinet, after consultation with the Scrutiny 
Lead for A Prosperous Community. 

 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 1972 (AS AMENDED) SECTION 100D 
 

LIST OF “BACKGROUND PAPERS” USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS 
REPORT 

Background paper 
 
 

Name and telephone number of and address where open to 
inspection 
 
 

Agenda Item 9.1

Page 177



3.  Background 
 
3.1 A Working Group was established in July 2009 to identify key barriers that 

deter young adults aged 18-24 in gaining sustainable employment and what 
more the Partnership could do to reduce worklessness as a whole in the 
borough. 

 
3.2  The Working Group set out to do the following: 
 

• To consider how the Council can assist young adults to improve their 
chances of employment 

• To review the entry level opportunities available to young adults 
• To look at the information and guidance and effectiveness of having so 
many providers in the Borough 

• To examine the role of the Third Sector and Community Hubs in reducing 
worklessness; 

• To find out from young adults what they feel are the key barriers in gaining 
employment, particularly amongst young women 

• To analyse and have some focus on women within the borough and the 
Stepney and St Dunstan’s ward which both have a greater concentration of 
worklessness 

 
3.3 The Working Group undertook various evidence gathering sessions with key 

stakeholders including national agencies and the local third sector. In addition 
to this a number of workshops and focus groups were undertaken with young 
adults to hear first hand of the barriers that they faced in gaining sustainable 
employment. These have been useful in framing recommendations of this 
review.  

 
3.4 The working group has put forward a number of recommendations which 

include more entry level and apprenticeship opportunities for young adults, 
greater information, awareness and guidance as well as the need for early 
intervention in order to eradicate a future generation of worklessness. In 
addition to this a number of recommendations looked at the role of the third 
sector and developing the community leadership role of community leaders. 

 
3.5 The report with recommendations is attached at Appendix A. 
 
3.6 Once agreed, the Working Groups report will be submitted to Cabinet for a 

response to the recommendations. 
 
4. Concurrent Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal) 
 
4.1 The Council is required by section 21 of the Local Government Act 2000 to 

have an Overview and Scrutiny Committee and to have executive 
arrangements that ensure the committee has specified powers.  Consistent 
with this obligation, Article 6 of the Council’s Constitution provides that the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee may consider any matter affecting the area 
or its inhabitants and may make reports and recommendations to the Full 
Council or the Executive in connection with the discharge of any functions. 

 

Page 178



4.2 The Council is empowered under section 2 of the Local Government Act 2000 
to do anything which it considers is likely to promote the social, economic or 
environmental well being of Tower Hamlets, provided the action is not 
otherwise prohibited by statute.  The power may be exercised in relation to, or 
for the benefit of: (a) the whole or any part of Tower Hamlets; or (b) all or any 
persons resident in Tower Hamlets.  In exercising the power, regard must be 
had to the sustainable community strategy (the Community Plan). 

 
4.3 The proposed measures may be viewed as supporting the Community Plan 

theme of a prosperous community and the associated priority of reducing 
worklessness.  It would be open to Cabinet, having regard to the Community 
Plan, to conclude that the proposed measures, aimed at reducing 
worklessness in Tower Hamlets, would promote or improve the well-being of 
Tower Hamlets. 

 
4.4 In respect to the recommendations and any measures which are agreed in 

respect of reducing worklessness amongst young adults aged 18-24 the 
Council must have reference to the relevant equalities legislation in particular 
the requirements of the Employment Equality (Age) Regulations 2006 and the 
forthcoming Equality Act 2010.  Whilst there are exceptions under the current 
regulation for positive action for persons of particular age groups in relation to 
training and opportunities for doing particular work, any such action must be 
reasonably apparent as steps to prevent or compensate disadvantages 
suffered by persons of that particular age group. 

  
5.  Comments of the Chief Financial Officer 
 
5.1 This report describes the analysis and recommendations of the Reducing 

Worklessness amongst Young Adults 18-24 Working Group review. 
 
5.2 There are no specific financial implications emanating from this report but in 

the event that the Council agrees further action in response to this report’s 
recommendations then officers will be obliged to seek the appropriate financial 
approval before further financial commitments are made.  

 
6. One Tower Hamlets consideration 
 
6.1 The vast majority of the recommendations in this report have One Tower 

Hamlets implications as the intended outcome is reducing worklessness which 
can be linked to social inequality. In addition to this there is a particular 
recommendation around developing the community leadership role of elected 
and other local community leaders. 

 
6.2 Recommendations 2, 3, 5, 8 and 9 specifically ask that support be provided to 

groups identified as particularly vulnerable.  
 
7. Risk Management 
 
7.1     There are no direct risk management implications arising from the Working 
 Group’s report or recommendations. 

 

Page 179



Page 180

This page is intentionally left blank



Committee 
 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

Date 
 
9th March 2010 

Classification 
 
Unrestricted 
 

Report 
No. 
 
 

Agenda Item 
No. 
 
 

 
Report of:  
 
Assistant Chief Executive 
 
Originating Officer(s):  
 
Barry Clark / Farhana Khan  
Scrutiny & Equalities  
 

Title:  
 
Overview and Scrutiny Recommendation Tracking Report: 
Update 
 
 
Ward(s) affected: All 
 

 
 
1. Summary 
 
1.1 This report provides an update on implementing the recommendations of the 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  
 
2.  Recommendations 
 
2.1 Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked to note the progress in implementing its 

recommendations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 1972 (AS AMENDED) SECTION 100D 
 

LIST OF “BACKGROUND PAPERS” USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 
Background paper 
 
Recommendation Tracking Report – March 2010 

Name and telephone number of and address where open to 
inspection 
 
 

Agenda Item 9.2

Page 181



3 Report  
 
3.1 As part of its regular work programme, Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) 

receives a regular, 6-monthly, tracking report to monitor progress in implementing past 
recommendations. This report had been monitoring all its recommendations since 
2003/04, including those from the Committee and Working Group reviews, however as 
many of these have now been completed, they are no longer being monitored. This 
report incorporates all the action plans from those reviews undertaken since 2007/08. 

 
3.2 In considering the monitoring and tracking of scrutiny recommendations Members have 

found it useful to revisit reviews through Scrutiny challenge sessions to track the 
progress over the last few years. In 2007/08 Members revisited Access to GP/Dentistry 
services and Youth Services Reviews. 

 
3.3 In November 2009 all the Scrutiny Lead Members revisited a review within their 

portfolio area. This was undertaken through 1-2-1 meetings with Lead Officers from the 
service area of the review. This provided Members a useful way of monitoring the 
implementation of recommendations, identify key outcomes as a result of the review 
and also consider any difficulties around implementing recommendations. The details of 
these discussion were reported by the Scrutiny Leads to the Committee in November 
2009 and are summarised below: 

 
• Councillor Denise Jones revisited the Domestic Violence Review undertaken in 

2005/06 and reported that progress had been made against all the 
recommendations. She highlighted the outcomes from the review were the 
production of the Domestic Violence booklets to raise awareness, the training of the 
Council’s Customer Contact Centre and One Stop Shops staff to recognise 
Domestic Violence. A key concern she highlighted was funding to some of the 
specialist Domestic Violence services provided by third sector organisations. The 
OSC followed this issue up with a discussion with Lead Member and Service Head 
at their meeting in December 2009 where OSC were given assurance that funding 
had been secured until April 2010 and other avenues were being explored for 
sustainable funding.  

 
• Councillor Alex Heslop considered the review on Leaseholders undertaken in 

2006/07. He reported that of the 19 recommendations are all either completed or 
partially completed. This review has significantly improved the services received by 
Leaseholders particularly with an extensive staff training programme being 
developed and improved engagement with Leaseholders. In August 2009 Tower 
Hamlets Home also implemented a decentralised housing management system 
which provided Leaseholders greater access to key officers and solve problems 
more quickly.  

 
• Councillor Ann Jackson revisited the Interpreting and Translating Service Challenge 

Session held in 2007/08. One of the key issues highlighted by this session was the 
link between English for Speakers of Other Languages (ESOL) provision and the 
demand for interpreting and translating services in Tower Hamlets. She commented 
that progress had been made against all the recommendations and significant 
funding had been secured for ESOL provision in the borough through the Working 
Neighbourhood Fund and the Council also allocating additional funding. There is 
also a strategic review taking place of interpreting and translation services which will 
support service planning and delivery.  

 

Page 182



• Councillor Abdul Aziz Sardar reviewed the Graduate Unemployment Review 
undertaken in 2006/07. He highlighted that progress has been made against all but 
one of the recommendations, which is due to the lack of funding. There has been a 
positive impact from this review for graduates. There are opportunities for graduates 
to be employed in the Council and other places through schemes developed with 
the Partnership.   

 
• Councillor Bill Turner considered the review on the Use of Consultants undertaken 

in 2007/08 and reported that progress has been made against all of the 
recommendations. The review has had a positive impact on the service with greater 
assurance that consultants are used in the right circumstances and their outputs are 
monitored and managed correctly. Furthermore Directorates are required to submit 
monthly reports to the Corporate Director of Resources on their use of consultants. 
Directorate Management Teams reviews the use of consultants on a regular basis.  

 
• Councillor Tim Archer revisited the review on Access to GP and Dentistry Service 

undertaken in 2006/07 and reported that all the recommendations had been 
implemented or there was on-going work. There has been significant improvement 
in access to GP and Dentistry Services since this review was undertaken.  

        
3.4 This tracking report shows that overall, services are implementing the majority of the 

recommendations made by Overview and Scrutiny and that outcomes and ongoing 
work streams are in line with the spirit of the original recommendations.  The report 
demonstrates that action plans have influenced key strategies and campaigns in a 
number of ways including actions being mainstreamed into ongoing service 
development through to specific initiatives.   

 
3.5 Appendix 1 provides an update of the tracking system. It is organised by the broad 

themes from the Community Plan with the additional area of Excellent Public Services 
to focus on Value for Money, performance and customer services.  

 
3.6 As noted in the report of 3rd November 2009 meeting, many of the updates will not 

change significantly from one tracking report to the next given the nature of the 
recommendations.  For each recommendation there is an indication of whether 
monitoring should continue and, if so, when a detailed update will be sought.  

 
3.7 Appendix 1 summarises the progress made in implementing the recommendations 

arising from the reviews. This summary highlights some of the challenges faced in 
implementing the recommendations.  

 
3.8 A number of the reviews are now monitored on an annual basis and were last 

considered at the November 2009 meeting. This report therefore includes updates on 
reviews monitored annually. 

 
3.9 As with other corporate monitoring reports, a traffic light system is used to indicate 

progress.  Red highlights an area where there has been no progress or there is 
significant delay in implementing the recommendations.  Yellow indicates that the 
recommendation is in the planning stage or that, although there is some progress, this 
is less than satisfactory. Green shows that the recommendation has been achieved or 
progress in its implementation is satisfactory.  

 
3.10 The report shows that in terms of the 16 action plans being monitored, 7 are at green 

with 9 currently at yellow, this is due to these reviews being in the early stages of 
implementation or that have only recently been agreed by Cabinet.  

Page 183



3.11 A number of reviews have been successfully tracked through to the completion of 
activities within the action plan.  It is recommended that monitoring of these as part of 
the OSC Tracking Report should cease.  These are the action plans for the Graduate 
Unemployment and Access to GP and Dentistry Services 

 
4 Concurrent Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal) 
 
4.1 There are no legal implications from this report' 
 
5 Comments of the Chief Financial Officer 
 
5.1 This report details an update of the implementation of recommendations of the 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  The reviews include value for money issues that 
allow monitoring of the use of resources by the Council and as evidence to the Audit 
Commission’s assessment of how well it is managing and using its resources to deliver 
value for money and better and sustainable outcomes for local people. 

 
5.2 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 
 
 
6 One Tower Hamlets considerations 
 
6.1 Equalities considerations are central to the work of the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee. A number of reports and reviews have specific equalities themes including 
the English for Speakers of Other Language (ESOL) challenge session, which sought 
to respond to the issue of local and new residents’ access to services. 

 
7 Risk Management 
 
7.1 There are no direct risk management implications arising from this report. Monitoring of 

the implementation of the Committee’s recommendations is important to make sure that 
the Council responds to the suggestions and findings of Overview and Scrutiny’s work.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 184



Appendix 1 Overview and Scrutiny Recommendation Tracking Update 
Appendix 2  Licensing of Strip Clubs 
Appendix 3 Choice Based Lettings 
Appendix 4 Young People’s Participation in Sports leading up to the Olympics 
Appendix 5 Affordable Homeownership 
Appendix 6 Tackling Anti-Social Behaviour 
Appendix 7 Early Interventions, Child Protection 
Appendix 8 Dangerous Dogs Challenge Session 
Appendix 9 Evaluation of Neighbourhood Renewal Fund (NRF) 
Appendix 10 Parental Engagement in Secondary Education  
Appendix 11  Child Poverty 
Appendix 12 English for Speakers of other Language (ESOL) Challenge Session 
Appendix 13 Tobacco Cessation 
Appendix 14  Alcohol Misuse Amongst Young People 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 185



Appendix 1 
Overview and Scrutiny Recommendation Tracking Update 

 
 
‘A great place to live’ 
 
Issue 
Leaseholders – A Study of Customer 
Care 
 

Recommendation Date 
3 October 2007 Green 

Monitoring Status – Maintain annual monitoring 
Recommendation 
This review was designed as a case 
study of the customer care received by 
people using Council services. In total 
19 recommendations were made as a 
result, with 15 of these specifically for 
the leaseholder.  

Response / Progress 
This was monitored in November 2007; next 
monitoring will take place in October 2010.  

 
Issue 
Licensing of Strip Clubs 

Recommendation Date 
5 November 2008 

 
Green 

 
Monitoring Status – Maintain six-monthly monitoring 
Recommendation 
The review investigated the impact of 
Strip Clubs in Tower Hamlets and 
considered approaches to regulation 
and licensing of Clubs in the future, 
within an appropriate legal framework.  

Response / Progress 
Of the 14 recommendations made by the review 
group, there has been progress against 13 of the 
recommendations. The update is attached in 
appendix 2. 

 
Issue 
Choice Based Lettings 

Recommendation Date 
3 December 2008 

 
Green 

 
Monitoring Status – Maintain six-monthly monitoring 
Recommendation 
This review looked into the councils 
approach to Choice Based Lettings 
Scheme for the allocation of housing, 
with particular emphasis on 
overcrowding, homelessness, 
accessibility of the scheme for 
disabled and elderly residents and the 
medical assessment process. 

Response / Progress 
Of the 20 recommendations made by the review 
group progress has been made by 18 of them. 
This is due to the New Lettings Policy not going to 
Cabinet until March 2010, and the Mayor of 
London putting Capital Moves on hold. The update 
is provided in appendix 3. 

 
Issue 
Young people’s participation in sports 
leading up to the Olympics 

Recommendation Date 
14 January 2009 Green 

Monitoring Status – Maintain six-monthly monitoring 
Recommendation 
The review looked into current 
initiatives in place around sports 
engagement for young people, 
strategy and development regarding 

Response / Progress 
Of the 16 recommendations all have made 
progress, most of the recommendations were 
complete in late 2009. The update is provided in 
appendix 4.  

Page 186



young people’s participation in sports 
and the role of the PCT to address 
health issues using the Olympics as a 
catalyst to promote healthy lifestyles. 
 
Issue 
Affordable Homeownership 

Recommendation Date 
2nd December 2009 
 

Yellow 
Monitoring Status – Maintain six-monthly monitoring 
Recommendation 
This review was established to 
consider the challenges local residents 
face in accessing affordable housing, 
and how the Council and our partners 
can work together to overcome these. 

Response / Progress 
Cabinet agreed the action plans in December 
2009; this will be monitored in October 2010. 
The action plan is provided in appendix 5. 

 
 ‘A safe and supportive community’ 
 
Issue 
Tackling Anti Social Behaviour  
 

Recommendation Date 
14 January 2009 Green 

Monitoring Status – Maintain six-monthly monitoring 
Recommendation 
This review examined the future 
directions of the Council’s Anti Social 
Behaviour Strategy, in line with 
national developments and policy, with 
particular emphasis on the 
effectiveness of current methods for 
tackling the problem, partnership 
working and engagement with young 
people. 

Response / Progress  
There has been progress made against all 11 of 
the 13 recommendations. The update is provided 
in appendix 6. 

 
Issue 
Early Intervention, Child Protection 
 

Recommendation Date 
2nd December 2009 Yellow 

Monitoring Status – Maintain six-monthly monitoring 
Recommendation 
This review was established to 
examine the Council’s existing early 
intervention services in relation to 
Child Protection and explores the case 
for extending services from a value for 
money and customer service 
perspective.  

Response / Progress  
Cabinet agreed the action plan in December 2009; 
this will be monitored in October 2010. The action 
plan is provided in appendix 7. 

 
Issue 
Dangerous Dogs Challenge Session 
 

Recommendation Date 
3rd November 2009 
 

Yellow 
Monitoring Status – Maintain six-monthly monitoring 
Recommendation 
This challenge session was to 
increase Members understanding of 

Response / Progress  
The action has plan has recently been developed; 
this will be monitored in October 2010. The action 

Page 187



the issues that are common when 
dealing with dangerous dogs and give 
residents an opportunity to express 
their views and concerns.  

plan is attached in appendix 8. 
 
 
 

 
‘A prosperous community’  
 
Issue 
Evaluation of Neighbourhood Renewal 
Funding 

Recommendation Date 
5 November 2008 Yellow 

Monitoring Status – No further monitoring needed  
Recommendation 
This review looked into how the 
Neighbourhood Renewal Funding is 
being used to deliver local priorities 
set out by local people through the 
Local Area Partnership and in the 
Community Plan; and the lessons for 
any similar funding that may be 
allocated through Tower Hamlets 
Partnership in the future. 

Response / Progress 
All the actions have been completed or there is on-
going and therefore no further monitoring is 
proposed. 

 
Issue 
Parental Engagement in Secondary 
Education 

Recommendation Date 
4th November 2009 Yellow 

Monitoring Status – Maintain six-monthly monitoring 
Recommendation 
This review was established to 
examine the current policy and 
practices and suggest improvements 
in supporting and encouraging 
parental engagement in secondary 
schools. 

Response / Progress 
Cabinet agreed the report in November 2009; this 
will be monitored in October 2010. The action plan 
is provided in appendix 10. 

 
‘One Tower Hamlets’ 
 
Issue 
Child Poverty  
 

Recommendation 
Date 
7th October 2009 
 

Yellow 

Monitoring Status – Maintain six-monthly monitoring 
Recommendation 
This review was established to 
examine the barriers faced in gaining 
employment. 

Response / Progress 
Cabinet agreed the report in October 2009; the 
action plan will be monitored in October 2010. The 
action plan is provided in appendix 11. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 188



Issue 
Interpreting and Translation Provision 
Challenge Session 
 

Recommendation 
Date 
10 June 2008 
 

Yellow 

Monitoring Status – Maintain annual monitoring 
Recommendation 
This Challenge Session was held to 
examine current interpreting and 
translation provision within the Council 
in the light of publication of the DCLG 
report ‘Guidance for Local Authorities 
on translation of publications’. 7 
recommendations were made as a 
result of the session which was also 
attended by a number of 
representatives from partner 
organisations.  

Response / Progress 
This action plan was last monitored in November 
2009; this will be monitored in November 2010. 

 
Issue 
English for Speakers of Other 
Languages (ESOL) Challenge Session 

Recommendation Date 
5th January 2010 Yellow 

Monitoring Status – Maintain six-monthly monitoring 
Recommendation 
This session was to consider ESOL 
provision in the borough with a focus 
on Tower Hamlets College. 

Response / Progress  
This action plan was monitored in November 2009, 
this will be monitored in November 2010. The 
action plan is provided in appendix 12. 
 

 
‘A healthy community’  
 
Issue 
Tobacco Cessation in Tower Hamlets  
 

Recommendation Date 
30 July 2008 
 

Green 
Monitoring Status – Maintain six-monthly monitoring 
Recommendation 
This review was conducted by the 
Health Scrutiny Panel and examined 
the provision and impact of tobacco 
cessation services in Tower Hamlets. A 
total of 9 recommendations arose from 
the review, for both the PCT and 
LBTH. 

Response / Progress 
There has been progress against all 9 
recommendations. The update is provided in 
appendix 13. 

 
Issue 
Alcohol Misuse Amongst Young 
People 
 

Recommendation Date 
4th November 2009 Yellow 

Monitoring Status – Maintain six-monthly monitoring 
Recommendation 
This review was established to explore 
the problem of alcohol misuse amongst 
young people. 

Response / Progress 
Cabinet agreed the action plan in November 2009; 
this will be monitored in October 2010. The action 
plan is provided in appendix 14. 

 
Page 189



‘Excellent public services’ 
 
Issue 
The use of consultants  

Recommendation Date 
30 July 2008 
 

Green 
Monitoring Status – Maintain annual monitoring 
Recommendation 
This review was established in order to 
investigate the use of consultants 
internally within the Council, leading to 
7 recommendations being made.  

Response / Progress 
The action plan was monitored in November 2009, 
this will now be monitored in November 2010.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 190



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n t
he
 Li
ce
ns
ing

 of
 St
rip
 C
lub

s –
 A
pp
en
dix

 2 
Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 O
ct 
20
09
 

Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 M
arc

h 2
01
0 

R1
  

Th
at 

an
 ex

tra
 po

st 
is 

cre
ate

d i
n t

he
 

Lic
en

sin
g 

De
pa

rtm
en

t, w
ith

 a 
rem

it f
oc

us
ing

 on
 th

e 
en

for
ce

me
nt 

of 
lice

ns
ing

 co
nd

itio
ns

 
ap

ply
ing

 to
 st

rip
 cl

ub
s 

in 
the

 bo
rou

gh
. 

Fu
rth

erm
ore

, th
at 

thi
s 

off
ice

r li
ais

es
 ve

ry 
clo

se
ly 

wit
h t

he
 

Po
lice

 to
 en

su
re 

inf
orm

ati
on

 is
 

pro
pe

rly
 sh

are
d. 

 

W
e h

av
e r

ev
iew

ed
 th

e l
ice

ns
ing

 
res

ou
rce

s a
s p

art
 of

 a 
be

nc
h m

ark
ing

 
ex

erc
ise

. A
fte

r th
e O

ve
rvi

ew
 & 

Sc
rut

iny
 

Re
po

rt l
eg

isla
tio

n c
ha

ng
es

 w
ere

 go
ing

 
to 

be
 pr

op
os

ed
. A

ny
 re

so
urc

e i
ss

ue
s 

wil
l b

e d
ec

ide
d a

s a
nd

 w
he

n t
he

 ne
w 

leg
isla

tio
n i

s i
n p

lac
e. 

 
 Th

e n
ew

 le
gis

lat
ion

 w
ill c

las
sif

y l
ap

 
da

nc
ing

 an
d s

trip
tea

se
 pr

em
ise

s a
s 

se
x e

nc
ou

nte
r v

en
ue

s. 
If t

he
 dr

aft
 

leg
isla

tio
n b

ec
om

es
 la

w 
Lo

ca
l 

Au
tho

riti
es

 w
ho

 ad
op

t th
e l

eg
isla

tio
n 

wil
l b

e a
ble

 to
 re

str
ict

 th
e n

um
be

r o
f 

pre
mi

se
s i

n t
he

ir a
rea

 to
 ze

ro 
eff

ec
tiv

ely
 ba

nn
ing

 la
p d

an
cin

g a
nd

 
str

ipt
ea

se
.  

 En
for

ce
me

nt 
ha

s b
ee

n o
ng

oin
g a

nd
 

pre
mi

se
s a

re 
vis

ite
d o

n a
 re

gu
lar

 ba
sis

 
to 

ch
ec

k f
or 

co
mp

lia
nc

e w
ith

 th
e 

co
nd

itio
ns

 of
 th

e l
ice

nc
e. 

Le
ga

l a
cti

on
 

fol
low

s a
nd

 on
e p

rem
ise

 w
as

 
pro

se
cu

ted
 in

 Ju
ly 

of 
thi

s y
ea

r fo
r 

bre
ac

h o
f c

on
dit

ion
s o

f th
e l

ice
nc

e. 
  

He
ad

 of
 

Tra
din

g 
Sta

nd
ard

s /
 

En
vir

on
me

nta
l 

He
alt

h 
 Lic

en
sin

g 
Se

rvi
ce

s 
Ma

na
ge

r 

               ○ 
Au

g 
20

08
 

○ 
Oc

t 2
00

8  
 ○ 

Oc
t 2

00
8 

 ○ 
No

v 
20

08
 

 ○ 
No

v 
20

08
 

 

On
 12

th
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
9 t

he
  

Th
e P

oli
cin

g a
nd

 C
rim

e A
ct 

20
09

 re
ce

ive
d r

oy
al 

As
se

nt.
 

Se
cti

on
 27

 of
 th

e A
ct 

am
en

ds
 

Sc
he

du
le 

3 o
f th

e L
oc

al 
Go

ve
rnm

en
t (M

isc
ell

an
eo

us
 

Pr
ov

isio
ns

) A
ct 

19
82

 to
 

inc
lud

e a
 ne

w 
ca

teg
ory

 of
 se

x 
es

tab
lish

me
nt 

– t
he

 Se
xu

al 
En

co
un

ter
 Ve

nu
e. 

 Th
e L

GM
P A

ct 
19

82
 al

low
s a

 
loc

al 
au

tho
rity

 to
 ad

op
t th

e 
pro

vis
ion

s o
f S

ch
ed

ule
 3 

of 
the

 19
82

 Ac
t to

 co
ntr

ol,
 by

 
wa

y o
f a

 lic
en

sin
g r

eg
im

e, 
se

x 
es

tab
lish

me
nts

 in
 th

e a
rea

, 
wit

hin
 on

e y
ea

r.  
 It i

s r
eq

uir
ed

 by
 th

e 
am

en
dm

en
ts 

in 
the

 PC
A 2

00
9 

tha
t a

 lo
ca

l c
on

su
lta

tio
n t

ak
es

 
pla

ce
 co

ns
ide

r th
e o

pti
on

 of
 

wh
eth

er 
or 

no
t to

 ad
op

t th
e 

Ac
t. 

 Th
is 

co
ns

ult
ati

on
 w

ill a
lso

 
inf

orm
 th

e p
oli

cy
 th

at 
wa

s 
ma

de
 is

 m
ad

e. 
 

Page 191



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n t
he
 Li
ce
ns
ing

 of
 St
rip
 C
lub

s –
 A
pp
en
dix

 2 
Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 O
ct 
20
09
 

Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 M
arc

h 2
01
0 

 It i
s e

xp
ec

ted
 th

at 
tha

t 
pro

vis
ion

s o
f s

.27
 of

 th
e P

CA
 

20
09

 w
ill c

om
e i

nto
 fo

rce
 in

 by
 

Ap
ril 

20
10

. 
 W

e a
re 

ma
kin

g p
lan

s f
or 

a 
me

mb
ers

 br
ief

ing
 fo

r th
e A

ct.
 

R2
  

Th
at 

the
 C

ou
nc

il 
wo

rks
 cl

os
ely

 w
ith

 th
e 

Po
lice

 to
 m

ak
es

 cl
ea

r 
to 

res
ide

nts
 th

e 
pro

pe
r c

ha
nn

els
 fo

r 
rep

ort
ing

 an
y 

inc
ide

nts
 ar

isin
g f

rom
 

ex
ist

ing
 pr

em
ise

s. 
Sh

ou
ld 

inf
orm

ati
on

 
be

 pu
bli

sh
ed

 or
 

dis
trib

ute
d, 

thi
s 

sh
ou

ld 
be

 do
ne

 
bil

ing
ua

lly.
 W

ay
s t

o 
rep

ort
 in

cid
en

ts 
mu

st 
inc

lud
e e

ffe
cti

ve
 

wa
ys

 of
 ca

ptu
rin

g a
ny

 
inf

orm
ati

on
 or

 
ev

ide
nc

e r
es

ide
nts

 
co

lle
ct,

 so
 th

at 
sa

nc
tio

ns
 m

ay
 th

en
 

be
 ap

pli
ed

, in
clu

din
g 

All
 pr

em
ise

s a
pp

lyin
g f

or 
a l

ice
nc

e 
inc

lud
ing

 th
os

e p
rop

os
ing

 st
rip

tea
se

 
ha

ve
 st

atu
tor

y c
on

su
lta

tio
ns

 to
 fu

lfil 
su

ch
 as

 a 
pu

bli
c n

oti
ce

 at
 th

e p
rem

ise
s 

an
d a

n a
dv

ert
 in

 a 
loc

all
y c

irc
ula

ted
 

ne
ws

pa
pe

r. A
dd

itio
na

lly 
the

 Li
ce

ns
ing

 
Au

tho
rity

 co
ns

ult
s r

es
ide

nts
 an

d 
bu

sin
es

se
s i

n a
 40

m 
rad

ius
 of

 th
e 

pre
mi

se
s. 

 
A c

om
mu

nic
ati

on
 pl

an
 w

ill b
e 

de
pe

nd
en

t o
n t

he
 ch

an
ge

 of
 le

gis
lat

ion
 

as
 th

ere
 is

 pr
op

os
ed

 to
 be

 pr
ov

isio
n i

n 
the

 Ac
t fo

r L
oc

al 
Au

tho
riti

es
 to

 se
t th

e 
nu

mb
er 

of 
pre

mi
se

s t
o N

IL 
wh

ich
 w

ill 
ba

n  
 

He
ad

 of
 

Tra
din

g 
Sta

nd
ard

s /
 

En
vir

on
me

nta
l 

He
alt

h 
 Lic

en
sin

g 
Se

rvi
ce

s 
Ma

na
ge

r 
 Co

mm
un

ica
tio

n
s  CL

C 
Str

ate
gy

 
an

d 
Pr

og
ram

me
s 

           ○ 
Au

g 
20

08
 

 Th
e c

on
su

lta
tio

n w
ill c

ov
er 

thi
s. 

  

Page 192



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n t
he
 Li
ce
ns
ing

 of
 St
rip
 C
lub

s –
 A
pp
en
dix

 2 
Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 O
ct 
20
09
 

Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 M
arc

h 2
01
0 

the
 ul

tim
ate

 
po

ss
ibi

lity
 of

 a 
rev

iew
 

of 
the

 lic
en

se
 an

d i
t 

be
ing

 re
vo

ke
d. 

 R3
  

Th
at 

the
 C

ou
nc

il 
co

ns
ide

r ta
rge

tin
g 

mo
bil

e C
CT

V i
n t

he
 

vic
ini

ty 
of 

pre
mi

se
s 

op
era

tin
g s

trip
tea

se
, 

to 
pro

vid
e e

vid
en

ce
 of

 
the

 ex
ten

t o
f c

rim
e 

an
d d

iso
rde

r 
as

so
cia

ted
 w

ith
 th

es
e 

pre
mi

se
s. 

To
 th

is 
en

d, 
the

 C
ou

nc
il s

ho
uld

 
als

o c
on

sid
er 

co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 

res
ea

rch
 to

 ve
rify

 
cla

im
s t

ha
t th

ere
 ar

e 
dir

ec
t li

nk
s b

etw
ee

n 
str

ip 
clu

bs
 an

d c
rim

e 
an

d d
iso

rde
r 

(pa
rtic

ula
rly

 cr
im

e o
f a

 
se

xu
al 

na
tur

e).
 

Sta
tic

 C
CT

V i
s u

se
d t

o m
on

ito
r o

uts
ide

 
pre

mi
se

s. 
Th

ere
 ar

e l
im

ite
d r

es
ou

rce
s 

for
 m

ob
ile

 C
CT

V h
ow

ev
er 

if c
on

tin
ue

d 
ins

pe
cti

on
s a

nd
 su

rve
illa

nc
e r

ev
ea

l 
cri

me
 & 

dis
ord

er 
an

d a
nti

 so
cia

l is
su

es
. 

Th
ere

 is
 a 

fac
ility

 to
 em

plo
y m

ob
ile

 
CC

TV
 to

 ev
alu

ate
 an

d i
nv

es
tig

ate
. 

  Th
ere

 ha
ve

 be
en

 no
 co

mp
lai

nts
 ab

ou
t 

cri
me

 or
 an

ti s
oc

ial
 be

ha
vio

ur 
ou

tsi
de

 a 
pre

mi
se

, C
CT

V s
urv

eil
lan

ce
 ha

s t
ak

en
 

pla
ce

 bu
t h

as
 no

t re
ve

ale
d a

ny
 cr

im
e &

 
dis

ord
er.

 

He
ad

 of
 

Tra
din

g 
Sta

nd
ard

s /
 

En
vir

on
me

nta
l 

He
alt

h 
 Lic

en
sin

g 
Se

rvi
ce

s 
Ma

na
ge

r 
 Co

mm
un

ity
 

Sa
fet

y 
 

 ○ 
Au

g 
20

08
 

 ○ 
Se

pt 
20

08
 

○ 
Oc

t 2
00

8  
 

 Th
e L

ice
ns

ing
 Au

tho
rity

 ha
s 

rec
eiv

ed
 no

 co
mp

lai
nts

 ab
ou

t  
Cr

im
e a

nd
 D

iso
rde

r o
uts

ide
 

str
ipt

ea
se

 pr
em

ise
s, 

ne
ith

er 
ha

s a
ny

 in
tel

lig
en

ce
 be

en
 pu

t 
for

wa
rd 

by
 th

e p
oli

ce
 or

 ot
he

r 
pa

rtn
ers

. 
   

R4
  

Th
at 

the
 C

ou
nc

il 
rem

ind
s a

ll o
wn

ers
 of

 
the

ir o
bli

ga
tio

ns
 

un
de

r th
e r

ec
en

tly
 

All
 pr

em
ise

s h
av

e b
ee

n a
nd

 w
ill b

e 
ins

pe
cte

d a
nd

 no
 of

fen
siv

e a
dv

ert
isin

g 
ha

s b
ee

n f
ou

nd
. 

 

He
ad

 of
 

Tra
din

g 
Sta

nd
ard

s /
 

En
vir

on
me

nta
l 

 ○ 
Ju

ly 
20

08
 

 

Co
mp

let
ed

 w
ith

 tw
o p

rem
ise

s 
be

ing
 is

su
ed

 w
ith

 si
mp

le 
ca

uti
on

s o
n t

he
 ad

vic
e o

f 
Le

ga
l b

ec
au

se
 of

 br
ea

ch
es

 of
 

Page 193



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n t
he
 Li
ce
ns
ing

 of
 St
rip
 C
lub

s –
 A
pp
en
dix

 2 
Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 O
ct 
20
09
 

Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 M
arc

h 2
01
0 

am
en

de
d L

ice
ns

ing
 

Po
licy

 to
 pr

ev
en

t 
ad

ve
rtis

ing
 on

 an
d 

aro
un

d t
he

ir p
rem

ise
s 

ca
us

ing
 of

fen
ce

 to
 

loc
al 

res
ide

nts
. 

Fo
llo

win
g t

his
, th

e 
off

ice
rs 

sh
ou

ld 
inv

es
tig

ate
 w

ha
t 

ad
ve

rtis
ing

 is
 in

 
pla

ce
, a

nd
 if 

it 
co

ntr
av

en
es

 th
e 

po
licy

, to
 ta

ke
 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 ac
tio

n. 
 

 

Th
is 

ac
tio

n w
as

 an
d i

s p
rog

ram
me

d f
or 

wh
en

 th
e a

nn
ua

l fe
es

 ar
e d

ue
. 

 
He

alt
h 

 Lic
en

sin
g 

Se
rvi

ce
s 

Ma
na

ge
r 

  

 ○ 
On

go
ing

 
lice

nc
e c

on
dit

ion
s. 

 Pr
ob

lem
ati

c a
dv

ert
s h

av
e n

ot 
be

en
 re

po
rte

d. 
 

R5
  

Th
at 

the
 C

ou
nc

il 
sh

ou
ld 

ma
ke

 w
ritt

en
 

rep
res

en
tat

ion
s t

o 
ow

ne
rs 

of 
bil

lbo
ard

s 
an

d t
he

 ow
ne

rs 
of 

pre
mi

se
s w

he
re 

the
 

bil
lbo

ard
s a

re 
pu

t u
p 

to 
req

ue
st 

tha
t th

ey
 

do
 no

t p
ut 

up
 

ad
ve

rtis
em

en
ts 

for
 

str
ip 

clu
bs

. 
Fu

rth
erm

ore
, th

at 
ex

ist
ing

 st
rip

tea
se

 
lice

ns
e h

old
ers

 as
 

De
tai

ls 
ha

ve
 be

en
 re

qu
es

ted
 fro

m 
pla

nn
ing

. 
Ac

tio
n t

o b
e c

om
ple

ted
 

Su
rve

ys
 ar

e r
eg

ula
rly

 ca
rrie

d o
ut 

an
d i

f 
str

ipt
ea

se
 pr

em
ise

s a
re 

ad
ve

rtis
ing

 
ac

tio
n w

ill b
e t

ak
en

.   
 

He
ad

 of
 

Tra
din

g 
Sta

nd
ard

s /
 

En
vir

on
me

nta
l 

He
alt

h 
 Lic

en
sin

g 
Se

rvi
ce

s 
Ma

na
ge

r 
 

  ○ 
Au

g 
20

08
 

 ○ 
Se

pt 
20

08
 

 ○ 
Au

g 
20

08
 

 Co
mp

let
ed

 
            

Page 194



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n t
he
 Li
ce
ns
ing

 of
 St
rip
 C
lub

s –
 A
pp
en
dix

 2 
Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 O
ct 
20
09
 

Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 M
arc

h 2
01
0 

we
ll a

s n
ew

 
ap

pli
ca

nts
 ar

e a
sk

ed
 

no
t to

 ad
ve

rtis
e, 

eit
he

r w
ith

in 
the

 
bo

rou
gh

 or
 ou

tsi
de

. 
 R6
 

Th
at 

the
 C

ou
nc

il 
lob

bie
s t

he
 AS

A i
n 

ord
er 

to 
pre

ve
nt 

str
ip 

clu
bs

 fro
m 

ad
ve

rtis
ing

 
on

 bi
llb

oa
rds

. 

 Th
e C

om
mi

tte
e o

f A
dv

ert
isin

g P
rac

tic
e 

(C
AP

) is
 pa

rt o
f th

e A
dv

ert
isin

g 
Sta

nd
ard

s A
uth

ori
ty 

an
d i

s t
he

 se
lf-

reg
ula

tor
y b

od
y t

ha
t c

rea
tes

, re
vis

es
 

an
d e

nfo
rce

s t
he

 Ad
ve

rtis
ing

 C
od

e. 
Th

e C
AP

 co
de

 ha
s b

ee
n e

xa
mi

ne
d 

an
d t

he
re 

is 
no

 ev
ide

nc
e t

o d
ate

.  

He
ad

 of
 

Tra
din

g 
Sta

nd
ard

s /
 

En
vir

on
me

nta
l 

He
alt

h 
 Lic

en
sin

g 
Se

rvi
ce

s 
Ma

na
ge

r 
 

    ○ 
Au

g 
20

08
 

 ○ 
Se

pt 
20

08
 

 On
go

ing
  

R7
 

Qu
art

erl
y m

ee
tin

gs
 

are
 he

ld 
be

tw
ee

n 
off

ice
rs 

in 
Pla

nn
ing

 
an

d L
ice

ns
ing

 to
 

dis
cu

ss
 an

y 
pro

sp
ec

tiv
e 

ap
pli

ca
tio

ns
 th

at 
are

 
or 

wil
l b

e r
ele

va
nt 

to 
bo

th 
de

pa
rtm

en
ts.

 
Me

eti
ng

s s
ho

uld
 al

so
 

tak
e p

lac
e a

s a
nd

 
wh

en
 po

ten
tia

l is
su

es
 

ari
se

. S
ho

uld
 th

es
e 

On
go

ing
 

 All
 ne

w 
pre

mi
se

s l
ice

nc
es

 un
de

r th
e 

Lic
en

sin
g A

ct 
20

03
 ha

ve
 st

atu
tor

y 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

 go
ing

 to
 al

l re
sp

on
sib

le 
au

tho
riti

es
, P

lan
nin

g i
s o

ne
 of

 th
em

. 
If t

he
re 

are
 an

y c
on

flic
ts 

the
se

 ar
e 

dis
cu

ss
ed

 an
d p

rog
res

se
d. 

Se
rvi

ce
 H

ea
d –

 
En

vir
on

me
nta

l 
Co

ntr
ol 

 He
ad

 of
 

Tra
din

g 
Sta

nd
ard

s /
 

En
vir

on
me

nta
l 

He
alt

h 
 Lic

en
sin

g 
Se

rvi
ce

s 
Ma

na
ge

r 

           ○ C
om

ple
te

d 

      Co
mp

let
ed

 
      

Page 195



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n t
he
 Li
ce
ns
ing

 of
 St
rip
 C
lub

s –
 A
pp
en
dix

 2 
Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 O
ct 
20
09
 

Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 M
arc

h 2
01
0 

me
eti

ng
s r

ais
e 

qu
es

tio
n m

ark
s o

ve
r 

ce
rta

in 
pre

mi
se

s, 
ap

pli
ca

nts
 sh

ou
ld 

be
 

str
on

gly
 in

for
me

d t
ha

t 
op

era
tin

g w
ith

ou
t b

oth
 

a l
ice

ns
e a

nd
 

pla
nn

ing
 pe

rm
iss

ion
 

co
uld

 re
su

lt i
n 

pro
se

cu
tio

n. 

 Se
rvi

ce
 H

ea
d –

 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

De
cis

ion
s 

    ○ 
Ju

ne
 

20
08

 

     

R8
 

Th
at 

the
 C

ou
nc

il 
ma

ke
s a

 cl
ea

r 
(bi

lin
gu

al)
 pu

bli
c 

sta
tem

en
t th

at 
it d

oe
s 

no
t w

an
t s

trip
 cl

ub
s i

n 
the

 bo
rou

gh
, in

 or
de

r 
to 

dis
co

ura
ge

 
ap

pli
ca

tio
ns

 fo
r s

uc
h 

pre
mi

se
s. 

Th
is 

sta
tem

en
t w

as
 m

ad
e a

s p
art

 of
 

the
 pu

bli
sh

ing
 of

 th
e O

ve
rvi

ew
 & 

Sc
rut

iny
 R

ep
ort

 an
d a

va
ila

ble
 on

 th
e 

we
b. 

Th
e n

ew
 le

gis
lat

ion
 w

he
n 

ad
op

ted
, w

ill b
e t

he
 op

po
rtu

nit
y f

or 
the

 
Co

un
cil 

to 
res

tat
e i

ts 
po

sit
ion

, th
e n

ew
 

leg
isla

tio
n w

ill e
na

ble
 th

e C
ou

nc
il t

o 
aff

ec
tiv

ely
 ba

n l
ap

 da
nc

ing
 an

d 
str

ipt
ea

se
 in

 th
e B

oro
ug

h. 
  

He
ad

 of
 

Tra
din

g 
Sta

nd
ard

s /
 

En
vir

on
me

nta
l 

He
alt

h 
 Lic

en
sin

g 
Se

rvi
ce

s 
Ma

na
ge

r 
 

    ○ 
Au

g  
20

08
 

 ○ 
Se

pt 
20

08
 

 Th
e l

eg
isla

tiv
e c

ha
ng

es
 w

ill b
e 

co
ns

ult
ed

 up
on

. 
   

R9
 

Th
at 

res
ide

nts
 w

ith
in 

the
 cu

rre
nt 

40
m 

rad
ius

 fro
m 

an
y 

pre
mi

se
s t

ha
t a

re 
ap

ply
ing

 fo
r a

 
str

ipt
ea

se
 lic

en
se

 (in
 

ke
ep

ing
 w

ith
 th

e s
et 

lim
it f

or 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

 
for

 al
l ty

pe
s o

f li
ce

ns
e 

Co
mp

let
ed

 
Th

e p
roc

ed
ure

s a
re 

ex
pla

ine
d o

n t
he

 
Lic

en
sin

g W
eb

 pa
ge

. 
An

y e
nq

uir
ies

 ar
e d

ea
lt w

ith
 by

 w
ay

 of
 

a l
ett

er 
or 

the
 op

tio
n o

f a
 m

ee
tin

g w
ith

 
a l

ice
ns

ing
 of

fic
er.

 A 
co

mm
un

ica
tio

n 
pla

n w
ill b

e d
ep

en
de

nt 
on

 th
e c

ha
ng

e 
of 

leg
isla

tio
n a

s t
he

re 
is 

pro
po

se
d t

o 
be

 pr
ov

isio
n i

n t
he

 Ac
t fo

r L
oc

al 

He
ad

 of
 

Tra
din

g 
Sta

nd
ard

s /
 

En
vir

on
me

nta
l 

He
alt

h 
 Lic

en
sin

g 
Se

rvi
ce

s 
Ma

na
ge

r 

       ○ 
Se

pt 
20

08
 

 Co
mp

let
ed

 
       

Page 196



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n t
he
 Li
ce
ns
ing

 of
 St
rip
 C
lub

s –
 A
pp
en
dix

 2 
Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 O
ct 
20
09
 

Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 M
arc

h 2
01
0 

ap
pli

ca
tio

ns
) a

re 
giv

en
 de

tai
led

 
inf

orm
ati

on
 of

 w
ha

t 
the

y n
ee

d t
o d

o 
sh

ou
ld 

the
y w

ish
 to

 
ma

ke
 re

pre
se

nta
tio

ns
 

to 
ob

jec
t. I

n p
art

icu
lar

, 
it s

ho
uld

 be
 m

ad
e 

cle
ar 

tha
t o

bje
cti

on
s 

mu
st 

be
 fra

me
d w

ith
 

ref
ere

nc
e t

o t
he

 fo
ur 

Lic
en

sin
g O

bje
cti

ve
s, 

an
d n

ot 
un

de
r a

ny
 

oth
er 

arg
um

en
ts.

 
 

Au
tho

riti
es

 to
 se

t th
e n

um
be

r a
t N

IL.
 If 

thi
s o

cc
urs

 no
 co

mm
un

ica
tio

n p
lan

 w
ill 

be
 ne

ed
ed

 
 

  

R1
0  

Th
at 

the
 C

ou
nc

il 
co

ns
ide

rs 
wa

ys
 in

 
wh

ich
, fo

r s
trip

 cl
ub

s, 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

 ca
n b

e 
un

de
rta

ke
n o

n a
 

wid
er 

sc
ale

 th
an

 th
e 

cu
rre

nt 
40

m 
rad

ius
. 

 

Th
is 

ac
tio

n w
as

 su
pe

rse
de

d b
y t

he
 

pro
po

se
d c

ha
ng

e i
n l

eg
isla

tio
n w

hic
h i

s 
se

ek
ing

 to
 re

-de
sig

na
te 

lap
 da

nc
ing

 
an

d s
trip

tea
se

 ve
nu

es
 as

 se
x 

en
co

un
ter

 es
tab

lish
me

nts
. 

He
ad

 of
 

Tra
din

g 
Sta

nd
ard

s /
 

En
vir

on
me

nta
l 

He
alt

h 
 Lic

en
sin

g 
Se

rvi
ce

s 
Ma

na
ge

r 
 

 ○ 
Au

g 
20

08
 

○ 
Oc

t 2
00

8  
 ○ 

No
v 

20
08

 
 

 Co
mp

let
ed

. 
 Th

e l
eg

isla
tiv

e c
ha

ng
es

 w
ill  

be
 co

ns
ult

ed
 up

on
. 

 

Page 197



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n t
he
 Li
ce
ns
ing

 of
 St
rip
 C
lub

s –
 A
pp
en
dix

 2 
Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 O
ct 
20
09
 

Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 M
arc

h 2
01
0 

R1
1  

Th
at 

the
 po

ss
ibi

litie
s 

for
 re

fer
ral

 to
 th

e 
‘sa

tur
ati

on
’ p

oli
cy

 ar
e 

ex
plo

red
 fu

lly,
 to

 
ex

am
ine

 w
he

the
r th

is 
co

uld
 be

 ut
iliz

ed
 to

 
mi

nim
ise

 th
e n

um
be

r 
of 

clu
bs

 in
 th

e 
bo

rou
gh

. 
 

Th
e p

rop
os

als
 fo

r th
e S

ex
 En

co
un

ter
 

leg
isla

tio
n c

ha
ng

es
 ar

e l
ike

ly 
to 

giv
e 

the
 C

ou
nc

il t
he

 op
tio

n o
f li

mi
tin

g t
he

 
nu

mb
er 

of 
pre

mi
se

s h
old

ing
 st

rip
tea

se
 

or 
lap

 da
nc

ing
 in

 th
e B

oro
ug

h t
o N

il. 
 

He
ad

 of
 

Tra
din

g 
Sta

nd
ard

s /
 

En
vir

on
me

nta
l 

He
alt

h 
 Lic

en
sin

g 
Se

rvi
ce

s 
Ma

na
ge

r 
 

○ 
Au

g 
20

08
 

○ 
Oc

t 2
00

8 
 ○ 

No
v 

20
08

 
 ○ 

Ja
n 

20
09

 
 

Th
e l

eg
isla

tiv
e c

ha
ng

es
 co

uld
 

pro
vid

e a
n o

pti
on

 of
 re

str
ict

ing
 

nu
mb

ers
.  

       
R1
2  

Th
at 

the
 C

ou
nc

il’s
 

Eq
ua

litie
s T

ea
m 

pe
rfo

rm
s a

n E
QI

A o
n 

the
 lic

en
sin

g o
f s

trip
 

clu
bs

 fro
m 

the
 

pe
rsp

ec
tiv

e o
f 

ge
nd

er,
 to

 es
tab

lish
 

ev
ide

nc
e i

n s
up

po
rt o

f 
a m

ore
 as

se
rtiv

e 
ap

pro
ac

h t
o l

ice
ns

ing
 

an
d e

xp
lor

e o
the

r 
op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r le

ga
l 

ch
all

en
ge

 (s
ee

 
rec

om
me

nd
ati

on
 3)

. 
 

      Th
is 

EIA
 w

as
 no

t in
 th

e C
LC

 
Dir

ec
tor

ate
 pr

og
ram

. 
EQ

IA 
ha

s n
ot 

ye
t ta

ke
n p

lac
e; 

it i
s o

n 
ho

ld 
pe

nd
ing

 th
e o

utc
om

e o
f th

e S
ex

 
Es

tab
lish

me
nt 

leg
isla

tio
n. 

 

He
ad

 of
 

Tra
din

g 
Sta

nd
ard

s /
 

En
vir

on
me

nta
l 

He
alt

h 
 Div

ers
ity

 an
d 

Eq
ua

lity
 

Co
ord

ina
tor

 

     Ju
ne

 20
08

 
 Oc

tob
er 

20
08

 
 Ma

rch
 20

09
 

  

   Th
e l

eg
isla

tiv
e c

ha
ng

es
 w

ill 
pro

vid
e f

urt
he

r o
pp

ort
un

itie
s 

for
 th

is 
ac

tio
n. 

   Th
e l

eg
isla

tiv
e c

ha
ng

es
 w

ill 
pro

vid
e f

urt
he

r o
pp

ort
un

itie
s 

for
 th

is 
ac

tio
n. 

R1
3  

Th
at 

the
 C

ou
nc

il 
se

ek
s t

o l
ob

by
 

go
ve

rnm
en

t to
 

ch
an

ge
 pr

im
ary

 

Th
is 

ha
s b

ee
n d

on
e. 

Th
e O

ve
rvi

ew
 & 

Sc
rut

iny
 re

po
rt w

as
 in

clu
de

d i
n o

ur 
res

po
ns

e. 
LB

TH
 m

et 
wit

h (
at 

the
 tim

e) 
Mi

nis
ter

 Ve
rno

n C
ok

er 
to 

pre
se

nt 
the

 

He
ad

 of
 

Tra
din

g 
Sta

nd
ard

s /
 

En
vir

on
me

nta
l 

○ 
Ju

l 2
00

8 
 ○ 

Au
g 

20
08

 

Co
mp

let
e. 

Th
e l

eg
isla

tiv
e c

ha
ng

es
 ha

ve
 

ha
pp

en
ed

. 
 

Page 198



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n t
he
 Li
ce
ns
ing

 of
 St
rip
 C
lub

s –
 A
pp
en
dix

 2 
Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 O
ct 
20
09
 

Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 M
arc

h 2
01
0 

leg
isla

tio
n (

as
 se

t o
ut 

in 
the

 Li
ce

ns
ing

 Ac
t 

20
03

) s
o t

ha
t s

trip
 

clu
bs

 ca
n b

e 
cla

ss
ifie

d a
s s

ex
 

en
co

un
ter

 
es

tab
lish

me
nts

. 
 

LB
TH

 ca
se

. D
raf

t le
gis

lat
ion

 ha
s n

ow
 

be
en

 pr
od

uc
ed

 w
hic

h w
ill r

ec
las

sif
y 

str
ipt

ea
se

 an
d l

ap
 da

nc
ing

 as
 Se

x 
En

co
un

ter
 es

tab
lish

me
nts

. 
 

He
alt

h 
 Lic

en
sin

g 
Se

rvi
ce

s 
Ma

na
ge

r 
 

○ 
Se

pt 
20

08
 

    Co
mp

let
e. 

Th
e l

eg
isla

tiv
e c

ha
ng

es
 ha

ve
 

ha
pp

en
ed

. 
 

R1
4  

Th
at 

the
 C

ou
nc

il 
ho

sts
 a 

pa
n-L

on
do

n 
ev

en
t (w

ith
 th

e 
su

pp
ort

 of
 O

BJ
EC

T) 
to 

en
ga

ge
 w

ith
 ot

he
r 

co
mm

un
itie

s a
nd

 ge
t 

gre
ate

r le
ve

ls 
of 

su
pp

ort
 an

d 
co

op
era

tio
n i

n t
he

se
 

att
em

pts
 to

 lo
bb

y 
go

ve
rnm

en
t. 

Dr
aft

 le
gis

lat
ion

 ha
s n

ow
 be

en
 

pro
du

ce
d w

hic
h w

ill r
ec

las
sif

y 
str

ipt
ea

se
 an

d l
ap

 da
nc

ing
 as

 Se
x 

En
co

un
ter

 es
tab

lish
me

nts
.  

 Th
is 

ac
tio

n w
as

 lin
ke

d t
o R

13
. T

he
 

ev
en

t is
 no

t n
ec

es
sa

ry 
 

He
ad

 of
 

Tra
din

g 
Sta

nd
ard

s /
 

En
vir

on
me

nta
l 

He
alt

h 
 Lic

en
sin

g 
Se

rvi
ce

s 
Ma

na
ge

r 

    ○ 
Oc

t 2
00

8  
 ○ 

Fe
b 

20
09

 

Co
mp

let
e. 

Th
e l

eg
isla

tiv
e c

ha
ng

es
 ha

ve
 

ha
pp

en
ed

. 
 

 

Page 199



 Sc
ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n C

ho
ice
 B
as
ed
 Le

ttin
gs
 – 
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
3 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 N
ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 Fe

br
ua
ry 
20
10
 

R1
.Th

at 
res

ea
rch

 is
 

un
de

rta
ke

n t
o i

de
nti

fy 
wh

eth
er 

bid
din

g h
ab

its
 

are
 ba

se
d o

n p
os

itiv
e 

att
rib

ute
s o

r c
on

str
ain

ing
 

fac
tor

s a
nd

 to
 id

en
tify

 
the

 ab
ility

 of
 th

e s
ys

tem
 

to 
wo

rk 
wit

h d
iffe

ren
t 

co
mm

un
ity

 ne
ed

s t
o 

ide
nti

fy 
ho

w 
far

 C
BL

 
pro

mo
tes

 or
 ot

he
rw

ise
 

co
mm

un
ity

 co
he

sio
n; 

 
 

Th
e r

ev
iew

 of
 th

e L
ett

ing
s P

oli
cy

 
un

de
rta

ke
n t

his
 ye

ar 
ha

s p
rod

uc
ed

 
pro

po
sa

ls 
for

 a 
ne

w 
Le

ttin
gs

 Po
licy

 in
 

lin
e w

ith
 R

10
. T

he
 re

vie
w 

ha
s 

co
nc

lud
ed

 th
at 

the
 pr

es
en

t p
oli

cy
 on

 
bid

din
g i

s u
nh

elp
ful

 an
d g

en
era

tes
 

ne
ga

tiv
e b

idd
ing

 be
ha

vio
ur.

 C
ha

ng
es

 
are

 pr
op

os
ed

 to
 cu

rre
nt 

po
licy

 on
 

bid
din

g. 
   

 Th
e p

rop
os

ed
 ne

w 
Le

ttin
gs

 Po
licy

 is
 

ab
ou

t to
 un

de
rgo

 pu
bli

c &
 st

ak
eh

old
er 

co
ns

ult
ati

on
 be

for
e f

ina
l p

rop
os

als
 ar

e 
pu

t to
 C

ab
ine

t fo
r d

ec
isio

n o
n a

 ne
w 

Le
ttin

gs
 Po

licy
 ea

rly
 ne

xt 
ye

ar.
  F

oc
us

 
gro

up
s a

nd
 co

ns
ult

ati
on

 w
ith

 vo
lun

tar
y 

an
d s

tat
uto

ry 
ag

en
cie

s f
orm

 pa
rt o

f th
e 

co
ns

ult
ati

on
.   

 An
aly

sis
 of

 bi
dd

ing
 

pa
tte

rns
 by

 et
hn

icit
y w

ill b
e p

art
 of

 th
e 

EQ
IA 

tha
t w

ill b
e f

orm
 pa

rt o
f th

e f
ina

l 
rep

ort
 to

 C
ab

ine
t. 

Ma
rch

 20
10

 
Th

e r
ev

iew
 of

 th
e l

ett
ing

s p
oli

cy
 ca

rrie
d o

ut 
du

rin
g 2

00
9 c

on
clu

de
d t

ha
t th

e p
res

en
t p

oli
cy

 
on

 bi
dd

ing
 is

 un
he

lpf
ul 

an
d g

en
era

tes
 

ne
ga

tiv
e b

idd
ing

 be
ha

vio
ur.

  T
his

 w
as

 la
rge

ly 
be

ca
us

e i
t a

llo
we

d u
nli

mi
ted

 bi
dd

ing
 fo

r a
ny

 
siz

e p
rop

ert
y r

eg
ard

les
s o

f th
e h

ou
se

ho
ld 

siz
e o

f th
e a

pp
lica

nt.
  P

rop
os

als
 on

 ch
an

ge
s 

to 
po

licy
 in

 re
lat

ion
 to

 bi
dd

ing
 w

ere
 de

ve
lop

ed
 

an
d p

ut 
to 

pu
bli

c a
nd

 st
ak

eh
old

er 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

.   
Th

e c
on

su
lta

tio
n s

up
po

rte
d t

he
 

pro
po

sa
ls.

    
  Th

e n
ew

 Le
ttin

gs
 Po

licy
 de

ve
lop

ed
 fro

m 
the

 
rev

iew
 an

d t
he

 co
ns

ult
ati

on
 w

ill b
e p

ut 
to 

Ma
rch

 10
 20

10
 C

ab
ine

t fo
r d

ec
isio

n. 
  T

he
 

po
licy

 in
clu

de
s c

ha
ng

es
 on

 bi
dd

ing
 th

at 
are

 
de

sig
ne

d t
o i

ntr
od

uc
e m

ore
 ra

tio
na

l b
idd

ing
 

be
ha

vio
ur 

an
d e

nc
ou

rag
e a

pp
lica

nts
 to

 m
ak

e 
po

sit
ive

 ch
oic

es
 by

 re
mo

vin
g t

he
 ab

ility
 to

 bi
d 

for
 an

y s
ize

 re
ga

rdl
es

s o
f n

ee
d a

nd
 to

 
int

rod
uc

e a
 m

ax
im

um
 of

 5 
bid

s p
er 

ap
pli

ca
nt 

pe
r w

ee
kly

 cy
cle

.   
   

 On
ce

 th
e p

oli
cy

 is
 in

 pl
ac

e, 
  b

idd
ing

 
be

ha
vio

ur 
wil

l n
ee

d t
o b

e m
on

ito
red

 as
 pa

rt o
f 

the
 im

ple
me

nta
tio

n o
f th

e n
ew

 po
licy

 , i
n 

pa
rtic

ula
r to

 en
su

re 
tha

t a
ll g

rou
ps

 in
 th

e 

Page 200



Sc
ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n C

ho
ice
 B
as
ed
 Le

ttin
gs
 – 
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
3 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 N
ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 Fe

br
ua
ry 
20
10
 

co
mm

un
ity

 un
de

rst
an

d a
nd

 en
ga

ge
 

eff
ec

tiv
ely

 w
ith

 th
e b

idd
ing

 pr
oc

es
s. 

.  
R2

.Th
at 

a f
ull

 Eq
ua

lity
 

Im
pa

ct 
As

se
ss

me
nt 

of 
CB

L i
s u

nd
ert

ak
en

 in
 

20
09

/20
10

 in
clu

din
g 

giv
ing

 co
ns

ide
rat

ion
 to

 
im

pa
ct 

on
 co

mm
un

ity
 

co
he

sio
n; 

 

Th
e p

rop
os

als
 fo

r a
 ne

w 
Le

ttin
gs

 Po
licy

 
ha

ve
 be

en
 su

bje
ct 

to 
an

 EQ
IA.

  T
he

 
ini

tia
l a

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f th

e p
rop

os
als

 
do

es
 no

t in
dic

ate
 a 

ne
ga

tiv
e i

mp
ac

t 
up

on
 an

y g
rou

p. 
Fu

rth
er 

as
se

ss
me

nt 
of 

eq
ua

litie
s i

mp
ac

t o
f th

e p
rop

os
als

 w
ill 

be
 un

de
rta

ke
n a

s p
art

 of
 th

e 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

 pr
oc

es
s. 

Th
e r

es
ult

s o
f th

e 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

 in
 re

lat
ion

 to
 eq

ua
litie

s 
im

pa
ct 

as
se

ss
me

nt 
iss

ue
 w

ill f
orm

 pa
rt 

of 
the

 fin
al 

rep
ort

 to
 C

ab
ine

t fo
r 

de
cis

ion
 on

 a 
ne

w 
Le

ttin
gs

 Po
licy

. 
 

Ma
rch

 20
10

 
 

Th
e p

rop
os

als
 fo

r a
 ne

w 
Le

ttin
gs

 Po
licy

 ha
ve

 
be

en
 su

bje
ct 

to 
an

 EQ
IA.

  In
 pa

rtic
ula

r th
e 

im
pa

ct 
of 

giv
ing

 pr
efe

ren
ce

 in
 da

te 
ord

er 
wit

hin
 a 

ba
nd

 w
as

 ex
am

ine
d i

n r
ela

tio
n t

o 
eth

nic
ity

 to
 en

su
re 

tha
t th

is 
pro

ce
ss

 di
d n

ot 
dis

ad
va

nta
ge

 or
 gi

ve
 an

 un
fai

r a
dv

an
tag

e t
o 

an
y g

rou
p. 

  T
he

 as
se

ss
me

nt 
did

 no
t id

en
tify

 
an

y s
uc

h i
mp

ac
ts.

   
 Th

e p
ub

lic 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

 ex
erc

ise
 on

 th
e 

pro
po

se
d n

ew
 le

ttin
gs

 po
licy

 re
ce

ive
d a

 hi
gh

 
lev

el 
of 

res
po

ns
es

 in
 su

pp
ort

 of
 th

e p
rop

os
als

.  
Th

es
e r

es
po

ns
es

 w
ere

 m
on

ito
red

 ac
ros

s a
ll 

the
 eq

ua
lity

 st
ran

ds
.   

Alt
ho

ug
h t

he
re 

we
re 

so
me

 di
ffe

ren
ce

s i
de

nti
fie

d i
n l

ev
els

 of
 

su
pp

ort
, th

ere
 w

ere
 no

 si
gn

ific
an

t v
ari

ati
on

s 
fro

m 
the

 ov
era

ll le
ve

l o
f s

up
po

rt e
xp

res
se

d b
y 

tho
se

 w
ho

 re
sp

on
de

d. 
   I

n p
art

icu
lar

, th
e 

pro
po

sa
ls 

to 
giv

e p
ref

ere
nc

e i
n t

he
 fo

ur 
ne

w 
ba

nd
s t

o a
pp

lica
nts

 w
ait

ing
 lo

ng
es

t in
 th

e 
ba

nd
 re

ce
ive

d v
ery

 hi
gh

 le
ve

ls 
of 

su
pp

ort
 fro

m 
the

 pu
bli

c a
nd

 ap
pli

ca
nts

 on
 th

e H
ou

sin
g L

ist
. 

R3
.Th

at 
wo

rk 
is 

de
ve

lop
ed

  
to 

ad
dre

ss
 th

e i
ss

ue
 of

 
the

 la
ck

 of
 tra

ns
pa

ren
cy

 
in 

de
cis

ion
 m

ak
ing

 to
 

Le
ttin

gs
 in

for
ma

tio
n i

s n
ow

 be
ing

 
pu

bli
sh

ed
 re

gu
lar

ly 
as

 w
ell

 as
 m

on
thl

y 
su

pp
ly 

an
d d

em
an

d d
ata

.   
   

 

Ma
rch

 20
10

 
 

Th
e n

ew
 le

ttin
gs

 po
licy

 is
 de

sig
ne

d t
o b

e a
 

sim
ple

r a
nd

 cl
ea

rer
 m

eth
od

 of
 pr

ior
itis

ing
 

ap
pli

ca
nts

.   
 Th

is 
is 

ac
hie

ve
d b

y h
av

ing
 4 

ba
nd

s s
ep

ara
ted

 in
to 

hig
h t

o l
ow

er 
lev

el 
of 

Page 201



Sc
ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n C

ho
ice
 B
as
ed
 Le

ttin
gs
 – 
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
3 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 N
ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 Fe

br
ua
ry 
20
10
 

im
pro

ve
 co

mm
un

ity
 

un
de

rst
an

din
g a

nd
 

ex
pe

cta
tio

ns
 of

 C
BL

, 
inc

lud
ing

 co
mm

un
ica

tin
g 

po
sit

ive
 st

ori
es

 to
 th

e 
co

mm
un

ity
 to

 ad
dre

ss
 

pe
rce

pti
on

s o
f u

nfa
ir 

co
mm

un
ity

 le
ts,

 
ch

an
gin

g t
he

 po
licy

 to
 

all
ow

 2 
bid

s o
nly

 pe
r 

ap
pli

ca
nt 

pe
r b

idd
ing

 
cy

cle
, re

pla
cin

g t
he

 
co

up
on

 sy
ste

m;
 

 
 

 

Ad
ve

rtis
ing

 of
 pr

op
ert

ies
 w

he
re 

pre
fer

en
ce

 is
 to

 be
 gi

ve
n m

ay
 no

t b
e 

ne
ce

ss
ary

 un
de

r th
e p

rop
os

ed
 ne

w 
Le

ttin
gs

 Po
licy

 al
tho

ug
h t

his
 is

 st
ill 

be
ing

 co
ns

ide
red

.  
 Th

e n
ew

 po
licy

 pr
op

os
als

 re
co

mm
en

d 
ch

an
ge

s t
o b

idd
ing

 po
licy

 w
ith

 a 
vie

w 
to 

en
co

ura
gin

g l
es

s b
idd

ing
 in

 vo
lum

e a
nd

 
mo

re 
rat

ion
al 

ch
oic

e b
ein

g e
xe

rci
se

d. 
 

Th
e p

res
en

t p
oli

cy
 do

es
 no

t e
nc

ou
rag

e 
thi

s. 
 An

aly
sis

 of
 us

e o
f c

ou
po

ns
 ha

s 
be

en
 ca

rrie
d o

ut 
  in

clu
din

g a
 su

rve
y o

f 
co

up
on

 us
ers

.   
Te

lep
ho

ne
 an

d i
nte

rne
t b

idd
ing

 
fac

iliti
es

 ha
ve

 be
en

 pr
ov

ide
d a

t O
ne

 
Sto

p S
ho

ps
 w

hic
h c

an
 be

 us
ed

 fre
e o

f 
ch

arg
e. 

 Tr
ain

ing
 ha

s b
ee

n m
ad

e 
av

ail
ab

le 
for

 ap
pli

ca
nts

 to
 us

e t
he

se
 

op
tio

ns
.  

 Int
ern

et 
an

d t
ele

ph
on

e b
idd

ing
 ha

s 
the

ref
ore

 in
cre

as
ed

.  C
urr

en
tly

 65
% 

of 
ap

pli
ca

nts
 w

ho
 bi

d r
eg

ula
rly

 bi
d o

nli
ne

, 
22

% 
by

 te
lep

ho
ne

. 
 

pri
ori

ty.
  A

pp
lica

nts
 w

ill b
id 

for
 ad

ve
rtis

ed
 

pro
pe

rty
 bu

t w
ith

in 
bid

din
g r

ule
s t

ha
t w

ill 
en

co
ura

ge
 pr

op
er 

ex
erc

ise
 of

 ch
oic

e a
s 

op
po

se
d t

o t
he

 “s
ca

tte
r g

un
” a

pp
roa

ch
 

en
co

ura
ge

 un
de

r th
e e

xis
tin

g p
oli

cy
.  

Pr
efe

ren
ce

 in
 ea

ch
 ba

nd
 w

ill b
e g

ive
n i

n d
ate

 
ord

er 
of 

en
try

 to
 th

e b
an

d. 
    

De
cis

ion
s t

o 
ma

ke
 of

fer
s w

ill b
e o

n s
im

ple
r, c

lea
rer

 ba
sis

 
tha

t w
ill b

e s
ee

n a
s f

air
er.

  
 Th

e n
ew

 po
licy

 w
ill t

he
ref

ore
 m

ak
e i

t m
uc

h 
ea

sie
r to

 ex
pla

in 
an

d d
efe

nd
 th

e w
ay

 sc
arc

e 
ho

me
s a

re 
all

oc
ate

d t
o i

nd
ivid

ua
l a

pp
lica

nts
 

an
d t

he
 co

mm
un

ity
 at

 la
rge

.  
 Th

e n
ew

 po
licy

 do
cu

me
nt 

ha
s a

lso
 be

en
 

wr
itte

n t
o s

et 
ou

t a
s c

lea
rly

 as
 po

ss
ibl

e h
ow

 
ch

oic
e b

as
ed

 le
ttin

gs
 w

ork
s. 

 Th
is 

inc
lud

es
 

ex
pla

na
tio

n o
n t

he
 us

e o
f ta

rge
ts 

an
d a

n 
an

nu
al 

Le
ttin

gs
 Pl

an
.   

It m
ak

es
 cl

ea
r th

at 
wh

ere
 ta

rge
ts 

are
 ap

pli
ed

, th
is 

wil
l b

e d
on

e b
y 

ad
ve

rtis
ing

 pr
op

ert
ies

 to
 ce

rta
in 

gro
up

s o
nly

 in
 

ord
er 

to 
be

 as
 tra

ns
pa

ren
t a

s p
os

sib
le 

ab
ou

t 
ho

w 
de

cis
ion

s a
re 

be
ing

 m
ad

e. 
    

 
 De

ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
the

 IT
 de

live
ry 

ve
hic

le 
is 

no
w 

un
de

r c
on

sid
era

tio
n i

n o
rde

r to
 m

ak
e t

he
 

pro
ce

ss
 as

 cu
sto

me
r fr

ien
dly

 as
 po

ss
ibl

e, 
  

Page 202



Sc
ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n C

ho
ice
 B
as
ed
 Le

ttin
gs
 – 
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
3 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 N
ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 Fe

br
ua
ry 
20
10
 

an
d t

o p
rov

ide
 in

for
ma

tio
n o

n b
idd

ing
 hi

sto
ry,

 
ap

pli
ca

nts
’ p

os
itio

n i
n t

he
 qu

eu
e a

nd
 

ex
ten

sio
n o

f m
eth

od
s f

or 
bid

din
g t

o e
ns

ure
 al

l 
me

mb
ers

 of
 th

e c
om

mu
nit

y c
an

 pa
rtic

ipa
te 

ful
ly.

    
 Ia

n i
mp

ort
an

t a
im

 is
 th

at 
wh

en
 

ap
pli

ca
nts

 ha
ve

 re
gu

lar
 ac

ce
ss

 to
 th

eir
 qu

eu
e 

po
sit

ion
, th

ey
 w

ill b
e a

ble
 to

 bi
d o

r c
ho

os
e n

ot 
to 

on
 a 

be
tte

r in
for

me
d a

nd
 m

ore
 ra

tio
na

l 
ba

sis
 th

an
 at

 th
e m

om
en

t w
he

re 
a u

niv
ers

al 
pra

cti
ce

 is
 to

 bi
d f

or 
ev

ery
thi

ng
 re

ga
rdl

es
s. 

 
Th

e c
on

su
lta

tio
n e

xe
rci

se
 pr

od
uc

ed
 

res
po

ns
es

 fro
m 

ap
pli

ca
nts

 th
at 

ind
ica

ted
 th

ey
 

did
 th

is 
be

ca
us

e t
he

 sy
ste

m 
all

ow
ed

 th
em

 to
 

an
d w

as
 no

t a
 m

ea
nin

gfu
l e

xe
rci

se
 fo

r th
em

.   
  

 Le
ttin

gs
 in

for
ma

tio
n i

s n
ow

 be
ing

 pu
bli

sh
ed

 
reg

ula
rly

 as
 w

ell
 as

 m
on

thl
y s

up
ply

 an
d 

de
ma

nd
 da

ta.
    

  
 An

aly
sis

 of
 us

e o
f c

ou
po

ns
 ha

s b
ee

n c
arr

ied
 

ou
t   

inc
lud

ing
 a 

su
rve

y o
f c

ou
po

n u
se

rs.
   

Te
lep

ho
ne

 an
d i

nte
rne

t b
idd

ing
 fa

cili
tie

s a
re 

pro
vid

ed
 at

 O
ne

 St
op

 Sh
op

s w
hic

h c
an

 be
 us

  
R4

. T
ha

t s
erv

ice
 

im
pro

ve
me

nt 
ac

tiv
itie

s 
are

 de
ve

lop
ed

 ba
se

d o
n 

the
 fe

ed
ba

ck
 ob

tai
ne

d 
fro

m 
the

 us
ers

 an
d 

Th
e a

pp
lica

tio
n f

orm
 ha

s b
ee

n r
ev

ise
d 

to 
co

lle
ct 

mo
re 

inf
orm

ati
on

 on
 

dis
ab

iliti
es

 an
d s

up
po

rt n
ee

ds
.   

 W
ork

 is
 in

 pr
og

res
s o

n u
pg

rad
ing

 th
e  

Fe
bru

ary
 20

10
 

Th
e a

pp
lica

tio
n f

orm
 ha

s b
ee

n r
ev

ise
d t

o 
co

lle
ct 

mo
re 

inf
orm

ati
on

 on
 di

sa
bil

itie
s a

nd
 

su
pp

ort
 ne

ed
s. 

  
 An

 up
gra

de
 on

 th
e H

om
es

ee
ke

rs 
we

bs
ite

 is
 

Page 203



Sc
ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n C

ho
ice
 B
as
ed
 Le

ttin
gs
 – 
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
3 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 N
ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 Fe

br
ua
ry 
20
10
 

pro
vid

ers
 se

rvi
ce

 
im

pro
ve

me
nt 

foc
us

 
gro

up
 w

ith
 pa

rtic
ula

r 
foc

us
 on

 im
pro

vin
g 

ac
ce

ss
 fo

r th
os

e w
ho

 
ha

ve
 se

ns
ory

 di
sa

bil
itie

s 
an

d i
mp

rov
ing

 cu
sto

me
r 

un
de

rst
an

din
g o

f C
BL

 
 

Ho
me

se
ek

ers
 w

eb
sit

e. 
 Lit

era
tur

e n
ow

 co
nta

ins
 in

for
ma

tio
n 

an
d c

on
tac

t d
eta

ils 
for

 th
os

e w
ho

 ne
ed

 
as

sis
tan

ce
 w

ith
 bi

dd
ing

.  
 

be
ing

 co
mm

iss
ion

ed
 su

bje
ct 

to 
fin

al 
co

nfi
rm

ati
on

 of
 po

ten
tia

l c
os

ts 
sa

vin
gs

 th
at 

wil
l 

he
lp 

fun
d t

he
 co

sts
 of

 th
e u

pg
rad

e. 
   

 Lit
era

tur
e n

ow
 co

nta
ins

 in
for

ma
tio

n a
nd

 
co

nta
ct 

de
tai

ls 
for

 th
os

e w
ho

 ne
ed

 as
sis

tan
ce

 
wit

h b
idd

ing
.  

 
R5

. T
ha

t L
BT

H 
joi

ns
 th

e 
Ea

st 
Lo

nd
on

 Le
ttin

gs
 

co
mp

an
y s

ub
jec

t to
 a 

ful
l fe

as
ibi

lity
 st

ud
y o

f 
wh

at 
EL

LC
 ca

n o
ffe

r to
 

LB
TH

 re
sid

en
ts;

  
 

Th
is 

ha
s n

ot 
ye

t b
ee

n a
ch

iev
ed

.   
  

Ho
we

ve
r, 2

9 J
uly

 C
ab

ine
t a

gre
ed

 
co

mp
reh

en
siv

e p
rop

os
als

 fo
r a

 ne
w 

Le
ttin

gs
 Po

licy
 to

 be
 pu

t to
 fu

ll p
ub

lic 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

.   
A f

ina
l re

po
rt t

o C
ab

ine
t 

is 
an

tic
ipa

ted
 in

 ea
rly

 20
10

 w
ith

 
im

ple
me

nta
tio

n o
f th

e n
ew

 po
licy

 to
 

fol
low

 fro
m 

Ap
ril 

20
10

. 
  As

 pa
rt o

f th
e f

orw
ard

 pl
an

nin
g f

or 
im

ple
me

nta
tio

n f
or 

the
 ne

w 
po

licy
 an

d 
for

 th
e n

ec
es

sa
ry 

IT 
ad

jus
tm

en
ts 

to 
be

 
ma

de
,  f

ea
sib

ility
 of

 jo
ini

ng
 EL

LC
 w

ill b
e 

co
ns

ide
red

 or
 w

he
the

r d
ev

elo
pm

en
t o

f 
ex

ist
ing

 IT
 pr

ov
isio

n c
an

 pr
ov

ide
 

su
ffic

ien
t fa

cili
ty 

to 
pro

vid
e a

nd
 

eq
uiv

ale
nt 

lev
el 

of 
se

rvi
ce

.   

Ma
rch

  2
01

0  
 As

 pa
rt o

f th
e p

rep
ara

tio
n a

nd
 fo

rw
ard

 
pla

nn
ing

 fo
r im

ple
me

nta
tio

n f
or 

the
 ne

w 
po

licy
 

in 
rel

ati
on

 to
 IT

 ad
jus

tm
en

ts 
tha

t w
ill b

e 
ne

ed
ed

, fe
as

ibi
lity

 of
 jo

ini
ng

 EL
LC

 is
 be

ing
 

ev
alu

ate
d o

r w
he

the
r d

ev
elo

pm
en

t o
f e

xis
tin

g 
IT 

pro
vis

ion
 ca

n p
rov

ide
 su

ffic
ien

t fa
cili

ty 
to 

pro
vid

e a
n e

qu
iva

len
t le

ve
l o

f s
erv

ice
.   

  

R6
. T

ha
t a

 Lo
ca

l L
ett

ing
s 

Pla
n i

s a
do

pte
d f

or 
all

 
On

ce
 th

e c
on

su
lta

tio
n p

eri
od

 on
 th

e 
ne

w 
Le

ttin
gs

 Po
licy

 ha
s e

nd
ed

, a
 re

po
rt 

By
  M

ay
 20

10
 

Th
e n

ew
 le

ttin
gs

 po
licy

 th
at 

wil
l g

o t
o C

ab
ine

t 
for

 de
cis

ion
 ea

rly
 in

 20
10

 w
ill i

nc
lud

e p
rov

isio
n 

Page 204



Sc
ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n C

ho
ice
 B
as
ed
 Le

ttin
gs
 – 
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
3 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 N
ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 Fe

br
ua
ry 
20
10
 

ne
w 

de
ve

lop
me

nts
 of

 20
 

un
its

 or
 m

ore
 af

for
da

ble
 

ho
me

s t
o p

rom
ote

 
mi

xe
d t

en
ure

, m
ixe

d 
co

mm
un

itie
s a

nd
 

su
sta

ina
ble

 ho
us

ing
 an

d 
de

live
rin

g p
rio

rity
 fo

r 
ad

ult
 ch

ild
ren

 of
 ex

ist
ing

 
so

cia
l te

na
nts

 by
 se

ttin
g 

a s
pe

cif
ic 

pro
po

rtio
n f

or 
thi

s g
rou

p; 

wil
l g

o t
o C

ab
ine

t fo
r d

ec
isio

n e
arl

y i
n 

20
10

   T
he

 ne
w 

po
licy

 w
ill i

nc
lud

e 
pro

vis
ion

 fo
r lo

ca
l le

ttin
gs

 pl
an

 to
 be

 
ag

ree
d w

he
n a

pp
rop

ria
te.

   

for
 lo

ca
l le

ttin
gs

 pl
an

 to
 be

 ag
ree

d w
he

n 
ap

pro
pri

ate
.   

         
R7

. T
ha

t a
n o

pe
n, 

no
n-

dis
cri

mi
na

tor
y S

on
s a

nd
 

Da
ug

hte
rs 

po
licy

 be
 

co
ns

ide
red

 fo
r a

do
pti

on
 

as
 pa

rt o
f th

e n
ew

 
let

tin
gs

 po
licy

 an
d a

s 
pa

rt o
f th

e C
ou

nc
il’s

 
aff

ord
ab

le 
ho

me
s p

oli
cy

;  
 

Th
e p

rop
os

ed
 ne

w 
Le

ttin
gs

 Po
licy

 
co

nta
ins

 th
ree

 el
em

en
ts 

in 
rel

ati
on

 to
 

ex
ten

din
g c

urr
en

t s
on

s &
 da

ug
hte

r’s
 

po
licy

.  
    1. 

A p
rop

os
al 

to 
red

uc
e t

he
 le

ve
l o

f 
ov

erc
row

din
g i

n a
 ho

us
eh

old
 fo

r a
 

so
n o

r d
au

gh
ter

 of
 ex

ist
ing

 te
na

nt 
to 

qu
ali

fy 
for

 in
de

pe
nd

en
t re

ho
us

ing
 

as
 th

e p
res

en
t le

ve
l is

 co
ns

ide
red

 
un

rea
so

na
bly

 hi
gh

.  
 2. 

A n
ew

 pr
ov

isio
n t

o r
eh

ou
se

 an
 ad

ult
 

so
n o

r d
au

gh
ter

 of
 ex

ist
ing

 te
na

nts
 

wh
ere

 th
e t

en
an

t a
lso

 w
ish

es
 to

 
mo

ve
 to

 a 
sm

all
er 

pro
pe

rty
.   

Th
e  

ou
tco

me
 w

ou
ld 

res
ult

 in
 an

 un
de

r 

Ma
rch

 20
10

 
Th

e n
ew

 le
ttin

gs
 po

licy
 go

ing
 to

 C
ab

ine
t 

co
nta

ins
 th

ree
 el

em
en

ts 
in 

rel
ati

on
 to

 
ex

ten
din

g c
urr

en
t s

on
s &

 da
ug

hte
rs 

po
licy

.  
    3. 

Th
e n

ew
 po

licy
 co

nta
ins

 an
 am

en
dm

en
t to

 
the

 ex
ist

ing
 sp

ec
ial

 qu
ota

s i
n C

om
mu

nit
y 

Gr
ou

p 2
 w

he
re 

for
 hi

gh
ly 

ov
erc

row
de

d 
ho

us
eh

old
s t

he
re 

is 
pro

vis
ion

 to
 re

ho
us

e 
an

d a
du

lt s
on

 or
 da

ug
hte

r s
ep

ara
tel

y t
o 

rel
iev

e t
he

 ov
erc

row
din

g. 
   T

he
 ch

an
ge

 
wil

l re
du

ce
 th

e l
ev

el 
of 

ov
erc

row
din

g i
n a

 
ho

us
eh

old
 fo

r a
 so

n o
r d

au
gh

ter
 of

 ex
ist

ing
 

ten
an

t to
 qu

ali
fy 

for
 in

de
pe

nd
en

t re
ho

us
ing

 
as

 th
e p

res
en

t le
ve

l is
 co

ns
ide

red
 

un
rea

so
na

bly
 hi

gh
.  T

his
 sp

ec
ial

 qu
ota

 w
ill 

in 
fut

ure
 be

 in
 Ba

nd
 1 

(G
rou

p B
)   

 
 

Page 205



Sc
ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n C

ho
ice
 B
as
ed
 Le

ttin
gs
 – 
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
3 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 N
ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 Fe

br
ua
ry 
20
10
 

oc
cu

pa
tio

n m
ov

e a
nd

 re
lea

se
 a 

lar
ge

r p
rop

ert
y f

or 
let

tin
g t

o a
no

the
r 

ho
us

eh
old

 
 A p

erc
en

tag
e o

f a
va

ila
ble

 ho
us

ing
 to

 be
 

se
t a

sid
e a

nn
ua

lly 
for

 so
ns

 & 
da

ug
hte

rs 
of 

ten
an

ts 
of 

Co
mm

on
 H

ou
sin

g 
Re

gis
ter

 pa
rtn

ers
 w

he
re 

the
y w

ou
ld 

no
t 

qu
ali

fy 
for

 ho
us

ing
 th

rou
gh

 an
y o

the
r 

ca
teg

ory
 in

 th
e p

oli
cy

.   
In 

ord
er 

to 
co

mp
ly 

wit
h l

eg
isla

tio
n a

nd
 C

LG
 C

od
e 

of 
Gu

ida
nc

e t
his

 pe
rce

nta
ge

 is
 

ex
pe

cte
d t

o b
e m

od
es

t, b
ut 

wil
l b

e 
de

cid
ed

 up
on

 by
 C

ab
ine

t w
he

n s
ett

ing
 

tar
ge

ts 
as

 pa
rt o

f th
e a

nn
ua

l L
ett

ing
s 

Pla
n. 

4. 
Th

e n
ew

 po
licy

 co
nta

ins
 an

 ad
dit

ion
 to

 th
e 

ex
ist

ing
 sp

ec
ial

 qu
ota

s i
n C

om
mu

nit
y 

Gr
ou

p 2
.  T

his
 is

 a 
ne

w 
pro

vis
ion

 to
 

reh
ou

se
 an

 ad
ult

 so
n o

r d
au

gh
ter

 of
 

ex
ist

ing
 te

na
nts

 w
he

re 
the

 te
na

nt 
als

o 
wis

he
s t

o m
ov

e t
o a

 sm
all

er 
pro

pe
rty

 if 
thi

s 
wo

uld
 re

su
lt i

n a
 ne

t g
ain

 in
 be

dro
om

s. 
  

Th
is 

wo
uld

 ac
hie

ve
 an

 un
de

r o
cc

up
ati

on
 

mo
ve

 an
d r

ele
as

e a
 la

rge
r p

rop
ert

y f
or 

let
tin

g t
o a

no
the

r h
ou

se
ho

ld.
  T

his
 sp

ec
ial

 
qu

ota
 gr

ou
ps

 w
ill i

n f
utu

re 
be

 in
 Ba

nd
 1 

(G
rou

p B
).  

  
 5. 

In 
the

 ne
w 

Le
ttin

gs
 po

licy
 th

ere
 is

 
pro

vis
ion

 to
 a 

pro
po

rtio
n o

f a
va

ila
ble

 
ho

us
ing

 to
 be

 se
t a

sid
e a

nn
ua

lly 
as

 a 
qu

ota
 fo

r s
on

s &
 da

ug
hte

rs 
of 

ten
an

ts 
of 

Co
mm

on
 H

ou
sin

g R
eg

ist
er 

pa
rtn

ers
 w

he
re 

the
y w

ou
ld 

no
t q

ua
lify

 fo
r h

ou
sin

g t
hro

ug
h 

an
y o

the
r c

ate
go

ry 
in 

the
 po

licy
.   

In 
ord

er 
to 

co
mp

ly 
wit

h l
eg

isla
tio

n a
nd

 C
LG

 C
od

e 
of 

Gu
ida

nc
e t

his
 pe

rce
nta

ge
 is

 ex
pe

cte
d t

o 
be

 m
od

es
t, b

ut 
wil

l b
e d

ec
ide

d u
po

n b
y 

Ca
bin

et 
wh

en
 se

ttin
g t

arg
ets

 as
 pa

rt o
f th

e 
an

nu
al 

Le
ttin

gs
 Pl

an
.   

Th
is 

qu
ota

 w
ill b

e i
n 

Ba
nd

 3.
   

 Ap
pli

ca
nts

 w
ill b

e r
eq

uir
ed

 to
 m

ee
t re

sid
en

ce
 

Page 206



Sc
ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n C

ho
ice
 B
as
ed
 Le

ttin
gs
 – 
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
3 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 N
ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 Fe

br
ua
ry 
20
10
 

cri
ter

ia 
of 

5 y
ea

rs 
livi

ng
 w

ith
 th

eir
 pa

ren
ts 

as
 

the
ir s

ole
 re

sid
en

ce
.   

Pr
efe

ren
ce

 w
ill g

ive
n t

o 
ap

pli
ca

nts
 el

igi
ble

 fo
r th

is 
qu

ota
 in

 da
te 

ord
er 

of 
reg

ist
rat

ion
 on

 th
e H

ou
sin

g L
ist

. 
R8

. T
ha

t th
e w

ork
 be

tw
ee

n 
Ch

ild
ren

’s 
Se

rvi
ce

s a
nd

 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d 

Re
ne

wa
l D

ire
cto

rat
es

 
co

nti
nu

e w
ith

 a 
vie

w 
to 

ide
nti

fyi
ng

 ho
us

ing
 

so
lut

ion
s t

ha
t 

ac
co

mm
od

ate
 m

ore
 

Lo
ok

ed
 Af

ter
 C

hil
dre

n. 

Ch
ild

ren
’s 

se
rvi

ce
s w

ill b
e c

on
su

lte
d a

s 
pa

rt o
f th

e L
ett

ing
s P

oli
cy

 R
ev

iew
 

co
ns

ult
ati

on
.   

 Co
ns

ide
rat

ion
 is

 al
so

 be
ing

 gi
ve

n t
o 

wh
eth

er 
a q

uo
ta 

gro
up

 fo
r a

du
lt 

ch
ild

ren
 of

 fo
ste

r c
are

rs 
to 

be
 re

ho
us

ed
 

ind
ep

en
de

ntl
y s

ho
uld

 be
 ad

de
d t

o t
he

 
ex

ist
ing

 qu
ota

 gr
ou

ps
.   

If t
his

 is
 ag

ree
d, 

an
 an

nu
al 

tar
ge

t c
ou

ld 
be

 se
t a

nd
 in

clu
de

d i
n t

he
 pr

op
os

ed
 

an
nu

al 
let

tin
gs

 pl
an

.   
 Fi

na
l d

ec
isio

ns
 

on
 ta

rge
ts 

wil
l b

e t
ak

en
 by

 C
ab

ine
t.  

   To
 da

te,
 no

 re
se

arc
h h

as
 be

en
 

un
de

rta
ke

n i
nto

 sh
are

d o
wn

ers
hip

 fo
r 

fos
ter

 ca
rer

s w
ith

in 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

& 
Re

ne
wa

l.  
 

       Ja
nu

ary
 20

10
 

   

 Re
ho

us
ing

 ad
ult

 ch
ild

ren
 of

 fo
ste

r c
are

rs 
ha

s 
be

en
 co

ns
ide

red
 by

 se
ek

ing
 th

e a
gre

em
en

t o
f 

ad
ult

 ch
ild

ren
 w

ho
 m

ay
 be

 el
igi

ble
.   

 N
on

e  
 at

 
the

 pr
es

en
t ti

me
 ha

ve
 in

dic
ate

d t
he

y w
ish

 to
 

mo
ve

.   
  In

 th
e c

irc
um

sta
nc

es
, s

ett
ing

 an
 

an
nu

al 
qu

ota
 as

 pr
ev

iou
sly

 co
ns

ide
red

 w
ou

ld 
ap

pe
ar 

to 
be

 un
ne

ce
ss

ary
.   

 
 Sh

ou
ld 

the
 si

tua
tio

n c
ha

ng
e, 

an
d o

ne
 or

 m
ore

 
ind

ivid
ua

ls 
ex

pre
ss

ed
 a 

wis
h t

o b
e 

co
ns

ide
red

, th
ere

 is
 pr

ov
isio

n w
ith

in 
the

 
Le

ttin
gs

 Po
licy

 to
 do

 th
is 

thr
ou

gh
 th

e H
ou

sin
g 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Pa

ne
l th

at 
alr

ea
dy

 op
era

tes
 in

 
ord

er 
to 

co
ns

ide
r s

pe
cia

l c
as

es
 or

 
cir

cu
ms

tan
ce

s i
n o

rde
r to

 co
ns

ide
r a

wa
rdi

ng
 

ad
dit

ion
al 

dis
cre

tio
na

ry 
pri

ori
ty 

for
 ex

am
ple

.   
 

It i
s p

rop
os

ed
 th

ere
for

e t
ha

t th
is 

rou
te 

is 
ad

op
ted

 to
 co

ns
ide

r a
ny

 ap
pro

pri
ate

 ca
se

s 
an

d t
ha

t th
is 

is 
wr

itte
n i

nto
 th

e f
os

ter
ing

 
pro

toc
ol 

do
cu

me
nt.

  
To

 da
te,

 no
 re

se
arc

h h
as

 be
en

 un
de

rta
ke

n 
int

o s
ha

red
 ow

ne
rsh

ip 
for

 fo
ste

r c
are

rs 
wit

hin
 

Page 207



Sc
ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n C

ho
ice
 B
as
ed
 Le

ttin
gs
 – 
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
3 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 N
ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 Fe

br
ua
ry 
20
10
 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
& R

en
ew

al.
  

 
R9

. T
ha

t a
 re

vie
w 

is 
un

de
rta

ke
n o

f th
e 

me
dic

al 
as

se
ss

me
nt 

pro
ce

ss
 to

 ad
dre

ss
 

co
nc

ern
s o

f a
cc

ura
cy

 
an

d q
ua

lity
 an

d g
ive

 
co

ns
ide

rat
ion

 to
 be

st 
pra

cti
ce

,  w
ith

 a 
vie

w 
to 

im
pro

vin
g t

he
 

tra
ns

pa
ren

cy
 of

 th
e 

pro
ce

ss
, e

xte
nd

ing
 th

e 
tim

e f
or 

ap
pe

als
, , 

res
ea

rch
ing

 ot
he

r 
po

ten
tia

l p
rov

ide
rs 

for
 

the
 se

rvi
ce

, s
am

pli
ng

 a 
wo

rk 
un

de
rta

ke
n b

y 
No

w 
Me

dic
al 

an
d 

co
ns

ide
rin

g i
ntr

od
uc

ing
 

se
lf a

ss
es

sm
en

ts;
 

A f
ull

 re
vie

w 
of 

the
 m

ed
ica

l 
as

se
ss

me
nt 

pro
ce

ss
 ha

s b
ee

n c
arr

ied
 

ou
t.  

Th
is 

ha
s i

nc
lud

ed
 a 

clo
se

 
ex

am
ina

tio
n o

f a
 sa

mp
le 

of 
ca

se
s; 

an
 

an
aly

sis
 of

 th
e e

ffe
cti

ve
ne

ss
 of

 th
e 

pro
ce

ss
 fro

m 
sta

rt t
o f

ini
sh

; a
na

lys
is 

of 
ho

w 
the

 pr
es

en
t p

roc
es

s i
s o

pe
rat

ed
 

wit
hin

 th
e C

om
mo

n H
ou

sin
g R

eg
ist

er 
pa

rtn
ers

hip
; re

se
arc

h i
nto

 pr
ac

tic
e i

n 
oth

er 
bo

rou
gh

s t
ha

t u
se

 th
e s

am
e 

me
dic

al 
ad

vis
ory

 se
rvi

ce
.   

 A 
rep

ort
 

rec
om

me
nd

ing
 im

pro
ve

me
nts

 is
 

for
thc

om
ing

. 

Fe
bru

ary
 20

10
 

A f
ull

 re
vie

w 
of 

the
 m

ed
ica

l a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

pro
ce

ss
 ha

s b
ee

n c
arr

ied
 ou

t.  
Th

is 
ha

s 
inc

lud
ed

 a 
clo

se
 ex

am
ina

tio
n o

f a
 sa

mp
le 

of 
ca

se
s; 

an
 an

aly
sis

 of
 th

e e
ffe

cti
ve

ne
ss

 of
 th

e 
pro

ce
ss

 fro
m 

sta
rt t

o f
ini

sh
; a

na
lys

is 
of 

ho
w 

the
 pr

es
en

t p
roc

es
s i

s o
pe

rat
ed

 w
ith

in 
the

 
Co

mm
on

 H
ou

sin
g R

eg
ist

er 
pa

rtn
ers

hip
; 

res
ea

rch
 in

to 
pra

cti
ce

 in
 ot

he
r b

oro
ug

hs
 th

at 
us

e t
he

 sa
me

 m
ed

ica
l a

dv
iso

ry 
se

rvi
ce

.   
 A 

rep
ort

 on
 th

e r
ev

iew
 an

d r
ec

om
me

nd
ati

on
s f

or 
im

pro
ve

me
nts

 w
as

 co
ns

ide
red

 by
 C

ab
ine

t 
Me

mb
ers

 at
 a 

se
mi

na
r o

n 1
2 J

an
ua

ry 
20

10
.   

    
Re

co
mm

en
da

tio
ns

 in
clu

de
d g

rea
ter

 gu
ida

nc
e 

an
d s

up
po

rt f
or 

sta
ff a

dm
ini

ste
rin

g t
he

 pr
oc

es
s 

wit
hin

 th
e L

ett
ing

s T
ea

m;
 im

pro
vin

g t
he

 w
ay

 in
 

wh
ich

 in
itia

l a
ss

es
sm

en
ts 

are
 do

ne
 an

d 
int

rod
uc

ing
 m

uc
h g

rea
ter

 cl
ari

ty 
ab

ou
t th

e 
ap

pe
al 

sta
ge

s a
nd

 cr
ite

ria
 to

 be
 ap

pli
ed

.  I
n 

ad
dit

ion
 it 

wa
s r

ec
om

me
nd

ed
 th

at 
a n

ew
 po

st 
of 

rev
iew

 of
fic

er 
sh

ou
ld 

be
 cr

ea
ted

 to
 

un
de

rta
ke

 fir
st 

sta
ge

 ap
pe

als
 th

at 
sh

ou
ld 

ha
ve

 
the

 ca
pa

cit
y t

o c
arr

y o
ut 

in 
de

pth
 an

d s
kill

ed
 

as
se

ss
me

nts
 of

 ca
se

s w
he

re 
ap

pro
pri

ate
 an

d 
pro

vid
e a

 pr
op

erl
y d

oc
um

en
ted

 an
d r

ea
so

ne
d 

res
po

ns
e i

n e
ac

h c
as

e. 
   T

he
se

 
im

pro
ve

me
nts

 w
ill b

e t
ak

en
 fo

rw
ard

 w
ith

in 
the

 

Page 208



Sc
ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n C

ho
ice
 B
as
ed
 Le

ttin
gs
 – 
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
3 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 N
ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 Fe

br
ua
ry 
20
10
 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
an

d R
en

ew
al 

dir
ec

tor
ate

 as
 

ea
rly

 as
 po

ss
ibl

e. 
 

R1
0. 

Th
at 

To
we

r H
am

let
s 

sh
ou

ld 
ac

tiv
ely

 lo
bb

y 
DC

LG
 M

ini
ste

rs 
to 

iss
ue

 
gu

ida
nc

e a
nd

 if 
ne

ce
ss

ary
 le

gis
lat

ion
, 

all
ow

ing
 lo

ca
l a

uth
ori

tie
s 

to 
int

rod
uc

e t
he

 w
ait

ing
 

tim
e-b

as
ed

 ap
pro

ac
h t

o 
let

tin
gs

.  L
BT

H 
sh

ou
ld 

be
 pr

ep
are

d t
o 

ca
mp

aig
n i

n s
up

po
rt o

f 
the

se
 ch

an
ge

s i
n 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

 w
ith

 ot
he

r 
loc

al 
au

tho
riti

es
. 

 

Fo
llo

win
g t

he
 re

po
rt o

f th
e S

cru
tin

y 
W

ork
ing

 G
rou

p a
nd

 th
is 

rec
om

me
nd

ati
on

,   
the

 ju
dg

em
en

t in
 

Ho
us

e o
f L

ord
s –

v- 
Ne

wh
am

 C
ou

nc
il 

wa
s a

nn
ou

nc
ed

 in
 Ja

nu
ary

 20
09

.  T
he

 
de

cis
ion

 w
as

 th
at 

the
 em

ph
as

is 
on

 
wa

itin
g t

im
e i

n N
ew

ha
m 

Co
un

cil’
s 

all
oc

ati
on

 sc
he

me
 w

as
 la

wf
ul.

   
 Th

e p
rop

os
ed

 ne
w 

Le
ttin

gs
 Po

licy
 fo

r 
To

we
r H

am
let

s C
ou

nc
il r

eta
ins

 th
e 

se
pa

rat
ion

 of
 ap

pli
ca

nts
 in

 ba
nd

s 
ba

se
d u

po
n t

he
ir l

ev
els

 of
 ho

us
ing

 
ne

ed
 an

d o
the

r fa
cto

rs,
 bu

t 
rec

om
me

nd
s t

ha
t w

ith
in 

ea
ch

 ba
nd

, 
pri

ori
ty 

sh
ou

ld 
be

 us
ua

lly 
de

cid
ed

 by
 

len
gth

 of
 tim

e w
ait

ing
 in

 th
e b

an
d. 

 Th
e C

LG
 ha

s i
ss

ue
d d

raf
t g

uid
an

ce
 on

 
all

oc
ati

on
s i

n t
he

 lig
ht 

of 
the

 N
ew

ha
m 

jud
ge

me
nt 

tha
t n

ow
 su

pp
ort

 th
e  

Ho
us

e 
of 

Lo
rds

 de
cis

ion
,  t

ha
t th

ere
 is

 no
thi

ng
 

wr
on

g i
n p

rin
cip

le 
wit

h a
n a

llo
ca

tio
ns

 
sc

he
me

 th
at 

pri
ori

tis
es

 on
 th

e b
as

is 
of 

wa
itin

g t
im

e. 
 Th

is 
is 

as
 lo

ng
 as

 a 
dis

tin
cti

on
 is

 re
tai

ne
d b

etw
ee

n 

Ma
rch

 20
10

 
Fo

llo
win

g t
he

 re
po

rt o
f th

e S
cru

tin
y W

ork
ing

 
Gr

ou
p a

nd
 th

is 
rec

om
me

nd
ati

on
,   

the
 

jud
ge

me
nt 

in 
Ho

us
e o

f L
ord

s –
v- 

Ne
wh

am
 

Co
un

cil 
wa

s a
nn

ou
nc

ed
 in

 Ja
nu

ary
 20

09
.  T

he
 

de
cis

ion
 w

as
 th

at 
the

 em
ph

as
is 

on
 w

ait
ing

 
tim

e i
n N

ew
ha

m 
Co

un
cil’

s a
llo

ca
tio

n s
ch

em
e 

wa
s l

aw
ful

.   
 Th

e n
ew

 Le
ttin

gs
 Po

licy
 go

ing
 to

 C
ab

ine
t fo

r 
de

cis
ion

 on
 M

arc
h 1

0 2
01

0 r
eta

ins
 th

e 
se

pa
rat

ion
 of

 ap
pli

ca
nts

 in
 ba

nd
s b

as
ed

 up
on

 
the

ir l
ev

els
 of

 ho
us

ing
 ne

ed
 an

d o
the

r fa
cto

rs,
 

bu
t re

co
mm

en
ds

 th
at 

wit
hin

 ea
ch

 ba
nd

, 
pri

ori
ty 

sh
ou

ld 
be

 us
ua

lly 
de

cid
ed

 by
 le

ng
th 

of 
tim

e w
ait

ing
 in

 th
e b

an
d. 

 Th
e C

LG
 is

su
ed

 ne
w 

gu
ida

nc
e o

n a
llo

ca
tio

ns
 

in 
De

ce
mb

er 
20

09
 in

 th
e l

igh
t o

f th
e H

ou
se

 of
 

Lo
rds

 ju
dg

em
en

t o
n N

ew
ha

m’
s a

llo
ca

tio
ns

 
sc

he
me

.   
Th

e g
uid

an
ce

 al
low

s l
oc

al 
au

tho
riti

es
 to

 ad
op

t g
rea

ter
 fle

xib
ility

 in
 

all
oc

ati
on

 sc
he

me
s, 

in 
pa

rtic
ula

r ta
kin

g 
ac

co
un

t o
f lo

ca
l c

irc
um

sta
nc

es
 an

d 
pre

fer
en

ce
s. 

 Th
is 

ca
n i

nc
lud

e g
rea

ter
 

em
ph

as
is 

on
 tim

e s
pe

nt 
wa

itin
g i

f re
qu

ire
d. 

    
 

Th
e n

ew
 le

ttin
gs

 po
licy

 ha
s a

do
pte

d t
his

 

Page 209



Sc
ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n C

ho
ice
 B
as
ed
 Le

ttin
gs
 – 
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
3 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 N
ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 Fe

br
ua
ry 
20
10
 

ap
pli

ca
nts

 w
ho

 fa
ll w

ith
in 

a r
ea

so
na

ble
 

pre
fer

en
ce

 ca
teg

ory
 an

d t
ho

se
 th

at 
do

 
no

t.  
Th

e p
rop

os
als

 fo
r a

 ne
w 

Le
ttin

gs
 

Po
licy

 th
at 

are
 cu

rre
ntl

y b
ein

g 
co

ns
ult

ed
 up

on
 w

ith
 th

e p
ub

lic 
me

et 
thi

s r
eq

uir
em

en
t.  

 
Th

e p
rop

os
ed

 ne
w 

Le
ttin

gs
 Po

licy
 ha

s 
be

en
 de

ve
lop

ed
 an

d a
gre

ed
 in

 cl
os

e 
co

op
era

tio
n w

ith
 C

om
mo

n H
ou

sin
g 

Re
gis

ter
 pa

rtn
ers

.   
It i

s d
es

ign
ed

 to
 be

 
ea

sie
r to

 un
de

rst
an

d, 
ex

pla
in 

ad
mi

nis
ter

.   
 Th

e p
eri

od
 of

 pu
bli

c 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

 w
ill b

e f
irs

t re
al 

tes
t o

f 
wh

eth
er 

the
se

 ob
jec

tiv
es

 ha
ve

 be
en

 
ac

hie
ve

d. 
Th

e p
rop

os
als

 w
ill b

e 
mo

dif
ied

 in
 th

e l
igh

t o
f th

e c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

as
 ap

pro
pri

ate
 an

d a
 fin

al 
rep

ort
 w

ill b
e 

tak
en

 to
 C

ab
ine

t e
arl

y i
n 2

01
0 t

o a
gre

e 
a n

ew
 Le

ttin
gs

 Po
licy

. 

ap
pro

ac
h a

nd
 co

mp
lie

s w
ith

 th
e n

ew
 

gu
ida

nc
e. 

 .  

R1
1. 

Th
at 

a t
ran

sit
ion

al 
pe

rio
d o

f b
etw

ee
n 1

2 
mo

nth
s a

nd
 tw

o y
ea

rs 
sh

ou
ld 

be
 pu

t in
 pl

ac
e t

o 
pro

tec
t th

os
e h

om
ele

ss
 

fam
ilie

s a
lre

ad
y i

n t
he

 
sy

ste
m 

sh
ou

ld 
wa

itin
g-

tim
e b

as
ed

 ap
pro

ac
h b

e 
su

cc
es

sfu
l. 

Th
e r

ep
ort

 to
 C

ab
ine

t w
ith

 fin
al 

pro
po

sa
ls 

for
 a 

ne
w 

Le
ttin

gs
 Po

licy
 w

ill 
als

o c
on

sid
er 

the
 qu

es
tio

n o
f 

tra
ns

itio
na

l p
eri

od
s. 

N/
A 

Th
e q

ue
sti

on
 of

 tra
ns

itio
na

l p
eri

od
s w

as
 

co
ns

ide
red

 du
rin

g t
he

 se
mi

na
rs 

he
ld 

for
 

Ca
bin

et 
me

mb
ers

 in
 Ju

ne
 20

09
.   

 Th
e v

iew
 

rea
ch

ed
 w

as
 th

at 
an

y t
ran

sit
ion

al 
pe

rio
d 

wo
uld

 be
 in

ap
pro

pri
ate

 as
 it 

wo
uld

 de
lay

 th
e 

im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f th
e f

ull
 po

licy
.   

 H
ow

ev
er,

  
the

 im
pa

ct 
of 

the
 po

licy
 w

ill b
e c

are
ful

ly 
mo

nit
ore

d a
nd

 re
po

rte
d t

o m
em

be
rs 

wit
hin

 an
 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 tim
e s

ca
le 

to 
en

su
re 

tha
t it

 is
 

Page 210



Sc
ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n C

ho
ice
 B
as
ed
 Le

ttin
gs
 – 
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
3 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 N
ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 Fe

br
ua
ry 
20
10
 

 
ac

hie
vin

g i
ts 

ob
jec

tiv
es

 an
d t

ha
t a

cti
on

 ca
n 

be
 ta

ke
n t

o a
me

nd
 an

y a
dv

ers
e a

ffe
cts

 if 
the

y 
are

 id
en

tifi
ed

.  
R1

2. 
Th

at 
tar

ge
ted

 w
ork

 be
 

de
ve

lop
ed

 to
 ta

ck
le 

ov
erc

row
din

g, 
inc

lud
ing

 
tar

ge
ted

 w
ork

 w
ith

 
un

de
r-o

cc
up

ier
s, 

as
 pa

rt 
of 

thi
s w

ork
 re

vie
w 

the
 

Ca
sh

 In
ce

nti
ve

 Sc
he

me
 

an
d t

he
 fin

an
cia

l 
inc

en
tiv

es
 fo

r u
nd

er-
oc

cu
pie

rs 
as

 to
 en

su
re 

 
the

 ho
us

ing
 st

oc
k i

s 
us

ed
 in

 th
e b

es
t w

ay
 to

 
red

uc
e o

ve
rcr

ow
din

g 
,w

ork
ing

 w
ith

 pa
rtn

er 
RS

Ls
 to

 de
ve

lop
 an

d 
fun

d i
nit

iat
ive

s; 
 

Ho
me

 vi
sit

s a
re 

be
ing

 un
de

rta
ke

n b
y 

the
 Le

ttin
gs

 Te
am

 to
 se

ve
rel

y 
ov

erc
row

de
d C

ou
nc

il t
en

an
ts 

to 
dis

cu
ss

 ho
us

ing
 op

tio
ns

 an
d g

ive
 

ad
vic

e a
nd

 in
for

ma
tio

n. 
 

 Ho
me

 vi
sit

s a
re 

als
o b

ein
g u

nd
ert

ak
en

 
by

 th
e L

ett
ing

s T
ea

m 
to 

un
de

r 
oc

cu
pie

rs 
to 

try
 an

d i
nc

rea
se

 
do

wn
siz

ing
 to

 fre
e u

p l
arg

er 
pro

pe
rtie

s 
to 

let
 to

 ov
erc

row
de

d h
ou

se
ho

lds
.  

 Th
e L

ett
ing

s T
ea

m 
ha

ve
 in

tro
du

ce
d a

  
pri

va
te 

se
cto

r re
nt 

de
po

sit
 sc

he
me

 fo
r 

Co
un

cil 
an

d p
art

ne
r te

na
nts

 to
 cr

ea
te 

fam
ily 

siz
ed

 va
ca

nc
ies

 or
 re

lie
ve

 
ov

erc
row

din
g. 

  T
his

 ye
ar 

to 
da

te,
 8 

ho
us

eh
old

s h
av

e b
ee

n r
eh

ou
se

d 
thr

ou
gh

 th
is 

sc
he

me
 w

hic
h w

as
 th

e 
tar

ge
t fo

r th
e y

ea
r.  

 It 
is 

an
tic

ipa
ted

 
tha

t th
e t

arg
et 

wil
l b

e s
ign

ific
an

tly
 

ex
ce

ed
ed

 as
 th

ere
 ha

s b
ee

n a
 po

sit
ive

 
res

po
ns

e t
o t

he
 sc

he
me

 am
on

gs
t 

ten
an

ts.
 

 
Ho

me
 vi

sit
s a

re 
be

ing
 un

de
rta

ke
n b

y t
he

 
Le

ttin
gs

 Te
am

 to
 se

ve
rel

y o
ve

rcr
ow

de
d 

Co
un

cil 
ten

an
ts 

to 
dis

cu
ss

 ho
us

ing
 op

tio
ns

 
an

d g
ive

 ad
vic

e a
nd

 in
for

ma
tio

n. 
 

  H
om

e v
isit

s a
re 

als
o b

ein
g u

nd
ert

ak
en

 by
 th

e 
Le

ttin
gs

 Te
am

 to
 un

de
r o

cc
up

ier
s t

o t
ry 

an
d 

inc
rea

se
 do

wn
siz

ing
 to

 fre
e u

p l
arg

er 
pro

pe
rtie

s t
o l

et 
to 

ov
erc

row
de

d h
ou

se
ho

lds
.  

 Th
e L

ett
ing

s T
ea

m 
ha

ve
 in

tro
du

ce
d a

  p
riv

ate
 

se
cto

r re
nt 

de
po

sit
 sc

he
me

 fo
r C

ou
nc

il a
nd

 
pa

rtn
er 

ten
an

ts 
to 

cre
ate

 fa
mi

ly 
siz

ed
 

va
ca

nc
ies

 or
 re

lie
ve

 ov
erc

row
din

g. 
  T

his
 ye

ar 
to 

da
te,

 13
 ho

us
eh

old
s h

av
e b

ee
n r

eh
ou

se
d 

thr
ou

gh
 th

is 
sc

he
me

 w
hic

h w
as

 th
e t

arg
et 

for
 

the
 ye

ar.
  T

he
 sc

he
me

 ha
s b

ee
n a

 su
cc

es
s 

an
d t

he
 or

igi
na

l ta
rge

t b
ee

n e
xc

ee
de

d. 
 At 

the
 C

om
mo

n H
ou

sin
g R

eg
ist

er 
Fo

rum
 on

 
25

 Ja
nu

ary
 20

10
 it 

wa
s a

gre
ed

 th
at 

the
 po

licy
 

rev
iew

 su
b g

rou
p w

ou
ld 

giv
e f

urt
he

r 
co

ns
ide

rat
ion

 to
 m

ea
su

res
 th

at 
co

uld
 in

cre
as

e 
un

de
r o

cc
up

ati
on

 m
ov

es
.   

Page 211



Sc
ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n C

ho
ice
 B
as
ed
 Le

ttin
gs
 – 
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
3 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 N
ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 Fe

br
ua
ry 
20
10
 

13
. T

ha
t O

ve
rvi

ew
 an

d 
Sc

rut
iny

 C
om

mi
tte

e 
co

nd
uc

t a
 th

rou
gh

 
rev

iew
 of

 ov
erc

row
din

g 
wh

ich
 w

ill a
ss

ist
 th

e 
Co

un
cil 

in 
de

ve
lop

ing
 an

 
eff

ec
tiv

e O
ve

rcr
ow

din
g 

Str
ate

gy
, p

ote
nti

all
y 

inc
lud

ing
 re

se
arc

h i
nto

 
the

 im
pa

ct 
of 

ov
erc

row
din

g o
n h

ea
lth

 
an

d e
du

ca
tio

n a
nd

 us
ing

 
thi

s t
o a

ss
ist

 ho
us

ing
 to

 
se

cu
re 

fun
din

g t
o r

oll
-

ou
t th

e O
ve

rcr
ow

din
g 

Pr
oje

ct 
wit

h a
 vi

ew
 to

 
as

sis
tin

g m
ore

 
ov

erc
row

de
d f

am
ilie

s; 

Pa
ym

en
ts 

un
de

r th
e c

as
h i

nc
en

tiv
e 

sc
he

me
 ha

ve
 be

en
 in

cre
as

ed
.   

Th
ere

 
ap

pe
ars

 to
 be

 m
ore

 ta
ke

 up
 an

d 
int

ere
st 

in 
thi

s s
ch

em
e t

his
 ye

ar 
co

mp
are

d t
o t

he
 pr

ev
iou

s y
ea

r.  
 

Re
su

lta
nt 

va
ca

nc
ies

 w
ill g

o t
o 

ov
erc

row
de

d h
ou

se
ho

lds
. 

Au
tum

n 2
00

9 
An

 O
ve

rcr
ow

din
g S

tra
teg

y w
as

 ag
ree

d b
y 

Ca
bin

et 
in 

Au
tum

n 2
00

9. 
   T

his
 se

ts 
ou

t a
n 

an
aly

sis
 of

 th
e p

rob
lem

 an
d a

 se
rie

s o
f 

me
as

ure
s t

o t
ac

kle
 th

e s
eri

ou
s l

ev
els

 of
 

ov
erc

row
din

g k
no

wn
 to

 ex
ist

 in
 th

e b
oro

ug
h. 

    
Th

is 
inc

lud
es

 us
e o

f th
e p

riv
ate

 se
cto

r fo
r 

tem
po

rar
y “

res
pit

e” 
mo

ve
s f

or 
hig

hly
 

ov
erc

row
de

d f
am

ilie
s. 

  
 In 

ad
dit

ion
,   

ch
an

ge
s i

n t
he

 ne
w 

let
tin

gs
 

po
licy

 ou
tlin

ed
 ab

ov
e i

nc
rea

se
 th

e o
pp

ort
un

ity
 

for
 ov

erc
row

din
g t

o b
e a

me
lio

rat
ed

 am
on

gs
t 

se
ve

rel
y o

ve
rcr

ow
de

d h
ou

se
ho

lds
 by

 of
fer

ing
 

an
 op

tio
n t

o r
eh

ou
se

 ad
ult

 so
ns

 or
 da

ug
hte

rs 
ind

ep
en

de
ntl

y. 
  

R1
4. 

Th
at 

the
 Le

ttin
gs

 
po

licy
 be

 re
vis

ed
 to

 
ref

lec
t th

e c
ha

ng
es

 
pro

po
se

d u
nd

er 
the

 
‘Be

dro
om

 St
an

da
rds

’ 
 

Pr
op

os
als

 on
 th

e b
ed

roo
m 

sta
nd

ard
 

wil
l b

e d
isc

us
se

d w
ith

 pa
rtn

ers
 du

rin
g 

the
 co

ns
ult

ati
on

 pe
rio

d o
n t

he
 

pro
po

se
d n

ew
 Le

ttin
gs

 Po
licy

.   
If 

ag
ree

me
nt 

is 
rea

ch
ed

, p
rop

os
als

 m
ay

 
be

 in
co

rpo
rat

ed
 in

 th
e n

ew
 Le

ttin
gs

 
Po

licy
 to

 be
 co

ns
ide

red
 by

 C
ab

ine
t 

ea
rly

 in
 20

10
.  

 

Ma
rch

 20
10

 
Th

e p
oli

cy
 su

b g
rou

p o
f th

e C
om

mo
n H

ou
sin

g 
Re

gis
ter

 Fo
rum

 co
ns

ide
red

 th
is 

iss
ue

 w
he

n 
de

ve
lop

ing
 th

e n
ew

 po
licy

.   
  It

 w
as

 de
cid

ed
 

tha
t th

e c
urr

en
t p

oli
cy

 of
 gi

vin
g c

hil
dre

n u
nd

er 
10

 of
 m

ixe
d s

ex
 se

pa
rat

e b
ed

roo
ms

 be
 

ret
ain

ed
.   

Th
is 

is 
a m

ore
 ge

ne
rou

s p
rov

isio
n 

tha
n t

he
 “B

ed
roo

m 
Sta

nd
ard

”.  
   I

n r
ela

tio
n t

o 
ch

ild
ren

 of
 sa

me
 se

x s
ha

rin
g w

he
re 

on
e i

s 
ov

er 
21

,  i
t w

as
 de

cid
ed

 to
 re

tai
n t

he
 pr

es
en

t 
po

licy
 w

he
re 

it i
s c

on
sid

ere
d r

ea
so

na
ble

 w
ith

in 

Page 212



Sc
ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n C

ho
ice
 B
as
ed
 Le

ttin
gs
 – 
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
3 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 N
ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 Fe

br
ua
ry 
20
10
 

the
 To

we
r  H

am
let

s c
on

tex
t to

 sh
are

  a
 

be
dro

om
 in

 th
es

e c
irc

um
sta

nc
es

.  T
his

 is
 le

ss
 

ge
ne

rou
s t

ha
n t

he
 “B

ed
roo

m 
Sta

nd
ard

” w
hic

h 
pro

po
se

s w
he

re 
sa

me
 se

x s
ha

rin
g i

s t
ak

ing
 

pla
ce

, a
nd

 on
e o

r m
ore

 is
 ov

er 
21

, th
at 

the
y 

sh
ou

ld 
be

 en
titl

ed
 to

 se
pa

rat
e b

ed
roo

ms
.   

R1
5. 

Th
at 

RS
L p

art
ne

rs 
se

ek
 to

 us
e R

igh
t to

 
Ac

qu
ire

 re
ce

ipt
s t

o b
uy

 
ba

ck
 pr

op
ert

ies
 di

rec
t 

fro
m 

lea
se

ho
lde

rs;
 Th

at 
tar

ge
ted

 w
ork

 be
 

de
ve

lop
ed

 to
 ta

ck
le 

ov
erc

row
din

g, 
inc

lud
ing

 
tar

ge
ted

 w
ork

 w
ith

 
un

de
r-o

cc
up

ier
s g

ivin
g 

co
ns

ide
rat

ion
 to

 
all

oc
ati

ng
 di

rec
t le

ts 
sim

ila
r to

 N
ew

ha
m’

s 
po

licy
. A

s p
art

 of
 th

is 
wo

rk 
rev

iew
 th

e C
as

h 
Inc

en
tiv

e S
ch

em
e a

nd
 

the
 fin

an
cia

l in
ce

nti
ve

s 
for

 un
de

r-o
cc

up
ier

s w
ith

 
a v

iew
 to

 us
ing

 th
e s

toc
k 

in 
wa

ys
 to

 re
du

ce
 

ov
erc

row
din

g w
ork

ing
 

wit
h p

art
ne

r R
SL

 to
 

Ca
bin

et 
ha

s a
pp

rov
ed

 a 
co

mp
reh

en
siv

e o
ve

rcr
ow

din
g 

red
uc

tio
n s

tra
teg

y. 
 Th

is 
inc

lud
es

 
tar

ge
t w

ork
 to

 ta
ck

le 
ov

erc
row

din
g 

(e.
g. 

ho
me

 vi
sit

s; 
 pr

iva
te 

ren
ted

 se
cto

r 
op

tio
ns

;   
Rig

ht 
to 

Bu
y b

uy
 ba

ck
s ;

  
loc

al 
ho

us
ing

 in
itia

tiv
es

 ) 
  Th

e p
rop

os
als

 fo
r a

 ne
w 

let
tin

g p
oli

cy
 

inc
lud

e h
igh

 pr
ior

ity
 to

 be
 gi

ve
n t

o 
un

de
r o

cc
up

ier
s. 

 A 
po

licy
 on

 di
rec

t le
ts 

wh
ere

 ap
pro

pri
ate

 is
 in

clu
de

d i
n t

he
 

pro
po

sa
ls.

 

Au
tum

n 2
00

9  
Ca

bin
et 

ha
s a

pp
rov

ed
 a 

co
mp

reh
en

siv
e 

ov
erc

row
din

g r
ed

uc
tio

n s
tra

teg
y. 

 Th
is 

inc
lud

es
 ta

rge
t w

ork
 to

 ta
ck

le 
ov

erc
row

din
g 

(e.
g. 

ho
me

 vi
sit

s; 
 pr

iva
te 

ren
ted

 se
cto

r 
op

tio
ns

;   
Rig

ht 
to 

Bu
y b

uy
 ba

ck
s ;

  lo
ca

l 
ho

us
ing

 in
itia

tiv
es

 ) 
  Th

e n
ew

 le
ttin

gs
 po

licy
 m

ain
tai

ns
 th

e 
pro

vis
ion

 in
 th

e e
xis

tin
g p

oli
cy

 th
at 

hig
h 

pri
ori

ty 
is 

giv
en

 to
 un

de
r o

cc
up

ier
s. 

 A 
po

licy
 

on
 di

rec
t le

t’s
 w

he
re 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 an
d i

n 
de

fin
ed

 ci
rcu

ms
tan

ce
s i

nc
lud

ed
 in

 th
e n

ew
 

po
licy

.   
 

Page 213



Sc
ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n C

ho
ice
 B
as
ed
 Le

ttin
gs
 – 
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
3 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 N
ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 Fe

br
ua
ry 
20
10
 

de
ve

lop
 an

d f
un

d 
ini

tia
tiv

es
; 

 

R1
6. 

Th
at 

To
we

r H
am

let
s 

sh
ou

ld 
pre

ss
 th

e M
ay

or 
of 

Lo
nd

on
 an

d t
he

 
Go

ve
rnm

en
t to

 re
du

ce
 

the
 pr

op
ort

ion
 of

 le
ttin

gs
 

on
 ne

w-
bu

ild
 th

rou
gh

 
Ca

pit
al 

Mo
ve

s t
o 2

5 p
er 

ce
nt,

 an
d t

o e
qu

ali
se

 th
e 

nu
mb

ers
 of

 ac
ce

ss
ibl

e 
ho

me
s l

et 
thr

ou
gh

 
Ca

pit
al 

Mo
ve

s. 
 It 

sh
ou

ld 
als

o i
ns

ist
 th

at 
Ca

pit
al 

Mo
ve

s d
ev

elo
p a

 
mi

nim
um

 st
an

da
rd 

of 
ad

ve
rtis

ing
 of

 th
e 

pro
pe

rtie
s a

llo
ca

ted
 

thr
ou

gh
 th

e P
an

-Lo
nd

on
 

Sc
he

me
 to

 se
cu

re 
a 

co
mm

on
 st

an
da

rd 
of 

ac
ce

ss
ibi

lity
.  R

es
ide

nts
 

sh
ou

ld 
be

 fu
lly 

co
ns

ult
ed

 
be

for
e a

 de
cis

ion
 is

 
rea

ch
ed

 w
he

the
r to

 
int

rod
uc

e t
he

 sc
he

me
. 

 

Ca
pit

al 
Mo

ve
s w

as
 pu

t o
n h

old
 by

 th
e 

ne
w 

Ma
yo

r o
f L

on
do

n. 
 

 Th
ere

 is
 no

thi
ng

 fu
rth

er 
to 

rep
ort

 on
 

thi
s a

t p
res

en
t.  

 

N/
A 

Ca
pit

al 
Mo

ve
s w

as
 pu

t o
n h

old
 by

 th
e n

ew
 

Ma
yo

r o
f L

on
do

n. 
 

 Th
ere

 is
 no

thi
ng

 fu
rth

er 
to 

rep
ort

 on
 th

is 
at 

pre
se

nt.
  

 

Page 214



Sc
ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n C

ho
ice
 B
as
ed
 Le

ttin
gs
 – 
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
3 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 N
ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 Fe

br
ua
ry 
20
10
 

R1
7. 

Th
at 

To
we

r H
am

let
s 

sh
ou

ld 
pre

ss
 th

e M
ay

or 
of 

Lo
nd

on
 an

d H
ou

sin
g 

Co
rpo

rat
ion

 to
 m

ak
e 

fun
din

g a
va

ila
ble

 to
 

ex
pa

nd
 th

e S
ea

sid
e a

nd
 

Co
un

try
 H

om
es

 
Sc

he
me

; 
 

To
 da

te 
thi

s m
att

er 
ha

s n
ot 

be
en

 pu
t 

for
wa

rd 
in 

a C
ab

ine
t re

po
rt f

or 
de

cis
ion

. 
Ma

rch
 20

10
 

Th
e H

om
es

 & 
Co

mm
un

itie
s A

ge
nc

y a
sk

ed
 fo

r 
su

b r
eg

ion
al 

bid
s f

or 
a p

ilo
t fu

nd
ing

 in
itia

tiv
e t

o 
pro

vid
e a

 ho
us

ing
 op

tio
n f

or 
so

cia
l h

ou
sin

g 
ten

an
ts 

wh
o a

re 
un

de
r o

cc
up

ier
s b

ut 
do

 no
t 

qu
ali

fy 
for

 th
e e

xis
tin

g S
ea

sid
e a

nd
 C

ou
ntr

y 
Ho

me
s S

ch
em

e. 
 Th

e o
bje

cti
ve

s o
f th

e p
ilo

t 
are

 to
   

• 
Re

lea
se

 un
de

r o
cc

up
ied

 fa
mi

ly 
siz

ed
 

so
cia

l re
nte

d h
om

es
 

• 
Ac

qu
ire

 pr
op

ert
ies

 ou
tsi

de
 Lo

nd
on

  
• 

Im
pro

ve
 un

de
rst

an
din

g o
f 

ch
ara

cte
ris

tic
s a

nd
 as

pir
ati

on
s o

f 
un

de
r o

cc
up

yin
g t

en
an

ts 
wh

o w
ish

 to
 

mo
ve

 in
clu

din
g i

nfo
rm

ati
on

 on
 

pre
fer

red
 lo

ca
tio

ns
. 

R1
8. 

Th
at 

the
 C

ou
nc

il 
sh

ou
ld 

inv
ite

 ot
he

r lo
ca

l 
au

tho
riti

es
 in

 Lo
nd

on
 to

 
ide

nti
fy 

be
st 

pra
cti

ce
 in

 
pro

mo
tin

g a
nd

 
fac

ilita
tin

g m
utu

al 
ex

ch
an

ge
s; 

 

Th
is 

is 
sti

ll o
uts

tan
din

g. 
 Th

is 
wil

l b
e 

tak
en

 fo
rw

ard
 on

ce
 th

e l
ett

ing
s p

oli
cy

 
rev

iew
 an

d c
on

su
lta

tio
n h

as
 be

en
 

co
nc

lud
ed

. 

Ma
rch

 20
10

 
Th

is 
is 

sti
ll o

uts
tan

din
g. 

 Th
is 

wil
l b

e t
ak

en
 

for
wa

rd 
on

ce
 th

e l
ett

ing
s p

oli
cy

 ha
s b

ee
n 

ag
ree

d b
y C

ab
ine

t in
 M

arc
h 2

01
0  

 

R1
9.T

ha
t th

e C
ou

nc
il 

sh
ou

ld 
un

de
rta

ke
 a 

rev
iew

 of
 Ke

y W
ork

er 
Ho

us
ing

 in
 th

e B
oro

ug
h, 

sp
ec

ific
all

y l
oo

kin
g a

t it
s 

Th
is 

is 
sti

ll o
uts

tan
din

g a
nd

 w
ill b

e 
tak

en
 fo

rw
ard

 as
 pa

rt o
f th

e l
ett

ing
s 

po
licy

 re
vie

w.
   T

he
 ex

ist
ing

 an
nu

al 
qu

ota
 of

 50
 ha

s b
ee

n i
n p

lac
e f

or 
ma

ny
 

ye
ars

.   
Pr

op
os

als
 fo

r n
ew

 ta
rge

ts 
for

 

Ma
y 2

01
0 

It w
as

 ag
ree

d w
ith

in 
the

 C
om

mo
n H

ou
sin

g 
Re

gis
ter

 Fo
rum

 th
at 

a f
ull

 re
vie

w 
of 

the
 Ke

y 
W

ork
er 

qu
ota

 sh
ou

ld 
be

 un
de

rta
ke

n o
nc

e t
he

 
ne

w 
let

tin
gs

 po
licy

 is
 in

 pl
ac

e. 
   P

en
din

g t
ha

t 
rev

iew
, th

e a
nn

ua
l q

uo
ta 

cu
rre

ntl
y i

n p
lac

e 

Page 215



Sc
ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n C

ho
ice
 B
as
ed
 Le

ttin
gs
 – 
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
3 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 N
ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 Fe

br
ua
ry 
20
10
 

aff
ord

ab
ility

 an
d t

he
 

pro
ble

ms
 ex

pe
rie

nc
ed

 
by

 th
os

e w
ith

 fa
mi

lie
s i

n 
no

n-s
ec

ure
/as

su
red

 
ten

an
cie

s; 
 

all
 qu

ota
 gr

ou
ps

 w
ill b

e p
ut 

for
wa

rd 
in 

the
 an

nu
al 

let
tin

gs
 pl

an
 fo

r C
ab

ine
t 

de
cis

ion
.  T

he
 cr

ite
ria

 to
 qu

ali
fy 

wil
l 

als
o b

e r
ev

iew
ed

 as
 pa

rt o
f th

e 
pro

ce
ss

. 

sin
ce

 20
02

 ca
n b

e r
e c

on
sid

ere
d i

n d
ec

idi
ng

 
the

 qu
ota

 nu
mb

ers
 fo

r th
e c

om
ing

 ye
ar 

wh
en

 
a L

ett
ing

s P
lan

 is
 ta

ke
n t

o C
ab

ine
t fo

r 
de

cis
ion

 in
 M

ay
 20

10
.   

R2
0. 

Th
at 

the
 C

ou
nc

il 
sh

ou
ld 

un
de

rta
ke

 a 
rev

iew
 of

 Sh
elt

ere
d 

Ho
us

ing
 Le

ttin
gs

 Po
licy

 
to 

ma
ke

 su
re 

tha
t th

is 
res

ou
rce

 is
 us

ed
 

eff
ec

tiv
ely

. 
 

Be
st 

Va
lue

 R
ev

iew
 of

 Sh
elt

ere
d 

Ho
us

ing
 ha

s b
ee

n c
om

ple
ted

.  
 Th

e p
roc

es
s f

or 
all

oc
ati

ng
 sh

elt
ere

d 
ho

us
ing

 is
 un

de
r re

vie
w 

as
 pa

rt o
f th

e 
let

tin
gs

 po
licy

 re
vie

w.
 

Ma
rch

 20
10

 
Be

st 
Va

lue
 R

ev
iew

 of
 Sh

elt
ere

d H
ou

sin
g h

as
 

be
en

 co
mp

let
ed

.  
 Sh

elt
ere

d H
ou

sin
g i

s t
he

 on
e a

rea
 w

he
re 

su
pp

ly 
ex

ce
ed

s d
em

an
d. 

 It 
pro

ve
s d

iffi
cu

lt 
fro

m 
tim

e t
o t

im
e t

o l
et 

so
me

 va
ca

nc
ies

 
thr

ou
gh

 th
e c

ho
ice

 ba
se

d l
ett

ing
s p

roc
es

s. 
  In

 
ord

er 
to 

rem
ed

y t
his

, it
 w

as
 ag

ree
d t

ha
t u

nd
er 

the
 ne

w 
pro

vis
ion

 fo
r d

ire
ct 

let
tin

gs
 to

 be
 

ma
de

 th
at 

for
 Sh

elt
ere

d H
ou

sin
g v

ac
an

cie
s, 

if 
ad

ve
rtis

ed
 on

ce
 an

d n
o i

nte
res

ted
 bi

dd
ers

 
co

me
 fo

rw
ard

,   
a d

ire
ct 

off
er 

co
uld

 be
 m

ad
e 

to 
a s

uit
ab

le 
ap

pli
ca

nt.
    

   
 

Page 216



 Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t Y
ou
ng
 pe

op
le’
s p

art
ici
pa
tio
n i
n s

po
rts
 le
ad
ing

 up
 to
 th
e O

lym
pic

s –
 A
pp
en
dix

 4 
Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 N
ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
ies
 
Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 M
arc

h 
20
10
 

R1
. T

ha
t a

 re
vie

w 
is 

un
de

rta
ke

n o
f th

e c
urr

en
t 

pri
cin

g p
oli

cy
 of

 le
isu

re 
an

d 
ph

ys
ica

l a
cti

vit
ies

 an
d 

ve
nu

es
 w

ith
 a 

vie
w 

to:
 

1. 
Re

du
cin

g c
os

ts 
for

 
pa

ren
ts 

on
 lo

w 
inc

om
e; 

  
2. 

Re
du

cin
g t

he
 pr

ice
 of

 
pro

vis
ion

s f
or 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le;

 
3. 

Fo
rm

ula
tin

g a
 po

licy
 

for
 hi

rin
g a

nd
 pr

icin
g 

of 
co

mm
un

ity
 ac

ce
ss

 
sp

ort
s f

ac
iliti

es
 an

d 
pu

bli
sh

ing
 th

is;
 

4. 
Gi

vin
g f

ree
 ac

ce
ss

 to
 

lei
su

re 
ce

ntr
es

 fo
r 

yo
un

g p
eo

ple
 w

ho
 

are
 lo

ok
ed

 af
ter

; 
       Fre

e s
wim

 Fr
ida

y i
ntr

od
uc

ed
 fo

r a
ll 

To
we

r H
am

let
s R

es
ide

nts
.  

 Ch
arg

es
 re

vie
we

d b
ut 

no
 sc

op
e f

or 
red

uc
ing

 co
sts

 w
ith

ou
t a

dd
itio

na
l 

fun
din

g. 
CO

OL
 ca

rd 
pro

jec
t d

eli
ve

red
 by

 G
LL

 
an

d C
hil

dre
n’s

 Se
rvi

ce
s. 

(E
nd

ed
 Ju

ly 
09

).  
68

7 y
ou

ng
 pe

op
le 

ac
ce

ss
ed

 
lei

su
re 

ce
ntr

es
 th

rou
gh

 m
em

be
rsh

ip 
inc

en
tiv

e s
ch

em
e. 

 
GL

L a
nd

 G
LL

 Sp
ort

 Fo
un

da
tio

n 
en

ab
led

 yo
un

g t
ale

nte
d L

BT
H 

sp
ort

s 
sta

rs 
fre

e a
cc

es
s t

o G
LL

 le
isu

re 
ce

ntr
es

 
 Pil

ot 
sc

he
me

 fo
r 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 ce
ntr

es
 fo

r L
oo

ke
d A

fte
r 

Ch
ild

ren
 im

ple
me

nte
d i

n p
art

ne
rsh

ip 
wit

h G
LL

 & 
Ch

ild
ren

, S
ch

oo
ls 

& F
am

ily 
Dir

ec
tor

ate
  

1. 
Mi

ch
ell

e 
Da

vie
s  

Le
isu

re 
Co

ntr
ac

ts 
an

d 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 

Ma
na

ge
r 

  2. 
Mi

ch
ell

e 
Da

vie
s L

eis
ure

 
Co

ntr
ac

ts 
an

d 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 

Ma
na

ge
r 

 3. 
Mi

ch
ell

e 
Da

vie
s L

eis
ure

 
Co

ntr
ac

ts 
an

d 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 

Ma
na

ge
r 

        

1. 
Co

mp
let

ed
  

      2. 
Ja

n 2
00

9  
     3. 

Ap
ril 

20
09

 
            

Fre
e s

wim
 Fr

ida
y 

int
rod

uc
ed

 fo
r a

ll 
To

we
r H

am
let

s 
Re

sid
en

ts.
  

   Ch
arg

es
 re

vie
we

d 
bu

t n
o s

co
pe

 fo
r 

red
uc

ing
 co

sts
 

wit
ho

ut 
ad

dit
ion

al 
fun

din
g  

 CO
OL

 ca
rd 

pro
jec

t 
de

live
red

 by
 G

LL
 

an
d C

hil
dre

n’s
 

Se
rvi

ce
s. 

(E
nd

ed
 

Ju
ly 

09
).  

68
7 y

ou
ng

 
pe

op
le 

ac
ce

ss
ed

 
lei

su
re 

ce
ntr

es
 

thr
ou

gh
 

me
mb

ers
hip

 
inc

en
tiv

e s
ch

em
e. 

 
 GL

L a
nd

 G
LL

 Sp
ort

 
Fo

un
da

tio
n 

Page 217



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t Y
ou
ng
 pe

op
le’
s p

art
ici
pa
tio
n i
n s

po
rts
 le
ad
ing

 up
 to
 th
e O

lym
pic

s –
 A
pp
en
dix

 4 
Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 N
ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
ies
 
Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 M
arc

h 
20
10
 

 Fre
e s

wim
mi

ng
 fo

r U
nd

er 
16

’s 
 

im
ple

me
nte

d  
Ap

ril 
20

09
 

4 H
ea

d o
f S

po
rt 

an
d P

hy
sic

al 
Ac

tiv
ity

 
  5. 

Mi
ch

ell
e 

Da
vie

s 
Le

isu
re 

Co
ntr

ac
ts 

an
d 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 
Ma

na
ge

r 

4.O
cto

be
r 2

00
8  

    5. 
Co

mp
let

ed
  

  

en
ab

led
 yo

un
g 

tal
en

ted
 LB

TH
 

sp
ort

s s
tar

s f
ree

 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 G

LL
 

lei
su

re 
ce

ntr
es

 
 Pil

ot 
sc

he
me

 fo
r 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 ce
ntr

es
 fo

r 
Lo

ok
ed

 Af
ter

 
Ch

ild
ren

 
im

ple
me

nte
d i

n 
pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w

ith
 G

LL
 

& C
hil

dre
n, 

Sc
ho

ols
 

& F
am

ily 
Dir

ec
tor

ate
  

 Fre
e s

wim
mi

ng
 fo

r 
Un

de
r 1

6’s
  

im
ple

me
nte

d  
Ap

ril 
20

09
 

 
R2

. T
ha

t th
e r

es
ult

s o
f th

e 
Yo

un
g P

eo
ple

 an
d t

he
 

Ol
ym

pic
s S

urv
ey

 is
 us

ed
 to

 
inf

orm
 th

e d
ev

elo
pm

en
t o

f 
str

ate
gie

s f
or 

yo
un

g p
eo

ple
 

an
d s

po
rts

, in
 pa

rtic
ula

r th
at 

the
 Bu

ild
ing

 Sc
ho

ols
 fo

r th
e 

Th
is 

wil
l c

on
tin

ue
 to

 be
 us

ed
 fo

r fu
tur

e 
de

ve
lop

me
nts

.  
An

n S
utc

liff
e, 

Se
rvi

ce
 H

ea
d 

Bu
ild

ing
 Sc

ho
ols

 
for

 th
e F

utu
re 

Pa
ul 

Ma
rtin

dil
l, 

Se
rvi

ce
 H

ea
d 

Cu
ltu

ral
 Se

rvi
ce

s 

Fro
m 

20
08

 an
d 

on
go

ing
 to

 20
13

 
Th

is 
wil

l c
on

tin
ue

 to
 

be
 us

ed
 fo

r fu
tur

e 
de

ve
lop

me
nts

. 

Page 218



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t Y
ou
ng
 pe

op
le’
s p

art
ici
pa
tio
n i
n s

po
rts
 le
ad
ing

 up
 to
 th
e O

lym
pic

s –
 A
pp
en
dix

 4 
Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 N
ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
ies
 
Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 M
arc

h 
20
10
 

Fu
tur

e p
rog

ram
me

 
co

ns
ide

rs 
the

 vi
ew

s o
f 

yo
un

g p
eo

ple
 in

 pr
ov

idi
ng

 a 
va

rie
ty 

of 
sp

ort
s, 

co
ac

hin
g 

an
d t

rai
nin

g b
as

ed
 on

 th
e 

ex
pre

ss
ion

s o
f in

ter
es

t, 
ba

rrie
rs 

an
d e

xp
eri

en
ce

 of
 

yo
un

g p
eo

ple
 in

 sp
ort

s. 
 

 R3
. T

ha
t in

ce
nti

ve
s a

re 
int

rod
uc

ed
 (a

cti
vit

ies
 an

d 
co

sts
) to

 en
co

ura
ge

 br
ing

ing
 

alo
ng

  a
nd

 in
tro

du
cin

g a
 

frie
nd

 to
 an

 ac
tiv

ity
 or

 to
 

lei
su

re 
ce

ntr
e f

ac
iliti

es
.  

 GL
L p

rov
ide

 nu
mb

er 
of 

inc
en

tiv
e 

ca
mp

aig
ns

 th
rou

gh
ou

t y
ea

r. I
nc

lud
ing

: 
Pr

ov
idi

ng
 ne

w 
 

me
mb

ers
 w

ith
  

fre
e g

ue
st 

pa
ss

es
 

for
 fri

en
ds

 / f
am

ily 
(Im

ple
me

nte
d  

Ma
rch

 09
 /  

Ma
y 0

9 &
 Au

gu
st 

 
09

) 
Br

itis
h G

as
 Fr

ee
 Sw

im
mi

ng
 

Pr
og

ram
me

 (S
ep

t 0
9) 

 Pu
pil

 R
efe

rra
l U

nit
 ac

ce
ss

 to
 le

isu
re 

ce
ntr

es
 vi

a v
ou

ch
er 

pro
jec

ts 
 

Mi
ch

ell
e D

av
ies

 
Le

isu
re 

Co
ntr

ac
ts 

an
d P

art
ne

rsh
ip 

Ma
na

ge
r 

 

On
-go

ing
  

GL
L p

rov
ide

 nu
mb

er 
of 

inc
en

tiv
e 

ca
mp

aig
ns

 th
rou

gh
o

ut 
ye

ar.
 In

clu
din

g: 
Pr

ov
idi

ng
 ne

w 
me

mb
ers

  
wit

h f
ree

 gu
es

t p
as

s
es

 fo
r fr

ien
ds

 / f
am

ily 
(Im

ple
me

nte
d  

Ma
rch

 09
 /  

Ma
y 0

9 &
 Au

gu
st 

 
09

) 
Br

itis
h G

as
 Fr

ee
 

Sw
im

mi
ng

 
Pr

og
ram

me
 (S

ep
t 

09
) 

 Pu
pil

 R
efe

rra
l U

nit
 

Page 219



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t Y
ou
ng
 pe

op
le’
s p

art
ici
pa
tio
n i
n s

po
rts
 le
ad
ing

 up
 to
 th
e O

lym
pic

s –
 A
pp
en
dix

 4 
Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 N
ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
ies
 
Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 M
arc

h 
20
10
 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 le
isu

re 
ce

ntr
es

 vi
a v

ou
ch

er 
pro

jec
ts 

 
R4

. T
ha

t th
e s

erv
ice

 
de

ve
lop

 in
no

va
tiv

e w
ay

s o
f 

en
ga

gin
g y

ou
ng

 gi
rls

 in
 

sp
ort

s, 
wo

rki
ng

 w
ith

 
co

mm
un

ity
 or

ga
nis

ati
on

s, 
inc

lud
ing

 fa
ith

 or
ga

nis
ati

on
s, 

sc
ho

ols
 an

d p
are

nts
, ta

kin
g 

in 
to 

co
ns

ide
rat

ion
 th

e 
ex

pre
ss

ion
s o

f in
ter

es
t in

 
the

 Yo
un

g P
eo

ple
 an

d t
he

 
Ol

ym
pic

s S
urv

ey
.  

 

W
om

en
 & 

Gi
rls

 
Fre

e S
wim

mi
ng

 
Pr

og
ram

me
 

im
ple

me
nte

d A
pri

l 
20

09
 

 W
ork

ing
 w

ith
 th

e 
Mu

slim
 W

om
en

’s 
Co

lle
cti

ve
 to

 D
ev

elo
p 

Co
mm

un
ity

 fo
otb

all
 

Co
ac

he
s t

o a
cc

red
ite

d 
sta

nd
ard

s a
nd

 
pro

mo
tin

g r
ec

rui
tm

en
t 

of 
W

om
en

 lif
e g

ua
rds

.   
 

1. 
Mi

ch
ell

e 
Da

vie
s L

eis
ure

 
Co

ntr
ac

ts 
an

d 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 

Ma
na

ge
r 

 2. 
He

ad
 of

 Sp
ort

 
An

d P
hy

sic
al 

Ac
tiv

ity
 

1. 
Co

mp
let

ed
  

     2. 
Co

mp
let

ed
  

W
om

en
 & 

Gi
rls

 
Fre

e S
wim

mi
ng

 
Pr

og
ram

me
 

im
ple

me
nte

d A
pri

l 
20

09
 

 W
ork

ing
 w

ith
 th

e 
Mu

slim
 W

om
en

’s 
Co

lle
cti

ve
 to

 
De

ve
lop

 
Co

mm
un

ity
 fo

otb
all

 
Co

ac
he

s t
o 

ac
cre

dit
ed

 
sta

nd
ard

s a
nd

 
pro

mo
tin

g 
rec

rui
tm

en
t 

of 
W

om
en

 lif
e 

gu
ard

s. 
   

R5
. T

ha
t th

e s
erv

ice
 lo

ok
 at

 
wa

ys
 th

e l
eis

ure
 ce

ntr
es

 ca
n 

be
 en

ha
nc

ed
 to

 ac
tiv

ely
 

en
ga

ge
 an

d i
nc

rea
se

 yo
un

g 
dis

ab
led

 pe
op

le 
wit

h s
po

rts
 

GL
L s

ign
ed

 up
 to

 In
clu

siv
e a

nd
 Ac

tiv
e 

Str
ate

gy
. 

GL
L c

om
mi

tte
d t

o u
nd

ert
ak

e f
urt

he
r 

dis
ab

ility
 tra

ini
ng

 fo
r s

taf
f.  

 
GL

L b
uil

din
g p

art
ne

rsh
ip 

wit
h R

aid
ers

 

1. 
Mi

ch
ell

e 
Da

vie
s L

eis
ure

 
Co

ntr
ac

ts 
an

d 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 

Ma
na

ge
r 

1. 
Ma

rch
 20

10
  

    

GL
L i

n 
pa

rtn
ers

hip
 

wit
h T

he
, 

int
erv

iew
ed

 fo
r 

2 w
ork

 

Page 220



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t Y
ou
ng
 pe

op
le’
s p

art
ici
pa
tio
n i
n s

po
rts
 le
ad
ing

 up
 to
 th
e O

lym
pic

s –
 A
pp
en
dix

 4 
Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 N
ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
ies
 
Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 M
arc

h 
20
10
 

an
d p

hy
sic

al 
ac

tiv
itie

s 
lea

din
g u

p t
o 2

01
2 i

nc
lud

ing
 

inc
rea

sin
g t

he
 av

ail
ab

ility
 of

 
dis

ab
ility

 sp
ec

ial
ist

 st
aff

 to
 

su
pp

ort
 an

d a
cti

ve
ly 

en
ga

ge
 

yo
un

g d
isa

ble
d p

eo
ple

 in
to 

sp
ort

s, 
wo

rki
ng

 w
ith

 th
em

 to
 

ad
dre

ss
 tra

ns
po

rt b
arr

ier
s. 

   W
he

elc
ha

ir B
as

ke
tba

ll C
lub

, to
 ga

in 
kn

ow
led

ge
, a

nd
 id

ea
s f

or 
im

pro
vin

g 
inc

lus
ive

ne
ss

.   
 Te

rm
-tim

e m
ult

i- 
sp

ort
, s

wim
mi

ng
,  

wh
ee

lch
air

  
ath

let
ics

, le
arn

ing
 

dis
ab

ility
 at

hle
tic

s  
tak

ing
 pl

ac
e a

t  
Mi

le 
En

d P
ark

  
Le

isu
re 

Ce
ntr

e 
 Int

er-
bo

rou
gh

  
Dis

ab
ility

 
Sw

im
mi

ng
 G

ala
  

tak
ing

 pl
ac

e 
  Dis

ab
ility

 Sp
ort

 in
 

To
we

r H
am

let
s  

Br
oc

hu
re 

 
Pr

od
uc

ed
 

    

   2. 
Pa

uli
ne

 D
un

n 
    

Sp
ort

s 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d H

ea
lth

y 
Lif

es
tyl

es
 

Ma
na

ge
r 

  3. 
Pa

uli
ne

 D
un

n 
    

Sp
ort

s 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d H

ea
lth

y 
Lif

es
tyl

es
 

Ma
na

ge
r 

 4. 
Pa

uli
ne

 D
un

n 
    

Sp
ort

s 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d H

ea
lth

y 
Lif

es
tyl

es
 

Ma
na

ge
r 

 5. 
Pa

uli
ne

 D
un

n 
    

Sp
ort

s 

  2. 
Co

mp
let

ed
 

       3. 
on

-go
ing

 
      4. 

Co
mp

let
ed

. 
      5. 

Co
mp

let
ed

 
  

pla
ce

me
nts

 
(w

ith
 To

we
r 

Pr
oje

ct)
 at

 
Mi

le 
En

d P
ark

 
Le

isu
re 

Ce
ntr

e. 
Th

es
e 

pla
ce

me
nts

 
wil

l b
e l

ink
ed

 
an

d 
“sh

ad
ow

ed
” b

y 
a s

tro
ng

 
me

mb
er 

of 
the

 
rec

ep
tio

nis
t 

tea
m 

to 
off

er 
gu

ida
nc

e a
nd

 
on

go
ing

 
su

pp
ort

. 
 Co

ac
h A

bil
ity

 
Sc

he
me

 (s
ch

em
e 

for
 di

sa
ble

d 
pe

op
le 

to 
qu

ali
fy 

as
 sp

ort
s 

co
ac

he
s) 

wa
s 

pro
mo

ted
 w

ith
in 

the
 bo

rou
gh

. T
he

 
sc

he
me

 co
me

s t
o 

Page 221



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t Y
ou
ng
 pe

op
le’
s p

art
ici
pa
tio
n i
n s

po
rts
 le
ad
ing

 up
 to
 th
e O

lym
pic

s –
 A
pp
en
dix

 4 
Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 N
ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
ies
 
Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 M
arc

h 
20
10
 

Re
vie

w 
co

nd
uc

ted
 bu

t  
du

e t
o i

ns
uff

icie
nt 

fun
din

g u
na

ble
 to

  
im

ple
me

nt 
tra

ns
po

rt 
sc

he
me

 
                  GL

L w
ork

ing
 w

ith
 C

LC
 to

 in
cre

as
e t

he
 

nu
mb

er 
of 

sta
ff e

mp
loy

ed
 w

ith
 

dis
ab

iliti
es

.  

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
an

d H
ea

lth
y 

Lif
es

tyl
es

 
Ma

na
ge

r 
 6. 

Pa
uli

ne
 D

un
n 

    
Sp

ort
s 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
an

d H
ea

lth
y 

Lif
es

tyl
es

 
Ma

na
ge

r 
  

    6. 
Ma

rch
 20

09
 

      7. 
 U

nd
erw

ay
 

an
 en

d i
n A

pri
l 

20
10

. 
 Co

mp
let

ed
 

  Co
mp

let
ed

 
 Dis

ab
ility

 Sp
ort

 in
 

To
we

r H
am

let
s 

Br
oc

hu
re 

pro
du

ce
d 

 Co
mp

let
ed

 
 Re

vie
w 

co
nd

uc
ted

 
bu

t  
du

e t
o i

ns
uff

icie
nt 

fun
din

g u
na

ble
 to

  
im

ple
me

nt 
tra

ns
po

rt 
sc

he
me

 
 GL

L w
ork

ing
 w

ith
 

CL
C 

to 
inc

rea
se

 th
e 

nu
mb

er 
of 

sta
ff 

em
plo

ye
d w

ith
 

dis
ab

iliti
es

. 

Page 222



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t Y
ou
ng
 pe

op
le’
s p

art
ici
pa
tio
n i
n s

po
rts
 le
ad
ing

 up
 to
 th
e O

lym
pic

s –
 A
pp
en
dix

 4 
Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 N
ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
ies
 
Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 M
arc

h 
20
10
 

R6
. T

ha
t b

ud
ge

t p
rov

isio
ns

 
be

 m
ad

e t
o m

ain
str

ea
m 

Sp
ort

s S
ea

rch
 in

 th
e w

ork
 

tha
t th

e C
ou

nc
il d

oe
s, 

ex
plo

rin
g t

he
 po

ten
tia

l to
 ro

ll 
ou

t S
po

rts
 Se

arc
h t

o s
pe

cia
l 

sc
ho

ols
 in

 th
e b

oro
ug

h w
ith

 
a v

iew
 to

 ca
ptu

rin
g d

ata
 fo

r 
dis

ab
led

 yo
un

g p
eo

ple
.  

 N/
A  

N/
A 

N/
A 

N/
A –

 no
 pr

og
res

s 
ne

ed
ed

. 

R7
. T

ha
t th

e S
po

rts
 an

d 
Ph

ys
ica

l A
cti

vit
ies

 Se
rvi

ce
 

se
ek

 to
 in

cre
as

e w
ay

s i
n 

wh
ich

 bu
dg

et 
all

oc
ati

on
s 

ca
n b

e i
nc

rea
se

d t
o f

urt
he

r 
ma

ins
tre

am
 sp

ort
s a

cti
vit

ies
.   Co

ntr
ac

t re
ne

go
tia

tio
ns

 
in 

20
09

, re
su

ltin
g i

n  
se

cu
rin

g a
n  

ad
dit

ion
al 

pro
fit 

 
sh

are
 w

hic
h i

s  
be

ing
 us

ed
 to

  
de

live
r a

dd
itio

na
l  

sp
ort

ing
 in

itia
tiv

es
 fo

r th
e c

om
mu

nit
y. 

He
ad

 of
 Sp

ort
 & 

Ph
ys

ica
l A

cti
vit

y 
 

Ma
rch

 20
09

  - 
20

12
 C

on
tra

ct 
ren

eg
oti

ati
on

s 
in 

20
09

, re
su

ltin
g i

n  
se

cu
rin

g a
n 

ad
dit

ion
al 

pro
fit 

 
sh

are
 w

hic
h i

s b
ein

g 
us

ed
 

to 
de

live
r a

dd
itio

na
l 

sp
ort

ing
 

ini
tia

tiv
es

 fo
r th

e 
Co

mm
un

ity
. 

R8
. T

ha
t a

nn
ua

l b
oro

ug
h-

wid
e m

ajo
r c

om
mu

nit
y 

ev
en

ts 
are

 or
ga

nis
ed

 in
 

wh
ich

 yo
un

g p
eo

ple
 

pa
rtic

ipa
te 

in 
Ol

ym
pic

 an
d 

Pa
ral

ym
pic

 sp
ort

s, 
bu

ild
ing

 

Co
mp

let
ed

.  
Pa

ral
ym

pic
 da

ys
 

he
ld 

at 
Mi

le 
En

d  
Pa

rk 
& N

ew
ha

m 
 

Le
isu

re 
Ce

ntr
es

 
 

Pa
uli

ne
 D

un
n 

Sp
ort

s 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d 

He
alt

hy
 Li

fes
tyl

es
 

Ma
na

ge
r 

 

An
nu

al 
pro

gra
mm

e 
sta

rtin
g M

arc
h 2

00
9  

  

1. 
As

 Pe
r O

cto
be

r 
20

09
 

    
 U

pd
ate

 
  2. 

De
live

red
 in

 

Page 223



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t Y
ou
ng
 pe

op
le’
s p

art
ici
pa
tio
n i
n s

po
rts
 le
ad
ing

 up
 to
 th
e O

lym
pic

s –
 A
pp
en
dix

 4 
Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 N
ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
ies
 
Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 M
arc

h 
20
10
 

ch
am

pio
ns

 to
 pa

rtic
ipa

te 
in 

the
 ev

en
ts 

thr
ou

gh
 sc

ho
ols

 
an

d s
po

rts
 pr

og
ram

me
s; 

  

20
09

/10
, 

Ac
tiv

itie
s i

n 
20

10
/11

/12
 

de
pe

nd
en

t o
n 

fun
din

g f
rom

 20
12

 
Un

it 
  3.

   O
ng

oin
g 

R9
. T

ha
t th

e C
ou

nc
il e

xp
lor

e 
the

 po
ss

ibi
lity

 of
 ne

go
tia

tin
g 

fre
e t

ick
ets

 or
 su

bs
ide

d r
ate

 
of 

en
try

 to
 th

e O
lym

pic
s a

nd
 

Pa
ral

ym
pic

s f
or 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le,

 pa
rtic

ula
rly

 fo
r 

dis
ab

led
 yo

un
g p

eo
ple

 to
 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e t
he

 Pa
ral

ym
pic

 
Ga

me
s. 

 
   

LO
CO

G 
co

nfi
rm

ed
 no

 fre
e 

tic
ke

t p
oli

cy
 an

d  
the

y w
ill r

ev
iew

 
the

 po
ss

ibi
lity

 of
  

en
ab

lin
g p

art
ne

r  
org

an
isa

tio
ns

 to
  

blo
ck

 bo
ok

 tic
ke

ts 
 

1. 
Nic

k S
ma

les
 

Se
rvi

ce
 H

ea
d 

20
12

 
         2. 

Nic
k S

ma
les

 
Se

rvi
ce

 H
ea

d 
20

12
 

 

1. 
Au

gu
st 

20
11

 
           2. 

Au
gu

st 
20

11
 

 Fu
ll d

eta
ils 

of 
tic

ke
tin

g p
oli

cy
 an

d 
de

tai
ls 

of 
pla

nn
ed

 
tes

t e
ve

nts
 ha

ve
 no

t 
ye

t b
ee

n r
ele

as
ed

 
bu

t it
 is

 cl
ea

r th
at 

the
re 

wil
l b

e n
o f

ree
 

tic
ke

ts.
 H

en
ce

 th
e 

po
ss

ibi
lity

 of
 

ne
go

tia
tin

g f
ree

 
tic

ke
ts 

an
d 

su
bs

idi
se

d e
ve

nt 
en

try
 is

 no
t a

n 
op

tio
n a

nd
 R

9 
sh

ou
ld 

be
 re

mo
ve

d 
fro

m 
the

 ne
xt 

up
da

te 
of 

thi
s 

str
ate

gy
.  

 

Page 224



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t Y
ou
ng
 pe

op
le’
s p

art
ici
pa
tio
n i
n s

po
rts
 le
ad
ing

 up
 to
 th
e O

lym
pic

s –
 A
pp
en
dix

 4 
Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 N
ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
ies
 
Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 M
arc

h 
20
10
 

Ac
ce

ss
ibi

lity
 to

 
ev

en
ts,

 sp
ec

ific
all

y 
the

 W
alk

ing
 ra

ce
 

an
d M

ara
tho

n –
 

LO
CO

G 
an

d t
he

 
OD

A w
ill e

ns
ure

 
tha

t a
ll e

ve
nts

 an
d 

ve
nu

es
 ar

e f
ull

y 
ac

ce
ss

ibl
e. 

 
R1

0. 
Th

at 
an

 ex
ten

siv
e 

pu
bli

cit
y c

am
pa

ign
 is

 pu
t in

 
pla

ce
 to

 pr
om

ote
 po

sit
ive

 
im

ag
es

 of
 yo

un
g d

isa
ble

d 
pe

op
le 

tak
ing

 pa
rt i

n s
po

rts
 

as
 pa

rt o
f th

e p
ub

lici
ty 

str
ate

gy
 to

 pr
om

ote
 

Ol
ym

pic
s a

nd
 Pa

ral
ym

pic
s 

in 
To

we
r H

am
let

s. 
 

  

 
Pa

ul 
Ar

mi
tag

e 
Co

mm
un

ica
tio

ns
 

an
d C

om
mu

nit
y 

En
ga

ge
me

nt 
Ma

na
ge

r –
 20

12
 

Un
it 

 

De
ce

mb
er 

20
08

 
Po

sit
ive

 im
ag

es
 of

 
pe

op
le 

wit
h 

dis
ab

iliti
es

 ta
kin

g 
pa

rt i
n s

po
rt a

re 
be

ing
 pr

om
ote

d 
thr

ou
gh

ou
t 

co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns

 
co

lla
ter

al.
 Sp

ec
ific

 
ac

tiv
itie

s/o
pp

ort
un

iti
es

 fo
r p

eo
ple

 w
ith

 
dis

ab
iliti

es
 ha

ve
 

be
en

 un
de

rta
ke

n 
inc

lud
ing

 a 
PM

A 
sp

ort
s d

ay
. W

e a
re 

wo
rki

ng
 w

ith
 lo

ca
l 

sc
ho

ols
 in

clu
din

g 
Ste

ph
en

 H
aw

kin
g t

o 
ce

leb
rat

e t
he

 W
int

er 

Page 225



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t Y
ou
ng
 pe

op
le’
s p

art
ici
pa
tio
n i
n s

po
rts
 le
ad
ing

 up
 to
 th
e O

lym
pic

s –
 A
pp
en
dix

 4 
Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 N
ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
ies
 
Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 M
arc

h 
20
10
 

Ol
ym

pic
s t

hro
ug

h 
an

 Ic
e S

ka
tin

g 
ev

en
t.  

An
d w

e 
en

su
re 

a 2
01

2 
pre

se
nc

e a
t a

ll 
rel

ev
an

t e
ve

nt/
s 

org
an

ise
d b

y A
du

lt 
Se

rvi
ce

s c
en

tre
d o

n 
en

ga
gin

g w
ith

 
dis

ab
led

 pe
op

le.
  

R1
1. 

Th
at 

the
 se

rvi
ce

 fin
d 

wa
ys

 in
 w

hic
h t

he
 

rel
ati

on
sh

ip 
wit

h t
he

 pr
iva

te 
se

cto
r c

an
 be

 fu
rth

er 
de

ve
lop

ed
 to

 en
ha

nc
e t

he
 

fun
din

g a
va

ila
ble

 to
 su

pp
ort

 
yo

un
g p

eo
ple

’s 
en

ga
ge

me
nt 

in 
sp

ort
s a

nd
 ph

ys
ica

l 
ac

tiv
itie

s, 
ex

plo
rin

g i
n 

pa
rtic

ula
r w

ay
s i

n w
hic

h t
he

 
Ta

ble
 Te

nn
is 

for
 Ki

ds
 (T

TK
) 

mo
de

l c
an

 be
 ad

op
ted

  to
 

en
ga

ge
 th

e p
riv

ate
 se

cto
r to

 
fun

d a
 ra

ng
e o

f s
po

rts
; 

     Co
mp

let
ed

 Au
g 2

00
8 

1. 
Pa

ul 
Ma

rtin
dil

l 
He

ad
 of

 
Cu

ltu
ral

 
Se

rvi
ce

s  
 2. 

Pa
ul 

Ma
rtin

dil
l 

    
He

ad
 of

 
    

Cu
ltu

ral
 

    
Se

rvi
ce

s 

1. 
Ma

rch
 20

09
 

    2. 
Oc

tob
er 

20
08

 

Co
mp

let
ed

. 
    Co

mp
let

ed
. 

R1
2. 

Th
at 

for
ma

lise
d 

ag
ree

me
nts

 as
 pa

rt o
f 

ho
us

ing
 st

oc
k t

ran
sfe

r a
re 

To
we

r H
am

let
s H

om
es

 th
e A

rm
s 

Le
ng

th 
Ma

na
ge

me
nt 

Or
ga

nis
ati

on
 is

 
no

w 
live

 an
d s

toc
k t

ran
sfe

r is
 no

 lo
ng

er 
Am

an
 D

alv
i, 

Dir
ec

tor
 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
an

d 
N/

A 
Th

ere
 ha

ve
 be

en
 no

 
sto

ck
 tra

ns
fer

s 
sin

ce
 th

is 

Page 226



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t Y
ou
ng
 pe

op
le’
s p

art
ici
pa
tio
n i
n s

po
rts
 le
ad
ing

 up
 to
 th
e O

lym
pic

s –
 A
pp
en
dix

 4 
Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 N
ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
ies
 
Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 M
arc

h 
20
10
 

str
en

gth
en

ed
 to

 se
cu

re 
the

 
pro

vis
ion

 of
 sp

ort
s f

ac
iliti

es
 

ba
se

d o
n a

 st
ud

y o
f th

e 
loc

al 
yo

uth
 po

pu
lat

ion
, 

inc
lud

ing
 di

sa
ble

d y
ou

ng
 

pe
op

le,
 ex

ist
ing

 fa
cili

tie
s 

an
d p

roj
ec

ted
 ne

ed
s. 

 
  

ac
tiv

e 
Re

ne
wa

l   
rec

om
me

nd
ati

on
 

wa
s m

ad
e. 

 
In 

the
 O

ce
an

 Es
tat

e 
re-

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
pro

po
sa

ls 
inc

lud
e 

pro
vis

ion
 of

 
en

ha
nc

ed
 pl

ay
 an

d 
op

en
 sp

ac
e. 

R1
3. 

Th
at 

wo
rk 

is 
de

ve
lop

ed
 

wit
h W

oo
d W

ha
rf w

ith
 a 

vie
w 

to 
se

cu
rin

g 
op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r w

ate
r 

sp
ort

s i
n t

he
 bo

rou
gh

.  
 Th

e W
oo

d W
ha

rf P
lan

nin
g P

erm
iss

ion
, 

ap
pro

ve
d 1

5 M
ay

 20
09

, s
ec

ure
d 

thr
ou

gh
 a 

S1
06

 ag
ree

me
nt 

a t
ota

l 
fin

an
cia

l c
on

trib
uti

on
 to

wa
rds

 of
f-s

ite
 

lei
su

re 
pro

vis
ion

 of
 £4

,55
2,8

59
.  T

he
 

ag
ree

me
nt 

do
es

 no
t id

en
tify

 pa
rtic

ula
r 

pro
po

sa
ls 

for
 th

e c
on

trib
uti

on
s a

nd
 th

is 
co

ntr
ibu

tio
n c

ou
ld 

be
 us

ed
 to

wa
rds

 
pro

vis
ion

 fo
r w

ate
r s

po
rts

 w
ith

in 
the

 
bo

rou
gh

.  
 Fu

rth
erm

ore
, th

e a
pp

lica
tio

n i
nc

lud
ed

 
a W

ate
r S

pa
ce

 an
d P

ub
lic 

Re
alm

 
Str

ate
gy

.  W
ith

in 
thi

s s
tra

teg
y t

he
 

pro
po

sa
ls 

inc
lud

ed
 pr

ov
isio

n f
or 

a 
ter

rac
ed

 sm
all

 bo
at 

lau
nc

h a
rea

 fo
r 

su
pe

rvi
se

d b
oa

tin
g a

cti
vit

ies
 su

ch
 as

 
ca

no
ein

g a
nd

 ka
ya

kin
g. 

  

Am
an

 D
alv

i, 
Dir

ec
tor

 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d 

Re
ne

wa
l   

De
ce

mb
er 

20
08

 
Th

e W
oo

d W
ha

rf 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

ha
s n

ot 
co

mm
en

ce
d d

ue
 to

 
the

 ec
on

om
ic 

do
wn

tur
n. 

 

Page 227



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t Y
ou
ng
 pe

op
le’
s p

art
ici
pa
tio
n i
n s

po
rts
 le
ad
ing

 up
 to
 th
e O

lym
pic

s –
 A
pp
en
dix

 4 
Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 N
ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
ies
 
Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 M
arc

h 
20
10
 

R1
4. 

Th
at 

co
ns

ide
rat

ion
 be

 
giv

en
 to

 w
ha

t o
the

r h
os

t 
bo

rou
gh

s h
av

e b
ee

n 
inv

olv
ed

 in
 to

 in
cre

as
e 

sp
ort

s p
art

icip
ati

on
 w

ith
 a 

vie
w 

to 
ad

op
tin

g w
ha

t w
ork

s 
we

ll in
 in

cre
as

ing
 

pa
rtic

ipa
tio

n, 
an

d t
ha

t 
aff

ord
ab

le 
ac

ce
ss

 is
 

ne
go

tia
ted

 fo
r y

ou
ng

 pe
op

le 
in 

To
we

r H
am

let
s t

o l
eis

ure
 

fac
iliti

es
 in

 ot
he

r h
os

t 
bo

rou
gh

s, 
pa

rtic
ula

rly
 as

 a 
leg

ac
y o

f th
e O

lym
pic

s a
nd

 
to 

inc
rea

se
 co

nta
ct 

be
tw

ee
n 

yo
un

g p
eo

ple
 in

 th
e d

iffe
ren

t 
bo

rou
gh

s t
hro

ug
h e

ve
nts

 
an

d c
om

pe
titi

on
s. 

 
 

1.S
po

rts
 O

ffic
ers

 gr
ou

p l
ea

d i
s i

n C
LC

 
 2. 

Fu
ll e

ng
ag

em
en

t in
 le

ga
cy

 m
as

ter
 

pla
n c

on
su

lta
tio

n p
roc

es
s i

nc
lud

ing
 

fut
ure

 us
e o

f le
ga

cy
 ve

nu
es

 – 
res

po
ns

e t
o L

on
do

n A
ss

em
bly

 
rev

iew
 of

 ve
nu

es
 in

 le
ga

cy
 

 3. 
Fu

tur
e A

cti
on

 

1. 
He

ad
 of

 Sp
ort

 
An

d P
hy

sic
al 

Ac
tiv

ity
 

 2. 
He

ad
 of

 Sp
ort

 
An

d P
hy

sic
al 

Ac
tiv

ity
 

  3. 
He

ad
 of

 Sp
ort

  
An

d P
hy

sic
al 

Ac
tiv

ity
 

1. 
Ma

rch
 20

09
 

   2. 
On

go
ing

 
     3. 

Ma
rch

 20
10

 

Dr
aft

 5 
Bo

rou
gh

 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

pla
ns

 pr
od

uc
ed

 fo
r 

Aq
ua

tic
s, 

Ath
let

ics
, 

Ba
sk

etb
all

, 
Dis

ab
ility

 Sp
ort

, 
Ho

ck
ey

. 

R1
5. 

Th
at 

the
 PC

T d
ev

elo
p 

tar
ge

ted
 w

ork
 w

ith
 th

os
e 

wh
o a

re 
at 

he
alt

h r
isk

 du
e t

o 
ob

es
ity

, w
ith

 pr
im

ary
 fo

cu
s 

on
 th

os
e w

ho
 ar

e 
pa

rtic
ula

rly
 ob

es
e a

nd
 m

ay
 

lac
k c

on
fid

en
ce

 to
 en

ga
ge

 in
 

sp
ort

s a
nd

 ph
ys

ica
l 

Co
mp

let
ed

 
 Co

mp
let

ed
.  

Fu
nd

ing
 fo

r  
ME

ND
 ce

as
ed

 (n
ew

 fu
nd

ing
 re

ce
ntl

y 
se

cu
red

 fro
m 

a c
om

me
rci

al 
sp

on
so

r) 
  

1.P
au

lin
e D

un
n 

Sp
ort

s 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d H

ea
lth

y 
Lif

es
tyl

es
 

Ma
na

ge
r 

 2.P
au

lin
e D

un
n 

1. 
Se

pt 
20

08
 to

 
Ma

rch
 20

10
 

     2. 
Se

pt 
20

08
 to

 

 1,
 2,

 3:
 N

HS
 TH

 
rec

en
tly

 
co

mm
iss

ion
ed

 
ev

alu
ati

on
 of

 al
l 

ch
ild

ren
’s 

we
igh

t 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

se
rvi

ce
s i

n b
oro

ug
h; 

rec
om

me
nd

ati
on

s 

Page 228



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t Y
ou
ng
 pe

op
le’
s p

art
ici
pa
tio
n i
n s

po
rts
 le
ad
ing

 up
 to
 th
e O

lym
pic

s –
 A
pp
en
dix

 4 
Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 N
ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
ies
 
Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 M
arc

h 
20
10
 

ac
tiv

itie
s; 

    Co
mp

let
ed

 
    On

go
ing

 
 W

e a
re 

in 
the

 pr
oc

es
s o

f e
va

lua
tin

g 
bo

th 
the

 BE
ST

 an
d A

cti
v8

 
pro

gra
mm

es
, re

po
rt d

ue
 in

 Ja
nu

ary
 

20
10

 
              

Sp
ort

s 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d H

ea
lth

y 
Lif

es
tyl

es
 

Ma
na

ge
r 

 3.E
sth

er 
Tre

nc
ha

rd-
Ma

be
re 

– 
As

so
cia

te 
Dir

ec
tor

y o
f 

Pu
bli

c H
ea

lth
 

 

Ma
rch

 20
10

 
      3. 

Es
tab

lish
ed

   
pro

gra
mm

es
 – 

on
go

ing
 

        4. 
Im

ple
me

nta
tio

n 
of 

 ne
w 

pro
gra

mm
es

 
co

mm
en

cin
g 

Se
pte

mb
er 

/ 
Oc

tob
er 

20
08

 
   

are
 be

ing
 

im
ple

me
nte

d, 
se

rvi
ce

s r
es

ha
pe

d 
to 

pro
vid

e s
ea

ml
es

s 
se

rvi
ce

 in
 or

de
r to

 
im

pro
ve

 ef
fic

ac
y. 

 In
 ad

dit
ion

 to
 2 

cu
rre

nt 
loc

al 
se

rvi
ce

s (
BE

ST
 an

d 
Ac

tiv
8) 

na
tio

na
l 

pro
gra

mm
e (

ME
ND

) 
ha

s s
ou

gh
t p

riv
ate

 
fin

an
ce

 an
d w

ill 
de

live
r 1

8 
pro

gra
mm

es
 up

 to
 

Ma
rch

 20
12

. 
 4: 

On
go

ing
 ac

tiv
e 

pla
y a

nd
 sp

ort
s 

pro
gra

mm
es

 ha
ve

 
be

en
 co

mm
iss

ion
ed

 
by

 PC
T f

rom
 To

y 
Ho

us
e L

ibr
ari

es
, 

Pla
y A

ss
oc

iat
ion

 
To

we
r H

am
let

s 
(P

AT
H)

 an
d O

sm
an

i 
Tru

st.
 

Page 229



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t Y
ou
ng
 pe

op
le’
s p

art
ici
pa
tio
n i
n s

po
rts
 le
ad
ing

 up
 to
 th
e O

lym
pic

s –
 A
pp
en
dix

 4 
Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 N
ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
ies
 
Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 M
arc

h 
20
10
 

5. 
Th

e r
es

ea
rch

 ph
as

e o
f th

e s
oc

ial
 

ma
rke

tin
g p

roj
ec

t h
as

 be
en

 
co

mp
let

ing
 an

d f
ina

l re
po

rt w
ith

 
rec

om
me

nd
ati

on
s d

ue
 by

 en
d o

f 
No

ve
mb

er.
   

5. 
Oc

tob
er 

20
08

 
 

5: 
On

go
ing

 – 
se

e 
be

low
 

 As
 a 

res
ult

 of
 be

ing
 

aw
ard

ed
 ‘H

ea
lth

y 
Bo

rou
gh

’ s
tat

us
 in

 
20

08
 a 

bro
ad

 
po

rtfo
lio

 of
 

pre
ve

nta
tiv

e w
ork

 is
 

be
ing

 de
live

red
 

ac
ros

s t
he

 bo
rou

gh
 

by
 a 

ran
ge

 of
 

sta
tut

ory
, n

on
-

sta
tut

ory
 an

d p
riv

ate
 

pa
rtn

ers
 ai

me
d a

t 
de

live
rin

g i
nn

ov
ati

ve
 

ap
pro

ac
he

s t
o 

rem
ov

ing
 ba

rrie
rs 

to 
ph

ys
ica

l a
cti

vit
y f

or 
ch

ild
ren

 an
d 

fam
ilie

s. 
  

R1
6. 

Th
at 

the
 PC

T i
n 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

 w
ith

 LB
TH

 
sh

ou
ld 

de
live

r h
ea

lth
 

pro
mo

tio
n a

s p
art

 of
 th

e 
Ol

ym
pic

s p
ub

lici
ty 

to 
inc

lud
e 

Se
e a

bo
ve

 
 Th

e s
oc

ial
 m

ark
eti

ng
 pr

oje
ct 

is 
no

w 
in 

its
 pr

im
ary

 re
se

arc
h p

ha
se

  
 

Es
the

r T
ren

ch
ard

-
Ma

be
re 

– 
As

so
cia

te 
Dir

ec
tor

y o
f 

Pu
bli

c H
ea

lth
 

Co
nv

en
e s

tee
rin

g 
gro

up
 – 

Se
pte

mb
er 

08
 

 Fin
ali

se
 

So
cia

l m
ark

eti
ng

 
org

an
isa

tio
n 

aw
ard

ed
 co

ntr
ac

t to
 

de
live

r P
ha

se
 1.

 
Lit

era
tur

e r
ev

iew
, 

Page 230



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t Y
ou
ng
 pe

op
le’
s p

art
ici
pa
tio
n i
n s

po
rts
 le
ad
ing

 up
 to
 th
e O

lym
pic

s –
 A
pp
en
dix

 4 
Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 N
ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
ies
 
Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 M
arc

h 
20
10
 

me
ss

ag
es

 on
 th

e d
am

ag
ing

 
eff

ec
ts 

of 
dru

gs
 an

d 
sm

ok
ing

 an
d t

ha
t th

e 
pu

bli
cit

y c
am

pa
ign

 be
 

su
pp

ort
ed

 by
 ce

leb
riti

es
 to

 
pro

mo
te 

a ‘
co

ol’
 im

ag
e o

f 
pa

rtic
ipa

tin
g i

n s
po

rts
 at

 
loc

al 
ve

nu
es

. 
   

Th
e L

et’
s M

ak
e i

t H
ap

pe
n b

ran
d 

tog
eth

er 
wit

h a
n a

cc
om

pa
ny

ing
 

Ma
kin

g i
t H

ap
pe

n b
ran

d h
av

e b
ee

n 
su

cc
es

sfu
lly 

tra
de

 m
ark

ed
 an

d 
dis

cu
ss

ion
s a

bo
ut 

the
 us

e o
f th

e 
bra

nd
s w

ith
in 

the
 so

cia
l m

ark
eti

ng
 

ca
mp

aig
n a

re 
on

go
ing

 

an
d N

ick
 Sm

ale
s 

Se
rvi

ce
 H

ea
d 

20
12

 U
nit

 
 

sp
ec

ific
ati

on
 an

d 
ad

ve
rtis

e t
en

de
r –

 
Se

pte
mb

er 
08

 
 Aw

ard
 co

ntr
ac

t 
No

ve
mb

er 
08

 
Co

mp
let

e p
ha

se
 1 

(re
se

arc
h a

nd
 

tes
tin

g o
f 

me
ss

ag
es

)  
Ap

ril 
09

 
Ph

as
e 2

 – 
Im

ple
me

nta
tio

n o
f 

ca
mp

aig
n 2

00
9-1

2 
 Tra

de
 M

ark
 

lice
ns

ed
 O

cto
be

r 
20

08
 

se
co

nd
ary

 an
d 

pri
ma

ry 
res

ea
rch

 
co

nd
uc

ted
 an

d 
rec

om
me

nd
ati

on
s 

ma
de

. W
ork

 ha
s 

be
en

 ex
ten

de
d t

o 
all

ow
 ‘c

o-c
rea

tio
n’ 

wo
rk 

wit
h t

arg
ete

d 
gro

up
s t

o o
cc

ur.
 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 
ap

pro
ac

h c
on

tin
ue

s 
an

d 
rec

om
me

nd
ati

on
s 

an
d o

utp
uts

 ar
e 

be
ing

 fe
d i

nto
 AM

P 
we

bs
ite

 re
de

sig
n, 

lin
ke

d t
o 

se
gm

en
tat

ion
 to

ol 
tha

t w
ill l

ink
 yo

un
g 

pe
op

le 
to 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 lo
ca

l 
ac

tiv
itie

s a
nd

 
pro

du
cti

on
 of

 
ma

rke
tin

g p
lan

. 
Ph

as
e 2

 (2
01

0-1
1) 

wil
l in

vo
lve

 
co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 

Page 231



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t Y
ou
ng
 pe

op
le’
s p

art
ici
pa
tio
n i
n s

po
rts
 le
ad
ing

 up
 to
 th
e O

lym
pic

s –
 A
pp
en
dix

 4 
Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 N
ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
ies
 
Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 M
arc

h 
20
10
 

po
ss

ibl
y l

oc
al 

org
an

isa
tio

n t
o d

riv
e 

for
wa

rd 
loc

al 
aw

are
ne

ss
 

ca
mp

aig
n. 

 

Page 232



 Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y R

ev
iew

 W
or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n A

ffo
rd
ab
le 
Ho
me

ow
ne
rsh

ip 
– A

pp
en
dix

 5 
Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Re
sp
on
se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Le
ad
 O
ffic

er 
Da
te 

R1
 Th

at 
wid

er 
pu

bli
cit

y a
nd

 pr
om

oti
on

 is
 

un
de

rta
ke

n o
f th

e H
ou

sin
g O

pti
on

s s
erv

ice
 

inc
lud

ing
 si

gn
-po

sti
ng

 fro
m 

Le
ttin

gs
 an

d H
om

ele
ss

 
Se

rvi
ce

s 
 

Ho
me

les
s S

erv
ice

s a
nd

 th
e L

ett
ing

s 
Se

rvi
ce

 ar
e c

urr
en

tly
 be

ing
 re

-st
ruc

tur
ed

 
int

o o
ne

 se
cti

on
 un

de
r D

ev
elo

pm
en

t a
nd

 
Re

ne
wa

l D
ire

cto
rat

e a
nd

 a 
Ho

us
ing

 
Op

tio
ns

 se
rvi

ce
 w

ill b
e s

et 
up

 as
 pa

rt o
f 

thi
s. 

 
A r

ev
iew

 is
 cu

rre
ntl

y u
nd

erw
ay

 to
 

co
nfi

gu
re 

ho
w 

be
st 

to 
se

t u
p t

he
 ne

w 
se

rvi
ce

 an
d t

his
 w

ill i
nc

lud
e m

ore
 pu

bli
cit

y 
of 

the
 ho

us
ing

 op
tio

ns
 op

en
 to

 re
sid

en
ts.

  
 A s

uc
ce

ss
ful

 H
ou

sin
g O

pti
on

s O
pe

n D
ay

 
wa

s h
eld

 th
is 

ye
ar 

an
d i

s p
rog

ram
me

d t
o 

tak
e p

lac
e n

ex
t y

ea
r. 

 

Ja
ck
ie 
Od
un
oy
e, 

He
ad
 of
 St
rat
eg
y, 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 
an
d 

Re
ne
wa
l 

Oc
tob

er 
20
09
 

     Ap
ril 
20
10
 

    Au
gu
st 
20
10
 

R2
 Th

at 
the

 D
ev

elo
pm

en
t a

nd
 R

en
ew

al 
Dir

ec
tor

ate
 

co
ns

ide
r lo

ca
l lif

es
tyl

e i
ss

ue
s a

nd
 em

ph
as

ise
 

pro
vis

ion
 of

 se
pa

rat
e k

itc
he

n a
nd

 liv
ing

 sp
ac

e (
no

t 
op

en
 pl

an
) in

 th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en

t o
f fu

tur
e s

ch
em

es
 

 

In 
all

 pl
an

nin
g p

re-
ap

pli
ca

tio
n m

ee
tin

gs
 

off
ice

rs 
do

 try
 to

 in
flu

en
ce

 th
e d

es
ign

 of
 

aff
ord

ab
le 

ho
us

ing
 un

its
 an

d s
tre

ss
 th

at 
the

re 
sh

ou
ld 

be
 se

pa
rat

e k
itc

he
n a

rea
s i

n 
fam

ily 
siz

ed
 un

its
.  H

ow
ev

er,
 th

is 
is 

no
t 

cu
rre

ntl
y w

ritt
en

 in
to 

ou
r p

lan
nin

g p
oli

cy
.  

As
 ou

r n
ew

 Lo
ca

l D
ev

elo
pm

en
t 

Fra
me

wo
rk 

em
erg

es
 it 

wil
l b

e s
up

po
rte

d 
by

 a 
ran

ge
 of

 Su
pp

lem
en

tar
y P

lan
nin

g 
Do

cu
me

nts
 (S

PD
s).

  T
he

 H
ou

sin
g S

PD
 

wil
l s

pe
cif

y t
he

 ne
ed

 fo
r th

e s
ep

ara
tio

n o
f 

kit
ch

en
 fa

cili
tie

s i
n f

am
ily 

siz
ed

 ho
us

ing
 

un
its

.  T
he

 G
rea

ter
 Lo

nd
on

 Au
tho

rity
 

Je
n R

ich
ard

so
n, 

St
rat
eg
y O

ffic
er,
 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 
an
d 

Re
ne
wa
l 

Ma
rch

 20
11
 

Page 233



De
sig

n G
uid

e a
lso

 no
w 

req
uir

es
 th

e 
se

pa
rat

ion
 of

 ki
tch

en
s i

n u
nit

s l
arg

er 
tha

n 
3 b

ed
roo

ms
. 

 
R3

 Th
at 

the
 D

ev
elo

pm
en

t a
nd

 R
en

ew
al 

Dir
ec

tor
ate

 
wo

rk 
wit

h t
he

 H
om

es
 an

d C
om

mu
nit

ies
 Ag

en
cy

 to
 

re-
as

se
ss

 in
ter

me
dia

te 
ren

t le
ve

ls 
wit

h a
 vi

ew
 to

 
ma

kin
g i

t a
ffo

rda
ble

 fo
r lo

ca
l p

eo
ple

 
 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
an

d R
en

ew
al 

ha
s 

co
nti

nu
ou

sly
 lo

bb
ied

 th
e H

om
es

 an
d 

Co
mm

un
itie

s A
ge

nc
y (

HC
A)

 to
 re

du
ce

 
int

erm
ed

iat
e r

en
t le

ve
ls.

 Th
is 

wa
s a

lso
 

rai
se

d d
uri

ng
 th

e c
on

su
lta

tio
n o

n t
he

 
Ma

yo
r’s

 H
ou

sin
g S

tra
teg

y. 
HC

A r
en

t 
lev

els
 (w

he
n g

ran
ts 

are
 in

vo
lve

d) 
are

 
de

ter
mi

ne
d n

ati
on

all
y a

nd
 ba

se
d o

n a
 

pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 pr

iva
te 

se
cto

r re
nt 

lev
els

.  
W

e h
av

e a
lwa

ys
 ar

gu
ed

 th
at 

int
erm

ed
iat

e 
ren

t le
ve

ls 
sh

ou
ld 

be
 ba

se
d o

n s
oc

ial
 re

nt 
lev

els
 pl

us
 a 

pe
rce

nta
ge

. D
ev

elo
pm

en
t 

an
d R

en
ew

al 
wil

l c
on

tin
ue

 to
 pu

sh
 fo

r 
aff

ord
ab

le 
int

erm
ed

iat
e r

en
t le

ve
ls.

 
 

Ja
ck
ie 
Od
un
oy
e, 

He
ad
 of
 St
rat
eg
y, 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 
an
d 

Re
ne
wa
l 

On
-go

ing
 

R4
 Th

at 
the

 To
we

r H
am

let
s H

ou
sin

g F
oru

m 
su

pp
ort

 th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en

t o
f th

e D
isc

ou
nte

d M
ark

et 
Sa

les
 m

od
el 

wo
rki

ng
 in

 co
nju

nc
tio

n w
ith

 
de

ve
lop

ers
 

 

A p
ilo

t m
od

el 
ha

s b
ee

n p
rep

are
d o

n a
 si

te 
in 

Mi
llh

arb
ou

r, L
on

do
n E

14
; it

 is
 cu

rre
ntl

y 
in 

pre
-ap

pli
ca

tio
n s

tag
e w

ith
 pl

an
ne

rs.
 

Th
is 

mo
de

l w
ill b

e p
res

en
ted

 to
 th

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 H
ou

sin
g F

oru
m 

(TH
HF

) fo
r 

dis
cu

ss
ion

 ar
ou

nd
 fu

tur
e d

ev
elo

pm
en

ts.
   

Al
iso

n T
ho
ma

s, 
Pr
iva
te 
Se
cto

r a
nd
 

Af
for
da
ble

 
Ho
us
ing

 M
an
ag
er 

Ap
ril 
20
10
 

R5
 Th

at 
the

 D
ev

elo
pm

en
t a

nd
 R

en
ew

al 
Dir

ec
tor

ate
 

inv
es

tig
ate

 th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en

t o
f a

 sh
are

d e
qu

ity
 

sc
he

me
 op

en
 on

ly 
to 

res
ide

nts
 of

 To
we

r H
am

let
s 

 

Se
e r

es
po

ns
e t

o R
ec

om
me

nd
ati

on
 6.

 In
 

ad
dit

ion
, w

he
n H

CA
 or

 ot
he

r g
ran

t 
fun

din
g i

s i
nv

olv
ed

 w
e c

an
no

t s
pe

cif
y a

 
sc

he
me

 is
 op

en
 on

ly 
to 

loc
al 

pe
op

le.
 

N/
A 

N/
A 

R6
 Th

at 
the

 D
ev

elo
pm

en
t a

nd
 R

en
ew

al 
Dir

ec
tor

ate
 

un
de

rta
ke

 a 
ful

l fe
as

ibi
lity

 st
ud

y t
o c

on
sid

er 
the

 
W

hil
st 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
an

d R
en

ew
al 

un
de

rst
an

ds
 th

e r
ati

on
al 

be
hin

d t
his

 
N/
A 

N/
A 

 

Page 234



de
ve

lop
me

nt 
of 

a l
oc

al 
co

mm
un

ity
 la

nd
 tru

st 
mo

de
l 

us
ing

 ex
ter

na
l e

xp
ert

ise
 

mo
de

l, i
t fe

els
 it 

is 
no

t fi
na

nc
ial

ly 
via

ble
. 

W
ith

 th
e s

up
po

rt o
f L

on
do

n D
ev

elo
pm

en
t 

Ag
en

cy
, G

rea
ter

 Lo
nd

on
 Au

tho
rity

 an
d 

the
 H

om
es

 an
d C

om
mu

nit
ies

 Ag
en

cy
 a 

fea
sib

ility
 st

ud
y h

as
 be

en
 un

de
rta

ke
n w

ith
 

ex
ter

na
l e

xp
ert

s o
n a

 si
te 

ide
nti

fie
d i

n 
To

we
r H

am
let

s. 
Th

is 
sh

ow
s t

ha
t th

e 
mo

de
ls 

are
 no

t fi
na

nc
ial

ly 
so

un
d e

ve
n 

wh
ere

 fre
e l

an
d h

as
 be

en
 su

bm
itte

d b
y 

the
 C

ou
nc

il o
r w

ith
 gr

an
ts 

ob
tai

ne
d f

rom
 

ex
ter

na
l b

od
ies

 su
ch

 as
 th

e H
CA

. 
Fin

an
cia

lly 
it d

oe
s n

ot 
wo

rk 
for

 th
os

e o
n 

low
 in

co
me

s o
r fo

r fa
mi

ly 
siz

e u
nit

s. 
Th

e 
oth

er 
ch

all
en

ge
 is

 th
at 

in 
the

 cu
rre

nt 
ec

on
om

ic 
clim

ate
 it 

is 
inc

rea
sin

gly
 di

ffic
ult

 
to 

se
cu

re 
mo

rtg
ag

es
 on

 th
es

e m
od

els
. 

Th
e o

utc
om

es
 of

 th
is 

fea
sib

ility
 w

ill b
e 

dis
cu

ss
ed

 w
ith

 th
e S

cru
tin

y L
ea

d f
or 

A 
Gr

ea
t P

lac
e t

o L
ive

 to
 en

su
re 

Me
mb

ers
 

are
 aw

are
 of

 th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en

t o
f th

is 
co

nc
ep

t.  
 

Page 235



 Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n T

ac
kli
ng
 A
nti
 So

cia
l B
eh
av
iou

r –
 A
pp
en
dix

 6 
Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 N
ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
ies
 D

ate
 

Up
da
te:
 M
arc

h 2
01
0 

R1
 

Th
at 

the
 C

ou
nc

il a
nd

 
all

 R
eg

ist
ere

d S
oc

ial
 

La
nd

lor
ds

 (R
SL

s) 
in 

To
we

r H
am

let
s p

rov
ide

 
Ca

bin
et 

wit
h a

n a
nn

ua
l 

rep
ort

 de
tai

lin
g h

ow
 

the
y a

re 
me

eti
ng

 th
e 

six
 st

ran
ds

 of
 th

e 
Re

sp
ec

t a
ge

nd
a. 

 Th
e i

nit
ial

 sc
op

e i
de

nti
fie

d t
ha

t th
e 

loc
al 

Au
tho

rity
 an

d T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
Ho

me
s m

an
ag

e t
he

ir A
SB

 da
ta 

on
 

on
e d

ata
ba

se
, 6

 ot
he

rs 
ma

na
ge

 th
eir

 
op

era
tio

ns
 on

 a 
dif

fer
en

t, j
oin

tly
 

pu
rch

as
ed

 da
tab

as
e, 

wh
ilst

 th
e 

rem
ain

ing
 R

SL
s o

pe
rat

e 
ind

ep
en

de
ntl

y. 
 

 W
e h

av
e e

xp
eri

en
ce

d p
rob

lem
s 

pu
llin

g t
he

 in
for

ma
tio

n t
og

eth
er.

 
 Aft

er 
ne

go
tia

tio
ns

 w
ith

 th
e 6

 R
SL

s 
tha

t h
av

e p
urc

ha
se

d t
he

ir o
wn

 
sy

ste
m 

the
 C

om
mu

nit
y S

afe
ty 

AS
B 

an
aly

st 
ha

s b
ee

n g
ive

n a
cc

es
s t

o 
the

ir d
ata

ba
se

, w
e h

av
e d

ev
elo

pe
d 

an
d i

nfo
rm

ati
on

 sh
ari

ng
 pr

oto
co

l a
nd

 
we

 ar
e c

urr
en

tly
 de

ve
lop

ing
 a 

joi
nt 

pro
du

ct.
   

 Ph
ilip

pa
 C

hip
pin

g, 
Po

licy
 & 

Vic
tim

s 
Ma

na
ge

r. 

  Co
mp

let
ed

 
De

ce
mb

er 
20

08
 

 Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

Ja
nu

ary
 20

09
 

 Ma
rch

 20
09

 

A p
ara

lle
l in

itia
tiv

e h
as

 ta
ke

n 
pla

ce
 un

de
r th

e T
hin

k F
am

ily 
ag

en
da

 by
 th

e S
pe

cia
list

 
Pa

ren
tin

g S
erv

ice
. A

 
co

ns
ort

ium
 of

 7 
RS

Ls
 bi

d i
n 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

 w
ith

 th
e F

am
ily 

Int
erv

en
tio

n P
roj

ec
t fo

r 
fun

din
g u

nd
er 

the
 H

ou
sin

g 
Ch

all
en

ge
 in

itia
tiv

e. 
Th

e b
id 

wa
s s

uc
ce

ss
ful

 an
d f

un
din

g i
s 

to 
be

 pr
ov

ide
d j

oin
tly

 by
 th

e 
DC

SF
 an

d t
he

 Te
na

nc
y 

Su
pp

ort
 Ag

en
cy

 to
 se

t u
p a

 
FIP

 se
rvi

ce
 in

 ea
ch

 R
SL

 
loc

ati
on

.  
Ca

se
wo

rk 
for

 up
 to

 8 
fam

ilie
s 

pe
r y

ea
r w

ill b
e p

rov
ide

d b
y 

ea
ch

 FT
E w

ork
er.

 In
 ad

dit
ion

 
thi

s w
ill p

rov
ide

 a 
dir

ec
t 

ref
err

al 
rou

te 
int

o t
he

 FI
P 

se
rvi

ce
 fo

r p
art

ne
r R

SL
s. 

Th
e 

foc
us

 of
 th

e w
ork

 w
ill b

e o
n 

the
 m

os
t c

om
ple

x a
nd

 
ch

all
en

gin
g f

am
ilie

s (
wit

h 
ch

ild
ren

 0-
19

) w
ho

 ca
us

e 
AS

B. 
Fu

nd
ing

 ru
ns

 fo
r a

 ye
ar 

an
d t

he
 su

sta
ina

bil
ity

 pl
an

 w
ill 

Page 236



be
 to

 ev
alu

ate
 cl

os
ely

 w
ith

 a 
vie

w 
to 

se
ek

ing
 pa

rtn
er 

fun
din

g n
ex

t y
ea

r b
as

ed
 on

 
the

 sa
vin

g o
n t

he
ir A

SB
 

bu
dg

ets
. 

 Re
sp

on
sib

le 
off

ice
r: N

ikk
i 

Br
ad

ley
, S

pe
cia

list
 Pa

ren
tin

g 
Ma

na
ge

r, P
are

nti
ng

 Su
pp

ort
 

Se
rvi

ce
, C

hil
dre

n’s
 Sc

ho
ols

 
an

d F
am

ilie
s D

ire
cto

rat
e. 

R2
    

  T
ha

t th
e C

ou
nc

il 
co

nti
nu

es
 to

 id
en

tify
 

tac
klin

g A
SB

 as
 a 

ke
y 

Co
rpo

rat
e P

rio
rity

. T
his

 
sh

ou
ld 

be
 re

fle
cte

d i
n 

fun
din

g d
ec

isio
ns

 an
d 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
ag

ain
st 

am
bit

iou
s t

arg
ets

, 
ref

lec
tin

g t
he

 em
ph

as
is 

tha
t re

sid
en

ts 
pla

ce
 on

 
thi

s i
ss

ue
. 

To
we

r H
am

let
s E

nfo
rce

me
nt 

off
ice

rs 
ha

ve
 no

w 
be

en
 re

cru
ite

d (
8).

 Th
ey

 
ha

ve
 co

mp
let

ed
 th

eir
 in

itia
l C

LC
 

tra
ini

ng
 an

d a
re 

cu
rre

ntl
y o

n a
 

me
nto

rin
g p

rog
ram

me
 w

ith
 ot

he
r C

LC
 

en
for

ce
me

nt 
Te

am
s. 

Th
ey

 
co

mm
en

ce
 th

eir
 M

PS
 ac

cre
dit

ati
on

 
co

urs
e t

his
 m

on
th 

an
d w

ill b
e f

orm
all

y 
rec

og
nis

ed
 on

 th
e 1

2th
 N

ov
. W

e w
ait

 
the

 re
cru

itm
en

t o
f a

 fu
rth

er 
10

. 
 10

 en
for

ce
me

nt 
da

ys
 ca

rrie
d o

ut 
in 

20
08

/09
.  

An
dy

 Ba
mb

er 
Se

rvi
ce

 H
ea

d 
Co

mm
un

ity
 Sa

fet
y 

Se
rvi

ce
s 

Co
mp

let
ed

  
                Co

mp
let

ed
  

 

 W
ork

 in
 th

is 
are

a c
on

tin
ue

s 
to 

pro
gre

ss
. W

e n
ow

 ha
ve

 a 
Lo

ca
l A

uth
ori

ty 
Po

lice
 Te

am
 

of 
15

 of
fic

ers
 th

at 
su

pp
ort

 th
e 

SN
T’s

. T
he

y a
re 

tas
ke

d a
t a

 
joi

nt 
me

eti
ng

 w
ith

 C
LC

 
Se

rvi
ce

 H
ea

ds
 an

d S
en

ior
 

Po
lice

 O
ffic

ers
. In

 ad
dit

ion
 

To
we

r h
am

let
s E

nfo
rce

me
nt 

Of
fic

ers
 (T

HE
O’

s) 
ha

ve
 be

en
 

ap
po

int
ed

 an
d a

re 
no

w 
wo

rki
ng

 ac
ros

s t
he

 bo
rou

gh
. 

Th
ey

 ar
e a

lso
 ta

sk
ed

 at
 th

e 
sa

me
 ta

sk
ing

 m
ee

tin
g a

s t
he

 
po

lici
ng

 te
am

 an
d o

fte
n w

ork
 

sid
e b

y s
ide

. T
he

 TH
EO

’s 
are

 
als

o a
cc

red
ite

d b
y t

he
 M

PS
 

an
d h

av
e a

dd
itio

na
l p

ow
ers

 to
 

de
al 

wit
h A

SB
. W

e a
re 

als
o 

ab
ou

t to
 ‘g

o l
ive

’ w
ith

 W
IFI

 

Page 237



mo
va

ble
 C

CT
V c

am
era

’s 
an

d 
a m

ob
ile

 cc
tv 

ve
hic

le 
to 

su
pp

ort
 th

e p
rio

rity
 of

 as
b 

wo
rk.

 
R3

  
Th

at 
the

 C
om

mu
nit

y 
Sa

fet
y  

    
    

    
Se

rvi
ce

 pr
ov

ide
s 

Me
mb

ers
 w

ith
 a 

bri
efi

ng
 ex

pla
ini

ng
 

ho
w 

the
 AS

B 
da

tab
as

e f
un

cti
on

s 
an

d c
om

pla
int

s a
re 

inv
es

tig
ate

d. 
Th

is 
ma

y 
we

ll b
e a

 on
e o

ff 
tra

ini
ng

 se
ss

ion
 or

 si
te 

de
mo

ns
tra

tio
n. 

No
 pr

og
res

s b
ut 

thi
s w

ill b
e a

n a
cti

on
 

thi
s y

ea
r.  

 Vis
it f

rom
 Li

me
ho

us
e C

om
mu

nit
y 

Fo
rum

 co
nd

uc
ted

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

8 t
o 

rai
se

 aw
are

ne
ss

 am
on

gs
t c

om
mu

nit
y 

gro
up

s o
f h

ow
 AS

B r
ep

ort
s a

re 
de

alt
 

wit
h. 

   

Ph
ilip

pa
 C

hip
pin

g, 
Po

licy
 & 

Vic
tim

s 
Ma

na
ge

r. 
De

ce
mb

er 
20

09
 

 Ja
nu

ary
 20

10
 

Th
e n

ew
 da

tab
as

e h
as

 no
w 

be
en

 op
era

tin
g f

or 
jus

t o
ve

r a
 

ye
ar.

 As
 ye

t n
o o

ffe
rs 

ha
ve

 
be

en
 ta

ke
n u

p. 

R4
  

Th
at 

the
 C

ou
nc

il 
sh

ou
ld 

co
nti

nu
e t

o 
wo

rk 
to 

fin
d w

ay
s t

o g
et 

all
 64

 R
SL

s o
pe

rat
ing

 
in 

the
 Bo

rou
gh

 to
 

de
ve

lop
 co

ns
ist

en
t 

sta
nd

ard
s t

o t
ac

klin
g 

AS
B. 

 
 

Ad
dit

ion
al 

arr
an

ge
me

nts
 ha

ve
 ha

d t
o 

be
 m

ad
e t

o e
ns

ure
 th

at 
the

 C
SS

 
an

aly
st 

no
w 

ha
s a

cc
es

s t
o t

he
 

da
tab

as
e u

se
d b

y 6
 R

SL
s 

 Th
e R

SL
 fo

rum
 co

nti
nu

es
 to

 w
ork

 to
 

res
pe

ct 
sta

nd
ard

s a
nd

 be
st 

pra
cti

ce
 

wo
rki

ng
. 

 CS
S a

nd
 TH

H 
ha

ve
 a 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
fra

me
wo

rk 
an

d a
 ne

w 
AS

B p
roc

ed
ure

 th
at 

co
nfo

rm
s t

o 
res

pe
ct 

sta
nd

ard
s. 

Th
is 

ha
s b

ee
n 

sh
are

d w
ith

 R
SL

s 
 

Ph
ilip

pa
 C

hip
pin

g, 
Po

licy
 & 

Vic
tim

s 
Ma

na
ge

r. 
Ma

rch
 20

09
 

             

W
e h

av
e b

ee
n d

ev
elo

pin
g a

 
ne

w 
an

aly
tic

al 
pro

du
ct 

tha
t 

bri
ng

s t
og

eth
er 

all
 C

LC
, T

HH
 

an
d P

oli
ce

 in
for

ma
tio

n i
nto

 
on

e p
rod

uc
t. W

e a
re 

ab
ou

t to
 

sta
rt w

ork
 w

ith
 th

e R
SL

’s 
tha

t 
op

era
te 

the
 ‘re

ac
t’ d

ata
ba

se
 

so
 th

at 
we

 ca
n e

xp
an

d t
he

 
da

ta 
be

ing
 us

ed
 by

 al
l o

f o
ur 

pa
rtn

ers
. In

 ad
dit

ion
 th

e 
pa

rtn
ers

hip
 te

am
 in

 
Co

mm
un

ity
 Sa

fet
y c

om
pil

e a
 

mo
nth

ly 
rep

ort
 th

at 
ide

nti
fie

s 
the

 w
ork

 an
d p

ow
ers

 be
ing

 
us

ed
 ac

ros
s t

he
 as

b a
rea

 of
 

Page 238



wo
rk.

 
R5

  
Th

at 
the

 C
ou

nc
il a

nd
 

RS
Ls

 un
de

rta
ke

 a 
co

st-
be

ne
fit 

an
aly

sis
 of

 
pro

cu
rin

g a
 ne

w 
sin

gle
 

rep
ort

ing
 sy

ste
m,

 to
 

ca
ptu

re 
all

 AS
B r

ep
ort

s 
ma

de
 in

 To
we

r 
Ha

ml
ets

. 
 

Th
is 

rec
om

me
nd

ati
on

 w
as

 de
ve

lop
ed

 
aft

er 
CS

S, 
TH

H,
 an

d R
SL

s h
ad

 m
ad

e 
the

ir d
ec

isio
ns

 on
 da

tab
as

es
. A

ll h
av

e 
be

en
 in

 di
sc

us
sio

ns
 an

d d
ev

elo
pe

d 
inf

orm
ati

on
 sh

ari
ng

 pr
oto

co
ls 

an
d t

he
 

CS
S a

na
lys

t n
ow

 ha
s d

ire
ct 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 
oth

er 
da

tab
as

es
 th

at 
as

sis
t th

e n
ew

 
joi

nt 
tas

kin
g p

roc
es

s. 

 
N/

A  
Th

e L
oc

al 
Au

tho
rity

 an
d 

To
we

r H
am

let
s H

om
es

 
op

era
te 

on
 th

e ‘
Fla

re’
 sy

ste
m 

an
d t

he
 6 

ma
in 

RS
L’s

 op
era

te 
the

 ‘R
ea

ct’
 da

tab
as

e. 
As

 
the

se
 sy

ste
ms

 ar
e v

ery
 ne

w 
an

d d
ec

ide
d u

po
n b

efo
re 

sc
rut

iny
 m

ad
e t

he
ir 

rec
om

me
nd

ati
on

s i
t is

 no
t 

co
st 

eff
ec

tiv
e f

or 
on

e o
f th

e 
gro

up
s t

o c
ha

ng
e t

he
ir 

op
era

tin
g s

ys
tem

s. 
Ho

we
ve

r 
we

 ar
e w

ork
ing

 w
ith

 th
e 

sy
ste

ms
 to

 de
ve

lop
 a 

joi
nt 

an
aly

tic
al 

pro
du

ct 
tha

t b
rin

gs
 

the
 da

ta 
of 

the
 2 

sy
ste

ms
 

tog
eth

er 
for

 jo
int

 ta
sk

ing
 

ini
tia

tiv
es

. 
R6

 
Th

at 
the

 Bo
rou

gh
    

 
Co

mm
an

de
r p

rov
ide

s 
de

tai
ls 

of 
run

nin
g c

os
ts 

to 
en

ab
le 

an
 

as
se

ss
me

nt 
of 

an
 

ex
pa

ns
ion

 in
 th

e 
nu

mb
er 

an
d d

ura
tio

n o
f 

Go
od

 Be
ha

vio
ur 

Zo
ne

s 
(G

BZ
s).

 

Sin
ce

 th
is 

rec
om

me
nd

ati
on

 th
ere

 ha
s 

no
t b

ee
n a

 ‘G
oo

d B
eh

av
iou

r’ z
on

e i
n 

op
era

tio
n. 

 Th
e n

ew
 jo

int
 ta

sk
ing

 pr
oc

es
s w

ill b
e 

ab
le 

to 
tra

ck
 po

lice
 an

d p
art

ne
rsh

ip 
inv

olv
em

en
t to

 en
su

re 
tha

t a
ll 

co
sti

ng
s a

re 
rep

ort
ed

. 

Ph
ilip

pa
 C

hip
pin

g, 
Po

licy
 & 

Vic
tim

s 
Ma

na
ge

r. 
On

-go
ing

  
Sin

ce
 th

e p
rev

iou
s u

pd
ate

 th
e 

po
lice

 an
d L

oc
al 

Au
tho

rity
 

ha
ve

 no
t im

ple
me

nte
d a

 go
od

 
be

ha
vio

ur 
zo

ne
. O

ne
 is

 be
ing

 
co

ns
ide

red
 at

 th
e m

om
en

t 
an

d i
f im

ple
me

nte
d t

he
n t

he
 

co
st 

wil
l b

e a
ss

es
se

d. 
 Pr

ev
iou

s G
BZ

’s 
ha

ve
 no

t 
be

en
 co

ste
d b

y t
he

 po
lice

. 
R7

 
Th

at 
the

 C
ou

nc
il lo

ok
 at

 
pro

gre
ss

 of
 th

e 
To

 da
te 

the
re 

ha
s n

ot 
be

en
 an

y 
pro

gre
ss

 re
po

rt o
n t

he
 pi

lot
. 

 Jo
n U

nd
erw

oo
d, 

Oc
tob

er 
20

09
  

W
e a

re 
sti

ll w
ait

ing
 fo

r th
e 

ev
alu

ati
on

 of
 th

is 
pro

jec
t. 

Page 239



Na
tio

na
l p

ilo
t s

ch
em

e 
to 

wit
hd

raw
 ho

us
ing

 
be

ne
fit 

fro
m 

tho
se

 
fou

nd
 gu

ilty
 of

 
pe

rsi
ste

nt 
AS

B a
nd

 
rep

ort
 ba

ck
 to

 C
ab

ine
t 

on
 th

e m
eri

t o
f T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 pa

rtic
ipa

tin
g i

n 
an

y f
utu

re 
pil

ots
. 

 As
 so

on
 as

 an
yth

ing
 is

 re
lea

se
d w

e 
wil

l c
on

sid
er 

the
 fin

din
gs

 an
d r

ep
ort

 
on

 po
ten

tia
l o

pp
ort

un
itie

s f
or 

the
 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

. 

Th
ird

 Se
cto

r 
Ma

na
ge

r  

R8
 

Th
at 

Sa
fer

 
Ne

igh
bo

urh
oo

d T
ea

ms
 

(S
NT

s) 
pro

vid
e 

Me
mb

ers
 w

ith
 da

ta 
on

 
res

po
ns

e t
im

es
 to

 AS
B 

ca
lls 

ma
de

 by
 

res
ide

nts
, to

 he
lp 

ev
alu

ate
 th

e 
eff

ec
tiv

en
es

s o
f S

NT
s 

in 
the

ir c
urr

en
t 

ca
pa

cit
y. 

All
 ca

lls 
to 

the
 AS

B h
otl

ine
 th

at 
req

uir
e S

NT
 ac

tio
n a

re 
for

wa
rde

d t
o 

the
m 

on
 em

ail
. T

he
 C

SS
 ca

n p
rov

ide
 

ac
cu

rat
e d

ata
 fro

m 
the

 da
tab

as
e o

n 
all

 re
fer

ral
s t

o S
NT

s. 
Th

is 
is 

do
ne

 
wit

hin
 on

e w
ork

ing
 da

y. 
Ho

we
ve

r th
e 

SN
Ts

 do
 no

t a
lwa

ys
 ac

kn
ow

led
ge

 
res

po
ns

e. 
Th

is 
is 

be
ing

 pr
og

res
se

d 
by

 th
e B

oro
ug

h C
om

ma
nd

er 
as

 pa
rt 

of 
the

 ne
w 

po
lici

ng
 pl

ed
ge

. 

Ph
ilip

pa
 C

hip
pin

g, 
Po

licy
 & 

Vic
tim

s 
Ma

na
ge

r. 
1s

t A
pri

l 2
00

9 
       

Th
e p

oli
ce

 ar
e s

till 
un

ab
le 

to 
pro

vid
e d

ata
 on

 re
sp

on
se

 
tim

es
 to

 as
b c

all
s m

ad
e t

o 
sn

t”s
. T

his
 is

 an
 on

go
ing

 
pie

ce
 of

 w
ork

 in
 th

e ‘
Po

lici
ng

 
Ple

dg
e”.

 
  

R9
 

Th
at 

the
 Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 

se
t a

sid
e f

un
din

g t
o 

pil
ot 

an
 ex

pa
nd

ed
 SN

T 
of 

six
 Po

lice
 

Co
ns

tab
les

 (P
Cs

) a
nd

 
six

 Po
lice

 C
on

sta
ble

 
Su

pp
ort

 O
ffic

ers
 

(P
CS

Os
) in

 at
 le

as
t tw

o 
wa

rds
 fo

r a
 pe

rio
d o

f u
p 

to 
tw

o y
ea

rs 

Th
e p

oli
ce

 te
am

 ha
s b

ee
n i

n 
op

era
tio

n s
inc

e t
he

 14
th 

Ap
ril 

20
09

. 
Th

e L
A p

urc
ha

se
d 1

5 o
ffic

ers
 an

d t
he

 
Bo

rou
gh

 C
om

ma
nd

er 
ad

de
d a

 fu
rth

er 
5 o

ffic
ers

 to
 th

e t
ea

m.
 Th

e t
ea

m 
are

 
ma

na
ge

d b
y t

he
 po

lice
 an

d t
as

ke
d 

thr
ou

gh
 a 

joi
nt 

tas
kin

g m
ee

tin
g t

ha
t 

sit
s m

on
thl

y. 
Th

is 
wil

l p
rob

ab
ly 

mo
ve

 
to 

a f
ort

nig
htl

y m
ee

tin
g w

he
n C

LC
 

loc
ali

sa
tio

n i
s i

ntr
od

uc
ed

. 

An
dy

 Ba
mb

er,
 

Se
rvi

ce
 H

ea
d 

Co
mm

un
ity

 
Se

rvi
ce

 
   Sh

az
ia 

Hu
sa

in 
Dir

ec
tor

 TH
 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 

Fro
m 

Ap
ril 

20
09

 
an

d o
ng

oin
g 

   Fro
m 

Ap
ril 

20
09

 
an

d o
ng

oin
g 

  

Th
e p

oli
ce

 te
am

 ha
ve

 be
en

 in
 

op
era

tio
n s

inc
e t

he
 14

th 
of 

Ap
ril 

20
09

. T
he

 LA
 fu

nd
ed

 15
 

off
ice

rs 
an

d t
he

 Bo
rou

gh
 

Co
mm

an
de

r a
dd

ed
 a 

fur
the

r 3
 

off
ice

r to
 m

ak
e a

 te
am

 of
 18

 
off

ice
rs.

 Th
e t

ea
m 

is 
tas

ke
d 

on
 a 

mo
nth

ly 
ba

sis
 at

 a 
joi

nt 
tas

kin
g m

ee
tin

g w
ith

 se
rvi

ce
 

he
ad

s f
rom

 C
LC

 an
d s

en
ior

 
po

lice
 of

fic
ers

. 

Page 240



R1
0  

Th
at 

the
 C

om
mu

nit
y 

Sa
fet

y S
erv

ice
 w

ith
 th

e 
he

lp 
of 

the
 To

we
r 

Ha
ml

ets
 Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 

an
d E

as
t E

nd
 Li

fe 
(E

EL
) lo

ok
 to

 be
tte

r 
pro

mo
te 

the
 C

ou
nc

il’s
 

AS
B s

tra
teg

y t
o 

res
ide

nts
 in

 th
e 

Bo
rou

gh
. 

 
 

Th
e A

SB
 pu

bli
cit

y p
rot

oc
ol 

ha
s b

ee
n 

ag
ree

d a
nd

 is
 no

w 
op

era
tin

g. 
A 

nu
mb

er 
of 

AS
BO

S h
av

e b
ee

n 
pu

bli
cis

ed
 lo

ca
lly.

 C
om

mu
nit

y e
ve

nts
 

are
 re

gu
lar

ly 
us

ed
 to

 ad
ve

rtis
e w

ork
 

an
d t

he
 AS

B l
ine

. A
 do

cu
me

nt 
att

ac
he

d h
igh

lig
hts

 so
me

 of
 ou

r 
ca

mp
aig

ns
 an

d w
e h

av
e a

gre
ed

 w
ith

 
the

 po
lice

 th
at 

we
 ca

n r
ep

ort
 in

 th
eir

 
SN

T l
ea

fle
ts.

 Ta
rge

ted
 m

ed
ia 

thr
ou

gh
 

Ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
d c

rim
e a

nd
 ju

sti
ce

 
pa

ge
s i

n E
EL

. C
om

mu
nit

y S
afe

ty 
Aw

ard
s t

oo
k p

lac
e i

n J
an

ua
ry 

an
d w

ill 
be

 re
pe

ate
d t

his
 ne

xt 
Ja

n. 

Po
pp

y T
urn

er 
Co

mm
un

ity
 Sa

fet
y 

En
ga

ge
me

nt 
Te

am
 

Ma
rch

 20
09

 
W

ork
 co

nti
nu

es
 as

 pr
ev

iou
sly

 
rep

ort
ed

. W
e n

ow
 ha

ve
 a 

gra
nt 

fro
m 

the
 H

om
e O

ffic
e 

an
d e

mp
loy

 a 
ne

igh
bo

urh
oo

d 
cri

me
 an

d j
us

tic
e w

ork
er 

un
de

r th
e ‘

jus
tic

e s
ee

n, 
jus

tic
e 

do
ne

’ in
itia

tiv
e. 

A w
ide

 ra
ng

e 
of 

wo
rk 

ha
s a

nd
 co

nti
nu

es
 to

 
be

 pu
bli

cis
ed

. It
 in

clu
de

s f
ull

 
pa

ge
 sp

rea
ds

 in
 lo

ca
l 

ne
ws

pa
pe

rs,
 th

e ‘
Yo

u s
aid

, 
W

e d
id’

 ca
mp

aig
n. 

 Us
ing

 th
e p

oli
ce

 pu
bli

c 
att

itu
de

 su
rve

y w
e h

av
e s

ee
n 

an
 in

cre
as

e i
n c

on
fid

en
ce

 an
d 

pe
rce

pti
on

 fro
m 

29
% 

to 
44

%.
 

R1
1  

Th
at 

Ch
ild

ren
’s 

Se
rvi

ce
 

wit
h t

he
 he

lp 
of 

Ed
uc

ati
on

 Ps
yc

ho
log

ist
 

su
pp

ort
 sc

ho
ols

 to
 he

lp 
de

ve
lop

 fu
rth

er 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le’
s a

pp
rec

iat
ion

 of
 

ac
ce

pta
ble

 be
ha

vio
ur 

by
 re

vie
win

g b
eh

av
iou

r 
co

de
s a

nd
 pr

ac
tis

es
 

tha
t a

re 
in 

lin
e w

ith
 

tac
klin

g A
SB

. 

Mo
st 

sc
ho

ols
 in

 th
e b

oro
ug

h h
av

e 
no

w 
ac

hie
ve

d a
 “g

oo
d” 

or 
“ex

ce
lle

nt”
 

gra
de

 fo
r b

eh
av

iou
r.  

All
 sc

ho
ols

 w
ith

 
an

 O
fst

ed
 gr

ad
e o

f ‘S
ati

sfa
cto

ry’
 fo

r 
be

ha
vio

ur 
rec

eiv
e a

 pa
ck

ag
e o

f 
su

pp
ort

 fro
m 

the
 BS

T t
o f

urt
he

r 
im

pro
ve

 w
ho

le 
sc

ho
ol 

po
licy

 an
d 

pra
cti

ce
. T

his
 is

 in
-lin

e w
ith

 th
e D

CS
F 

‘Se
cu

rin
g G

oo
d’ 

ini
tia

tiv
e. 

 A m
em

be
r o

f th
e B

ST
 ha

s a
 SL

A w
ith

 
the

14
-19

 H
UB

 to
 tra

in 
an

d s
up

po
rt 

vo
ca

tio
na

l tr
ain

ing
 pr

ov
ide

rs 
in 

de
ve

lop
ing

 go
od

 pr
ac

tic
e a

rou
nd

 

 Ke
rri 

Ma
rrin

er.
  

He
ad

 of
 Be

ha
vio

ur 
Su

pp
ort

 Te
am

 
       Lia

m 
Mc

Qu
ad

e 
An

ti B
ull

yin
g 

Ad
vis

or 

On
 go

ing
 w

ork
 

         Ma
rch

 20
09

 
   

Th
e B

ST
 is

 su
pp

ort
ing

 
tra

ini
ng

 pr
ov

ide
rs 

wit
h t

rai
nin

g 
in 

be
ha

vio
ur 

ma
na

ge
me

nt.
  

       Th
e m

ajo
rity

 of
 sc

ho
ol 

an
ti-

bu
llyi

ng
 po

lici
es

 ha
ve

 be
en

 
su

bm
itte

d a
nd

 as
se

ss
ed

 
ag

ain
st 

be
st 

pra
cti

ce
.  A

 R
AG

 

Page 241



be
ha

vio
ur 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
 Th

e B
ST

 w
ork

s i
n a

 m
ult

i-a
ge

nc
y w

ay
 

wit
h a

 ra
ng

e o
f s

erv
ice

s t
o i

de
nti

fy 
an

d s
up

po
rt c

hil
dre

n a
nd

 yo
un

g 
pe

op
le 

wh
o a

re 
at 

ris
k o

f d
ev

elo
pin

g 
an

ti-s
oc

ial
 be

ha
vio

ur 
or 

su
ffe

rin
g f

rom
 

its
 ef

fec
ts.

 
 Th

e L
A A

nti
-bu

llyi
ng

 of
fic

er 
is 

su
pp

ort
ing

 sc
ho

ols
 to

 en
su

re 
the

ir 
po

lici
es

 co
mp

ly 
wit

h b
es

t p
rac

tic
e a

nd
 

are
 in

 lin
e w

ith
 th

e n
ew

 O
FS

TE
D 

Fra
me

wo
rk’

s e
nh

an
ce

d e
mp

ha
sis

 on
 

sa
feg

ua
rdi

ng
.  H

e a
lso

 su
pp

ort
s 

sc
ho

ols
 to

 ru
n o

n-l
ine

 qu
es

tio
nn

air
es

 
to 

en
su

re 
pu

pil
s h

av
e a

n o
pp

ort
un

ity
 

to 
co

mm
en

t a
no

ny
mo

us
ly 

on
 pr

ac
tic

e 
in 

sc
ho

ols
.  T

he
 N

ati
on

al 
Au

dit
 of

fic
e 

rep
ort

 th
at 

he
ad

 te
ac

he
rs 

rat
e t

he
 TH

 
an

ti-b
ull

yin
g s

erv
ice

 as
 on

e o
f th

e 
be

st 
in 

the
 co

un
try

.  
 Th

e p
ilo

t o
n t

he
 an

ti-b
ull

yin
g h

elp
lin

e 
ha

s b
ee

n e
xte

nd
ed

 to
 D

ec
. 0

9. 
  

     Lia
m 

Mc
Qu

ad
e 

An
ti B

ull
yin

g 
Ad

vis
or 

  

   Ju
ly 

20
09

 

rat
ing

 hi
gh

lig
hts

 th
os

e p
oli

cie
s 

ne
ed

ing
 fu

rth
er 

wo
rk 

an
d 

su
pp

ort
 is

 pr
ov

ide
d t

o 
tar

ge
ted

 sc
ho

ols
. 

 De
sp

ite
 ex

ten
siv

e p
ub

lici
ty 

the
 us

e o
f th

e b
ull

yin
g 

he
lpl

ine
 ha

s b
ee

n l
ow

.  
Ho

we
ve

r it
 is

 a 
us

efu
l 

res
ou

rce
 fo

r th
os

e w
ho

 ne
ed

 
it s

o w
e a

re 
ma

int
ain

ing
 it 

bu
t 

re-
ne

go
tia

tin
g t

he
 co

ntr
ac

t a
t 

a c
he

ap
er 

rat
e o

n t
he

 
as

su
mp

tio
n o

f lo
we

r d
em

an
d. 

 
Ev

ide
nc

e f
rom

 an
 ex

ter
na

l 
an

on
ym

ou
s n

ati
on

al 
su

rve
y 

(Te
ll u

s) 
sh

ow
s l

ow
er 

rat
es

 of
 

bu
llyi

ng
 in

 To
we

r H
am

let
s 

sc
ho

ols
 th

an
 av

era
ge

 ac
ros

s 
the

 co
un

try
.  W

e a
re 

co
nd

uc
tin

g a
no

ny
mo

us
 

ele
ctr

on
ic 

su
rve

ys
 in

 sc
ho

ols
 

to 
ve

rify
 th

is 
an

d i
nfo

rm
 

ch
an

ge
s t

o s
ch

oo
l p

oli
cy

 an
d 

pra
cti

ce
.  

 
R1

2  
Th

at 
the

 Yo
uth

 
Of

fen
din

g T
ea

m 
(Y

OT
)  

wo
rk 

wit
h o

the
r 

ag
en

cie
s t

o i
de

nti
fy 

an
d 

su
pp

ort
 vu

lne
rab

le 

Yo
uth

 In
clu

sio
n p

rog
ram

me
 is

 
op

era
tin

g i
n a

ll L
AP

 ar
ea

s (
1-8

). Y
IP 

is 
clo

se
ly 

wo
rki

ng
 w

ith
 Sc

ho
ols
, S
afe

r 
Ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
d T

ea
ms

, C
on
ne
xio
ns
, 

Yo
uth

 O
ffe
nd
ing
 Te

am
, A
nti
-S
oc
ial
 

 Stu
art

 Jo
hn

so
n  

He
ad

 of
 Yo

uth
 

Of
fen

din
g S

erv
ice

 
 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

    

Th
e P

rot
oc

ol 
on

 th
e 

Ed
uc

ati
on

 of
 Yo

un
g O

ffe
nd

ers
 

ha
s b

ee
n c

irc
ula

ted
 to

 
sc

ho
ols

.   
Mo

nit
ori

ng
 in

 
pra

cti
ce

 is
 re

qu
ire

d t
o 

Page 242



ch
ild

ren
 an

d y
ou

ng
 

pe
op

le,
 m

os
t a

t ri
sk

 of
 

ca
us

ing
 AS

B a
nd

 
en

su
re 

tha
t w

he
rev

er 
po

ss
ibl

e a
ll p

up
ils 

are
 

ab
le 

to 
ac

ce
ss

 
ap

pro
pri

ate
 ed

uc
ati

on
al 

pro
vis

ion
.  

Be
ha
vio
ur 
Te
am

, L
oc
al 
Yo
uth

 Se
rvi
ce
s 

Pr
ov
ide
rs,
 R
SL
s a

nd
 ot
he
r s
erv

ice
s. 

 Ch
all

en
ge

 & 
Su

pp
ort

 Pr
og

ram
me

 
(C

aS
P)

 w
as

 ro
lle

d o
ut 

du
rin

g O
cto

be
r 

20
08

; C
aS

P e
ns

ure
s a

 “tr
ipl

e t
rac

k” 
ap

pro
ac

h i
n r

es
po

nd
ing

 to
 yo

uth
 

rel
ate

d a
nti

-so
cia

l b
eh

av
iou

r w
ork

ing
 

clo
se

ly 
wit

h A
SB

 en
for

ce
me

nt 
ag

en
cie

s a
nd

 ea
rly

 in
ter

ve
nti

on
 an

d 
pre

ve
nti

on
 pr

og
ram

me
. T

o s
up

po
rt 

the
 lo

ca
l im

ple
me

nta
tio

n o
f C

aS
P a

 
nu

mb
er 

of 
ex

ist
ing

 in
itia

tiv
es

 an
d 

pro
vis

ion
s h

av
e b

ee
n b

rou
gh

t 
tog

eth
er 

an
d e

ng
ag

ed
 w

ith
in 

To
we

r 
Ha

ml
ets

, w
hic

h i
nc

lud
es

 YI
SP

, Y
IP 

an
d N

ew
 St

art
 (N

ew
 St

art
 ha

ve
 a 

pa
rtic

ula
r re

mi
t a

rou
nd

 su
pp

ort
ing

 
ch

ild
ren

 w
ho

 ar
e N

EE
T).

  S
inc

e, 
Ap

ril 
20

08
, 1

03
 ch

ild
ren

 an
d y

ou
ng

 pe
op

le 
wit

hin
 ou

r ta
rge

ted
 co

ho
rt w

ere
 

ide
nti

fie
d b

ein
g i

nv
olv

ed
 in

 an
ti-s

oc
ial

 
be

ha
vio

ur 
an

d i
ss

ue
d A

BC
s. 

 79
 

yo
un

g p
eo

ple
 ac

ce
pte

d p
rev

en
tat

ive
 

su
pp

ort
.  T

he
 24

 w
ho

 de
clin

ed
 

int
erv

en
tio

n w
ere

 pr
ior

 to
 C

aS
P b

ein
g 

rol
led

 ou
t.  

 
 W

he
re 

ap
pro

pri
ate

, re
fer

ral
s a

re 
ma

de
 by

 th
e d

es
ign

ate
d o

ffic
er 

for
 

Ch
ild

ren
 M

iss
ing

 fro
m 

Ed
uc

ati
on

 to
 

    Br
en

de
n M

ulc
ah

y  
De

sig
na

ted
 of

fic
er,

 
Ch

ild
ren

 w
ith

ou
t a

 
sc

ho
ol 

pla
ce

 
  Liz

 Vi
ck

eri
e  

He
ad

, S
up

po
rt f

or 
Le

arn
ing

  S
erv

ice
    On

-go
ing

 w
ork

 
     Oc

tob
er 

20
08

 
 

de
ter

mi
ne

 if 
fur

the
r re

vis
ion

 is
 

ne
ce

ss
ary

 to
 en

su
re 

the
 be

st 
ou

tco
me

s f
or 

Yo
un

g 
Of

fen
de

rs.
  

Page 243



the
 SI

P f
or 

a p
lac

e i
n t

he
 PR

U.
 Th

es
e 

are
 no

w 
tak

en
 un

de
r “C

ha
ir’s

 ac
tio

n” 
to 

en
su

re 
sw

ift 
all

oc
ati

on
 of

 su
pp

ort
. 

R1
3  

Th
at 

the
 C

ou
nc

il 
en

ha
nc

e y
ou

th 
se

rvi
ce

s, 
inc

lud
ing

 bo
th 

the
 qu

ali
ty 

of 
fac

iliti
es

 w
ith

in 
ce

ntr
es

 an
d t

he
 

op
era

tin
g d

ay
s/h

ou
rs.

  
Ad

dit
ion

al 
fun

din
g s

ho
uld

 be
 

se
t a

sid
e t

o e
xp

an
d 

sig
nif

ica
ntl

y y
ou

th 
se

rvi
ce

s o
n 

off
er 

wit
hin

 at
 le

as
t tw

o w
ard

s 
for

 a 
pe

rio
d o

f tw
o y

ea
rs.

  T
he

 
Yo

uth
 Se

rvi
ce

 sh
ou

ld 
un

de
rta

ke
 a 

tho
rou

gh
 

co
ns

ult
ati

on
, w

ith
 yo

un
g 

pe
op

le,
 pa

ren
ts 

an
d s

ch
oo

ls 
to 

un
de

rst
an

d w
ha

t w
ou

ld 
be

 
mo

st 
att

rac
tiv

e i
n h

elp
ing

 
yo

un
g p

eo
ple

 st
ay

 of
f th

e 
str

ee
ts 

Th
is 

rec
om

me
nd

ati
on

 ha
s b

ee
n 

im
ple

me
nte

d a
nd

 yo
uth

 se
rvi

ce
 is

 
be

ing
 pr

ov
ide

d t
hro

ug
h v

ari
ou

s 
ce

ntr
es

.  

Din
ar 

Ho
ss

ain
  

Int
eri

m 
He

ad
 of

 
Yo

uth
 an

d 
Co

mm
un

ity
 

Se
rvi

ce
 

     Din
ar 

Ho
ss

ain
  

Int
eri

m 
He

ad
 of

 
Yo

uth
 an

d 
Co

mm
un

ity
 

Se
rvi

ce
 

Co
mp

let
ed

  
             

Co
mp

let
ed

 

 

Page 244



 Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y R

ev
iew

 Ea
rly
 In
ter
ve
nti
on
, C
hil
d P

ro
tec

tio
n –

 A
pp
en
dix

 7 
Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Re
sp
on
se
/C
om

me
nts

 
Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

R1
 

 
Th

at 
the

 C
om

mu
nit

y S
afe

ty 
tea

m 
in 

co
nju

nc
tio

n w
ith

 C
hil

dre
n, 

Sc
ho

ols
 an

d 
Fa

mi
lie

s S
erv

ice
s d

ev
elo

ps
 ta

rge
ted

 
se

rvi
ce

s t
o w

ork
 w

ith
 fa

mi
lie

s a
nd

 
pe

rpe
tra

tor
s o

f d
om

es
tic

 vi
ole

nc
e, 

pa
rtic

ula
rly

 m
ale

 pe
rpe

tra
tor

s. 
 

A d
om

es
tic

 vi
ole

nc
e p

erp
etr

ato
r 

pro
gra

mm
e i

s b
ein

g d
ev

elo
pe

d a
t E

va
 

Ar
ms

by
 C

en
tre

 w
hic

h w
ill i

nc
lud

e t
rai

nin
g 

for
 a 

nu
mb

er 
of 

fro
nt 

lin
e s

taf
f. T

his
 is

 
cu

rre
ntl

y j
oin

tly
 fu

nd
ed

 fro
m 

the
 C

hil
dre

n’s
 

Fu
nd

 an
d W

NF
 an

d w
ou

ld 
ne

ed
 to

 se
ek

 
ad

dit
ion

al 
fun

ds
 on

ce
 th

is 
run

s o
ut.

 Th
e 

Ch
ild

ren
 & 

Do
me

sti
c V

iol
en

ce
 Su

b G
rou

p 
is 

lea
din

g o
n t

his
 an

d w
ill a

lso
 ex

plo
re 

oth
er 

are
as

 of
 po

ten
tia

l w
ith

in 
thi

s. 
 

Pa
ul 

Mc
ge

e (
Se

rvi
ce

 
Ma

na
ge

r, A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

an
d E

arl
y I

nte
rve

nti
on

) / 
 Ph

ilip
pa

 C
hip

pin
g 

(P
oli

cy
 & 

Vic
tim

s 
Ma

na
ge

r)  

De
ce

mb
er 

20
09

  

R2
 

 
Th

at 
the

 C
om

mu
nit

y S
afe

ty 
tea

m 
in 

co
nju

nc
tio

n w
ith

 th
e R

eg
ist

ere
d S

oc
ial

 
La

nd
lor

d (
RS

L) 
for

um
 an

d T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 H
om

es
 ex

plo
re 

op
tio

ns
 fo

r u
sin

g 
ten

an
cy

 co
nd

itio
ns

 to
 ho

ld 
Do

me
sti

c 
Vio

len
ce

 pe
rpe

tra
tor

s t
o a

cc
ou

nt.
 

Th
ere

 is
 al

rea
dy

 so
me

 w
ork

 do
ne

 on
 th

is 
by

 th
e f

am
ily 

int
erv

en
tio

n p
roj

ec
t b

ut 
thi

s i
s 

co
mp

lica
ted

 ar
ea

 of
 w

ork
 be

ca
us

e o
f th

e 
nu

mb
er 

of 
RS

Ls
 in

vo
lve

d a
nd

 th
eir

 po
licy

 
tow

ard
s t

his
. D

isc
us

sio
ns

 w
ill b

e h
eld

 w
ith

 
ho

us
ing

 pa
rtn

ers
 at

 th
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

Ho
us

ing
 Fo

rum
 on

 th
e b

es
t w

ay
 to

 ta
ke

 
thi

s f
orw

ard
.  

Ph
ilip

pa
 C

hip
pin

g 
(P

oli
cy

 & 
Vic

tim
s 

Ma
na

ge
r) 

De
ce

mb
er 

20
09

 

R3
 

 
Th

at 
the

 C
om

mu
nit

y S
afe

ty 
tea

m 
in 

co
nju

nc
tio

n w
ith

 C
hil

dre
n, 

Sc
ho

ols
 an

d 
Fa

mi
lie

s S
erv

ice
s a

nd
 th

e P
art

ne
rsh

ip 
giv

e a
cti

ve
 co

ns
ide

rat
ion

 to
 pu

bli
cis

ing
 

ac
tio

ns
 ta

ke
n a

ga
ins

t p
erp

etr
ato

rs 
wh

en
 

sa
fe 

to 
do

 so
, th

rou
gh

 se
lec

tio
n o

f 
ap

pro
pri

ate
 ca

se
s. 

At 
pre

se
nt 

all
 cr

im
ina

l c
on

vic
tio

ns
 ar

e 
pu

bli
cis

ed
. W

ith
 th

e s
et 

up
 of

 th
e S

pe
cia

l 
Do

me
sti

c V
iol

en
ce

 C
ou

rt t
he

re 
is 

a n
ew

 
ap

pro
ac

h t
o d

ea
lin

g w
ith

 pe
rpe

tra
tor

s. 
Dis

cu
ss

ion
 w

ill b
e h

eld
 w

ith
 co

lle
ag

ue
s 

ac
ros

s t
he

 C
ou

nc
il in

 pa
rtic

ula
r w

ith
 

Co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns

 Te
am

 on
 ho

w 
thi

s 
rec

om
me

nd
ati

on
 ca

n b
e i

mp
lem

en
ted

. 
Th

is 
is 

a s
en

sit
ive

 is
su

e a
s a

ny
 pu

bli
cit

y 
ma

y a
lso

 ha
ve

 a 
ne

ga
tiv

e i
mp

ac
t o

n 

Ph
ilip

pa
 C

hip
pin

g 
(P

oli
cy

 & 
Vic

tim
s 

Ma
na

ge
r) 

De
ce

mb
er 

20
09

 

Page 245



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y R

ev
iew

 Ea
rly
 In
ter
ve
nti
on
, C
hil
d P

ro
tec

tio
n –

 A
pp
en
dix

 7 
Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Re
sp
on
se
/C
om

me
nts

 
Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

vic
tim

s. 
 

R4
 

 
Th

at 
a m

ap
pin

g e
xe

rci
se

 is
 un

de
rta

ke
n 

by
 C

hil
dre

n’s
 So

cia
l C

are
 an

d t
he

 
Do

me
sti

c V
iol

en
ce

 te
am

 to
 ch

art
 th

e 
lin

ks
 be

tw
ee

n D
om

es
tic

 Vi
ole

nc
e a

nd
 

ch
ild

ren
’s 

se
rvi

ce
s i

n t
he

 bo
rou

gh
. 

In 
the

 pr
oc

es
s o

f re
cru

itin
g a

 C
hil

dre
n’s

 & 
Do

me
sti

c V
iol

en
ce

 C
o-o

rdi
na

tor
. O

ne
 of

 
the

ir m
ajo

r ro
les

 w
ill b

e t
o m

ap
 th

e l
ink

 
an

d i
de

nti
fy 

an
y g

ap
s. 

 

Ph
ilip

pa
 C

hip
pin

g 
(P

oli
cy

 & 
Vic

tim
s 

Ma
na

ge
r) 

Ma
rch

 20
10

  

R5
 

 
Th

at 
the

 Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 ex
plo

res
 w

ay
s i

n 
wh

ich
 su

pp
ort

 to
 pa

ren
ts 

wit
h m

en
tal

 
he

alt
h p

rob
lem

s c
ou

ld 
be

 in
cre

as
ed

. 

Th
e l

ink
 be

tw
ee

n C
HA

MP
 te

am
 an

d 
Int

eg
rat

ed
 Pa

thw
ay

s a
nd

 Su
pp

ort
 te

am
 

wil
l b

e s
tre

ng
the

ne
d t

o f
urt

he
r e

xp
lor

e 
pa

thw
ay

s t
o s

up
po

rt p
are

nts
 w

ith
 m

en
tal

 
he

alt
h p

rob
lem

s. 
 

 A w
ork

ing
 pr

oto
co

l w
ill b

e d
ev

elo
pe

d 
be

tw
ee

n t
he

 IP
ST

 an
d t

he
 C

HA
MP

 te
am

. 

Pa
ul 

Mc
ge

e (
Se

rvi
ce

 
Ma

na
ge

r, A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

an
d E

arl
y I

nte
rve

nti
on

) / 
 

 Ian
 W

illia
ms

on
 (H

ea
d o

f 
So

cia
l C

are
 Pr

ac
tic

e 
Ad

ult
 M

en
tal

 H
ea

lth
) 

No
ve

mb
er 

20
09

  

R6
 

Th
at 

Ad
ult

s’ 
He

alt
h a

nd
 W

ell
be

ing
 in

 
co

nju
nc

tio
n w

ith
 C

hil
dre

n, 
Sc

ho
ols

 an
d 

Fa
mi

lie
s S

erv
ice

s u
nd

ert
ak

e a
n a

ud
it o

f 
ca

se
s i

n w
hic

h a
n a

du
lt r

ec
eiv

es
 se

rvi
ce

s 
fro

m 
the

 C
om

mu
nit

y M
en

tal
 H

ea
lth

 Te
am

 
(C

MH
T) 

an
d w

he
re 

no
 re

fer
ral

 w
as

 m
ad

e 
to 

Ch
ild

ren
’s 

So
cia

l C
are

, to
 qu

es
tio

n 
wh

eth
er 

thi
s i

s l
ea

din
g t

o a
ny

 un
me

t 
ne

ed
s f

or 
the

 ch
ild

ren
 in

vo
lve

d. 

Ma
pp

ing
 ex

erc
ise

 w
ill b

e u
nd

ert
ak

en
 in

 
Ad

ult
s H

ea
lth

 & 
W

ell
 Be

ing
 to

 id
en

tify
 

ca
se

s w
he

re 
ad

ult
 w

ith
 ch

ild
ren

’s 
rec

eiv
ing

 m
en

tal
 he

alt
h t

rea
tm

en
t. W

ill 
lia

ise
 w

ith
 C

hil
dre

n’ 
Se

rvi
ce

s t
o i

de
nti

fy 
an

y c
as

es
 w

he
re 

no
 re

fer
ral

 w
as

 m
ad

e. 
 

Pa
ul 

Mc
ge

e (
Se

rvi
ce

 
Ma

na
ge

r, A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

an
d E

arl
y I

nte
rve

nti
on

) / 
 

 Ian
 W

illia
ms

on
 (H

ea
d o

f 
So

cia
l C

are
 Pr

ac
tic

e 
Ad

ult
 M

en
tal

 H
ea

lth
) 

No
ve

mb
er 

20
09

 

R7
 

 
Th

at 
a r

ev
iew

 is
 un

de
rta

ke
n o

n h
ow

 th
e 

ne
ed

s o
f c

hil
dre

n f
rom

 C
MH

T a
rea

s n
ot 

A r
ev

iew
 w

ill b
e u

nd
ert

ak
en

 de
pe

nd
ing

 on
 

the
 ou

tco
me

 fro
m 

rec
om

me
nd

ati
on

 6.
  

Pa
ul 

Mc
ge

e (
Se

rvi
ce

 
Ma

na
ge

r, A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

an
d E

arl
y I

nte
rve

nti
on

) / 
 Ja

nu
ary

 20
10

  

Page 246



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y R

ev
iew

 Ea
rly
 In
ter
ve
nti
on
, C
hil
d P

ro
tec

tio
n –

 A
pp
en
dix

 7 
Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Re
sp
on
se
/C
om

me
nts

 
Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

co
ve

red
 by

 a 
Ch

ild
ren

’s 
an

d A
du

lt M
en

tal
 

He
alt

h (
CH

AM
P)

 w
ork

er 
ca

n b
e 

ad
dre

ss
ed

 us
ing

 a 
sim

ila
r m

od
el,

 w
ith

in 
bu

dg
eta

ry 
co

ns
tra

int
s. 

 Ian
 W

illia
ms

on
 (H

ea
d o

f 
So

cia
l C

are
 Pr

ac
tic

e 
Ad

ult
 M

en
tal

 H
ea

lth
) 

R8
 

 
Th

at 
fur

the
r a

na
lys

is 
be

 un
de

rta
ke

n t
o 

ide
nti

fy 
ho

w 
the

 ne
ed

s o
f p

are
nts

 w
ith

 
su

bs
tan

ce
 m

isu
se

 pr
ob

lem
s c

an
 be

 
tar

ge
ted

. F
urt

he
r to

 th
is,

 fu
nd

ing
 w

ill 
ne

ed
 to

 be
 id

en
tifi

ed
 to

 al
low

 in
cre

as
ed

 
su

pp
ort

 is
 av

ail
ab

le 
to 

vu
lne

rab
le 

pa
ren

ts.
 

 

Hid
de

n H
arm

 C
o-o

rdi
na

tor
 w

ork
ing

 ac
ros

s 
Ch

ild
ren

’s 
Se

rvi
ce

s D
ire

cto
rat

e a
nd

 
Co

mm
un

itie
s L

oc
ali

tie
s a

nd
 C

ult
ure

 
Dir

ec
tor

ate
.  

 Ac
tio

ns
:  

• 
Dr

aft
 H

idd
en

 H
arm

 St
rat

eg
y (

Au
g 0

9) 
• 

Hid
de

n H
arm

 C
oo

rdi
na

tor
 pr

es
en

tin
g 

Str
ate

gy
 to

 LS
CB

 (S
ep

t 0
9) 

 
• 

Aw
are

ne
ss

 of
 H

idd
en

 H
arm

 in
 

Ch
ild

ren
 Sc

ho
ols

 an
d F

am
ilie

s 
Dir

ec
tor

ate
 an

d d
rug

 an
d a

lco
ho

l 
se

rvi
ce

 pr
ov

ide
rs 

(O
n-g

oin
g) 

 
• 

Co
mm

on
 As

se
ss

me
nt 

To
ol 

pil
ote

d i
n 

se
rvi

ce
s t

o i
de

nti
fy 

ch
ild

ren
 an

d y
ou

ng
 

pe
op

le 
of 

su
bs

tan
ce

 m
isu

sin
g p

are
nts

 
(N

ov
 09

)  
• 

Hid
de

n H
arm

 C
on

fer
en

ce
 pl

an
ne

d 
(D

ec
 09

) 
• 

Dr
ug

 an
d A

lco
ho

l S
erv

ice
 pr

ov
ide

rs 
wo

rki
ng

 in
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w

ith
 Fa

mi
ly 

Int
erv

en
tio

n P
roj

ec
t to

 de
live

r fa
mi

ly 
su

bs
tan

ce
 m

isu
se

 in
ter

ve
nti

on
s (

Ja
n 

10
)  

Nik
ki 

Br
ad

ley
 (H

ea
d o

f 
Sp

ec
ial

ist
 pa

ren
tin

g 
Pr

og
ram

me
s) 

Em
ma

 Bo
nd

 (H
idd

en
 

ha
rm

 C
o-o

rdi
na

tor
) 

De
ce

mb
er 

20
09

 

Page 247



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y R

ev
iew

 Ea
rly
 In
ter
ve
nti
on
, C
hil
d P

ro
tec

tio
n –

 A
pp
en
dix

 7 
Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Re
sp
on
se
/C
om

me
nts

 
Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

R9
 

 
Th

at 
the

 C
ou

nc
il w

ork
s w

ith
 pa

rtn
er 

ag
en

cie
s t

o e
ns

ure
 th

e s
uc

ce
ss

ful
 la

un
ch

 
an

d m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f th
e C

on
tac

tPo
int

 
sy

ste
m 

to 
pro

vid
e a

 m
ore

 ef
fec

tiv
e e

arl
y 

int
erv

en
tio

n s
erv

ice
. 

 

Co
nta

ct 
Po

int
 w

ill b
e i

mp
lem

en
ted

 ov
er 

the
 ne

xt 
ye

ar 
an

d w
ork

 w
ill b

e u
nd

ert
ak

en
 

ac
tiv

ely
 w

ith
 pa

rtn
ers

 to
 m

ak
e s

ure
 it 

is 
su

cc
es

sfu
l a

nd
 ef

fec
tiv

e. 
 

Sio
bh

an
 G

ile
s (

Ma
na

ge
r 

Ch
ild

ren
’s 

Inf
orm

ati
on

 
Sy

ste
ms

) 
 

Inc
rem

en
tal

 ro
ll o

ut 
fro

m 
No

ve
mb

er 
20

09
  

R1
0 

 
Th

at 
Ch

ild
ren

, S
ch

oo
ls 

an
d F

am
ilie

s 
Se

rvi
ce

s i
n c

on
jun

cti
on

 w
ith

 th
e 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 fu
rth

er 
de

ve
lop

s l
oc

ali
sa

tio
n 

of 
se

rvi
ce

s t
hro

ug
h c

lar
ify

ing
 pa

thw
ay

s 
be

tw
ee

n d
eli

ve
ry 

an
d l

oc
al 

ce
ntr

es
 an

d 
ex

ten
de

d s
ch

oo
ls,

 an
d t

he
 w

ide
r 

int
eg

rat
ed

 fro
nt 

an
d b

ac
k d

oo
rs.

 
 

Th
e I

nte
gra

ted
 Pa

thw
ay

s a
nd

 Su
pp

ort
 

Te
am

 to
 be

 es
tab

lish
ed

. T
he

 te
am

 
pro

vid
es

 a 
lin

k b
etw

ee
n t

arg
ete

d a
nd

 
sp

ec
ial

ist
 se

rvi
ce

s a
nd

 si
gn

po
sts

 ea
rly

 
int

erv
en

tio
n, 

lin
kin

g t
o t

he
 Fa

mi
ly 

Inf
orm

ati
on

 Se
rvi

ce
. 

Mo
nic

a F
ort

y (
Ac

tin
g 

He
ad

 of
 Ea

rly
 Ye

ars
 

Ch
ild

ren
 & 

Le
arn

ing
) 

Ju
ly 

20
09

 

R1
1 

Th
at 

Ch
ild

ren
, S

ch
oo

ls 
an

d F
am

ilie
s 

Se
rvi

ce
s w

ork
 w

ith
 C

hil
dre

n’s
 C

en
tre

s 
an

d o
the

r k
ey

 pa
rtn

ers
 to

 ex
plo

re 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
a m

od
el 

to 
ha

ve
 a 

de
sig

na
ted

 le
ad

 pr
ofe

ss
ion

al 
for

 fa
mi

lie
s, 

all
ow

ing
 th

em
 on

e p
oin

t o
f c

on
tac

t 
am

on
gs

t th
e m

an
y p

rof
es

sio
na

ls 
tha

t 
ma

y b
e w

ork
ing

 in
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
. 

Inc
rea

se
d u

se
 of

 C
AF

 an
d i

de
nti

fic
ati

on
 of

 
Le

ad
 pr

ofe
ss

ion
als

 in
 C

hil
dre

n’s
 C

en
tre

s. 
At 

lea
st 

10
0 C

AF
s t

o b
e c

om
ple

ted
 by

 
Ch

ild
ren

’s 
Ce

ntr
es

 

Jo
 Fr

ee
ma

n  
(C

hil
dre

n’s
 C

en
ter

s 
Se

nio
r S

tra
teg

ic 
Ma

na
ge

r)  

Ju
ly 

20
10

 

R1
2 

Th
at 

Ch
ild

ren
, S

ch
oo

ls 
an

d F
am

ilie
s S

erv
ice

s 
wo

rk 
alo

ng
sid

e t
he

 C
om

mu
nic

ati
on

s t
ea

m 
to 

be
 m

ore
 pr

oa
cti

ve
 in

 id
en

tify
ing

 an
d 

Th
e S

afe
gu

ard
ing

 C
hil

d B
oa

rd 
Co

mm
un

ica
tio

ns
 St

rat
eg

y w
ill e

xp
lor

e t
his

 
fur

the
r.  

 

Mo
na

wa
ra 

Ba
kh

t (L
oc

al 
Sa

feg
ua

rdi
ng

 C
hil

dre
n 

Bo
ard

 C
o-o

rdi
na

tor
) / 

 
Su

kh
jin

de
r N

un
wa

 

No
ve

mb
er 

20
09

  

Page 248



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y R

ev
iew

 Ea
rly
 In
ter
ve
nti
on
, C
hil
d P

ro
tec

tio
n –

 A
pp
en
dix

 7 
Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Re
sp
on
se
/C
om

me
nts

 
Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

pu
bli

cis
ing

 go
od

 pr
ac

tic
e f

rom
 bo

th 
sta

tut
ory

 
so

cia
l c

are
 se

rvi
ce

s a
nd

 ot
he

r p
art

ne
r 

ag
en

cie
s i

n p
rot

ec
tin

g v
uln

era
ble

 ch
ild

ren
. 

 

A c
om

ple
ted

 co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns

 pl
an

 to
 

pu
bli

cis
e g

oo
d p

rac
tic

e w
ith

 be
 re

ad
y b

y 
No

ve
mb

er 
20

09
 ut

ilis
ing

 ex
ist

ing
 m

ed
ium

s 
an

d p
rom

oti
on

al 
ac

tiv
ity

. 
 

Sta
ke

ho
lde

r 
En

ga
ge

me
nt 

& 
Pa

rtic
ipa

tio
n M

an
ag

er 

R1
3 

 
Th

at 
the

 C
hil

dre
n, 

Sc
ho

ols
 an

d F
am

ilie
s 

Se
rvi

ce
s, 

an
d p

art
icu

lar
ly 

Ch
ild

ren
’s 

So
cia

l C
are

, w
ork

 w
ith

 M
em

be
rs 

to 
ex

plo
re 

wa
ys

 of
 fu

rth
er 

inv
olv

ing
 

Me
mb

ers
 in

 th
e o

ve
rvi

ew
 an

d a
ud

it o
f 

sa
feg

ua
rdi

ng
 w

ork
. 

 

A 1
2 m

on
thl

y r
ep

ort
 to

 be
 pr

ov
ide

d f
or 

me
mb

ers
 to

 up
da

te 
the

m 
on

 Sa
feg

ua
rdi

ng
 

iss
ue

s. 
Mo

na
wa

ra 
Ba

kh
t (L

oc
al 

Sa
feg

ua
rdi

ng
 C

hil
dre

n 
Bo

ard
 C

oo
rdi

na
tor

) 
Ap

ril 
20

10
 

R1
4 

 
Th

at 
the

 Ex
ce

lle
nt 

Pu
bli

c S
erv

ice
s 

Sc
rut

iny
 Le

ad
 sh

ou
ld 

un
de

rta
ke

 a 
fur

the
r 

pie
ce

 of
 w

ork
 in

 20
09

/10
 w

hic
h f

oc
us

es
 

mo
re 

ex
pli

cit
ly 

on
 va

lue
 fo

r m
on

ey
 an

d 
im

pro
ve

d s
erv

ice
 ou

tco
me

s, 
an

d h
ow

 
thi

s m
es

sa
ge

 ca
n b

e d
eli

ve
red

 ef
fec

tiv
ely

 
to 

the
 co

mm
un

ity
. 

 

Th
e S

cru
tin

y L
ea

d f
or 

Ex
ce

lle
nt 

Pu
bli

c 
Se

rvi
ce

s i
s c

urr
en

tly
 ex

plo
rin

g a
rea

s f
or 

rev
iew

 an
d w

ill f
oc

us
 on

 va
lue

 fo
r m

on
ey

 
ag

en
da

.  

Afa
zu

l H
oq

ue
 (S

cru
tin

y 
Po

licy
 M

an
ag

er)
  

Ma
y 2

01
0  

 

Page 249



 Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y C

ha
lle
ng
e S

es
sio

n R
ep
or
t D
an
ge
ro
us
 D
og
s –
 A
pp
en
dix

 8 
Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Re
sp
on
se
/C
om

me
nts

 
Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

R1
 

Th
at 

the
 An

im
al 

W
ard

en
 

Se
rvi

ce
 w

ork
s w

ith
 sc

ho
ols

 
to 

de
ve

lop
 in

ter
ac

tiv
e 

ac
tiv

itie
s f

or 
ch

ild
ren

 of
 al

l 
ag

es
, e

nc
ou

rag
ing

 th
em

 to
 

thi
nk

 ab
ou

t d
og

 w
elf

are
 an

d 
res

po
ns

ibl
e o

wn
ers

hip
. T

his
 

sh
ou

ld 
be

 ta
ilo

red
 to

 ad
dre

ss
 

pa
rtic

ula
r d

og
 w

elf
are

 
pro

ble
ms

 su
ch

 as
 st

ray
, 

sta
tus

 or
 da

ng
ero

us
 do

gs
.   
 

 

Th
is 

rec
om

me
nd

ati
on

 is
 w

elc
om

ed
 an

d t
he

 
se

rvi
ce

 w
ill b

e l
oo

kin
g a

t in
no

va
tiv

e m
eth

od
s 

to 
en

ga
ge

 yo
un

g p
eo

ple
. B

elo
w 

are
 so

me
 

pro
po

se
d a

cti
on

s: 
 

 Re
cru

ite
d t

wo
 ad

dit
ion

al 
An

im
al 

W
ard

en
s 

wh
ich

 w
ill g

ive
 th

e t
ea

m 
the

 re
so

urc
es

 to
 

en
ga

ge
 w

ith
 sc

ho
ols

. 
 Ar

ou
nd

 6 
do

gs
 sh

ow
s w

ill b
e o

rga
nis

ed
 in

 th
e 

su
mm

er.
 Th

is 
wil

l in
co

rpo
rat

e a
 da

y o
f a

cti
on

, 
wh

ere
 ch

ild
ren

 w
ill b

e e
ng

ag
ed

 to
 ex

pla
in 

iss
ue

s o
f d

an
ge

rou
s d

og
s a

nd
 re

sp
on

sib
le 

do
g o

wn
ers

hip
.  

 Re
-la

un
ch

 Pr
ev

en
t a

 Bi
te,

 a 
pro

gra
mm

e t
ha

t 
go

es
 in

to 
sc

ho
ols

 to
 ta

lk 
to 

ch
ild

ren
 ab

ou
t 

da
ng

ero
us

 do
gs

. 
 Th

e S
erv

ice
 ar

e p
rin

tin
g p

os
ter

s a
nd

 le
afl

ets
 

to 
us

e i
n s

ch
oo

ls 
   

Da
wn

 Sa
mm

on
s  

(P
rin

cip
al 

An
im

al 
W

ard
en

, E
nv

iro
nm

en
tal

 
Co

ntr
ol)

  

On
go

ing
 

    Se
pte

mb
er 

20
10

 
   Ju

ly 
– A

ug
us

t 2
01

0 
     Se

pte
mb

er 
20

10
 

   On
go

ing
 

R2
 

Th
at 

Co
mm

un
ity

 Ac
tio

n 
Ev

en
ts 

are
 ar

ran
ge

d b
y t

he
 

An
im

al 
W

ard
en

 Se
rvi

ce
, in

 
pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w

ith
 R

SP
CA

, 
SN

Ts
 an

d R
SL

s t
ha

t w
ork

 
wit

h l
oc

al 
co

mm
un

itie
s t

o 
pro

mo
te 

res
po

ns
ibl

e p
et 

A D
og

 Sa
fet

y D
ay

 w
ill b

e o
rga

nis
ed

 in
 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

 w
ith

 Ea
st 

En
d H

om
es

 an
d o

the
r 

ke
y p

art
ne

rs.
  O

n t
his

 da
y t

he
 Se

rvi
ce

 an
d 

RS
L w

ill: 
• 

Co
ns

ult
 on

 do
g c

on
tro

l m
ea

su
res

 
• 

Fin
d o

ut 
wh

at 
do

gs
 ar

e p
res

en
t 

• 
En

ga
ge

 w
ith

 ol
d a

nd
 ne

w 
ow

ne
rs 

of 

Da
wn

 Sa
mm

on
s 

(P
rin

cip
al 

An
im

al 
W

ard
en

, E
nv

iro
nm

en
tal

 
Co

ntr
ol)

  

Ma
rch

 20
10

 

Page 250



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y C

ha
lle
ng
e S

es
sio

n R
ep
or
t D
an
ge
ro
us
 D
og
s –
 A
pp
en
dix

 8 
Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Re
sp
on
se
/C
om

me
nts

 
Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

ow
ne

rsh
ip.

  
   

do
gs

 
• 

Ad
vic

e o
n d

og
 tra

ini
ng

 
W

ith
 Is

lan
d H

om
es

 th
e S

erv
ice

 w
ill b

e h
av

ing
 

Ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
d A

gre
em

en
t d

ay
s, 

wh
ich

 w
ill 

inc
lud

e l
oo

kin
g a

t th
e a

gre
em

en
ts 

reg
ard

ing
 

do
gs

. 
 W

ith
 th

e P
oli

ce
 an

d T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
En

for
ce

me
nt 

tea
m,

 th
e S

erv
ice

 w
ill b

e 
inv

olv
ed

 in
 O

pe
rat

ion
 Fu

sio
n, 

wh
ich

 is
 LA

P 
ba

se
d a

nd
 w

ill b
e i

nv
olv

ed
 in

 en
for

ce
me

nt 
wo

rk.
 

R3
 

Th
at 

the
 An

im
al 

W
ard

en
 

Se
rvi

ce
 pr

ov
ide

s s
olu

tio
ns

 to
 

do
g f

ou
lin

g b
y r

ep
ort

ing
 

off
en

de
rs 

for
 pr

os
ec

uti
on

 
wh

ere
 of

fen
ce

s a
re 

wit
ne

ss
ed

 in
 pa

rks
 an

d o
pe

n 
sp

ac
es

, in
 pa

rtic
ula

r a
rou

nd
 

ch
ild

ren
's 

pla
y a

rea
s. 

 

Ar
ou

nd
 10

0 e
nfo

rce
me

nt 
ac

tio
ns

 ag
ain

st 
off

en
de

rs 
(pr

os
ec

uti
on

s a
nd

 fo
rm

al 
wa

rni
ng

s) 
 

ha
ve

 be
en

 ta
ke

n s
inc

e A
pri

l 2
00

9. 
 

 Th
ere

 w
ill o

n-g
oin

g w
ork

 w
ith

 Pa
rk 

Sta
ff t

o 
co

ns
ult

 th
em

 on
 th

e b
es

t w
ay

 to
 w

ork
 

tog
eth

er 
reg

ard
ing

 th
is 

iss
ue

.  I
nc

lud
es

 
loo

kin
g a

t th
e p

os
sib

ility
 of

 ha
vin

g s
ep

ara
te 

are
as

 fo
r d

og
 w

alk
ing

 in
 ce

rta
in 

pa
rks

. 

Da
wn

 Sa
mm

on
s 

(P
rin

cip
al 

An
im

al 
W

ard
en

, E
nv

iro
nm

en
tal

 
Co

ntr
ol)

 

Ap
ril 

20
10

 
   On

go
ing

 

R4
 

Th
at 

the
 An

im
al 

W
ard

en
 

Se
rvi

ce
 us

e E
as

t E
nd

 Li
fe 

to 
se

nd
 ou

t c
lea

r in
for

ma
tio

n t
o 

all
 re

sid
en

ts 
inf

orm
ing

 th
em

 
on

 w
ho

m 
to 

co
nta

ct 
an

d t
he

 
inf

orm
ati

on
 ne

ed
ed

 to
 

pro
se

cu
te 

an
 ow

ne
r o

f a
 

da
ng

ero
us

 do
g. 

A n
um

be
r o

f a
rtic

les
 ab

ou
t d

an
ge

rou
s d

og
s 

wil
l b

e g
oin

g i
n t

he
 ne

xt 
few

 ed
itio

ns
 of

 Ea
st 

En
d L

ife
. 

 An
im

al 
W

ard
en

s c
on

tac
t d

eta
ils 

pu
bli

sh
ed

 
reg

ula
rly

 in
 Ea

st 
En

d L
ife

.  
 W

ill u
se

 R
SL

s n
ew

s l
ett

ers
 to

 ke
ep

 re
sid

en
ts 

Iai
n P

en
dri

gh
 

(Te
am

 Le
ad

er,
 

En
vir

on
me

nta
l 

Pr
ote

cti
on

)  
  An

u V
arm

a 
(P

erf
orm

an
ce

 

Ma
rch

 20
10

  
   Ma

rch
 20

10
 

  On
-go

ing
 

Page 251



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y C

ha
lle
ng
e S

es
sio

n R
ep
or
t D
an
ge
ro
us
 D
og
s –
 A
pp
en
dix

 8 
Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Re
sp
on
se
/C
om

me
nts

 
Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

  
of 

RS
Ls

 in
for

me
d a

bo
ut 

da
ng

ero
us

 do
gs

. 
 Se

ttin
g u

p a
 po

ste
r C

am
pa

ign
 ab

ou
t 

Da
ng

ero
us

 D
og

s 

Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
& 

En
ga

ge
me

nt,
 Pu

bli
c 

Re
alm

)  
R5
 

A p
art

ne
rsh

ip 
am

on
gs

t 
An

im
al 

W
elf

are
 O

ffic
ers

, th
e 

Co
un

cil,
 SN

Ts
, R

SL
s, 

Sta
tus

 
Do

gs
 U

nit
, T

HE
Os

 an
d t

he
 

RS
PC

A i
s o

ffic
ial

ly 
se

t u
p t

o 
wo

rk 
tog

eth
er 

on
 do

g w
elf

are
 

an
d o

wn
ers

hip
 is

su
es

. A
lso

 
to 

red
uc

e i
nc

ide
nts

 w
he

re 
do

gs
 ar

e m
isu

se
d a

nd
 

inv
es

tig
ati

ng
 AS

B l
ink

ed
 to

 
mi

su
se

 of
 do

gs
. It

 ne
ed

s t
o 

als
o s

ha
re 

int
ell

ige
nc

e a
nd

 
inf

orm
ati

on
, p

rev
en

tin
g 

iss
ue

s a
ris

ing
 by

 ed
uc

ati
ng

 
do

g o
wn

ing
 an

d n
on

 do
g 

ow
nin

g m
em

be
rs 

of 
the

 
pu

bli
c a

nd
 en

for
ce

me
nt 

us
ing

 ap
pro

pri
ate

 le
gis

lat
ion

. 
Fo

ur 
ste

ps
 ar

e p
rop

os
ed

 to
 

ma
ke

 th
is 

su
cc

es
sfu

l: 
 1. 

Se
ttin

g u
p a

 pa
rtn

ers
hip

 –
ge

t c
om

mi
tm

en
t fr

om
 al

l 
ag

en
cie

s  
2. 

De
ve

lop
 a 

str
ate

gy
 to

 

(N
um

be
rs 

rel
ate

 to
 ac

tio
ns

 w
ith

in 
the

 
rec

om
me

nd
ati

on
). 

 
1. 

A p
art

ne
rsh

ip 
ha

s b
ee

n s
et,

 w
ho

 ha
ve

 
alr

ea
dy

 lo
ok

ed
 at

 ge
ttin

g r
es

ide
nts

 of
 

RS
Ls

 to
 re

gis
ter

 th
eir

 do
gs

.  T
he

 
pa

rtn
ers

hip
 do

es
 no

t y
et 

ha
ve

 a 
na

me
. 

 2. 
Th

e p
roj

ec
t p

lan
 to

 de
ve

lop
 th

is 
str

ate
gy

 ha
s b

ee
n s

et 
up

 an
d w

ill b
e 

co
ns

ide
red

 by
 a.

 Pr
og

ram
me

 Bo
ard

 fo
r 

ap
pro

ca
l.  

 
 

3. 
Th

is 
Ne

tw
ork

 ha
s b

ee
n f

orm
ed

 as
 pa

rt 
of 

the
 Lo

nd
on

 M
ay

or’
s C

on
fer

en
ce

.  
Th

e S
erv

ice
 w

ill c
on

tin
ue

 to
 be

 pa
rt o

f 
the

 ne
tw

ork
 

 
4. 

Sta
ff h

av
e b

ee
n g

ive
n s

pe
cif

ic 
co

urs
e 

on
 da

ng
ero

us
 do

gs
.  A

 re
fre

sh
er 

co
urs

e w
ill b

e o
ffe

red
 to

 al
l re

lev
an

t 
sta

ff b
y t

he
 St

atu
s D

og
 U

nit
.  

  
 

   Iai
n P

en
dri

gh
 

(Te
am

 Le
ad

er,
 

En
vir

on
me

nta
l 

Pr
ote

cti
on

)  
 Iai

n P
en

dri
gh

 
    Iai

n P
en

dri
gh

 
    Da

wn
 Sa

mm
on

s  

   On
go

ing
 

    Ma
rch

 20
10

 
    Ma

rch
 20

10
 

    Se
pte

mb
er 

20
10

  
     

Page 252



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y C

ha
lle
ng
e S

es
sio

n R
ep
or
t D
an
ge
ro
us
 D
og
s –
 A
pp
en
dix

 8 
Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Re
sp
on
se
/C
om

me
nts

 
Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

tac
kle

 da
ng

ero
us

 do
gs

  
3. 

Co
ns

ide
r th

e p
os

sib
ility

 of
 

for
mi

ng
 a 

ne
tw

ork
 w

ith
 

oth
er 

Lo
nd

on
 bo

rou
gh

s t
o 

sh
are

 be
st 

pra
cti

ce
  

4. 
Of

fer
 st

aff
 tra

ini
ng

 on
 ho

w 
to 

eff
ec

tiv
ely

 de
al 

wit
h 

res
ide

nts
 ca

llin
g t

o r
ep

ort
 

a d
an

ge
rou

s d
og

. T
his

 
wil

l im
pro

ve
 qu

ali
ty 

an
d 

sp
ee

d o
f re

sp
on

se
. 

 
 

Page 253



 Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n N

eig
hb
ou
rh
oo
d R

en
ew
al 
Fu
nd
s –
 A
pp
en
dix

 9 
Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te:
 O
ct 
20
09
 

Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
ies
 

Da
te 

Up
da
te:
 M
arc

h 
20
10
 

 R1
  

Th
at 

a M
em

be
rs 

se
mi

na
r b

e 
org

an
ise

d o
n h

ow
 Lo

ca
l 

Ar
ea

 Ag
ree

me
nt 

(LA
A)

 
tar

ge
ts 

are
 id

en
tifi

ed
 an

d 
me

t. 
 

A M
em

be
rs 

Se
mi

na
r o

n 
Co

mp
reh

en
siv

e A
rea

 As
se

ss
me

nt 
(C

AA
) w

as
 he

ld 
in 

Ma
rch

 20
09

, w
hic

h 
inc

lud
ed

 an
 up

da
te 

on
 th

e L
AA

. T
he

 
sc

op
e o

f th
e L

AA
 re

fre
sh

 w
as

 lim
ite

d b
y 

ce
ntr

al 
go

ve
rnm

en
t –

 po
ten

tia
l 

ren
eg

oti
ati

on
 of

 a 
nu

mb
er 

of 
ind

ica
tor

s 
wa

s p
os

tpo
ne

d n
ati

on
all

y u
nti

l e
arl

y 
20

10
.  

 

 Jo
n U

nd
erw

oo
d 

 Co
mp

let
ed

  
       

 Th
is 

Ac
tio

n h
as

 
be

en
 co

mp
let

ed
.  

 R2
  

Th
at 

LA
As

 in
clu

de
 ta

rge
ts 

for
 

na
rro

win
g t

he
 ga

p w
ith

 th
e 

av
era

ge
 ou

tco
me

s f
or 

KS
2 

an
d K

S3
; c

oro
na

ry 
he

art
 

dis
ea

se
; e

mp
loy

me
nt 

lev
els

; 
tak

e u
p o

f In
ca

pa
cit

y B
en

efi
t 

an
d t

ee
na

ge
 co

nc
ep

tio
n 

rat
es

. 
 

 Th
e L

AA
 in

dic
ato

rs 
an

d t
arg

ets
 w

ere
 

dri
ve

n b
y t

he
 re

fre
sh

 of
 th

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 C
om

mu
nit

y P
lan

 
so

 th
at 

the
y r

efl
ec

ted
 th

e k
ey

 pr
ior

itie
s 

for
 th

e b
oro

ug
h. 

 O
nly

 in
dic

ato
rs 

fro
m 

the
 ne

w 
na

tio
na

l in
dic

ato
r s

et 
co

uld
 be

 
inc

lud
ed

 w
ith

in 
the

 LA
A. 

 O
ur 

LA
A 

inc
lud

es
 ta

rge
ts 

on
 m

os
t o

f th
es

e 
me

as
ure

s a
s f

oll
ow

s: 
• 

the
re 

are
 16

 st
atu

tor
y 

ed
uc

ati
on

al 
att

ain
me

nt,
 10

 of
 

wh
ich

 in
clu

de
 as

pe
cts

 of
 KS

2 
an

d K
S3

 
• 

thr
ee

 in
dic

ato
rs 

are
 in

clu
de

d 
aro

un
d e

mp
loy

me
nt 

rat
es

: 
em

plo
ym

en
t ra

tes
 (N

I 1
51

), 

N/
A  

N/
A 

N/
A 

Page 254



pe
op

le 
cla

im
ing

 ou
t o

f w
ork

 
be

ne
fits

 in
 th

e w
ors

t p
erf

orm
ing

 
wa

rds
 (N

I 1
53

)an
d p

eo
ple

 
cla

im
ing

 ou
t o

f w
ork

 be
ne

fits
 (N

I 
15

2) 
• 

Un
de

r 1
8 c

on
ce

pti
on

 ra
te 

(N
I 

11
2) 

is 
inc

lud
ed

 
• 

Co
ron

ary
 H

ea
rt d

ise
as

e i
s n

ot 
inc

lud
ed

.   
 Th

e L
AA

 in
clu

de
s 

tar
ge

ts 
for

 th
e a

ll a
ge

 al
l c

au
se

 
mo

rta
lity

 (N
I 1

20
) - 

wh
ich

 is
 se

en
 

as
 th

e b
es

t c
om

po
sit

e i
nd

ica
tor

 
of 

he
alt

h –
 as

 w
ell

 as
 ob

es
ity

 (N
I 

56
) a

nd
 sm

ok
ing

 (N
I 2

3).
 

• 
Th

ere
 is

 on
e n

ati
on

al 
ind

ica
tor

 
aro

un
d i

nc
ap

ac
ity

 (N
I 1

73
).  

Th
is 

is 
no

t in
clu

de
d i

n t
he

 LA
A b

ut 
– 

as
 pa

rt o
f th

e n
ati

on
al 

ind
ica

tor
 

se
t –

 it 
wil

l b
e m

on
ito

red
 as

 on
e 

of 
the

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 pr
ior

ity
 

ind
ica

tor
s. 

 
 R3
  

Th
at 

the
 To

we
r H

am
let

s 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 en

su
res

 th
at 

the
 

gu
idi

ng
 pr

inc
ipl

es
 of

 th
e 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 C
ha

rte
r a

re 
ad

he
red

 to
; m

ak
ing

 su
re 

tha
t 

the
re 

is 
co

nti
nu

ity
 in

 th
e w

ay
 

the
 Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 fu

nc
tio

ns
. 

Th
is 

sh
ou

ld 
inc

lud
e b

ett
er 

In 
No

ve
mb

er 
20

08
 

the
 

Ex
ec

uti
ve

 
ag

ree
d 

for
 t

he
 C

ha
rte

r 
to 

go
 o

ut 
to 

co
ns

ult
ati

on
 

wit
h 

the
 

pa
rtic

ipa
tio

n 
fra

me
wo

rk 
on

 th
e 

pre
mi

se
 th

at 
gre

ate
r 

cla
rity

 a
nd

 d
efi

nit
ion

 o
n 

en
ga

ge
me

nt 
wit

h 
thi

rd 
se

cto
r t

ak
e 

pla
ce

.  
On

ce
 th

e 
Th

ird
 S

ec
tor

 w
ork

 i
s 

co
mp

let
e 

the
 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 w
ill 

co
ns

ult
 o

n 
the

 ch
art

er 
as

 p
art

 o
f t

he
 n

ew
 a

rra
ng

em
en

ts 
se

t 

 Sh
an

ara
 M

ati
n, 

He
ad

 of
 

Pa
rtic

ipa
tio

n a
nd

 
En

ga
ge

me
nt 

(In
ter

im
) 

 Co
mp

let
ed

  
    Co

mp
let

ed
 

  

Th
is 

Ac
tio

n h
as

 
be

en
 co

mp
let

ed
 

Page 255



pu
bli

cit
y t

hro
ug

h E
as

t E
nd

 
Lif

e a
nd

 al
so

 on
 th

e 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w

eb
sit

e. 
Fu

rth
erm

ore
 al

l n
ew

 an
d 

ex
ist

ing
 LA

P m
em

be
rs 

an
d 

Pa
rtn

ers
 sh

ou
ld 

be
 gi

ve
n a

 
co

py
 to

 re
fer

 to
. 

 

ou
t in

 th
e 3

rd 
se

cto
r s

tra
teg

y. 
 In

 do
ing

 
so

 th
e E

xe
cu

tiv
e c

om
me

nts
 sh

ou
ld 

als
o 

be
 ta

ke
n o

n B
oa

rd:
 

  Ex
pe

cte
d c

od
e o

f b
eh

av
iou

r s
ho

uld
 be

 
wr

itte
n i

nto
 th

e C
ha

rte
r 

 Th
e C

od
e o

f C
on

du
ct,

 de
cla

rat
ion

 
of 

int
ere

sts
 sh

ou
ld 

als
o b

e t
igh

ten
ed

 
up

.  
 

     Co
mp

let
ed

  
        

 R4
  

Th
at 

To
we

r H
am

let
s 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 in
tro

du
ce

s a
 

lea
rni

ng
 an

d d
ev

elo
pm

en
t 

pro
gra

mm
e f

or 
Lo

ca
l A

rea
 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 (L
AP

) m
em

be
rs 

wh
ich

 in
clu

de
 a 

se
ss

ion
 on

 
ho

w 
fun

din
g d

ec
isio

ns
 ar

e 
ma

de
. 

        

A D
ev

elo
pm

en
t a

nd
 Tr

ain
ing

 
pro

gra
mm

e i
s c

urr
en

tly
 be

ing
 pr

ep
are

d 
for

 al
l P

art
ne

rsh
ip 

me
mb

ers
 an

d w
ill b

e 
im

ple
me

nte
d t

hro
ug

ho
ut 

the
 au

tum
n 

an
d w

int
er 

mo
nth

s. 
            

Sh
an

ara
 M

ati
n, 

He
ad

 of
 

Pa
rtic

ipa
tio

n a
nd

 
En

ga
ge

me
nt 

(In
ter

im
) 

        

Co
mp

let
ed

 
             

Th
e f

irs
t 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 LA
P 

co
nfe

ren
ce

 to
ok

 
pla

ce
 in

 Ja
nu

ary
 

20
10

.  F
ee

db
ac

k 
fro

m 
res

ide
nts

 
are

 be
ing

 
im

ple
me

nte
d t

o 
im

pro
ve

 th
e r

ole
 

of 
the

 St
ee

rin
g 

gro
up

 an
d 

ma
kin

g t
he

ir w
ork

 
mo

re 
loc

all
y 

foc
us

ed
. 

 Th
is 

rec
om

me
nd

ati
on

 

Page 256



   
ha

s t
he

ref
ore

 
be

en
 

im
ple

me
nte

d. 
 

R5
  

Th
at 

a d
oc

um
en

t d
eta

ilin
g 

LA
P r

ole
s a

nd
 

res
po

ns
ibi

litie
s i

s s
en

t to
 al

l 
res

ide
nts

, a
lon

g w
ith

 an
 

inv
ita

tio
n t

o a
tte

nd
 LA

P 
me

eti
ng

s. 
 

Th
e n

ew
 te

rm
s o

f re
fer

en
ce

 is
 al

so
 

av
ail

ab
le 

fro
m 

the
 Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w

eb
sit

e 
ww

w.
on

eto
we

rha
ml

ets
.ne

t a
nd

 ha
s 

be
en

 ci
rcu

lat
ed

 to
 al

l L
AP

 m
em

be
rs 

an
d p

ub
lici

se
d t

hro
ug

h E
as

t E
nd

 Li
fe.

 

Sh
az

ia 
Hu

ss
ain

 
Co

mp
let

ed
 

 
Th

is 
Ac

tio
n h

as
 

be
en

 co
mp

let
ed

 

R6
    
 Th

at 
the

 To
we

r H
am

let
s  

    
   

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 un
de

rta
ke

s a
 

co
rpo

rat
e a

pp
roa

ch
 to

 
pro

jec
t e

va
lua

tio
n t

o i
mp

rov
e 

va
lue

 fo
r m

on
ey

.  T
his

 
ev

alu
ati

on
 sh

ou
ld 

inc
lud

e a
n 

an
aly

sis
 of

 pr
oje

ct 
me

tho
ds

, 
sc

ale
, ta

rge
t g

rou
p, 

va
lue

 fo
r 

mo
ne

y. 

£5
0,0

00
 ha

s b
ee

n a
llo

ca
ted

 to
 ca

rry
ou

t 
an

 ev
alu

ati
on

 of
 th

e W
NF

 Pr
og

ram
me

. 
Sh

az
ia 

Hu
ss

ain
 

On
-go

ing
  

Th
e f

ina
l 

ev
alu

ati
on

 w
ill b

e 
un

de
rta

ke
n i

n 
Ma

rch
 20

11
 

wh
en

 th
e p

roj
ec

t 
co

me
s t

o a
n e

nd
.  

R7
 

Th
at 

the
 To

we
r H

am
let

s 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 ca

rry
 ou

t a
 

rev
iew

 of
 al

l e
mp

loy
me

nt 
pro

jec
t c

lie
nt 

ou
tco

me
s t

o 
ide

nti
fy 

wh
ich

 in
ter

ve
nti

on
s 

we
re 

mo
st 

eff
ec

tiv
e. 

  

W
NF

 pr
oje

cts
 w

ill b
e e

va
lua

ted
 in

 
Ma

rch
 20

11
 w

hic
h w

ill i
de

nti
fy 

the
 m

os
t 

eff
ec

tiv
e i

nte
rve

nti
on

s. 
Re

gu
lar

 
mo

nit
ori

ng
 w

ill b
e u

nd
ert

ak
en

 of
 al

l 
pro

jec
ts 

co
mm

iss
ion

 as
 pa

rt o
f W

NF
.   

Nic
k S

ma
les

 
On

-go
ing

  
All

 W
NF

 pr
oje

cts
 

are
 be

ing
 

reg
ula

rly
 

mo
nit

ore
d. 

 

R8
 

Th
at 

CP
AG

s o
pe

rat
e j

oin
t 

co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 on

 
wo

rkl
es

sn
es

s p
roj

ec
ts 

in 
ord

er 
to 

ma
xim

ise
 th

e 

An
 ou

tpu
t tr

ac
kin

g d
ata

ba
se

 ha
s b

ee
n 

de
ve

lop
ed

 an
d w

ill g
o l

ive
 on

 1 
No

ve
mb

er 
20

10
, w

hic
h w

ill h
elp

 tra
ck

 
all

 be
ne

fic
iar

ies
 of

 th
e W

NF
 

Nic
k S

ma
les

 
Co

mp
let

ed
  

 
Th

e W
NF

 
Tra

ck
ing

 
da

tab
as

e w
en

t 
live

 in
 N

ov
em

be
r 

Page 257



be
ne

fits
 to

 cl
ien

t o
utr

ea
ch

 
an

d i
mp

rov
e v

alu
e f

or 
mo

ne
y. 

 

Pr
og

ram
me

, to
 en

su
re 

tha
t th

e 
Pr

og
ram

me
 ob

jec
tiv

es
 ar

e b
ein

g m
et.

 
20

09
 an

d i
s 

be
ing

 us
ed

 by
 al

l 
the

 W
NF

 pr
oje

cts
 

to 
inp

ut 
the

ir 
ou

tpu
ts.

 Th
is 

inf
orm

ati
on

 w
ill 

be
 an

aly
se

d a
t 

the
 en

d o
f th

e 
ye

ar.
  

R9
  

Th
at 

the
 ar

ran
ge

me
nts

 fo
r 

ou
tre

ac
h a

cro
ss

 th
e p

roj
ec

ts 
sh

ou
ld 

be
 re

vie
we

d. 
Th

e 
rev

iew
 sh

ou
ld 

ad
dre

ss
 

arr
an

ge
me

nts
 fo

r s
pe

cif
ic 

ou
tre

ac
h t

o i
nte

nd
ed

 
be

ne
fic

iar
ies

 an
d g

en
era

l 
ou

tre
ac

h a
rra

ng
em

en
ts 

for
 

en
ga

gin
g t

he
 br

oa
de

r 
co

mm
un

ity
. 

Ma
pp

ing
 ex

erc
ise

 of
 th

ird
 se

cto
r g

rou
ps

 
co

mp
let

ed
 by

 D
ev

elo
pm

en
t &

 R
en

ew
al.

 
   Th

ird
 S

ec
tor

 A
dv

iso
ry 

bo
ard

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
se

t u
p 

an
d 

me
et 

reg
ula

rly
 to

 o
ve

rse
e 

the
 im

pla
nta

tio
n o

f th
ird

 se
cto

r s
tra

teg
y 

an
d 

su
pp

ort
 

for
 

clo
se

r/e
ffe

cti
ve

 
pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w

ith
 th

e s
ec

tor
. 

Jo
n u

nd
erw

oo
d 

Co
mp

let
ed

 
       Co

mp
let

ed
 

Th
e t

hir
d s

ec
tor

 
str

ate
gy

 ha
s 

be
en

 ag
ree

d a
nd

 
VC

S i
s b

ein
g 

de
ve

lop
ed

 
cu

rre
ntl

y. 
 

R1
0  

Th
at 

CP
AG

s i
de

nti
fy 

pro
jec

t 
de

live
ry 

me
tho

ds
 w

he
n 

co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 pr

oje
cts

. T
his

 
sh

ou
ld 

en
su

re 
tha

t s
uit

ab
le 

ou
tre

ac
h t

o c
lie

nts
 is

 
sc

rut
ini

se
d a

t th
e p

roj
ec

t 
co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 st
ag

e. 

LA
A t

arg
ets

 ar
e r

eg
ula

rly
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 
mo

nit
ore

d b
y C

ab
ine

t M
em

be
rs 

an
d 

OS
C.

   
Sh

az
ia 

Hu
ss

ain
 / J

on
 

Un
de

rw
oo

d 
Co

mp
let

ed
 

Th
is 

Ac
tio

n h
as

 
be

en
 co

mp
let

ed
 

R1
1  

Th
at 

the
 To

we
r H

am
let

s 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 re

vie
ws

 th
e 

co
mm

un
ica

tio
n b

etw
ee

n 
LA

Ps
, C

PA
Gs

 an
d 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Ac
tio

n h
as

 be
en

 co
mp

let
ed

 as
 of

 
pa

rtn
ers

hip
 re

fre
sh

.  
   

Sh
az

ia 
Hu

ss
ain

 
    

Co
mp

let
ed

 
    

Th
is 

Ac
tio

n h
as

 
be

en
 co

mp
let

ed
 

   

Page 258



Gr
ou

p (
PM

G)
 in

 or
de

r to
 

en
su

re 
tha

t lo
ca

l m
att

ers
 ar

e 
ref

lec
ted

 at
 PM

G 
an

d t
ha

t 
str

ate
gic

 m
att

ers
 ar

e 
co

mm
un

ica
ted

 ef
fec

tiv
ely

 to
 

LA
Ps

. 

      

      

       
R1
2 

Th
at 

the
 To

we
r H

am
let

s 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 de

ve
lop

s a
 

str
ate

gic
 co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 
fra

me
wo

rk 
for

 re
ge

ne
rat

ion
 

fun
ds

 in
 fu

tur
e, 

to 
pro

vid
e a

 
mo

re 
co

ns
ist

en
t fr

am
ew

ork
 

for
 as

se
ss

ing
 va

lue
 fo

r 
mo

ne
y a

nd
 to

 en
su

re 
sp

ec
ific

 
int

erv
en

tio
ns

 re
inf

orc
e h

igh
er 

lev
el 

str
ate

gic
 ob

jec
tiv

es
. 

Th
is 

ha
s 

alr
ea

dy
 

be
en

 
co

mp
let

ed
 

thr
ou

gh
 

the
 

W
NF

 
Str

ate
gy

 
an

d 
co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 do
cu

me
nt.

 
Sh

az
ia 

Hu
ss

ain
 

Co
mp

let
ed

 
Th

is 
Ac

tio
n h

as
 

be
en

 co
mp

let
ed

 

R1
3  

Th
at 

pro
jec

t a
pp

rai
sa

l 
do

cu
me

nts
 pr

ov
ide

 a 
ma

ins
tre

am
ing

 st
rat

eg
y 

wh
ich

 ex
pla

ins
 w

he
the

r th
e 

pro
jec

t w
ill a

) c
ha

ng
e s

erv
ice

 
pra

cti
ce

 b)
 se

ek
 al

ter
na

tiv
e 

fun
din

g c
) c

rea
te 

a n
ew

 
ma

ins
tre

am
 se

rvi
ce

. 

Sa
me

 as
 ab

ov
e. 

Sh
az

ia 
Hu

ss
ain

 
Co

mp
let

ed
 

Th
is 

Ac
tio

n h
as

 
be

en
 co

mp
let

ed
 

R1
4  
   T

ha
t e

mp
loy

ab
ility

 an
d s

kill
s 

sh
ou

ld 
rem

ain
 a 

pri
ori

ty 
for

 
the

 To
we

r H
am

let
s 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

. T
he

 pr
oje

ct 
ap

pra
isa

l s
ho

uld
 id

en
tify

 
wh

ich
 cl

ien
t g

rou
p i

s b
ein

g 
tar

ge
ted

 an
d o

utc
om

es
 

Th
is 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
dd

res
se

d 
thr

ou
gh

 th
e 

W
NF

 s
tra

teg
y. 

 W
NF

 c
an

 o
nly

 b
e 

co
mm

iss
ion

ed
 

ag
ain

st 
Em

plo
ym

en
t 

an
d w

ork
les

sn
es

s r
ela

ted
 ac

tiv
ity

.  T
his

 
wil

l 
be

 
clo

se
ly 

ali
gn

ed
 

to 
the

 
Em

plo
ym

en
t 

Str
ate

gy
 a

nd
 t

he
 L

AA
 

tar
ge

ts 
to 

en
su

re 
we

 m
ee

t o
ur 

tar
ge

ts.
 

Nic
k S

ma
les

 
Co

mp
let

ed
 

      

Th
is 

Ac
tio

n h
as

 
be

en
 co

mp
let

ed
 

Page 259



sh
ou

ld 
no

t b
e r

es
tric

ted
 to

 
'jo

bs
 he

ld 
for

 13
 w

ee
ks

' s
o 

tha
t th

e p
rog

res
s m

ad
e 

tow
ard

s e
mp

loy
me

nt 
ca

n b
e 

me
as

ure
d. 

     

     
R1
5  
  T

ha
t fu

nd
ing

 is
 pr

ov
ide

d t
o 

the
 th

ird
 se

cto
r in

 th
e 

Bo
rou

gh
 to

 en
su

re 
it i

s a
ble

 
to 

rep
res

en
t th

e v
iew

s o
f th

e 
se

cto
r in

 st
rat

eg
ic 

de
cis

ion
s 

an
d c

an
 su

pp
ort

 lo
ca

l le
ve

l 
co

mm
un

ity
 ca

pa
cit

y b
uil

din
g 

ac
tiv

ity
 on

 th
e c

om
mu

nit
y 

ch
es

t m
od

el.
 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Ca
bin

et 
ap

pro
va

l, 
LA

P 
Ste

eri
ng

 
Gr

ou
ps

 
wil

l 
be

 
ab

le 
to 

co
mm

iss
ion

 lo
ca

lise
d a

cti
vit

y u
p 

to 
the

 
va

lue
 

of 
£3

00
,00

0. 
Th

is 
is 

be
ing

 
de

ve
lop

ed
 in

to 
the

 P
art

icip
ato

ry 
Bu

dg
et 

Mo
de

l to
 be

 ro
lle

d o
ut 

in 
Ap

ril 
20

08
.  

     

Sh
az

ia 
Hu

ss
ain

 
Co

mp
let

ed
 

Pa
rtic

ipa
tor

y 
Bu

dg
eti

ng
 M

od
el 

is 
cu

rre
ntl

y 
run

nin
g f

or 
the

 
se

co
nd

 ye
ar 

an
d 

att
rac

tin
g l

arg
e 

nu
mb

er 
of 

res
ide

nts
.  

 Th
e C

ou
nc

il h
as

 
als

o l
au

nc
he

d a
 

Th
ird

 Se
cto

r 
Str

ate
gy

 w
hic

h 
ha

s i
ntr

od
uc

ed
 a 

Co
mm

un
ity

 
Ch

es
t e

lem
en

t to
 

su
pp

ort
 th

ird
 

se
cto

r 
org

an
isa

tio
ns

. A
 

ne
w 

VC
S h

as
 

als
o b

ee
n 

lau
nc

he
d w

hic
h 

wil
l b

e a
ble

 to
 

su
pp

ort
 th

ird
 

se
cto

r 
org

an
isa

tio
ns

 to
 

Page 260



ref
lec

t th
e v

oic
e 

an
d c

on
ce

rns
.  

R1
6  
  T

ha
t th

e i
mp

ac
t o

f S
afe

r 
Ne

igh
bo

urh
oo

d T
ea

ms
 

(S
NT

s) 
sh

ou
ld 

be
 re

co
gn

ise
d 

an
d T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 sh
ou

ld 
us

e 
W

ork
ing

 N
eig

hb
ou

rho
od

 
Fu

nd
 (W

NF
) to

 pi
lot

 an
 

ex
pa

nd
ed

 SN
T s

erv
ice

 in
 at

 
lea

st 
tw

o w
ard

s. 

Th
e 

Pa
rtic

ipa
tor

y B
ud

ge
t M

od
el 

ha
s a

 
me

nu
 o

f o
pti

on
s. 

On
e 

su
ch

 o
pti

on
 w

ill 
be

 ar
ou

nd
 im

pro
vin

g S
NT

s. 
 To

we
r H

am
let

s E
nfo

rce
me

nt 
Of

fic
ers

 
are

 be
ing

 tra
ine

d, 
rea

dy
 fo

r ro
ll o

ut 
in 

the
 au

tum
n 2

00
9. 

 Jo
int

 ta
sk

ing
 m

ee
tin

gs
 ha

ve
 be

en
 

de
ve

lop
ed

. 
 

Sh
az

ia 
Hu

ss
ain

 
Co

mp
let

ed
 

To
we

r H
am

let
s 

En
for

ce
me

nt 
Of

fic
ers

 ar
e n

ow
 

wo
rki

ng
 in

 th
e 

bo
rou

gh
 an

d 
wo

rki
ng

 w
ith

 
oth

er 
pa

rtn
ers

 to
 

ide
nti

fy 
ke

y 
co

nc
ern

s. 
 

R1
7  
   T

ha
t th

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 sh

ou
ld 

ex
am

ine
 

the
 po

ss
ibi

lity
 of

 fu
nd

ing
 a 

sim
ila

r W
ork

ing
 Fu

tur
es

 
sc

he
me

 to
 ea

se
 th

e p
ov

ert
y 

tra
p f

ac
ing

 ho
me

les
s f

am
ilie

s 
in 

the
 Bo

rou
gh

. 

Th
e 

po
ss

ibi
lity

 o
f d

ev
elo

pin
g 

a 
sim

ila
r 

sc
he

me
 to

 th
at 

op
era

tin
g i

n t
he

 Lo
nd

on
 

Bo
rou

gh
 

of 
Ne

wh
am

 
wil

l 
be

 
for

 
co

ns
ide

rat
ion

 
by

 
the

 
ap

pro
pri

ate
 

CP
DG

. 
  Pr

os
pe

rou
s C

om
mu

nit
y D

eli
ve

ry 
Gr

ou
p 

reg
ula

rly
 

rev
iew

 
the

ir 
ap

pro
ac

h 
to 

em
plo

ym
en

t a
nd

 th
e i

mp
ac

t o
n p

ov
ert

y 
(se

e 
ww

w.
on

eto
we

rha
ml

ets
.go

v.u
k) 

for
 

mi
nu

tes
. 

 

Nic
k S

ma
les

  
 On

-go
ing

 
 

 

Page 261



 Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n P

are
nta

l E
ng
ag
em

en
t in

 Se
co
nd
ary

 Ed
uc
ati
on
 – 
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
10
 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Re
sp
on
se
/C
om

me
nts

 
Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

R1
 

Th
at 

Ch
ild

ren
, S

ch
oo

ls 
an

d 
Fa

mi
lie

s D
ire

cto
rat

e h
elp

 to
 

de
ve

lop
 th

e P
are

nt 
Su

pp
ort

 
Pa

rtn
er 

(P
SP

) ro
le 

wit
hin

 
sc

ho
ols

 to
 en

su
re 

pa
ren

ts 
ha

ve
 ac

ce
ss

 to
 th

e 
inf

orm
ati

on
 an

d s
up

po
rt t

he
y 

mi
gh

t n
ee

d t
o a

cc
es

s 
se

rvi
ce

s, 
inc

lud
ing

 pa
ren

tin
g 

pro
gra

mm
es

. 

Ch
ild

ren
, S

ch
oo

ls 
& F

am
ilie

s D
ire

cto
rat

e w
ill 

su
pp

ort
 se

co
nd

ary
 sc

ho
ols

 to
 de

ve
lop

 th
e 

Pa
ren

t S
up

po
rt P

art
ne

r (P
SP

) ro
le 

an
d 

pro
vid

e t
rai

nin
g a

nd
 co

nti
nu

ing
 pr

ofe
ss

ion
al 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r P

SP
 St

aff
. 

 Ac
tio
n: 
  

1. 
Co

mp
let

e a
ud

it o
f P

SP
 or

 si
mi

lar
 ro

le 
in 

 
    

se
co

nd
ary

 sc
ho

ols
. 

2. 
Pu

bli
cis

e A
utu

mn
 te

rm
 LA

P f
oc

us
ed

  
    

 tra
ini

ng
 pr

og
ram

me
 fo

r P
SP

. 
3. 

Su
pp

ort
 w

ork
 in

 sc
ho

ols
 (P

are
nt 

Pa
thw

ay
) 

co
urs

e d
eli

ve
red

. 

Sh
aro

n S
ull

iva
n, 

Se
nio

r 
Pa

ren
t S

up
po

rt C
o-

ord
ina

tor
, E

arl
y Y

ea
rs,

 
Ch

ild
ren

 an
d L

ea
rni

ng
 

  

        Oc
tob

er 
20

09
 

 Oc
tob

er 
20

09
 

 Ma
rch

 20
09

 
R2
 

Th
at 

Ch
ild

ren
, S

ch
oo

ls 
an

d 
Fa

mi
lie

s D
ire

cto
rat

e 
de

ve
lop

s c
lea

r a
nd

 
ac

ce
ss

ibl
e i

nfo
rm

ati
on

 an
d 

co
mm

un
ica

tio
n n

etw
ork

s f
or 

pa
ren

ts 
thr

ou
gh

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
of 

the
 PS

P r
ole

, p
ub

lica
tio

ns
 

an
d n

ew
sle

tte
rs,

 w
eb

sit
es

, 
pa

ren
t fo

rum
s a

nd
 re

p 
sc

he
me

s a
s w

ell
 as

 fa
ce

 to
 

fac
e m

ee
tin

gs
.  

De
ve

lop
ing

 cl
ea

r a
nd

 ac
ce

ss
ibl

e i
nfo

rm
ati

on
 

for
 pa

ren
ts 

is 
a k

ey
 st

rat
eg

y t
o i

nc
rea

se
 

en
ga

ge
me

nt.
 Th

e P
are

nta
l E

ng
ag

em
en

t 
Te

am
 w

ill s
up

po
rt s

ec
on

da
ry 

sc
ho

ols
 de

ve
lop

 
inf

orm
ati

on
 an

d c
om

mu
nic

ati
on

 ne
tw

ork
s t

o 
en

su
re 

pa
ren

ts 
ha

ve
 ac

ce
ss

 to
 in

for
ma

tio
n 

an
d s

up
po

rt w
he

n t
he

y n
ee

d i
t. 

  Ac
tio
n: 

1. 
W

ork
 w

ith
 C

om
mu

nic
ati

on
s T

ea
m 

to 
    

de
ve

lop
 st

rat
eg

y t
o e

ns
ure

 al
l p

are
nts

  
    

kn
ow

 w
he

re 
to 

ac
ce

ss
 in

for
ma

tio
n. 

2. 
Pr

om
ote

 th
e l

au
nc

h o
f th

e F
am

ily 
Inf

orm
ati

on
 Se

rvi
ce

 to
 al

l P
are

nt 
Su

pp
ort

 
Pa

rtn
ers

 th
rou

gh
 th

e P
are

nts
 M

att
er 

  S
ha

ron
 Su

lliv
an

, 
Se

nio
r P

are
nt 

Su
pp

ort
 

Co
-or

din
ato

r, E
arl

y 
Ye

ars
, C

hil
dre

n a
nd

 
Le

arn
ing

  
 

         De
ce

mb
er 

20
09

 
  De

ce
mb

er 
20

09
 

Page 262



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n P

are
nta

l E
ng
ag
em

en
t in

 Se
co
nd
ary

 Ed
uc
ati
on
 – 
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
10
 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Re
sp
on
se
/C
om

me
nts

 
Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

Ne
ws

let
ter

 an
d l

oc
ali

se
d L

ink
 M

ee
tin

gs
. 

 
R3
 

Th
at 

Ch
ild

ren
, S

ch
oo

ls 
an

d 
Fa

mi
lie

s D
ire

cto
rat

e i
n 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

 w
ith

 pr
im

ary
 an

d 
se

co
nd

ary
 sc

ho
ols

 de
ve

lop
s 

a s
ea

ml
es

s a
nd

 ef
fec

tiv
e 

tra
ns

itio
n p

roc
es

s f
rom

 ye
ar 

6 (
pri

ma
ry 

sc
ho

ol)
 by

 ru
nn

ing
 

tra
ns

itio
n i

nfo
rm

ati
on

 
se

ss
ion

s (
Pa

ren
t In

for
ma

tio
n 

Po
int

) fo
r a

ll Y
ea

r 7
  p

are
nts

. 
Th

is 
sh

ou
ld 

be
 fo

llo
we

d b
y a

 
str

uc
tur

ed
 in

du
cti

on
 in

to 
ye

ar 
7 t

hro
ug

h w
ork

sh
op

s a
nd

 
sh

ort
 co

urs
es

 en
ab

lin
g 

pa
ren

ts 
to 

lea
rn 

mo
re 

ab
ou

t 
ho

w 
se

co
nd

ary
 sc

ho
ols

 w
ork

 
an

d h
ow

 th
ey

 ca
n s

up
po

rt 
the

ir c
hil

d’s
 le

arn
ing

.  

Th
e S

en
ior

 Pa
ren

t S
up

po
rt C

o-o
rdi

na
tor

 w
ill 

lia
ise

 w
ith

 se
co

nd
ary

 sc
ho

ols
 to

 de
vis

e w
ay

s 
to 

de
ve

lop
 tra

ns
itio

n s
tra

teg
ies

. O
nc

e t
his

 ha
s 

be
en

 co
mp

let
ed

 al
l s

ec
on

da
ry 

sc
ho

ols
 w

ill b
e 

off
ere

d t
ran

sit
ion

 co
urs

es
. F

urt
he

rm
ore

 a 
pa

ren
t fo

rum
 w

ill b
e s

et 
up

 to
 he

lp 
pa

ren
ts 

ma
na

ge
 th

e t
ran

sit
ion

 pr
oc

es
s. 

Th
e P

are
nta

l 
En

ga
ge

me
nt 

Te
am

 w
ill s

up
po

rt p
rim

ary
 an

d 
se

co
nd

ary
 sc

ho
ols

 de
ve

lop
 in

ter
ac

tiv
e P

are
nt 

Inf
orm

ati
on

 Po
int

 tra
ns

itio
n s

es
sio

ns
 fo

r 
pa

ren
ts.

  
 Ac
tio
n: 
  

1. 
Se

nio
r P

are
nt 

Su
pp

ort
 C

oo
rdi

na
tor

 (P
SC

) 
to 

lia
ise

 w
ith

 se
co

nd
ary

 m
an

ag
ers

. 
2. 

All
 se

co
nd

ary
 sc

ho
ols

 to
 be

 of
fer

ed
  

    
tra

ns
itio

n c
ou

rse
 in

 Au
tum

n t
erm

. 
3. 

Tra
ns

itio
n c

ou
rse

 an
d p

are
nt 

for
um

 w
ill b

e 
ev

alu
ate

d a
nd

 fu
rth

er 
lea

rni
ng

 op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 

ne
go

tia
ted

. 
 

Sh
aro

n S
ull

iva
n, 

Se
nio

r 
Pa

ren
t S

up
po

rt C
o-

ord
ina

tor
, E

arl
y Y

ea
rs,

 
Ch

ild
ren

 an
d L

ea
rni

ng
 

             De
ce

mb
er 

20
09

 
 Oc

tob
er 

20
09

 
 Ja

nu
ary

 20
10

 

R4
 

Th
at 

Ch
ild

ren
, S

ch
oo

ls 
an

d 
Fa

mi
lie

s D
ire

cto
rat

e s
up

po
rts

 
se

co
nd

ary
 sc

ho
ols

 to
 of

fer
 

tra
ns

itio
n i

nfo
rm

ati
on

 
se

ss
ion

s f
or 

pa
ren

ts 
of 

ch
ild

ren
 in

 Y9
 (m

ak
ing

 

Th
e P

are
nta

l E
ng

ag
em

en
t T

ea
m 

wil
l s

up
po

rt 
se

co
nd

ary
 sc

ho
ols

 to
 de

ve
lop

 cu
rric

ulu
m 

an
d 

po
st 

16
 ch

oic
es

 an
d w

ill p
rov

ide
 tra

ini
ng

 an
d 

co
nti

nu
ing

 pr
ofe

ss
ion

al 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 fo

r s
ch

oo
l s

taf
f. 

 

Sh
aro

n S
ull

iva
n, 

Se
nio

r 
Pa

ren
t S

up
po

rt C
o-

ord
ina

tor
, E

arl
y Y

ea
rs,

 
Ch

ild
ren

 an
d L

ea
rni

ng
 

 W
en

dy
 Fo

rre
st,

 D
ire

cto
r 

      

Page 263



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n P

are
nta

l E
ng
ag
em

en
t in

 Se
co
nd
ary

 Ed
uc
ati
on
 – 
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
10
 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Re
sp
on
se
/C
om

me
nts

 
Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

cu
rric

ulu
m 

ch
oic

es
) a

nd
 Y1

1 
(m

ak
ing

 po
st 

16
 ch

oic
es

) 
an

d p
ilo

ts 
a C

ho
ice

 Ad
vic

e 
Se

rvi
ce

 fo
r p

are
nts

 w
ho

 fin
d 

it d
iffi

cu
lt t

o e
ng

ag
e w

ith
 th

e 
pro

ce
ss

.  

Ac
tio
n: 

1. 
Se

nio
r P

are
nt 

Su
pp

ort
 C

oo
rdi

na
tor

 to
 lia

ise
 

wit
h t

he
 14

-19
 H

ub
 an

d s
ec

on
da

ry 
sc

ho
ol 

lea
de

rsh
ip 

to 
ide

nti
fy 

wa
ys

 tra
ns

itio
n 

inf
orm

ati
on

 ca
n b

e p
rov

ide
d t

o p
are

nts
.  

2. 
Co

mp
let

e a
ud

it o
f tr

an
sit

ion
 w

ork
 in

 
sc

ho
ols

 an
d i

de
nti

fy 
are

as
 of

 su
pp

ort
 an

d 
pil

ot 
sc

ho
ols

 fo
r ta

rge
ted

 su
pp

ort
.  

3. 
Ta

rge
ted

 se
co

nd
ary

 sc
ho

ols
 to

 be
 of

fer
ed

 
the

 op
po

rtu
nit

y t
o d

ev
elo

p a
 PS

P r
ole

 to
 pi

lot
 

Ch
oic

e A
dv

ice
 Se

rvi
ce

 to
 su

pp
ort

 Y1
1 p

os
t 

16
 ch

oic
es

.  
4. 

All
 se

co
nd

ary
 sc

ho
ols

 to
 be

 of
fer

ed
 su

pp
ort

 
to 

de
live

r tr
an

sit
ion

 in
for

ma
tio

n s
es

sio
ns

 fo
r 

pa
ren

ts 
of 

ch
ild

ren
 in

 YR
 9.

 
 

of 
the

 H
ub

, T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 14
-19

 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
09

  
   No

ve
mb

er 
20

09
  

  No
ve

mb
er 

20
09

  
   No

ve
mb

er 
20

09
 

R5
 

Th
at 

Ch
ild

ren
, S

ch
oo

ls 
an

d 
Fa

mi
lie

s D
ire

cto
rat

e s
up

po
rt 

sc
ho

ols
 to

 en
su

re 
tha

t th
ere

 
is 

a d
ed

ica
ted

 ar
ea

 fo
r 

pa
ren

ts 
to 

me
et 

or 
att

en
d 

pro
gra

mm
es

, e
ith

er 
 in 

the
 

sc
ho

ol 
or 

ne
arb

y. 

Th
e P

are
nta

l E
ng

ag
em

en
t T

ea
m 

wil
l s

up
po

rt 
se

co
nd

ary
 sc

ho
ols

 to
 de

ve
lop

 ap
pro

pri
ate

 
sp

ac
e w

ith
in 

sc
ho

ol 
an

d /
 or

 w
ork

 in
 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

 w
ith

 lo
ca

l c
om

mu
nit

y v
en

ue
s. 

 W
ork

ing
 w

ith
 sc

ho
ols

 an
d t

he
 Bu

ild
ing

 
Sc

ho
ols

 fo
r th

e F
utu

re 
pro

gra
mm

e, 
we

 w
ill 

ide
nti

fy 
ap

pro
pri

ate
 sp

ac
e t

o e
ns

ure
 th

at 
the

re 
are

 de
dic

ate
d a

rea
s f

or 
pa

ren
ts 

to 
me

et.
  

 Ac
tio
n: 

 

              

             

Page 264



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n P

are
nta

l E
ng
ag
em

en
t in

 Se
co
nd
ary

 Ed
uc
ati
on
 – 
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
10
 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Re
sp
on
se
/C
om

me
nts

 
Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

1. 
Th

e B
uil

din
g S

ch
oo

ls 
for

 th
e F

utu
re 

pro
gra

mm
e (

BS
F) 

wil
l b

uil
d t

his
 re

qu
ire

me
nt 

int
o n

ew
 pl

an
s, 

en
su

rin
g t

ha
t fu

tur
e s

pa
ce

 is
 

av
ail

ab
le.

  
2. 

Pa
ren

t S
up

po
rt C

oo
rdi

na
tor

s t
o s

up
po

rt 
se

co
nd

ary
 sc

ho
ols

 id
en

tify
 ap

pro
pri

ate
 sp

ac
e; 

en
su

rin
g s

pa
ce

 is
 fit

 fo
r p

urp
os

e a
nd

 al
so

 
me

ets
 ad

ult
 le

arn
ing

 re
qu

ire
me

nts
.  

 

An
n S

utc
liff

e, 
He

ad
 of

 
BS

F, 
Bu

ild
ing

 Sc
ho

ols
 

for
 th

e F
utu

re 
 Sh

aro
n S

ull
iva

n, 
Se

nio
r 

Pa
ren

t S
up

po
rt C

o-
ord

ina
tor

, E
arl

y Y
ea

rs,
 

Ch
ild

ren
 an

d L
ea

rni
ng

 
 

Ma
rch

 20
10

 
   Ma

rch
 20

10
 

R6
 

Th
at 

se
co

nd
ary

 sc
ho

ols
, w

ith
 

the
 su

pp
ort

 of
 th

e C
hil

dre
n, 

Sc
ho

ols
 an

d F
am

ilie
s 

Dir
ec

tor
ate

, in
tro

du
ce

 
reg

ula
r c

on
su

lta
tio

n e
ve

nts
 

to 
ob

tai
n p

are
nts

’ v
iew

s a
nd

 
bu

ild
 tru

st 
an

d c
on

fid
en

ce
 

(P
are

nt 
Vo

ice
), e

ns
uri

ng
 

pa
ren

ts 
rec

eiv
e f

ee
db

ac
k 

an
d s

ee
 re

su
lts

. 

Th
e P

are
nta

l E
ng

ag
em

en
t T

ea
m 

wil
l s

up
po

rt 
se

co
nd

ary
 sc

ho
ols

 to
 de

ve
lop

 a 
‘Pa

ren
t 

Vo
ice

’ m
od

el 
of 

co
ns

ult
ati

on
 w

ith
 fa

mi
lie

s, 
pro

vid
ing

 tra
ini

ng
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 an
d s

up
po

rt 
for

 sc
ho

ol 
sta

ff. 
 

 Ac
tio
n: 

1. 
Pa

ren
t S

up
po

rt C
oo

rdi
na

tor
 to

 m
ee

t w
ith

 
se

co
nd

ary
 sc

ho
ol 

sta
ff a

nd
 pl

an
 pa

ren
t v

oic
e 

co
ns

ult
ati

on
 ev

en
ts.

 
 2. 

Pa
ren

t V
oic

e e
ve

nts
 to

 ta
ke

 pl
ac

e i
n 

se
co

nd
ary

 sc
ho

ols
.  

 3. 
Pa

ren
ts,

 Sc
ho

ol 
Go

ve
rno

rs,
 Ex

ten
de

d 
Se

rvi
ce

s a
nd

 O
&S

 w
ill r

ec
eiv

e f
ee

db
ac

k o
n  

su
cc

es
s o

f P
are

nt 
Vo

ice
 ev

en
t 

Sh
aro

n S
ull

iva
n, 

Se
nio

r 
Pa

ren
t S

up
po

rt C
o-

ord
ina

tor
, E

arl
y Y

ea
rs,

 
Ch

ild
ren

 an
d L

ea
rni

ng
 

          

       Ja
nu

ary
 20

10
 

   Fe
bru

ary
 20

10
 

  Fe
bru

ary
 20

10
 

R7
 

Th
at 

Ch
ild

ren
, S

ch
oo

ls 
an

d 
Fa

mi
lie

s D
ire

cto
rat

e s
up

po
rts

 
sc

ho
ols

 to
 de

ve
lop

 a 
Th

e P
are

nta
l E

ng
ag

em
en

t T
ea

m 
wil

l o
ffe

r 
tar

ge
ted

 su
pp

ort
, g

uid
an

ce
 an

d t
rai

nin
g t

o 
se

co
nd

ary
 sc

ho
ols

.  
Sh

aro
n S

ull
iva

n, 
Se

nio
r 

Pa
ren

t S
up

po
rt C

o-
ord

ina
tor

, E
arl

y Y
ea

rs,
 

   

Page 265



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n P

are
nta

l E
ng
ag
em

en
t in

 Se
co
nd
ary

 Ed
uc
ati
on
 – 
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
10
 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Re
sp
on
se
/C
om

me
nts

 
Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

we
lco

mi
ng

 Sc
ho

ol 
wit

h 
tra

ini
ng

 fo
r fr

on
t-li

ne
 st

aff
, 

bo
th 

in 
the

 of
fic

e a
nd

 th
e 

cla
ss

roo
m,

 on
 ho

w 
to 

ma
ke

 
pa

ren
ts 

fee
l c

om
for

tab
le,

 
pa

rtic
ula

rly
 w

he
n d

isc
us

sin
g 

se
ns

itiv
e i

ss
ue

s. 
  

 Ac
tio
n: 

1. 
De

live
r c

en
tra

l ‘W
elc

om
ing

 Sc
ho

ol’
 tra

ini
ng

 
pro

gra
mm

e f
or 

sc
ho

ol 
sta

ff i
n p

art
ne

rsh
ip 

wit
h 

Ex
ten

de
d S

erv
ice

s. 
 2. 

De
live

r lo
ca

lise
d ‘

Eff
ec

tiv
e C

om
mu

nic
ati

on
 

wit
h P

are
nts

’ c
ou

rse
 fo

r a
ll s

ch
oo

l s
taf

f.  
 

Ch
ild

ren
 an

d L
ea

rni
ng

  
      

  Ma
rch

 20
10

 
   No

ve
mb

er 
20

10
 

R8
 

Th
at 

the
 C

hil
dre

n, 
Sc

ho
ols

 
an

d F
am

ilie
s D

ire
cto

rat
e 

su
pp

ort
 sc

ho
ols

 to
 de

ve
lop

 
an

 on
go

ing
 pr

og
ram

me
 of

 
int

era
cti

ve
 ac

tiv
itie

s a
nd

 
wo

rks
ho

ps
 fo

r p
are

nts
 to

 
lea

rn 
mo

re 
ab

ou
t th

e 
cu

rric
ulu

m,
 ho

w 
ch

ild
ren

 ar
e 

tau
gh

t a
nd

 ho
w 

the
y c

an
 

su
pp

ort
 th

eir
 ch

ild
’s 

lea
rni

ng
, 

as
 w

ell
 as

 ap
pro

ac
he

s t
o 

pa
ren

tin
g t

ee
na

ge
rs.

 
 

Th
e P

are
nta

l E
ng

ag
em

en
t T

ea
m 

wil
l s

up
po

rt 
se

co
nd

ary
 sc

ho
ols

 to
 de

ve
lop

 pr
og

ram
me

s 
for

 pa
ren

ts 
in 

res
po

ns
e t

o s
ch

oo
l p

rio
riti

es
 

an
d p

are
nt 

ne
ed

.  
        Ac
tio
n: 

1. 
Ide

nti
fy 

6 p
ilo

t s
ch

oo
ls 

an
d p

lan
 

pro
gra

mm
e w

ith
 se

co
nd

ary
 sc

ho
ol 

sta
ff. 

 
  2.

 Su
pp

ort
 sc

ho
ols

 es
tab

lish
 pa

ren
t s

up
po

rt 
gro

up
s, 

pa
ren

t fo
rum

s/ 
rep

 sc
he

me
s. 

 
 3. 

De
live

r a
 pr

og
ram

me
 of

 sh
ort

 co
urs

es
 / 

Sh
aro

n S
ull

iva
n, 

Se
nio

r 
Pa

ren
t S

up
po

rt C
o-

ord
ina

tor
, E

arl
y Y

ea
rs,

 
Ch

ild
ren

 an
d L

ea
rni

ng
 

 De
nis

e H
ick

for
d, 

    
    

  
Pa

ren
tal

 En
ga

ge
me

nt 
Co

ord
ina

tor
, E

qu
ali

tie
s 

an
d P

are
nta

l 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

  

             Oc
tob

er 
20

09
 

  Ja
nu

ary
 20

10
 

  Ma
rch

 20
10

 

Page 266



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n P

are
nta

l E
ng
ag
em

en
t in

 Se
co
nd
ary

 Ed
uc
ati
on
 – 
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
10
 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Re
sp
on
se
/C
om

me
nts

 
Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

wo
rks

ho
ps

 fo
r p

are
nts

 fo
cu

ss
ing

 on
 

su
pp

ort
ing

 ch
ild

ren
’s 

lea
rni

ng
 an

d 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d c

om
mu

nic
ati

on
 be

tw
ee

n 
ho

me
 an

d s
ch

oo
l. 

 
                        

Page 267



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y R

ev
iew

 W
or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n C

hil
d P

ov
ert
y –
 A
pp
en
dix

 11
 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Re
sp
on
se
 / C

om
me

nts
 

Le
ad
 O
ffic

er 
Da
te 

 R
1 T

ha
t th

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 de

ve
lop

s o
n-g

oin
g 

pro
gra

mm
es

 to
 su

pp
ort

 sp
ec

ific
 

gro
up

s f
ac

ing
 ba

rrie
rs 

to 
em

plo
ym

en
t. 

 

Th
e P

ros
pe

rou
s C

om
mu

nit
y D

eli
ve

ry 
Gr

ou
p 

ha
s t

he
 em

plo
ym

en
t L

AA
 ta

rge
t a

s p
art

 of
 its

 
de

live
ry 

pla
n. 

 Th
ey

 ha
ve

 fo
cu

se
d s

pe
cif

ica
lly 

on
 pr

og
ram

me
s f

or 
yo

un
g p

eo
ple

, d
isa

ble
d 

pe
op

le 
an

d n
ew

 em
erg

ing
 gr

ad
ua

tes
. 

 Th
e P

art
ne

rsh
ip 

ha
ve

 al
loc

ate
d £

20
m 

to 
a 

ran
ge

 of
 pr

og
ram

me
s t

hro
ug

h t
he

 W
ork

ing
 

Ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
d F

un
d w

hic
h w

ill o
ffe

r 
en

ga
ge

me
nt,

 tra
ini

ng
 an

d p
re-

em
plo

ym
en

t 
su

pp
ort

 to
 a 

ran
ge

 of
 sp

ec
ific

 ta
rge

t g
rou

ps
. 

Pr
og

res
s o

n t
he

se
 w

ill b
e r

ep
ort

ed
 th

rou
gh

 
the

 Pr
os

pe
rou

s C
om

mu
nit

ies
 D

eli
ve

ry 
Gr

ou
p 

wit
h a

pp
rop

ria
te 

bre
ak

do
wn

 of
 ge

nd
er,

 
eth

nic
ity

, d
isa

bil
ity

, le
ng

th 
of 

un
em

plo
ym

en
t 

etc
.   

 Th
e H

ea
lth

 an
d W

ork
 St

rat
eg

ic 
Gr

ou
p h

as
 

ad
op

ted
 a 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Fra

me
wo

rk 
(P

MF
) th

at 
mo

nit
ors

 pr
og

res
s i

n 
rel

ati
on

 to
 a 

ran
ge

 of
 em

plo
ym

en
t a

nd
 

tra
ini

ng
 ta

rge
ts.

  T
he

se
 in

clu
de

 th
e W

NF
 

pro
jec

ts 
rel

ati
ng

 to
 vu

lne
rab

le 
ad

ult
s a

nd
 

oth
er 

so
cia

lly 
ex

clu
de

d g
rou

ps
 an

d s
pe

cif
ic 

ow
ne

rsh
ip 

of 
LA

A T
arg

ets
 re

lat
ing

 to
 

em
plo

ym
en

t fo
r p

eo
ple

 w
ith

 Le
arn

ing
 

Dis
ab

iliti
es

 an
d p

eo
ple

 in
 co

nta
ct 

wit
h 

se
co

nd
ary

 m
en

tal
 he

alt
h. 

Th
e P

CT
’s 

co
mm

un
ity

 em
plo

ym
en

t p
rog

ram
me

 al
so

 

Am
an
 D
alv
i, C

or
po
rat
e 

Di
rec

tor
, D
ev
elo

pm
en
t 

an
d R

en
ew
al 
 

  Ch
ris
 H
olm

e, 
Se
rvi
ce
 

He
ad
 R
es
ou
rce

s 
        Ma

rk 
Gr

im
ley

, J
oin

t 
As

sis
tan

t D
ire

cto
r 

Or
ga

nis
ati

on
al 

De
ve

lop
me

nt  
 

Ma
rch

 20
11
 

     Ma
rch

 20
11

 
         Ma

rch
 20

11
 

Page 268



tar
ge

ts 
sp

ec
ific

 gr
ou

ps
 w

ith
in 

the
 co

mm
un

ity
 

su
ch

 as
 th

os
e o

n h
ea

lth
 re

lat
ed

 be
ne

fits
. 

 
R2

 Th
at 

the
 H

ea
lth

 an
d 

Em
plo

ym
en

t G
rou

p c
on

sid
er 

the
 

rol
e o

f G
Ps

 in
 id

en
tify

ing
 w

ay
s o

f 
bre

ak
ing

 th
e c

yc
le 

of 
lon

g t
erm

 
sic

kn
es

s f
or 

tho
se

 w
ith

 su
pp

ort
 

ne
ed

s. 
 

Th
e J

ob
s i

n H
ea

lth
 pr

oje
ct,

 pa
rt f

un
de

d 
thr

ou
gh

 W
NF

 is
 ta

rge
tin

g r
ec

rui
tm

en
t in

to 
en

try
 le

ve
l P

CT
 po

sit
ion

s t
hro

ug
h t

he
 

my
tow

erh
am

let
sjo

bs
.co

m 
pro

ce
ss

.  T
his

 is
 

be
ing

 w
ide

ne
d a

nd
 la

un
ch

ed
 in

 au
tum

n 2
00

9 
an

d w
ill b

e u
se

d t
o r

eg
ist

er 
he

alt
h s

erv
ice

 
us

ers
 a 

cle
ar 

rou
te 

int
o e

mp
loy

me
nt 

ad
vic

e. 
 

Th
is 

wil
l b

e m
ark

ete
d t

o G
Ps

 an
d o

the
r 

he
alt

h c
are

 pr
ofe

ss
ion

als
 as

 th
e m

ain
 re

fer
ral

 
rou

te 
for

 th
eir

 pa
tie

nts
.  P

ati
en

ts 
of 

ps
yc

ho
log

ica
l s

erv
ice

s w
ill b

en
efi

t fr
om

 th
is 

ap
pro

ac
h i

n t
he

 fir
st 

ins
tan

ce
. 

 A p
ilo

t is
 al

so
 in

 pl
ac

e u
sin

g t
he

 co
nc

ep
t o

f a
 

‘we
ll-n

ote
’ a

s a
n i

nte
rve

nti
on

 to
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

like
lih

oo
d o

f lo
ng

-te
rm

 si
ck

ne
ss

.  
 

Ste
ve

 Ja
me

s, 
 

Int
eri

m 
Se

rvi
ce

 H
ea

d H
R  

On
-go

ing
 

  

R3
 Th

at 
Ch

ild
ren

’s 
Se

rvi
ce

s 
en

su
res

 th
at 

as
se

ss
me

nts
, 

inc
lud

ing
 C

om
mo

n A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

Fra
me

wo
rk 

an
d C

ore
 As

se
ss

me
nts

 
inc

lud
e d

eb
t m

an
ag

em
en

t 
co

ns
ide

rat
ion

s a
nd

 w
he

the
r 

fin
an

cia
l a

dv
ice

 is
 re

qu
ire

d a
s p

art
 

of 
ac

tio
n p

lan
nin

g. 
 

Gu
ida

nc
e w

ill b
e s

en
t to

 C
hil

dre
n, 

Sc
ho

ols
 

an
d F

am
ilie

s s
taf

f to
 in

dic
ate

 w
he

re 
thi

s 
co

uld
 be

 in
clu

de
d i

n b
oth

 as
se

ss
me

nts
 an

d 
to 

sig
np

os
t w

he
re 

thi
s a

dv
ice

 co
uld

 be
 fo

un
d. 

He
len

 Li
nc

oln
, S

erv
ice

 
He

ad
 C

hil
dre

n’s
 So

cia
l 

Ca
re 

  
Se

pte
mb

er 
20

09
   

R4
 Th

at 
Ch

ild
ren

’s 
Se

rvi
ce

s 
de

ve
lop

 an
d t

rai
n f

ron
t li

ne
 st

aff
 at

 
Th

e a
cti

on
 pl

an
 in

 th
e r

ec
en

tly
 ap

pro
ve

d 
Ch

ild
 Po

ve
rty

 St
rat

eg
y i

nc
lud

es
 an

 ac
tio

n t
o: 

 
Am

an
da

 H
ick

s, 
Ch

ild
ren

’s 
Ce

ntr
e 

  

Page 269



Ch
ild

ren
’s 

Ce
ntr

es
 to

 de
live

r d
eb

t 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

an
d f

ina
nc

ial
 ad

vic
e i

n 
pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w

ith
 lo

ca
lly 

ba
se

d 
org

an
isa

tio
ns

 su
ch

 as
 th

e F
ina

nc
ial

 
Se

rvi
ce

s A
uth

ori
ty 

an
d t

hir
d s

ec
tor

 
org

an
isa

tio
ns

.  
 

Pr
ov

ide
 tra

ini
ng

 on
 si

gn
-po

sti
ng

 an
d 

ca
ree

rs 
ad

vic
e t

o f
ron

tlin
e p

rof
es

sio
na

ls 
wo

rki
ng

 w
ith

 fa
mi

lie
s. 

Tra
ini

ng
 w

ill i
nv

olv
e 

an
 el

em
en

t o
f fi

na
nc

ial
 su

pp
ort

 an
d w

ill 
en

tai
l:  

• 
2 t

rai
nin

g s
es

sio
ns

 fo
r C

hil
dre

n’s
 

Ce
ntr

e s
taf

f (S
ep

tem
be

r 2
00

9) 
• 

2 t
rai

nin
g s

es
sio

ns
 fo

r E
xte

nd
ed

 
Se

rvi
ce

s s
taf

f (D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

9) 
 

 In 
ad

dit
ion

, w
e w

ill: 
   

• 
Co

nti
nu

e t
o r

un
 th

e R
ev

en
ue

 an
d 

Cu
sto

ms
 pi

lot
 in

 C
hil

dre
n’s

 C
en

tre
s, 

giv
ing

 
ad

vic
e a

bo
ut 

ch
ild

 ta
x c

red
its

 an
d w

ork
ing

 
tax

 cr
ed

its
  

• 
Pr

ov
ide

 fin
an

cia
l a

dv
ice

 tra
ini

ng
 w

ith
 

BR
AC

 U
K f

or 
fro

ntl
ine

 st
aff

 w
ork

ing
 

thr
ou

gh
 a 

pil
ot 

in 
Ch

ild
ren

’s 
Ce

ntr
es

  
• 

Pr
ov

ide
 on

go
ing

 su
pp

ort
 w

ith
 th

e 
‘pa

ren
ts 

gu
ide

 to
 m

on
ey

’ in
for

ma
tio

n p
ac

k 
thr

ou
gh

 C
hil

dre
n’s

 C
en

tre
s  

 
Th

e C
hil

dre
n a

nd
 Fa

mi
lie

s T
rus

t a
nd

 th
e 

Pr
os

pe
rou

s C
om

mu
nit

y D
eli

ve
ry 

Gr
ou

p 
wil

l a
lso

 co
ns

ide
r h

ow
 th

is 
wo

rk 
ca

n b
e 

de
ve

lop
ed

. T
his

 w
ill a

lso
 be

 ta
ke

n t
o t

he
 

Se
pte

mb
er 

Pr
os

pe
rou

s C
om

mu
nit

y 
De

live
ry 

Gr
ou

p. 

Str
ate

gic
 M

an
ag

er 
                     Su

sa
n R

itc
hie

, In
ter

im
 

He
ad

 of
 Pa

rtic
ipa

tio
n 

an
d E

ng
ag

em
en

t &
 

La
yla

 R
ich

ard
s, 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

s a
nd

 
Eq

ua
litie

s M
an

ag
er 

 De
ce

mb
er 

20
09

  
           31

 M
arc

h 2
01

0  
 

  31
 M

arc
h 2

01
0  

  On
go

ing
  

   Se
pte

mb
er 

20
09

 

R5
 Th

at 
the

 Ex
ter

na
l F

un
din

g T
ea

m 
in 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
an

d R
en

ew
al 

co
ns

ide
r h

ow
 fin

an
cia

l in
clu

sio
n a

nd
 

Th
e r

eq
ue

st 
for

 th
is 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
fro

m 
the

 
Pr

os
pe

rou
s C

om
mu

nit
ies

 D
eli

ve
ry 

Gr
ou

p i
s 

rec
og

nis
ed

 in
 ad

dit
ion

 to
 th

e S
cru

tin
y R

ev
iew

 
Ab

id 
Hu

ss
ain

, E
xte

rna
l 

Fu
nd

ing
 M

an
ag

er 
 

 
On

-go
ing

  
  

Page 270



de
bt 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
mi

gh
t b

e f
urt

he
r 

pro
mo

ted
 th

rou
gh

 w
ide

r p
ub

lici
ty 

in 
Ea

st 
En

d L
ife

 an
d t

hro
ug

h t
he

 
pu

bli
ca

tio
ns

 of
 ke

y l
oc

al 
ag

en
cie

s. 
 

rec
om

me
nd

ati
on

.  
 W

e c
urr

en
tly

 pl
ac

e a
 la

rge
 ad

ve
rt i

n E
as

t E
nd

 
Lif

e e
ve

ry 
2 w

ee
ks

: (4
 co

lum
ns

 x 
24

cm
). T

his
 

is 
a h

igh
 le

ve
l o

f a
dv

ert
isin

g. 
 

 A s
tra

teg
ica

lly 
tar

ge
ted

 po
ste

r a
nd

 le
afl

et 
ca

mp
aig

n t
hro

ug
h a

dv
ice

 ag
en

cie
s a

nd
 ot

he
r 

ke
y p

art
ne

rs,
 to

 co
mp

lem
en

t th
e a

dv
ert

isin
g, 

co
uld

 pr
ov

e v
ery

 he
lpf

ul.
 C

orp
ora

te 
Co

mm
un

ica
tio

ns
 w

ill r
ev

iew
 pa

rtn
ers

’ M
ed

ia 
(to

 be
 co

lla
ted

 by
 th

e E
xte

rna
l F

un
din

g 
Te

am
) a

nd
 ad

vis
e w

he
the

r th
is 

wo
uld

 ad
d 

va
lue

, b
ea

rin
g i

n m
ind

 Ea
st 

En
d L

ife
’s 

un
su

rpa
ss

ed
 au

die
nc

e r
ea

ch
.  

W
e w

ill a
lso

 in
ve

sti
ga

te 
po

ss
ibl

e a
dv

ert
s a

nd
 

fea
tur

es
 in

 pu
bli

ca
tio

ns
 pr

od
uc

ed
 by

 ke
y 

pa
rtn

ers
.  

      Lu
tfu

r A
li, 

As
sis

tan
t 

Ch
ief

 Ex
ec

uti
ve

 & 
Ev

ere
tt H

au
gh

ton
, 

Fu
nd

ing
 an

d 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

Ma
na

ge
r  

 

  Au
gu

st 
20

09
 

    Au
gu

st 
20

09
 

R6
 Th

at 
To

we
r H

am
let

s P
art

ne
rsh

ip 
re-

co
ns

ide
rs 

its
 po

sit
ion

 an
d u

se
 of

 
da

ta 
to 

rev
iew

 th
e s

up
po

rt n
ee

de
d 

to 
ge

t w
om

en
 in

to 
em

plo
ym

en
t w

ith
 

a p
art

icu
lar

 fo
cu

s o
n s

up
po

rtin
g 

Be
ng

ali
 w

om
en

. 
 

Th
e G

en
de

r E
qu

ali
ty 

Mo
nit

ori
ng

 G
rou

p h
as

 
rev

iew
ed

 th
is 

iss
ue

 w
ith

 Jo
b C

en
tre

 Pl
us

, 
Ch

ild
ren

 Se
rvi

ce
s a

nd
 th

e E
mp

loy
me

nt 
Str

ate
gy

. T
he

 ou
tco

me
 w

as
 th

at 
fur

the
r 

res
ea

rch
 is

 ne
ce

ss
ary

 in
 or

de
r to

 en
su

re 
tha

t 
we

 un
de

rst
an

d t
he

 is
su

es
.  I

t is
 

rec
om

me
nd

ed
 th

at 
thi

s w
ork

 is
 ca

rrie
d o

ut 
thr

ou
gh

 th
e P

ros
pe

rou
s C

om
mu

nit
y P

lan
 

De
live

ry 
Gr

ou
p. 

  

Fra
nc

es
 Jo

ne
s, 

Div
ers

ity
 

an
d E

qu
ali

ty 
Co

-
ord

ina
tor

 
Ma

rch
 20

10
 

R7
 Th

at 
the

 ES
OL

 Pr
ov

ide
rs 

Ac
tio

n 
Gr

ou
p (

EP
AG

) e
xp

lor
es

 w
ay

s t
o 

im
pro

ve
 th

e r
efe

rra
l p

roc
es

s t
o 

Th
e E

PA
G 

ha
s m

et 
on

 a 
mo

nth
ly 

ba
sis

 si
nc

e 
Ja

nu
ary

 an
d t

hro
ug

h t
his

 gr
ou

p e
ffe

cti
ve

 
lin

ks
 ha

ve
 be

en
 m

ad
e b

etw
ee

n o
rga

nis
ati

on
s 

Fio
na

 Pa
ter

so
n, 

He
ad

 of
 

Ad
ult

 an
d C

om
mu

nit
y 

Le
arn

ing
  

30
 M

ay
 20

09
  

  

Page 271



em
plo

ym
en

t a
dv

ice
 an

d 
op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r s

tud
en

ts 
wh

o h
av

e 
co

mp
let

ed
 co

urs
es

. 
 

to 
cro

ss
 re

fer
 st

ud
en

ts.
 In

 ad
dit

ion
 m

an
y o

f 
the

 pr
ov

ide
rs 

on
 EP

AG
 ha

ve
 th

eir
 ow

n i
n-

ho
us

e e
mp

loy
me

nt 
su

pp
ort

 pr
og

ram
me

s f
or 

ES
OL

 le
arn

ers
. 

• 
EP

AG
 m

ee
tin

gs
 to

 be
 he

ld 
in 

Ju
ne

 an
d 

Se
pt 

20
09

, J
an

ua
ry 

an
d M

arc
h 2

01
0 

 • 
Pr

og
res

sio
n r

ou
tes

 in
to 

em
plo

ym
en

t 
wil

l b
e i

de
nti

fie
d a

s a
 st

an
din

g a
ge

nd
a 

ite
m 

at 
EP

AG
 m

ee
tin

gs
 

 

     

    Ju
ne

 an
d S

ep
tem

be
r 

20
09

; J
an

ua
ry 

an
d 

Ma
rch

 20
10

 
 30

 Ju
ne

 20
09

 
  

R8
 Th

at 
Ch

ild
ren

’s 
Se

rvi
ce

s 
str

en
gth

en
 th

e p
rom

oti
on

 of
 th

e r
ole

 
of 

Ch
ild

ren
’s 

Ce
ntr

es
 an

d c
hil

dc
are

 
su

pp
ort

 th
rou

gh
 Ea

st 
En

d L
ife

 an
d 

the
 pu

bli
ca

tio
ns

 of
 ot

he
r p

art
ne

r 
ag

en
cie

s. 
 

W
e a

re 
im

ple
me

nti
ng

 a 
Ch

ild
 Po

ve
rty

 
Co

mm
un

ica
tio

ns
 St

rat
eg

y. 
As

 w
ell

 as
 

im
pro

vin
g t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’s
 re

gio
na

l a
nd

 na
tio

na
l 

rep
uta

tio
n, 

we
 ar

e c
om

mu
nic

ati
ng

 th
e 

se
rvi

ce
s a

va
ila

ble
 to

 lo
ca

l re
sid

en
ts.

 
Co

mm
un

ica
tio

ns
 w

ork
 w

ill c
on

tin
ue

 
thr

ou
gh

ou
t th

e l
ife

tim
e o

f th
e c

hil
d p

ov
ert

y 
str

ate
gy

 an
d w

ill i
nc

lud
e t

he
 be

ne
fits

 of
 

Ch
ild

ren
’s 

Ce
ntr

es
 an

d w
ill u

se
 al

l 
ap

pro
pri

ate
 m

ed
ia 

to 
do

 so
.  

 W
e w

ill d
eli

ve
r a

 pu
bli

cit
y c

am
pa

ign
 

pro
mo

tin
g t

he
 be

ne
fits

 of
 ch

ild
ca

re 
an

d 
hig

hli
gh

t fu
nd

ing
 st

rea
ms

 av
ail

ab
le.

 Th
is 

wil
l 

inf
orm

 re
sid

en
ts 

of 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 hi

gh
 qu

ali
ty,

 
aff

ord
ab

le 
ch

ild
ca

re 
an

d w
ill b

en
efi

t 
ch

ild
ren

’s 
de

ve
lop

me
nt,

 as
 w

ell
 as

 al
low

ing
 

pa
ren

ts 
to 

se
ek

 su
sta

ina
ble

 em
plo

ym
en

t.  
 

To
ny

 Fi
nn

eg
an

, 
Co

mm
un

ica
tio

ns
 O

ffic
er 

& J
ac

qu
eli

ne
 H

art
hil

l, 
Sta

ke
ho

lde
r 

En
ga

ge
me

nt 
Of

fic
er 

 
     Jo

 G
ree

n, 
Pla

nn
ing

 an
d 

Inf
orm

ati
on

 M
an

ag
er,

 
Ea

rly
 Ye

ars
 Se

rvi
ce

  

Ini
tia

l c
om

mu
nic

ati
on

s t
o 

co
inc

ide
 w

ith
 la

un
ch

 
(M

ay
 – 

Ju
ly 

20
09

), 
on

go
ing

 co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns

 
the

rea
fte

r  
   Se

pte
mb

er 
20

09
 

on
wa

rds
  

R9
 Th

at 
To

we
r H

am
let

s P
art

ne
rsh

ip 
Cu

rre
ntl

y t
he

re 
is 

a £
1.3

m 
ES

OL
 pr

og
ram

me
 

Sh
az

ia 
Hu

ss
ain

, D
ire

cto
r 

On
-go

ing
 

Page 272



sh
ou

ld 
co

nti
nu

e t
o s

up
po

rt E
SO

L 
fin

an
cia

lly 
an

d i
de

nti
fy 

tar
ge

ted
 

fun
din

g f
or 

wo
me

n w
ho

 m
ay

 no
t 

me
et 

the
 fin

an
cia

l th
res

ho
ld 

for
 

as
sis

tan
ce

 an
d w

he
re 

the
y a

re 
no

t 
ab

le 
to 

ga
in 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 th
e 

ho
us

eh
old

 in
co

me
. 

 

fun
de

d t
hro

ug
h W

NF
 un

til 
20

11
.  T

he
 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 do
es

 no
t h

av
e a

ny
 fu

rth
er 

fun
ds

 
be

yo
nd

 th
is 

pe
rio

d. 
 ES

OL
 w

ill c
on

tin
ue

 to
 be

 
a p

rio
rity

 fo
r th

e P
art

ne
rsh

ip.
 

 Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f R
ec

om
me

nd
ati

on
 6 

co
uld

 
lea

d t
o t

he
 id

en
tifi

ca
tio

n o
f s

up
po

rt f
or 

vu
lne

rab
le 

wo
me

n. 
 

To
we

r H
am

let
s 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 

R1
0 T

ha
t th

e C
ab

ine
t in

 pa
rtn

ers
hip

 
wit

h t
he

 Le
arn

ing
 Sk

ills
 C

ou
nc

il 
lob

by
 go

ve
rnm

en
t to

 in
cre

as
e 

fun
din

g f
or 

ES
OL

. 

W
e w

ill w
ork

 w
ith

 th
e L

ea
d C

ab
ine

t M
em

be
r 

to 
ide

nti
fy 

an
d u

nd
ert

ak
e l

ob
by

ing
 se

ek
ing

 
go

ve
rnm

en
t a

cti
on

 to
 in

cre
as

e f
un

din
g f

or 
ES

OL
.   

 

Ma
ry 

Du
rki

n, 
He

ad
 of

 
Yo

uth
 an

d C
om

mu
nit

y 
Le

arn
ing

  
De

ce
mb

er 
20

09
 

R1
1 T

ha
t J

ob
ce

ntr
e P

lus
 re

vie
w 

cu
sto

me
r e

xp
eri

en
ce

 an
d c

as
e 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
wit

h a
 vi

ew
 to

 
im

pro
vin

g t
he

 ex
pe

rie
nc

es
 of

 lo
ca

l 
pe

op
le.

 
 

Th
e D

ist
ric

t is
 pr

ep
ari

ng
 fo

r th
e i

ntr
od

uc
tio

n 
of 

ma
jor

 ne
w 

pro
vis

ion
, F

lex
ibl

e N
ew

 D
ea

l 
(O

ct 
20

10
), a

dd
itio

na
l s

up
po

rtiv
e c

on
tra

cte
d 

se
rvi

ce
s (

De
c 0

9) 
be

dd
ing

 in
 th

e n
ew

 da
y 

on
e a

nd
 si

x m
on

ths
 of

fer
s a

nd
 pr

ep
ari

ng
 fo

r 
the

 in
tro

du
cti

on
 of

 th
e Y

ou
ng

 Pe
rso

ns
 

Gu
ara

nte
e (

Ja
n 2

01
0).

 As
 a 

res
ult

 it 
is 

alr
ea

dy
 re

vie
win

g i
ts 

se
rvi

ce
 de

live
ry 

mo
de

l 
in 

pa
rtic

ula
r fo

r p
are

nts
 an

d l
on

e p
are

nts
. 

Th
is 

rev
iew

 w
ill f

ea
tur

e: 
• 

Up
sk

illin
g o

f a
dv

ise
rs 

kn
ow

led
ge

 an
d 

sk
ills

 pa
rtic

ula
rly

 ar
ou

nd
 id

en
tify

ing
 th

e 
mo

st 
ap

pro
pri

ate
 ro

ute
s b

ac
k t

o w
ork

, 
tra

ck
ing

 an
d e

ng
ag

em
en

t; 
• 

En
ha

nc
ing

 th
e s

up
po

rt a
va

ila
ble

 fro
m 

co
ntr

ac
ted

 pr
ov

ide
rs 

an
d a

cc
es

s t
o 

ex
ter

na
l p

rov
isio

n i
nc

lud
ing

 LS
C,

 LD
A 

fun
de

d p
rov

isio
n n

ot 
lea

st 
pre

 em
plo

ym
en

t 

De
rek

 H
arv

ey
, E

xte
rna

l 
Re

lat
ion

s M
an

ag
er,

 
Jo

bc
en

tre
 Pl

us
 

               

          De
ce

mb
er 

20
09

 
   Im

me
dia

te 
   

Page 273



tra
ini

ng
 an

d E
SO

L/b
as

ic 
sk

ills
; 

• 
Ou

t-s
tat

ion
ing

 ou
r a

dv
ise

rs 
to 

wo
rk 

mo
re 

fro
m 

Ch
ild

ren
’s 

Ce
ntr

es
 an

d o
the

r 
co

mm
un

ity
 ba

se
d p

rem
ise

s; 
• 

Re
vis

ing
 th

e s
tru

ctu
re 

of 
ou

r o
ffic

es
 to

 
all

ow
 fo

r m
ore

 fo
cu

se
d s

pe
cia

list
 su

pp
ort

 
to 

cu
sto

me
rs 

de
pe

nd
an

t u
po

n t
he

ir 
ba

rrie
rs 

an
d l

en
gth

 of
 un

em
plo

ym
en

t; 
• 

Inc
rea

sin
g s

taf
fin

g a
nd

 le
arn

ing
 an

d 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

inv
es

tm
en

t; 
• 

W
ork

ing
 w

ith
 em

plo
ye

rs 
an

d p
ub

lic 
se

cto
r th

rou
gh

 Lo
ca

l E
mp

loy
er 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

s t
o i

nc
rea

se
 ac

ce
ss

 to
 jo

bs
 fo

r 
dis

ad
va

nta
ge

d c
us

tom
er 

an
d t

o b
e a

wa
re 

of 
be

ne
fits

 of
 di

ve
rsi

ty.
   

 

 
  Au

gu
st 

20
09

 
  Im

me
dia

te 
an

d o
ng

oin
g 

   On
 go

ing
 an

d f
rom

 
Oc

tob
er 

20
09

 re
 Fu

tur
e 

Jo
bs

 Fu
nd
 

R1
2 T

ha
t th

e C
ab

ine
t lo

bb
y 

De
pa

rtm
en

t o
f W

ork
 an

d P
en

sio
ns

 
to 

rev
iew

 ho
w 

the
 be

ne
fits

 pa
ym

en
t 

sy
ste

m 
ca

n b
e i

mp
rov

ed
 to

 m
ak

e 
pro

mp
t p

ay
me

nts
 an

d s
up

po
rt 

pe
op

le 
so

 as
 no

t to
 fa

ll f
urt

he
r in

to 
po

ve
rty

. 
 

Jo
bc

en
tre

 Pl
us

 ha
s c

rea
ted

 a 
ne

tw
ork

 of
 71

 
Be

ne
fit 

De
live

ry 
Ce

ntr
es

 na
tio

na
lly 

wit
h 

‘vir
tua

lity
’ p

lan
ne

d t
o i

nc
rea

se
 ca

pa
bil

ity
 an

d 
ca

pa
cit

y f
urt

he
r. 

 In 
ad

dit
ion

, n
ew

 te
lep

ho
ny

 sy
ste

ms
 ar

e b
ein

g 
int

rod
uc

ed
 w

ith
 en

ha
nc

em
en

ts 
to 

the
 

ele
ctr

on
ic 

cla
im

 fo
rm

 IT
 pl

atf
orm

 w
hic

h w
ill 

en
ab

le 
cla

im
s t

o b
e f

orw
ard

ed
 di

rec
tly

 to
 th

e 
be

ne
fit 

pa
ym

en
t s

ys
tem

s, 
sp

ee
din

g u
p t

he
 

pro
ce

ss
 fu

rth
er.

 
 “B

ett
er 

off
 in

 w
ork

” c
alc

ula
tio

n w
ill b

e 
ac

ce
ss

ibl
e t

o c
us

tom
ers

 on
 th

e D
ire

ct.
go

v.u
k 

we
bs

ite
.  

De
rek

 H
arv

ey
, E

xte
rna

l 
Re

lat
ion

s M
an

ag
er,

 
Jo

bc
en

tre
 Pl

us
 

            

De
ce

mb
er 

20
09

  
    Au

gu
st 

20
09

 
      Se

pte
mb

er 
20

09
 

  

Page 274



W
ork

 is
 al

so
 pr

og
res

sin
g o

n b
en

efi
t 

sim
pli

fic
ati

on
 an

d ‘
Le

an
ing

’ –
 a 

pro
ce

ss
 

loo
kin

g t
o i

mp
rov

e t
he

 cu
sto

me
r e

xp
eri

en
ce

 
by

 re
mo

vin
g d

up
lica

tio
n a

nd
 un

ne
ce

ss
ary

 
tra

ns
ac

tio
ns

/re
co

rdi
ng

.  
 Ou

r a
im

 is
 to

 ac
hie

ve
 ta

rge
t a

nd
 ev

ery
 ef

for
t 

wil
l b

e m
ad

e t
o d

o s
o i

nc
lud

ing
 in

cre
as

ing
 

sta
ffin

g l
ev

els
 an

d t
rai

nin
g a

cti
vit

y. 
 To

we
r H

am
let

s C
ou

nc
il B

en
efi

ts 
Se

rvi
ce

 w
ill 

wo
rk 

wit
h t

he
 Le

ad
 C

ab
ine

t M
em

be
r to

 
ide

nti
fy 

an
d u

nd
ert

ak
e l

ob
by

ing
 se

ek
ing

 
go

ve
rnm

en
t a

cti
on

 to
 im

pro
ve

 th
e b

en
efi

ts 
pa

ym
en

t s
ys

tem
 to

 m
ak

e p
rom

pt 
pa

ym
en

ts 
an

d s
up

po
rt p

eo
ple

 so
 as

 no
t to

 fa
ll f

urt
he

r 
int

o p
ov

ert
y. 

 
Th

is 
wo

rk 
wil

l d
ev

elo
p a

s p
art

 of
 th

e W
elf

are
 

Re
for

m 
ag

en
da

. T
his

 w
ill f

oc
us

 on
 im

pro
vin

g 
ac

ce
ss

ibi
lity

, a
llo

win
g l

oc
al 

au
tho

riti
es

 to
 

tai
lor

 de
live

ry 
to 

su
it l

oc
al 

ne
ed

s, 
sp

ee
din

g 
up

 cl
aim

s p
roc

es
sin

g, 
red

uc
ing

 av
oid

ab
le 

co
nta

ct 
an

d a
llo

win
g a

cc
es

s t
o o

the
r re

lat
ed

 
se

rvi
ce

s a
t th

e s
am

e t
im

e. 
 

 W
e a

re 
als

o k
ee

n t
o i

nv
olv

e t
he

 O
ve

rvi
ew

 
an

d S
cru

tin
y C

om
mi

tte
e M

em
be

r w
ho

 le
d o

n 
thi

s r
ev

iew
 to

 fu
rth

er 
en

ga
ge

 he
r in

 
co

ns
ide

rin
g t

he
 is

su
es

 an
d p

lan
nin

g a
 w

ay
 

for
wa

rd.
  

 

                  Ste
ve

 H
ill, 

Be
ne

fits
 

Se
rvi

ce
 M

an
ag

er 
 

    Ste
ve

 H
ill, 

Be
ne

fits
 

Se
rvi

ce
 M

an
ag

er 
     

 Da
te 

to 
be

 co
nfi

rm
ed

 
         Se

pte
mb

er 
20

09
 

     De
pe

nd
en

t o
n g

uid
eli

ne
s 

fro
m 

De
pa

rtm
en

t o
f 

W
ork

 an
d P

en
sio

ns
 – 

W
elf

are
 R

efo
rm

 Ag
en

da
 

cu
rre

ntl
y o

n-h
old

 un
til 

aft
er 

Pa
rlia

me
nta

ry 
rec

es
s 

     Ju
ly 

20
09

 

Page 275



 Ste
ve

 H
ill, 

Be
ne

fits
 

Se
rvi

ce
 M

an
ag

er 
R1
3 T

ha
t th

e P
art

ne
rsh

ip 
ex

plo
res

 
wa

ys
 to

 im
pro

ve
 em

plo
ym

en
t 

op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 fo

r th
e S

om
ali

 
co

mm
un

ity
 in

clu
din

g t
he

 us
e o

f 
ou

tre
ac

h w
ork

. 
 

Th
e P

art
ne

rsh
ip 

is 
ca

rry
ing

 ou
t a

 de
tai

led
 

pie
ce

 of
 w

ork
 to

 im
pro

ve
 un

de
rst

an
din

g o
f 

the
 ne

ed
s o

f th
e S

om
ali

 co
mm

un
ity

.  T
his

 
wo

rk 
wil

l b
e c

om
ple

ted
 by

 th
e e

nd
 of

 
Se

pte
mb

er.
 

Th
e r

ec
om

me
nd

ati
on

s w
ill b

e p
res

en
ted

 to
 

the
 Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 Ex

ec
uti

ve
.   

  
 It i

s a
lso

 to
 be

 no
ted

 th
at 

the
re 

are
 2 

W
NF

 
pro

gra
mm

es
 co

mm
iss

ion
ed

 to
 im

pro
ve

 
em

plo
ym

en
t o

pp
ort

un
itie

s f
or 

the
 So

ma
li 

co
mm

un
ity

 in
clu

din
g t

he
 us

e o
f o

utr
ea

ch
 

wo
rk,

 th
e S

om
ali

 N
etw

ork
 is

 in
 pl

ac
e, 

an
d 

ha
s r

ep
res

en
tat

ive
s o

n t
he

 go
ve

rna
nc

e 
str

uc
tur

es
 of

 th
e P

art
ne

rsh
ip.

 
 

Sh
az

ia 
Hu

ss
ain

, D
ire

cto
r 

To
we

r H
am

let
s 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20

09
 

   Oc
tob

er 
20

09
 

R1
4 T

ha
t th

e C
ou

nc
il s

ho
uld

 si
gn

-
up

 to
 th

e L
on

do
n C

hil
d P

ov
ert

y 
Ple

dg
e a

nd
 en

co
ura

ge
 pa

rtn
ers

 
inc

lud
ing

 th
e P

CT
, C

an
ary

 W
ha

rf 
an

d O
lym

pic
s A

uth
ori

ty 
to 

sig
n a

nd
 

us
e t

he
 Pl

ed
ge

 to
 re

sp
on

d t
o t

he
 

em
plo

ym
en

t n
ee

ds
 of

 lo
ca

l p
eo

ple
. 

 

In 
ou

r e
ffo

rts
 to

 re
du

ce
 ch

ild
 po

ve
rty

, w
e 

ha
ve

 de
ve

lop
ed

 a 
Ple

dg
e f

or 
the

 C
ou

nc
il. 

W
e 

wil
l w

ork
 w

ith
 C

om
mu

nic
ati

on
s t

o i
nfo

rm
 

res
ide

nts
 th

at 
the

 C
ou

nc
il is

 ta
kin

g a
 le

ad
 

rol
e o

n t
his

.  
 Dis

cu
ss

ion
s w

ill t
ak

e p
lac

e w
ith

 th
e 

Pr
os

pe
rou

s C
om

mu
nit

y D
eli

ve
ry 

Gr
ou

p t
o 

pro
gre

ss
 th

is 
wo

rk 
wit

h a
ll o

ur 
pa

rtn
ers

 an
d 

wil
l b

e p
res

en
ted

 to
 th

e S
ep

tem
be

r 
Pr

os
pe

rou
s C

om
mu

nit
y D

eli
ve

ry 
Gr

ou
p. 

 
 

La
yla

 R
ich

ard
s, 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

s a
nd

 
Eq

ua
litie

s M
an

ag
er 

  Su
sa

n R
itc

hie
, In

ter
im

 
He

ad
 of

 Pa
rtic

ipa
tio

n 
an

d E
ng

ag
em

en
t &

 
La

yla
 R

ich
ard

s, 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
s a

nd
 

Eq
ua

litie
s M

an
ag

er 
 

 

Oc
tob

er 
20

09
 

    Se
pte

mb
er 

20
09

 

Page 276



R1
5 T

ha
t th

e C
ou

nc
il e

xp
lor

e w
ay

s 
of 

inc
rea

sin
g t

he
 pa

rtic
ipa

tio
n o

f 
ne

w 
co

mm
un

itie
s i

n t
he

 de
mo

cra
tic

 
pro

ce
ss

. 
 

A C
on

su
lta

tio
n a

nd
 Pa

rtic
ipa

tio
n F

ram
ew

ork
 

is 
be

ing
 de

ve
lop

ed
 to

 in
cre

as
e p

art
icip

ati
on

, 
the

 N
ew

 R
es

ide
nts

 an
d R

efu
ge

es
 Fo

rum
 w

ill 
be

 in
clu

de
d i

n t
he

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
of 

the
 

Fra
me

wo
rk,

 th
is 

wo
rk 

wil
l in

clu
de

: 
 

• 
Pr

od
uc

tio
n o

f a
 go

ve
rna

nc
e m

ap
 to

 
ide

nti
fy 

the
 lin

ks
 be

tw
ee

n e
xis

tin
g g

rou
ps

 
in 

the
 co

mm
un

ity
 an

d t
he

 in
flu

en
cin

g 
gro

up
s o

f th
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 Pa

rtn
ers

hip
. 

• 
Fo

rm
all

y l
ink

ing
 th

e N
ew

 R
es

ide
nts

 
an

d R
efu

ge
es

 Fo
rum

 to
 th

e s
tru

ctu
res

 of
 

the
 Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 in

 a 
wa

y t
ha

t s
uit

s t
he

 
ne

ed
s o

f th
at 

gro
up

. 
 In 

ad
dit

ion
, th

e C
on

su
lta

tio
n a

nd
 In

vo
lve

me
nt 

Te
am

 co
lle

ct 
eq

ua
litie

s d
ata

 fro
m 

ea
ch

 of
 

the
ir e

ve
nts

 an
d s

urv
ey

s c
on

du
cte

d w
ith

 
co

mm
un

itie
s t

o i
de

nti
fy 

wh
ich

 gr
ou

ps
 ar

e 
mi

ss
ing

, a
nd

 pl
an

 ho
w 

the
y w

ill i
mp

rov
e 

pa
rtic

ipa
tio

n i
n t

he
 fu

tur
e. 

 Th
is 

co
uld

 be
 

str
en

gth
en

ed
 an

d c
oll

ate
d C

ou
nc

il a
nd

 
Pa

rtn
er 

wid
e. 

 In 
its

 ef
for

ts 
to 

inc
rea

se
 pa

rtic
ipa

tio
n a

nd
 

en
ga

ge
me

nt,
 th

e C
ou

nc
il is

 cu
rre

ntl
y 

ex
plo

rin
g h

old
ing

 m
ee

tin
gs

 ou
tsi

de
 th

e T
ow

n 
Ha

ll. 

Su
sa

n R
itc

hie
, In

ter
im

 
He

ad
 of

 Pa
rtic

ipa
tio

n 
an

d E
ng

ag
em

en
t &

 
Ha

fsh
a A

li, 
Eq

ua
lity

 an
d 

Div
ers

ity
 C

o-o
rdi

na
tor

  
        Su

sa
n R

itc
hie

, In
ter

im
 

He
ad

 of
 Pa

rtic
ipa

tio
n 

an
d E

ng
ag

em
en

t 
     Jo

hn
 W

illia
ms

, H
ea

d o
f 

De
mo

cra
tic

 Se
rvi

ce
s 

 

Oc
tob

er 
20

09
 

              On
-go

ing
 

        De
ce

mb
er 

20
10

 

R1
6 T

ha
t lo

ca
l B

ME
 m

ed
ia 

is 
us

ed
 

to 
inc

rea
se

 aw
are

ne
ss

 of
 ho

w 
loc

al 
de

mo
cra

cy
 w

ork
s a

nd
 ho

w 
it c

an
 

Co
nta

cts
 ar

e b
ein

g e
sta

bli
sh

ed
 w

ith
 lo

ca
l 

BM
E m

ed
ia,

 w
ith

 a 
vie

w 
to 

run
nin

g a
 

sta
nd

ard
 fe

atu
re 

on
 th

e i
ss

ue
s i

n q
ue

sti
on

. 
To

ny
 Fi

nn
eg

an
, 

Co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns

 O
ffic

er 
On

-go
ing

 

Page 277



ad
dre

ss
 lo

ca
l is

su
es

 fo
r e

xa
mp

le 
un

em
plo

ym
en

t a
nd

 to
 ch

am
pio

n 
po

sit
ive

 st
ori

es
 ab

ou
t p

are
nta

l 
em

plo
ym

en
t. 

 R1
7 T

ha
t th

e O
ve

rvi
ew

 an
d 

Sc
rut

iny
 C

om
mi

tte
e u

nd
ert

ak
e a

 
Sc

rut
iny

 R
ev

iew
 ex

plo
rin

g h
ow

 th
e 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
of 

co
mm

un
ity

 
lea

de
rsh

ip 
ac

ros
s t

he
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 

co
uld

 be
 im

pro
ve

d a
nd

 fu
rth

er 
ex

plo
re 

ho
w 

the
 O

ne
 To

we
r 

Ha
ml

ets
 In

ter
vie

w 
mo

de
l c

an
 be

 
us

ed
 to

 su
pp

ort
 th

is.
 

 

A S
cru

tin
y R

ev
iew

 w
ill b

e u
nd

ert
ak

en
 in

 
20

09
/10

 ex
plo

rin
g c

om
mu

nit
y l

ea
de

rsh
ip 

wit
h 

the
 in

vo
lve

me
nt 

of 
pa

rtn
ers

 an
d w

ill e
xp

lor
e 

ho
w 

the
 O

ne
 To

we
r H

am
let

s m
od

el 
ca

n b
e 

us
ed

 w
ith

 pa
rtn

ers
.  

Je
bin

 Sy
ed

a, 
Sc

rut
iny

 
Po

licy
 O

ffic
er 

   

Ma
y 2

01
0 

R1
8 T

ha
t th

e S
tra

teg
y a

nd
 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 Te

am
 fu

rth
er 

de
ve

lop
 

the
 TH

IS 
Bo

rou
gh

 sy
ste

m 
to 

im
pro

ve
 su

pp
ort

 to
 M

em
be

rs.
 

 

A s
tra

teg
ic 

rev
iew

 of
 th

e T
HI

S B
oro

ug
h 

sy
ste

m 
wil

l b
e u

nd
ert

ak
en

 in
 20

09
/10

 w
ith

 
Me

mb
er 

inv
olv

em
en

t  w
hic

h w
ill a

lso
 

co
ns

ide
r h

ow
 to

  d
ev

elo
p s

up
po

rt f
or 

Me
mb

ers
 in

 ac
ce

ss
ing

 in
for

ma
tio

n f
rom

 TH
IS 

Bo
rou

gh
. 

As
hra

f A
li, 

TH
IS 

Bo
rou

gh
 St

rat
eg

ic 
Ma

na
ge

r 
De

ce
mb

er 
20

09
 

          

Page 278



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y C

ha
lle
ng
e S

es
sio

n R
ep
or
t –
 En

gli
sh
 fo
r S
pe
ak
ers

 of
 ot
he
r L
an
gu
ag
es
 (E
SO

L) 
– A

pp
en
dix

 12
 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Re
sp
on
se
/C
om

me
nts

 
Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

R1
    
  T

ha
t th

e T
rad

ing
 St

an
da

rds
 

se
rvi

ce
 in

ve
sti

ga
te 

all
eg

ati
on

s o
f b

og
us

 is
su

e o
f 

Sk
ills

 fo
r L

ife
 ce

rtif
ica

tes
  

an
d p

urs
ue

 pr
os

ec
uti

on
 or

 
oth

er 
sa

nc
tio

n, 
an

d E
SO

L 
 pr

ov
ide

rs 
ac

ros
s t

he
 

bo
rou

gh
 th

rou
gh

 Ex
ter

na
l 

Pa
rtn

ers
 Ad

vis
ory

 G
rou

p 
(E

PA
G)

, a
re 

en
co

ura
ge

d t
o 

rep
ort

 an
y i

ns
tan

ce
s o

f 
fra

ud
ule

nt 
ES

OL
 

qu
ali

fic
ati

on
s t

o T
rad

ing
 

Sta
nd

ard
s t

ha
t c

om
e t

o t
he

ir 
att

en
tio

n. 
 

 

Th
e T

rad
ing

 St
an

da
rds

 Te
am

 is
 cu

rre
ntl

y 
inv

es
tig

ati
ng

 bo
gu

s c
oll

eg
es

 in
 th

e b
oro

ug
h. 

W
e a

re 
no

t a
wa

re 
of 

bo
gu

s E
SO

L c
ert

ific
ate

s 
bu

t w
ill i

nv
es

tig
ate

 an
y i

f ra
ise

d b
y t

he
 EP

AG
 

or 
an

yb
od

y e
lse

.  
 Th

e E
PA

G 
we

lco
me

s t
his

 re
co

mm
en

da
tio

n 
an

d p
rop

os
es

 to
 ta

ke
 th

e f
oll

ow
ing

 ac
tio

ns
:  

 
1. 

Iss
ue

s a
rou

nd
 pr

iva
te 

co
lle

ge
s w

ill b
e 

a s
tan

din
g i

tem
 on

 al
l E

PA
G 

me
eti

ng
s. 

2. 
A m

ap
pin

g e
xe

rci
se

 w
ill b

e u
nd

ert
ak

en
 

to 
es

tab
lish

 pr
iva

te 
co

lle
ge

s t
ha

t 
pro

vid
e E

SO
L a

nd
 th

eir
 of

fer
. 

3. 
Fo

cu
s g

rou
ps

 w
ill b

e h
eld

 w
ith

 pr
iva

te 
co

lle
ge

 pr
ov

ide
rs 

an
d t

he
ir s

tud
en

ts 
to 

es
tab

lish
 th

eir
 pr

ov
isio

n a
nd

 an
y 

co
nc

ern
s. 

 
 

Co
lin

 Pe
rrin

s (
He

ad
 of

 
Tra

din
g S

tan
da

rds
 an

d 
En

vir
on

me
nta

l H
ea

lth
 

Co
mm

erc
ial

)  
     Eu

ge
ne

 W
alt

ers
 

(C
om

mu
nit

y 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
s M

an
ag

er,
 

Lif
e L

on
g L

ea
rni

ng
 

Se
rvi

ce
)  

On
-go

ing
  

     Re
vie

we
d a

t b
i m

on
thl

y 
EP

AG
 m

ee
tin

gs
 

De
ce

mb
er 

20
10

- 
  De

ce
mb

er 
20

10
  

R2
 

Th
at 

a f
urt

he
r jo

int
 le

tte
r fr

om
 

the
 C

ou
nc

il a
nd

 To
we

r 
Ha

ml
ets

 C
oll

eg
e a

nd
 al

l 
int

ere
ste

d s
tak

eh
old

ers
 is

 
su

bm
itte

d t
o S

ec
ret

ary
 of

 
Sta

te 
for

 In
no

va
tio

n, 
Un

ive
rsi

tie
s &

 Sk
ills

 (D
IU

S)
 

an
d t

he
 M

ay
or 

of 
Lo

nd
on

 
lob

by
ing

 th
e g

ov
ern

me
nt 

for
 

fur
the

r fu
nd

ing
 fo

r e
ntr

y -

Dis
cu

ss
ion

s a
re 

cu
rre

ntl
y u

nd
erw

ay
 w

ith
 ke

y 
pa

rtn
ers

 on
 ke

y i
ss

ue
s t

o b
e h

igh
lig

hte
d. 

Fo
llo

win
g w

hic
h a

 jo
int

 le
tte

r w
ill b

e s
ub

mi
tte

d 
an

d w
ill i

nc
lud

e t
he

 vi
ew

s o
f k

ey
 th

ird
 se

cto
r 

pa
rtn

ers
.  

Fio
na

 Pa
ter

so
n (

He
ad

 of
 

Lif
e L

on
g L

ea
rni

ng
 

Se
rvi

ce
)  

Ma
rch

 20
10

  

Page 279



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y C

ha
lle
ng
e S

es
sio

n R
ep
or
t –
 En

gli
sh
 fo
r S
pe
ak
ers

 of
 ot
he
r L
an
gu
ag
es
 (E
SO

L) 
– A

pp
en
dix

 12
 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Re
sp
on
se
/C
om

me
nts

 
Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

lev
el 

 ES
OL

 pr
ov

isio
n a

nd
 

hig
hli

gh
tin

g t
he

 ne
ed

 in
 

To
we

r H
am

let
s. 

R3
 

Th
at 

the
 N

ew
 Ap

pro
ac

h t
o 

ES
OL

 pl
an

 pr
ior

itis
es

 en
try

 
lev

el 
ES

OL
 co

urs
es

 an
d 

inc
lud

es
 ac

tio
n t

o i
de

nti
fy 

fur
the

r fu
nd

ing
 fo

r e
ntr

y l
ev

el 
ES

OL
 pr

ov
isio

n. 
 

Th
e 2

01
0/1

1 N
ew

 Ap
pro

ac
h E

SO
L P

lan
 fo

r 
the

 bo
rou

gh
 pr

ior
itis

es
 en

try
 le

ve
l c

ou
rse

s 
an

d h
as

 ac
tio

ns
 to

 id
en

tify
 fu

rth
er 

fun
din

g. 
 

 Ar
ou

nd
 90

% 
of 

cu
rre

nt 
pro

vis
ion

 in
 th

e 
bo

rou
gh

 is
 en

try
 le

ve
l c

ou
rse

s. 
 

Cla
re 

W
elb

urn
 

(P
rep

ara
tio

n f
or 

Lif
e a

nd
 

W
ork

 M
an

ag
er 

, L
ife

 
Lo

ng
 Le

arn
ing

 Se
rvi

ce
)  

20
10

-11
 Pl

an
 co

mp
let

ed
 

by
 M

arc
h 2

01
0  

 20
11

-12
 Pl

an
 co

mp
let

ed
 

by
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20

10
  

R4
 

Th
at 

EP
AG

 en
su

res
 st

ud
en

ts 
dis

pla
ce

d b
y t

he
 cl

os
ure

 of
 

the
 11

 ES
OL

 co
urs

es
 in

 
co

mm
un

ity
 ce

ntr
es

 ar
e 

su
pp

ort
ed

 an
d r

ed
ire

cte
d t

o 
oth

er 
ac

cre
dit

ed
 pr

ov
ide

rs 
tha

t a
re 

ab
le 

to 
me

et 
the

ir 
ne

ed
s. 

  

To
we

r H
am

let
s C

oll
eg

e h
av

e m
ad

e 
ap

pro
pri

ate
 ar

ran
ge

me
nts

 fo
r s

tud
en

ts 
on

 
clo

se
d c

ou
rse

s. 
 

 EP
AG

 pr
ov

ide
rs 

ha
ve

 al
so

 w
ork

ed
 jo

int
ly 

wit
h 

the
 co

lle
ge

 an
d s

tud
en

ts 
dis

pla
ce

d h
av

e b
ee

n 
off

ere
d a

lte
rna

tiv
e c

ou
rse

s. 
 

 

To
we

r H
am

let
s C

oll
eg

e 
   EP

AG
 Pr

ov
ide

rs 
 

Co
mp

let
ed

  

R5
 

Th
at 

Jo
b C

en
tre

 Pl
us

 is
 

en
co

ura
ge

d t
o p

art
icip

ate
 

ful
ly 

in 
EP

AG
 to

 sh
are

 
inf

orm
ati

on
 ab

ou
t p

rov
isio

n 
an

d e
xc

ha
ng

e b
es

t p
rac

tic
e 

so
 th

at 
the

 pl
an

nin
g o

f E
SO

L 
pro

vis
ion

 an
d t

he
 st

an
da

rd 
of 

de
live

ry 
me

ets
 th

e n
ee

ds
 of

 
loc

al 
res

ide
nts

. 
 

JC
P n

ow
 re

gu
lar

ly 
att

en
d E

PA
G 

Me
eti

ng
s  

    JC
P t

o p
rov

ide
 da

ta 
on

 cl
ari

fic
ati

on
 of

 ES
OL

 
ne

ed
s a

nd
 th

eir
 co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 ac
tiv

ity
 to

 
im

pro
ve

 pl
an

nin
g o

f E
SO

L p
rov

isio
n. 

 JC
P p

rov
ide

rs 
de

live
r tr

ain
ing

 w
he

the
r 

Cla
re 

W
elb

urn
 

(P
rep

ara
tio

n f
or 

Lif
e a

nd
 

W
ork

 M
an

ag
er 

, L
ife

 
Lo

ng
 Le

arn
ing

 Se
rvi

ce
) 

 De
rek

 H
arv

ey
 (J

ob
 

Ce
ntr

e P
lus

) 
   

Re
vie

we
d a

t b
i m

on
thl

y 
EP

AG
 m

ee
tin

gs
 

   Ju
ne

 20
10

  
    

Page 280



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y C

ha
lle
ng
e S

es
sio

n R
ep
or
t –
 En

gli
sh
 fo
r S
pe
ak
ers

 of
 ot
he
r L
an
gu
ag
es
 (E
SO

L) 
– A

pp
en
dix

 12
 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Re
sp
on
se
/C
om

me
nts

 
Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

 
dir

ec
tly

 or
 th

rou
gh

 su
b c

on
tra

cte
d p

art
ne

rs 
to 

na
tio

na
l s

tan
da

rds
 an

d a
re 

su
bje

ct 
to 

ex
ter

na
l 

au
dit

s a
nd

 as
se

ss
me

nts
 in

 th
e s

am
e w

ay
 as

 
co

lle
ge

s. 
Mo

reo
ve

r, p
rov

ide
rs 

ha
ve

 to
 

de
mo

ns
tra

te 
co

mp
lia

nc
e p

rio
r to

 ha
vin

g a
 

co
ntr

ac
t a

wa
rde

d 
 A f

urt
he

r s
cru

tin
y c

ha
lle

ng
e s

es
sio

n w
ill b

e 
he

ld 
in 

the
 ne

w 
mu

nic
ipa

l y
ea

r to
 re

vie
w 

pro
gre

ss
.  

       Afa
zu

l H
oq

ue
 (S

cru
tin

y 
Po

licy
 M

an
ag

er)
  

       Oc
tob

er 
20

10
  

 

Page 281



 Re
sp
on
se
 to
 H
ea
lth
 Sc

ru
tin
y R

ev
iew

 of
 To

ba
cc
o C

es
sa
tio
n i
n T

ow
er 
Ha
ml
ets

 – 
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
13
 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te 
– N

ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
ies
 
Da
te 

Up
da
te 
– M

arc
h 2

01
0 

R 
1 

Th
at 

the
 To

ba
cc

o C
on

tro
l A

llia
nc

e 
(TC

A)
 in

clu
de

 an
 el

ec
ted

 m
em

be
r to

 
ref

lec
t th

e h
ea

lth
 sc

rut
iny

 ro
le 

an
d 

rai
se

 th
e p

rof
ile

 of
 th

is 
wo

rk.
 

 

Ele
cte

d m
em

be
r h

as
 be

en
 in

vit
ed

 to
 

att
en

d a
llia

nc
e m

ee
tin

g, 
bu

t h
as

 no
t 

att
en

de
d a

ny
 m

ee
tin

gs
 to

 da
te.

 
Mi

nu
tes

 ar
e c

irc
ula

ted
 to

 th
em

. 

Ke
lly 

Po
we

ll, 
Ac

tin
g 

Co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns

 
Ma

na
ge

r 

Oc
tob

er 
20

09
 

Th
e e

lec
ted

 m
em

be
r is

 
inc

lud
ed

 on
 al

l c
irc

ula
tio

n 
list

s, 
bu

t h
as

 no
t y

et 
att

en
de

d 
a m

ee
tin

g o
f th

e a
llia

nc
e. 

Ot
he

r e
lec

ted
 m

em
be

rs 
ha

ve
 

att
en

de
d p

res
en

tat
ion

s a
nd

 
sta

ke
ho

lde
r e

ve
nts

 
R 
2 

Th
at 

the
 C

om
mu

nic
ati

on
s S

tra
teg

y 
ac

co
mp

an
yin

g t
he

 To
ba

cc
o C

on
tro

l 
Str

ate
gy

 be
 ov

ers
ee

n b
y t

he
 

To
ba

cc
o C

on
tro

l A
llia

nc
e. 

 

Th
e C

om
mu

nic
ati

on
 st

rat
eg

y 
co

nti
nu

es
 to

 be
 ov

ers
ee

n b
y t

he
 

To
ba

cc
o C

on
tro

l A
llia

nc
e. 

Me
eti

ng
s a

re 
he

ld 
ev

ery
 2 

mo
nth

s 
an

d m
inu

tes
 ar

e a
va

ila
ble

 on
 

req
ue

st.
 

An
 18

 m
on

th 
pla

n i
s i

n p
lac

e 

Ke
lly 

Po
we

ll, 
Ac

tin
g 

Co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns

 
Ma

na
ge

r 

Oc
tob

er 
20

09
 

Th
e C

om
mu

nic
ati

on
 st

rat
eg

y 
co

nti
nu

es
 to

 be
 ov

ers
ee

n b
y 

the
 To

ba
cc

o C
on

tro
l A

llia
nc

e. 
Me

eti
ng

s a
re 

he
ld 

ev
ery

 2 
mo

nth
s a

nd
 m

inu
tes

 ar
e 

av
ail

ab
le 

on
 re

qu
es

t. 
 

R 
3 

Th
at 

the
 C

om
mu

nic
ati

on
s S

tra
teg

y, 
de

sig
n o

f fu
tur

e c
am

pa
ign

s a
nd

 
res

ou
rce

s f
or 

tob
ac

co
 ce

ss
ati

on
 

pu
bli

cit
y r

efl
ec

t th
e c

om
mu

nit
y o

f 
To

we
r H

am
let

s a
nd

 ta
ke

 ac
co

un
t o

f 
the

 re
su

lts
 of

 so
cia

l m
ark

eti
ng

 
ex

erc
ise

s c
om

mi
ss

ion
ed

 by
 th

e 
Pr

im
ary

 C
are

 Tr
us

t. 
  

Th
ere

 ha
s b

ee
n w

ide
sp

rea
d 

pu
bli

cit
y a

nd
 ac

tiv
ity

 to
 in

cre
as

e 
de

ma
nd

 fo
r s

mo
kin

g c
es

sa
tio

n 
se

rvi
ce

s f
rom

 w
ith

in 
the

 
Ba

ng
lad

es
hi 

co
mm

un
ity

. T
his

 ha
s 

inc
lud

ed
 st

ree
t le

ve
l a

cti
vit

y a
nd

 
wo

rk 
ba

se
d r

ec
rui

tm
en

t. T
he

re 
ha

s 
be

en
 w

ide
sp

rea
d p

ub
lici

ty 
in 

the
 

Be
ng

ali
 pr

es
s. 

Th
e B

an
gla

de
sh

i S
top

 To
ba

cc
o 

Pr
oje

ct 
(B

ST
P)

   h
av

e b
ee

n r
e-

bra
nd

ed
 an

d m
ark

ete
d a

s a
 

be
sp

ok
e s

erv
ice

 fo
r th

e c
om

mu
nit

y. 
 

Ad
dit

ion
al 

so
cia

l m
ark

eti
ng

 pi
lot

 

 Jill
 G

od
da

rd,
 

To
ba

cc
o C

on
tro

l 
Le

ad
, T

HP
CT

 

Oc
tob

er 
20

09
 

A s
uc

ce
ss

ful
 R

am
ad

an
 

ca
mp

aig
n r

ec
rui

ted
 sm

ok
ers

 
an

d t
ob

ac
co

 us
ers

 fro
m 

the
 

Ba
ng

lad
es

hi 
an

d S
om

ali
 

co
mm

un
ity

. 
Re

ce
nt 

wo
rk 

ha
s e

sta
bli

sh
ed

 
a n

ee
d f

or 
sto

p s
mo

kin
g 

se
rvi

ce
s f

or 
tho

se
 fro

m 
ce

ntr
al 

an
d e

as
ter

n E
uro

pe
. S

erv
ice

s 
wil

l b
e s

tar
tin

g f
or 

thi
s g

rou
p 

in 
the

 co
ns

tru
cti

on
 si

tes
. 

Ro
y C

as
tle

 Lu
ng

 ca
nc

er 
Fo

un
da

tio
n a

re 
pro

vid
ing

 
wo

rk 
pla

ce
 ba

se
d c

es
sa

tio
n 

Page 282



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 H
ea
lth
 Sc

ru
tin
y R

ev
iew

 of
 To

ba
cc
o C

es
sa
tio
n i
n T

ow
er 
Ha
ml
ets

 – 
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
13
 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te 
– N

ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
ies
 
Da
te 

Up
da
te 
– M

arc
h 2

01
0 

int
erv

en
tio

ns
 ha

ve
 be

en
 co

mp
let

ed
; 

1. 
Ma

rke
tin

g o
f c

es
sa

tio
n s

erv
ice

s t
o 

Be
ng

lai
 m

en
 em

plo
ye

d i
n s

ma
ll 

bu
sin

es
se

s i
n L

AP
1-4

 
2. 

Pr
ov

isio
n o

f a
 w

eb
sit

e f
or 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le 

to 
wa

rn 
of 

the
 da

ng
ers

 of
 

sm
ok

ing
. 

3. 
Pil

ot 
int

erv
en

tio
n t

o r
ed

uc
e P

aa
n 

us
e i

n B
an

gla
de

sh
i w

om
en

 ag
ed

 40
 

plu
s. 

4. 
Pil

ot 
int

erv
en

tio
n t

o h
elp

 th
os

e 
livi

ng
 w

ith
 m

en
tal

 he
alt

h p
rob

lem
s i

n 
the

 co
mm

un
ity

 st
op

 sm
ok

ing
 

5. 
Pil

ot 
int

erv
en

tio
n t

o t
es

t 
int

erv
en

tio
ns

 to
 he

lp 
sm

ok
ing

 
pre

gn
an

t w
om

en
 st

op
. 

se
rvi

ce
s t

o m
ee

t th
e n

ee
ds

 of
 

the
 co

mm
un

ity
. 

 JS
NA

 up
da

ted
 he

alt
h 

int
ell

ige
nc

e k
no

wle
dg

e o
f th

e 
co

mm
un

ity
 

 Eq
uit

y a
ud

it h
as

 be
en

 
co

mp
let

ed
 co

nfi
rm

ing
 th

at 
the

 
ne

ed
s o

f th
e c

om
mu

nit
y a

re 
be

ing
 m

et 

R 
4 

Th
at 

co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns

 re
so

urc
es

 be
 

de
ve

lop
ed

 to
 ta

rge
t th

e u
se

rs 
of 

all
 

typ
es

 of
 to

ba
cc

o c
on

su
mp

tio
n, 

inc
lud

ing
 ch

ew
ing

 to
ba

cc
o, 

Pa
an

 
an

d s
he

es
ha

 pi
pe

 sm
ok

ing
. 

 

Ma
rke

tin
g a

nd
 pu

bli
cit

y r
e t

he
 

da
ng

ers
 of

 sh
ee

sh
a u

se
 ar

e 
cu

rre
ntl

y b
ein

g p
oli

tic
ise

d. 
  

 Re
su

lts
 of

 Pa
an

 Su
rve

y  
1. 

Th
is 

su
rve

y i
de

nti
fie

d 1
25

 
ou

tle
ts 

wit
hin

 th
e L

on
do

n 
Bo

rou
gh

 of
 To

we
r H

am
let

s 
(LB

TH
) s

ell
ing

 sm
ok

ele
ss

 
tob

ac
co

 pr
od

uc
ts.

 Th
is 

is 
a 

40
% 

inc
rea

se
 co

mp
are

d t
o a

 
pre

vio
us

 su
rve

y, 
us

ing
 si

mi
lar

 

 Jill
 G

od
da

rd,
 

To
ba

cc
o C

on
tro

l 
Le

ad
, T

HP
CT

 

 
Th

e T
ob

ac
co

 co
ntr

ol 
all

ian
ce

 
wo

rk 
ref

lec
ts 

tha
t w

hil
st 

sm
ok

ing
 to

ba
cc

o v
ia 

cig
are

tte
s p

os
es

 th
e g

rea
tes

t 
he

alt
h r

isk
 to

 th
e c

om
mu

nit
y 

tob
ac

co
 is

 us
ed

 in
 ot

he
r fo

rm
s 

wh
ich

 re
qu

ire
 di

ffe
ren

t 
ap

pro
ac

he
s. 

Pa
an

 in
for

ma
tio

n h
as

 be
en

 
pro

du
ce

d a
nd

 di
str

ibu
ted

. 
 Sh

ish
a i

nfo
rm

ati
on

 ha
s b

ee
n 

pro
du

ce
d a

nd
 di

str
ibu

ted
 by

 
Sm

ok
efr

ee
 of

fic
ers

 in
 ar

ea
s 

Page 283



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 H
ea
lth
 Sc

ru
tin
y R

ev
iew

 of
 To

ba
cc
o C

es
sa
tio
n i
n T

ow
er 
Ha
ml
ets

 – 
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
13
 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te 
– N

ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
ies
 
Da
te 

Up
da
te 
– M

arc
h 2

01
0 

me
tho

ds
, c

arr
ied

 ou
t in

 19
95

. 
Th

is 
inc

rea
se

 in
 ou

tle
ts 

is 
dis

pe
rse

d t
hro

ug
ho

ut 
LB

TH
.  

2. 
A l

arg
e n

um
be

r o
f p

rod
uc

ts 
we

re 
so

ld 
thr

ou
gh

 th
es

e 
ou

tle
ts,

 al
tho

ug
h a

n i
nd

ivid
ua

l 
ou

tle
t w

ill u
su

all
y s

ell
 le

ss
 

tha
n f

ou
r p

rod
uc

ts.
 N

o o
ne

 
bra

nd
 ap

pe
are

d t
o h

av
e 

ac
hie

ve
d a

 m
ark

et 
do

mi
na

nc
e. 

 
3. 

Th
e p

rod
uc

ts 
av

ail
ab

le 
for

 
pu

rch
as

e s
up

po
rte

d t
he

 
as

su
mp

tio
n t

ha
t th

e 
Ba

ng
lad

es
hi 

co
mm

un
ity

 ha
s 

its
 ow

n c
on

su
mp

tio
n 

pre
fer

en
ce

s. 
Ele

ve
n o

utl
ets

 
so

ld 
‘re

ad
y m

ad
e’ 

pa
an

 w
hil

st 
pa

an
 m

as
ala

/gu
tkh

a w
as

 so
ld 

in 
18

 ou
tle

ts.
 Si

xty
 ni

ne
 

ou
tle

ts 
so

ld 
za

rda
.  

4. 
Th

e p
ric

e o
f m

os
t p

rod
uc

ts 
wa

s l
ow

, m
os

t c
om

mo
nly

 
£0

.30
. T

he
 m

os
t c

om
mo

nly
 

av
ail

ab
le 

bra
nd

s o
f z

ard
a 

we
re 

so
ld 

in 
a p

ric
e r

an
ge

 of
 

£0
.50

 - £
1.5

0. 
A ‘

rea
dy

 m
ad

e’ 

wh
ere

 yo
un

g p
eo

ple
 ga

the
r. 

 

Page 284



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 H
ea
lth
 Sc

ru
tin
y R

ev
iew

 of
 To

ba
cc
o C

es
sa
tio
n i
n T

ow
er 
Ha
ml
ets

 – 
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
13
 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te 
– N

ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
ies
 
Da
te 

Up
da
te 
– M

arc
h 2

01
0 

pa
an

 so
ld 

for
 £0

.50
. T

his
 

pri
ce

 do
es

 no
t a

pp
ea

r to
 

ha
ve

 ch
an

ge
d s

inc
e 1

99
5. 

 
5. 

A d
ive

rse
 gr

ou
p o

f 
wh

ole
sa

ler
s w

as
 th

e s
ou

rce
 

of 
the

 pr
od

uc
ts 

fou
nd

 in
 th

e 
LB

TH
 ou

tle
ts.

 As
 w

ith
 br

an
d 

av
ail

ab
ility

, n
o o

ne
 

wh
ole

sa
ler

 se
em

ed
 to

 be
 pr

e-
em

ine
nt 

in 
thi

s m
ark

et.
 O

ne
 

bra
nd

 w
as

 re
po

rte
d a

s b
ein

g 
a d

ire
ct 

im
po

rt. 
 

6. 
It w

as
 th

e n
orm

 fo
r th

os
e 

pro
du

cts
 re

qu
irin

g a
 he

alt
h 

wa
rni

ng
 to

 ei
the

r n
ot 

ha
ve

 
on

e o
r to

 ha
ve

 an
 in

co
rre

ct 
on

e. 
Le

ss
 th

an
 10

% 
of 

pro
du

cts
 ca

rrie
d t

he
 re

qu
ire

d 
UK

 w
arn

ing
. ‘B

es
t b

y’ 
se

ll 
da

tes
 va

rie
d f

rom
 20

07
 to

 
20

10
.  

7. 
Th

e l
ac

k o
f a

 re
qu

ire
me

nt 
for

 
fis

ca
l m

ark
ing

 m
ea

nt 
it w

as
 

dif
fic

ult
 to

 es
tab

lish
 w

he
the

r 
pro

du
cts

 or
igi

na
tin

g o
uts

ide
 

the
 U

K a
re 

co
ntr

ab
an

d o
r n

ot.
  

Page 285



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 H
ea
lth
 Sc

ru
tin
y R

ev
iew

 of
 To

ba
cc
o C

es
sa
tio
n i
n T

ow
er 
Ha
ml
ets

 – 
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
13
 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te 
– N

ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
ies
 
Da
te 

Up
da
te 
– M

arc
h 2

01
0 

8. 
Im

ple
me

nta
tio

n o
f s

ign
ag

e a
t 

ou
tle

ts 
va

rie
d. 

Ov
er 

80
% 

of 
ou

tle
ts 

ha
d a

 ‘N
o S

mo
kin

g’ 
sig

n a
t th

eir
 en

tra
nc

e w
hil

st 
on

ly 
75

% 
of 

ou
tle

ts 
se

llin
g 

cig
are

tte
s h

ad
 a 

sig
n a

bo
ut 

un
de

r a
ge

 sa
les

.  
 

R 
5 

Th
at 

the
 To

ba
cc

o C
on

tro
l U

nit
 

de
ve

lop
 a 

se
rvi

ce
 le

ve
l a

gre
em

en
t 

wit
h t

he
 ne

w 
he

lpl
ine

 pr
ov

ide
r to

 
ca

ptu
re 

inf
orm

ati
on

 to
 he

lp 
un

de
rst

an
d u

se
r’s

 ne
ed

s a
nd

 to
 

ga
ug

e t
he

 ef
fec

tiv
en

es
s o

f 
co

mm
un

ica
tio

ns
 re

so
urc

es
.  

 

Ca
lls 

are
 40

 pe
r m

on
th.

 
 Jill

 G
od

da
rd,

 
To

ba
cc

o C
on

tro
l 

Le
ad

, T
HP

CT
 

Oc
tob

er 
20

09
 

  Th
e n

um
be

r o
f c

all
s t

o t
he

 
he

alt
h h

otl
ine

 ha
ve

 fa
lle

n. 
Th

is 
ha

s b
ee

n o
ffs

et 
by

 an
 

inc
rea

se
 in

 di
rec

t re
fer

ral
s e

g 
fro

m 
he

alt
h p

rof
es

sio
na

ls 
or 

fro
nt 

lin
e s

taf
f. 

R 
6 

Th
at 

the
 LB

TH
 Tr

ad
ing

 St
an

da
rds

 & 
En

vir
on

me
nta

l H
ea

lth
 (C

om
me

rci
al)

 
Se

rvi
ce

 de
ve

lop
s a

 bu
sin

es
s p

lan
 to

 
de

mo
ns

tra
te 

the
 tim

e a
nd

 ef
for

t 
inv

olv
ed

 in
 en

for
ce

me
nt,

 ed
uc

ati
on

 
an

d s
up

po
rt a

cti
vit

ies
. 

 

Ac
tio

n P
lan

 fo
r T

S &
 EH

 C
om

 
pro

du
ce

d e
ve

ry 
ye

ar.
 20

09
/10

 pl
an

 
pro

du
ce

d M
arc

h 2
00

9 
 De

live
ry 

of 
the

 sm
ok

e f
ree

 ac
tio

n 
pla

n i
s l

arg
ely

 on
 ta

rge
t.  

 No
tab

le 
iss

ue
s  

 1.S
mo

ke
 Fr

ee
 aw

ard
 w

as
 la

un
ch

ed
 

in 
Ma

rch
 20

09
. 

Co
lin

 Pe
rrin

s 
He

ad
 of

 Tr
ad

ing
 

Sta
nd

ard
s &

 
En

vir
on

me
nta

l 
He

alt
h, 

LB
TH

 

Oc
tob

er 
20

09
 

Th
e S

mo
ke

 Fr
ee

 pl
an

 fo
r 

LB
TH

 Tr
ad

ing
 St

an
da

rds
 & 

En
vir

on
me

nta
l H

ea
lth

 
(C

om
me

rci
al)

 Se
rvi

ce
 is

 no
w 

we
ll e

sta
bli

sh
ed

. N
HS

 To
we

r 
Ha

ml
ets

 m
ak

e t
he

 se
rvi

ce
 

ac
co

un
tab

le 
for

 ac
tio

ns
 an

d 
reg

ula
r re

po
rtin

g t
ak

es
 pl

ac
e 

wit
h r

eg
ula

r q
ua

rte
rly

 
mo

nit
ori

ng
 re

po
rts

. T
he

 pl
an

 
for

 20
10

/11
 is

 no
w 

be
ing

 

Page 286



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 H
ea
lth
 Sc

ru
tin
y R

ev
iew

 of
 To

ba
cc
o C

es
sa
tio
n i
n T

ow
er 
Ha
ml
ets

 – 
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
13
 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te 
– N

ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
ies
 
Da
te 

Up
da
te 
– M

arc
h 2

01
0 

2. 
Bu

sin
es

se
s e

mp
loy

ing
 in

 to
tal

 
ov

er 
10

00
0 s

taf
f a

nd
 76

2 s
mo

ke
rs 

ha
ve

 be
en

 re
ac

he
d. 

 3.1
6 b

us
ine

ss
es

 re
ce

ive
d a

wa
rds

 at
 

the
 la

st 
aw

ard
 ce

rem
on

y i
n J

un
e. 

31
 

to 
rec

eiv
e a

wa
rds

 in
 O

cto
be

r 
ma

kin
g a

 to
tal

 of
 47

 fro
m 

the
 ta

rge
t 

of 
80

 se
t. 

 4. 
A p

roj
ec

t ta
rge

tin
g B

en
ga

li o
wn

ed
 

bu
sin

es
s f

or 
the

 bu
sin

es
s a

wa
rd 

is 
in 

pro
gre

ss
 w

ith
 ov

er 
30

0 
bu

sin
es

se
s v

isit
ed

 so
 fa

r w
ith

 19
. 

 5. 
Aw

are
ne

ss
 ca

mp
aig

ns
 fo

r 
bu

sin
es

s e
sta

tes
 in

 C
an

ary
 W

ha
rf 

an
d E

as
t In

dia
 is

 on
go

ing
 w

ith
 

ex
pa

ns
ion

 in
to 

St 
Ka

the
rin

e’s
 ar

ea
. 

 6. 
RS

Ls
 sm

ok
efr

ee
 ca

mp
aig

n h
as

 
be

en
 re

vie
we

d a
nd

 a 
ne

w 
str

ate
gy

 
de

ve
lop

ed
. F

ac
t s

he
et 

co
mp

let
ed

 
an

d d
ata

ba
se

 up
da

ted
. A

tte
nd

an
ce

 
at 

ho
us

ing
 fo

rum
s a

nd
 te

na
nts

 
co

nfe
ren

ce
s c

arr
ied

 ou
t. 

 7. 
Th

e s
tra

teg
y f

or 
ca

mp
aig

ns
 

co
ve

rin
g t

ran
sp

ort
 un

de
rta

kin
gs

 

de
ve

lop
ed

 

Page 287



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 H
ea
lth
 Sc

ru
tin
y R

ev
iew

 of
 To

ba
cc
o C

es
sa
tio
n i
n T

ow
er 
Ha
ml
ets

 – 
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
13
 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te 
– N

ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
ies
 
Da
te 

Up
da
te 
– M

arc
h 2

01
0 

su
ch

 as
 M

ini
ca

bs
, b

us
 co

mp
an

ies
 

etc
 ha

s b
ee

n r
ev

iew
ed

. F
ac

t s
he

ets
 

an
d d

ata
ba

se
 ha

s b
ee

n c
om

ple
ted

.  
 8. 

A p
rog

ram
me

 of
 w

ork
 ha

s 
co

mm
en

ce
d t

o e
ns

ure
 th

at 
pla

y 
pa

rks
 ar

e s
mo

ke
 fre

e. 
 9. 

Pu
bli

c s
mo

ke
fre

e e
ve

nts
 ar

e 
gra

du
all

y b
ein

g r
es

po
nd

ed
 to

 by
 

ev
en

ts 
org

an
ise

rs.
 Ad

vic
e a

nd
 

as
sis

tan
ce

 so
ug

ht 
by

 ev
en

ts 
org

an
ise

rs 
on

 sm
ok

efr
ee

 is
su

es
 ar

e 
be

ing
 re

sp
on

de
d t

o. 
 10

. A
n e

nfo
rce

me
nt 

str
ate

gy
 ha

s 
be

en
 de

ve
lop

ed
 w

ith
 ot

he
r 

en
for

ce
me

nt 
un

its
 su

ch
 N

ois
e 

Te
am

, P
lan

nin
g, 

Fir
e D

ep
art

me
nt,

 
Lic

en
sin

g, 
Tra

din
g S

tan
da

rds
 an

d 
the

 po
lice

 to
 de

al 
wit

h s
mo

ke
fre

e 
iss

ue
s a

t c
om

me
rci

al 
pre

mi
se

s 
 11

. A
 sh

ish
a c

on
tro

l s
tra

teg
y h

as
 

be
en

 im
ple

me
nte

d w
ith

 Tr
ad

ing
 

Sta
nd

ard
s a

nd
 th

e J
ET

 Po
lice

 Te
am

 
go

od
 re

su
lts

 th
rou

gh
 fo

rtn
igh

t v
isit

s 
wit

h o
ur 

en
for

ce
me

nt 
pa

rtn
ers

. 
Th

ere
 ar

e 2
4 s

his
ha

 pr
em

ise
s b

ein
g 

Page 288



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 H
ea
lth
 Sc

ru
tin
y R

ev
iew

 of
 To

ba
cc
o C

es
sa
tio
n i
n T

ow
er 
Ha
ml
ets

 – 
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
13
 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te 
– N

ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
ies
 
Da
te 

Up
da
te 
– M

arc
h 2

01
0 

mo
nit

ore
d a

nd
 2 

ha
ve

 be
en

 cl
os

ed
 

so
 fa

r. 
 12

 A 
ma

pp
ing

 ex
erc

ise
 is

 be
ing

 
un

de
rta

ke
n f

or 
ch

ew
ing

 To
ba

cc
o i

n 
Lo

nd
on

 w
ith

 ot
he

r L
oc

al 
Au

tho
riti

es
. 

13
 A 

pro
gra

mm
e o

f u
nd

era
ge

 te
st 

pu
rch

as
es

 ha
s b

eg
un

 w
ith

 fo
rm

al 
ac

tio
n b

ein
g t

ak
en

. 
 14

. C
ou

nte
rfe

it a
nd

 co
ntr

ab
an

d 
To

ba
cc

o i
s b

ein
g s

eiz
ed

 fro
m 

pre
mi

se
s a

nd
 se

lle
rs 

in 
the

 m
ark

ets
. 

R 
7 

Th
at 

the
 Pr

im
ary

 C
are

 Tr
us

t 
int

rod
uc

e m
ea

su
res

 to
 en

su
re 

all
 

he
alt

h p
rof

es
sio

na
ls 

wo
rki

ng
 in

 
ho

sp
ita

l o
r c

om
mu

nit
y s

ett
ing

s o
ffe

r 
ad

vic
e t

o c
ha

ng
e s

mo
kin

g h
ab

its
 

an
d r

efe
r s

mo
ke

rs 
to 

se
rvi

ce
s t

o 
he

lp 
the

m 
qu

it, 
wh

en
ev

er 
po

ss
ibl

e. 
 

Ja
n 2

00
9 h

as
 co

mm
en

ce
d a

 pr
oje

ct 
to 

en
su

re 
tha

t a
ll h

os
pit

al 
ba

se
d 

sta
ff a

re 
tra

ine
d t

o r
ais

e t
he

 is
su

e o
f 

sm
ok

ing
 an

d s
ign

po
st 

to 
se

rvi
ce

s 
Ot

ha
lm

olo
gis

ts 
ha

ve
 be

en
 

co
mm

iss
ion

ed
 fro

m 
Ap

ril 
20

09
. 

 83
% 

of 
de

nta
l p

rac
tic

es
 ar

e 
co

mm
iss

ion
ed

. 

Jill
 G

od
da

rd 
To

ba
cc

o C
on

tro
l 

Le
ad

, T
HP

CT
 

 So
me

n B
an

erj
ee

, 
Dir

ec
tor

 of
 Pu

bli
c 

He
alt

h, 
TH

PC
T 

Oc
tob

er 
20

08
 

Th
e c

on
tra

cts
 w

ith
 th

e 
pro

vid
er 

se
rvi

ce
s n

ow
 al

l 
co

nta
in 

req
uir

em
en

ts 
for

 br
ief

 
int

erv
en

tio
n t

o b
e p

art
 of

 
sta

nd
ard

 ca
re.

 Th
is 

wil
l b

e 
ev

alu
ate

d v
ia 

a d
as

h b
oa

rd 
sy

ste
m 

 All
 G

P p
rac

tic
e s

taf
f a

nd
 

co
mm

un
ity

 ph
arm

ac
ist

s h
av

e 
be

en
 tra

ine
d. 

De
nta

l p
rac

tic
es

 ha
ve

  n
ow

 
be

en
 tra

ine
d 

Op
hth

alm
ic 

pra
cti

tio
ne

rs 
ha

ve
 

no
w 

be
en

 tra
ine

d 
R 
8 

A t
rai

nin
g r

ev
iew

 is
 un

de
r w

ay
 an

d 
Jill

 G
od

da
rd,

 
Oc

tob
er 

De
nta

l p
rac

tic
es

 ha
ve

  n
ow

 

Page 289



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 H
ea
lth
 Sc

ru
tin
y R

ev
iew

 of
 To

ba
cc
o C

es
sa
tio
n i
n T

ow
er 
Ha
ml
ets

 – 
Ap
pe
nd
ix 
13
 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Up
da
te 
– N

ov
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
ies
 
Da
te 

Up
da
te 
– M

arc
h 2

01
0 

Th
at 

the
 PC

T c
om

mi
ss

ion
 m

ore
 

Le
ve

l 1
 an

d L
ev

el 
2 S

mo
kin

g 
Ce

ss
ati

on
 ad

vis
ors

 an
d d

ev
elo

p a
n 

ac
tio

n p
lan

 to
 re

-en
erg

ise
 in

ac
tiv

e 
ad

vis
ers

.  
 

fro
m 

Ap
ril 

20
09

 a 
ne

w 
lice

ns
ing

 
sy

ste
m 

for
 ad

vis
ers

 w
ill b

eg
in 

Tra
ini

ng
 w

ill r
e-s

tar
t J

an
 20

10
. T

his
 

wa
s d

ela
ye

d i
n o

rde
r to

 in
co

rpo
rat

e 
ne

w 
na

tio
na

l g
uid

an
ce

. 
 De

nta
l p

rac
tic

e t
rai

nin
g c

om
ple

ted
 

 

To
ba

cc
o C

on
tro

l 
Le

ad
, T

HP
CT

 
20

08
 

be
en

 tra
ine

d 
A r

ev
iew

 of
 ex

ist
ing

 
pra

cti
tio

ne
rs 

ha
s b

ee
n 

co
mp

let
ed

 an
d r

e t
rai

nin
g i

s 
tak

ing
 pl

ac
e f

or 
tho

se
 th

at 
ne

ed
 it.

 
Ne

w 
tra

ini
ng

 ha
s c

om
me

nc
ed

 
in 

Ja
nu

ary
 20

10
 

R 
9 

Th
at 

the
 PC

T c
om

mi
ss

ion
 m

ore
 

vo
lun

tar
y a

nd
 co

mm
un

ity
 se

cto
r 

org
an

isa
tio

ns
 in

clu
din

g e
xp

lor
ing

 
op

tio
ns

 th
rou

gh
 th

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 to

 de
live

r s
mo

kin
g 

ce
ss

ati
on

 se
rvi

ce
s. 

 

Ad
dit

ion
al 

org
an

isa
tio

ns
 ha

ve
 

co
mm

iss
ion

ed
 fro

m 
the

 vo
lun

tar
y 

an
d c

om
mu

nit
y s

ec
tor

s. 
Th

es
e 

inc
lud

e S
oc

ial
 Ac

tio
n f

or 
He

alt
h ,

 
Ho

rn 
of 

Afr
ica

 or
ga

nis
ati

on
 an

d Q
uit

.  
Th

e T
ob

ac
co

 Al
lia

nc
e a

cti
ve

ly 
en

co
ura

ge
s m

ore
 th

ird
 se

cto
r a

nd
 

co
mm

un
ity

 or
ga

nis
ati

on
s t

o t
en

de
r 

to 
pro

vid
e s

erv
ice

s. 

Jill
 G

od
da

rd,
 

To
ba

cc
o C

on
tro

l 
Le

ad
, T

HP
CT

 
Oc

tob
er 

20
08

 
NH

S T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
co

nti
nu

es
 to

 co
mm

iss
ion

 
se

rvi
ce

 fro
m 

a r
an

ge
 of

 
vo

lun
tar

y a
nd

 co
mm

un
ity

 
se

cto
r o

rga
nis

ati
on

s. 
Ex

am
ple

s i
nc

lud
e O

SC
A, 

Sa
FH

, h
ea

lth
 tra

ine
rs,

 
Po

sit
ive

 Ea
st.

 
All

 ne
w 

ten
de

rs 
are

 w
ide

ly 
ad

ve
rtis

ed
 in

 th
e l

oc
al 

pre
ss

 
in 

ord
er 

to 
sti

mu
lat

e t
he

 
ma

rke
t. 

 

Page 290



 Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n A

lco
ho
l M
isu

se
 am

on
gs
t Y
ou
ng
 Pe

op
le 
– A

pp
en
dix

 14
 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Re
sp
on
se
/C
om

me
nts

 
Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

R1
 

Th
at 

the
 To

we
r H

am
let

s 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 ar

ran
ge

 a 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

 ex
erc

ise
 w

ith
 

yo
un

g p
eo

ple
 an

d u
se

 th
is 

to 
inf

orm
 re

se
arc

h t
ha

t 
rec

og
nis

es
 th

e l
ev

el 
of 

alc
oh

ol 
co

ns
um

pti
on

 am
on

gs
t y

ou
ng

 
pe

op
le.

 Th
is 

res
ea

rch
 ne

ed
s t

o 
inc

lud
e d

ata
 on

; 
 

−
 Y

ou
ng

 pe
op

le’
s a

ttit
ud

es
 

to 
dri

nk
ing

 
−
 I

nfo
rm

ati
on

 ab
ou

t y
ou

ng
 

pe
op

le 
to 

inc
lud

e t
he

 si
x 

Eq
ua

lity
 St

ran
ds

 
−
 D

ata
 by

 W
ard

 or
 Lo

ca
l 

Ar
ea

 Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 (L
AP

) if
 

W
ard

 da
ta 

is 
no

t fe
as

ibl
e 

−
 H

os
pit

al 
da

ta 
rel

ati
ng

 to
 

yo
uth

 dr
ink

ing
 is

su
es

 
 

Co
ns
ult
ati
on
 an

d P
art
ici
pa
tio
n 

 Yo
ng

 pe
op

le 
aff

ec
ted

 by
 su

bs
tan

ce
 m

isu
se

 
wil

l b
e c

on
su

lte
d. 

 Li
ais

on
 w

ith
 ‘P

uls
e’ 

gro
up

, 
a l

ea
din

g r
es

ea
rch

 co
mp

an
y t

ha
t s

pe
cia

lise
 in

 
ma

rke
t re

se
arc

h, 
to 

as
ce

rta
in 

eff
ec

tiv
e 

me
tho

ds
 of

 co
ns

ult
ati

on
. 

 Un
de

rta
ke

 ac
tio

n r
es

ea
rch

 to
 es

tab
lish

 
de

tai
led

 in
for

ma
tio

n a
rou

nd
 Yo

un
g p

eo
ple

’s 
dri

nk
ing

 be
ha

vio
ur 

in 
To

we
r H

am
let

s 
 Th

e Y
ou

th 
Pa

rtic
ipa

tio
n T

ea
m 

an
d t

he
 To

we
r 

Ha
ml

ets
 Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 (T

HP
) h

av
e r

ec
en

tly
 

ca
rrie

d o
ut 

co
ns

ult
ati

on
 w

ith
 yo

un
g p

eo
ple

 
ab

ou
t d

rin
kin

g b
eh

av
iou

rs.
  

 In 
res

po
ns

e t
o c

on
su

lta
tio

n f
ind

ing
s, 

an
 SL

A 
ha

s b
ee

n c
on

firm
ed

 w
ith

 th
e D

rug
 Al

co
ho

l 
Ac

tio
n T

ea
m 

(D
AA

T) 
to 

de
live

r 3
 pr

oje
cts

 
wh

ich
 w

ill l
oo

k a
t:  

 
�

 E
va

lua
tin

g L
ife

lin
e's

 se
rvi

ce
 

�
 E

ng
ag

ing
 w

ith
 pa

ren
ts 

an
d f

am
ilie

s t
o 

ex
plo

re 
the

 st
igm

a o
f a

sk
ing

 fo
r h

elp
 

�
 A

lco
ho

l c
on

su
lta

tio
n  

- to
 lo

ok
 at

 yo
un

g 
pe

op
les

 at
titu

de
s t

ow
ard

s a
lco

ho
l 

 

  An
ge

la 
Le

wis
 

(C
om

mu
nit

y R
es

ou
rce

 
Ma

na
ge

r), 
Str

ate
gy

 
Co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 an
d 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

s  
      Em

ma
 Bo

nd
 (H

idd
en

 
Ha

rm
 C

oo
rdi

na
tor

) 
DA

AT
 Te

am
 

            

  Be
tw

ee
n S

ep
 09

 – 
Ja

n 
20

10
 

                        

Page 291



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n A

lco
ho
l M
isu

se
 am

on
gs
t Y
ou
ng
 Pe

op
le 
– A

pp
en
dix

 14
 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Re
sp
on
se
/C
om

me
nts

 
Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

In 
ad

dit
ion

, h
os

pit
al 

ad
mi

ss
ion

 da
ta 

wil
l b

e 
inc

lud
ed

 an
d b

rok
en

 do
wn

 by
 al

l e
qu

ali
ty 

str
an

ds
 an

d L
AP

 an
d t

his
 da

ta 
wil

l b
e 

att
ac

he
d. 

 Fu
rth

erm
ore

 a 
pro

po
se

d s
oc

ial
 m

ark
eti

ng
 

ca
mp

aig
n a

im
ed

 at
 ap

pli
ca

tio
n o

f m
ark

eti
ng

 
tec

hn
iqu

es
 to

 ac
hie

ve
 be

ha
vio

ur 
ch

an
ge

 is
 

be
ing

 co
mm

iss
ion

ed
 by

 To
we

r H
am

let
s N

HS
 

 Th
is 

wil
l b

e i
n 2

 st
ag

es
:  

 St
ag
e 1

 - S
co

pin
g r

es
ea

rch
, a

ttit
ud

es
, 

be
ha

vio
urs

 an
d b

eli
efs

 of
 ta

rge
t g

rou
ps

. 
 St
ag
e 2

 - I
mp

lem
en

tat
ion

 of
 fin

din
gs

 
  Ac
tio
n: 

 A d
eta

ile
d r

ep
ort

 w
ith

 al
l fi

nd
ing

s w
ill b

e 
su

bm
itte

d t
o O

ve
rvi

ew
 an

d S
cru

tin
y e

arl
y 

ne
xt 

ye
ar.
 

      Ma
rie

-C
arm

en
 

Bu
rro

ug
hs

 (P
ub

lic 
He

alt
h S

tra
teg

ist
) T

ow
er 

Ha
ml

ets
 N

HS
 

         An
ge

la 
Le

wis
 

(C
om

mu
nit

y R
es

ou
rce

 
Ma

na
ge

r), 
Str

ate
gy

 
Co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 an
d 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

s  

                     Ja
n 2

01
0 

  
R2
 

Th
at 

Tra
din

g S
tan

da
rds

 an
d 

the
 Po

lice
 en

su
re 

mo
re 

reg
ula

r te
st 

pu
rch

as
e 

op
era

tio
ns

 ar
e b

ein
g m

ad
e 

ac
ros

s t
he

 bo
rou

gh
 

Eff
ec

tiv
ely

 ad
dre

ss
 un

de
rag

e s
ale

s a
nd

 pr
ox

y 
pu

rch
as

ing
 

 As
 of

 8t
h  M

ay
 20

09
, T

rad
ing

 St
an

da
rds

 ha
ve

 
rec

rui
ted

 13
 un

de
r-a

ge
 te

st 
pu

rch
as

ers
 th

at 

     

     

Page 292



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n A

lco
ho
l M
isu

se
 am

on
gs
t Y
ou
ng
 Pe

op
le 
– A

pp
en
dix

 14
 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Re
sp
on
se
/C
om

me
nts

 
Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

 
by

 re
cru

itin
g a

dd
itio

na
l a

cto
rs 

to 
red

uc
e b

urd
en

 on
 po

lice
 

ca
de

ts.
   

. 

are
 ad

dit
ion

al 
to 

the
 Po

lice
 ca

de
ts.

  T
his

 is
 

un
de

r c
on

tin
ua

l re
vie

w 
an

d a
dd

itio
na

l 
vo

lun
tee

rs 
ma

y b
e r

ec
rui

ted
 du

rin
g t

he
 ye

ar.
 

 Tra
din

g S
tan

da
rds

 in
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w

ith
 th

e 
Po

lice
 w

ill i
nc

rea
se

 ac
tiv

ity
 ta

rge
tin

g 
un

de
rag

e s
ale

s a
t b

oth
 of

f a
nd

 on
 lic

en
se

d 
pre

mi
se

s. 
Th

is 
wil

l in
clu

de
 12

 ta
rge

ted
 te

st 
pu

rch
as

e o
pe

rat
ion

s t
o o

ff l
ice

ns
es

 pe
r 

qu
art

er.
  

 Als
o t

he
 Po

lice
 w

ill c
on

du
ct 

op
era

tio
ns

 on
 

lice
ns

ed
 pr

em
ise

s p
er 

qu
art

er 
inc

lud
ing

 12
 

tar
ge

ted
 vi

sit
s t

o o
n l

ice
ns

ed
 pr

em
ise

s p
er 

qu
art

er.
 

 

     Jo
hn

 M
cC

roh
an

 
(Tr

ad
ing

 St
an

da
rds

 
Ma

ng
er)

 Tr
ad

ing
 

Sta
nd

ard
s 

   Nig
el 

No
ttid

ge
, C

hie
f 

Ins
pe

cto
r, M

etr
op

oli
tan

 
Po

lice
 

 

     On
go

ing
 on

 a 
qu

art
erl

y 
ba

sis
 

     On
go

ing
 on

 a 
qu

art
erl

y 
ba

sis
 

R3
 

Th
at 

Tra
din

g S
tan

da
rds

 
co

ns
ide

r a
dd

itio
na

l a
cti

on
s 

ne
ed

ed
 to

 pr
ev

en
t th

e 
pu

rch
as

e o
f a

lco
ho

l b
y a

du
lts

 
for

 yo
un

g p
eo

ple
. T

his
 

sh
ou

ld 
inc

lud
e m

ore
 pu

bli
cit

y 
ab

ou
t th

e p
ros

ec
uti

on
 of

 
ad

ult
s w

ho
 pu

rch
as

e o
n 

be
ha

lf o
f y

ou
ng

 pe
op

le,
 an

d 
tho

se
 lic

en
se

es
 w

ho
 se

ll t
o, 

un
de

r-a
ge

 dr
ink

ers
. 

 

Tra
din

g s
tan

da
rds

 w
ill c

on
tin

ue
 to

 w
ork

 w
ith

 
the

 Po
lice

 Li
ce

ns
ing

 Te
am

s t
o i

de
nti

fy 
ho

tsp
ots

 in
vo

lvin
g u

nd
er 

ag
e d

rin
kin

g. 
Th

is 
wil

l in
clu

de
 in

for
ma

tio
n f

rom
 To

we
r H

am
let

s 
En

vir
on

me
nta

l H
ea

lth
 O

ffic
ers

 to
 as

sis
t in

 
ob

se
rvi

ng
 “h

ots
po

t p
rem

ise
s”.

 
 Tra

din
g s

tan
da

rds
 w

ill b
e r

un
nin

g a
n 

en
for

ce
me

nt 
pro

jec
t, w

ith
 Po

lice
 pa

rtn
ers

, to
 

tar
ge

t p
rox

y s
ale

s a
t h

ots
po

t p
rem

ise
s. 

 Pr
es

s r
ele

as
es

 w
ill b

e p
rep

are
d f

or 
all

 
pro

se
cu

tio
ns

 an
d s

en
t to

 C
om

mu
nit

ies
 

Jo
hn

 M
cC

roh
an

 
(Tr

ad
ing

 St
an

da
rds

 
Ma

ng
er)

 Tr
ad

ing
 

Sta
nd

ard
s 

 

             

Page 293



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n A

lco
ho
l M
isu

se
 am

on
gs
t Y
ou
ng
 Pe

op
le 
– A

pp
en
dix

 14
 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Re
sp
on
se
/C
om

me
nts

 
Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

Lo
ca

litie
s a

nd
 C

ult
ure

 Pr
es

s O
ffic

er 
Ka

te 
Ta

ylo
r. 

 Ac
tio
ns
: 

 
1. 

Ide
nti

fy 
su

ita
ble

 w
ard

s 
2. 

Sc
op

e h
ow

 LB
TH

 ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
d 

off
ice

rs 
co

uld
 be

 us
ed

 
3. 

De
ve

lop
 an

d a
gre

e s
ch

em
e 

 

     Ja
nu

ary
 20

10
 

Ap
ril 

20
10

 
 Ju

ly 
20

10
 

R4
 

Th
at 

Tra
din

g S
tan

da
rds

 
de

ve
lop

 us
efu

l w
ork

ing
 

rel
ati

on
sh

ips
 w

ith
 lic

en
se

es
 

in 
rei

nfo
rci

ng
 th

eir
 

res
po

ns
ibi

litie
s i

n a
dd

res
sin

g 
alc

oh
ol 

rel
ate

d d
iso

rde
r a

nd
 

als
o e

ns
ure

 lic
en

se
es

 ar
e 

su
pp

ort
ed

 an
d e

nc
ou

rag
ed

 
to 

be
co

me
 in

vo
lve

d i
n l

oc
al 

pro
ble

m 
so

lvin
g. 

 
 

Co
mm

un
ity

 al
co

ho
l P

art
ne

rsh
ip 

mo
de

l o
f a

 
go

od
 tra

de
r s

ch
em

e, 
mu

lti-
ag

en
cy

 ap
pro

ac
h 

(as
 pe

r S
t N

eo
ts 

Pr
oje

ct)
 w

ill b
e p

ilo
ted

 in
 

Mi
llw

all
 to

 te
st 

ou
tco

me
s. 

 St
. N

eo
ts,

 a 
sm

all
 

tow
n i

n C
am

bri
dg

es
hir

e, 
ha

s h
ad

 a 
su

cc
es

sfu
l re

sp
on

sib
le 

alc
oh

ol 
ret

ail
er 

sc
he

me
 op

era
ted

 by
 C

am
bri

dg
es

hir
e T

rad
ing

 
sta

nd
ard

s a
nd

 C
am

bri
dg

es
hir

e P
oli

ce
.  M

od
el 

pro
mo

tes
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
rel

ati
on

sh
ips

 w
ith

 
lice

ns
ee

s, 
ed

uc
ati

on
, e

nfo
rce

me
nt 

an
d 

co
mm

un
ity

 in
vo

lve
me

nt.
 

 Th
e i

nte
nti

on
 is

 to
 ro

ll o
ut 

the
 pr

oje
ct 

ac
ros

s 
the

 Bo
rou

gh
, s

ho
uld

 it 
pro

ve
 su

cc
es

sfu
l. 

 In 
ad

dit
ion

, d
uri

ng
 ro

uti
ne

 vi
sit

s, 
un

de
r-a

ge
 

ad
vic

e i
s g

ive
n, 

an
d a

 “re
fus

als
 bo

ok
” is

su
ed

 
to 

sm
all

 tra
de

rs.
 

 

Jo
hn

 M
cC

roh
an

 
(Tr

ad
ing

 St
an

da
rds

 
Ma

ng
er)

 Tr
ad

ing
 

Sta
nd

ard
s 

 

No
ve

mb
er 

20
10

 
              On

go
ing

 

Page 294



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n A

lco
ho
l M
isu

se
 am

on
gs
t Y
ou
ng
 Pe

op
le 
– A

pp
en
dix

 14
 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Re
sp
on
se
/C
om

me
nts

 
Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

R5
 

Th
at 

Ch
ild

ren
’s 

Se
rvi

ce
 lo

ok
s 

to 
su

pp
ort

 H
ea

lth
y S

ch
oo

ls 
pro

gra
mm

es
 ex

pa
nd

ing
 its

 
rem

it t
o i

nc
lud

e p
rog

ram
me

s 
in 

yo
uth

 cl
ub

s a
nd

 re
vie

win
g 

fun
din

g, 
sta

ffin
g l

ev
els

 an
d 

pro
jec

t d
eli

ve
ry.
 

 

Im
pr
ov
e a
lco

ho
l h
arm

 re
du
cti
on
 

inf
or
ma

tio
n a

nd
  e
du
ca
tio
n f
or
 yo
un
g 

pe
op
le 

 Fu
nd

ed
 by

 PC
T, 

an
 al

co
ho

l e
du

ca
tio

n w
ork

er 
po

st 
wil

l b
e c

rea
ted

 an
d l

oc
ate

d/m
an

ag
ed

 vi
a 

He
alt

hy
 sc

ho
ols

 te
am

.  T
he

 po
st 

wil
l 

inc
orp

ora
te 

tra
ini

ng
 to

 te
ac

he
rs 

(in
c m

od
ell

ing
 

les
so

ns
). H

ea
lth

y s
ch

oo
ls 

wil
l a

lso
 en

su
re 

co
ord

ina
tio

n a
cro

ss
 pr

ov
ide

rs 
to 

av
oid

 
du

pli
ca

tio
n a

nd
 m

ee
t lo

ca
l n

ee
ds

. 
 Im
pr
ov
e e
arl
y a
lco

ho
l e
du
ca
tio
n i
n 

sc
ho
ols

. D
ev
elo

p a
pp
ro
pr
iat
e r
es
po
ns
es
 

to 
alc
oh
ol 
wi
thi
n p

rim
ary

 sc
ho
ols

. 
 Lif

e e
du

ca
tio

n c
en

tre
 (L

EC
), h

as
 de

live
red

 
ed

uc
ati

on
 di

rec
t to

 yr
 5 

an
d 6

. A
 m

ob
ile

 
cla

ss
roo

m 
to 

tar
ge

t a
ll s

ch
oo

ls 
wil

l b
e u

se
d. 

 
Th

is 
wil

l p
rov

ide
 m

ate
ria

ls 
for

 sc
ho

ols
 an

d 
wo

rk 
wit

h p
are

nts
. T

his
 w

ork
 w

ill b
e i

n 
ad

dit
ion

 to
 th

e e
xis

tin
g h

ea
lth

y s
ch

oo
ls 

pro
gra

mm
e a

cti
vit

ies
.   

 Th
is 

wil
l b

e p
rom

ote
d t

o s
ch

oo
ls 

via
: 

 
• 

He
alt

hy
 sc

ho
ols

 
• 

NA
FA

S e
du

ca
tio

n w
ork

er 
• 

Alc
oh

ol 
ed

uc
ati

on
 w

ork
er 

(ab
ov

e) 

    Lo
rra

ine
 H

ac
ho

u (
Jo

int
 

He
ad

, E
xte

nd
ed

 
Se

rvi
ce

s) 
 

         Lo
rra

ine
 H

ac
ho

u (
Jo

int
 

He
ad

, E
xte

nd
ed

 
Se

rvi
ce

s) 
 

          

    Se
pte

mb
er 

20
09

 
           On

go
ing

 
            

Page 295



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n A

lco
ho
l M
isu

se
 am

on
gs
t Y
ou
ng
 Pe

op
le 
– A

pp
en
dix

 14
 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Re
sp
on
se
/C
om

me
nts

 
Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

  Th
e P

SH
E p

rof
es

sio
na

l d
ev

elo
pm

en
t c

ou
rse

 
wil

l a
lso

 be
 pr

om
ote

d t
o s

ch
oo

l a
nd

 ot
he

r 
ap

pro
pri

ate
 st

aff
. 

 Lo
rra

ine
 H

ac
ho

u (
Jo

int
 

He
ad

, E
xte

nd
ed

 
Se

rvi
ce

s) 

 On
go

ing
 

   
R6
 

Th
at 

the
 C

ou
nc

il u
se

s B
ME

 
me

dia
 to

 hi
gh

lig
ht 

the
 

da
ng

ers
 of

 al
co

ho
l m

isu
se

. 
 

Cr
ea
te 
an
d d

eli
ve
r c
ult
ur
all
y a
pp
ro
pr
iat
e 

res
po
ns
es
 fo
r y
ou
ng
 pe

op
le 
fro
m 
div
ers

e 
co
mm

un
itie

s 
 In 

20
08

/09
 th

e C
ou

nc
il u

se
d B

ME
 m

ed
ia 

su
ch

 
as

 Ba
ng

la 
Mi

rro
r, L

on
do

n B
an

gla
, C

ha
nn

el 
S 

an
d S

om
ali

 Ey
e t

o h
igh

lig
ht 

iss
ue

s r
ela

ted
 to

 
su

bs
tan

ce
 m

isu
se

.  
 In 

No
ve

mb
er 

an
d D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
9 t

he
 

Co
un

cil 
wil

l b
e p

lac
ing

 ad
ve

rts
 in

 Ba
ng

la 
mi

rro
r a

bo
ut 

the
 da

ng
ers

 of
 al

co
ho

l m
isu

se
. 

 

         Po
pp

y T
urn

er 
(C

S 
En

ga
ge

me
nt 

Ma
na

ge
r) 

 

         On
go

ing
 

 

R7
 

Th
at 

co
mm

iss
ion

ed
 

sp
ec

ial
ist

 ag
en

cie
s w

ork
ing

 
wit

h y
ou

ng
 pe

op
le 

ne
ed

 to
 

ad
dre

ss
 al

co
ho

l p
rob

lem
s 

wit
h a

s m
uc

h v
igo

ur 
as

 dr
ug

s 
in 

ter
ms

 of
 in

for
ma

tio
n a

nd
 

ad
vic

e, 
ha

rm
 re

du
cti

on
 an

d 
tre

atm
en

t. 
 

Im
pr
ov
e a
lco

ho
l tr
ea
tm
en
t a
nd
 ea
rly
 

int
erv

en
tio
n f
or
 yo

un
g p

eo
ple

 
 A r

ev
iew

 w
ill b

e c
arr

ied
 ou

t b
y t

he
 H

ea
lth

y 
sc

ho
ols

 te
am

 to
 ev

alu
ate

 th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 

gu
ida

nc
e o

n d
ea

lin
g w

ith
 dr

ug
 an

d a
lco

ho
l 

iss
ue

s. 
 Th

e r
ev

iew
 w

ill l
oo

k a
t d

rug
 

ed
uc

ati
on

 gu
ida

nc
e a

nd
 in

ter
ve

nti
on

s. 
 Ta
rg
et 
alc
oh
ol 
rel
ate
d o

ffe
nd
ing

 by
 yo

un
g 

pe
op
le 

   Lo
rra

ine
 H

ac
ho

u (
Jo

int
 

He
ad

, E
xte

nd
ed

 
Se

rvi
ce

s) 
     

   Se
pte

mb
er 

20
09

 
       

Page 296



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n A

lco
ho
l M
isu

se
 am

on
gs
t Y
ou
ng
 Pe

op
le 
– A

pp
en
dix

 14
 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Re
sp
on
se
/C
om

me
nts

 
Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

Th
e L

ife
lin

e Y
ou

th 
Of

fen
din

g T
ea

m 
(Y

OT
) 

wo
rke

r w
ill c

on
tin

ue
 to

 de
live

r a
lco

ho
l s

pe
cif

ic 
ea

rly
 in

ter
ve

nti
on

 gr
ou

p w
ork

 fo
r Y

OT
 cl

ien
ts 

wh
ere

 al
co

ho
l is

 a 
fea

tur
e o

f o
ffe

nd
ing

 
be

ha
vio

ur.
 

 Ad
dit

ion
al 

da
ta 

is 
ne

ed
ed

 re
ga

rdi
ng

 YO
T 

ca
se

loa
d w

he
re 

alc
oh

ol 
mi

su
se

 is
 a 

fac
tor

.  
Th

e Y
OT

 w
ill m

on
ito

r a
nd

 an
aly

se
 ca

se
s 

ref
err

ed
 to

 th
e Y

OT
 su

bs
tan

ce
 m

isu
se

 
wo

rke
r.  

     Im
pr
ov
e f
oll
ow
 up

 re
sp
on
se
 to
 YP

 
pr
es
en
tin
g a

t a
cc
ide

nt 
& 
em

erg
en
cy
 de

pt 
wi
th 
alc
oh
ol 
int
ox
ica
tio
n 

 Ne
w 

A&
E a

lco
ho

l lia
iso

n n
urs

es
, fu

nd
ed

 by
 

PC
T, 

to 
de

ve
lop

 ap
pro

pri
ate

 fo
llo

w 
up

 
pro

toc
ols

 fo
r Y

P i
n c

on
su

lta
tio

n w
ith

 C
SS

S. 
 

Ke
vin

 Jo
ne

s (
Su

bs
tan

ce
 

Mi
su

se
 W

ork
er)

, Y
ou

th 
Of

fen
din

g 
   An

ge
la 

Le
wis

 
(C

om
mu

nit
y R

es
ou

rce
 

Ma
na

ge
r), 

Str
ate

gy
 

Co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 an

d 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
s  

 Ke
vin

 Jo
ne

s (
Su

bs
tan

ce
 

Mi
su

se
 W

ork
er)

, Y
ou

th 
Of

fen
din

g 
     Ma

rie
-C

arm
en

 
Bu

rro
ug

hs
 (P

ub
lic 

He
alt

h S
tra

teg
ist

) T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 N
HS

 

On
go

ing
 

     Ap
ril 

20
09

 
             Ap

ril 
20

10
 

 

R8
 

Th
at 

co
mm

iss
ion

ed
 

sp
ec

ial
ist

 ag
en

cie
s n

ee
d t

o 
inv

es
tig

ate
 an

d d
ev

elo
p 

cu
ltu

ral
ly 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 
res

po
ns

es
 fo

r y
ou

ng
 pe

op
le 

Lif
eli

ne
 w

ill w
ork

 in
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w

ith
 PC

T, 
Ea

st 
Lo

nd
on

 M
os

qu
e, 

OS
CA

 & 
NA

FA
S t

o 
de

ve
lop

 a 
cu

ltu
ral

ly 
se

ns
itiv

e r
es

po
ns

e t
o 

en
su

re 
tha

t a
lco

ho
l in

ter
ve

nti
on

s a
re 

ap
pro

pri
ate

. O
utr

ea
ch

 in
itia

tiv
es

 w
ill a

lso
 be

 

An
ge

la 
Le

wis
 

(C
om

mu
nit

y R
es

ou
rce

 
Ma

na
ge

r), 
Str

ate
gy

 
Co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 an
d 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

s  

     

Page 297



Re
sp
on
se
 to
 Sc

ru
tin
y W

or
kin

g G
ro
up
 R
ep
or
t o
n A

lco
ho
l M
isu

se
 am

on
gs
t Y
ou
ng
 Pe

op
le 
– A

pp
en
dix

 14
 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
n 

Re
sp
on
se
/C
om

me
nts

 
Re
sp
on
sib

ilit
y 

Da
te 

to 
en

su
re 

tha
t a

lco
ho

l 
int

erv
en

tio
ns

 ar
e e

ffe
cti

ve
 

an
d a

cc
ep

tab
le 

for
 al

l th
e 

co
mm

un
itie

s a
nd

 fa
ith

 
gro

up
s i

n t
he

 bo
rou

gh
. 

 

de
live

red
 in

 pa
rtn

ers
hip

 w
ith

 C
AD

AA
 & 

BL
YD

A. 
 

 Ac
tio
n: 

 Pla
n w

ill b
e s

ub
mi

tte
d t

o O
&S

  
 

 
     Ap

ril 
20

10
 

R9
 

Th
at 

the
 Yo

uth
 an

d 
Co

mm
un

ity
 Se

rvi
ce

 en
su

re 
sta

ffs
 ha

ve
 ad

eq
ua

te 
tra

ini
ng

 
an

d s
up

po
rt t

o a
dd

res
s 

alc
oh

ol 
rel

ate
d i

ss
ue

s w
ith

in 
ma

ins
tre

am
 yo

uth
 pr

ov
isio

n. 
Th

is 
sh

ou
ld 

inc
lud

e a
 dr

ug
 

an
d a

lco
ho

l p
oli

cy
 

ad
dre

ss
ing

 tra
ini

ng
 fo

r s
taf

f, 
alc

oh
ol/

dru
g r

ela
ted

 ne
ed

s 
an

d t
ac

klin
g a

lco
ho

l/d
rug

 
rel

ate
d i

nc
ide

nts
. 

 

En
su
re 
yo
uth

 se
rvi
ce
s s
taf
f h
av
e a
de
qu
ate
 

tra
ini
ng
 an

d s
up
po
rt 
to 
ad
dr
es
s a
lco

ho
l 

rel
ate

d i
ss
ue
s w

ith
in 
yo
uth

 pr
ov
isi
on
 

 Re
vie

w 
of 

yo
uth

 se
rvi

ce
s d

rug
 an

d a
lco

ho
l 

po
licy

 ad
dre

ss
ing

 tra
ini

ng
 fo

r s
taf

f w
ill b

e 
co

mp
let

ed
 in

 Se
pt 

20
09

. R
ev

iew
 to

 in
vo

lve
 

Yo
uth

 w
ork

ers
, L

ife
lin

e, 
sc

ho
ols

. 
 Ac
tio
n: 

 Up
da

ted
 po

licy
 w

ill b
e c

irc
ula

ted
 to

 O
&S

 IN
 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
09

. 
 

    Din
ar 

Ho
ss

ain
 (H

ea
d o

f 
Yo

uth
 an

d C
om

mu
nit

y 
Se

rvi
ce

) 

           Se
pt 

20
09

 
 

 

Page 298


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	3 UNRESTRICTED MINUTES
	7.1 Performance and Corporate Revenue Budget Monitoring report 2009-10
	Strategic Plan and Corporate Revenue Budget Monitoring 2009/2010 (Quarter 3) - Appendix 1
	Strategic Plan and Corporate Revenue Budget Monitoring 2009/2010 (Quarter 3) - Appendix 2
	Strategic Plan and Corporate Revenue Budget Monitoring 2009/2010 (Quarter 3) - Appendix 3
	Strategic Plan and Corporate Revenue Budget Monitoring 2009/2010 (Quarter 3) - Appendix 4
	Strategic Plan and Corporate Revenue Budget Monitoring 2009/2010 (Quarter 3) - Appendix 5
	Strategic Plan and Corporate Revenue Budget Monitoring 2009/2010 (Quarter 3) - Appendix 6
	Strategic Plan and Corporate Revenue Budget Monitoring 2009/2010 (Quarter 3) - Appendix 7

	8.1 Strategic Plan 2009/10-11/12: Year 2 Action Plan; and Outline Plan
	Strategic Plan 2009/10-11/12: Year 2 Action Plan; and Outline Plan (appendix 1)
	Strategic Plan 2009/10-11/12: Year 2 Action Plan; and Outline Plan (Appendix 2)

	9.1 Report of the Scrutiny Review Working Group on Reducing Worklessness amongst Young Adults 18-24
	Reducing Worklessness - Appendix

	9.2 Overview and Scrutiny Committee Recommendation Tracking Report: Update

